Meeting:
Date/Time:
Location:
Contact:
Email:

Health and Wellbeing Board
Thursday, 12 March 2015 at 2.00 pm
Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield
Mrs. R. Palmer (Tel: 0116 305 6098)
rosemary.palmer@leics.gov.uk
Membership
Mr. E. F. White CC (Chairman)
Gillian Adams
John Adler
Cllr. J. Boyce
Mick Connell
Karen English
Lesley Hagger
Ch. Supt. Sally Healy
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Dr Andy Ker

Dr Satheesh Kumar
Dr Mayur Lakhani
Rick Moore
Mr. I. D. Ould CC
Cllr. P. Posnett
Toby Sanders
Mike Sandys
Trish Thompson

AGENDA
Item

Report by

1.

Minutes of the meeting held on 22 January
2015.

2.

To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

3.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

4.

Learning Disabilities Self Assessment.

5.

Position Statement by the Chairman.

Learning
Disabilities
Programme Board

(Pages 5 - 22)

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall
Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk
www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy

www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy

www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy

Strategy.
6.

West Leicestershire CCG Draft Operational
Plan.

West
Leicestershire
Clinical
Commissioning
Group

7.

East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG Draft
Operational Plan.

East Leicestershire (Pages 115 and Rutland
302)
Clinical
Commissioning
Group

8.

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment.

Director of Public
Health

(Pages 303 400)

9.

LSCB and SAB Business Plans

Independent Chair
of the
Safeguarding
Boards

(Pages 401 428)

Director of Adults
and Communities

(Pages 429 454)

10. The Care Act 2014.

(Pages 23 114)

Performance.
11. Findings from spending a week in LRI

Healthwatch

There will be a powerpoint presentation for this item.
12. Performance Report.

Chief Executive
and GEM
Commissioning
Support
Performance
Service

(Pages 455 472)

13. Adjustment to Emergency Admissions
Baseline for the Better Care Fund Plan.

Director of Health
and Care
Integration

(Pages 473 474)

14. Emotional Health and Wellbeing of Children
and Young People (Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Services Update).

Director of
Children and
Family Services

(Pages 475 480)

15. Update on Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) Reform and the Role of the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

Director of
Children and
Family Services

(Pages 481 512)

16. East Midlands Ambulance Service Quality
Account.

East Midlands
Ambulance
Service NHS Trust

(Pages 513 580)

Information
17. Update on S106 Contributions for Healthcare.
18. Date of Next Meeting.
The next meeting will be held on 14 May 2015 at 2.00pm
19. Any other items which the Chairman has
decided to take as urgent.

NHS England

(Pages 581 582)

This page is intentionally left blank

5

Agenda Item 4

Health and Wellbeing Board
12th March 2015

Report about supporting people with learning disabilities
in Leicestershire by the Learning Disability Programme
Board

What this report is about and why it has been written
Every year local authorities work with NHS partners to
check how well they are supporting people with learning
disabilities and their families. The check is called the Joint
Health and Social Care Self Assessment. It is run by a
Government department called the Public Health
Observatory.
The Self Assessment asks about
• Being Healthy
• Staying Safe
• Living Well
Information has been collected by asking for evidence and
opinions from different organisations, family carers and
people with learning disabilities.
There are 8 or 9 things to check in each area. A Red,
Amber or Green rating has been made for each thing.
There were questions about the numbers of people who
have had contact with services
The Public Health Observatory will make an overall rating
at the end of March for each Health and Wellbeing Board
area. We think we will be an Amber overall.
1

6

What Leicestershire’s Self Assessment said
We need to get better at recording what happens to
people with a learning disability.
GP’s were asked how many people used their surgeries.
We do not think they are recording people under 18
properly. They said there are 240 people with a learning
disability under 18 across Leicestershire.
We think the number of adults is right. They said there are
2117 people over 18 with a learning disability
GP’s said 1 person with a learning disability died in
Leicestershire in 12 months. We do not think this is right.
We think it is because GP’s are not updating their records
Staying Healthy
We are doing well at making sure people are being
screened for long term health conditions like diabetes,
epilepsy and heart disease
Not enough people are being screened for cancer. 2 out of
10 women with a learning disability has had a cervical
smear. This is less than for women without a learning
disability - 6 out of 10
4 in 10 women with a learning disability have had breast
cancer screening. This is less for women without a learning
disability – 6 out of 10
The number of people who have been tested for diabetes
is about the same as for people without a learning
disability.
Lots of people with learning disabilities are getting health
checks but not always getting a Health Action Plan
2

7

There are learning disability nurses who work in hospitals
and with GP’s to make sure people with learning
disabilities get good healthcare
The main thing we need to get better at is collecting and
sharing information about health. For example, GP’s have
said there are 240 children with a learning disability in
Leicestershire from 0- 18. We think there are much more
than that.

Staying Safe
We are doing well at safeguarding. There are lots of ways
that health and social care check that people are safe
where they are. We are working with organisations to
make sure they understand about the Mental Capacity Act
and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.
We need to make sure more people with a learning
disability have a review of their support each year. People
who are at most risk of being unsafe have all been
reviewed. These people are living outside of
Leicestershire, on the Winterbourne list or have very
complex needs and high cost packages of care.
We need to make sure that more social care providers
who have a contract with Leicestershire County Council
have an announced and unannounced contract monitoring
visit. Information is collected about all contracted
providers all the time. The information is used to decide
which providers need a visit urgently to make sure people
are safe. All NHS contracts have been monitored.
We need to get better at making sure that people with
learning disabilities and their families feel that they are
3

8

treated with compassion, dignity and respect
Family carers said that some workers and providers were
very good and went out of their way to provide good
support.
We need to do more to make sure people with learning
disabilities and their families are involved in finding and
training new staff.
Living Well
There is lots of joint working happening in Leicestershire.
Health and Social Care have put their money together.
Some of the money is paying for a strategic commissioner
for learning disability and autism. The Better Care
Together strategy shows that Leicestershire is also
working with other Local Authorities to make sure people
are supported well.
There is lots of good work happening to support young
people to prepare for adulthood. Education, Health and
Social Care are working together to develop plans to make
sure there are good services. The Children and Families
department and Adults and Communities department are
working together on a Whole Life disability strategy.
We need to get better at making sure people with learning
disabilities can access community venues and activities like
Museums, sports, arts and transport. There are some
examples of good practice but not enough.
There is not much support to get people with learning
disabilities into Employment. There were some examples
of good practice like a “pop up” café that won an award in
Harborough and the Get Set programme in Leicestershire
County Council.
4

9

The last question was aimed at Family Carers. Family
Carers were asked if they felt their needs were being met.
One carer said “if our children’s needs are met, our needs
are met” another described herself as a jar that is nearly
full and it doesn’t take much for it overflow. Carers said
some of their needs were met but they were worried
about the future
What we want to do next
An action plan from the Self Assessment is being written.
Some of the things we want to do in 2015 are:
Being Healthy
• Make sure GP’s have to record when they have
done a Health Action Plan
• Find out why GP’s haven’t recorded many children
with a learning disability
• Make sure a new system called PRISM is being used
to tell other health care providers about what
support people need to access healthcare
Staying Safe
• Make sure we carry on reviewing people who are
most at risk
• Make sure more people get a review
• Quarterly reporting on what Contracted providers
are doing
• Check that the plans to keep people safe are
working well by seeing what safeguarding alerts are
happening
Living Well

5

10

• Work with the Local Area Coordinators to find more
ways for people with learning disabilities to be part
of the community
• Work with the Get Set employment programme to
support more young people with learning
disabilities into employment opportunities
• Update the Carers Strategy and make sure the Care
Act is working well for Carers.
How people with learning disabilities and family carers
have been involved
The Self Assessment had 2 questions that had to be
answered by Family Carers and people with learning
disabilities
A questionnaire was put on the Learning Disability
Partnership Board and Louisa Whait visited the Locality
Groups to talk to them about the Self Assessment. The
Self Assessment was checked by the Commissioning
Advisory group of the Learning Disability Programme
Board. The Commissioning Advisory Group is made up of
family carers and people with learning disabilities.

Who to contact with questions and comments
Louisa Whait
Strategic Commissioning manager
Louisa.Whait@leics.gov.uk
0116 3050385

6

Leicestershire Joint Health and Social Care Self Assessment 2014
The Joint Health and Social Care Self Assessment asked questions in 3 areas;
• Staying Healthy
• Being Safe
• Living Well
Each question was rated as Red, Amber or Green.
Staying Healthy:

A1. Is there a register for people
with learning disabilities in your
area. Is it being used properly to
make sure that people with
learning disabilities are getting
the healthcare they need

How we What is happening
think
we are
doing
There is a register of people with learning disabilities
in our area. The information that Doctors have is
checked every year by learning disability nurses

11

What we are checking

There is information about how much people weigh,
diabetes, heart disease and epilepsy.

A3.How many health checks are
done and how do you check
whether people have had a
Health check?

We think we will be amber for this. 64% if people
with a learning disability have had a health check
who can have one.
The organisation that is collecting all the self
assessments will decide what our rating should be

A4. How many Health Action
plans are written after somebody
has had a health check

We think that a lot of people are getting health
action plans but Doctors are not recording who has
one very well.

12

A2. Screening. Are people getting
good support to have checks to
help stay healthy. This includes
things like how much people
weigh, diabetes, heart disease
and epilepsy

Next year, Doctors will have to record health action
plans. They will not be able to record other things if
they do not

A5. Screening. How information is
collected about the screening for
things like cervical screening,
breast screening and bowel
screening.

Lots of work has been done to make sure people
know about cancer screening. There are DVD’s for
Breast and Bowel cancer. We think we will be Green
for this.
The organisation that is collecting all the self
assessments will decide what our rating should be
At the moment there is not a way to share
information about people with a learning disability.
A new computer programme will be used to record
Reasonable adjustments which different health
services will be able to use

A7. Do you have people in health
that work well with people with
learning disabilities when they are
in non learning disability services?

There are nurses in hospitals like the Leicester Royal
Infirmary that will support people with learning
disability when they go in to hospital.

A8. Do services like the Dentist
and Opticians make changes to
make sure people get good
support. The changes are called

Some services have done things like
Longer appointment
• Appointment at time to suit needs
• Uses easy words and language

13

A6. How do we tell the
organisations who provide health
care about somebody having a
learning disability.

Reasonable Adjustments
A9. Do we know who has a
learning disability who is in prison
or has had to go to Court because
they have done something wrong

• Provides easy read information
• Easy to make appointments
The prison service and Police check if people have a
learning disability when they have first contact with
them

Being Safe
What we are checking

Everyone on the Winterbourne list has had a review.
Nearly 6 out of 10 adults with a learning disability
have had a review. 8 out of 10 disabled children
have had a review. 7 out of 10 people who are
funded by health have had a review.
More people with a learning disability have had a
review than any other group - older people, physical

14

B1. Are people getting regular
checks on the amount of support
they need from the Council?

How we Why and what will happen next (if we know)
think we
are
doing

disability.
We check people are safe and people can ask for
support from First Contact. Everyone has a face to
face interview not a telephone interview
B2. How often are checks made
on services that the Council has a
contract with to provide support
to people with learning
disabilities?

Services are checked by visiting - some times the
service is not told when the visit will happen. The
Council has contracts with over 70 services for
people with a learning disability. Anyone can tell the
Council if they are worried about a service.

B3. Is support being given to
health organisations
There are some health
organisations that want to
become Foundation Trusts. This
means that they are run in a
different way.

Leicestershire Partnership Trust report on how they
are doing every month.

15

To get above Red Councils must check over 9 out of
10 services.

B4. How do you know that
everyone with a learning
disability is safe when they get
support from services?

Lots of organisations like Health, the Council, the
Police and the Care Quality Commission work
together to share information about keeping people
safe.
There is a Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding
Board for Children and for adults. The Board checks
that everyone is doing what they can to keep people
safe.

B5. Are people with a learning
disability and family carers
involved in finding new staff and
training all staff?

Some services include people in recruitment and
training. Some services that have contracts with the
Council and Health include people in finding staff
and training. Leicestershire Partnership Trust have
included people on the interview for the Trust Chief
Executive and Directors.

16

Organisations who want to provide services to
people with a learning disability must show how
they will keep people safe. If they do not show how
they will keep people safe they will not get a
contract with the Council.

People said that there are some people are treated
very well and some who are not treated well. Family
carers said they are worried about people with mild
learning disabilities who do not get very much
support

B7. Do you check that the plans
the council makes about services
do not affect some people in a
worse way than others. Do plans
affect people in an equal way?

The Council is looking at lots of its plans. The Council
has to save a lot of money. There have been lots of
consultations and Council workers have completed a
form called a “Equality and Human Rights Impact
Assessment” which asks the Council questions to
make sure that people are treated equally. Some of
the work is not finished not we think we are amber.

B8. Can you show that
organisations you have a contract
with change what they do when
they have had a complaint?

Providers have to have a way for people to complain
about their services. Complaints are checked.
Providers can have support to make their service
better if they want it. In Health people are given a
diary when they stay in hospital so they can record
what has happened to them.

17

B6. Do family carers and people
with learning disabilities think
they are treated with
Compassion, Dignity and
Respect?

B9. How well do organisations
you have a contract with
understand the law about people
being able to make decisions for
themselves? The law is called the
Mental Capacity Act.

There has been lots of work to make sure that
organisations know about the Mental Capacity Act.
There is training for people to go on. How people
use the Act is checked in Contract monitoring.
Everyone that is admitted to the Agnes Unit or uses
Health Short Breaks is checked to see if they are
being Deprived of their liberty which is part of the
Mental Capacity Act.

Living Well
What we are checking

The Council and Health have joined their money for
learning disability services together. The Council and
Health do lots of work together like Winterbourne
plans and Short Breaks,

18

C1. How well do the Council and
Health work together?

How we Why and what will happen next (if we know)
think we
are
doing

There are 45 Keep Safe places in Leicestershire.
There are not many Changing Places toilets but the
Council has a grant to build 10 Changing Places
toilets in the next 3 years.

C3. Are people with learning
disabilities able to do different
things like to go Cinemas and
museums?

Cinemas and museums across Leicestershire are
doing different things to make them more
accessible.

C4. Are people with learning
disabilities able to take part in
sport and go to their local
leisure centre?

The District Councils are responsible for sport and
leisure centres. There is lots of work happening to
encourage people with disabilities into Sport, for
example sessions for Boccia and Walking.
Leicestershire County Council has a grant called the
“Shires Community Grant” which clubs for people
with learning disabilities can apply for.

19

C2. Are people with learning
disabilities about to travel
around Leicestershire and is
there good access to different
places. Do you have changing
places toilets?

C5. How well are people with a
learning disability supported to
get a job?

There is an Employment sub group on the Learning
Disability Partnership Board. The Council has got a
project called “Get Set” which supports young
people, including people with a learning disability
into volunteering jobs in the Council.
A pop Up Café in Market Harborough that is run by
people with learning disabilities as part of the
Council day service won an award.
There is lots of work happening to help young
people get ready to become adults. The Council is
working with Health and Education to make sure
there is a list of all the services that people can use
and support people to plan for the future.

C7. Are people with learning
disabilities and family carers
involved in planning services
and making decisions about
services.

Leicestershire County Council has done a lot of big
consultations to find out what everyone in
Leicestershire thinks. The consultations were written
in Easy read.
A Commissioning Advisory group has been set up for
people with learning disabilities and family carers to

20

C6. How much work have you
done to get ready to help young
people who are becoming adults
to have a good person centred
plan that includes all the
services that support them?

take part in decision making.
There is a patient and public group for the Better
Care Together learning disability work.
C8. Do family carers think that
their needs are being met?

Family carers some of their needs are met. They
would like training on things like personal budgets.
One carer said she felt like a jar that is nearly full
and it won’t take much for it to spill over.

21

22

This page is intentionally left blank

23

Agenda Item 6
West Leicestershire
Clinical Commissioning Group

Operational Plan
West Leicestershire CCG

Patients, practices and partners working together to create the best value
healthcare for the population of West Leicestershire

Patients, Practices, Partners

24
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 2

Table of Contents
Table of Contents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
Chair’s Foreword . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
1. Operating Context . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5
Documents and drivers that affect operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5

2. Our Mission and Values . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .10
System resilience . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .11

3. The 8 work-streams and how they will deliver QIPP . . . . . .16
1

Empowering patients to shape services and their care . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .17

2

Excellent Primary Medical Care . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .21

3

Reducing Pressure on Emergency Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .26

Integrating discharge and reablement support . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .31
5

Managing complex and multiple long term conditions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .36

6

Improving Mental Health Services – delivering parity of esteem . . . . . . . . . . . .42

8

High Quality Care . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .52

4. Financial Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .60
5. Measures of Success — Performance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .67
6. Delivery Model . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .77
7. Risks and Mitigation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .81
Index . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .86

Version 0.7

25
3 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Chair’s Foreword
Our NHS has never been more high profile or important. The
challenges of urgent care over winter and the focus on the NHS
in the run up to the national election in May mean that the
work we are engaged with is both critical to our patients and
centre stage, publicly and politically.
This Plan sets out the things that we will do in 2015/16. It is a
refresh of the two year Plan we set out last year, not a rewrite
— because the health needs of our population and service
challenges we face remain broadly the same.
It therefore builds on the things we have already achieved:
•

The award winning Acute Visiting Service (AVS) which
provides a rapid response, supporting Primary Medical Care
Providers, to patients with urgent health needs who are
vulnerable to admission

•

The Older Persons’ Unit based at Loughborough Hospital,
operating via direct referral from GPs providing rapid access,
same-day diagnostics and treatment for patients with
complex health needs

•

The Overnight Nursing Assessment Service, designed to
complement existing unscheduled care and social care crisis
response services to provide 24 hour unscheduled care
service provision

It also includes the things we have learned during the course of
the year that we need to do better — fragmentation of care
highlighted by Learning Lessons and improving services for frail
older people and with complex LTCs, as highlighted by the Ian
Sturgess report.
Importantly, it also directly responds to the new national
direction, challenges and opportunities articulated in the Five
Year Forward View.
Locally we have already developed our system response to the
Five year Forward View. Better Care Together (BCT) is a game
changer for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) on two
levels, in terms of what we need to do and in how we need to
go about doing it. For the first time in a generation, we have a
shared direction across health and care for Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland. But as important as the ‘what’ is the
process of developing the BCT plans, which has brought
partners across the system together to work in a much more
joint way on co-designing the improvement that we need to
make. We have played a key system leadership role in shaping
this new sense of collaboration, and we welcome the
opportunities it presents to make the changes we know are

Version 0.7

26
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 4

needed, at scale and with pace.
So, when we put all this together, our mission, goals and values
that are enshrined in our constitution remain as valid and
relevant today as when we developed them three years ago.
The same is true of the eight work-streams that have framed
our work over the last year remain equally relevant. What is
different is the specific areas that we will focus our resources on
in 15/16 in terms of:
1

Delivery of improvements in access, quality and safety for
our patients particularly against national standards for A&E,
RTT, cancer and mental health

2

Reshaping our health and care system at scale through
Better Care Together co-delivery to transform out-ofhospital care, particularly for complex LTCs and older people
with frailty

3

Developing the foundations for new models of integrated
care provision through federated localities,
specialist/generalist MCP working and primary care cocommissioning.

We’re excited and optimistic about the year ahead. Election
years are always interesting and this one for the NHS perhaps
more than most, but throughout we will retain our sustained
focus on what really matters — improving quality and outcomes
for our patients and delivering value for money for taxpayers.

27
5 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

1. Operating Context
This refresh is intended to deliver on a range of priorities both
at a health system and individual CCG level. These priorities are
a combination of plans we have started but are not fully
delivered and priorities that have been developed with our
governing body as a response to new guidance we have
received.

Documents and drivers that affect
operations
The documents and drivers that have contributed to getting to
this plan are a mixture of national planning guidance and local
delivery programmes as listed below:
•

The Better Care Together Programme (including workforce
planning with LETB and C)

•

Better Care Fund

•

Health and Well Being Board

•

The Five Year Forward View

•

Planning Guidance for 2015/16, (Five year View into Action)
including delivering the NHS Constitution Standards

•

Urgent Care Improvements- responding to the national
review of Urgent and Emergency care (Keogh)

•

Planned Care Transformation

•

Learning Lessons to improve care

•

Specialised commissioning / joint commissioning

•

Primary Care Co-Commissioning

•

Specific CCG intentions to deliver operational plan and
identified health need

•

Innovative contracting models

This is a large and complex set of drivers. The themes that occur
in these documents need to be addressed by all commissioners
and providers across the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
(LLR) system, as well as an individual contribution delivered by
WLCCG. Below, we provide a short descriptor of the key themes
and priorities for WLCCG within the context of the local and
national system drivers.

Version 0.7

28
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 6

BCT, BCF, 5 year forward view and Keogh
Better Care Programme (BCT)
The Better Care programme is a five year strategy for Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR). It represents the outputs of
ongoing collaborative working between health and social care
partners across LLR. The case for change in health and social
care across LLR is strong, based on the following:
•

We need integrated quality care — most people already
receive good quality care, but we know there are areas
where we can improve.

•

We need to change the workforce — addressing a future
forecast shortfall in the local and national workforce,
through different ways of working across settings of care.
We need to develop capacity and capabilities, both in our
people and in the technology that supports them. We have
initial outline plans developed with the LetB, we are also in
the process of recruiting a whole-time-equivalent role to
look only at this area of local development

•

We need to meet the changing needs of the LLR population
— there is a rising demand for health and social care, with
the LLR population forecast to grow by 3%, 2014-19, with a
changing age profile, including a 12% growth in the over65 population.

•

We need to ensure value for money — health and social
care organisations need to achieve financial sustainability to
support the improvements in outcomes we want to achieve
against a background of financial constraint.

The case for change creates a real opportunity for us to
redesign the way services are provided and to achieve our vision
agreed by all partner organisations for LLR:
“…to maximise value for the citizens of Leicester, Leicestershire
and Rutland (LLR) by improving the health and well-being
outcomes that matter to them, their families and carers in a
way that enhances the quality of care at the same time as
reducing cost across the public sector to within allocated
resources by restructuring the provision of safe, high quality
services into the most efficient and effective settings. “
The Five Year Forward View
In October 2014 NHS England, the Care Quality Commission,
Health Education England, Monitor, Public Health England and
the Trust Development Authority published the Five Year
Forward View. This sets a vision of a better NHS, the steps to be
taken to get there and the actions needed from others:

29
7 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

•

A radical upgrade in prevention and public health, including
national action on obesity, smoking, alcohol and other
major health risks and work place incentives. These issues
are covered in our People Powered Health section

•

Integrated personal budgets: patients to have access to a
health and social care personal budget (see People Powered
Health section)

•

A stronger partnership with the voluntary sector: investing
significantly in evidence-based approaches, such as, group
based education for people with specific conditions and selfmanagement educational courses, as well as encouraging
peer-to-peer communities to emerge. This area is being
addressed in our long term conditions programme as well as
the mental health section of our plan.

•

Alternative models of provision: Multispecialty Community
Providers (MSCPs) will permit groups of GPs to combine with
nurses, other community health services, hospital specialists
and perhaps mental health and social care to create
integrated out-of-hospital care. Details of our commitment
to work with our federations to develop this offer are
discussed in our Excellence in Primary Care section.

•

Urgent and emergency care services: there is an emphasis on
integration between A&E, GP Out-of Hours, Urgent Care
Centres, NHS 111 and the ambulance service. Our local five
year plan recognises this, and adds a component of demand
management and system capacity management through a
SPA. There is also strategic work being supervised through
the Urgent Care working group where the Better Care
Together five year plan is being tested against the reviews
of Urgent and Emergency care, (Keogh) to ensure that our
plans for Urgent Care deliver a resilient and robust solution
for patients that meets those standards as well as
supporting local drivers.

Specialised Services Commissioning
2015/16 will see changes in Specialised Commissioning.
Transfer of commissioning responsibility: NHS England is
currently undertaking consultation on the transfer of
commissioning responsibility for the following services to CCGs
from 1st April 2015:
•

Renal dialysis

•

Morbid obesity surgery

Other services for which commissioning responsibility is planned
to transfer to CCGs in April 2015 are:

Version 0.7

30
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 8

•

Wheelchair services

•

Neurology outpatients

The CCGs will work with NHS England to ensure that these
changes are implemented and expect the providers to work
with us to ensure both a smooth transition and any future
service transformation.

Primary Care co-commissioning
Clinical Commissioning Groups will have the option from 1st
April 2015 to take on primary care commissioning in
conjunction with the NHS Area Team. There are three levels of
co-commissioning and a CCG is able to choose the level at which
they want to commission primary care services. The levels are:
Delegated commissioning arrangements
Joint commissioning arrangements
Greater involvement in primary care decision making
WLCCG’s board has determined that taking on delegated
commissioning arrangements is the preferred option. Cocommissioning will be a key enabler in developing integrated
out-of-hospital services based around the needs of the local
population. It will also drive the development of the new
models of care set out in the Five Year Forward View. We
developed a Primary Care Plan that was ratified by our board in
January to support this aim (Primary Medical Care Plan West
Leicestershire).

Focus on Prevention
To support reduction in use of emergency and acute services
we, with our local partners, will increase our focus on
prevention. This will include early detection programmes,
prevention of mental illness and a focus on well-being. The
Better Care Fund (BCF) supports this through Local Area
Coordination and other out of hospital services including the
Older Persons’ Unit, Overnight Nursing Assessment Support
Service, the Falls development programme and Seven Day
Working. In addition to this BCF is working with Public Health
and the Unified Prevention Board to ensure all areas of
prevention are covered under the work of this programme. This
enables shared priorities to be acted on with shared outcomes
and shared measures of success. Voluntary services also play a
part in supporting our population.
We know through work with the Health and Well Being Board

31
9 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

that our priorities are long term conditions. The clinical
priorities featured in the following work-streams all have a
focus on early detection of illness and reducing inequality.
Plans are in place to address variable performance across
providers where the levels of focus on prevention are not
consistent. We have recognised that a limited resource has
been allocated to date to primary and secondary prevention
schemes, and we will reconsider financial allocation to this area
following assessment of Better Care Fund programmes.

Version 0.7

32
10 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Version 0.7

2. Our Mission and Values
Our Mission
Patients, practices & partners working together to create the
best value healthcare for the population of West Leicestershire
Our Values

Goals

Democratic Collaborative

Proactive

1 Improve Health
Outcomes

Adaptable

Honest

2 Improve the quality
of healthcare services

Passionate

3 Use our resources
wisely

Below left: today's situation

Below right: our new model

The situation in real life is more complicated. Care is provided
as planned care and as urgent care, and, in urgent care, there
is often a mismatch between need, setting and provision of
service. People are admitted inappropriately to A&E, or
admitted for a condition which need not have deteriorated to
the point of needing emergency care if it had been proactively
managed earlier. For this reason, a greater than necessary
proportion of activity and cost is in urgent care, with much of
the provision at Level 3 being for conditions which might have
been treated elsewhere.

In our new model, strengthening of the lower tiers and
greater attention to proactive care management mean that we
can invest to a much greater extent in scheduled care, with a
substantial reduction in inappropriate or unnecessary
emergency attendance and/or admission. Resources expand
for the lower tiers, along with capacity created by our MultiSpeciality Community Providers (Federations), which create a
virtuous spiral, since the cost of interventions is lower and so
more patients can be supported at the most appropriate level.

Elective
Admission
LTC management
Admit
for
surgery
or LTC
management

Exercise

Federated localities
Enhanced primary care
inter practice
referrals / scale

Admit

Case
MDT
Management management
Routine GP
contacts

Emergency
Admission

Emergency
Attendance/
Admission

Self management

Prevention

Crisis support

Urgent GP contacts

Immunisation

Routine
primary care contacts
(skill mixed)

Exercise

Our vision to realise the Five Year Forward View is to work
towards Multi-Speciality Community Providers that increase the
proportion of care that we offer our population as a scheduled
offer. This is based upon our performance challenges and our
mandatory requirements for delivery.

GPled
crisis
management
Self-management
with telehealth

Prevention

MDT
Rapid
Access
Risk based
primary care
contact

Immunisation

33
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 11

System resilience
Urgent Care Working Group (UCWG)
West Leicestershire CCG chairs the LLR UCWG on behalf of the
LLR health and social care economy. The UCWG comprises of
executive leaders and senior clinicians from every main provider
of urgent care services (including primary care, out of hours,
ambulance services, community, mental health services, care
home providers and the voluntary sector).
Recognising the scale of the challenge we face in LLR, the
UCWG has been convening weekly and is supported in day-today operational management by a series of operational task
focussed sub-groups. These sub-groups are focussed on actions
to improve the performance of the urgent care system across
LLR.
Building on the recommendations from the LLR Urgent Care
Review, the Urgent Care Board agreed to take forward
proactive actions in response to the urgent care challenge in
order to make a direct impact on activity and flow through
Leicester's hospitals to reduce emergency admissions and length
of stay. These include an MDT team at the "front door" of
primary care co-ordinators/therapists/geriatricians seeing all
older people with frailty before they are admitted to improve
their care in a more planned way and maximise referrals back
out into community based alternatives where appropriate.
In addition WLCCG have convened an Out of Hospital
Implementation Board to oversee the impact of all WLCCG
services in place as alternatives to hospital admission. This
group meets on a monthly basis during which the effectiveness
of individual schemes are reviewed and their activity
monitored. In between meetings a sub group meets on a
weekly basis to review real time hospital admission data in
order to provide clinical challenge if an alternative option could
have been chosen as opposed to an emergency admission.
The UCWG also recommends priority areas of investment for
urgent care to CCG Boards. This includes application of both
winter funding, and any re-investment of the Marginal Rate of
Emergency Threshold (MRET).
Planning for seasonal variation
The UCWG leads the planning for seasonal peaks / winter
demand - including the formation, co-ordination and oversight
of the LLR Surge and Resilience Plan. A formal sub-group of the
UCWG meets monthly through the year to continuously
develop this. The plans are tested annually, in conjunction with
national and local planning leads.

34
12 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Planned Care Transformation and Referral to Treatment
The LLR Planned Care transformation programme has a focus
on innovation and continually improving whole care pathways
and quality outcomes. The programme aims to ensure patients
receive a quality service, with positive outcomes, when they
need planned care with consistency and equity of access and
service across both primary and secondary care.
As a Better Care Together work-stream, the Planned Care
transformation programme thinks differently about the way in
which services are delivered. Pathway transformation will
ensure that patients will be treated as close to home as possible
when it is appropriate and clinically safe to do so.
The three local CCG boards endorse the BCT direction of travel
fully and have worked further to refine the focus on next steps
with their boards. The top priority programmes that were
identified through this process for 2015/16 are:
•

Ophthalmology

•

Musculoskeletal

Improvements in these areas will deliver a scale of change that
adds to system resilience and develops stronger strategic links
to support the local Referral to Treatment (RTT) Board.
The local RTT Board has worked systematically with our
providers to develop plans that have given us confidence to set
recovery trajectories to the nationally mandated access targets
that succeed from Q1 next year.
The RTT board has also agreed to support a programme of
work around the delivery of cancer targets. There is a
recognition that the programme structure is supportive and
constructive, offering rapid system wide resolution to threats to
access targets that our patients have a mandated right to
expect. The first area that the board is required to look at is 62
day cancer waits, to ensure this critical access standard is
recovered in line with our forecast trajectory.
Improving the urgent care system in Leicester, Leicestershire
and Rutland
The Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland health system
commissioned a report to identify the key actions that health
and social care plus individual organisations need to take to
improve our local urgent care system. The report was
undertaken by Dr Ian Sturgess, over a 6 month period and
indicates that LLR has the potential to be a high performing
system but that it is currently fragmented. If the report is
studied in more detail it indicates that whilst wholesale actions
have been undertaken, these actions have not been linked
together in a way that allows them to deliver cohesive benefits

Version 0.7

35
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 13

for patients. In summary we need to do more to understand the
journey through the eyes of our patients. Through this planning
round we are working with our providers through the UCWG
with short, medium, and long term actions which ensure we
apply our skills, resources, and daily actions to improve this
journey effectively. A short term action plan is currently being
monitored weekly and this has seen an improvement in
performance that has allowed us to set a recovery trajectory
against the NHS A & E mandated standard of 4 hours that
delivers from Q1 of 2015.
A longer term strategic plan that links to BCT and the Keogh
findings from the national review of urgent and emergency
care is under development, and will report back by the end of
March. Key emerging themes are:
•

Developing communication and navigation aides

•

Supporting workforce in changing their roles to meet the
need

•

Reducing inflow, both attendances and admissions

•

Improving internal processes to support flow

•

Improving outflow, for example discharge processes

•

Using our resources through contracting and procurement
effectively to support sustainable delivery going forward.

Learning lessons to improve care
In the summer of 2014, the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
provider organisations (University Hospital of Leicester and
Leicestershire Partnership Trust) and three Clinical
Commissioning Groups published the Learning Lessons to
Improve Care report. The report detailed the findings of a
clinical audit commissioned by health organisations in Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland to examine the quality of care of
patients, and the action plan to address the areas of
improvement identified.
The Joint Action Plan outlines five themes:
1 System wide clinical leadership to ensure that patient care
issues are addressed across the health community
2

Patient and staff engagement, listening and action

3

Effective care across interfaces between providers of health
services

4

Transforming Emergency Care in our wards, hospitals and
communities

36
14 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

5

Transforming End Of Life Care

The Learning Lessons to Improve Care Clinical Taskforce
developed the plan and continues to meet monthly, chaired by
Professor Lakhani and Dr Kevin Harris. This group is developing
a phased time-fame for delivery of the plan over the year
ahead. The group will also be responsible for ongoing oversight
and monitoring of impact.

•

Review conducted

•

Results analysed & short term Action
Planning undertaken

•

Outcome of review & Joint Action
Plan published

•

Communication with families
commenced

•

Implementation and monitoring
delivery of short term actions

•

Public and Clinical Engagement

•

Planning medium and longer term
actions

•

Develop Outcomes Framework for
next review

•

Implement and monitor delivery of
medium and longer term actions

•

Test Outcomes Framework

•

Interim review via 1st Pulse Check

•

Finalise Outcomes Framework

•

Interim review via 2nd Pulse Check

•

Next Review – March 2016

Stage 1 (Aug 2013Aug 2014)

Stage 2 (September
2014 – April 2015)

Stage 3 (April 2015July 2015)

Stage 4 (August
2015 – March
2016)

Version 0.7

37
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 15

38
16 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Version 0.7

3. The 8 work-streams and
how they will deliver QIPP
Our priority programmes have been produced after
consideration of the strategic direction that we intend and
need to take, and our local operational challenges.
The diagram below shows an overview of our eight priority
Programmes and how they all fit together, and they are for all
patients, all conditions and all providers. Interrelated to our
eight Programmes at the operational level is the work in our 5Year Strategic Plan which is closely linked to our LLR Unit of
Planning and the Leicestershire and Rutland Better Care Fund
Plan.

Support our
members to delivery
excellent primary
medical care
Ensure all our
providers delivery
high quality, great
value care for all our
patients

Introduce new
models to deliver
planned care in
primary and
community
settings

People
powered health:
empowering
patients to shape
services and the
care they
receive

Improving
mental health
services — delivering
parity of esteem for
people with mental
health conditions

Expand
community
urgent care
response to reduce
pressure on
emergency
services

Integrate
discharge and
reablement
support to maximise
recovery and
independence

Build
on our proactive approach to
managing complex
and multiple long
term conditions

39
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 17

1 Empowering patients to shape
services and their care
Introduction
In 2014 we developed and implemented more patient-centred
engagement and involvement to better empower patients to
shape services and the care that they receive. Using Experience
Led Commissioning (ELC) methodology we are ensuring that
insights from patients, carers, staff and stakeholders are at the
heart of CCG clinical commissioning and their experiences are
acted upon at all stages of the commissioning cycle, tackling
poor quality care.

Achievements
•

We implemented the New Start, New You campaign, with a
range of partners providing 250 people with health checks
and signposting and providing information, advice and
guidance on keeping well to many others.

•

We commenced engagement on Hinckley and Bosworth
community services, using ELC methodology. We have to
date, had conversation with 945 patients, carers, staff,
health care professionals and stakeholders people to assess
what matters most to them to inform future commissioning.

•

We are piloting a social prescribing project with a GP
practice, their PPG and VAL to appropriately refer patients ,
who may have one of a range of common mental health
problems to community activities

•

We have involved our 48 Patient Participation Groups in the
development of the Primary Care Medical Plan using the
insights and experiences to shape the actions to be
implemented.

•

In October 2014, we have implemented the national
requirement of a ‘right to have‘ a personal health budget
for people who are eligible for NHS Continuing Healthcare.

Situation
Whilst still in its infancy, this work stream made positive strides
in 2014 and laid solid foundations on which to build on and
enhance the CCG work to engage communities, continuing to
implement our statutory duty to ensure that patient
involvement impacts our commissioning decisions.
We will now continue to implement existing projects and
develop new initiatives in line with planning guidance including
joint plans with our local authority partners to extend our

40
18 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

current work with carers in line with the new duties on local
authorities from April 2015 under the Care Act 2014. It will also
include joint work with the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
health economy on Better Care Together.

Plan intentions
Driven by the People Powered Health Delivery Group we will
implement new initiatives in line with planning guidance:
Support choice, control and prevention
Over the plan period, we will:
•

Empower patients by extending choice and control
including informing them that from April 2015 they have
online access to their GP records

•

Working with Healthwatch, expand the offer of Personal
Health Budgets (PHB) to ensure that by April 2016 PHB and
integrated person budgets are available to people with
learning disabilities including children with special
educational needs – in line with key findings from Francis,
Berwick and Winterbourne View Reports reduce the number
of inpatients for this cohort of patients by increasing
availability of community services.

•

Support through communications and engagement the
better prevention of cancer, swift access to diagnosis and
better treatment and after care

•

Work with the local authority to identify and support carers
in line with the new statutory duties and integrate family
carer support project working with both the local authority
and other community partners and GPs

•

Work with GPs and providers to ensure that patients are
aware of their rights and are offered choice in mental
health services and are able to make well-informed,
meaningful choices at appropriate points along the
pathway

•

Support the review of choices available for women accessing
maternity services by working with service users and public
to consider what more can be done to offer meaningful
choice,

•

Work further with Voluntary Action Leicester to energise
community volunteering and encourage new roles for
volunteers, working with NHS.

•

Further roll-out of the social prescribing across West
Leicestershire.

Version 0.7

41
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 19

Communications, patient engagement and
involvement
Patient experience
• Consolidate into one database all patient experiences and
customer insights received via a range of mechanisms
•

Ensure that ELC methodology is used to engage and capture
cross-community experiences to influence our
commissioning decisions including the development of
locality federations, maternity services, care homes and frail
older people services.

Communications, patient engagement and involvement
• Re-launch and grow our patient membership from May
2015 by 500.
•

Improve and expand the use of our IT platforms to assist
communications, engagement and involvement with
patients and create digital participation spaces with
Loughborough University by autumn 2015.

•

Deliver a programme of marketing campaigns to help to
encourage a cultural change around the choice, use and
access to local health services

•

Evaluate and analyse feedback from Hinckley Review and
ensure that insights and experiences influence the options
for community services by September 2015.

•

Ensure joint communications and engagement work on
each of the Better Care Together work streams and lead on
engagement of the Frail Older Person work stream.

•

Maximise and review the effectiveness of our relationship
with local authorities, Voluntary Action Leicestershire and
Healthwatch

•

Develop our Equality Delivery System (EDS) plan ensuring
we listen to our citizens who are vulnerable and who have
protected characteristics

Delivering this work programme will empower patients to take
a leading role in shaping the services, monitoring performance,
identifying areas where we have gaps or performance issues
and ensuring there is high quality care for patients.
Three Bullets:
• Ensure high quality of patient care by listening and learning
from patient experiences and acting on feedback
•

Empower patients to take a leading role in shaping the

42
20 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

services we commission
•

Work closely on joint plans with our health and social care
partners on new initiatives that support patient choice and
control

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
18 Week RTT Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
18 Week RTT Non-Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4
hours of their arrival at an A&E Department
Category A (Red 1) within 8 minutes
(Conditions that may be immediately life threatening and most
time critical)
NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
4b

Patient experience of hospital care

4c

Friends and Family test

4.2

Responsiveness to in-patients' personal needs

4.3

Patient experience of A&E services

4.4

Access to (i) GP services and (ii) NHS dental services

4.7

Patient experience of community mental health services

4.9

People's experience of integrated care

Version 0.7

43
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 21

2 Excellent Primary Medical Care
Introduction
West Leicestershire CCG has developed
a Primary Medical Care Plan, a system
change plan which responds to the
challenge, set out by Better Care
Together, of a ‘left-shift’ from acute
care to out-of-hospital care. It responds
to key principles established by
extensive engagement with clinicians,
stakeholders and patient
representatives.

It is widely acknowledged that strong and effective primary
medical care is a critical aspect of an effective and highly
performing health care system. Over the last three years, the
CCG has worked with our member practices to get the basics
right in primary and community care to create a platform for
more significant transformational change.
More recently we worked with our practices and stakeholders
to develop a Primary Medical Care Plan (PMCP) that clearly sets
out the CCG’s ambition for the development of general practice
over the next 5 years. In our model, the practice and primary
healthcare team remains the basic unit of care, with the
individual patients list retained as its foundation. However, an
increasingly significant proportion of care will be provided by
practices coming together to collaborate in federations leading
to the integration of multispecialty teams at a local level.

Achievements
We have:
•

Worked with our member practices and stakeholders to
develop a Primary Medical Care Plan (PMCP) with a clear
vision for General Practice

•

Facilitated the development of four legally established
federations

•

Completed 50 practice appraisals thereby helping to drive
up quality in Primary Medical Care

•

Established a concordat with NHS England to develop a
consistent approach to managing risk and sharing
information

•

Improved access to primary and community services over the
seven day period through the development of 4 pilots
covering WLCCG in line with the clinical standards for seven
day working.

•

Invested £1.7m in our practice level Quality QIPP scheme
which has contributed to increasing levels of prevalence in
key disease areas

•

Coordinated a programme of Protected Learning Time
Events for our practice teams linked to CCG priorities.

Situation
Primary Medical Care in West Leicestershire is performing

44
22 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

strongly, both by comparison with the national average and
within its own comparator group. However, with an ageing
workforce, underinvestment in premises, and very significant
challenges ahead resulting from demographic change, rising
costs of healthcare and increasing demand, it is clear that the
situation is not sustainable over the next five years.
The challenges are too great for individual practices to meet,
and there is general acceptance that primary medical care
needs to grow and change.
The PMCP we have developed is a system-change plan that sits
between the LLR Better Care Together 5 Year Strategic Plan and
the CCG’s own Operational Plan. In doing so it responds not
only to the challenges faced by general practice, but also the
wider issues faced by the whole health economy.
From April 2015, the CCG will have delegated responsibility for
the commissioning of General Practice. This significant change
in responsibility is seen as a key enabler which will further
support the transformation of primary medical care, allowing
the exploration of new contractual forms that align values and
behaviours of providers, to improve the out of hospital offer to
our patients .

Plan Intentions
We will focus on continuing to support the capacity and
capability of general practice responding to both the challenges
laid out by Better Care Together and the implementation of the
Primary Medical Care Plan:
Federated localities - making General Practice thrive
• By April 2015 we will have an agreed plan in place to
support development of federations in the short, medium
and long-term
•

By September 2015 federations will develop and agree a
business plan and business case setting out their objectives.

Better collaboration and reducing bureaucracy
• By March 2016 a reduction in time spent on unwarranted
bureaucratic processes freeing up clinical and managerial
time to focus on patient care
•

By April 2015 CCG to agree QIPP programme on a federated
locality level

•

By April 16 federations to develop a business case to share
skills/ expertise and back office functions to improve
efficiency and effectiveness.

Version 0.7

45
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 23

Co-commissioning of Primary Medical Care
• By March 2016 successful implementation of delegated cocommissioning with tangible benefits for practices and
patients
•

By September 2015 review our approach to practice
appraisals in light of co commissioning responsibilities.

Helping practices to be attractive places to work
• Workforce audit completed with gaps identified to inform
local workforce plans which will target existing general
practice workforce; identify new roles and capabilities in
new staff groups; support undergraduate training and GP
training at a federated level.
Invest in practice premises
• By August 2015 commission and complete a primary medical
care premises audit to inform the development of CCG and
federated locality based premises strategy
•

Premises investment secured through local and national
funding streams including £1bn NHS Primary Care
Infrastructure Fund launched in January 2015.

Exploiting technology
• By April 2015 explore the feasibility of all practices moving
to one GP System of Choice to improve integrated and
collaborative working at a federated locality level
•

Support the further development and implementation of
PRISM across all member practices to achieve improved
adherence to planned care pathways

•

By September 2015 an action plan developed to explore and
agree opportunities for increasing use of technology to
support care closer to home.

Listening to and increasing participation of patients
• By March 2016, federated localities to develop a locality
based communication strategy including identification and
training of community champions
•

By September 2015 a comprehensive prevention plan will be
adopted by partners covering the major areas of health and
social inequalities.

Improving quality and Patients Outcomes by Integrated
Working
• By September 2015 utilising Community Hospital Site
Groups, Better Care Together and the Alliance identify

46
24 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

opportunities at a locality level to develop out-of-hospital
services to provide care closer to home
•

By March 2016 through collaborative working with
community, social care and voluntary sector colleagues
develop an integrated team approach to patient care at a
locality/virtual ward level.

Prescribing and Medicines Optimisation
As a CCG, we will build on our LLR 2014/15 Medicines
Optimisation and Prescribing Strategy to support the
continuous quality improvement of prescribing and medicines
management to secure better patient outcomes for our
patients. We will:
•

By March 2016 deliver QIPP efficiency savings as stated in
the Prescribing Growth and QIPP assumptions document

•

By the end of September 2016, implement a PLT event for
healthcare professionals promoting best practice relating to
quality and safety in prescribing

•

By March 2016 undertake a maximum of 50 proactive care
medication reviews

•

By September 2015 Improve antibiotic prescribing in primary
and secondary care by appointment of a Primary care
Antimicrobial pharmacist

Delivering these initiatives will support the delivery of a strong
and effective primary medical care and builds upon the
progress made since the CCG was created three years ago. We
have ensured that Primary Care remains at the heart of meeting
patient’s needs and is at the heart of wider primary care in the
community meeting these needs. It is exciting times with the
development of Federations and the opportunity this gives to
further develop and grow multi-disciplinary teams at a local
level.
Three Bullets:
• Support the delivery of a strong and effective primary
medical care and builds upon the progress made since the
CCG was created three years ago
•

Primary Care remains at the heart of meeting patient’s
needs and is at the heart of wider primary care in the
community meeting these needs

•

Develop Federations to fully utilise the opportunity this
brings to develop and grow multi-disciplinary teams at a
local level

Version 0.7

47
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 25

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
18 Week RTT Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
18 Week RTT Non-Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4
hours of their arrival at an A&E Department (AD)
Improved Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) - Proportion
of people who enter treatment against the level of need within
the population

NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
2.6.i

Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia

3a

Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should
not usually require hospital admission

4a

Patient experience of primary care ( i) GP Services

4.4

Access to (i) GP services

4.6

Bereaved carers' views on the quality of care in the last 3
months of life

48
26 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

3 Reducing Pressure on Emergency
Services
Introduction
There continues to be significant pressures on Emergency
Departments across the country, including Leicester,
Leicestershire & Rutland (LLR). Although we have seen recent
improvements in performance, some people still have to wait
longer than the 4-hour wait standard in Leicester Royal
Infirmary’s Emergency Department. We also have issues where
people stay in local acute and community hospitals longer than
needed
West Leicestershire CCG along with its partner CCGs and
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust commissioned Dr Ian
Sturgess to look at the whole healthcare system and following
his recommendations, an LLR-wide action plan has been drawn
up which will ensure a targeted and collaborative urgent care
approach across the local health economy.

Achievements
A range of new services and enhancements to current services
were launched during autumn 2014 with the aim of providing
care close to home and enabling people to avoid being
admitted to hospital wherever possible. These services were as
follows:
•

From 1 September - 31 December 2014, the Overnight
Nursing Assessment Service has supported 112 individuals in
their own homes who had overnight needs that otherwise
would have been admitted to hospital

•

From April 2014 a Specialist Nursing Support Team provided
dedicated training and supported implementation of the
“Falls Decision Tree” in Care Homes to specifically target
admission avoidance

•

The Rapid Access Heart Failure clinic saw 150 patients from
April to the end of November 2015

•

By the end of March 2015, East Midlands Ambulance Service
will have trained 120 Paramedics in “Falls Management” to
support individuals who have had a fall to recover and
remain out-of-hospital.

•

Building on the October 2013 model, a new specification
was issued for the Acute Visiting Service (AVS) in August
2014 to support General Practice in carrying out home visits
for patients presenting with acute conditions, falls and

Version 0.7

49
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 27

breathlessness who the GP considers are at risk of admission.
Since the service started 1,023 patients have been referred
with less than 10% having to be admitted
•

We have enabled the local provision of safe and effective
treatment for patients with urgent care presentations at
Loughborough Urgent Care Centre whereby 32,809 patients
have been seen and treated since April to December 2014

•

The Older Persons Unit (OPU) opened at Loughborough
Community Hospital on 1 October 2014, by Friday 13th
February 2015, 141 frail older people were supported and
managed in the community

•

LLR development of a 2014/15 winter plan that supported
delivery improvements over such a critical period that
helped manage the winter challenge in the LRI.

Situation
To properly address the local challenges, we have developed an
internal implementation board called ‘out-of-hospital care’,
where all urgent care pathways are reviewed against
performance metrics to determine effectiveness of
commissioned services, gaps in provision that effect patient
experience and using a rapid improvement cycle, bring about
change that can be implemented at scale and pace.
The CCG works with partner agencies and organisations to coproduce shared plans through the Leicestershire County Better
Care Fund work. Work will continue over 2015 and into 2016 to
ensure engagement at a local community level, at the system
level across the wider CCG and where applicable the whole
Leicestershire County, Rutland and Leicester City area.
Prevention of inappropriate secondary care service use remains
a crucial element of the planned approach to reducing pressure
on emergency services working with Public Health and other
partners in taking forward the Leicestershire Unified Prevention
offer (Better Care Fund). The CCG already adopts a risk
stratification secondary prevention approach that is fully
embedded into our proactive care approach, working with
patients in primary care to enable early interventions that
reduce the risk of crisis and promote self-management.
Our Better Care Fund has a prevention programme that
supports joint health and social care metrics. Through Local
Area Co-ordination (LAC) we will make local communities
resilient, reducing the inequalities that come from not linking
health and housing issues. Eight local workers will work in

50
28 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

communities linking and navigating people between health,
social, housing, voluntary and community offers to ensure that
local inequalities do not translate into poor outcomes for
people. This programme is targeted at the most disadvantaged
people in the West Leicestershire

Plan Intentions
Building upon services already developed the approach for
2015/16 seeks to:
•

Upon programme completion at the end of March 2015
evaluate our individual winter schemes and those across the
LLR Unit of Planning in Q1 to ensure system resilience for
Q3. We have committed £2.022m based on what we already
understand worked well last year.

•

As an ongoing commitment throughout the year continue
to evaluate the effectiveness of community based services in
providing care closer to home

•

Developed in early 2015 a new multi-disciplinary team based
at Leicester Royal Infirmary to review patients at the point
of admission, diverting to community services those suitable,
and ensuring those that do require admission get specific
support necessary to smooth their hospital journey

•

Follow a phased implementation plan over 2015 to increase
utilisation and coverage to the Older Persons Unit and the
Overnight Nursing Assessment Service reporting quarterly to
BCF with formal stock takes against set benchmarks for
delivery

•

Evaluate the effectiveness of new pathways at
Loughborough Urgent Care Centre (LUCC) for
Hyperkalaemia, self-presenting chest pain and infections so
that by April 2015 more patients with more complex health
needs can be seen and treated safely out of hospital

•

Encourage patients who experience appendicular skeletal
fractures or injuries to make use of the diagnostics and
treatment at LUCC and extended x-ray provision within the
hospital thereby reducing unnecessary ED attendance

•

By the end of March 2015 reach agreement on the CQUIN to
progressing the collaborative approach with EMAS and
community based providers to divert activity out-of-hospital
so that by the end of March 2016 patients will be seen and
treated locally

•

To enable a new service in place by March 2016 work is now
being undertaken with the East Midlands CCG congress to

Version 0.7

51
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 29

ensure that the most resilient 111 option is secured on a
regional that reduces diverts to A + E departments and
increases non-conveyance options by our 999 providers
•

The development of 7 day services since September 2014 has
provided additional information on what an OOH’s home
visiting service and UCC’s need to deliver to maximise
primary care ownership of their registered population. By
March 2016 a more local ownership of OOH’s services will be
developed as a result through federated primary care
service models and stronger links to our local urgent care
centres will be developed through this piece of work.

Delivering these initiatives will make a significant contribution
to improved patient flow and minimising inappropriate use of
acute services. The delivery ensures improved patient access,
equity of access and quality of patient care. Much of this work
benefits vulnerable groups particularly such as Frail Older
People and helps these individuals stay healthy for longer,
recover quicker and when requiring treatment and support
ensuring this is provided in their own home or as close to home
as possible avoiding, wherever possible, admission to hospital.
Three Bullets:
• Ensure a joined up approach with health and social care
partners to address the urgent care challenge
•

Reduce inappropriate use of secondary care by
commissioning effective admission avoidance services

•

Forge stronger links with our communities to address local
inequalities through our Better Care Fund programmes

52
30 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4
hours of their arrival at an A&E Department
NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
2.3.i

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care
sensitive conditions (adults)

2.3.ii

Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and
epilepsy in under 19s

3a

Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should
not usually require hospital admission

3b

Emergency re-admissions within 30 days of discharge
from hospital
Preventing lower respiratory tract infections (LRTI) in
children from becoming serious

3.2

Emergency admissions for children with lower
respiratory tract infections (LRTI)

Version 0.7

53
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 31

Integrating discharge and reablement
support
Introduction
Waiting to leave hospital can be very frustrating for those
recovering from an illness. Delays stem from a variety of causes
including poor co-ordination of services, delays in identifying
appropriate support, process delays, a shortage of on-going
therapeutic support, and issues with accommodation. During
2014 the percentage of people who experience a length of stay
of at least 11 days has increased by 19%, at an additional cost
of £2.4m.
In the planning of our Better Care Fund we have paid particular
attention to developing integrated options that aim to improve
this poor patient experience. During 14/15 we have
significantly increased our resources into this specific area of
care adding over £800K to our resources shared between health
and social care. Added to this we have taken patient feedback
on board. People waiting for discharge do not understand the
differences between health and social care, so through our
plans we have become more organisationally agnostic. This has
led us to developing shared operational procedures for these
shared resources. We have also added investments to this area
from historic underspends in our Health transfer Funds to
develop review teams to reduce the numbers of days that
people will be delayed in their onward care journey.

Achievements
During 2014/15 the following developments took place:
Help to Live At Home Project - element 1
• A comprehensive action plan has been drawn up to improve
discharge and home care services including adopting
recommendations from recent reviews by Dr Ian Sturgess
and John Bolton. This comprises:
•

Recruiting more staff to concentrate on discharge from
hospital (in reach)

•

Investing in staff to review care plans 2 weeks after hospital
discharge

•

Process improvements in adult social care, cultural change to
promote more self-care/use of community based assets
ahead of statutory support.

Help to Live at Home Project - element 2
• Develop the joint commissioning capability across health

54
32 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

and social care re-modelling domiciliary care services in the
medium term
•

Decisions about progress were approved by the Integration
Executive Board

•

Design, Specification and Procurement taken forward from
January 2015.

Integrating Single Points of Access (SPA)
During 2014 a benchmark baseline overview of existing SPA/call
centres across LLR was collated and is now used to measure
progress
•

By the end of December 2014 a dedicated SPA GP Line saw
drop calls minimised and response times fall below 30
seconds

•

Led by BCF, with input from the City and support from BCT,
there is now an agreed approach and direction of travel to
sustain the developments that delivered this improvement
and maintain this level of service during 2015/16

•

A full business case is being drafted to be considered at the
March Integration Executive in January with a view to a
business case by end of March 2015.

Situation
As outlined in the previous section, “Reducing Pressure on
Emergency Services”, it is a top priority for the CCG to ensure
we continue to do all that we can to relieve this pressure by
reducing delays in transfers of care and offering consistent
discharge/transfer pathways with a "home first" focus.
The CCG works with partner agencies and organisations coproducing shared plans. Much of the work forms part of the
Leicestershire County Better Care Fund work which is codelivered by West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire and
Rutland CCGs with Leicestershire County Council. Where the
work can be taken forward on a county basis, or on a LLR basis,
it is, but the local focus of WLCCG remains working with its
local population to meet their needs in an out of hospital
setting. All of the work shares planning and delivery resources,
co-producing and delivering services, maximising the efficient
use of resources.
The work is supported by an empowered patients approach,
outlined in detail in work-stream 1 “Empowering Patients to
Shape Services and their Care”. The benefits from engaging
patients to help understand needs, to inform the development
of service models and to calibrate services changes we have
made, are beginning to accrue. Work continues with this

Version 0.7

55
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 33

approach that ensures that the whole community will benefit
from equality of access to our discharge and transfer services.
We have particularly focused on ensuring the fitness of all
services to meet the needs of our vulnerable people who find it
difficult to access services traditionally. We have seen this
approach deliver real benefits in the development of our local 5
year plan (Better Care Together), allowing us to gain traction
and new consensus in areas where we previously struggled to
make headway and we are working with the momentum
gained through this programme to make progress in this area.
To reduce delays and improve patient experience, we propose
that when the patient is medically fit to leave hospital they
should not have to remain in hospital whilst longer term
reablement is arranged. Instead, we look at the risk of moving
patients into another setting for their on-going care needs. This
results in patients being transferred through one of three
pathways:
Pathway 1: those who are safe to go straight home with
support
Pathway 2: those who require some night support to be safe at
home
Pathway 3: those at high risk of entering CHC services. These
three pathways form what we have called “Discharge to Assess”

Plan intentions
Developments for 2015-16 include:
Building upon the changed culture to promote "Home First"
principles and employing safe transfer options, using the "Safe
Minimum Data Set" to refer patients to intermediate care or
reablement packages implementation March 2016 (care act
compliant)
Ensure a new procurement process for the community
equipment service is taken forward to ensure a new contract is
in place by March 2016.
Develop Community Equipment Service Specification by end of
June 2015
By end of September 2015 start using the “Patient Transfer
Minimum Data Set” tool to deliver a 3 day reduction in process
time for older adults, amounting to a 15% reduction in length
of stay for patients who remain in UHL for more than 15 days
By end of September 2015 ensure that 50% of older adults who
need support to leave UHL after a spell of care are transferred
under pathway 1 and 2

56
34 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

By the end of March 2016 to increase efficiency of intermediate
care services by 5% through the combination of multiple
specifications into a single service specification. ( 2014/15
efficiency out-turn)
Work with our local authority partners through our BCF plans
to ensure that there is a safe and enabling resilient home care
market available in sufficient quantity to reduce the ‘wait care
list’ held by the LA. This will ensure safe and timely discharge
home for people.
Ensuring referrals into continuing healthcare are appropriate,
which is expected to lead to a reduction in referrals of 10% by
end of March 2016
By 1st April ensure both short-term and long-term plans are in
place so that children and adults who are admitted to hospital
are discharged efficiently and effectively as soon as it is safe to
do so
Better Care Fund Outcome Metrics
All of the above is aligned to the BCF plan and will help to
deliver the plan metrics. The specific BCF Plan metrics are:
•

Permanent admissions of older people (aged 65 and over) to
residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population

•

Proportion of older people (aged 65 and over) who were
still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into
reablement/rehabilitation services

•

Delayed transfers of care from hospital per 100,000
population (average per month)

•

Avoidable emergency admissions (composite measure)

•

Patient/service user experience

•

Injuries due to falls in people aged 65 and over.

People with learning disabilities and mental health needs
Our pathways will work for all disadvantaged groups and will
be designed to meet all health inequalities. E.g. people with
learning disabilities who are on the Care Programme Approach
would be a readily identifiable group who will access services
equitably.
Children and young people with learning disabilities
Children and young people who have significant health needs
will be offered personal budgets (or personal health budgets)
to enable them to remain living in the community and avoid
out of area placements.

Version 0.7

57
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 35

Delivering these initiatives will make a significant contribution
to integrated discharge and reablement leading to improved
patient flow and minimising inappropriate excessive use of
acute services. The delivery ensures improved patient access,
equity of access and quality of patient care. Much of this work
benefits vulnerable groups particularly such as Frail Older
People and helps these individuals exit hospital quicker, to more
appropriate support programmes and wherever possible their
own home.
Three Bullets:
• Improve patient flow through the healthcare system and
best use of our resources
•

Ensure equity of access for all patients to high quality
services

•

Promote a "Home First" ethos and care closer to home

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4
hours of their arrival at an A&E Department
Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC)
Number of patients discharged as a % of occupied bed days
(Better Care Fund)
NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
3a
Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should
not usually require hospital admission
3b
Emergency re-admissions within 30 days of discharge
from hospital
3.4
Proportion of stroke patients reporting an improvement
in activity/lifestyle on the Modified Rankin Scale at 6 months
Helping older people to recover their independence
after illness or injury
3.6.i

Proportion of stroke patients reporting an improvement
in activity/lifestyle on the Modified Rankin Scale at 6
months

3.6.ii

Proportion offered rehabilitation following discharge
from acute or community hospital

58
36 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Version 0.7

5 Managing complex and multiple
long term conditions
Introduction
A proactive approach is followed whereby individuals most at
risk of being admitted to hospital or those who are likely to
experience a health crisis are identified through a risk
stratification tool. This cohort of patients will benefit from high
impact cost effective interventions. Working together with the
individual, the GP practice and wider care team agree on the
support they need to manage their condition, improve the
quality of their care and identify the help they need to
maintain independence and control of their lives. The
engagement with the individual is ongoing and ensures the
health risk is kept at bay and supports self-management of their
condition.

Achievements
Through the practice appraisal process we can demonstrate a
year on year improvement in QoF prevalence as shown in the
table below:
2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

1.51

1.56

1.64

1.69

(5520)

(5756)

(6087)

(6230)

4.46

4.63

5.1

5.3

Prevalence

(-16329)

(17091)

(18912)

(19626)

End of Life

0.11

0.22

0.33

0.49

Prevalence

(323)

(822)

(1214)

(1828)

COPD
Prevalence
Diabetes

•

We supported the identification and out-of-hospital
management of patients with complex long term conditions
(LTCs) by offering primary healthcare professionals training
programmes for Heart failure, Atrial Fibrillation, Respiratory
disease and Cancer Survivorship by March 2015.
1

125 GPs completed the Heart Failure and Atrial
Fibrillation training programme

2

60 GPs have completed the Respiratory Disease training
programme

3

117 GPs have completed Cancer survivorship by March
2015

Through the development and expansion of specialist nursing
and rehabilitation teams we have achieved a reduction in the
number of patients being admitted as an emergency admission
due to:

Our ageing population and associated
growing demands upon healthcare
present a major challenge. Effective
management of Long Term Conditions
(LTCs) is a “must do” to ensure good
health care provision and wise use of
our resources. Our model of care for
managing complex and multiple long
term conditions is based upon national
and international evidence of best
practice, and is called Proactive Care. It
supports the CCG’s overall drive to
move unscheduled clinical
presentations towards
scheduled/planned interventions within
the patient’s own home, general
practice and local community.

59
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 37

1

Stroke, by an average of three a month when compared
to 2013/14

2

Heart Failure by an average of 16 a month

3

Diabetes by an average of nine a month

•

We delivered a bespoke end of life on-call service so that
patients in their last days of life are offered the support of
their usual GP practice at any time as a pilot which we will
expand in 2015.

•

5,800 care plans have been developed and agreed between
the accountable GP and vulnerable patients to promote
wellbeing and management of their conditions and reduce
the risk of an avoidable emergency admission by
understanding what to do in a crisis

•

We rolled out Sound Doctor to all 50 practices which offer
on line advice and education for patients with COPD,
Diabetes and back pain. 706 patients have used this service
up to December 2014

•

We have developed Pre diabetes register in primary care to
identify patients at risk of diabetes and proactively manage
their health

Dementia
• The introduction of Shared Care arrangements as of 1 April
2015 that enables individuals with dementia who have been
supported by specialist services to exit this service and be
supported by primary care with input from the community
based services
•

Also from 1 April 2015, a dedicated hospital-based
Dementia Support service to support affected individuals
who are admitted, resulting in improved quality of care, and
reduced length of stay which, currently, can be twice as long
for those with dementia compared to those without

Situation
The CCG believes that the formation of federations of practices
provides the opportunity to maximise the proactive care
approach already in place, to align the work of health and
social care teams moving towards a Multi Speciality Community
Provider model (MSCP). General practice is well positioned to
take a population health approach because the registered list
provides GPs with a stable cohort of patients who live in a
defined geographical area, both at individual practice and
locality level. Equally important, GPs and their teams are an
integral part of their local communities and can work in
partnership with patients, voluntary and charitable

60
38 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

organisations to co-produce services that deliver equity and
reflect the diverse needs of local populations.
Alcohol and Drug Misuse
Services for alcohol and drug misuse are directly commissioned
by Public Health. However, the serious health and social impact
of alcohol and drug misuse means that we are committed to
joint working in order to:
•

Support health promotion initiatives around sensible
drinking and the dangers of drug misuse, including
addiction to medicines and new addictive drugs

•

Promote screening in primary care for alcohol misuse and
delivery of brief interventions

•

Support shared care in General Practice for drug misusers

•

Improve clinical pathways for alcohol and drug problems
including so-called “dual diagnosis” where there are coexistent mental health problems. We have taken a leading
role in the collaboration of stakeholders for the Crisis Care
Concordat which cites pathways for dual diagnosis as a
priority

•

Secured clinical interfaces between community and criminal
justice systems of care for these patients

Autism Spectrum Disorder [ASD]
A long standing gap in the provision of suitable services to
meet the needs of adults with ASD has been recognised
nationally (Autism act 2009, Adult Autism strategy 2012). We
are responding to this through joint working between Primary
care, Adult Mental health and Learning Disabilities services and
the three Local Authorities to develop ASD-specific care
pathways based on NICE guidance. Key deliverables include:
•

Completion of Autism Self-assessment Framework

•

Continued development and delivery of the Winterbourne
View response

•

Improved access to diagnosis and post-diagnostic support
for ASD including Asperger’s syndrome

•

Improved training of front-line professionals in ASD

•

Improved carer support.

Plan intentions
We will further develop effective pathways for people with
LTCs and end-of-life needs, building personalised care and

Version 0.7

61
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 39

support into these pathways so that more people experience
control of their condition and care. This will be achieved
through:
•

Learning from the quality audit of Directed Enhanced
Service care plans commissioned during 2014, in order for us
to have processes in place to enable fully interoperable
digital care plans for 2% of patients at risk of avoidable
emergency admissions by April 2016.

•

By July 2016 ensure care and support planning and personcentred outcomes are built into service specifications and
existing LPT CHS contracts

•

Ongoing commissioning of "Sound Doctor" to offer online
access for patients with dementia and their carers by April
2015; cardiovascular disease by September 2015; and
continue the offer of existing LTC information so that by
April 2016 1,400 people will have accessed this online
resource

•

Commissioning a community-based service by June 2015 we
will increase the number of housebound patients on general
practice register (estimated 0.5% of the practice list size)
who have care plans and tailored supported interventions to
enable them to live safely and independently

•

By July 2015 commission an out-of-hours service that
supports patients in their last days of life enabling them to
die in their preferred place of death and avoid unnecessary
hospital admissions

Dementia
• A year-long planned rolling programme of support for GPs,
Care Homes and other health and social care professionals
to develop their understanding, knowledge and confidence
in caring for individuals with dementia
•

Ongoing programme of support for GPs to identify and
diagnose dementia as early as possible raising the CCG rate
of diagnosis to the national standard of 67%

•

Continued development of the Local Authority cocommissioned community based dementia support service,
provided by Alzheimer’s Society, supporting Primary Care,
other health and social care professionals, patients and their
families so that all primary care practices are making full use
of this service

Joint working between commissioners and providers
• Enabling early identification of crisis for patients residing in
care homes through planned weekly GP visits, ongoing

62
40 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

reviews of care plans and up-skilling care home staff with
tools to check for change in the patient’s conditions so that
by March 2016 there will be a 10% reduction in avoidable
emergency admissions from care homes
•

The emerging federations, review the usage of the risk
stratification tool alongside the effectiveness and alignment
of the Virtual Ward approach, to further develop integrated
community health and social care teams to maximise the
out-of-hospital offer to our patients

•

Developing a Respiratory Virtual Review service by
September 2015

•

Developing a Complex COPD MDT Service between secondary care specialists, community respiratory nurses and GPs
to manage patients proactively at home by September 2015

•

Developing a Stroke and Neurology Community based
Rehabilitation Team from Autumn 2015, ensuring all cases
are reviewed in line with National Institute for Health and
Care Excellence (NICE) guidance

Maximise use of technology and innovation
• Following the evaluation of the care home virtual consultation offer a range of tele-consultations to all practices so
that by March 2016 on line consultations will be available to
patients and healthcare professionals across the CCG
•

Supporting clinical discussions and decision-making by
working through a model of teleconferencing with
geriatricians and other specialists so that by March 2016
teleconferencing capability will be available to multidisciplinary teams across primary, community and secondary
care

Delivering these initiatives continues to build upon the
successful adoption of a proactive approach towards managing
the challenges of complex and multiple long term conditions.
Utilisation of the risk stratification tool and ensuring the most
in need people are prioritised in the system to be seen, treated
and supported. The work enables individuals to maintain
independence, exert control over their own health and wellbeing and develop an ongoing engagement with health care
provision that supports them at the appropriate level of need.
Three Bullets:
• Build upon the successful adoption of a proactive approach
towards managing the challenges of complex and multiple
long term conditions
•

Utilise the risk stratification tool to ensure the most in need

Version 0.7

63
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 41

people are prioritised in the system to be seen, treated and
supported.
•

Enable individuals to maintain independence, exert control
over their own health and well-being and develop an
ongoing engagement with health care provision that
supports them at the appropriate level of need.

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
18 Week RTT Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
18 Week RTT Non-Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4
hours of their arrival at an A&E Department
Improved Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) - Proportion
of people who enter treatment against the level of need within
the population
NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
1.1

Under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular disease

1.2

Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease

1.3

Under 75 mortality rate from liver disease

1.4

Under 75 mortality rate from cancer

2
Health-related quality of life for people with long-term
conditions
2.1
Proportion of people feeling supported to manage their
condition
2.3.i Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care
sensitive conditions (adults)
2.3.ii Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and
epilepsy in under
2.6.ii A measure of the effectiveness of post-diagnosis care in
sustaining independence and improving quality of life
(dementia)
3a
Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should
not usually require hospital admission

64
42 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

6 Improving Mental Health Services –
delivering parity of esteem
Introduction
The mental health pathway continues to be under significant
pressure, particularly in acute and crisis services. There is a
major system challenge with ready access to crisis services for
people of all ages. This can sometimes lead to some people
seeking help at accident and emergency and adding to demand
on this service. Demand upon service, extended lengths of stay
in hospital for some and delays in transfers of care, has
sometimes resulted in out of county services being required to
meet need. Service pressures also have contributed to CQC
reports identifying significant system challenges for the CCG to
meet in ensuring we provide quality services.
Work has already begun to meet these challenges and to make
the service and system improvements necessary to meet need
and deliver quality services. The Leicestershire CCGs have
worked together in commissioning an independent external
service review of adult mental health to inform strategic
planning which has shaped the approach now being followed
and outlined in this plan. Work has begun and progress is being
made with 2015/16 being a year for further development and
improvement. Key challenges for the year ahead are identified
as:
•

Timely access

•

Demand management and maximising efficiency of current
provision

•

Reduction in out of area placements

•

Reduction in the stigma of Mental Health

•

And equity of service with physical health provision

Changes are being supported by a new approach to contracting
that adopts a shared risk approach between Service Providers
and Commissioners. This change and the system improvements
were agreed following a process of co-production between
service users, service providers and Commissioners and are
universally supported.
In addition over the last year we have seen an increase in the
number of referrals to CAMHS with higher level of need
resulting in a greater demand on CAMHS services. We will coproduce with our users, providers and local authority colleagues
to develop new pathways to ensure improved access and
quality services for children and their families.

Version 0.7

65
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 43

All this work forms a crucial part of our local plans but also of
our 5 year plan Better Care Together. In developing the 5 year
BCT workbook, additional investments were identified for
mental health which come on stream this year. The focus of
these investments is to reduce the inequalities of opportunity
that mental health patients face and to address the inequality
of life expectancy this leads to.

Achievements
•

Over the last year 17 people who were in rehabilitation
settings not best suited to meet their needs were found
more appropriate alternative care that helped them to get
on with their lives in their new homes, with the support
they needed

•

We opened a new service on 3 November 2014 that provides
step-down beds to help people re-integrate into society
who cannot go straight home after their episode of mental
ill health

•

As of 1st April we made substantive the previously funded
as a pilot police triage car. By placing mental health
professional support alongside police officers, this helps
people with mental health conditions that come into
contact with the police and ensures their problems are
resolved in a simple direct way

•

Also as of the 1st April we started working with a new
provider for Improving Access to Psychological Therapy
services (IAPT). The new service makes it easier for people to
access help by enabling them to self-refer directly to the
service

•

During 2014 additional investment was made to increase
the number of nurses in the acute mental health wards so
that when people are most ill they have dedicated one-toone time with a named nurse. This investment reduces the
amount of time they need to spend in hospital by providing
good quality care.

Children’s
• We have increased funds to Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Services (CAMHS) to enhance access to a telephone
service providing professional advice
•

We provided specialist training for front line staff on child
mental health

•

An agreement was made to move children’s inpatient
mental health care from Oakham House to Coalville
Hospital from April 2015 on a temporary basis while a new

66
44 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

long term base is found
•

An independent review of CAMHS Community Service was
commissioned and completed. This resulted in a plan to
improve process and access for young people

•

Funding was given to educational psychology and social
care to improve access to family therapy.

Plan intentions
Prevention
As part of our LLR Better Care Together work which is also part
of our Leicestershire County work with the Public Health led
Unified Prevention Board, we have a planned approach towards
mental health prevention and good health and well-being
maintenance. This work also seeks to identify and make better
use of resources to support development with recent successes
in supporting a roll out programme of Mental Health First Aid
training to non-mental health professionals.
Acute and Crisis Care for Adults
• Launched in early 2015 a new mental health crisis service for
adults, run by Leicestershire Partnership Trust, based at the
Bradgate Mental Health Unit has made access simpler,
clearer and more streamlined resulting in increased GP
utilisation. This will meet the national 4 hour standard as
outlined in the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat.
•

This new crisis service directly links with new “Crisis House”
due to open in March 2015 to offer an alternative to
emergency secondary care admission. The Richmond
Fellowship, a registered charity, will deliver the crisis house
service which is based in Ratby.

•

A recent new mental health provision in our accident and
emergency department has been developed which over the
next six months will be further developed to offer a more
integrated physical and mental health service including
strong liaison psychiatry services in the acute sector

•

Over 2015-16, we will remodel our LPT provided community
mental health teams to improve the range of care available
locally within the community and also to allow an urgent
response to be provided within 5 days. Again this work is
part of the CCG focus but also ties into the LLR BCT work
and will ensure consistent growth and development across
the area to deliver parity of esteem.

•

Finally the work delivered through the Better Care Together
programme we will act to reduce the gap in life expectancy
for people with severe mental illness and this will be a key

Version 0.7

67
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 45

metric used to measure progress in our health care system.
Dementia
Plans to improve the dementia pathway are covered in the
Long Term Conditions section of this plan and forms part of the
BCT Frail Older People work. Mental Health provision supports
this approach and where the condition is mental health related,
picks up the lead responsibility and manages the transition.
Information Technology
The new service for IAPT will continue to increase the use of
technology to make the service more efficient to meet the
national access and recovery targets. This will use text
messaging and social media apps to connect with patients to
help them through their treatment. A user friendly website
means patients can access the service whenever they need to.
Children’s Mental Wellbeing
Families and children have told us that they struggle to receive
the service they need. To address the issues raised we plan to do
the following:
•

Commission a counselling service for children and young
people

•

Establish a specialist community eating disorders service for
children and young people

•

Implement improvements to the CAMHS community service
to address waiting times, access and discharge processes

•

Ensure that specifications are in place for all Tier 2 and Tier
3 CAMHS. Specifications to include referral time targets, key
performance indicators and outcome.

Early Intervention in Psychosis
NHS England has set a national target that for 2015/16, 50% of
people experiencing a first episode of psychosis will have access
to specialist treatment within two weeks of referral and receive
treatment in line with NICE guidelines. To achieve this we will
give additional funding to Leicestershire Partnership Trust to
meet these outcomes.
The plan is designed to deliver progress against the five key
areas of focus identified in the introduction;
•

Timely access

•

Demand management and maximising efficiency of current
provision

68
46 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

•

Reduction in out of area placements

•

Reduction in the stigma of Mental Health

•

And equity of service with physical health provision

Each of the programmes and initiatives contribute to specific
areas of delivery the cumulative impact upon the key areas and
contribute to the overall improvement of quality and
performance in mental health.
Three Bullets:
• Increased efficiency within mental health services that
manages demand appropriately, includes timely access and
therefore provides services that are equitable to physical
health provision
•

Reduction in placements made out of area

•

A reduction in the stigma associated with mental health
problems

Version 0.7

69
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 47

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
Care Programme Approach (CPA): The proportion of people
under adult mental illness specialties on CPA who were
followed up within 7 days of discharge from psychiatric
inpatient care during the period
The proportion of the people that enter treatment against the
level of need in the general population - i.e. the proportion of
people who have depression and/or anxiety disorders who
receive psychological therapies
Improved Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) - Proportion
of people who enter treatment against the level of need within
the population
NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
1.5
Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with serious
mental illness
1.7
Excess under 60 mortality in adults with learning
disabilities
2.5

Employment of people with mental illness

2.6.i

Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia

•

Dementia CQUIN Find

•

Dementia CQUIN Assess and Investigate

•

Dementia CQUIN Refer

2.6.ii

A measure of the effectiveness of post-diagnosis care in
sustaining independence and improving quality of life
(dementia)

4.7

Patient experience of community mental health services

70
48 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

7 Planned Care
Introduction
We generally have good quality planned care in West
Leicestershire. Our patients benefit from choice of planned care
provision available in local community hospitals in addition to
that available in several acute trusts. However, we still have a
challenge to reduce waiting times, both for being seen and for
being treated.

Achievements
•

2014/15 we commissioned an Alliance contract which
incorporates partnership working between ourselves and
several local providers. This allows us to co-produce and cocommission effective care pathways for local people.

•

The local population worked with us to choose the alliance
providers and design the pathways for change. This coproduction removed waste from the system and has saved
£1.6 million.

•

We have communicated with our GPs to make them fully
aware of what is available locally to meet their population’s
needs. This has helped us resolve on a micro-scale some of
our local issues around waiting for care which has enable
UHL to reduce waiting times and numbers waiting.

•

We have worked with UHL to offer choice to patients on
their follow-up appointments, with self-determined
treatment pathways

•

We have worked with 945 patients and stakeholders in
Hinckley and Bosworth through Experience-Based Learning
events to determine how best to configure local services

•

There are site patient and stakeholders groups for all
hospital sites across the CCG which have are configured to
review how best to maximise utilisation of each site. The
work is co-ordinated to overall development of planned
care and is tuned to deliver as and when system change
requires.

Situation
The level of capacity in the LLR system is under pressure to meet
the needs of the population. As elsewhere in the country, the
growth in Urgent Care demand has affected our ability to offer
consistent support to people within the 18 weeks that is their
right to expect.

Version 0.7

71
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 49

We have worked collaboratively across the system with our
providers, fellow CCGs and patients to co-produce the best plan
to improve this situation. This co-production piece is overseen
by an RTT board which reports its outcomes to the system so
improvements can be measured. This has given us sufficient
confidence to be able to plan recovery trajectories that see us
achieving RTT standards for our population from April 1.

Plan intentions
•

By August 2015 we will have developed a referral hub. This
will use information technology, i.e. PRISM (Pathway and
Referral Implementation System) to offer consistent
pathway and standards information to ensure patient
referrals go to the right clinician first time. By the end of
March 2016 we will evaluate the impact on patient
satisfaction, reductions in RTT wait times and efficiencies in
UHL’s resource deployment.

•

By end of June we will have joined up to the regional
response of effectively managing our resources through
service entry thresholds as we work through the
opportunities PRISM presents. Ensuring patients utilise all
appropriate community services before entering the acute
system will increase efficiencies, improve patient outcomes
and help maintain RTT waiting times.

•

Over the year we are following a phased reduction in the
level of dependencies of the settings of care that people
receive support in. Our patients have said they want their
surgical interventions to be closer to home and to minimise
the disruption to them. So we, with their support, are
moving inpatients spells to day case, day case to outpatient
procedures or clean rooms and also reducing the need to
acute follow up appointments where appropriate.

•

Over the year we are following a phased programme of
work to move activity closer to patient homes where
appropriate utilising capacity and skills within primary care
and local community hospitals.

•

The CCG will work with the Alliance Partnership to move
more Ophthalmology, ENT, pain management and hernias
into community and Primary Health care services and will
explore further potential options to move more care into
local community hospitals and Primary Care across 6
prioritised specialties.

•

As part of the West Leicestershire CCG Primary Medical Care
Plan we are following a phased approach for increased
primary care and community provision of MSK services,
which will include a system of primary care triage to reduce

72
50 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

referrals for Trauma and Orthopaedics
•

As part of the West Leicestershire CCG Primary Medical Care
we are pursuing a planned approach to estate management
investing in our capacity to enhance delivery

•

The RTT board are moving to fortnightly meetings where
we fully engage partners to maintain the mandated
standards we have worked so hard to recover. Eventually it
is expected that reductions in waiting times and consistent
quality of care will deliver natural repatriation of activity
into the county from surrounding hospitals.

•

As of the first quarterly report we will incorporate Cancer
performance management within the remit of the RTT
Board to ensure senior level oversight of issues and that
appropriate action is taken by both providers and
commissioners to ensure delivery of cancer waiting time
standards.

•

To support the Hinckley and Bosworth future configuration
development programme data gathering is due to complete
by the end of March 2015. This will then enable a future
timeline for programme development to be agreed and
followed that enables the programme to be completed by
the end of the year.

This will support delivery of RTT to national standards from
quarter 1.
In addition this will deliver significant activity moves for three
specialities into community / primary care settings.
Three Bullets:
• Referral To Treatment is to be maintained within national
targets from quarter 1
•

Hinckley and Bosworth options appraisal to be completed
and consulted upon if required

•

Significant activity from three specialities to be shifted into
community / primary care settings

Version 0.7

73
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 51

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
18 Week RTT Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
18 Week RTT Non-Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
Diagnostic Waits < 6 weeks

NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
3.1

Total health gain as assessed by patients for elective
procedures

4.1

Patient experience of outpatient services

4.8

Children and young people's experience of outpatient
services

74
52 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

8 High Quality Care
Introduction
Our ambition in WLCCG is to offer patients the very best care
we can within the resources we have. Our focus is always that
people are the centre of our care. In order to understand the
quality of care from the providers of services we use a range of
activities to improve the quality of care. To do that we use
robust methods including: contracting, monitoring and
reporting, and where we use the learning from complaints and
adverse incidents to improve health outcomes for people.

Achievements
Our achievements in 14/15 include the following:
Patient Experience:
• Led on the outcomes from the Learning Lessons to Improve
Care review to ensure that patient experience, safety and
outcomes inform our commission activities
•

Recruited an additional Patient Leader to work in equal
partnership and collaboration with our clinical and
managerial leaders in the CCG and strategically respond to
‘Creating a Revolution in Patient and Customer Services
Experience’

•

Monitored patient experience of our providers through
national and local surveys and patient feedback, including
the national Friends and Family Test (FFT), introducing the
Loughborough Urgent Care facility to the FTT, reporting via
the NHS Contract to understand the patient experience of
urgent care and identify areas for improvement for timely
access to urgent treatment

Patient Safety:
• Through contractual mechanisms for our provider services
ensured compliance with the ‘Duty of Candour’, the robust
monitoring of the NHS Safety Thermometer and other
quality metrics, safeguarding adult and children
arrangements, including MCA and DoLS are in place and
monitored the safety of patient eligible for continuing
health care funding in nursing homes and other residential
settings
•

Joined the ‘Sign Up to Safety’ national campaign to reduce
avoidable harm by 50% over the next 3 years to
demonstrate our commitment and high priority of patient
safety in the CCG

Version 0.7

75
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 53

•

Delivered identified CCG priorities for Safeguarding that
include prevention of female genital mutilation, sexual
violence, domestic abuse, and the PREVENT agenda through
multi-agency working and the LLR Safeguarding Boards for
Children and Adults

•

Led on Care and Treatment Reviews for people with
Learning Disabilities from West Leicestershire as per the
requirements for the ‘Transforming Care Concordat,’ and as
a result of the Winterbourne View failings to identify
people for more appropriate local community based services
and ensured they are discharged to these community
services

Improving Health Outcomes
• Led and driven the Chief Nursing Officer of England’s six
values of nursing (the 6Cs: compassion, courage,
competency, commitment, care [quality/safety],
communication) to improve health outcomes for people
through developing capability and competence. This has
resulted in the development of Practice Nurse mentors and
NMC Sign-Off Mentors, an innovative pilot of PreRegistration Nurse Placement in General Practice and the
development of health care assistants in General Practice to
support clinical staff in secondary health prevention and
primary health promotion work. In addition, through the
Better Care Together programme we will ensure the 6cs
feature in all provider plans.

Situation
We have had a strong year of delivery focusing on the essentials
of the Francis, Berwick and Winterbourne View reviews to
ensure high quality and patient safety. Learning Lessons to
Improve Care has been a strong challenge where we reviewed
the quality of care for people at the end of their lives. We
found it could be improved and have steadily addressed the
specific issues of our system. We are taking forward clinical
leadership challenges and service developments that were
identified through this process. Patient safety and a positive
experience of care forms the basis for all of our commissioning
activities. We aim to reduce avoidable harm and learn lessons
when care fails to deliver to the highest standard.

Plan intentions
Patient Safety
• As part of our ongoing commitment to reducing avoidable
harm and safety prevention we will focus our work on ‘Sign
Up to Safety’. This aims to reduce harm and embed a culture

76
54 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

within the CCG that places patient safety at the heart of
everything it does, The three priority areas within our action
plan for year one of the three year campaign includes
developing and implementing Primary Medical Services
Incident Reporting, where we will create a patient safety
culture through sharing of learning and Learning Lessons to
Improve Care, through system-wide clinical leadership,
patient engagement, effective care across provider
interfaces
•

The CCG will have clinical membership at the local Patient
Safety Collaborative led by the Academic Health Science
Network that will focus on empowering staff, patients and
carers to co-produce, co design and co deliver local
improvements in patient care

•

We will reduce the incidence of Clostridium difficile to a
maximum of 77 cases.

Safeguarding
• Following on from the Care and Treatment Reviews for
people with Learning Disabilities and the Winterbourne
Concordat for people in inpatient services, we will use the
recommendations and actions from these reviews to ensure
we can commission and provide patient centred alternatives
to hospital, and where this work will be undertaken with
local health and social care agencies to develop and provide
to enable people to be closer to their families. Monthly
reporting on the Care and Treatment Review outcomes will
be provided to NHS England and updates will be provided
to the Health and Wellbeing Board
•

In line with our responsibility for safeguarding in light of
the Supreme Court Judgment (Cheshire West) and the much
wider definition of deprivation of liberty (DoL) for people in
supported living / domiciliary care we will continue the work
with the other LLR CCGs, the LLR Safeguarding Team,
Leicester County Council and GEM CSU Continuing Health
Care, and following the scoping exercise to identify those
people who may meet the ‘acid test’, and for the Court of
Approval, and to ensure the care we commission is DoL
compliant.

•

We will work with our partner agencies through the Local
Safeguarding Children’s Board to reduce the risk of child
sexual exploitation

•

We will continue to work with the LLR Safeguarding
Children and Adult Boards to understand the quality of care
experienced by vulnerable groups and where this work will
include patient experience feedback data from the multiagency Board membership to inform commissioning and

Version 0.7

77
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 55

service delivery.
Quality Improvement and Monitoring for all CCG commissioned
services
Through the NHS Standard Contract we ensure:
•

The five safety pledges are embedded into existing quality
and contractual processes for NHS Providers via the Clinical
Quality Review Groups, Senior Leadership and Contracts
Management and the WLCCG Quality Assurance Framework

•

Clinical quality indicators within Providers Quality Schedules
provide commissioner with evidence that they have a food
and drink strategy in accordance with the Hospital Food
Standards Report

•

Sepsis and acute kidney injury, as two specific clinical
priorities for improving patient outcomes for 2015/16

•

Clear clinical accountability for patient safety is embedded
within these organisations, and where this will be
monitored to ensure learning into action via regular quality
visits by commissioners

•

Primary and secondary care providers validate their
antibiotic prescribing data following the Public Health
England (PHE) validation protocol

•

Service delivery improvement plans (SDIPs) to implement at
least five of the ten clinical standards for seven day services

•

We will work with providers to embed the practice of clear
accountability with a doctor responsible for a patients care
within and across different care settings that fits with the
Academy of Medical Royal Colleges guidance.

Improving quality and outcomes
• The CCG will ensure there are clear links and processes for
identifying and implementing the revitalised National
Quality Board priorities and work programmes, and the
system wide quality improvements to measure quality across
providers, and commissioning
•

To strengthen our quality assurance mechanisms we will use
the CQC inspection reports and ratings as they roll these out
during 2015 and 2016, to seek assure of quality of carelearning from where care is good or outstanding. Where
care requires improvement or is inadequate we will ensure
local organisations co-produce agreed improvement plans
that drive quality standards and outcomes-with stakeholders
from social care, where appropriate to improve care

•

For improvement in quality and outcomes for maternity

78
56 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

services further work will be completed in 15/16 as part of
Better Care Together to include:
•

Sustainable Long Term Models for Maternity

•

Improved Access to Maternity and perinatal outcomes

•

Neonates in the right cot at the right time

Patient Experience
• For the ‘seldom heard groups’ we will work closely with
Healthwatch to focus on these groups of people and
improve engagement to ensure better access to services for
people with protected characteristics
•

As part of our methods of engagement, we will review the
NHS Citizen approach to engage local patients, the public
and community who are interested in becoming more
involved with their local NHS services and participate more
fully in the decision making processes

•

The CCG Chief Nurse and Caldicott Guardian will ensure that
the CCG meets the Caldicott Review recommendations for
information sharing through local sharing agreements and
the Caldicott Log that is monitored via the CCG Quality and
Performance Sub-Group.

Research and Innovation
• We will champion innovation, evidenced based practice and
the adoption of research and innovation approaches to
improve the quality of health services. This will be through:
promotion of innovation to support delivery in QIPP,
development of communities of learning and Community
Education Provider Networks that are supported by Health
Education England, managing the knowledge base,
fostering a learning culture, and promoting research and
use of research
REFER TO SPECIFIC EXAMPLES WE ARE DOING FROM
INNOVATION HEALTH AND WEALTH??
Refer to how we will use Academic Health Science Networks to
promote research??
The plan aims to deliver high quality care that embeds the
learning of the national reviews for quality and safety including
Francis, Berwick and Winterbourne and the LLR Learning
Lessons work, in order to ensure:
•

Patient centred care through co-production and co-design
of health care services and that meets the needs of people
in West Leicestershire

Version 0.7

79
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 57

•

Patient safety through challenging providers to develop
organisation wide cultures of open and honest care

•

Safeguarding vulnerable people and groups that include
those with learning disabilities and frail older people

•

Compassionate care through embedding the nursing
strategy of the 6C’s and actions that aim to help people stay
independent, maximise wellbeing and improve health
outcomes, build effective clinical leadership, ensuring the
right staff, with the right skills, in the right place.

Three Bullets
• Patient centred care through co-production and co-design
of health care services that meets the needs of people in
West Leicestershire
•

Patient safety through challenging providers to develop
organisation wide cultures of open and honest care, and
that safeguards vulnerable people and groups, which
include learning disabilities and frail older people

•

Compassionate care through embedding the nursing
strategy of the 6C’s and actions, which aim to help people
stay: independent, maximise wellbeing and improve health
outcomes, build effective clinical leadership, and thereby
ensuring the right staff, with the right skills, in the right
place.”

80
58 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Impact on national priorities
NHS Constitution
18 Week RTT Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
18 Week RTT Non-Admitted Pathways < 18 weeks
Diagnostic Waits < 6 weeks
Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4
hours of their arrival at an A&E Department
No patient should wait over 12 hours in A&E
Mixed Sex Accommodation (MSA) Breaches
Mental Health - Proportion of people on Care Programme
Approach (CPA) who were followed up within 7 days of
discharge
Category A (Red 1) within 8 minutes
(Conditions that may be immediately life threatening and most
time critical
Category A (Red 2) within 8 minutes
(Conditions that may be immediately life threatening but less
time critical than Red 1)
Category A within 19 minutes
NHS Outcomes Framework Indicators
5a

Patient safety incident reporting

5b

Safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death

5.2

Incidence of healthcare associated infection (HCAI), (ii)
incidence of C.Difficile

5.3

Proportion of patients with category 2, 3 and 4 pressure
ulcers

Version 0.7

81
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 59

82
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 60

4. Financial Plan
Introduction
This section outlines the financial plan for West Leicestershire
CCG for the 2015/16 financial year. It outlines the context within
which the plan has been produced and also provides specific
details on plans for investments and savings. It provides
confirmation that the CCG intends to deliver financially against
key NHS England requirements.
Overall, since WLCCG operates within a limited financial
budget, it has a duty to ensure that allocated funds are spent
on efficient and effective health care services for the
population ensuring value for money and appropriate use of
NHS funds.

Context
WLCCG commences 2015/16 on the back of strong organisational financial performance in the previous two years —
delivering an increasing surplus in each of the two years beyond
the required level of 1% of turnover. (Surplus of £4.9m
delivered in 2013/14 against a target of £3.5m, and set to
deliver a £5.8m surplus in 2014/15 against an initial target of
£4.9m). This level of historic surplus in addition to funding
growth of circa 5% to be received in 2015/16 provides a strong
starting point for planning financial delivery during 2015/16
and also gives the CCG the ability to prioritise investments for
the maximum benefit of patients within West Leicestershire.
Conversely the CCG operates within the Leicestershire health
and social care economy within which significant financial
pressures are present within partner organisations. As a result
of the level of financial deficit at University Hospitals Leicester
NHS Trust, Leicestershire has been identified nationally as a
“financially challenged health economy” and as such is subject
to external scrutiny regarding plans in place to deliver financial
balance across all organisations over the coming years. The local
response to this has been to draft an agreed Health and Social
Care plan (Better Care Together — BCT) to transform the way
that care is delivered to ensure improved financial and nonfinancial performance. The scale of changes anticipated within
this plan will require significant investment to enable the
required changes to take place.

83
61 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Version 0.7

The Financial Plan
In line with requirements from NHS England for 2015/16, the
CCG plans to deliver:
•

A 1% surplus

•

A minimum of a 2% underlying surplus

•

Investment into mental health services in line with our
allocation growth

•

Holding a contingency of at least 0.5%

•

A minimum 1% non-recurrent transformation fund

•

At least 2% of QIPP savings planned

•

Risk adjusted surplus of 1%

•

Required Investment into the Better Care Fund

The table below summarises, at a high level, the increased
funding which the CCG will receive in 2015/16 and how it is
utilised in the current expenditure plans:
Financial Plan Summary 2015/16
Recurrent Baseline Growth
Reducon in running costs allocaon
Beer Care Funding from NHS England
Non recurrent allocaons
Overseas Visitors Allocaon reducon
Winter Resillience Funding
NET CHANGE IN FUNDING

£'000
19,575
899
6,343
2,255
63
2,022
24,849

Full Year eﬀects
Demographic Growth
General growth
inﬂaon
Eﬃciency
QIPP
Cost Pressures
Non recurrent reserve reducon
Reducon in Surplus
addional Investment in BCF
Investment
Winter Resillience Funding
Mental Health Growth
Transional Funding  BCT
primary Care transion funding
Replacement of Conngency reserve
NET CHANGE IN EXPENDITURE

1,564
5,051
1,883
7,351
10,401
9,201
10,251
4,953
798
14,175
2,022
1,657
2,940
724
2,891
25,156

84
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 62

Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention
(QIPP)
Last year WLCCG planned, implemented and delivered a
number of QIPP schemes. These were designed to change
various elements of care pathways in order to improve either
Quality of care, productivity or prevention. A number of the
schemes were designed to change services in such a way that
funds could be moved from one care setting to another or from
one service to another and in so doing, delivering increased
volume and/or quality of care for the same cost.
As a result of our prioritised investments and delivery of QIPP
savings, the CCG enters 2015/16 in a strong financial position
upon which to plan for further success in 2015/16. However a
significant level of QIPP savings is still planned to be delivered
in order to maximise the amount of funding available for
investments, particularly to enable the scale of system
transformation outlined in the Better Care Together plan
referred to above.
QIPP projects have been developed for 2015/16 in conjunction
with the local authority, local providers and neighbouring CCGs.
A significant focus of these plans is on reducing urgent care
attendances and admissions by enhancing community and
primary care services at specific points to improve patient
pathways.
All projects put forward have undergone a rigorous challenge
process to ensure they are clinically safe, move the CCG towards
its goals and have been developed in conjunction with the local
clinicians.

85
63 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Version 0.7

QIPP schemes currently devised will release approximately £9m
to help meet the health challenges of our growing population.
This represents approximately 2% of our allocated funding. The
following table summarises the QIPP schemes in place for
2015/16:
pçìêÅÉ

pÅÜÉãÉ
7 Day working
Integrated Crisis
Response Service

Funded form BCF

Older Persons Unit

aÉëÅêáéíáçå
Providing targeted
Primary Medical cover
over weekends
Providing clinical
support over night
Providing enhanced
clinical services from
community hospital

dêçëë=nfmm=¡
501,800
195,000
936,000

Falls Service

Falls targeted work

58,500

Single Point Access

Expansion and
development of SPA
service

169,000

BCF Funded Total

1,860,300
AVS - Monday - Friday

Out of Hospital Care
Programme

UCC Diverts - via
EMAS
UCC pathway
changes - X-Ray,
sepsis etc

735,207

Nursing homes education, pathways,
care homes
End of life - GP
services, night services

Respiratory

Education and service
expansion focused on
respiratory disease

400,000

Consolidation of
14/15 activities and
CVD / HF - urgent care
expansion of work
- Elective admission
around HF in
savings
community and
primary care settings

594,779

Consolidation of
14/15 activities and
CVD / HF - urgent care expansion of work
- CHC savings
around HF in
community and
primary care settings

133,735

CCG Funded Total

1,863,721

86
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 64

pçìêÅÉ

pÅÜÉãÉ

aÉëÅêáéíáçå

dêçëë=nfmm=¡

Planned care

10% reduction in
planned care activity ENT/Ophthalmology/
T&O - FV

482,204

Planned care

40% left shift of care
over 4 years - FV
(yellow forms state
25% decrease in year)

454,400

Workbook savings not
Long Term Conditions accounted for
elsewhere

234,151

LD savings Via CHC

114,000

MH Workplan

228,000

Better Care Together

Better Care Together
led schemes

1,512,755

Effect of pathway
Pathway Change Out of urgent care reductions
changes above on out
Area
OOA
of area contracts

250,000

Improvements to FastTrac and Authorising
Funding

1,205,000

1,500,000

Continuing Health Care

Prescribing

To be confirmed

Estimate

Community Properties

Reduction in estate

Ashby Facilities costs
released from
contract

450,000

Alliance

Contractual
agreements

Capital Charges
recharge to Alliance

200,000

LPT

Contractual
agreement

Reuse of Mothballed
wards

259,000

Community Equipment

Contractual
agreement

Updated allocation of
costs across CCG's

100,000

Identified QIPP

9,200,776

87
65 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Investments
WLCCG has received a positive uplift to our funding for 15/16 to
help us to plan effective investments. This 5% increase in
funding will be used to fund inflation, population and other
demographic growth, and unavoidable cost pressures as
required. In addition the CCG will invest significantly into the
following four areas:
•

A “better care” fund is being created in conjunction with
the Local Authority and ELCCG. This fund is the major source
to cover investments planned to provide services within the
community and primary care that will reduce urgent care
admissions at acute hospitals by 3.5% and bring together
health and social care services to improve patient experience
and deliver efficiencies in both areas

•

Significant Mental Health investments are being made to
develop services to deliver fast and effective support to the
population. These investments are in line with the overall
uplift in funding to ensure “parity of esteem” for Mental
Health in line with Physical Health

•

Transformation/Transition funds have been set aside to
ensure the system changes envisioned within the BCT plan
can be actioned appropriately. These funds are expected to
be utilised non-recurrently for double running costs and
preparatory work on projects in primary care and
community setting. This encompasses both the nationally
required 1% non-recurrent funds and approximately a
further 1% to be made available from allocation growth
and the draw-down of last years surplus (plans are in place
to spend the level of surplus beyond the minimum
requirement of 1%subject to NHS England approval — this
equates to an additional spend of approximately £1.7m and
would result in the CCG achieving the minimum of 1%
surplus in 2015/16)

•

CCG plans will be required to cover “winter resilience” —
plans to increase system capacity appropriately during the
busiest months of the year. We have set aside £2m of our
funding allocation for this purpose (this is different from
previous years since historically additional funding has been
received separately for this purpose).

Summary
WLCCG is planning to deliver on all key financial requirements
of planning guidance. Specific points to note are as follows:
•

Delivery of an ambitious but deliverable level of QIPP
savings (2%) in order to make significant investments both
within and outside of the Better Care Fund.

Version 0.7

88
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 66

•

Reducing the level of surplus planned from £5.8m in 2014/15
to £4.1m in 15/16 in order to maximise the level of nonrecurrent funding available to enable the level of system
transformation required in the Better Care Together plan.
This will be subject to NHS England approval.

89
67 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Version 0.7

5. Measures of Success —
Performance
All of the WLCCG priority work-streams and transformational
investments are designed to deliver improvements to
performance within our system and to improve experience for
our patients as a result.
Performance improvements were identified by our Board as one
of the top three priority areas of focus: “The delivery of
improvements in access, quality, choice, and safety for our
patients, particularly against national standards for A&E, RTT,
Cancer and Mental Health”.
During 2015/16 WLCCG will deliver on performance indicators
relating to the NHS Constitution and the NHS Outcomes
Framework, ensuring quality of care for our local population
and that patient’s rights and pledges are maintained through
our contracts with local service providers. We acknowledge that
local performance has not met required standards and have set
local recovery trajectories that represent our commitment to
overcoming this.
We have submitted figures stated to ‘unify’ which demonstrate
that we plan to succeed in improving local performance.
However, in the absence of guidance we are working up some
options they are related to our previous local measures and
until that is complete we will offer last year’s local measures in
this section of the plan.
Indicators

National / Local

RTT - The percentage of admitted pathways within 18 weeks
for admitted patients whose
clocks stopped during the period, on an adjusted basis

RTT - The percentage of nonadmitted pathways within 18
weeks for non-admitted patients whose clocks stopped
during the period.

RTT - The percentage of incomplete pathways within 18 weeks
for patients on incomplete
pathways at the end of the pe-

The percentage of patients
waiting 6 weeks or more for a
diagnostic test.

Proposed

YTD Dec 14: 85.6%

Target 15/16: 90%

YTD Dec 14: 96%

National
CCGs must show that they are
planning to meet each of the
NHS Constitution indicators each
month in 2015/16

Target 15/16: 95%
YTD Dec 14: 94.6%
Target 15/16: 92%
YTD Dec 14: 1%
Target 15/16: 1%

90
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 68

Indicators

National / Local

Proposed
YTD Dec 14: 92.3%

Cancer- All Cancer two week wait
Target 15/16: 93%
Cancer - Two week wait for breast
symptoms (where cancer not initially suspected)

YTD Dec 14: 94.3%

Cancer - All cancer 62 day urgent
referral to first treatment wait

YTD Dec 14: 81.7%

Cancer - 62 day wait for first treatment following referral from an
NHS cancer screening service

YTD Dec 14: 85.7%

Cancer - 62 day wait for first treatment for cancer following a consultant's decision to upgrade the
patients priority
Cancer - Percentage of patients receiving first definitive treatment
within 31 days of a cancer diagnosis.

Target 15/16: 93%

Target 15/16: 85%

Target 15/16: 90%
National
CCGs must show that they
are planning to meet each
of the NHS Constitution indicators each quarter in
2015/16

YTD Dec 14: 81.8%
Target 15/16: 100%
YTD Dec 14: 95.3%
Target 15/16: 96%

Cancer - 31 Day standard for subsequent cancer treatments surgery

YTD Dec 14: 86.4%

Cancer - 31 Day standard for subsequent cancer treatments -anti
cancer drug regimens

YTD Dec 14: 98.9%

Cancer - 31 Day standard for subsequent cancer treatments - radiotherapy

YTD Dec 14: 95.3%

Target 15/16: 94%

Target 15/16: 98%

Target 15/16: 94%

HCAI measure (C.Difficile infections)

National
CCG level objective set by
NHS England based on 12
month cases of Cdiff

Jan 15: 57.5%

Dementia - Estimated diagnosis
rate

National
CCGs should achieve the nationally derived dementia
diagnosis rate by March
2015, and sustained monthly
through 2015/16.

YTD Nov 15: 13.6%

IAPT Access - Roll Out

National
CCGs to achieve nationally
set IAPT Access by the end
of 2014/15 and maintain this
throughout 2015/16, with a
quarterly run-rate of 3.75%

YTD Nov 15: 49.7%

IAPT Recovery Rate

National
CCGs must show maintenance of at least the recovery rates achieved at the
end of 2014/15. Ongoing improvement is anticipated
where a rate of less than
50% was achieved.

2014/15 Forecast Outturn: 83
2015/16 Objective: 77

Target 15/16: 66.7% each
month

Target 15/16: 3.75% each
quarter (15% full-year)

Target 15/16: 50% each quarter

91
69 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

New Indicators

National / Local

Version 0.7

Proposed

IAPT Waiting Times

YTD Oct 14: 42%

The proportion of people that
wait 6 weeks or less from referral to entering a course of IAPT
treatment against the number
of people who finish a course of
treatment in the reporting period.

Target Q1 15/16: 50%

The proportion of people that
wait 18 weeks or less from referral to entering a course of IAPT
treatment against the number
of people who finish a course of
treatment in the reporting period.

Target Q2 15/16: 55%
National
CCG must show that by 2016
75% of people referred to the
IAPT programme will be treated
within 6 weeks of referral and
95% will be treated within 18
weeks of referral

Target Q3 15/16: 63%
Target Q4 15/16: 75%
YTD Oct 14: 73%
Target Q1 15/16: 75%
Target Q2 15/16: 80%
Target Q3 15/16: 85%
Target Q4 15/16: 95%
Jan 15 survey results: Score
of 432 / 500

Primary Care
Satisfaction with the quality of
consultation at the GP practice

Satisfaction with the overall care
received at the surgery

Local
CCGs are asked to make an annual improvement in these
areas.
The CCG has agreed that given
the overall decline in these indicators over the past 18 months,
the annual improvement can be
evidenced by stopping further
deterioration

Target 15/16: Score of 432 /
500
Jan 15 survey results: 84.7%
Target 15/16: 84.7%
Jan 15 survey results:
74.6%

Satisfaction with accessing primary care
Target 15/16: 74.6%

Recovery trajectories have been developed and listed below:
•

A&E: Current performance is 88.65%. Plans will deliver
recurrent performance of 95% by Q1

•

Winter Resilience: We have committed £2.022m based on
what we know worked well last year

•

RTT: Completed pathways (Admitted) <18wks currently
85.6%. Plans will achieve 90%. Completed pathways (Non
admitted) <18wks currently 96%. Plans will deliver 95%.
Incomplete pathways <18wks currently 94.6%. Plans will
deliver a minimum of 92%

•

Cancer: Currently, achieving the 62 day wait for first
treatment is at risk. Plans will deliver 85.1% in Q1

•

Diagnostics: Currently, the number waiting >6wks is 1%.
Plans will deliver within the 1% target

•

IAPT: Currently Access is 13.6% of the population. Plans will
take this to 15% by Q1

•

Dementia: We continue to support GPs identify and
diagnose dementia early taking the CCG rate of diagnosis

92
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 70

from 57.5% to the national standard of 67.7%
•

Early Intervention: We will use our risk stratification tool for
timely intervention by health and social care teams

•

Primary Care: We will halt the three year decline in patient
satisfaction with access to Primary Care, securing 74.6%
satisfaction rate.

Performance trajectories are included in other sections of the
plan, as are delivery metrics. The focus of this section is on
answering the questions of how we will improve mandated and
statutory delivery.

National Measures
A&E waits
ED performance against the four hour wait target (currently
88.65%) is monitored through the LLR Urgent Care Working
Group. To meet the standard of 95%, the CCG is actively
engaged in the workings of the LLR-wide group and has
supported actions which have impacted on admissions, flow
and discharge resulting in improvements in performance. Plans
will deliver recurrent performance of 95% by Q1. One key
success has been on-site support from external agencies across a
7 day period. This multi-agency approach has been successful in
improving system wide flow and has been achieved largely with
core staffing, making it a sustainable solution. The successes
have influenced long term commissioning decisions and
improvements in operational grip within the provider
organisations. Additional support is provided through £2.022m
we have committed for winter resilience based on what we
know worked well last year.
Risk areas and mitigations:
Risk — Recovery also depends on other agencies, such as EMAS,
delivering the changes to their services in line with the UCB
action plan and the wider BCT plan.
Mitigation will include regular monitoring of these plans with
direct escalation to the UCB for non-delivery
Risk — Sustainability of such changes throughout the year,
including surge periods. This should be noted due to a lack of
previous sustainable delivery patterns. Mitigation is sustained
winter scheme commissioning and effective surge management
through the Urgent Care Board.
Risk — transformative change to processes such as delivery of
changes to wider pathways, such as CHC, are required to enable
performance to improve.

93
71 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Mitigation. This risk should be mitigated by the discharge work
streams of the UCB. This includes CHC specific actions. Nondelivery will be escalated to UCB for resolution.
Cat “A” Ambulance calls
Plans include changes to contractual reporting with EMAS. The
CCG currently monitors Ambulance performance in response
times at local CCG level to understand the impact on our local
population.
Current performance is as follows:
•

Cat “A” Red 1 — 62.9% against a standard of 75%,

•

Cat “A” Red 2 — 64% against a standard of 75%

•

Cat “A” 19 minute response — 91.2% against a standard of
95%.

Risks and mitigation
Risk — there is always a risk in demand led service of demand
outstripping supply and delivery being adversely affected.
EMAS continues to deliver under challenging circumstances and
across the system efforts are made to mitigate the impact.
Mitigation will include regular monitoring of these plans with
direct escalation to the UCB for non-delivery, EMAS is a full and
active member of this group and report directly upon delivery
in the plan.
Referral To Treatment waiting times
Current performance to ensure that admitted patients starting
treatment within a maximum of 18 weeks from referral requires
further improvement as current performance is 85.6% against a
standard of 90%.
Completed pathways (Admitted) <18wks currently 85.6%. Plans
will achieve 90%. Completed pathways (Non admitted) <18wks
currently 96%. Plans will deliver 95%. Incomplete pathways
<18wks currently 94.6%. Plans will deliver a minimum of 92%
We will develop a referral hub to offer consistent pathway and
standards information by using PRISM (Pathway and Referral
Implementation System). The consistency this provides will
allow our providers to screen and manage patient referrals to
the right surgeon first time. The information contained within
PRISM’s templates allows specifics of a patient’s needs to be
offered in a concise and structured way, answering all questions
on who is the right person to meet the need at the other end as
a result.

Version 0.7

94
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 72

Cancer Pathways
The CCG has identified cancer as one of the top priorities, but it
is not represented in full in our clinical priorities section.
Therefore we have included more detail in this section than for
other disease areas as we recognise that there are a number of
improvements that can be made across elements of pathways
for differing types of cancer. The LLR Better Care Together FiveYear Strategic Plan bringing together clinical leads across
primary, community and secondary care to identify further
improvements at scale for our population over the next five
years.
In 2015/16 we will implement improvements in our cancer
pathways to meet the required performance standards. Plans
will:
O

Support target of Diagnostics: Currently, the number
waiting >6wks is 1%. Plans will deliver within the 1%
target
•

O

Currently, achieving the 62 day wait for first
treatment is at risk. Plans will deliver 85.1% in Q1.

Develop pathways that ensure that our GPs have
direct access to the following diagnostics for
suspected cancer to support early diagnosis:
•

chest x ray to support the diagnosis of lung cancer

•

non-obstetric ultrasound to support the diagnosis
of ovarian and other abdomino-pelvic cancers

•

flexible-sigmoidoscopy/colonoscopy to support
the diagnosis of bowel cancer; MRI to support the
diagnosis of brain cancer.

O

Raise awareness of cancer symptoms

O

Raise awareness and pilot new methods of cancer
screening programmes

O

Encourage our population to use the health services
that address risk factors for cancer through our
Lifestyle Hub (e.g. obesity, smoking and alcohol
misuse)

O

Extend GP access to diagnostics for suspected cancer
diagnosis

O

Review and implement cancer risk management tools
to extend 2 week wait referral

O

Work with our partners at the East Midlands Strategic
Clinical Network (EMSCN) for Cancer, participating in
the High Value Healthcare pathway for Upper GI

95
73 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Cancer amongst others. The pathway will improve
access to the best treatments and outcomes for Upper
GI Cancer patients and improve the patient
experience.
There are risks to delivery in 15/16. The area of greatest
performance challenge we face is delivering great performance
against cancer waits on the 62 day Cancer targets. Recovery
trajectories have been set and tumour site specific issues
alongside pathway issues that impact significantly on delivery
of the standard are recognised:
•

Head and neck — pathways are complicated and are
undertaken at network level / supra network level;
pathways often cross providers and the resource is specialist

•

Urology — high number of long waiters. Detailed work has
been undertaken to implement a sustainable solution which
is now in place and will be monitored closely to track
progress

•

Upper and Lower gastrointestinal cancers — Overall high
volume for gastrointestinal cancers; service pressures due to
increase in demand from screening programmes impacts on
both standards

•

Breast — referral from an NHS Cancer Screening Service
standard. Recent service pressures due to changes in referral
patterns external to LLR impacting on overall capacity

•

2WW standard for urgent GP referral — non achievement of
standard undermines achievement of 62 day standard

•

PET scans — LLR commissions all indicators for PET scans.
Specialised service with limited access (1 day per week) — up
to 2 week cycle for access and reporting

To mitigate risks, the following actions have been taken to date
to improve performance:
•

Clinical problem solving groups established to take look at
specific areas; this includes a broad work-stream looking at
the possible reasons behind the rise of referrals from
primary care:

•

Access to PET scans has been addressed and is improving –
weekly reviews are in place which have been supporting
this. Effective MDT processes critical to this part of the
pathway.

•

Direct booking to ghost clinics with a weekly update

•

Weekly reviews of 62 day+ waiters at patient level

•

Additional consultant resource has been recruited

Version 0.7

96
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 74

•

Extra theatre capacity at Glenfield has been sourced

•

Early warning indicator for cancer performance developed

•

Crisis meetings with specific tumour site consultants and
managers

•

Internal review (Diamond Review) of processes around
screening programmes.

WLCCG has a level of assurance of delivery, given that LLR has a
past history of delivery in these areas. Inclusion of these targets
within the remit of the RTT board, effective MDT working and a
robust LLR wide plan within the context of wider system change
will underpin future delivery.

Dementia diagnosis
Through the work of the Long Term conditions work-streams,
the CCG will build on the work already implemented in primary
medical care to continue to support GPs identify and diagnose
dementia early taking the CCG rate of diagnosis from 57.5% to
the national standard of 67.7%.

Ambulance handover
A working group involving UHL, EMAS, and CCGs has been
developed to take stock of data quality issues and opportunities
to improve performance. Actions have been developed but not
yet implemented. We will explore the proposal to move to a
new data capture system from April 2015 developed by EMAS
and supported by CCGs.

IAPT
IAPT: Currently access is 13.6% of the population. Plans will take
this to 15% by Q1. The CCG will work to recover performance
against the current standard working to achieve the required
access rate of 15% (currently at 13.6%) and the recovery rate of
50% ( currently at 49.7%). Developments include:
•

Self-referrals implemented

•

GP aided self-referrals implemented

•

Referrals through IAPT web portals

•

Continued roll out of Silver Cloud, a social media based IAPT
tool

•

Final recruitment to vacancies has taken place after the
phasing out agency staff

•

Building works are nearing completion which will offer a
greater level of telephone triage.

97
75 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

NEW IAPT Mental Health access waits
The proportion of people that wait 6 weeks or less from referral
to entering a course of IAPT treatment against the number of
people who finish a course of treatment in the reporting
period: 683/1865 = 36.7%
The proportion of people that wait 18 weeks or less from
referral to entering a course of IAPT treatment against the
number of people who finish a course of treatment in the
reporting period: 1409/1865 = 75.5%
Coverage: Apr 14–Nov 14 (Total YTD) NB. There are no
nationally published data yet, these are calculations based on
available technical guidance and are unvalidated.

Cancelled operations
There are two national metrics that relate to Cancelled
operations:
All patients who have operations cancelled, for non-clinical
reasons to be offered another binding date within 28 days (or
the patient’s treatment to be funded at the time and hospital
of the patient’s choice) and there will be no urgent operations
cancelled for a second time. Our main provider, UHL, have
achieved the zero tolerance target of the first metric and
achieved 96% against the 100% target for the second metric.

Mental Health
The CCG aims to deliver against the performance standards for
Mental Health through a programme of activity focussed on
prevention, early intervention in psychosis and crisis care. This
will ensure improved quality of care for patients from
childhood to adulthood.

Transforming care
Following on from the Care and Treatment Reviews for people
with Learning Disabilities and the Winterbourne Concordat for
people in inpatient services, the Chief Nurse will use the
recommendations and actions from these reviews to ensure we
can commission and provide patient centred alternatives to
hospital, and where this work will be undertaken with local
health and social care agencies to develop and provide to
enable people to be closer to their families. Regular monthly
reporting on the Care and Treatment Reviews will be provided
to NHS England and updates will be provided to the Health and
Wellbeing Board

CQUINs
The CCG will work with the local service providers to implement

Version 0.7

98
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 76

quality improvement schemes through CQUINs. Guidance is still
awaited in this area but we have ensured that the national
CQUIN indicators, including sepsis and the prevention and
management of acute kidney injury will be included in the NHS
contracts with the relevant service providers. Local schemes are
being developed to support the urgent care pathway and, in
particular the discharge of patients requiring continuing health
care. Further local schemes are bring developed with UHL, LPT
and nursing homes to ensure further quality improvements of
care. These indicators are currently being negotiated with these
providers.
We recognise that improving performance will only be achieved
by focussing on all clinical priority work-streams. Consequently,
a drive to improve performance is embedded across all plans
and not solely those areas that have previously struggled.

Local Measures
In primary care, we will halt the three year decline in patient
satisfaction with access to primary care, securing a 74.6%
satisfaction rate. We will also increase the number of deaths
that occur in the usual place of residence.
Potentially, more specific local measures will be developed
when guidance is received.

99
77 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

6. Delivery Model
Over the last four years we have built up a strong track record
of delivery and doing the things we say we will do for our
population in West Leicestershire. We have also consistently
demonstrated strong system leadership in seeking to influence
a more collaborative approach across LLR commissioners and
providers, and health and care partners.
The last year saw a step change in relationships across the
system — driven largely on the back of work around Better
Care Together, challenged health economy status, Learning
Lessons and urgent care. Coupled with changes in a number of
key leadership roles among commissioners and providers, the
dynamic of the conversation across LLR has improved
considerably. We have been instrumental in shaping this and
welcome the new direction and sense of shared purpose it has
brought.
The challenge for us all in 2015/16 is how we build on this
momentum and work jointly with partners across our area of
planning footprint to move from planning to implementation
in order to increase the scale and pace of our delivery.
For us in WLCCG, we have identified that our specific
contribution will require us to take a differentiated approach to
strengthening our delivery arrangements in the following
areas.
Continuing to refine the things that are already working
We are strong believers in not fixing things that aren’t broken
or getting distracted by organisational change processes that
do not add enough value to our core purpose. Much of what
we have created over the last 4 years is starting to reach a level
of organisational maturity. So, while we’re always seeking out
scope for continuous improvement, in many aspects of our
delivery arrangements this is going to be about tweaking what
already works rather than more fundamental change:
•

Board — our Board membership (clinical, lay and
managerial) remained very stable throughout 14/15. 15/16
will see us continue to focus on supporting the personal
development of our current Board members (e.g. Top
Leaders) whilst also preparing for the re-election/
appointment processes that will run in Q4

•

CCG management support — our team based at Woodgate
has also remained remarkably stable. This has been a real
strength in terms of building relationships, continuity and
allowing the organisations systems and processes to mature.
However, the anticipated delegation of primary medical

Version 0.7

100
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 78

care commissioning expected from 1 April 2015 and the
development of federated localities presents the need to
adjust our structures to fully support this. We will also take
the opportunity to review our project delivery and
organisational planning functions. Team and personal
development support will continue to be secured from
organisational development specialists Healthskills.
•

LLR CCG Collaborative — much of our commissioning
responsibilities continue to be discharged through our
collaborative commissioning arrangements with our two
neighbouring LLR CCGs, EL&R and Leicester City. The
Collaborative Commissioning Board, PPAG, matrix
contracting teams and hosted support continue to be at the
heart of these arrangements. 2014/15 saw change in the MD
positions at both East and City which necessitated a number
of temporary changes to local contract lead arrangements.
These will need to be reviewed following the substantive
appointment to the EL&R MD post to ensure best mix of
skills, experience and organisational balance.

•

LA/HWB — continuation of Joint Director of Health and
Care Integration with EL&R and LCC and our current Chair
will continue to Chair the Integration Executive with a
particular focus on delivery of the BCF programme. 2015/16
will also present opportunities to explore new relationships
and delivery models with the County Council’s appointment
of a new Director of Adults & Communities.

•

Quality Surveillance Group— this has become and will
remain a valuable forum for triangulating intelligence on
provider quality related issues with other regulator and
commissioner agencies.

Significantly stepping up those areas with potential for greater
impact
There are a number of areas that are either emerging where
we see major scope for adding significantly more value as well
as one particular CSU outsourced function where we continue
to have particular cause for concern:
•

Better Care Together — this programme has made major
progress during 2014/15 and is now at a critical and exciting
point of moving from planning into delivery phase. Our
successful appointment of a substantive Programme
Director and team means we are well placed. However, the
arrangements that enabled us to contribute to the plan
development phase are not going to be sufficient to drive
delivery and we are going to need to work hard in Q1 with
the PMO and partners to clarify lead roles, responsibilities
and deliverables.

101
79 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

•

Alliance — 2014/15 saw the successful transition of elective
community hospital services from Derbyshire to an
innovative new alliance partnership between UHL, LPT,
primary care Provider Company and CCGs. This first year was
very much about consolidation and putting in place basis
systems, processes and governance (managerial and clinical).
2015/16 needs to see a major step up in terms of delivery
and the focus on service and pathway transformation to
support delivery of the BCT Planned Care work-stream. This
vehicle has huge potential to realise the shift of activity
from acute to community settings as well as potential to
grow into a genuinely Multispecialty Community Provider
model.

•

GEM Continuing Health Care — last year’s Operational Plan
identified this as one of our main areas of CSU related
concern and despite some progress in year we remain in a
position where we have a stretching Improvement Plan in
place but still have insufficient assurance about GEM’s
capacity and capability to adequately respond to this. If this
does not deliver we will need to explore alternative
arrangements for the safe and efficient delivery of this
critical function for our patients during 15/16.

Establishing new delivery mechanisms to respond to
opportunities and challenges ahead
In addition to the above, 15/16 will see us engaging in new
areas of activity where we will need to establish a delivery
capability that has previously not been required in two areas:
•

Primary Care Commissioning Committee — we anticipate
being granted delegated authority from NHS England to
take on the commissioning of primary medical care from
April 2015. In addition to the management support
arrangements outlined above, this will require us to
establish an additional formal sub-committee of the Board
in order to oversee the governance of this new function.
This is going to be really important to enabling the ‘left
shift’ to be framed contractually in a way that places
resources where clinical services are provided. The
development of our Primary Medical Care Plan has indicated
a real appetite among our member practices and Board to
explore alternative contractual models that have the
potential to enable sustainable primary care ‘plus’ services
to be provided

•

East Midlands specialised commissioning — arrangements
for the transfer of responsibility for some aspects of
specialised services commissioning from NHS England to
CCGs are still emerging nationally. However, it is clear that
we will be taking on a greater role and have therefore

Version 0.7

102
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 80

initiated ‘in principle’ discussions with other East Midlands
CCGs about the potential of forming joint arrangements to
discharge these responsibilities. This will build on the
existing East Mids Congress network but move it onto a
more formal ‘committee in common’ footing and widen the
membership to include clinical and potentially lay input. We
will also wish to explore the potential for such a joint
arrangement to co-ordinate joint policy across other nonspecialised services (e.g., IVF and cosmetic procedures)
where there would be obvious benefit for patients in
consistency.

103
81 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Version 0.7

7. Risks and Mitigation
Board and Sub-Committee Governance Structure
We have developed a comprehensive governance framework
which will ensure the assurance, monitoring and delivery of our
plan. The diagram shows the Governing Body and SubCommittee structure, which has recently been updated to
reflect monitoring the implementation of the primary medical
care plan and the delegated functions for primary care cocommissioning (subject to approval).
WLCCG Board

Finance
sub-group

Planning and
Delivery
sub-group

Board
Development
Sessions

Quality and
Performance
sub-group

Remuneration
committee

Primary Care
Contract
sub Group

Audit
committee

Primary
Medical Care
Implementation
Group

Where common areas of commissioning exist between the
three LLR CCGs, collaborative governance arrangements have
been put in place and are refreshed annually to reflect any
changes required. The Commissioning Collaborative Board
oversees a number of shared areas including the development
and implementation of commissioning plans, delivery of QIPP
and transformational programmes and acting upon high risk
performance issues. The Provider Performance Assurance Group
(PPAG) holds the contract teams to account for management of
all major healthcare contracts and receives assurance on all
aspects of provider performance. Reports from this group are
received by CCG Sub-Committees and the Governing Body.
NHS England Area Team Assurance Role
The CCG Assurance Framework will enable NHS England,
through its Area Team for the Central Midlands Area, to meet
the statutory responsibility to make an assurance assessment.
This process will ensure there is a joint understanding of the
development needs of the CCG against six assurance domains
and how these can be supported. This assurance process has
been designed to provide confidence to internal and external
stakeholders and the wider public that CCGs are operating
effectively to commission safe, high quality and sustainable
services within their resources.
This annual assessment will be made available to the public via
our website.

104
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 82

Strategic Risk Management
We have developed an integrated approach to risk
management that is used to identify, manage and reduce the
risks that threaten the delivery of our strategic objectives. This
is delivered through the management of CCG Sub-Committee
risk registers and to the Board through the Board Assurance
Framework (BAF). Full consideration is given to the risk
priorities of partner organisations as well as the CCG in order to
ensure the overall risk management system is effective and
consistent with the challenges across the local health economy.
Top Risks
We have identified the key strategic risks to the delivery of this
Operational Plan. These risks are shown below and will form
the basis of our Board Assurance Framework (BAF). The WLCCG
Board will consider the mitigating actions for these risks as part
of the development of the BAF.

105
83 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Risks
Failure to achieve our national A&E standard: this target is
dependent on other external agencies for delivery
Delivery of changes to wider pathways such as CHC to enable
performance to improve.
62-day Cancer wait where there are tumour site specific issues
as well as pathway issues that impact significantly on delivery of
the standards
Provision of initial support of West Leicestershire federations to
ensure there is a common approach and best practice processes
are embedded
Alignment of WLCCG programmes with Better Care Together as
we reshape our health and social care system at scale
particularly for complex long term conditions and older people
with frailty
Ensuring that we maintain our level of delivery after the
developing of the foundations for new models and contracts
for integrated care provision
Achieving full alignment through provider contracts to deliver
QIPP, better care funds and better care together plans
Ability to free up sufficient transformational resource to
implement Better Care Together

Programme Management Office (PMO) – Assuring Programme
Delivery
WLCCG is committed to managing the 8 workstreams which
make up our change programmes. We use a standardised
project approach, in order to ensure equity and compare the
benefits of programmes / investments that deliver services for
our patients. To achieve this, we have a Programme
Management Office. The PMO supports programme leads and
assures the WLCCG Board, that delivery of the Programmes in
the CCG’s Operational Plan is going to plan.
On a monthly basis, and for each of WLCCG’s Programmes, the
PMO will:
•

review the Programme’s projects’ action plans, risk logs,
highlight reports which detail the progress they are making,
and any exception reports where there are concerns on
progress

Version 0.7

106
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 84

•

review our progress against the key performance indicators
(KPIs) which are set in the NHS Constitution and the NHS
Outcomes Framework

•

hold in-depth meetings with the 3 people jointly
accountable for the delivery of each Programme (a Senior
Responsible Clinician (SRC) who is a GP, a Senior Responsible
Officer (SRO) who is an Assistant Director or above from the
CCG, and a Programme Lead who is usually a Head of
Service in the CCG) to agree the delivery status

•

review the QIPP financial investment (spend) and savings
status, working closely with Finance

Based on these activities, the PMO produces updates and risk
assessments which are reviewed monthly by our Planning and
Delivery Board Sub-Committee for review. The PMO then
prepares a paper to the Board, so board can remain sighted on
the delivery status of our operational plan.
Equality and Diversity
Based on the foundations laid in 2013/14 when we developed
mechanisms to collate evidence across all areas of our activities
to inform the Equality Delivery System (EDS2) grading process,
we have continued to monitor our performance for people with
the nine protected characteristics to help us discharge our
duties under the Public Sector Equality Duty.
In 2015/16, we will continue to expand our wider community
and stakeholder engagement activities as part of our People
Powered Health programme and review more detailed equality
monitoring information from our main providers through
existing contracting arrangements.
We have ensured that all our programmes and projects
complete an Equality Impact Assessment, and we are working
together with our colleagues across the Leicester Leicestershire
and Rutland health and social economy to ensure a consistent
and joined up approach to EDS2 as part of the BCT programme.
From April 2015, we will be required to demonstrate progress
against a number of indicators of workforce equality and will
be required to implement the Workforce Race Equality
Standard (WRES), including how we ensure that our Board is
broadly representative of the communities we service. We
already have a system in place to monitor workforce metrics
and Staff Survey findings in partnership with our commissioning
support service and the Picker Institute which can be directly
used against the 9 metrics in the WRES.
A Delivery Plan for 2015/16 is also in place, with a strong
emphasis on clinical and managerial leadership. Progress
against the plan and our 4 equality objectives will be monitored

107
85 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

and reported to the Quality and Clinical Governance SubCommittee, and through our complaints, comments and
compliments process. We will also produce and publish our
Equality and Diversity Annual Report in April 2015.

Version 0.7

108
86 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Index
111 7, 29
6Cs 53

A
A&E 4, 7, 10, 69, 70, 83
Academic Health Science Network 54
Academy of Medical Royal Colleges 55
Access 3, 4, 7, 12, 21, 26, 29, 39, 42, 43, 44, 45, 52, 56, 63, 69, 70,
72, 73, 74, 75, 76
Acute Kidney Injury 55, 76
Acute visiting Service 3, 26
Alliance 23, 48, 64, 79
Antibiotic prescribing 24, 55
AVS 3, 26, 63

B
Back pain 37
BAF 82
BCT 3, 6, 12, 13, 43, 44, 45, 60, 61, 65, 70, 79, 84
Berwick 53, 56
Better Care Together 3, 4, 5, 7, 12, 22, 23, 43, 44, 53, 56, 60, 62,
64, 66, 72, 77, 78, 83

C
Caldicott 56
CAMHS 42, 43, 44, 45
Cancer 4, 12, 36, 50, 69, 72, 73, 74, 83
Cancer survivorship 36
Cardiovascular disease 39
Care and Treatment Reviews 53, 54, 75
Care closer to home 23, 24, 28
Care homes 26, 39, 40, 63

Version 0.7

109
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 87

Care plan 8, 21, 22, 60, 79, 81
Carers 6, 39, 54
CHC 63, 64, 70, 71, 83
Clostridium difficile 54
Co-commissioning 4, 5, 8, 23, 81
Co-delivery 4
Co-design 56
Co-produce 38, 42, 48, 49, 54, 55
Co-production 42, 48, 49, 56
Continuing Health Care 52, 54, 64, 76, 79
COPD 36, 37, 40
CQC 42, 55
CQUINS 75, 76
Crisis service 44
CSU 54, 78, 79

D
Dementia 37, 39, 45, 69, 74
Deprivation of liberty 54
Diabetes 36, 37
Dr Ian Sturgess 12, 26
Duty of Candour 52

E
EL&R 78
EMAS 28, 63, 70, 71, 74
ENT 64
Equality Delivery System 84

F
Federations 7, 10, 21, 22, 24, 37, 40, 83
FFT 52
Five Year Forward View 3, 5, 6, 8, 10

110
88 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

Francis 53, 56

G
GEM 54, 79

H
Health and Wellbeing Board 54, 75
Health Education England 6, 56
Healthwatch 56
Heart Failure 26, 36, 37
Hospital Food Standards Report 55

I
Ian Sturgess 3, 12, 26
IAPT 43, 45, 69, 74, 75

K
Keogh 5, 6, 7, 13

L
Learning Disabilities 53, 54, 57, 75
Learning Lessons 3, 5, 13, 14, 52, 53, 54, 56, 77
Learning Lessons to Improve Care 5, 13, 14, 52, 53, 54
Leicester City. 78
Leicestershire Partnership Trust 13, 44, 45
LLR 3, 5, 6, 11, 12, 16, 22, 24, 26, 27, 28, 44, 48, 53, 54, 56, 70,
72, 73, 74, 77, 78, 81
Long Term Conditions 7, 16, 36, 40, 45, 64, 74, 83
LTC 39
LTCs 3, 4, 36, 38

M
MCP 4
MDT 11, 40, 73, 74
Mental Health 4, 7, 11, 16, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 61, 65, 75
MSCP 37

Version 0.7

111
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 89

Multispecialty Community Provider 7, 79

N
National Quality Board 55
Neurology 8, 40
NHS Citizen 56
NHS Standard Contract 55
NICE 40, 45

O
Older Persons Unit 27, 28
Ophthalmology 12, 64
OPU 27
Out-of-Hospital 7, 8, 24, 26, 27, 28, 36, 40
Out-of-Hours 39

P
Parity of Esteem 16, 42, 44, 65
Patient Leader 52
PLT 24
PMCP 21, 22
PMO 78
PPAG 78, 81
Prescribing 24, 55, 64
PREVENT 53
Prevention 7, 23, 27, 44, 53, 62, 75, 76
Primary Medical Care Plan 8, 21, 22, 79, 81
PRISM 23, 49, 71
Psychosis 45, 75
Public Health England 6, 55

Q
QIPP 16, 21, 22, 24, 56, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 81, 83
Quality Schedules 55

112
90 | Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG

R
Referral to Treatment 12, 71
Respiratory Disease 36
Risk Stratification Tool 36, 40, 70
RTT 4, 12, 49, 50, 69, 74

S
Safeguarding 52, 53, 54, 57
Seldom heard groups 56
Sepsis 55, 63, 76
Sign Up to Safety 52, 53
Sound Doctor 37, 39
SPA 7, 63
Step-down beds 43
Stroke 37, 40

T
Technology 6, 23, 40, 45, 49
Transforming Care Concordat 53

U
UCB 70, 71
UCWG 11, 13
UHL 48, 49, 74, 76, 79
Urgent Care 3, 5, 7, 10, 11, 12, 16, 26, 27, 28, 29, 48, 52, 62, 63,
64, 65, 70, 76, 77
Urgent Care Working Group 7, 11, 70

V
Virtual Review 40
Virtual Ward 24, 40
Vulnerable 3, 29, 37, 54, 57

W
Winterbourne 53, 54, 56, 75

Version 0.7

113
Version 0.7

Operational Plan West Leicestershire CCG | 91

Workforce 5, 6, 13, 22, 23, 84
Workforce race equality standard 84

114

This page is intentionally left blank

115

Agenda Item 7

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 12TH MARCH 2015
REPORT OF EAST LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND CCG
EAST LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND CCG DRAFT OPERATIONAL
PLAN REFRESH FOR 2015/16
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to present to the Board the East Leicestershire and
Rutland CCG’s Draft 2-year operational plan. In line with the 2015/16 Planning
Guidance, the CCG have refreshed the 2-year operational plan which outlines our
key priorities and our intentions of working with our partners and providers to deliver
system redesign to address our local challenges and issues.

2.

The attached 2-year operational plan is a draft that has been submitted to NHS
England Regional team. The draft will be subject to further change once feedback
has been received from NHS England and partners.

3.

Submission of the full final plan to NHS England will be on 10th April subject to
approval by the CCG Governing Body.

Background
4.

The refresh draft outlines how we will further develop as a CCG to work more closely
with our local authority partners, neighbouring CCGs and stakeholders to deliver our
challenging plans to reshape our community services and transform our primary care
in order to strengthen our capacity and capability. This is so that we can deliver
locally based provision that enables our patients to remain independent for as long
as possible and have a better quality of life.

5.

The key part of the refresh is to ensure alignment and integration of our operational
plan with the LLR 5 year Better Care Together Strategy and to demonstrate how we
will be working with our key partners and stakeholders to deliver on the priorities we
have outlined in our 5 year strategy as a unit of planning.

6.

One of our key enablers to strengthen and integrate our health and social care
services is the Better Care Fund. Working with our partners Leicestershire County
Council and Rutland County Council and West Leicestershire CCG, we have been
developing our plans that demonstrate how we aim to integrate health & social care
provision to transform care that are strong sustainable and person centred which
enables the local health and social care system to meet the future demands. These
have now been fully approved by NHSE.

7.

This plan describes our organisation, its role, structure, vision and values and
demonstrates how we will focus on bringing health and social care services more

116
closely together, in partnership with our local authorities, fellow CCGs, service
providers and the voluntary sector in line with national and local strategies.
8.

The economic climate in which we operate remains a challenge for all NHS
organisations. The CCG recognises the need for service improvements to deliver
better quality of patient care and patients’ experience of the NHS in the long-term,
while reducing clinical variation, eliminating waste and delivering better value for
money.

9.

In 2015/16 CCGs are required to outline their integrated approach to prevention. The
plan outlines a number of specific actions that we aim to implement in order to
achieve a collaborative approach to deliver primary, secondary and tertiary
prevention using the LLR 5 year BCT strategy and the Better Care Fund Plans as the
key drivers.

10. Over 2015/16 we want to work with our acute care providers, EMAS including patient
transport and out of hour’s service to progress on the development and
implementation of the 5 year BCT strategy to address the pressure we face within
our urgent care system. A significant amount of this work will take place in
strengthening our primary and community provision in order to prevent avoidable
admissions and reduce length of stay for patients who could be cared for within their
home environment.
11. The CCG will be developing detailed plans to start the delivery of the Community
Services Strategy, bringing together services currently delivered through separate
service specifications and various organisational structures into an integrated,
seamless service model which puts people’s needs at the centre, is less reliant on
bed based provision and includes a focus on prevention.
12. The primary care operational framework needs to help primary care be at the fore of
the changes required to achieve our strategic aims. The use of recurrent funding
needs to be enhanced with non-recurrent monies to help general practice to come
together with new systems of joint working to enable primary healthcare teams to
have more time to proactively manage patients with multiple illnesses, at the end of
their lives, in care homes or at risk of admission.
13. The use of the Better Care Fund (BCF) is a key driver of these plans, particularly with
respect to integration with local authority providers to realise seven-day services
ambitions. The physical setting, from where healthcare is delivered is a critical
consideration in respect of the range, accessibility and affordability of services. ELR
CCG has adopted an approach that considers the setting of care services alongside
the other components of service planning and delivery. This will enable us to deliver
a sustainable community-based provision that reduces reliance on a bed-based
model.
14. Children and their families will continue to be an important priority for the CCG in
2014/15 as we continue the work that has already commenced in relation to CCG’s
Integrated Plan 2012-2015.
15. Achieving parity of esteem across physical and mental health services is a key
priority in 2015/16, our plan outlines our ambition for how we want to continue to
work with our mental health providers, clinicians and service users to improve our

117
acute mental health pathway taking a step-up and step-down approach to system
redesign in order to improve access across a number of MH pathways. Delivering
choice in mental health locally needs to be reflected in the plan.
Recommendation
16.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the East Leicestershire and
Rutland CCG’s draft 2-year operational plan and contribution summary.

Appendix
East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 and 2015/16
(DRAFT)
Equality and Human Rights Implications
17. None arising from this report.
Officer to contact
Jane Chapman
Chief Planning and Strategy Officer
East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG

118

This page is intentionally left blank

Version 6

119

Two-Year Operational Plan
2014/15 and 2015/16 (DRAFT)

1

120
Version 6

Lead

Version

Date

Yasmin Sidyot

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

29/11/2013

Natalie Geddes

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

13/12/2013

Natalie Geddes

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

17/12/2013

Natalie Geddes

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

13/01/2014

Charlotte Richardson

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

16/01/2014

Yasmin Sidyot

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

29/01/2014

Geoff White

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

07/02/2014

Yasmin Sidyot

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

14/02/2014

Yasmin Sidyot

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

03/03/2014

Yasmin Sidyot

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

21/03/2014

Yasmin Sidyot

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

27/03/2014

Yasmin Sidyot

ELR CCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16

03/04/14

Charlotte Richardson

ELRCCG Two-Year Operational Plan 2014/15 – 2015/16

04/04/14

Yasmin Sidyot

ELRCCG Two-year Operational Plan 2014/15 – 2015/16

04/04/14

Yasmin Sidyot

ELRCCG Two-year Operational Plan 2014/15 – 2015/16

17/02/15

Yasmin Sidyot

ELRCCG Two-year Operational Plan 2014/15 – 2015/16

27/02/15

2

121
Version 6

Operational plan assurance checklist 2015/16 v7

Forward View into Action assurance of plans
specifics:
1. Finances to secure delivery of objectives
and compliance with the requirements of
the guidance

7.5

Financial
analysis

CCG complies with business rules. Issues with Acute
provider deficit and risk management across the
system
National tariff awaited

2.

Issue

(*RAG)

Guidance
ref

Evidence
source

Comments

7.5

Data pack &
financial
analysis

Early planning assumptions are reasonable with
identified growth.
Meetings ongoing to agree contract volumes

3.

Financial and activity projections are
supported by reasonable and deliverable
planning assumptions, including level of
assumed service redesign and underlying
activity growth
Triangulation of finance and activity

7.5

Data pack

No major issues identified at this stage
Amber in light of tariff position

4.

Agreed demand and capacity plans

7.5

Data pack

Currently under discussion through contract
negotiations – TDA/NHSE and CCG meetings in place

5.

Is the plan coherent with other key plans strategic plan, BCF, LETB workforce – and
output assumptions?
Focus on prevention

7.5,
7.9

Local
knowledge

7.5,
7.8
7.5

Narrative
plan
Local
knowledge

Yes. Aligns with Better Care Fund and Better Care
Together strategic plan. Workforce is one of the
enabling workstreams for BCT.
Integrated approach to prevention described in
narrative plan
Strong relationships have been developed across the
system. Local relationships and public involvement
identified in narrative plan

1.4,
6.2
2

Narrative
plan

Success regime – is this relevant to the
area and if so is it reflected appropriately
in the plan?
10. Working with LETB so that staffing and
workforce plans are affordable and
support local strategies for transformation

1.9,
3.1
6
1.1
3,
5.1
0,
7.1,
7.9

Narrative
plan
Narrative
plan / local
knowledge

Workforce is a Better Care Together workstream
and is being developed in line with the rest of the
strategic plan – this is now referenced in Section
9.3.1

11. New models of care – has an expression of
interest been made and if so does the plan
align with the stated interest?
12. Mental health spend in 15/16 to increase
in real terms, by at least as much as the
CCG’s allocation increase
13. Prevention - does the plan refer to setting
quantifiable levels of ambition [with local

3

Narrative
plan / local
knowledge
Finance
analysis

No expression of interest

Narrative
plan

Narrative plan refers to integrated approach to
prevention. Quantified levels of ambition reflected in

6.
7.

Are local relationships robust and good
public involvement?

FV specific issues:
8. Operational resilience - is the plan
sufficiently robust given winter monies are
included in CCG baselines?
9.

1.1
2
2.2

SRG in process of identifying what worked well
during last winter and prioritising resources in
response to lessons learnt. An update will be
available after Urgent Care Board
Challenged health economy

Yes. Modelled 6.85% increase in line with allocation
growth

3

122
Version 6

15.

16.
17.

FV priorities for operational delivery:
18. Improving outcomes - does the plan
refresh the seven sentinel indicators?
19. Quality of care - does the plan refer to any
CQC inspections/rating
20. Clinical accountability – does the plan
demonstrate how named doctor will be
embedded
21. Involvement in local Patient Safety
Collaborative and ‘Sign up to Safety’
campaign?
22. Clinical priorities – sepsis and acute kidney
injury (CQUINS)
23. Plans to improve antibiotic prescribing in
primary and secondary care
24. Have plans been agreed with acute care
providers to implement at least five of the
10 clinical standards for seven day services
25. Meeting Constitution, parity for mental
health and transforming care standards
26. Non-elective ambition – has ambition
changed from that stated in BCF plan and if
yes has it been approved by HWB?

27. Set aside of 1% non-recurrent spend for
investment in strategic plans
Other issues (not linked to FV guidance):
28. Data packs – does the assurance pack or
financial analysis identify any other
concerns in relation to activity or finance

Evidence
source

(*RAG)

14.

government partners] to reduce local
health and healthcare inequalities and
improve outcomes for health and
wellbeing, and identify agreed actions to
achieve these?
Diabetes prevention – has an expression of
interest been made and if so does the plan
align with the stated interest?
Integrated personal commissioning – is the
area a national demonstrator site and if so
does the plan reflect this?
Co-commissioning of primary care – does
the plan reflect the CCG’s stated intention?
Does the narrative plan cover the
fundamental elements described in Annex
A of the Supplementary information for
commissioner planning 2015/16

Guidance
ref

Issue

Comments

Section 4.2.12

2.4

2.1
0
3.2
0
Ann
ex A

4.1

Narrative
plan / local
knowledge
Narrative
plan / local
knowledge
Narrative
plan
Narrative
plan

Yes by Leicester Diabetes centre - and expressed an
interest called Leicester prevent. £2m NIHR grant
No. Not a demonstrator site.

Yes. Identified in narrative. Detailed agreed plan
with NHSE for service improvement
Identified in plan with further work required to
th
ensure that all areas covered by 27 submission.

Narrative
plan
Narrative
plan / local
knowledge
Narrative
plan

Identified in narrative plan

4.6

Narrative
plan

Referenced in plan.
Plan is in place to join the campaign in 15/16

4.7

Data pack

Yes in anticipation of NHSE guidance

4.8

Narrative
plan
Narrative
plan

Awaiting technical guidance from NHSE
Needs supporting narrative in plan
In development with acute provider

4.1
0-420
6.2
0

Data pack

Identified in narrative plan as part of Local Health
System Performance

Data pack /
narrative
plan

Baseline refresh completed for both BCF Plans
Rutland – No change 2.4% reduction in NEL remain
equating to reduction in 70 NEL admissions
Leicestershire – 3.5% NEL now equates to 2,245 NEL
Admissions – this will be validated once Capita
Report received

6.2
3

Finance
analysis?

4.3

4.4

4.9

Data pack &
financial
analysis

Narrative included in Section 5 Quality

Plan to be included for 2% of complex patients.

Refresh of activity and capacity plans due for next
submission. Main issue is tariff.

4

123
Version 6

that need further exploration?
29. Does the contract tracker identify
concerns?

Evidence
source

Contract
tracker
Local
knowledge

33. Commissioning support – is the CCG
planning on bringing commissioning
support in-house

Local
knowledge

34. Does the CCG plan include actions of
sufficient scale to maintain resilience in the
winter of 2015/16 based on learning from
2014/15? Is it clear what will be different
in the year ahead and are you assured that
plans are sufficiently robust and of the
necessary scale? Does this include the
mainstreaming of resilience funding?
35. Any other significant issues not reflected in
the plan (e.g. financial, quality,
performance, service or provider
reconfiguration)?

Narrative
plan

Local
knowledge
Data pack?

Local
knowledge

Comments

Commissioners and providers are negotiating
volumes in absence of tariff

TBC

30. Is the plan realistic given the CCG position
on the Q2 14/15 risk stratification and
triangulation matrix?
31. Is there capacity and capability at a local
level to deliver the plan?
32. Whether specialised commissioning is
excluded from CCG return

* RAG ratings

(*RAG)

Guidance
ref

Issue

Awaiting further guidance
HR has been agreed to return in-house, Comms &
Engagement is still under discussion. CCG is in active
consideration of potentially bringing CHC service inhouse
Winter funding expenditure plan currently being
agreed by Urgent Care Board. This will be linked to
our BCT & BCF plans

At this time the CCG believes it has captured all the
relevant issues. Plan is currently still work in
progress

Green = resolved/assured
Amber = yet to be fully resolved or assured but expected to be by the relevant deadline
Red = yet to be fully resolved or assured but NOT expected to be by the relevant deadline

5

124
Version 6

Contents
Chapter/Section
1. Foreword (UPDATED)
2. Executive summary (UPDATED)
3. About us (UPDATED)
3.1 Introduction
3.2 Provider landscape
3.3 Partnerships
3.4 Our vision, values and strategic aims
4. The case for change (UPDATED)
4.1 Key policy drivers
4.1.1 The Forward View 2015/16
4.1.2 The NHS Mandate 2015/16
4.1.3 Better Care Fund
4.1.4 Planning for a sustainable NHS: responding to the ‘Call to Action’
4.1.5 Putting Patients First - The NHS England Business Plan 2013/2014 – 2015/16
4.1.6 The Forward View into Action: Planning for 2015/16 (NEW)
4.1.7 NHS England Five Year Forward View (NEW)
4.2 Population Health Overview (NEW)
4.2.1 Demographics
4.2.2 Health inequalities
4.2.3 Diabetes
4.2.4 COPD
4.2.5 Coronary heart disease
4.2.6 Cancer
4.2.7 Older people
4.2.8 Dementia
4.2.9 End-of-life care
4.2.10 Longer lives
4.2.11 Liver Disease (NEW)
4.2.12 integrated approach to Prevention (NEW)
4.3 Local health system performance (NEW)
4.4 Finances in the local NHS
5. Quality, patient safety and experience (UPDATED)
5.1 Introduction
5.2 Patient experience
5.3 Quality and excellence
5.4 Patient safety
5.5 Berwick Review (NEW)
5.6 The Francis Inquiry
5.7 Winterbourne View
5.8 Compassion in practice nursing, midwifery and care staff - our vision and strategy
5.9 Staff satisfaction
5.10 Safeguarding
6. Commissioning intentions 2014/15 and 20152016 (UPDATED)
6.1 Commissioning priorities 2014/15 and 2015/16
6.2 Commissioning intentions 2014/15 and 2015/16
6.3 Draft priority commissioning intentions for 2014/15 and 2015/16(NEW)
6.3.1 Transforming Primary Care (NEW)
6.3.2 Community Services (NEW)
6

125
Version 6

6.3.3 Planned Care 6.3.4 Urgent & Emergency Care –
6.3.5 Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 6.3.6 Maternity Children & Young People 7. Our commissioning plans for 2014/15 and 2015/16 (UPDATED)
7.1 Primary care
7.1.1 Primary care operational plan 2015/16 to 2016/17 NEW
7.1.2 Model for 2015/16 Transitional Year NEW
7.1.3 Transforming Primary Care - Co Commissioning of Primary Care Services 2015/
16 NEW
7.1.4 Primary care quality indicators
7.1.5 Prescribing and medicines management
7.2 Community care
7.3 Long Term Conditions
7.3.1 Cardiovascular disease
7.3.2 Respiratory Disease
7.3.3 Cancer
7.4 Mental health
7.5 Dementia
7.6 End of life care
7.7 Planned care
7.8 Unscheduled and emergency care
7.8.1 Local Vision
7.8.2 NHS 111
7.8.3 ELR CCG Local Urgent Care Plans
7.8.4 Urgent & Emergency Care
7.8.5 NHS Services 7 days a week
7.9 Maternity, children and young people
7.9.1 Maternity
7.9.2 Children and young people
7.10 Continuing healthcare
7.10.1 Personal health budgets
8. Activity, performance and financial implications (UPDATED)
8.1 Overview of financial position
8.2 Financial plan for 2015/16
8.2.1 Planning assumptions
8.2.2 Planning running cost
8.3 Key bridging movements from 2013/14 forecast outturn to 2014/15 plan
8.4 Our Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention Programme
8.5 Key financial risks and opportunities for 2014/15 and 2015/16
8.6 Key capital schemes
9. Enablers (UPDATED)
9.1 Quality enablers
9.2 Governance
9.3 Organisational development NEW
9.3.1 Workforce NEW
9. 4 Involving and informing
9.5 Information management and technology (IM&T) enablers to support the Primary
Care Operational Plan 2014-16 (GP IT)
9.6 Research and innovation
9.7 Equality objectives 2013 – 2015

7

126
Version 6

Appendices (UPDATED)
Appendix 1 – Demographics
Appendix 2 – Key performance indicators
Appendix 3 – NHS outcomes framework performance
Appendix 4 – Quality premium measures for 2014/15
Appendix 5 - Priority actions to improve premature mortality from the four most
common causes
Appendix 6 – Overview of indicators and improvement areas
Appendix 7 – Registered population per GP practice locality
Appendix 8 –ELRCCG financial plan 2014/15
Appendix 9 - Market analysis of ELR CCG’s main providers
Appendix 10 – Potential gain in life expectancy years by district
Appendix 11 – Better Care Fund detailed spend NEW
Appendix 12 – Research & Innovation detailed plan NEW
Glossary

8

127
Version 6

1. Foreword (UPDATED)
East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group (ELR CCG) became a
statutory body in April 2013 and has now been running for almost two years. As a new
organisation we have had to adapt and develop quickly in response to the changes and
challenges faced by the health and social care system.
There is no doubt that 2014/15 has been a challenging year for everyone involved in
organising and delivering health and social care to the people of East Leicestershire and
Rutland. It is in this context that we are pleased that ELR CCG has been able to implement a
number of changes to enhance services.
After listening to views about the improvements that the people of East Leicestershire and
Rutland and our stakeholders wanted to see, we have focused on transforming services to
enhance the quality of life for people with long-term conditions, improving quality of care,
reducing inequalities in access to healthcare and improving joint working and integration with
social care.
These improvements come at a time of increasing demands on health and social care
services and significant financial pressure. Our ageing population means that year on year
we have more people to provide services to, many with complex and long term needs. It is
essential therefore, that we continue to use our resources more efficiently and cost
effectively to be able to provide services that meet our patients’ needs now and in the future.
This means we need to have ambitious plans for how we want to continue to improve the
health of local people and the services available to them, and these ambitions are set out in
this refreshed version of our Two Year Operational Plan.
We remain very clear on what we need to achieve as commissioners - to improve health by
meeting our patients’ needs with high quality and efficient services, led by clinicians and
delivered closer to home.
To help us to do this, over the next year, we will further develop as a CCG to work even
more closely with our clinicians, patients, members of the public, local authority partners,
neighbouring CCGs and stakeholders to meet these challenges head on, build on previous
success and commission high quality services that will be sustainable for years to come.

Karen English
Interim Managing
Director

Graham Martin
Chair

Dr Andy Ker
Clinical Vice Chair

Dr Richard Palin
Clinical Vice Chair

9

128
Version 6

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Five Year Strategy
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Health and Care Strategic Plan 2014-2019 –
Emerging Strategic Framework
Purpose:
The Strategic Plan sets out the medium term direction for the models of health, care
and support services that will need to apply in five years’ time across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland (the LLR ‘unit of planning’ footprint) and the steps needed
to realise that vision.
It signals a move away from an annual planning process that has delivered incremental,
organisational specific improvement to a longer term view that delivers transformational
change.
In doing so, it will set out a roadmap to better outcomes for our citizens. This roadmap will
provide a framework against which each statutory NHS organisation (the three CCGs, UHL,
LPT and NHS England) and local authority partners will develop their own operational plans
detailing how they will deliver on the component parts for which they are responsible. It will
represent the combined strategy of the three LLR Health and Wellbeing Boards and in doing
so set the framework for joint working across health, social care and public health that will be
reflected in each Health and Wellbeing Boards Better Care Fund plans. The focus of the
strategy will be on those areas that have the greatest potential to deliver significant benefits
during the period of the five year plan.
Goal:
To maximise value for the people of Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland by improving the
health and wellbeing outcomes that matter to them, their families and carers in a way that
enhances the quality of care at the same time as reducing cost across the public sector to
within allocated resources by managing demand and restructuring the provision of safe, high
quality, services into the most efficient and effective settings.
Objectives:
The LLR health and care community will achieve its goal by working together with a
sustained focus on:
•

Helping people to stay healthy and well - to prevent people dying prematurely and
reduce health inequalities. Impacting on the wider determinants of health
environment and healthy lifestyles through primary prevention interventions that have
the potential to both deliver short term benefits e.g. smoking cessation and impact
longer term on the future burden of disease.

•

Identifying people earlier at risk of ill health or loss of independence - Target
secondary prevention and early intervention (screening, case finding /risk profiling
and early intervention) support for vulnerable people/at risk to help people to stay
well reduce or delay the onset of ill health and/or deterioration in independence (e.g.
falls)

•

Empowering patients with long term conditions to monitor and manage their
own health – a systematic approach to routine management of long term conditions,
including those with mental illness, putting in place care plans and empowering
10

129
Version 6

patients, families and their carers have greater control over their health and wellbeing
to monitor, manage and stabilise their own conditions to get the best possible quality
of life
•

Taking a proactive approach to co-ordinating care for people with multiple and
complex conditions - patients with multiple, often complex, mental or physical long
term conditions, often compounded by being elderly and frail, vulnerable

•

Reducing dependence on acute urgent and emergency care in hospital enabling access to the highest quality urgent and emergency care. Expand the
range and integration of step up / pre-hospital care to provide alternatives to acute
hospital admission for patients, particularly the frail elderly, when their condition
deteriorates/acute exacerbation. Earlier treatment at home or in the community to
prevent people needing emergency care in hospital or care homes.

•

Driving a step change in elective efficiency - by providers reducing inappropriate
clinical variation from GP referrals and prescribing, through to specialist intervention
rates, theatre productivity, day case procedures

•

Concentrating specialised services in centres of excellence - for less common
disorders where the highest quality can be delivered

•

Reducing the amount of time people spend in hospital – cutting down the length
of stay in acute hospital, mental health and community hospital through better and
more integrated care in the community and outside of hospital

•

Supporting patients to recover quickly and successfully following illness or
injury - Expand the range and integration of step down / post-hospital care to
support timely discharge, help people to remain independent and avoid readmission

•

Maximising the independence of elderly, frail and vulnerable people through
continuing care support - increase the proportion of older people living
independently at home following discharge from hospital. Ensure that people’s
continuing health and social care needs are assessed and managed consistently and
when they are in a non-acute environment in order to ensure that on-going packages
of care maximise independence in the most appropriate setting

•

Helping people to have choice and dignity at the end of their life - Help people at
the end of their life to die in the place of their choice with dignity through care plans
that avoid unwanted treatment and acute hospital admission.

Principles:
Everything that we do will be consistent with the following underlying principles:
•

High quality care will be our organising principle – safe, clinically effective and a
positive experience of care

•

Relentless focus on improving outcomes – this is what matters, not the process or
organisational form

•

Citizens at the centre of all our planning and delivery – their interests, aspirations
and the impact on their symptoms and their ability to live the life they want to live. A
completely new approach to ensuring that citizens are fully included in all aspects of
11

130
Version 6

service design and change and those patients are fully empowered in their own care.
Listening to patients and increasing their participation. Involving patients, carers,
clinicians, social care professionals and the voluntary sector fully and equally in the
planning and delivery of services
•

Recognise the differences between different parts of Leicester Leicestershire and
Rutland – improving health outcome and reducing inequalities will require different
approaches in different areas. Differences in health need and current service provision
models across LLR, particularly, between the City and counties, will require locally
sensitive approaches to prioritisation and service development

•

Parity between physical and mental illness

•

Focus on genuine reductions in cost of provision – to the public sector of providing
services through redesigning whole care pathways and taking a life course approach, not
just moving treatment from one part of the system to another

•

Significant shift in resources – to support delivery in the most efficient and effective
setting:
•
•
•

•

from specialist and targeted treatment to prevention and early intervention
from hospital sector to primary and community care
from buildings and beds to staff and equipment

Alignment of incentives, benefits and risk – to ensure that one organisations plan
does not put another’s at risk and the sharing of risks and benefits between
commissioners and providers across the health and social care economy, supported by
aligned incentives that move away from fee for service contracts towards newer
mechanisms of bundled payments, alliance contracts and personal health budgets.

Enablers:
•

Empowering patient/citizens to take control of their own health and wellbeing

•

Expanding the role and scale of general practice – organising care co-ordination and
provision around integrated/federated practice units with care for a medical condition, or
set of related conditions, delivered by a multidisciplinary team drawn from different
providers with acute clinicians coming out into the community which takes responsibility
for the full cycle of care. Much more pivotal and expanded / wider role for general
practice to co-ordinate and deliver comprehensive care in collaboration with community
services and expert clinicians, particularly for frail older people and those with complex
health needs. We are committed to supporting the recruitment and retention of general
practice staff.

•

Developing a more flexible and integrated workforce - responding to changes in care
pathways and service configuration by reducing the acute hospital workforce, supporting
knowledge and skills transfer into primary and community teams and more flexible 7 day
a week working

•

Consolidating and making better use of estate - reducing and making better use of
our estate footprint, particularly acute and community hospitals, by consolidating
services, concentrating volume into a smaller number of the best condition and most
cost-effective locations, and increasing multiple users of separate facilities

12

131
Version 6

•

Developing an enabling IT/digital platform – that shares information as appropriate
across health and social care providers, and between providers and commissioners, to
supports information continuity, cost and outcome measurement, and empower citizens
and patients to make the best choices for services and their care safer care and better
experience as don't need to repeat details at every new contact

•

Adopting innovation and research – innovation locally by adopting evidence based
best practice - Exploiting research opportunities in terms of improving our understanding
of what works, facilitating the adoption of best practice and creating a learning culture
where staff want to work.

Our operational plan has been based on and reflects the ambition and strategy described in
our LLR Better Care Together 5 year strategic plan (2014-19) and builds on the foundations
set out in NHS England’s 5 year Forward View. The diagram below illustrates the key
drivers, objectives and outcomes we are planning to achieve;

13

132
Version 6

2. Executive summary (UPDATED)
Introduction
In this operational plan we describe our organisation, its role, structure, vision and values. In
our second year since becoming a fully authorised CCG, our plans show how we will focus
on bringing health and social care services more closely together, in partnership with other
commissioners, our local authorities, fellow CCGs, service providers and the voluntary
sector, and in line with national and local strategies, so they work more effectively and
efficiently in patients’ best interests. We will also work on service redesign in key areas.
Together these changes will improve patient care in terms of health outcomes and patients’
experiences of their local NHS services.
National context
The NHS Mandate sets out the ambitions for how the NHS needs to improve by 2015. The
mandate plays a vital role in setting out the national strategic direction for NHS England and
CCGs. Meanwhile the NHS ‘Call to Action’ challenges all NHS providers and commissioners
to respond to the challenges of an ageing society, the rise of long-term conditions, rising
expectations, increasing costs of providing care, limited productivity coupled with the
pressure of constrained public resources that the NHS faces, in particular to address the
variation in quality of care across the health system.
In June 2013 the Government launched plans to enable further steps to be taken towards
integrated health and social care via the national £3.8bn Better Care Fund (BCF). The BCF
forms a critical part of, and is incorporated into, the ELR CCG NHS two-year operational
plans and the five-year LLR strategic plan as well as local government planning.
The economic climate in which we operate remains a challenge for all NHS organisations.
The CCG recognises the need for service improvements to deliver better quality of patient
care and patients’ experience of the NHS in the long-term, while reducing clinical variation,
eliminating waste and delivering better value for money.
Local health
In 2011/12 ELR CCG had an estimated population of around 315,000 based on the number
of patients registered with GP practices.
The average life expectancy within East Leicestershire and Rutland is 80 years for men, and
83.9 years for women, both of which are higher than the England average. In 2011 there
were 2,628 deaths of people registered with East Leicestershire and Rutland GPs, 735 of
these were premature (i.e., before the age of 75). Among the premature deaths, the highest
percentage was from cancer, followed by cardiovascular diseases, and respiratory disease.
Quality
Quality, patient safety, clinical effectiveness and the experience of patients underpins the
delivery of health and social care services.
We recognise the need for service improvements to deliver better quality of patient care and
experience in the long-term, whilst reducing clinical variation, eliminating waste and
delivering better value for money. We recognise the key quality challenges our local
providers face and will work with them to improve and strengthen the quality of care
delivered to patients and their families.
14

133
Version 6

We will focus on clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience with specific
goals to deliver excellent health services and improve the quality of patient care across,
primary care, Secondary Care, Community Services and Mental Health and Learning
Disability services
Key factors and policies
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Health and Care Strategic Plan 2014-2019
will set out the medium and long term direction for the models of health, care and support
services that will need to apply in five years’ time.
The LLR health economy faces a challenging deficit of £328m by 2017/18 if we do not
fundamentally redesign and transform provision moving from a bed dependent economy to a
health economy that supports and manages people within their communities and homes.
2017/18 Organisation Attribution £m
Deficit
£m
Commissioner 138
City CCG 41
ELR CCG 46 WL CCG 51
Provider
190
UHL 145
LPT 45
Total
328
Our Two Year Operational Plan is about starting to take the necessary remedial and
transformational action in earlier years in order to address the projected deficit. Other
policies and programmes that help shape our plans are the Quality and Outcome Framework
(QOF), the GP Support Framework, Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN)
Payment Framework, the Quality Schedule, our ELR CCG Integrated Plan 2013/142015/16, Quality Premiums, Primary Care Quality Indicators and Compassion in Practice:
Nursing, Midwifery and Care Staff – Our Vision and Strategy.
We are also working in partnership with our local planning unit on a Five Year Strategic Plan
that focuses on five key strategic priorities which includes dementia, cancer, respiratory
disease, cardiovascular disease (CVD) and mental health.
Cardiovascular disease
Cardiovascular disease (CVD) is the second largest cause of death in England causing 29%
of all deaths in 2011 with coronary heart disease accounting for around 46% of these. CVD
is one of East Leicestershire and Rutland’s areas of greatest inequality and therefore
remains a priority. Over the next two years ELR CCG will invest in a number of different
pathways to address this area directly.
Respiratory disease
Respiratory disease is a major cause of ill health and is the third leading cause of death in
England after circulatory disease and cancer. It is also one of the principal reasons for
emergency admissions to hospital and, as a result, it accounts for a substantial proportion of
NHS expenditure. Around 835,000 people in England are currently diagnosed with COPD
and a further 2.2 million are estimated to have the condition
Over the last two years, 2012/13 and 2013/14, ELR CCG has developed a programme of
delivery within primary medical care linked to secondary and community care regarding the
management of COPD and asthma.
15

134
Version 6

Cancer
The GP recorded prevalence of cancer is significantly higher than the England average. We
will work in partnership with public health teams to raise awareness of cancer symptoms,
promote cancer screening programmes and health and wellbeing services that address the
major risk factors for cancer, e.g., smoking, alcohol misuse, unhealthy eating and lack of
physical activity.
Mental health and learning disabilities
Our plan outlines how we aim to work with our mental health providers, clinicians and
service users to improve our acute mental healthcare pathway. This is so that we can
improve the care provided for mental health service users in the community that promotes
independence and enables individuals to be part of their communities. In times of crisis and
when patients require admission to inpatient care we want to ensure that they receive high
quality care that promotes recovery within safe settings.
Over 2013/14 we re-procured our Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
service in partnership with West Leicestershire CCG and committed additional investment in
order to improve access to the service and to maintain our recovery rates.
We will work with local authority partners in the development and implementation of short
breaks for people with learning disability that best suits the needs of our patients.
Dementia
In 2010 there were estimated to be around 4,200 people over 65 in East Leicestershire and
Rutland with dementia. By 2030, the number is estimated to more than double. Investment in
improved and expanded dementia care management, incorporating earlier diagnosis,
is essential to increase the quality of lives for patients and carers, the quality,
effectiveness and experience of care, and to reduce both healthcare and societal costs.
We have implemented an enhanced service across primary care to improve timely diagnosis
and treatment of people with dementia, and we are working with local authority partners and
providers to improve and expand dementia care management, while developing a shared
dementia pathway and dementia hub.
Primary care
Evidence shows that there are significant pressures in primary care. There is an increased
patient expectation, attendances have gone up 75% since 1998, and there has been a slow
drift of work from secondary care and community care, which has put added pressure on
staff time and resources.
The primary care operational plan needs to help primary care be at the fore of the changes
required to achieve our strategic aims. The use of the £3.8m recurrent funding needs to be
enhanced with non-recurrent monies to help general practice to come together with new
systems of joint working to enable primary healthcare teams to have more time to proactively
manage patients with multiple illnesses, at the end of their lives, in care homes or at risk of
admission..
To assist in the monitoring of key primary care information including prescribing, an
individual practice level profile has been developed for all 33 practices. These formed the
basis of the CCG formal practice visits in 2013. There will be a continued commitment to
16

135
Version 6

annual clinical visits to practices to inform our future commissioning intentions and to assure
the CCG that practices are following best practice guidelines.
Community care
The CCG’s and partners’ plans for reshaping community health services are a central
element of our overall plans. The use of the Better Care Fund (BCF) is a key driver of these
plans, particularly with respect to integration with local authority providers to realise sevenday services ambitions. The physical setting, from where healthcare is delivered is a critical
consideration in respect of the range, accessibility and affordability of services. ELR CCG
has adopted an approach that considers the setting of care services alongside the other
components of service planning and delivery. This will enable us to deliver a sustainable
community-based provision that reduces reliance on a bed-based model.
Planned care
To further improve planned care services, we will continue with the expansion of our work to
offer care closer to or at people’s homes and redesign care systems that enable diagnosis
and treatment to be available in places other than large hospitals. Along with our
neighbouring CCGs we have jointly procured an innovative ‘alliance contract’, bringing
together a range of providers to work closely and collaboratively to deliver more effective
and efficient services.
Unscheduled and emergency care
Over the next two years we want to work with our acute care providers, East Midlands
Ambulance Service NHS Trust (EMAS), including patient transport and the out-of-hours
service, to build upon the work we started in 2013/14 to address the pressure we face within
urgent care and A&E. A significant amount of this work will take place in strengthening our
primary and community care in order to prevent avoidable hospital admissions and reduce
the length of stay for patients who could be cared for at home.
Maternity, children and young people services
Children and their families will continue to be an important priority for the CCG in 2015/16 as
we continue the work that has already commenced in relation to CCG’s Integrated Plan
2012-2015 along with the delivery of several new key priorities under the Maternity,
Neonates and Children’s Better Care Together workstream. Over the last few years we have
seen an increase in the number of births and an increase in complexity. Although we have
better than average or average rates of perinatal and infant mortality, as well as teenage
pregnancy, it is widely accepted that we have pockets of deprivation where these rates are
significantly higher. This high level of need results in a greater demand on maternity and
neonatal services.
A review of Maternity Services was undertaken in 2012/13 on behalf of all three LLR CCGs.
The key message was that despite facing a number of issues maternity services are safe
and are providing good standards of care. Further work will be completed in relation to
maternity provision as part of Better Care together, including Sustainable Long Term Models
for Maternity, Improved Access to Maternity and perinatal outcomes and Neonates in the
right cot at the right time

17

136
Version 6

With increasing demands on children and young people health service it is important that
we work with our local authorities colleagues to jointly commission and deliver sustainable
services that offer long term sustainable models of care for acute Paediatrics, community
health models and health and wellbeing to ensure quality services for children and their
families.
Communications and engagement
Involving and informing people is a critical part of delivering our CCG’s vision and lies at the
heart of what we do. When out organisation was established in shadow form in 2011, we
sought views on what people wanted us to focus on. As a result our vision and strategic
aims were directly influenced by what our patients, partners and stakeholders, staff and
clinicians told us. We remain committed to this approach and to continuous improvement of
the way in which we involve local people in planning, influencing and improving local
healthcare. In this plan we layout our priorities to build on these achievements.

18

137
Version 6

3. About us (UPDATED)
3.1 Introduction
2013/14 was the first year for ELR CCG as a statutory body. Over the coming year we will
further develop as a CCG to work more closely with our local authority partners,
neighbouring CCGs and stakeholders to deliver our challenging plans to reshape our
community services and transform our primary care in order to strengthen our capacity and
capability to deliver locally based provision that enables our patients to remain independent
for as long as possible and have a better quality of life.
One of our key enablers to strengthen and integrate our health and social care services is
the Better Care Fund. Working with our local authority partners Leicestershire County
Council and Rutland County Council and West Leicestershire CCG, we have developed
plans that demonstrate how we aim to integrate health and social care provision to ensure
care is strong, sustainable and person-centred and which enables the local health and social
care system to meet future demands.
There are several areas of the plan which require further proof of concept by preparatory
work and evaluation in 2014/15, before wider implementation, so our plan demonstrates the
incremental approach we are taking to creating a joined up health and care system by 2018.
To ensure that we achieve equality in physical and mental health services, our plan outlines
our ambition for how we will work with our mental health providers, clinicians and service
users to improve our acute mental health pathway taking step-up and step-down approach
to system redesign. This is so that we can improve the care provided for mental health
service users in the community setting. This promotes independence and enables
individuals to be part of their communities. In times of crisis and when patients require
admission to in-patient settings we want to ensure that patients receive high quality care that
promotes recovery within safe settings of care. Over 2013/14 we re-procured our Improving
Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) service in partnership with West Leicestershire
CCG and committed additional investment in order to improve access to the service from
14% to 17% and to maintain our recovery rates in 2014/15 to 2015/16.
We are working in partnership with our local planning unit to formulate a five year strategy
that focuses on five key strategic priorities which include Dementia, Cancer Respiratory,
Cardiovascular Disease and Mental Health.
Over the next two years we will work with our acute care providers, EMAS, patient transport
services and the out of hour’s service, to build upon the work we started in 2013/14 to
address the pressure faced within our urgent care system. A significant amount of this work
will take place in strengthening our primary and community provision in order to prevent
avoidable admissions and reduce length of stay for patients who could be cared for within
their home environment. Furthermore in order to further improve planned care services we
will continue with the expansion of our left-shift work and redesign provision that enables
planned interventions to take place in alternative settings. Figure 1.0 provides an illustrative
summary of our two year plan.

19

138
Version 6

ELR CCG 2 Year Plan for System Redesign

Reshaping Community Health Services – 7 Day
Week Provision

Transforming Primary Care
−

• Implementation of Community Services
Strategy
• Review Specialist Nursing Provision 2015/16
• Overnight Crisis Nursing, Assessment and
Intervention - £600k (BCF non-rec) 72 hrs
stay OOH’s
• Expansion of Intensive Community Support
–Virtual Beds Scheme

−
−
−

Implementation of GP support
framework
Co-commissioning
Proactive management of 111 and
Long Term Condition
7 day services pilot

Integration with Social Care Better Care Fund
(BCF) – 7 Day Week Provision
of an Integrated Care Model

−
−
−
−

−

Supporting people to
live independently for
longer improve
outcomes for people
with long term
conditions (LTCs),
quality of lives and
reduction in mortality.
Reduce utilisation of
services at an acute
and secondary care
level by implementing
a proactive and
integrated model at
community and
primary care level.

Early Intervention and Prevention
Rapid assessment and diagnostics for Frail
Older People
Local area co-ordination
Community agents (Leicester/Rutland)
Integrated falls response
Step up and Step Down – Integrated
Reablement offer, integration of Crisis
Response Service.
Integrated Dementia Pathway

−
−

Outcomes

Key Performance
Indicators:
•

•

EMAS

Mental Health

• Reduce conveyance rate
• Improve community based options
• Develop integrated approaches to
deliver
• Urgent Care solutions

Improve choice
Improve MH acute pathway –
reduce
LOS, improve community
capacity
•
Improve access to IAPT
•
Improve early access to psychosis

•
•

Acute Care

•

•

•
QIPP Impact 2015/2016

−
−

−

−

1.1

Who We A

Reduce the footprint of our acute care
usage
Designing an ambulatory care process to
support 4 hr wait and reduce admissions
– ambulatory clinics – patients requiring
diagnosis and access to diagnostics
Patients diagnosed but awaiting transport
home/alternative care setting – use of
discharge lounge/facilities to prevent
admissions
Planned Care – BADS, left shift of elective
activity, referral thresholds, for 6
specialities alliance

Maternity and Children’s
• integrated pathways across primary and
secondary care
• Bring all children’s services together under one
umbrella
• Review options for a sustainable model for
maternity and neonatal services that meets
national standards

1. 10% reduction in
new outpatient
referrals

•

•
2. 3.5% reduction in
non-elective
admissions
3. Improving nonconveyance by 20%

•
•

Moving to 15%
reduction in
avoidable
admissions
Moving to 20%
productivity in
elective care
4% reduction in
delayed transfers
of care.
Moving to 17%
access rate for
IAPT.
Maintain 53%
moving to
recovery IAPT.
Improving quality
of life for people
with LTC.
Improving end of
life care – more
people dying in
their place of
choice
Improving patient
experience.
Improve and
sustain quality of
care provision
across the whole
system.

20

Version 6

East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG

DRAFT 2015/16 Operational plan on a page

In 2015/16 ELR CCG will:
•
Lay strong foundations for delivery of new and integrated models of care in line with Better Care Together (BCT) plan and our Better Care Funds (BCF) to drive transformative change and improve outcomes for our
patients and population
•
Prioritise programmes of work which offer the best patient outcomes delivering qualitative change at pace across health and social care economy delivering models of care detailed in the 5YFV
•
Focus on developments that deliver financial balance and value for money redesign which maximises modernisation and transformation of our providers

Delivering value

Outcomes

Quality

5 Domains & 7 outcomes: We continue to target our work towards
delivery of the 5 domains and 7 outcome measures, in partnership with
the HWBBs & our Health & Wellbeing Strategy to reduce health
inequalities & improve the health of the ELRCCG population.
Integrated Model of care for LTCs/FOP/Urgent Care:
• Implementation of BCF and the BCT plans to deliver coordinated,
integrated community based services on a locality hub basis using
risk stratification to identify health need for our patients
• Implement alternatives to acute care and which facilitate
independence – supporting rapid access to diagnostics for our frail
older people and delivering an integrated Falls Pathway through
the BCF
• Work with primary and community based services to support
system changes to improve quality of life including improved EoL
care. Develop plans looking at use of technology to optimise selfmanagement for people with LTCs
• Working with system partners to deliver a reduction of 6% in
15/16 in avoidable admissions.
• Focus on community settings and moving to 20% productivity in
elective care and 4% reduction in delayed transfers of care. Left
shift for 6 specialties
Parity of esteem:
•
Co-produce a redesigned end to end pathway for CAMHS
and AMH – integrated step-up/step-down model of care –
to improve access & choice to services - implement MH
liaison in A&E
•
Continue to repatriate out of area placement and deliver
local alternatives – to achieve a target of 0 by Q4 of 2015/16
Integrated Prevention: Implementation of unified prevention plan –
collaborative approach to deliver quality prevention services. –linked
to JSNA and HWB Strategy. Collaborative commissioning of tiered
pathways e.g. weight management, physical activity and sexual health.
Developing GP information systems including PRISM to include
information, advice and guidance

Response to Francis, Berwick and Winterbourne View –Implement our
comprehensive plan in response to national recommendations through
monitoring, challenging and scrutiny of provider performance e.g. through
quality metrics and patient experience dashboards
Patient safety –reduction in HAI’s through monitoring compliance and
achievement of trajectories – i.e. reduction of CDIFF from 97 to 78.
Working closely with the East Midlands Patient Safety Collaborative,
Leicester Improvement Innovation and Patient Safety Unit. Join the ‘Sign up
to Safety’ Campaign to deliver high quality patient care.
Patient experience –ensuring patient voice is at the centre of all we do
through increased community outreach work, greater integration with
CCG’s patient involvement activity and use of patient experience dashboard
Compassion in practice- implementation of the 6Cs action plan areas
enabling the delivery of a long-term sustainable high quality nursing and
care staff workforce which support dignity in care provision
Staff satisfaction – Staff survey achieved an impressive 94% response - 2%
improvement on the previous year - implement improvement action plan
based on 2014 staff survey results
Seven day services - primary care access 7d GP-led urgent care services
across ELR with GP hubs forming to provide services at weekends for
complex patients. Work with UHL to deliver SDIP for 7-day services.
Safeguarding – continued strong focus on safeguarding including the
development and implementation of a range of policies which underpin a
robust approach. This includes assessment against Section 11 audit and the
Safeguarding Adults Assurance Framework. Commissioning of the
appropriate level of Designated Doctor and Nurse time by reviewing local
SLAs to ensure the quality of the service provision for 2015/16

Surplus 15/16 - £3.5m (1%)
Underlying surplus - £8.29m (2.3%)
Drawdown – n/a
Investments, cost pressures and full year effects (excluding MRET increase, BCT, BCF, MH Parity of Esteem & Winter Funding) - £12.4m
Contingency - £1.78m (0.5%)
Activity assumptions – Demographic growth (1.68%), Non demographic growth (8.32%), Prescribing growth (6%), Net tariff deflator (1.07%)
Link to BCF plan - £5.34m additional allocation, £9.54m new investment, £17.4m total investment with 2 County Councils
QIPP plan in excess of 2% of CCG resource limit – Our QIPP schemes are intrinsically linked to the BCT and BCF plans to ensure double counting is
eradicated.

Transformation programmes, reconfiguration plans and
re-procurement
•

•

•
•

Two key local transformation programmes Transforming primary
care and Redesigning community services – linking to LLR BCT
Programme & 2 BCF Plans
0.5% of programme allocation has been utilised to aid service
transformation including non-recurrent supporting sustainable
delivery of the national standards across urgent and planned care
Redesigning services with our partners to deliver integrated care
pathways e.g. CHC, community beds and community equipment 21
Key re-procurements in 15/16 include NHS 111 & GP OOHs service in
line with national guidance and strategic urgent care drivers for 16/17

139

Access
Winter resilience – Improve A&E performance to meet 95 % for 4
hour waits. System working to implement recommendations from
Keogh and Sturgess reports via the SRG. Implementation of tested
system plan for surge periods.
RTT, Cancer & Diagnostics – Sustainable delivery of RTT, Cancer and
diagnostic standards. LLR/BCT planned care transformation
programme including implementation of stratified care pathways,
implementing cancer risk management tools, 7-day working & Rapid
Access. Ensuring early access to diagnostics in a primary care setting
as part of agreed planned care and cancer pathways. Ensuring
patients have choice of appropriate providers that have the capacity
to treat them within the standard’s timescales.
IAPT - additional investment with WLCCG to further improve access
to IAPT services 16% by Q4 of 15/16 and to maintain our recovery
rates at 53% during 15/16
Dementia -investment in expanded dementia care management earlier diagnosis in primary care linked to access to memory
assessment clinics, shared care pathway and hub with primary care
and local authorities to support 67% diagnosis in 2015/16
Early intervention – Proactive monitoring of early intervention and
psychosis services and crisis teams to deliver the waiting time targets
and deliver better outreach particularly for people with complex or
multiple needs during 15/16
Primary Care – 7 day working and integration with community
services through implementation of our Primary Care Framework and
community services strategy e.g. Integrated Crisis Response . Four
centres open evenings and weekends alongside extended GP access
and 7day pilots for complex patients with multiple LTCs.

140
Version 6

Who we are
ELR CCG consists of GP membership from 33 practices in Melton, Rutland, Market
Harborough, Blaby District, Oadby and Wigston, Lutterworth and surrounding areas. We
serve a registered population of around 320,000 patients, over 35,000 of whom live in
neighbouring areas.
Our Board members comprise elected GP clinical leads, a board nurse, a secondary care
clinician (Consultant Paediatric Endocrinologist), a Consultant in Public Health and
independent lay members (members of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) and CCG managers.
Representatives of Healthwatch Leicestershire and Healthwatch Rutland sit in attendance at
our Board meetings.
Figure 2.0 below illustrates the location of general medical practices and our five community
hospitals along with the registered general practice population of each locality across our
CCG. Appendix 7 illustrates the registered population per general medical practice, per
locality within the CCG area.
Fig 2.0 ELR CCG GP practices and community hospitals (ADD new MAP DB?)

3.2 Provider landscape
ELR CCG commissions health services worth approximately £330 million for people
registered with our practices. We hold contracts ranging from small grants to the voluntary
sector, to a circa £125m contract with the main acute provider, University Hospitals of
Leicester NHS Trust (UHL). The breakdown of our 2014/15 budget by provider is shown
below in Figure.
22

141
Version 6

Fig 3.0 East Leicestershire and Rutland – Total Expenditure by Category 2014/15

23

142
Version 6

Although the picture of healthcare providers is becoming more complex with the roll out of
initiatives such as ‘Any Qualified Provider’ (AQP), offering patients a wider choice of
organisations to provide their care, the local services we commission remains dominated by:
•

•
•

UHL which provides acute hospital services at three sites in Leicester and in local
community hospitals. UHL provides secondary care to a catchment area of
approximately one million people and specialised services for up to three million
people. It is one of the largest acute trusts in the country.
Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust (LPT), the main provider of community health
and mental health services. LPT manages most of the community-based teams
serving ELR CCG and is a key provider at the six community hospitals.
East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust (EMAS) provides emergency 999 and
urgent care crews across Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Rutland, Lincolnshire (including
North and North East Lincolnshire), Northamptonshire and Nottinghamshire.

We commission acute services from out-of-county NHS trusts and a range of independent
sector providers such as Spire Leicester, Nuffield Leicester and Nations Healthcare, based
at the Nottingham Treatment Centre.
Furthermore, ELR CCG provides grants for some voluntary sector providers including the
Alzheimer’s Society (carer’s support service), Carer’s Action (carer’s support), Leicestershire
Organisation for the Relief of Suffering (LOROS) for end-of-life care, and The Laura Centre
(support for adults and children affected by the death of a child).
We act as the co-ordinating commissioning body to manage the following contracts on
behalf of all three Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) CCGs:
•
•
•
•
•
•

out-of-county contracts (acute)
out-of-county community health services
East Midlands Ambulance Service
non-emergency patient transport services – Arriva Transport Solutions
any qualified provider (AQP) contracts
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland voluntary sector arrangements
24

143
Version 6
•
•

community based elective care alliance arrangement
home oxygen service contract

ELR CCG also works with our LLR CCG partners to support the management of contracts
across the three CCGs in line with the NHS Standard Contract Management Framework.
3.3 Partnerships
Partnership working is vital to ELR CCG and it is the best way to bring about many of the
changes we wish to see implemented. Over the last year, ELR CCG has actively engaged
with partner organisations to build on existing relationships, and develop new and improved
relations with clinicians, patients and carers, public members, staff, partner organisations,
including local authorities, and other commissioning agencies. We have many partners, and
have established key working relationships with the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Leicester City and West Leicestershire CCGs
Leicestershire County Council and Rutland County Council (particularly with social
service commissioners and through Health and Wellbeing Boards) as well as the
borough and district councils within our CCG boundaries
Voluntary sector providers and charities
Healthwatch Leicestershire, Healthwatch Rutland, and other patient and carer
representative bodies
Leicestershire Police and Leicestershire Fire Services
De Montfort University and the University of Leicester
Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit (GEM CSU).

In order to achieve our vision and values we will be working closely with our local authority,
CCG and provider partners to develop our five-year LLR strategy. Furthermore, we are
working with our local authority partners to develop our two-year plans, now known as the
Better Care Fund, to ensure health and social care work more closely together. The CCG is
committed to making care more integrated in order to improve health for its population.
We are working with our local authority partners to ensure that resources are used
effectively. We will do this through the Better Care Fund, strengthening our joint
commissioning and working arrangements to deliver integrated care for older people and
supporting people with long-term conditions (LTCs). This is particularly crucial if our CCG is
to meet its financial challenges through the transformation of care systems, and improve the
quality of healthcare across all our providers.
Public health input into the development and implementation of the CCG’s strategic priorities
is vital, and we base our priorities and initiatives upon the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA) and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy of the county council. Public health staff
continue to help the CCG to understand local needs and issues of our diverse population.
This contribution is critical to both inform and develop our strategies, as well as in delivering
our priorities.

25

144
Version 6

3.4 Our vision, values and strategic aims
Fig 4.0 Our vision and values

They are based on the views of our staff, our member practices, clinicians, the public, our
patients and carers, and partner organisations.
We have spent time talking and listening to people about the changes they would like to see
in local healthcare and where we should be focusing our efforts. The broad themes that
stood out in what people told us are:
•
•
•
•

care delivered closer to home including access to services in patients’ own homes and
other alternatives to hospital admissions
closer working with social care to improve care pathways
more work on prevention (reducing diseases through screening, advice and health
checks)
better quality and more effective services.

Taking into account these themes, we developed the following strategic aims:
•

Transform services and enhance quality of life for people with long-term
conditions
With a particular focus on COPD, diabetes, dementia, mental health and learning
disabilities

26

145
Version 6

•

Improve the quality of care
Focusing on clinical effectiveness, safety and patient experience, with specific goals
to deliver excellent community health services and improve the quality of primary
care

•

Reduce inequalities in access to healthcare
Targeting areas and population groups with the greatest need

•

Improve integration of local services
Between health and social care and between acute and primary/community care

•

Listening to our patients and public
Our commitment is to listen, and to act on, what our patients and public tell us

•

Living within our means
The effective use of public money.

Our plans for this year are designed to support these strategic aims and therefore to deliver
the kind of healthcare that local people have told us they want.
4. The case for change (UPDATED)
4.1 Key Policy Drivers
4.1.1 The Forward view 2015/16
The NHS has dramatically improved over the past fifteen years. Cancer and cardiac
outcomes are better; waits are shorter; patient satisfaction much higher. Progress has
continued even during global recession and austerity thanks to protected funding and the
commitment of NHS staff. But quality of care can be variable, preventable illness is
widespread, health inequalities deep-rooted. Our patients’ needs are changing, new
treatment options are emerging, and we face particular challenges in areas such as mental
Health, cancer and support for frail older patients. Service pressures are building.
NHS England published its planning guidance for 2015/16 as a follow-up to the ‘Forward
View’. The Forward view into action: planning for 2015/16 sets out a clear direction for the
NHS – showing why change is needed and what it will look like.
Some of what is needed can be brought about locally through our own planning. Other
actions require new partnerships with the wider local health and social care economy, local
communities and voluntary organisations.
The planning guidance directs NHS organisations to refresh operational plans for 2015/16
only, based on the common assumptions for NHS commissioners and providers agreed by
NHS England, Monitor and the TDA and on their local joint health and wellbeing strategies.
The mandate from the government, as described below, remains broadly stable with one
newly focussed ambition – to achieve genuine parity of esteem between mental health and

27

146
Version 6

physical health by 2020. Each CCG’s spending on mental health services in 2015/16 is to
increase in real terms and grow by at least as much as our allocation increase.
In addition, the guidance sets out a need to focus our planning on creating a new
relationship with patients and communities - to drive a programme centred on prevention
patient empowerment. Furthermore it sets out priorities for operational delivery in 2015/16 as
follows;
• .Improved quality and outcomes
• Improved patient safety
• Meeting NHS constitution standards
• Parity for mental health
• Transformation of care for people with learning disabilities
We will work closely with our wider health and Social care partners (unit of planning) in
developing this operational plan including the full integration of the Better Care fund plans
and wider Better Care Together programme-as described throughout this plan and shown in
Appendix 13

4.1.2 The NHS mandate 2015/16
The NHS Mandate sets out the ambitions for how the NHS needs to improve and develop by
2016. The mandate plays a vital role in setting out the national strategic direction for NHS
England. The mandate focuses on the following areas:
Preventing people from dying prematurely
The Leicestershire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) aims to ‘add quality and
years to life’ by improving health throughout people’s lives, reducing health inequalities and
focusing on the needs of the local population.
The core of the strategy is to focus collective efforts on improving outcomes related to four
priorities:
•
•
•
•

getting it right from childhood by giving children and young people the best possible start
managing the shift to early intervention and prevention by enabling people to take
responsibility for their own health
supporting the ageing population by helping people to live the longest healthiest life they
can
improving mental health and wellbeing by making health and social care services more
accessible

Central to the strategy is the need to work together across the wider partnership to deliver
the best outcomes for the people of Leicestershire and Rutland. In order to ensure that this
happens, these four priorities are supported by a cross-cutting theme:
•

Tackling the wider determinants of health by influencing other boards

The vision for the Rutland JHWS (2013-16) is to ‘continuously improve the health and
wellbeing of the people of Rutland, and ensure Rutland remains [one of] the healthiest
places to live in the UK’. There are two key principles in the strategy; empowerment (helping
communities to look after themselves) and provision (providing services to those most in
need).

28

147
Version 6

Enhancing quality of life for people with long-term conditions
We want to see on-going physical and mental health conditions such as diabetes, dementia
and depression managed better so that our patients, families and carers experience a better
quality of life. This will mean ensuring that care is more joined up right across primary care
provided by GPs, community services, such as district nurses, secondary care in hospitals,
and social care in care homes and home-based care.
Four key areas of have been particularly highlighted where CCGs are expected to make
particular progress:
•

involving people in their own care: in 2015/16, we will continue to support and
promote initiatives to empower patients through continued initiatives such as
information and education programmes (e.g. DESMOND for diabetes) and personal
health budgets as an option across health and social care as an option for people
with learning disabilities. In addition the Leicester Diabetes centre has submitted an
expression of interest, in partnership with LLR CCGs, called Leicester prevent as a
bid for the £2m NIHR grant

•

use of technology: locally we will optimise the use of telehealth and assistive
technology working in partnership with local authority partners to improve patient selfmanagement and treatment within primary care
effectively implementing the Better Care Fund: we are working with our partners to
implement Better Care Plans in Leicestershire and Rutland
the diagnosis, treatment and care of patients with dementia: During 2014/15 we
worked with our local authority partners to remodel dementia support services across
Leicestershire and during 2015/16 will continue work to improve timely diagnosis,
treatment and care management through the Better Care Together programme.

•
•

Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following injury
Timely and effective diagnosis and treatment in order to help people recover from episodes
of ill health or injury are critical.
We will work through the Better Care Programme to reduce inequalities for people with
mental health problems across LLR and support the national push for parity of esteem. We
also know we need to do more to focus on prevention and early intervention, whilst also
providing alternatives to admission, such as better crisis services and better outreach
particularly for people with dual mental health and substance misuse issues. Finally across
LLR there is a mismatch between service need and location, and the waits for some services
are too long.
Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care
ELR CCG is committed to ensuring patients’ and service users’ voice is at the heart of what
ELR CCG does, and improving patients’ experience of NHS care has been a key focus for
the CCG. Some of the work the CCG has carried out includes developing ‘dashboards’ to
assess patient experience, working with patient participation groups and the ‘we are
listening’ project, using a portable kiosk taken out into the community to invite people to
share their views of local NHS care.

29

148
Version 6

Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them from
avoidable harm
The CCG has undertaken work programmes to improve patient safety. This includes work to
ensure providers reduce healthcare acquired infections, such as MIRA, improve incident
reporting in primary care and working with hospitals to eliminate avoidable pressure ulcers.
The CCG has also undertaken work in response to the Francis Inquiry and the Winterbourne
View Concordat regarding serious failures in care quality in other parts of England.
Freeing the NHS to innovate
NHS England (NHSE) has a mandate to consider how best to balance different ways of
delivering local and national care. We will work with the Local Area Team (LAT) and
commissioning partners to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

work in partnership with local authorities and commissioners, particularly through
Health and Wellbeing Boards
involve patients, professionals and communities in shaping local health services
through robust communication, engagement and involvement plans
be transparent in terms of providing information to enable patients to make informed
decisions
delivering on our Quality Premium incentives
lead the continued drive for efficiency savings while maintaining quality through our
Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention programme (QIPP).
Learn and develop robust commissioning practices, including redesigning services,
open procurement of services, and contracting to produce required health outcomes.

The broader role of the NHS in society
We will work with all partners and stakeholders to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

improve services for both disabled children and adults;
improve safeguarding practices locally
contribute to multi-agency family support services for vulnerable and troubled families
contribute to reducing violence, in particular by improving the way we locally share
information about domestic violence, and support the victims of crime
improve services by turning scientific developments into benefits for patients
help people experiencing ill health, whether mental or physical, to remain in or return
to work, and avoid homelessness.

Meeting financial challenges
The economic climate in which we operate remains a challenge for all NHS organisations.
The CCG recognises the need for service improvements to deliver better quality of patient

30

149
Version 6

4.1.3 Better care fund
The health and social care system is facing unprecedented levels of pressure with
increasing demand from an ageing and increasingly frail population and significant reduction
in available resources.
The health and social care system will only be sustainable in the long-term if we start to think
and act differently and work together to finding solutions to the shared challenges.
In June 2013 the Government launched plans to enable further steps to be taken towards
integrated health and social care via the national £3.8bn Better Care Fund (BCF) formerly
the Integration Transformation Fund. BCF is a single pooled budget to support health and
social care services to work more closely together in the local area.
The BCF forms a critical part of, and is incorporated into, the ELR CCG operational plans
and the five-year LLR Better Care Together strategic plan as well as local government
planning.
In 2015/16 the fund will be allocated to pooled budgets via joint governance arrangements
between CCGs and councils. A condition of accessing the money in the fund is that CCGs
and councils must jointly agree plans for how the money will be spent, and these plans must
meet certain requirements. BCF will seek to facilitate greater integration of care, raise quality
of service provision.
In 2015/16 the Better Care Fund (BCF) will provide £17.2m (£15m in Leicestershire and
£2.2m in Rutland) to be spent locally on health and care to drive closer integration and
improve outcomes for patients, service users and carers. Detailed spending plan is included
in Appendix 11 (NEW).
Local plans have been developed agreed by the local Health and Wellbeing Boards
(Leicestershire & Rutland) which meet the following national conditions:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

plans to be locally agreed;
protection for social care services;
seven-day working in health and social care to support patients being discharged and
prevent unnecessary admissions at weekends;
better data sharing between health and social care, based on patients’ NHS numbers
a joint approach to assessments and care planning;
where funding is used for integrated packages of care, there is an accountable
professional in charge;
risk sharing principles and contingency plans are in place if targets are not met –
including redeployment of the funding if local agreement is not reached; and
agreement on the impact of changes on the acute sector.

To ensure the allocated amount is moved from the NHS into the pooled budget, CCGs will
need to deploy funds from existing NHS services. There is therefore an obligation on the
CCG and local authorities to engage healthcare providers and other key stakeholders to
assess the implications and decide how these should be managed.
In the Leicestershire and Rutland health and social care system, a range of existing
programmes support the objectives set out in our Better Care Fund plans, bringing health
and social care commissioning together to better meet the needs of individual patients.
Further details of these programmes are outlined in our Better Care Fund plans with
Leicestershire County Council and Rutland County Council.
31

150
Version 6

The performance and effectiveness of the changes will be measured through the:
•
•
•
•
•

reduction in avoidable non-elective admissions;
reduction in delayed transfers of care;
reduction in residential care admissions;
improved effectiveness of rehabilitation after discharge from hospital; and
improved patient/service user experience;

Locally we have also identified and agreed to measure the reduction in injuries due to falls in
people aged 65 and over as part of our strategic priorities concerning frail older people, who
are the patient group at most risk of falls.
The Leicestershire and Rutland vision is to create by 2018 a strong, sustainable, personcentred integrated health and social care system, that significantly reduces the demand for
hospital services and puts prevention at its heart.
We will work towards achieving this through:
•
•
•
•
•
•

adopting a whole system approach to pathway re-design, ensuring closer integration
of planning, commissioning and delivery is considered, where appropriate;
building on existing priorities and current work;
improving patients’ experience of the NHS by driving up quality and performance;
delivering efficiencies by developing more effective and streamlined practices and
processes;
streamlining and focusing our efforts on tackling a smaller number of areas
effectively; and
identifying those citizens at greatest risk and supporting them to maintain or regain
their independence which will reduce their reliance on more costly interventions.

The volume of emergency care work in hospitals will be reduced and planned care in
hospitals will also reduce by providing alternative community-based services. A managed
admissions and discharge process will result in fewer delays in transfers of care, reduce
pressures in acute admissions and wards, and ensure that people are helped to regain their
independence after ill health as quickly as possible.

Across ELR we will use the Better Care Fund to:
• help people self-manage and provide peer support including improving access to
advice and information and working in partnership with voluntary, community and
long-term conditions groups;
• invest in developing personalised health and social care budgets working with
patients and service users and frontline professionals to empower people to make
informed decisions about their care;
• invest in rehabilitation, reducing hospital admissions, nursing and residential care
admissions and care costs;
• invest in the development of integrated crisis-response services that enable improved
management of patients within their homes and prevent admissions to hospital;
• strengthen our capacity across an integrated health and social care system that
reduce hospital admissions, delayed discharges and work towards 7 day social care
provision in and out of hospitals; and
• integrate NHS and social care systems with the medical records system based on
patients’ NHS numbers, to ensure that frontline professionals, and ultimately all
32

151
Version 6

patients and service users, have access to all of the records and information they
need.
Up to now, health transfer funds have been spent on a number of key, jointly agreed areas,
including prevention and early intervention, enhancing community-based social care
services to prevent admission, managing discharge from hospital, particularly for older
people, and supporting people with long-term conditions.
The plan for 2015/16 will be to refine that investment in order to work on seven key areas
defined by the NHS Chief Executive, Sir David Nicholson, as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

a reduction in the number of hospital admissions – working towards the ambition of
15% reduction by 2018/19;
a reduction in the amount of time people spend in hospital through the provision of
better and more integrated community services including improved discharge
processes – reducing delayed transfers of care from inpatient to home;
improved quality of life for people with long-term conditions and carers;
reduced reliance on long-term health and social care services through delivery of
effective prevention and early intervention;
increased efficiency across the health and social care economy;
improving patient and service-user experience; and
reducing the number of years of life lost by the people of England from treatable
conditions (e.g., including cancer, stroke, heart disease, respiratory disease, liver
disease).

In line with our desire to take a planned and stepped approach to integration, we have
combined our priorities and activities into the following central themes:
Prevention/Unified Prevention
• Bring together prevention services in Leicestershire & Rutland into one consistent
offer
• Improve housing offer and support to carers
• Provide better co-ordination in communities so that people have easy access to
information, help and advice – this will be through the development and
implementation of Local Area Co-ordination (LAC) in Leicestershire and the
Community Agent and In Touch Service in Rutland
Integrated, Proactive Care for people with long term conditions
• Consolidate integrated health and care teams in each locality
• Offer proactive case management for those with long term conditions and/or over 75
• Improve records and data sharing for care planning and care coordination
• Improve care co-ordination for people with Learning disabilities (Rutland)
• Implementation of Integrated dementia pathway (Rutland)
Integrated Urgent/crisis response
• Implementation of integrated rapid response services to avoid unnecessary hospital
admissions
• Implementation of rapid assessment and intervention service for older people
• introduce 7-day working in GP practice which integrates effectively with community
based health and care both in and out of hours
• implementation of an integrated hub approach in Rutland

33

152
Version 6

Hospital discharge and Reablement
• Deliver integrated, effective hospital discharge and reablement services which
reduce length of stay in hospital and reduce hospital bed days
• Consolidate, integrate and extend existing community based services into 24/7
service operating across health and social care with a single point of access – to
focus on maintaining independence in the community for as long as possible
• New Follow-up service for those in receipt of care packages on discharge from
hospital
• New approach to joint commissioning for outcome based reablement and domiciliary
care services (Leicestershire)
• Joint working to facilitate hospital discharges from Peterborough and UHL (Rutland)
In order to deliver our BCF plans we have identified what is needed to implement a truly
integrated seamless system. These are:
• data sharing, integrated business intelligence and IT, in particular use of patients’
NHS numbers (i.e., not patients’ names) throughout the health and care system
• protection of services in order to tackle key risks (performance-related pay)
• BCF programme management
• seven-day working
• clarify capital cost assumptions.
Several components of the BCF relate specifically to making a significant shift in delivering
24/7 integrated community based support for ELR. The 2 BCF plans show how we will
develop the initial platform/foundations and then rapidly create further integration across
acute, community and GP settings of care. The BCF plans commit to the following initial
developments:
•
•
•
•
•

The development of an integrated single point of access across health and care
services
The introduction of a 2 hour integrated response service for urgent health and care
support in the community
The introduction of case management of the over 75s (Primary Care element)
Make further improvements to hospital discharge, including at weekends.
The extension of primary care services across 7 day working and the further
integration of community and primary care services in support of patients with LTCs
and frail older people.

The key metrics that will be used to monitor the performance and delivery of the plan are:
•

Reduce the number of permanent admissions by to residential and nursing care
homes by 3.1% (for Leicestershire reduction by 29 admissions) and by 12
admissions (for Rutland) (national definition aged 65+ per 100,000 population) in
2015/16

•

Improve the effectiveness of reablement by 2015 in the proportion of older people (65
and over) who are still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into reablement
/ rehabilitation services by 2% (for Leicestershire) and 13% (for Rutland).

34

153
Version 6
• Achieve an reduction in delayed bed days per 100,000 per month by 1% (for
Leicestershire) and by 3.4% (for Rutland)
• Deliver a 2.4% (for Rutland reduction by 70 NEL admissions) and 3.5% (for
Leicestershire reduction by 1,911 NE admissions) reduction in NEL
admissions for 2015/16 – this is a Pay for Performance element – subject to
change through refresh
• Improve patient/service User experience
• Reduce in injuries due to falls in people aged 65 and over during 2015/16
(emergency admissions due to falls)
Our BCF plans, that we have jointly developed with our local authority partners,
Leicestershire County Council and Rutland County Council have been through the
moderation and assurance process with NHS England and Local Government and have
been fully ’Approved’ in December 2014.
4.1.4 Planning for a sustainable NHS: responding to the ‘Call to Action’
The NHS ‘Call to Action’ challenges all NHS providers and commissioners to respond to the
challenges of an ageing society, the rise of long-term conditions, rising expectations,
increasing costs of providing care, limited productivity coupled with the pressure of
constrained public resources that the NHS faces, in particular to address the variation in
quality of care across the health system. Therefore the focus of our plans as a CCG is to
address our local challenges in relation to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

quality issues by working closely with our providers and clinicians
raise our performance across the NHS Outcomes Framework domains and Quality
Premium
deliver safe high quality services
deliver value for money – meeting our financial challenges as a health and social
care economy
focus on helping people to remain healthy for longer through promoting
independence and supporting more patients to remain at home.
taking a more life-long approach to supporting people, rather than providing only a
disease-specific approach
achieve a parity of importance for mental health with physical health – develop plans
to help reduce the 20-year gap in life expectancy for people with severe mental
illness.

4.1.5 Putting Patients First - The NHS England Business Plan 2014/15 – 2016/17
We will work with NHS England through the Regional and Local Area Teams to support the
delivery of the NHS England Business Plan.

35

154
Version 6

4.1.6 The Forward View into Action: Planning for 2015/16 (NEW)
The Forward View into Action, published by NHS England in December 2014, sets out the
framework of delivery for the first year of the 5 year Forward View. The key principles of the
guidance are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

Set the scale and pace of transformation
Differential national approach
Achieving core standards
Maximising the value of local planning
Planning on the local planning footprint – supporting a joint approach

4.1.7. NHS England Five Year Forward View (NEW)
. In addition NHSE published additional planning guidance in December 2014 - The Forward
View into Action: planning for 2015/16. We have reviewed our Operational Plan for 2015/16
and have ensured a focus on;
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Structured partnership and integration across our whole Unit of planning where
possible
Improved access standards for mental health and a parity of esteem between
physical and mental health
Aligned, realistic activity and financial assumptions between our providers and us
New relationships with patients and communities to drive prevention, patient
empowerment and community engagement
Co-creation of new models of care and whole system transformation such service redesign of Integrated care pathways particularly for urgency and emergency care,
maternity and cancer.
Improved quality and outcomes, improved patient safety, continued meeting of NHS
constitution standards and transformation of care for people with learning disabilities
Capitalising on key drivers and enablers such as robust IM&T, a flexible multi-skilled
workforce, accelerated use of research and innovation and a strong programme of
communication, engagement and feedback

4.2 Population Health Overview (NEW)
ELR CCG has been actively involved in developing a joint understanding of local needs and
priorities across health and social care. This involvement has been through membership of
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) steering group, the Health and Wellbeing
Boards for Leicestershire and Rutland, and their Staying Healthy sub-groups, participation in
stakeholder events and development sessions for Health and Wellbeing Boards, and a CCG
Board review of strategic priorities contributing to the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies
(JHWS).
Key findings from the Leicestershire and Rutland JSNAs are summarised within this section.
4.2.1 Demographics
In 2013/14 ELR CCG had an estimated population of around 321,000 based on the number
of patients registered with GP practices in 2013/14. Just over 35,000 of these patients live in
36

155
Version 6

neighbouring areas, while around 46,500 people live in East Leicestershire and Rutland but
are registered with neighbouring CCGs. In NHS East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG, less
that 1% of people live the most deprived fifth of areas in England.1 Please see Appendix 1
for the distribution of ELR CCG registered patients and GP practices.
50.6% of our population is female, which is similar to the England average of 50.2%.
The average life expectancy within East Leicestershire and Rutland is 80.5 years for men,
and 84.4 years for women, both of which are higher than the England average.
Between 2010-12, on average there were 2,808 deaths per year of people registered with
East Leicestershire and Rutland GPs;2
Accounting for 69% of all deaths, the major killers for East Leicestershire and Rutland
CCG are:
•
•
•

cancer (29%)
cardiovascular disease – CVD - (27%)
respiratory disease (13%)

A quarter of the population (23.6%) of East Leicestershire and Rutland is under the age of
20, and around 25% are aged 60 and over (26.2%). The number of people aged 60 and over
is higher than the England average (22.6%), and our older population is predicted to
increase over the next 10 years, with an estimated 19,000 additional people aged 60
years and over; 3,715 of this population will be aged over 85 years3. The latest population
projections (from the 2012 ONS projections) clearly show that East Leicestershire and
Rutland has an ageing population.
The health of our local population is generally better than the overall population of England.
However, there is a significant number of people affected by ill health, including GP diagnosed coronary heart disease (10,739 people), hypertension (47,770 people), and
diabetes (16,625 people)4.

High numbers of people are affected by the major risk factors for ill health. In 2009/2010 it
was estimated that 16.1% (41,000) of adults in East Leicestershire and Rutland are
smokers, and 18.3% (47,500) binge drink alcohol5.
The CCG currently has high levels of non-elective activity when benchmarked against similar
health economies. Without a focused approach and active intervention, the ageing
population will increase the gap between expected and actual activity.
Elective activity is consistent with the national average.
In terms of prescribing activity, ELR CCG spends £75,338 per 1,000 population compared to
£79,662 nationally. However, the rate of growth in spending over the last
three years has increased by 6% against a national average growth of 3%.
4.2.2 Health inequalities
Health inequalities can be defined as the differences (with an emphasis on inequalities,
1

Cardiovascular disease profiles 2014

2

Source: End of life care profiles for clinical commissioning groups 2014
Source: 2012-based Subnational Population Projections. Clinical Commissioning Groups in England, mid-2012 to mid-2037
4
Quality and Outcomes Framework, 2013-14
5
Cardiovascular disease profiles 2014
3

37

156
Version 6

which are differences that are unfair) either in health status, or in the distribution of factors
that affect health s between different population groups, such as deprivation.
The population of ELR CCG as a whole has relatively low levels of material deprivation,
compared to other parts of England. In comparing the various areas where our population
live against the rest of England, we rank overall as 200 out of 212 CCGs for deprivation
(where 1 is the most deprived). Nevertheless, there are significant pockets of
disadvantage in areas on the edges of Leicester City and within the market towns.
Within ELR CCG, there are areas that have poorer health outcomes. The main
areas affected are in Oadby and Wigston. These inequalities in health need to be
addressed. Significant health inequalities exist for other minority and hard to reach groups,
eg, Black and Minority Ethnic (BME), and travellers.
Around 42% of school children are from BME groups6. 13% of children are living in poverty,
which is better than the England average. Infant and child mortality rates are similar to
the average, as are breastfeeding initiation levels.
Although the health of children in East Leicestershire and Rutland is generally similar to or
better than England’s average, we recognise that there are key pockets of socioeconomic
deprivation, particularly in Melton, Rutland and Wigston.
In one area of Wigston, residents have a significantly higher rate of mortality from all causes
and mortality from respiratory diesases than the England average. Although not significantly
higher, rates of mortality from circulatory diisease and mortality from stroke are higher than
the England average7. Although not as significant as in Wigston, other pockets of greater
need exist in other parts of East Leicestershire and Rutland, including Melton, Harborough
and Blaby.
Evidence suggests that the most effective way to reduce the gap in life expectancy in
the short term is to improve the management of diseases (including CVD and COPD) and
their risk factors (including smoking, alcohol, hypertension and diabetes) that
predominately affect the socially excluded.

4.2.3 Diabetes
In 2013/14, 16,625 patients in East Leicestershire and Rutland were registered with their
GP as having diabetes. This is a prevalence rate of 6.4%, which is significantly higher than
the England average (6.2%).
Among people with diabetes in NHS East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG the risk of a
stroke was 23.5% higher and the risk of a heart attack was 69.4% higher compared to the
general population. A person with diabetes in the CCG was also at a 95.6% higher risk of
heart failure and a 80.2% higher risk of angina than the general population. The additional
risk of major amputation in NHS East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG was 178.3% which
was lower the average for England which is currently 221.8%.

6
7

Oadby and Wigston, School Health Profile 2014
Association of Public Health Observatories, Local Health

38

157
Version 6

4.2.4 Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
Between 2011 and 2013, there were 705 deaths from chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) in Leicestershire. Overall, there has been
little change in the trend of COPD across Leicestershire County and Rutland over recent
years.
Our COPD prevalence figures are increasing at 1.63% 2013/2014 against an England
average of 1.78%.
4.2.5 Coronary heart disease
In 2013/14 there were 10,739 patients registered with coronary heart disease (CHD) in East
Leicestershire and Rutland. This GP recorded prevalence of 3.3% compares to
a model based estimate of actual prevalence of 5.1%. The difference would indicate that
there are approximately 3,000 patients with undiagnosed CHD in East Leicestershire and
Rutland. Mortality under 75 from cardiovascular disease and CHD is the largest contributor
for cardiovascular disease (45%). In 2012, the early mortality rate for CHD in NHS East
Leicestershire and Rutland CCG was 36.9 per 100,000. This is a decrease of 48% since
2002, which is lower than the England change. In England, the mortality rate has decreased
by 51% over the same 10 years. The rates in the East Midlands strategic clinical network
has decreased by 51% over the same time period.
4.2.6 Cancer
Although there is some variation across East Leicestershire and Rutland, rates of premature
mortality from cancer are either significantly lower than, or similar to the national average.
Based on Quality and Outcomes Framework data, the GP recorded prevalence of cancer
(2.4% for East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG) is significantly higher than the England
average (2.1% of the registered population).
4.2.7 Older people
In 2012, there were approximately 80,000 people aged over 60 in East Leicestershire and
Rutland, and 15,300 aged over 80. The population of East Leicestershire and Rutland aged
over 60 is estimated to increase by around 46% by 2030.
Around 15,500 of the population aged over 75 in East Leicestershire and Rutland lived
alone in 2014. This number is predicted to rise to 26,200 by 2030, an increase of 65%.8
In 2010 there was an estimated 30,000 people in East Leicestershire and Rutland over
the age of 65 with a limiting long-term illness. By 2030, this is predicted to increase to
around 45,500, an increase of 52%. The 2012 JSNA noted particular increases in
dementia (61% by 2025), and hypertension (17% by 2020).
This increased burden of disease could lead to increased hospital activity linked to age,
unless there is a change in the way care is delivered. Between 2008 and 2018, nonelective inpatients are estimated to increase by 18% across Leicestershire County and
Rutland, bed days by 26% and elective inpatients by 15%.

8

2012 JSNA refresh – ELR summary

39

158
Version 6

4.2.8 Dementia
In 2010 there were estimated to be around 4,200 people over 65 in East Leicestershire and
Rutland with dementia. By 2030, the number is estimated to more than double to around
8,510 people9. As advocated by the National Audit Office in their value for money report
2007, investment in improved and expanded dementia care management, incorporating
earlier diagnosis, is essential to increase the quality of lives for patients and carers,
the quality, effectiveness and experience of care, and to reduce both healthcare and
societal costs.

Our dementia prevalence figures for 2013/2014 are 0.65%, which is significantly
higher than the England average at 0.62%.
4.2.9 End-of-life care
National studies report that over half of people would prefer to die at home and only 11%
would prefer to die in hospital. In adults, those aged 75-84 years are most likely to die in
hospital with a greater proportion of those aged 85+ dying in nursing and residential homes.
The Royal College of General Practitioners (RCGP) and Royal College of Nursing (RCN)
‘Matters of Life and Death (August 2012) states:
•
•
•
•

About 1% of the population die each year with an estimated 17% increase from 2012
About 35% are home deaths (18% home, 17% care home); 54% die in hospital
60%-70% of people do not die where they choose
85% of deaths occur in people over 65 years

For ELR CCG 1% of the population dying each year equates to 3,207 people. In
Leicestershire and Rutland in 2010, 52% of deaths took place in hospital and only 23% at
home.
Currently for ELR CCG between April 2014 and November 2014 52.3% of deaths occurred
in an individual’s usual place of residence – which would include home, residential and
nursing homes.

9

JSNA 2012 refresh, ELR summary

40

159
Version 6

The National End of Life Pathway
Step 1
Discussions as
end of life
approaches
•

Open, honest
communication
Identifying triggers
for discussion

•

Step 2
Assessment, care
planning and
review
•

•

Agreed care plan
and regular review
of needs and
preferences
Assessing needs of
carers

Step 3

Step 4

Step 5

Coordination of
care

Delivery of high
quality services

Care in the last
days of life

•

•

•

•

•

Strategic
coordination
Coordination of
individual patient
care
Rapid response
services

•

•

High quality care
provision in all
settings
Hospitals,
community, care
homes, hospices,
community
hospitals, prisons,
secure hospitals
and hostels
Ambulance
services

•

•
•

Identification of the •
dying phase
Review of needs
and preferences
for place of death •
Support for both
patient and carer
Recognition of
wishes regarding •
resuscitation and
organ donation

Step 6
Care after death

Recognition that
end of life care
does not stop at
the point of death.
Timely verification
and certification of
death or referral to
coroner
Care and support
of carer and
family, including
emotional and
practical
bereavement
support

Support for carers and families

Information for patients and carers

Spiritual care services

The main aims of the end of life programme of care are to:
1. Improve the quality of end of life care for patients with both a cancer and non-cancer
diagnosis
2. Support care in the patient’s place of preference in the last phase of their life
3. Prevent unnecessary or inappropriate admissions for people at the end of life
particularly for those in the last few weeks of life
4. Ensure effective communication, information sharing and access to services for end
of life provided by other agencies
5. Ensure that our primary healthcare clinicians have an increased knowledge and
confidence to support and better manage people at the end of their life-helping
people to live well until they die
4.2.10 Longer lives
Launched in July 2013, Longer Lives is a major initiative of Public Health England that
displays premature mortality from all causes and from some of the most common causes
including cancer, heart disease and stroke, lung disease and liver disease.
The key findings for Leicestershire between 2010 and 2012, when compared with the
national average, are:
•
•
•
•

there were 5,270 premature deaths in Leicestershire;
the mortality rate for Leicestershire is 308 per 100,000 population;
Leicestershire ranks 31 out of 150 local authorities in England (1=best and
150=worst)
Leicestershire’s premature mortality rate is significantly lower than the England rate

Although Leicestershire is performing very well at a national level, Leicestershire is a
relatively affluent area that should be compared to areas that have a similar socioeconomic
profile (peer groups). Longer Lives also groups local authorities according to their index of
multiple deprivation. When compared to 14 areas of similar deprivation, Leicestershire ranks
41

160
Version 6
13th out of 15 for deprivation and 15th out of 15 for all-cause mortality.
The headline results for the four most common causes of premature mortality are
summarised in the Figure 8.0 below:
Longer Lives summary
Cause

All causes
Cancer
Heart disease and
stroke
Lung disease
Liver disease
Key:

Number of
premature
deaths

Death Rate per
100,000
population

5,270
2,322
1,211

308
136
71

429
258

26
15

Rank and
Significance
compared with
England
31 √
40 √
34 √

Rank and
Significance
compared with
peer group
15χ
14↓
14↓

27 √
11χout of 14)
32√
9χ(out of 14)
Figure 8.0 Longer Lives Summary

√ Significantly better than average
↑ Better than average
↓ Worse than average
χ Significantly worse than average

Rutland also performs very well compared with the national average, which is largely a
reflection of its relative affluence. The key findings for Rutland are:
•
•
•
•
•

between 2010 and 2012 there were 299 premature deaths in Rutland;
the mortality rate for Rutland is 279 per 100,000 population;
Rutland ranks 7 out of 150 local authorities in England (1=best and 150=worst)
Rutland’s premature mortality rate is significantly lower than the England rate
for all causes of mortality, Rutland ranks 5th out of 15 peer areas.

The key preventable risk factors that contribute to premature mortality from the common
causes are summarised in Figure 9.0 below:
Longer Lives - Common causes of ill health
Risk factor
Smoking
Alcohol
Obesity, poor diet and
physical activity
High blood pressure
Air pollution
Hepatitis

Cancer




Heart Disease and
Stroke


Lung
Disease


Liver
Disease








Figure 9.0 Longer Lives Common Causes

The priority actions that will contribute to improvements in premature mortality are reflected
in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies for Leicestershire and Rutland and the
operational priorities of ELR CCG. Please see Appendix 5 for a summary of the priority
actions to improve premature mortality from the four most common causes (cancer, heart
42

161
Version 6

disease and stroke, lung disease and liver disease).
4.2.11 Liver disease (NEW)
In Leicestershire, between 2010 and 2012, the average number of years of life lost in people
aged under 75 from liver disease is 26 per 10,000 persons, for Rutland the number is 11 per
10,000 persons.
Between 2001-03 and 2010-12, the average number of people per year who died with an
underlying cause of liver disease in Leicestershire County and Rutland , increased from 82
to 117.
The rate of alcohol specific hospital admissions in 2012/13 in Leicestershire County and
Rutland is significantly lower than the England average for males and significantly lower than
the England average for females.
Liver disease is largely preventable, with most liver disease being due to three main risk
factors: alcohol, obesity and viral hepatitis – improving education and awareness in these
areas is a key priority.
4.2.12 Integrated approach to prevention (NEW)
The planning guidance 2015/1610 challenges the NHS to get ‘serious about prevention’.
Spanning a range of activities throughout the life course, prevention provides the opportunity
to reduce demand rather than merely shift it from one part of the system to another.
Prevention also has the potential to reduce local inequalities in health and healthcare,
improve quality and outcomes for patients and generate financial savings. A generally
accepted definition of the ‘levels’ of prevention would be;
•

•

•

Primary prevention - preventing health or social care problems from developing in the
first place, for example through promoting healthy lifestyles and supporting
independence.
Secondary prevention – identifying people at risk and halting or slowing the
progression of emerging problems, for example through screening programmes and
early help.
Tertiary prevention – preventing established problems from becoming crises, for
example through effective case management and reablement support to live at
home.

To be most effective, ELR CCG will agree an integrated approach to prevention with Local
Authorities and other partners based on settings of care and service pathways (BCT plan).
Settings of care range from self-care, education and prevention through to acute hospital
based tertiary services. Service pathways are the eight service pathways which offer the
greatest transformational opportunity; each has been applied to the settings of care to
develop improvement interventions in the appropriate setting of care. Self-care, education
and prevention is an important care setting and will be a crucial element in planning the
service pathways.

10

The forward view into action: planning for 2015/16

43

162
Version 6

Throughout 2015/16 we will undertake the following specific actions as described in our
Better Care Together strategic plan;
Collaboration
• With local authorities, implementing the unified prevention schemes within the Better
Care Fund Plan and Better Care Strategy.
• Establishing an infrastructure for co-commissioning, including partnership boards that
involve local authority Public Health. The ambition for these partnerships will be on
the collaborative development and performance management of primary care,
including high quality prevention services and integrated care pathways.
• Through the Unified Prevention Board, joining up the review of prevention services
and co-producing an integrated Early Intervention and Prevention commissioning
strategy that is linked to the NHS Mandate, Better Care Together and Joint Health
and Wellbeing Strategy.
• Contributing to the refresh of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2015 and finding
other opportunities to co-ordinate the assessment of need and review of the evidence
of effectiveness and value for money.
• Developing GP information systems, including PRISM, to incorporate information,
advice and guidance and to facilitate access to prevention pathways.
• With local authority Public Health and NHS England, collaboratively commissioning
tiered pathways (e.g. weight management, physical activity and sexual health) from
prevention and early intervention through to recovery and rehabilitation.
Primary prevention
Opportunities to prevent health or social care problems come through the delivery of health
improving services, multi-agency work to address the wider determinants of health, universal
access to high quality information and advice, promoting healthy and active lifestyles and
early start services for children. ELR CCG will be particularly focussed on the following;
• Supporting staff through relevant health and wellbeing programmes, developed with
local authority Public Health and reflecting NICE guidance on physical and mental
health interventions.
• Developing the role of frontline staff to identify healthy lifestyle and other wellbeing
needs, deliver brief advice and refer for appropriate support. Executive support is
needed for a sustainable model that can bring about changes in culture and practice
across the health and social care system.
• Amplifying prevention messages delivered at local, regional and national level.
• Working with GP practices and local authority Public Health to grow the uptake and
scope of community-based prevention services, including drug shared care, smoking
cessation, alcohol risk reduction and diabetes prevention (Walking Away from
Diabetes).
• Collaborating with local authority Public Health to reduce smoking in pregnancy
through the co-ordinated efforts of midwifery and community smoking cessation
services.

44

163
Version 6

Secondary prevention
Early detection and intervention is essential for people at risk of long-term conditions or
specific events (such as strokes or falls) or those that have existing low level care needs.
• With local authorities, building community capacity and Local Area Co-ordination to
connect vulnerable people with community support and assets.
• Working with GP practices through new co-commissioning arrangements to improve
the detection and management of long-term conditions including CVD
• Implementing the unified prevention schemes within the Better Care Fund
programme and being actively involved in the Unified Prevention Board alongside
local authority public health and social care.
• Supporting NHS England to maintain good overall screening performance and
treatment outcomes and developing an early awareness project with local authority
Public Health to address the early diagnosis of symptomatic cancer.
• Working with local authority Public Health to increase the offer and uptake of NHS
Health Checks aimed at identifying cardio-vascular disease and risk of disease early.
A particular challenge is designing alternative models of risk assessment that target
those not attending or not registered, who may be at greatest risk of disease.
Tertiary prevention
Once health or social care needs are established, the focus is on preventing crises and
supporting recovery and rehabilitation following crises.
• Fully integrating prevention and social care elements into care plans, including in
primary care and at discharge from secondary care, in order to facilitate self-care,
independent living and discharge to home first.
• Working with local authorities to provide integrated, short-term support that is
designed to assist people to stay in their own homes and their community.
Quantifying Ambition
Current levels of ambition are set out in the performance frameworks of the Leicestershire
and Rutland Health and Wellbeing Board Partners including the ELR CCG operational plan
2014/15-2015/16, the corporate plans and BCF plans of Leicestershire County Council and
Rutland County Council.
Co-commissioning between ELR CCG and the Local Authorities will provide the framework
for agreeing further ambitions and actions to reduce inequalities and improve outcomes. The
infrastructure to support co-commissioning will include strategic development and
operational performance groups, both involving Local Authority public health.
Quantified levels of ambition
Our ambition is to ensure self-care and prevention are at the heart of our care system and
will enable;
• A good start – for everyone to have a good start in life
• Living well – for people to live well, making healthier choices and living healthier lives
• Coping well –that people cope well and have help and support people to improve
their own health and wellbeing, to be independent and reduce their need for
traditional health and social care services where we can.
We will achieve the following;
• 2% of high risk patients to have a care plan
45

164
Version 6
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

IAPT access rates of 20% in 2015/16
Increase in cancer diagnosed at stage 1 and 2
Increase in self-reporting of well being
Increase in the health related quality of life for older people
Increase in diagnosis rates for people with dementia and the implementation of an
integrated dementia pathway including carer support and falls prevention (£100k
BCF allocated)
Reduction in falls and injuries in people aged 65 and over
Increase take up of Health checks
Community agent and In Touch service (BCF allocated £200k)
Use of BCF allocation to deliver a joint commissioning approach to prevention
services

We will also develop plans to achieve our aspirational standards of;
• People have less reliance on residential and nursing care
• Increased use of assistive technology
• Increase in number of patients accessing lifestyle advice
4.3 Local health system performance (NEW)
During 2014/15 the CCG’s Finance and Performance Group monitored all performance
indicators on a monthly basis, and is responsible for assuring the governing body of
compliance. This in turn was assured by the NHS England’s Area Team at their checkpoint
meetings with the CCG.
Also during this year the CCG monitored the NHS Outcomes Framework, the NHS
Constitution and the new Quality Premium. The former is to drive local improvements in
quality and outcomes for patients and the Constitution to ensure that patients’ rights and
pledges were maintained through contracts with service providers. The Quality Premium
brings together a composite of indicators from the outcomes framework and constitution, and
incentivises the CCGs to improve performance.
During 2014/15, the Outcomes Framework covered 5 domains, and performance during the
year is reported in Appendix 3.
For 2014/15, the NHS Everyone Counts performance is reported in Figure 12.0 below
(position as at Nov 2014):
Potential Years of Life Lost (PYLL) = 1
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 1

Patient Experience, Friends and Family, GP Services = 3
Green = 1

Amber = 1

Grey/Blue = 2

Red = 0

Incidence of Healthcare Associated Infection = 2
Green = 2

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 0

Composite Measure of Emergency Indicators = 1

46

165
Version 6

Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 1

IAPT, Dementia and Mental Health CPA = 4
Green = 3

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 1

Long Term Conditions and Rehabilitation = 2
Green = 1

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 1

Red = 0

Referral to Treatment, Diagnostic, 52 week waits, Cancelled Ops = 6
Green = 3

Amber = 1

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 2

Cancer = 9
Green = 4

Amber = 4

Grey/Blue =

Red = 1

Ambulance Response Time and Handover = 5
Green = 0

Amber = 3

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 2

A&E and Trolley Waits = 2
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 2

Safety Incidents = 2
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 2

Red = 0

Local Priority – Deaths at Home = 1
Green = 1

Key:

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 0

Green = Achieved, Amber = At Risk, Red = Not Achieved
Grey or Blue = Where no Data is Available in 2014/15

Improving performance is a key priority for the CCG, and detailed below are the actions
being taken to improve the overall outcome position where outturn is predicated as “red”
The Quality Premium
The Quality Premium has been extended in 2014/15. It brings together the CCGs success
for certain elements of the outcomes framework and the constitution. It also builds on the
monitoring for 2014/2015 which is reported as follows in Figure 13.0 below:
Outcomes - Potential Years of Life Lost (PYLL) from Causes Amenable to Healthcare
– Indicator = 1
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 1

Red = 0

Outcomes – Improving Access to Psychological Therapies – Indicators = 1

47

166
Version 6

Green = 0

Amber = 1

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 0

Outcomes - Avoidable Admissions – Indicators = 1
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 1

Friends and Family Test = 1
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 1

Red = 0

Reporting of Medication Related Safety Incidents
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 1

Red = 0

Local Measure: End of Life
Green = 1

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 0

NHS Constitution – Referral to Treatment Incompletes
Green = 1

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 0

NHS Constitution – A&E 4 Hour Wait
Green = 0

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 1

NHS Constitution – Cancer 62 Day Waits
Green = 0

Amber = 1

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 0

NHS Constitution – Ambulance Response Time (Red 1)
Green = 0

Amber = 1

Grey/Blue = 0

Red = 0

Please see Appendix 4 for the Quality Premium Measures for 2014/15.
Appendix 6 provides an overview of the indicators and improvement areas that the CCGs
and contracts within the NHS are expected to monitor and provide assurance that services
are improving for patients.
Performance Planning 2015/16
Everyone Counts, Planning for Patients 2014/15 – 2018/19 was published in December
2013. It set out an ambition for high quality care together with details of the planning process
to achieve this ambition, including the development of five-year strategic plans and detailed
two-year operational plans by CCGs and NHS England’s direct commissioning teams for the
years 2014/15 – 2015/16.
Given this context of transition for 2015/16, the overarching objectives of the planning round
for 2015/16 will be to (i) refresh the second year of the existing two-year operational plans to
sustain and continue to improve NHS performance on existing Mandate priorities and (ii)
establish a foundation for longer term transformation, based on the Five Year Forward View.

48

167
Version 6

There are a number of indicators that require either national or local targets to be set. Please
see Appendix 2 for a summary of the key performance indicators.
For NHS Outcomes Framework for 2014/15 and 2015/16, outcome ambitions are set in
Figure 11.0 (Please see Appendix 3 for full set of outcomes and targets):
•
•
•
•
•

Domain 1 Preventing people from dying prematurely
Domain 2 Enhancing quality of life for people with long-term conditions
Domain 3 Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following injury
Domain 4 Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care
Domain 5 Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them
from harm

Working in partnership with Public Health, the CCG will develop and implement prevention
and early diagnosis of cancer initiatives in 2014/15. The initiatives will include extending GP
access to diagnostics for suspected cancer diagnosis and reviewing and implementing
cancer risk management tools to extend the 2 week wait referral. Early diagnosis and the
associated treatments will improve the one year survival rate and avoid deaths.

The CCG will also support the development of the East Midlands Strategic Clinical Network
(EMSCN) High Value Healthcare pathway for Upper GI Cancer. The pathway will improve
access to the best treatment and outcomes for Upper GI Cancer patients and improve the
patient experience. We will commission this pathway from 2015/16.
•

Methicillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) - All MRSA BSI cases in-line with
NHS England undergo a post infection review with all relevant stakeholders to
identify any learning and ensure actions are in place to reduce the risk of reoccurrence. This process was undertaken for the UHL assigned MRSA Blood Stream
Infection (BSI) case aligned to ELR CCG. Assurance that lesson learnt are shared
across UHL and embedded within the organisation is monitored through the contract
review process.

•

Clostridium Difficile (CDIFF) - During 2013/14 educational sessions with GP’s were
undertaken in protected learning time joint work with the medicine management
team. This has helped to improve prescribing of drugs that are known to predisposed patients to CDI-development. This will continue during 2014/15. A review
of local clinical guidelines has taken place relating to the management of CDI
patients in line with the guidance published in May 2013. Through the Locality
Update GP practices are provided with updates on current CDI position and
prescribing data. The GP Newsletter includes information on monthly CDI data,
prevention, treatment and guidance on the use of PPIs, sampling and dental abscess
treatment. All GP practices across ELR CCG have agreed to undertake a CDI/PPI
audit. The LLR Antimicrobial policy and guideline for primary care has been updated
to include prescribing for a wider range of more common infections. The CCG
infection prevention and control team continue to review all positive CDI cases
originating from GP practices

For NHS Constitution during 2014/15, the following performance measures continue to be
monitored (detailed in Appendix 6):

49

168
Version 6
•
•
•
•

referral to treatment times, and diagnostic waits
A&E waits & delayed transfers of care
cancer waits
ambulance response times

With the following support measures (detailed in Appendix 6):
•
•
•
•
•
•

mixed sex accommodation
cancelled operations
mental healthcare programme approach & improved access to psychological
therapies
52 week waiters
12 trolley waits
ambulance handovers

There are a number of targets that were set for 2015/16 as part of the planning round in
2014/15 and there are also a number of indicators where targets were refreshed or are new
for 2015/16. The table below summaries these indicators:

Nationally / Locally
Indicators

Proposed target & justification
set target

Local
Quality of life for
people with long
term conditions

national guidance
states a ‘significant
improvement’

EL&R score in 18/19 should reach the 12/13 level of
the ‘best’ CCG in Midlands & East – the ambition is to
achieve this in order to be more comparable to similar
CCGs in size and demographic.

Set in 2014/15

12/13 baseline 76.6
14/15 target 76.80
15/16 target 76.90

Avoidable
Emergency
Admissions (5
years)

Local

2015/16 and 16/17 is in line our plans to redesign
community services and BCF Plans - for the local
health economy this is deliverable and based on our
current baseline

Area Team recommend Based on a 12/13 baseline, apply the following
to reach 15% reduction reductions:
by 18/19
14/15 = 3%
Set in 2014/15
15/16 = 6%
16/17 = 9%
17/18 = 12%
18/19 = 15%
50

169
Version 6

12/13 baseline 1482.50
14/15 target 1438.0
15/16 target 1393.6
Local
Avoidable
Emergency
Admissions
(Quarterly 2014/15)

Area Team recommend Reduce 12/13 baseline by 6% for 15/16 target (as
to reach 15% reduction above) and equally over each quarter.
by 18/19
Set in 2014/15

Reduction in the
proportion of
people reporting
poor experience of
inpatient care

Local
UHL score, national
guidance states a
‘significant
improvement’
Set in 2014/15

Reduce score down to the ‘best’ 12/13 score across
Lincs & Leics by 18/19. Consistent across the 3 CCGs
as this will impact on one provider. – linked to Quality
Section
12/13 baseline: 163
15/16 target 157.8
18/19 target 124

National

E.D.1 – 15/16 Target: 446 (out of 500)

E.D.1 Satisfaction with
the quality of
consultation at the GP
Practice.

Primary Care
Experience NEW

Aggregated measure of
patients who gave
positive answers to five
selected questions in
the GP survey (score
out of 500) – Annual
Improvement

E.D.2 Satisfaction with
overall care received at E.D.2 – 15/16 Target: 86.8%
the Surgery – Annual
Improvement

E.D.3 satisfaction with
accessing primary care

51

170
Version 6

– Annual Improvement E.D.3 – 15/16 Target: 70%

National
IAPT Access
Updated

Target 15%
Local Target 16%

HSCIC data 2014/15 FOT 15.9% and target has been
set at 16% as a result of new data sources &
definitions
This demonstrates an improvement

52

171
Version 6

IAPT Recovery
Updated

National

13/14 baseline: 51.7%

Target 50%

14/15 target: 50%

Local Target 53%

15/16 target set locally at 53%
To sustain recovery at 53%

NEW
IAPT Waiting Times

National

Proportion of
Target 75% by Q4
people waiting 6
weeks or less from
referral to treatment
National
Proportion of
people waiting 18 Target 95% by Q4
weeks or less from
referral to treatment

14/15 performance as at Aug 14 – Oct 14 seen
within 6 weeks – 44%
15/16 Quarterly performance set in line with SDIP for
improving waiting times:
Q1 – 50%
Q2 – 54.9%
Q3 – 62.9
Q4 – 75%
14/15 performance as at Aug 14 – Oct 14 seen
within 18 weeks – 72%
15/16 Quarterly performance set in line with SDIP for
improving waiting times:
Q1 – 75%
Q2 – 79.9%
Q3 – 85%
Q4 – 95%

End of Life priority chosen as this is in line with our
transformation of primary care plans to improve EoL
care planning and supporting people to die in their
place of choice.

Local Priority
Measure

Local

TBC for 2015/16
Nationally

End of Life (Deaths at
home, nursing home
and residential home)

14/15 target: 49%

National

Current YTD position as at December 13 – 74

National Guidance
states: 97 C.Difficile
cases for 14/15

14/15 target: 97

C.Difficile

15/16 target: 50%

15/16 target: 78
To meet national requirements

Dementia diagnosis National
rate Updated
Target of 67%

2015/16 plan refreshed based on the revised
estimated dementia prevalence (65+ Only CFASII)
15/16 target: 66.71%

53

172
Version 6

A&E 4 Hour Wait
Updated

National
Target 95%

Trajectories have been set for 2015/16 with
achievement in Q1 of 95%

4.4 Finances in the Local NHS
The economic climate in which we operate remains a challenge for all NHS organisations.
Allocation growth has been modelled as 6.85% in 2015/16. We recognise the need for
service improvements to deliver better quality of patient care and experience in the longterm, whilst reducing clinical variation, eliminating waste and delivering better value for
money. We will achieve this through on-going recurrent investment, alongside investment of
our non-recurrent headroom fund into the delivery of longer term strategic priorities as part of
the Better Care Together programme, and through delivery of the CCG QIPP programmes.
The ELR CCG financial plan has been developed to ensure that the CCG:
•
•
•
•
•

is in the best possible position to implement the Health and social care Bill, primarily
supporting the development of effective CCGs
maintains a grip on its financial position during a period of development and
challenging financial climate, delivering its financial targets
uses risk pooling strategies to manage the differential financial position of CCGs and
ensures that financial duties are achieved
achieves recurrent financial balance over the next five years
supports provider reconfiguration.

Realistic and achievable financial plans are expected and we will have strong financial
governance procedures and processes in place, in particular:
•
•
•
•

standing financial instructions
internal and external audit reviews
focus on delivery and financial performance through the Governing Body structure
maintenance of a corporate risk register to identify risks to delivery of statutory
functions, including mitigating strategies.

54

173
Version 6

5. Quality, patient safety and experience (UPDATED)
5.1 Introduction
Quality, patient safety, clinical effectiveness and the experience of patients underpins the
delivery of health and social care services.
A number of recent high profile cases (Winterbourne View [DH, 2012], the Report of the Mid
Staffordshire NHS Public Enquiry by Robert Francis QC [2013], and the Saville Inquiry
[2013] have identified that vulnerable people were not afforded basic standards of care and
their fundamental rights to dignity were not respected. We must not allow this scale of poor
quality care and abuse to occur in the services we commission.
We recognise the need for service improvements to deliver better quality of patient care and
experience in the long-term, whilst reducing clinical variation, eliminating waste and
delivering better value for money.
We will achieve this through the development of short, medium and long-term investment in
delivering the work that supports our strategic priorities. This will include accompanying
QIPP programmes. Alongside this, through CCG contractual arrangements with providers
we will ensure effective quality indicators are in place which allow for a greater
understanding of the impact of health interventions on patients and the standard of services
commissioned.
During 2014 we have made considerable progress in ensuring that we have embedded
effective systems to ensure that ELR CCG is able to monitor, challenge and scrutinise
provider performance to ensure improvements in the quality of care commissioned. Some
examples of this are:
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•

The continued assessment of ‘patient experience dashboards’ for all of our out-ofcounty acute contracts.
Regular contacts through our respective Quality Contracting Teams with our
neighbouring CCGs to monitor the quality of care being provided by our Out of
County providers.
Continued work with our local Healthwatch organisations to act on intelligence
received about provider performance.
Development of Quality Schedules for Optometry, Pharmacy and General Practice
Community Based Services contracts. This will allow the CCG to assure itself of the
quality of care being provided by these services, and work with providers to improve
where necessary.
Understanding and scoping quality assurance systems within primary care
Agreeing systems with NHS England to establish closer links and share intelligence
of primary care quality risks including establishing systems of escalation where
necessary
Development of a Care Home Strategy group to ensure all teams within the CCG
whose work involves care homes is executed in a streamlined manner, to ensure
quality care is delivered and compliance is monitored effectively by maintaining an
overview of work streams to deliver a care home plan setting out aims, objectives,
metrics, leads and time scales
Systematic scrutiny and oversight of settings of care for people within inpatient
settings in Learning Disability services to ensure that safe and effective discharge
arrangements are in place

55

174
Version 6

However, the CCG is not complacent. We continue to review and refresh the data sets used
against the domains of the NHS Outcomes Framework and to ensure consistency and
validation of data sources. Alongside this we have embedded systems which allow for
feedback from service users using Healthwatch members and stakeholder events.
5.2 Patient experience
The CCG is committed to ensuring that the patient and service user voice is at the heart of
what ELR CCG does. Improving patient experience has been a key area of focus for ELR
CCG. During 2013/14 the CCG baselined the various elements of patient experience data
routinely collected. We have used this to identify key themes, trends and identify any
information gaps and take action as required.
The ‘patient experience dashboards’ have been developed for the ELR CCG main acute
provider as well as the local out of county providers where ELR residents may choose to
access hospital services, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust
Kettering General Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust
Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust
Nottingham University Hospital NHS Trust
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust
Peterborough and Stamford NHS Foundation Trust
University Hospitals Coventry and Warwickshire.

Nine indicators have been developed, incorporating publically available data and data
sourced by contracting team colleagues. Indicators include a selection of patient safety and
patient experience indicators to provide a high level overview of the quality of care being
provided at each Trust. The dashboards are reported to the ELR CCG Quality and
Governance Committee on a quarterly basis.
Patient Participation or Patient Reference Groups (PPGs/PRGs) are in place at the majority
of ELR CCG GP practices. The CCG engages regularly with them to strengthen the voice of
the patient within the work of the CCG and we facilitate regular meetings for the chairs of all
local groups. This continues to improve networking amongst the groups and provides
opportunities for meaningful engagement with, and feedback from, our patients.
The Chair of ELRCCG convenes a quarterly Patient and Public Engagement Group. The
group comprises attendees from local third sector organisations, PPG/PRG Chairs, and
members of Healthwatch. The group provides a sense check on CCG plans and supports
two way communication.
The “We are Listening” project has continued throughout the year. We have travelled to over
25 locations, speaking to almost 200 people with the ELR CCG branded listening booth.
The listening booth allows ELR CCG to speak to the public, patients and carers outside of
health locations; approaching people when they are feeling relaxed and have the time to talk
about their experiences of healthcare. The idea is to focus on how people feel and their
attitudes and opinions. The booth is designed to complement the data already available
through patient surveys and other large scale feedback mechanisms.
While using the booth, we collected positive and negative feedback from patients. We went
out to visits diverse groups including Sure Start centres, Learning Disability groups, market
56

175
Version 6

stalls and lunch clubs across all localities of the CCG area. The Listening Booth formed an
integral part of the Urgent Care Consultation, and by accessing a wide range of locations
with the listening booth, representatives of each of the nine protected characteristics were
able to participate in the consultation.
The feedback received via the listening booth, which relates to a wide range of providers,
has been broken down into themes and trends, with feedback also provided to providers of
services. This information has been used to influence changes in the way we commission
services, and also to influence improvements in the quality of care being provided, where
patients have highlighted issues.
In Rutland the We are Listening work took the form of a partnership project with Healthwatch
Rutland during 2013 and was supported by Rutland County Council to take the listening
booth to “hard to reach communities” within the county. This project had the backing of the
Community Development Foundation and was highlighted as a case study at a national
level. The project has also been highlighted as a best practice example of improving patient
experience by NHS England and the National Quality Board.
Patient stories have become an integral part of the ELR CCG public Board Meetings. We
use patient stories to drive changes and influence commissioning decisions through clinical
discussions in public governing body meetings. In the last year we have been able to
demonstrate meaningful changes arising out of the use of patient stories at Governing Body
meetings. Some highlights include:
•
•
•
•
•

Improvements to managing the risk of clostridium difficile infection
Input into the acute mental health pathway redesign
Focus on complex children’s care system,
The impact of fragmentation of pathways for patients who live on boarders
Continuing challenges around the cancer diagnosis/treatment pathway. The
feedback from governing body discussions following these patient stories will form
part of future commissioning decisions.

5.3 Quality and excellence
We continue to be committed to improving the quality of patient care, by a focus on clinical
effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience with specific goals to deliver excellent
health services and improve the quality of patient care.
Resistance to antibiotics is spreading, and now constitutes a major threat to the delivery of
safe and effective healthcare. AMR and antibiotic prescribing are inextricably linked; overuse
and incorrect use of antibiotics are major drivers of resistance. In 2015/16 the CCG will work
collaboratively with our providers to develop plans to improve antibiotic prescribing in
primary and secondary care. We will ensure that our secondary care providers validate their
antibiotic prescribing data following the Public Health England (PHE) validation protocol
through utilisation of the new national quality premium measure in 2015/16.
We routinely review data published by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to inform our
quality monitoring arrangements. Where providers have received action plans following
inspection visits we monitor progress against these through our quality contracting
processes. During 2015/16 we will be extending this to include CQC intelligence within our
quality data sets for Care Homes and primary GP practices.

57

176
Version 6

We have built positive relationships with our local CQC inspectors and have developed joint
meetings with Local Authority colleagues to ensure intelligence sharing around providers;
this supports our responsibility following the Francis Publication in 2013.

Figure 14.0 Quality and Excellence Model
This will be achieved by:
•
•
•
•
•
•

continuously improving the quality of care within providers, including acute, mental
health and community services using contractual processes as a lever
combining commissioning and provider data with patient safety data and carer
feedback, including complaints, reference groups and engagement events, to inform
areas requiring improvement and attention and to ensure on-going improvement
reducing variations in primary care for example; access to primary care services,
appropriate prescribing, equitable access to health checks for all patients including
hard to reach groups
extending patient choice of provider for a range of community and mental health
services through the use of local and national AQP processes
delivering efficiency by maximising use of community services through an integrated
care approach with health and social care, to provide a seamless service for patients
assuring delivery through collaboration with main providers ensuring ‘value for
money’ for all partners.

Our plans for 2015/16 include a review of all quality schedules and local CQUIN schemes to
ensure improvements areas have a greater focus. We await publication of the national
CQUINs for 15/16 and welcome the inclusion of acute kidney injury for 15/16 and a national
sepsis CQUIN. Having included a local sepsis CQUIN during 2014/15 we believe that there
are opportunities to strengthen and build on this current year’s successes.
5.4 Patient safety
During 2014/15 we have continued to focus our efforts on ensuring providers actively reduce
healthcare acquired infections such as Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA)
bacteraemia, Clostridium Difficile infection (CDiff) MSSA and E Coli. This is achieved

58

177
Version 6

through monitoring compliance with and achievement of nationally set trajectories for MRSA,
Blood Stream Infections (BSI) and CDiff and MRSA

In the last year the CCG has:
•
•
•

undertaken infection control review of patients in the community with a stool sample
reported as positive for CDI that was sent from a GP surgery or within 3 days of
admission to UHL,
addressing antimicrobial prescribing identified as not being in line with LLR antibiotic
guidance for primary care and audit of PPI prescribing
continuing to support the combination of infection control data with the data held by
the CCG Medicines Management Team in relation to QIPP and prescribing targets

This has identified key learning themes, which have been shared via locality meetings with
our membership.
We have continued to review existing programmes associate with patient safety themes,
including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

reviewing the findings of the Berwick review to reflect how Commissioners can
support behavioural change with regard to patient safety
ensuring robust investigations of all serious incidents from all providers are
undertaken and submitted in a timely manner
continuing with systematic reviews of all serious incidents to identify areas for
targeted work – across providers
improving incident reporting across primary care via GP concerns which are sent to
the Patient Safety Team in an effort to establish any themes and trends that may be
developing
working with providers to eliminate avoidable pressure ulcers and working in
partnership with the local authorities to eliminate avoidable pressure ulcers in care
homes by including a pressure ulcer CQUINs into Care Home contracts
reviewing the outcomes of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland learning lessons
review across primary and secondary care and identify key work-streams which will
improve pathways and outcomes for patients
reviewing locally set infection control indicators in line with DH set objectives to
improve infection control outcomes for patients.

5.5 The Berwick Review (NEW)
The publication of “A promise to learn - a commitment to act: Improving the Safety of
Patients in England” Berwick (2013) set out a number of commitments for clinicians,
managers and all staff of the NHS and for organisations leaders and Boards. These
commitments being:
o Listen to and involve patients and carers in every organisational process and
at every step in their care
o Monitor the quality and safety of care constantly, including variation within the
organisation
o Respond directly, openly faithfully and rapidly to safety alerts, early warning
systems and complain from staff. Welcome all of these.
o Embrace complete transparency
o Train and support all staff all of the time to improve processes of care
o Join multi-organisational collaborative – networks in which team can learn
from and teach each other
59

178
Version 6

o

use evidence based tools to ensure adequate staffing levels

During 2014/15 we ensured that mechanisms were in place via our contractual
arrangements with providers to respond to the Berwick recommendations. This has included
 reviewing and monitoring provider mechanisms to ensure that there are early
warning systems embedded in practice, evidenced by reviewing of nursing and
ward based safety metrics and actions in place where risks are identified.
 publication of staffing levels in line with “Hard Truths” and NICE staffing
guidance
 ensuring triangulation of patient experience data such as surveys, Friends and
family test, feedback from enquires and learning from complaints
 identification of areas focus through learning from patient safety incidents and
Serious Incidents
 triangulation of provider data with data from GP concerns to improve quality of
discharge summaries to GPs following and inpatient stay
Our contractual processes are only one way of ensuring that the cultural change needed to
ensure a reduction in harm and improve safety across health services. In August 2014
across LLR the health community published the “Learning Lessons to Improve Care”, a case
note audit review of care for people who died in 2012/13. ELRCCG is represented on the
Clinical Task Force convened to oversee the implementation of actions arising from the
review.
During quarter 3 of 2014/15 the East Midlands (EM) Patient Safety Collaborative was
convened. Early priorities are being agreed to shape the work plans for the coming year and
ELRCCG are supporting the development of this work plan through attendance and positive
contribution to the collaborative. Alongside this the Leicester Improvement Innovation and
Patient Safety Unit (LIPS), collaboration between University Hospitals of Leicester and
Leicester University has been set up during 2014. ELR CCG has been invited to join this
collaboration to develop local patient safety initiatives. Both of these collaborative have been
convened to address the cultural changes required following publication of the Berwick and
Francis reports.
The key safety priorities for 2015/16 will be:

1. a commitment to work with the East Midlands Patient Safety Collaborative
2. a commitment to work collaboratively with the Leicester Improvement Innovation and
Patient Safety Unit

3. Join the Sign up to Safety campaign
5.6 The Francis Inquiry
We welcomed the publication of the of the Francis Inquiry in February 2103 and actively
engaged across the CCG including Governing Body members, staff, member practices and
the practice nursing community.
We developed a comprehensive plan in response to the recommendations relevant to the
CCG, including those relating to organisational culture which were built into the CCG’s
Visions and Values.
This plan was approved by the Governing Body in May 2013 and shared with member
practices via the locality mechanisms. A series of CCG wide staff events took place during

60

179
Version 6

the autumn to ensure all staff had the opportunity to comment and input into the
development of our Vision and Values.
As previously mentioned one of the key outcomes associated with the Francis response has
been the development and implementation of an automated GP intelligence reporting
system. This enables real time reporting of GP concerns relating to patient safety and
experience in any provider organisation.
Contractual mechanisms continue with the strengthening of our approach to the monitoring
of quality in providers. This has included the revision of quality schedules to ensure they
reflect the Francis recommendations and a proactive approach to unannounced quality
visits. The new approach to quality visits continues to incorporate a multi professional desk
top review of various data sources to inform areas to visit, providers continue to welcome the
increased level of scrutiny and respond positively to this approach.
The thematic analysis of GP concerns has identified two specific work streams that have
commenced in 2014/15 these being; addressing quality of discharge letters from University
Hospitals of Leicester and scoping of quality and capacity within the district nursing services
provided by Leicestershire Partnership Trust across LLR
During 2014/15 the Managing Director and Chief Nurse and Quality Officer have been active
contributors to the Leicestershire Area Team Quality Surveillance Group. This group brings
together a range of organisations including; Public Health England, Local Authorities,
Healthwatch Leicestershire and Healthwatch Rutland, Health Education England, Trust
Development Agency, Care Quality Commission and partner CCGs. This is to ensure
intelligence sharing about providers in order to prevent a replication of the care failings that
occurred within Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust.
The recent publication of “Freedom to Speak Up” in February 2015, sets out 20 principles for
organisations within the NHS to adopt and embed to foster a change of culture which
ensures patients are placed at the heart of everything we do

Through 2015/16 we will:
• Use intelligence gathered from the variety of data streams to focus on continuing
quality and safety improvements
• Continue to work collaboratively across LLR to ensure the cultural changes
required to improve care for our population are embedded; through active
participation within the Clinical Task Group, EM Patient Safety Collaborative and
LIPS
• Further develop and embed systems to ensure that staff who raise concerns
regarding poor quality care are listened to and supported in a non-blame culture.

5.7 Winterbourne View
The CCG is committed to delivering against the Winterbourne View Concordat. This is to
transform the way services are commissioned and delivered to:
•
•
•

stop people being placed in hospital inappropriately
provide the right model of care and drive up the quality of care
that by 1 June 2014 there is a rapid reduction in hospital placements for this group of
people.
61

180
Version 6

During the summer of 2013/14 we completed with Leicestershire County Council and
Rutland County Council an initial stock take against the Winterbourne Concordat. More
recently a joint Learning Disabilities Programme Board with clear terms of reference,
governance structure and stakeholder reference group has been established. It includes
representation from ELR CCG, local authority, Local Area Team children’s and adults’
commissioners. This Programme Board will oversee the development and delivery of the
Winterbourne View action plan. The Board links back to the Health and Wellbeing Board via
an Integrated Commissioning Board that includes district council representation.
A stakeholder reference group has been established to support this work. This includes
families of children, young people and adults, commissioners and NHS providers. It is
planned to use this group as a longer term stakeholder/advisory group for the Winterbourne
View delivery plan. Additional members will be brought in as required. There will be a degree
of overlap with other local authorities and CCGs in the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
area, and particularly in relation to work with providers.
During 2014/ 15 we are systematically reviewing placements for patients within inpatient
settings commissioned by ELRCCG. In December 2014 the Chief Nurse and Quality Officer
chaired Care and Treatment Review panels for ELR commissioned placements to ensure
appropriate arrangements were in place for ensuring effective discharge when service users
are deemed medically fit to transfer to other settings

During 2015/16 ELRCCG will:
• as members of the Better Care Together ensure proactive contribution to the
Learning Disability work including completion of our self-assessment framework
with our LA and develop a robust implementation plan accordingly
• ensure strengthened mechanisms are in place to review discharge arrangements
for those service users in hospital inpatient settings to ensure safe and effective
transfers to out of hospital care

5.8 Compassion in practice nursing, midwifery and care staff - our vision and strategy
We have used the publication of Compassion in Practice: Nursing, Midwifery and Care Staff
Our Vision and Strategy (DH 2012) as a key enabler to the delivery of a long-term
sustainable high quality nursing and care staff workforce which support dignity in care
provision.
We introduced, through the inaugural Protected Learning Time event in June 2013, the
vision for practice nurses. This highlighted the practice nurse responsibility in relation to the
“Call to Action”. The so-called ‘6Cs’ are the values and behaviours behind the strategy compassion, courage, commitment, caring, competence and communication. During the last
year the Chief Nursing Officer for England has developed the ‘6Cs Live!’ website, which
aims to build an online community of nurses and care givers across health and social care.
We have been actively participating in a range of ‘6Cs Live!’ webinars that support delivery
of the six action areas:
•
•
•

Helping people to stay independent, maximising well-being and improving health
outcomes
Working with people to provide a positive experience of care
Delivering high quality care and measuring impact
62

181
Version 6
•
•
•

Building and strengthening leadership
Ensuring we have the right staff, with the right skills, in the right place
Supporting positive staff experience.

The Chief Nurse and Quality Officer has contributed to the work across the Leicestershire
and Lincolnshire Area Team to support implementation of the 6Cs action areas.
Our Protected Learning Time sessions across the CCG have supported the development of
a nursing forum for primary care nurses. The Practice Nurse Facilitator has supported
inductions programmes for new primary care nurses, commenced reviewing competencies
for clinical training programmes provided by the LLR GP Training Function (hosted by
ELRCCG) and is currently developing a primary care nursing forum.
During 2014/15 we have demonstrated that through inclusion within quality schedules there
has been a strong focus on staffing and skills mix within our acute and non-acute providers.
Through the use of “Safer staffing nursing” and “Birth right plus” staffing tools out acute
providers have assured their Trust Boards that they have reviewed staffing establishments
and published in line with “Hard Truths” monthly staffing data.
In 2015/16 we will:
• continue to work with our providers to ensure effective recruitment and retention
practices of and reduction in the use of agency staff continues
• Review and refresh our local plans to further develop the action areas within
Compassion in Practice
.
5.9 Staff satisfaction
Staff satisfaction is an important workforce measure of how content or satisfied employees
are with their jobs and is typically measured using a staff opinion survey which asks staff for
their views about topics such as: remuneration, workload and perceptions of management,
flexibility, resources and teamwork.
The NHS National Staff Survey measures a range of aspects of working life and enables
organisations to monitor how well they are doing against the pledges made to staff in the
NHS Constitution. It has been, and will continue to be, an enabler for NHS organisations to
listen to and act on the views of their staff. Perhaps more important is that evidence shows
there to be a clear relationship between staff and patient experience so improving the
working lives of staff also helps NHS organisations to provide better care for patients.
During 2014 the CCG did a number of things in response to the previous year’s survey
findings and to further build the level of staff satisfaction. Some examples include:
continuing to improve internal communication by holding regular staff briefings and the
fortnightly publication of an internal newsletter and holding regular charity events and
celebrations, e.g. the biggest coffee morning for Macmillan and a Diwali lunch.
For the second year, it was not compulsory for CCGs to undertake the National Survey,
however, given its importance and the information it provides, the CCG commissioned
Picker Institute Europe to provide the online survey and achieved an impressive 94%
response rate which was a 2% improvement on the previous year. The results of the survey
are shared with staff to produce departmental level action plans to address any areas of
concern.

63

182
Version 6

In this year’s survey, a comparison can be drawn between the CCG and the average of all
‘Picker’ CCG trusts on a total of 92 questions. The survey showed that the CCG is:
o
o
o

Significantly better than average on 8 questions;
Significantly worse than average on 0 questions;
The scores were average on 84 questions.

Some highlights from the results are:
• The majority of staff have had an annual appraisal which helped them improve how
they do their job and agree clear objectives;
• Communication with senior management is effective;
• Team members have a set of shared objectives;
• The majority of staff enjoy coming to work and are enthusiastic about their job;
• Staff believe there are frequent opportunities for them to show initiative in their roles;
• Three quarters of staff would recommend the CCG as a place to work;
• The number of alleged incidents of bullying and harassment from
managers/colleagues has significantly reduced and will remain an area of focus.
5.10 Safeguarding
The CCG continues to have a strong focus on safeguarding vulnerable people. We have
developed and adopted a range of policies which underpin how we approach safeguarding
arrangements. The Quality and Performance Committee of the Governing Body has
oversight and scrutiny of safeguarding arrangements for the CCG. The Chief Nurse and
Quality Officer is the Executive Lead for safeguarding and is a member of the Leicestershire
and Rutland Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) and Safeguarding Adult Board
(SAB). The CCG is supported in its statutory duties by Designated Nurses and a Designated
Doctor for safeguarding.
The CCG uses the Markers of Good Practice for Children and Safeguarding Adults
Framework which meets the requirements set out in Safeguarding Vulnerable people in the
reformed NHS - accountability and assurance framework published in March 2013 to assess
provider compliance against statutory safeguarding duties.
During 2013/14 the CCG focussed safeguarding activities in a number of ways, including:
•

Our Governing Body has held a development session to understand the implications
of the PREVENT and impact on vulnerable people.
• a Protected Learning Time event delivered to 130 practice administration staff
including safeguarding recognitions and alerts and PREVENT
• Monitored safeguarding training for GPs within the member practices - current
compliance is 96% for safeguarding children and 82% for safeguarding adults. (As of
1 January 2014).
• A generic in- box is in place to receive safeguarding alerts across all care homes,
data received is entered into the Care Home Data base and is used alongside further
gathered information to inform the CCG of any trends or issues that arise that can
then be escalated as required to ensure quality care and patient safety outcomes and
compliance
During 2014/15 the CCG along with NHS England Local Area Team and the two other
Leicester and Leicestershire CCGs, Commissioned a review of the Designated Function to
ensure capacity and capability of this function in supporting the CCG with delivering statutory
duties. This review has confirmed that the CCG has commissioned the appropriate level of

64

183
Version 6

Designated Doctor and Nurse time and we are reviewing local service levels agreements to
ensure that quality of the service provision for 2015/16.
There have been no serious case reviews commissioned by the Leicestershire and Rutland
Safeguarding Board for people within East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG area during
2014/15. However the GP Locality forums have adopted a standardised approach to brining
any issues relating to safeguarding issues on a monthly basis. In the last year we have
supported the partnership arrangements by contributing to the Child Sexual Exploitation
campaign and we have a local Practice Nurse supporting the work of the multiagency
subgroup within the LSCB.
During 2012/13 ELRCCG identified that Local Authorities were failing to notify health
partners when they placed a “Looked After Child” out of area. Following escalation of this
concern to the LSCB the Independent Chair of the LSCB has instigated a local process
which ensures all Directors of Children’s’ Services are reminded of their statutory duty with
regard to this omission. The Lead Member for Leicestershire County Council has since
raised this at a national level to improve practice across multi-professional agencies.
The CCG has completed and submitted to the LSCB and SAB a self-assessment against
Section 11 audit and the Safeguarding Adults Assurance Framework.
6. Commissioning priorities and intentions 2014/15 & 2015/16 (UPDATED)
6.1 Commissioning priorities 2014/15 & 2015/16
The aim of East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Groups commissioning
intentions is to provide an overview of our plans to ensure that we commission high quality
health care to the population of East Leicestershire and Rutland in 2014/15-2015/16 and
provides a synopsis of our longer term plans in line with our strategic visions, values and
goals as outlined in our Integrated Plan.
These plans build on the work undertaken over the last 3 years and demonstrate our ongoing commitment towards our Strategic vision and values.
It gives the opportunity for any of our current and potential new partner and providers to
understand how we intend to deliver healthcare locally in line with national policy and locally
agreed priorities.
The purpose of these draft commissioning intentions allows partner, providers and other
associated stakeholders to:
•
•
•
•

Understand the anticipated changes in pathways that East Leicestershire and
Rutland wish to commission over 2014/15 – 2015/16
Provide an overview of work that has been achieved in the last 12 months and how
that contributes to the long-term strategic vision of the organisation for 2014/15 and
beyond.
Highlight any potential changes to existing provider contracts, procurement
considerations and disinvestment opportunities.
Taking into account the key emerging themes as per the Five Year Forward View
and the NHS Planning Guidance 2015/16.

65

184
Version 6

The economic climate in which we operate remains a challenge for all NHS organisations.
We have assumed limited growth for the foreseeable future, and our commissioning
intentions are modelled primarily on this basis.
We recognise the need for service improvements to deliver better quality of patient care and
experience in the long-term, whilst reducing clinical variation, eliminating waste and
delivering better value for money. This we will achieve through investment into the delivery
of longer-term strategic priorities, and through delivery of our QIPP Quality, Innovation,
Prevention and Productivity) programmes.
The demographics of the population, along with existing health equalities, are a key
consideration when developing our commissioning intentions. The commissioning of local
NHS services involves the CCG working with CCG and local authority partners, public
health, providers, and local communities, to identify and understand patients’ needs and
design services to meet those needs. This is done by working within a structured and
planned process called the ‘commissioning cycle’. This process is continuous to ensure that
services are developed and improved based on provider performance, patient experience
and current local need. The commissioners of services lead the process for deciding how
best to provide services and for making this happen.
Commissioning Priorities
Strengthening integration – during 2014/15 we have been working closely with our Local
Authority, CCG partners and providers maximising opportunities to develop integrated
services across health and social care.
Over 15/16 we will be working closely with Leicestershire County Council and Rutland
County Council to implement the Better Care Fund Plans which outlines and details the
ambitions of the CCG to work jointly with their LA partners to plan commission health and
social care provision that delivers better outcomes for patients across the following 4 key
themes:
•
•
•
•

Unified Prevention - Self-Care, Education and Prevention
Integrated, proactive care for people with long-term conditions – long-term
conditions, community and social care services and transformed primary care
Integrated Urgent Response – Urgent Care, Crisis Response, Frail Older People
Hospital Discharge & Reablement – Acute hospital based services, reablement and
discharge, community and social care services

With the above in mind ELRCCG will be focussing on the following 2 key priorities to achieve
the vision set out in our Operational Plan.
Transforming Primary Care – the rising pressure on general practice is set to continue as
we have an ageing population living longer with increasing complex needs. The current
model of general practice is not sustainable. The recently published ‘Five Year Forward
View’ reiterates the need to move on from traditional forms of delivering care.
National evidence on alternative models recommend integration and delivering primary care
at scale in order to improve the quality of care to patients, improve access, improve

66

185
Version 6

opportunities for career structures and increase opportunity to deliver a wider range of
services.
Listening to its member practices, the CCG has drafted its Primary Care Operating
Framework which outlines its strategic objectives to transform primary care:
• Deliver people centred primary care
• Continual quality improvement
• Integrated, consistent wrap around care
• Actively shifting care closer to home
• Developing a primary care workforce to meet the challenges
• Deliver the LLR Better Care Together Strategy
•
Redesigning Community Health Services – in addition to transforming primary care we
have been working with GP leads, community services provider and LA partners to redesign
our community services. The Kings Fund evidence tells us that a service response that is fit
for the future requires reorientation away from acute and episodic care towards prevention,
self-care, more consistent standards of primary care, and care that is well co-ordinated and
integrated.
The long-term vision is for a fully integrated, co-ordinated model for health and social care,
delivering seven-day services, that puts people’s’ care needs at the centre. The aim is to
meet the needs of an increasing older population, particularly the frail and those with long
term conditions.
The overarching aim for delivery of care is ‘home first’ along with use of community based inpatient facilities where ‘home first’ is not possible.
Integrated services provided by multi-disciplinary teams of primary, community and social
care services will be ‘wrapped around’ the patient who is at the centre of care. There will be
increased emphasis on early intervention, harnessing the power of the wider community, the
independent and third sector and enabling patients to understand and manage their own
care. This will be aligned with reablement and promoting independence following illness.
Staff will deliver caring and compassionate care, without the constraint of professional
boundaries, supported by training and education to take on new roles to deliver integrated
health and social care. The use of new technology will be embraced to enable patients to
continue to live independently wherever possible.
Delivering an effective urgent care system – the care people receive in local emergency
departments and urgent care centres will remain one of the ‘yardsticks’ by which the NHS as
a whole will judged (NHS Five Year Forward View Oct 2014). Although quality and access
have been improving the continuing mounting pressures on our acute emergency
departments illustrates the need for transition to a sustainable model of care.
An effective urgent care system is important to ensure the delivery of a range of outcomes
including patient outcomes; patient experience; financial stability; and the ability to deliver
effective integrated pathways of care. Commissioners and providers are expected to work
together, through the local Urgent Care Board, to ensure the urgent care system is effective.
Aligning with the Better Care Together Plan we aim to modernise and integrate our urgent
and emergency care.
67

186
Version 6

Mental Health: mental illness is the single largest cause of disability in the UK and each
year about 1 in 4 people suffer from a mental health problem. Physical health and mental
health are closely linked. People with severe enduring mental illness die on average 15-20
years earlier than people who do not have a severe enduring mental illness. However only a
quarter of those with mental illness are in treatment and only 13% of the NHS budget goes
on such treatments. There is significant inequality when it comes to access to mental health
services and treatment.
Over the next 5 years we need to drive towards an equal response to mental and physical
health and towards the 2 being treated together. We want to work towards implementing
waiting standards across our mental health services. We have already made a start with this
by implementing and maintaining waiting standard for IAPT.
Over 2014/15 we have commissioned mental health strategies as a LLR health economy to
review our adult mental health services and we aim to work with our CCG partners,
providers and voluntary sector partners to implement the recommendations from the review.

6.2 Commissioning intentions for 2014/15 & 2015/16
Commissioning Intentions indicate to our current and potential new providers how, as a
commissioning body, we intend to shape the healthcare system that the population in East
Leicestershire & Rutland use. They also outline how we will respond to the publication of
changes to the national priorities for the NHS by the NHS England in the Planning
Framework 2014/15 -2018/19 and the recently published Five Year Forward View.
These commissioning intentions reflect the implementation of the LLR 5 Year Better Care
Together Strategy and the Leicestershire and Rutland Better Care Fund Plans.
The purpose of these commissioning intentions is to seek to inform providers and
stakeholders of:
•
•
•

The changes in services or pathways that ELRCCG wish to commission for 2015/16.
Work that the ELRCCG will undertake during 2015/16 prior to negotiating changes to
services in subsequent years.
Early consideration of any required or likely changes under current Planning
Framework and five year forward plan anticipating any further planning guidance due
to be published in early December 2014.

Our commissioning intentions can be separated in to three broad categories. Firstly those
that are specific to ELR CCG. These will relate to delivering our strategic aims and
facilitating a shift of care to the most appropriate setting, address identified health
inequalities, encourage integration of services will support the local achievement of QIPP as
well as any other merging local priorities.
Secondly there will be those that will be undertaken collaboratively across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland with the aim of reducing inappropriate use of emergency care,
implementation of redesigned planned care pathways and services for older people.

68

187
Version 6

Lastly, there will be those initiatives that will be undertaken in line national policy such as the
Planning Framework and five year forward view including any additional guidance that
comes down through from NHS England.
6.3 Draft priority commissioning intentions for 2014/15 & 2015/16
6.3.1 Transforming Primary Care (NEW)
1. Continue the work commenced in 14/15 to develop primary care capacity and
capability in early diagnosis and management of long term conditions – diabetes,
COPD, CVD. Further developing the primary care using the structured retrospective
peer case review focussed on the following long-term conditions – COPD and CVD
2. Effective use of care plans to deliver a proactive and integrated approach to
managing patients with complex health and social care needs - use of care plans to
support alternatives to hospital admission.
3. Evaluating the pilot for 7-day working which will inform the model of delivery in 15/16
4. Continue with the GP Framework approach to support the movement towards
primary care co-commissioning model of delivery
5. develop and implement prevention and early diagnosis for dementia, working in
partnership with public health
6. extend GP access to diagnostics for suspected cancer diagnosis
6.3.2

Community Services: (NEW)

7. Delivery and implementation of Better Care Fund Plans to redesign community
services to improve co-ordination of care and enable integration across health and
social care supporting step-up and step-down pathways.
8. Implementation of the integrated falls pathway
9. Develop and implement integrated reablement/rehabilitation pathways in order to
support people to return home and remain independent
10. Review current specialist services that support people with long-term conditions and
end of life in order to deliver a co-ordinated approach across acute and community
services
11. Review of Inpatient community beds

69

188
Version 6

12. develop integrated pathways and co-ordinated dementia services across the full
range of care settings to support those who have dementia and those that care for
someone with dementia
6.3.3 Planned Care:
13. Re-design pathways for 6 priority specialities as identified in the BCT Planned Care
Workstream
14. Scoping, development and implementation of alternative community based provision
15. Develop and implement effective clinical triage and pathway management using
systems such as PRISM and clinical triage hub
16. review and implement cancer risk management tools to extend two-week wait
referral.
6.3.4 Urgent & Emergency Care:
17. Implementation of integrated falls pathway across EMAS and ED
18. Reducing conveyance of complex patients with LTCs
19. Improving the use of alternative pathways to admission
20. Implementation of Learning Lessons to Improve Care Joint Action Plan
6.3.5 Mental Health & Learning Disabilities:
21. Improve acute mental health – with a focus on supporting early discharge, improving
crisis support and better management of patients within community settings for those
who are acutely unwell experiencing a mental health crisis
22. Work to deliver the wait times in IAPT services
23. Improve access to PIER and Liaison Psychiatry services
24. Deliver parity of esteem across mental health services including improving choice
6.3.6 Maternity, Children and Young People:
25. Review of elective paediatric pathways in order to deliver efficiencies

70

189
Version 6

26. CAMHS Tier 3 Review – address wait times
27. Review of current MH Crisis care for children and young people in line with the MH
Crisis Concordat
Impact on patients
Our commissioning intentions outlined above aim to improve healthcare delivery locally with
the overall objectives of:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

providing care closer to home greater access to services within primary care and
community
improved quality of care and reduced risk of clinical variation
improved patient experience
early detection and prevention
improved case management
greater access to robust services within the community facilitating patients to avoid
emergency admission to hospital and reduced lengths of stay.
empowerment of patients to better self-manage their illness and provide clear
pathways for management in the community
increased opportunity to be involved in decision around the design of local healthcare
service through improved stakeholder engagement and consultation
access to patient education to facilitate better self-management and awareness of
their condition.

Impact on providers
With the successful implementation of our commissioning intentions we envisage the
following impact on our providers:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

overall reduction in the number patients being admitted as an emergency
potential reductions in length of stay
adjustment to outpatient activity in line with reductions in hospital admissions
reduction in the level of planned activity in comparison to previous years
potential decommissioning or significant redesign of existing services as a result of
newly commissioned pathways
necessity to change the skill mix of staff delivering services, due to changes in
referral pathways, resulting in only the more complex patients being referred to
secondary care
increased need to work in a more integrated fashion across the health and social
care economy to support a number of initiatives.

7. Our Commissioning Plans for 2014/15 and 2015/16 (UPDATED)
This section outlines our plans that will enable us to deliver our commissioning intentions,
QIPP, Service developments and improvements and performance against the NHS
Constitution, NHS Mandate, NHS Outcomes Framework and Better Care Fund. Our plans
are fully aligned to and incorporate the guidance and ambitions set out in NHSE’s Forward
View and planning guidance as described in section 4.1.8

71

190
Version 6

The Better Care Fund is recognised as our key enabler to deliver system integration with our
partners and stakeholders and to help us deliver the objectives described in the
governments Forward View plan.
Our Commissioning Plan enables us to develop the platform that we need to deliver our 5
year LLR Strategic Plan. We have ensured that the plans are aligned with our CCG
Partners, Providers and Local Authorities so that a medium term direction for the models of
health and social care system that will need to apply in five years’ time across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland (the LLR ‘unit of planning’ footprint) and the steps needed to
realise that vision.
Integration of Commissioning for Value Toolkit within East Leicestershire and Rutland
CCG’s Commissioning Plans 2015/16
In October 2013, NHS England released guidance to support local commissioning decisions
via the Commissioning for Value Toolkit. The purpose of the resource was to help CCG’s
identify the best opportunities to increase value and improve outcomes. The toolkit’s aim
was to facilitate local discussions about prioritisation and utilisation of resources by
improving healthcare quality, patient outcomes and efficiency.

Value
Opportunities

Quality & Outcomes
Circulation Problems (CVD)
Cancer and Tumours
Mental Health Problems
Trauma & Injuries
Respiratory System Problems

NHS East Leicestershire
and Rutland CCG
Acute and Prescribing Spend
Circulation Problem (CVD)
Cancer and Tumours
Gastrointestinal
Neurological System Problems
Genitourinary

Spend and Quality Outcomes
Circulation Problems (CVD)
Cancer
Musculoskeletal System Problems
Trauma and Injuries

Taking into consideration the information provided ELR CCG has fed this in to the annual
prioritisation process as well as incorporating these in the formulation of the Better Care
Together 5 year strategy which is an LLR wide collaborative initiative focusing on
Cardiovascular Disease, Respiratory, Cancer, Mental Health and Dementia.
Our Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) schemes
The QIPP schemes for 2015/16 is predominantly focus around the Better Care Together
Strategy and relate to the following Key Workstreams
72

191
Version 6

•
•
•
•

Long term Conditions
Planned Care
Urgent Care
transformation of Mental Health and Learning Disability

In addition to this we have identified the following key CCG specific QIPP including QIPP
from our BCF Plans:
• Prescribing
• Primary Care transformation
• Running Costs Management
Each QIPP scheme in 2015/16 has a QIPP template completed which details scheme lead,
profiling, monitoring and quality risk assessment. The QIPP schemes that the CCG are
planning to implement in 2015/16 are shown below:

73

192
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

QIPP Priority
and brief
description

indicative areas of activity likely impact

Current worked
up annual
financial Impact
2015/16 £'000

type of data required to
inform baseline

CCG Specific
QIPP
Prescribing

Poly Pharmacy reviews - link to MDT approach in primary
care, LTC conditions pharmacist, scriptswitch
medicines management in care homes - reduction in
medicines waste, improving risk management, cost
management
medicines reconciliation - domiciliary medicines review,
discharge prescriptions reconciliation, improving
prescribing performance in general practice, proactive
medicines management in primary care
GP Support Framework - medicines optimisation

£1,000

CHC

Fast Track - implementation of revised process across all
health partners – re-define quality criteria and complete
review of all current fast track patients. Establishment of
review within 28 days for individuals who have a primary
health need
Implementation of revised end to end process for CHC standardisation of authorising eligibility and funding across
LLR - delivery against the national framework. Initial review
within 28 days from discharge to be implemented across all
CHC eligible patients. Data cleansing process on-going from
14/15. Reprocurement of end to end process.
Implementation of reablement pathway.
Personal Health Budgets - this is linked to end to end
process and the implementation of joint PHBs for eligible
patients leading to more choice and control
Help to Live at Home - joint review and reprocurement of
domiciliary care market with LA partners which will
restructure current provision of domiciliary care to establish
a sustainable and affordable model across the health and
social care system

£2,033

Running Costs

Removal of 14/15 running cost expenditure to bring 15/16
expenditure in line with reduced Running Cost allocation

GP
Operational
Framework

Delivery of patient streams at scale - urgent and noncomplex, routine and planned, urgent complex and complex
pro-active management
Implementation of Peer Review
Urgent Care Centres
Improve access

Poly Pharmacy Impact
Care Homes Medicines
Management Impact
Medicines Reconciliation

£321
£1,000

74

193
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Care
Management
Plans in Care
Homes

Improving end of life care management in care homes delivery of advanced care plans
Implementation of proactive management of patients with
UTIs and Cellulitis in care homes and nursing homes
reducing conveyance from care homes

£197

HRG level data non
elective admissions
related to UTI, Cellulitis,
EoL

Ashby
Hospital Bed
Closure

Delivery of left shift and redesign of community based
services

£25

LPT

COPD

Improving primary care management of COPD - increasing
prevalence, delivery of COPD programme - delivery of 5%
reduction in emergency admissions related to COPD.

£53

HRG level data non elective
admissions all ages - COPD

CVD

Implementation of anticoagulation pathway for AF
patients - effective coagulation of patients will reduce the
number of strokes - 5% reduction in emergency stroke
admissions. This is the second phase of implementation of
CVD programme commenced in ELRCCG during 2014/15

£86

HRG level data non
elective admissions
related to Stroke

Long Term
Conditions

COPD - Integrated COPD model for pulmonary Rehab improving self-care management through telehealth,
specialist oxygen review and prescription services
CVD - Implementation of exercise medicine, remote
monitoring of cardiac devices, implementation of homebased administration of intravenous diuretics to heart
failure patients, evidence based cardiovascular disease
screening and treatment, NICE hypertension guidelines
Cancer - Implementation of stratified cancer pathway

£320

Planned Care

10% reduction in new outpatient referrals - utilisation of
PRISM across primary care - Q1 and Q2 across 6 specialties,
Q3 &Q4 further 6 specialties
pathway redesign across 6 specialties (same as above)
which will lead to movement of activity to community
based settings - this represents 40% of the planned saving
to the CCG.
reduction in follow-up outpatient appointments implementation of revised consultant to consultant referral
policy, implementation of open access follow ups and
virtual follow ups - this represents 15% of the planned
saving

£960

Better Care
Together QIPP

75

194
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Mental Health

Learning
Disability

Reduction in out of county placements - implementation of
revised crisis and home treatment pathway including the
delivery of enhanced support during crisis

Reduction in CHC spend in LD - redesign of short breaks
provision and re-specification of current packages of care
will deliver a 5% reduction in spend

£835

£130

Better Care
Fund
Integrated
Crisis
response

Integrated response across health and social care to
people in crisis - provision of effective short term support
at the point of crisis that maintains a person in their own
home. Adult social care support implemented initially to
align with existing nursing intemediate care which has
demonstrated upto 10 avoided admissions a week.
Overnight Nursing assessment and intervention commenced in September 2014 and is projected as the
pathway becomes fully optimised to contribute a further 10
avoided admissions per week.

rapid
Assessment
for frail older
people

Community based rapid access to diagnostics, assessment
and treatment for frail older people - usually these types of
patients are referred to acute care settings in order to
evaluate their condition this pathway enables these
patients to be supported in a community based setting. the
service commenced in October 2014 with a phased
implementation plan - service to be fully operational by
April 2015.

Primary Care 7
day services
pilot

pilot of 7-day access across one locality in ELRCCG (60,000
patients)- an MDT approach to provide access to patients
who have been identified through risk stratification to have
extended access to primary care 7 days a week in order to
prevent unnecessary admissions to hospital through:
• Utilising community facilities – e.g. Care Homes
• Home–visiting – review this work across the area and see
where other services, such as the out of hours service,
could support it.
• Developing an area wide approach to dealing with
patients over 75 years during out of hours, to prevent
unnecessary admission to hospitals.
o enhance the use of current facilities and put in place plans
to ensure expanding populations are manageable within
primary care facilities
o provide more diagnostics in primary care to reduce
referrals for diagnostic purposes.

£713

76

195
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Integrated
Falls Pathway

Integrated, seamless pathway across all settings of care
for people who are at risk of a fall or have experience one
or more falls - increased capacity in SPA to receive direct
referrals from EMAS. Traninf of EMAS crews to utilise
alternative pathways to admission. ti improve nonconveyance by 20% - resulting in the approximate reduction
of 338 admissions per annum.

Integrated
community
based services

Integrated health and social care pathways (Rutland) whole system response to ensure a fully co-ordinated and
integrated service offer.
Develop and Implement pathways, protocols and possibly
colocation of health and social care teams to allow the
health and social care economy to fully realise its vision of
integrated care.
By bringing our resources together, to have an integrated
pathway of home based support which can enable people
to live more independently within their own homes.

Other
Total

£7,673

77

196
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
7.1 Primary Care

The CCG’s existing primary care strategy is designed to build on the high quality healthcare
provided by General Practice and to fund continued improvement in quality and outcomes
for our patients. The CCG believes that working in collaboration with our providers, partner
organisations and members will enable us to exceed the national expectations of high quality
outcome focused health care and deliver the key priorities set out in our constitution to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Support people to live independently for longer
Improve outcomes for people living with Long Term Conditions
Improve quality of life
Reduce Inequalities in access to healthcare
Reduce utilisation of the acute sector through integrated community services
Listen to Patients and the Public
Live within our means

The long term plan is to redesign services and integrate health and social care and increase
investment in new community service model, but General Practice is pivotal to its success.
The role of the CCG and the aim of co-commissioning is to focus on general practice to act
as an enabler to facilitate the changes needed both for improved patient outcomes and new
ways of working. In reality, this means that there is a need to reconsider traditional ways of
delivering health care and redevelop how the following services / people interact:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

GPs or groups of GPs
Specialists
District Nursing / Intermediate Care Team
Health and Social care co-ordinators / Social Care / Crisis Response teams
Community / Virtual beds
Mental Health Services
Voluntary Sector

The desired outcome is, therefore, an integrated service putting the patient in the middle with
shared planning and management by professionals who work together not just within their
organisations, with a deliberate plan communicated, shared and developed for and by the
patient, creating wrap around care.
The challenges facing our general practices are not going to go away but through
collaboration and transformation primary care can make a difference to meet these
demands.

Demographic pressure
More people will be living in ELR in future: the current population is living longer, birth rates
have been some of the highest for forty years and housing plans show expansion.
The pressure of health needs
The population is ageing, the prevalence of chronic disease is predicted to continue to rise,
obesity is creating more health problems amongst the younger (and usually healthier)
population and common mental health conditions such as depression are increasing.

78

197
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Funding pressures
The local health economy is facing a predicted deficit of nearly £400m within the next five
years and thus we will be operating within a continued financially challenging environment.
More workload shift to GPs
The local health economy has to show how it will reduce the predicted £400m deficit. This
means we must prevent more patients needing hospital admission and shift more patient
care out of the relatively expensive acute hospital setting and into community settings. This
has implications for future GP workload.
Recruitment, retention and retirement pressures
There is evidence from the national GP Taskforce that the GP workforce is shrinking and a
national shortage of GPs is increasingly apparent with recruitment and retention problems.
Premises pressures
Some practices are still significantly constrained by the size, age and location of their
premises and NHS England has frozen budgets for premises development.
Community and social care services pressures
Local authorities and community service providers are facing significant funding cuts over
the foreseeable future. All this points to a “perfect storm” for GPs with workload increasing
and the availability of every tool to cope with it (funding, workforce, premises) decreasing. If
general practices do nothing different some may collapse which will also create increased
pressure on the others. If we can now put together sustainable solutions for all we may
prevent a crisis in primary care and save the most important features of general practice for
the future.
What do we want to achieve?
We want solutions that work for the longer term for all our general practices, preserve the
most important features of general practice and help more efficient ways of working to make
best use of scarce skills and other resources. We want our local general practices to grow
provide a greater range of services to patients.
How might we do this?
The best way to do this is for practices to lead the way, finding the solutions and the pace of
change that works best
There are different options available but most involve working with other practices to share
services across a larger population.
Possible options
-

-

Informal joint working with other local practices For example: sharing training of
GPs; sharing skills of nurses; joint learning of systems and processes; care home
cover (one practice one home); templates; joint PLT/learning events.
More formal joint working with other practices in each area For example: Share
back office functions; share some planned services (eg minor surgery, sexual
health); employ wider support team (eg pharmacist); hold joint clinics and/or
education sessions for patients with long term conditions; create joint visiting service;
create joint walk-in clinics

79

198
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
7.1.1 Primary Care Operational Plan 2015/16 to 2016/17 (NEW)
The vision for primary care is for general practices to work together to provide services at a
greater scale across a local area, bringing more specialists and wider primary care
professionals together, in order to provide better integrated care particularly for those
patients with complex needs.
• General practice will be fully integrated, proactive, coordinated and sustainable; with a
model of service provision delivering seven day services ‘wrapped around’ each patient.
• Continuity of care will be offered by a named GP for Patients with complex LTC’s with a
target of a named doctor for 2% of these (please also refer to section 7.3 –LTC- for more
detail on the role primary care will play in LTC services)
• Patients without complex needs will receive care delivered by practices working together
to meet their needs as quickly and as locally as possible.
We will continue with a patient and practice ‘bottom up’ approach to design a future model of
care.
The CCG plans to better integrate care by commissioning community based services at a
population level of 25,000 – 45,000. Evidence suggests more benefits for patients if this is
done through general practices and retaining many of the important features they offer. Our
local community services “hubs” are already working at this level and this will help general
practices work far more closely with these community services, social care etc.
First steps
The first step for practices is to consider options and decide how you want to move forward.
The CCG will provide support to practices once the decision to work with others and to
provide services at a greater “scale” (ie to a population of 25,000 – 45,000) is made.
A new opportunity
The CCG will offer a new opportunity for all general practices once they are ready to offer
services at greater “scale”. This opportunity will be a new contract, over and above practices’
core GMS/PMS/APMS contracts. It will be a contract for Community Based Services. The
CCG hopes to achieve significant benefits from commissioning these services from general
practices working at scale.
Funding
This primary care operating framework is part of the CCG’s response to the Better Care
Together plan across LLR. The LLR health economy is requesting national investment for
major structural changes to our health services. ELR CCG is seeking significant funding to
invest in primary care to help achieve the changes described in this primary care operating
framework.
Views and information provided by local general practices
All practices were invited to complete a survey and we had an impressive 97% response
rate.
The biggest reported challenges for practices at present are the demands of patients and the
level of funding to provide services. Patient access and the demands of the system are also
ranked highly. Analysis of individual practice results shows that some practices ranked
premises and workforce/skill mix as the top priority but as these were not issues for quite
large numbers of practices they did not feature highly overall.
Generally practices ranked developing urgent care hubs allied to community and primary
care and the full integration of health and social care support most highly and gave
significant support to adapting clinical models, CCG co-commissioning of primary care and
80

199
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
the development of federated alliances of practices. Common themes are shown in the table
below:

1. People centred
primary care

2. Continual quality
improvement

• Responds to specific and
diverse needs of patients and
families including inequalities
in health
• Offers continuity of care
• Implements predictive models
for proactive, effective, health
risk management and
reduction systems

• Systematically reviews, learns
and implements change to
deliver high quality clinical
care and organisational
systems safely
• Promotes and supports
innovative ways of improving
care

4. Primary care
professionals equipped
to meet the challenges
• Has the skills, motivation and
capacity to lead and deliver
the strategic objectives
• Works through a
multidisciplinary team
approach with other local
services to make best use of
scarce skills

5. Deliver the Better
Care Together strategy
• Responds to rising and
changing health needs
• Aligns financial resource to
enable change

3. Integrated,
consistent, wraparound care
• Leads/co-ordinates care
delivery at scale and across
organisational boundaries
including other primary,
community, social and acute
services

6. Actively shift care
closer to home
• Delivers a greater share of care
pathways where clinically
appropriate and financially
viable
• Supports patient self-care
including through better use of
technology

7

Proposed operational plan – Emerging Model
The primary care operational plan needs to help primary care be at the fore of the changes
required to achieve our strategic aims. The use of recurrent funding needs to be enhanced
with non-recurrent monies to help general practice to come together with new systems of
joint working to enable primary healthcare teams to have more time to proactively manage
patients with multiple illnesses, at the end of their lives, in care homes or at risk of
admission. It is these system changes that will enable integrated working with community
services and social care, by releasing time for a more co-ordinated approach to patient care.

81

200
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

Possible model for streaming of practice patients with support services
Stream patients according to need and level of proactivity required
Patient streams that could be delivered “at scale”

Urgent
Non
Complex:
GP Continuity
not needed
Walk in
nurse-led
with duty
doctor
support

Routine
and
planned:
GP Continuity
not needed
EG sexual
health, minor
surgery, long
term
condition
group work

Visits:
By practice or
group all day
(not just
lunch time)
and more
immediate,
especially for
complex
patients

Urgent
Complex:

Seven day
service
(weekends)

Complex:

Proactive case managed with
multidisciplinary team
GP continuity necessary, a list of
approximately 400 patients per
GP
Complex: eg frail older people,
end of life, multiple long term
conditions

External CRISIS
intervention

Day to day
model

ANCILLIARY SUPPORT SERVICES – Could be employed by practices individually or as a group
EG Physiotherapist, pharmacist, community matron, district nurse team

SUPPORT SERVICES “AT SCALE” – Commissioned to support complex exacerbations
A single pathway through health and social care
EG Virtual beds, 72 hour crisis response, intermediate care, specialist nurse/doctor (eg geriatrician)

The purpose of this primary care operating framework is to enable benefits to be delivered
for patients, for general practices and for the wider health and social care system.
The key priority is to build a solid and sustainable foundation of primary care from which
integrated care can be provided to an increasingly complex mix of patients.
The CCG will encourage practices to develop a well-staffed and integrated model to “stream”
patients and therefore deliver patient outcomes which result in less need for people to be
admitted to hospital.
Some examples of areas in which possible performance measures could be developed are
included in the tables below. These would need extensive discussion with local GPs and
other key stakeholders and considerable further development before being offered in a
contractual form.

82

201
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

7.1.2

Model for 2015/16 Transitional Year (NEW)

Any change cannot be made in isolation. Changes made need to complement the NHS
England primary care strategy, use of the Better care Fund monies, the move to community
service hubs, the national move towards ‘federating’ primary care, the expansion of urgent
care services in community settings, the Better Care Together programme.

Along with these, to gain the most from primary care investment, the CCG needs to act as
an enabler by focussing on the philosophy of:
•
•
•
•
•

patient outcomes first, not schemes focussing on inputs
only measure what we need to show improved quality and outcomes
reduce unnecessary work to enable more clinical time with patients
focus on whole-system return on investment, not individual schemes
support closer working relationships between practices to release clinical time for
patient care.

The focus will be on the following areas to maximise the benefits for the most vulnerable
patients:
•
•
•
•

•
•

proactive care planning for all patients at the end of their lives - this would amount to
approximately 1% of our population, and as a result increase the number of patients
who die in their place of choice
proactively work with care homes to improve patient care and reduce unnecessary
unplanned admissions
combine care for patients with multiple long-term conditions through advanced
planning and multi-disciplinary teams (MDT) working to reduce workload and patient
visits to practice
use of the medicines management team to work on a review of patients relying on
multiple medications, medicines reconciliation (i.e., the process of identifying the
most accurate list of all medications that a patient is taking), and proactive patient
management, as well as improving the quality of prescribing
focus on the systems and processes of our healthcare providers to improve the
transition towards a primary care model
a programme of support, advice and education to help GP practices to work closely
together.

What will the impact be?
There will be a number of qualitative and quantitative indicators and the outcomes will be
measured on a monthly basis to track progress.
•
•
•

•

Increase in practice palliative care register
Increase in Anticipatory Care Management Plans up to 2% of practice population
Increase in number of after death audits completed, the number of patients who have
died and have a care plan and the number of patients who have died and in their place
of choice as indicated in the care plan.
Care Home Emergency Admission Review

83

202
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
•
•
•
•
•

Number of repatriated patients with a HbA1c above 8% on less than 3 therapies with a
care plan in place and who are maintained/improved at a 6 month audit
Case finding - Practices to screen 1% of population using criteria
Increase in practice prevalence for COPD or maintenance of predicted prevalence rate
of 3.1%
Number of AF patients with a CHADS2 Score of >1 who are currently treated with Anticoagulation therapy unless exempt as clinically inappropriate.
Number of AF patients with a CHADS2 Score of 1 who are currently treated with Anticoagulation therapy OR anti-platelet therapy unless clinically inappropriate.
7.1.3 Transforming Primary Care - Co Commissioning of Primary Care Services 201516 (NEW)

East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group has welcomed the
opportunity to express our interest in assuming responsibility for co-commissioning of
integrated care services across the spectrum of health and social care to improve patient
outcomes for our local population.
The ability to build on our significant track record of clinical leadership, engagement and
pathway redesign, with General Practice at the centre, will enable us to progress innovative
approaches to models of commissioning pathways of care.
The CCG is expressing an interest to take the greatest level of responsibility available for the
co-commissioning of all primary medical services; however, we understand success will be
secure through effective collaboration across health, social care and in partnership with
patients, carers and the public.
We believe that the transfer of these services needs to be phased with planning and shadow
running prior to assuming full delegation in 2016/17. This will enable the greatest opportunity
for a smooth handover complemented by the right level of engagement and involvement of
all stakeholders.
The CCG governing body and the vast majority of our members and stakeholders who have
expressed an opinion on co-commissioning, support the prospect of taking wider
responsibility for commissioning services
Intended Benefits of Co Commissioning
The LLR health and social care economy has developed a joint strategic plan for 2014 – 19,
which sets out a shared vision to reform health and care services, providing suitable,
affordable and sustainable solutions that will improve outcomes for the citizens of LLR. We
will do this by developing more integrated services along with increasing quality and
efficiency by using the best evidence in class.
This emerging LLR 5 year strategy is readily aligned to Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland’s current 3 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies and Better Care Fund (BCF)
plans, with an emphasis across the system on reducing avoidable admission to hospital,
redesign of alternative pathways and prevention outside of hospital settings. Proposals for
co-commissioning are included as a core tenet of our plans to achieve the LLR priority
objectives and national ambitions identified in Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients
2014/15-2018/19, NHS England 2013.

84

203
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
In support of this Strategic Plan, ELR CCG’s Operational Plan 2014-16 details the key
priorities for the next two years and our intentions to further develop partnership and
collaborative working with our local authority partners, neighbouring CCGs and stakeholders
in order to deliver the system redesign that is needed to address our local challenges and
issues. The key priorities include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Driving further integration of health and social care provision
To transform care that is strong, sustainable and person centred which enables the
health and social care system to meet the future demands;
Improving services to deliver better quality care and patient experience whilst reducing
clinical variation, eliminating waste and delivering better value for money
Continuing to focus on the quality of care in our main providers of acute, mental health
and community services.
Continually improving quality of primary medical care services
Reshaping community services to deliver locally based provision that enables patients to
remain independent for as long as possible and have a better quality of life;
Reducing pressure within our urgent care system to prevent avoidable admissions and
reduce length of stay for patients who could be cared for at home;
Supporting general practice to come together with new ways of joint working to enable
primary care health teams to have more time to proactively manage patients with
multiple illnesses, at the end of life, in care homes or at risk of admission;
Continuing to recognise children and their families as an important priority for the CCG;
Working with our mental health providers, clinicians and service users to improve our
acute mental health pathway.

Health inequalities
The population of ELR CCG as a whole has relatively low levels of material deprivation,
compared to other parts of England. In comparing the various areas where our population
lives against the rest of England, ELR CCG ranks overall as 200 out of 212 CCGs for
deprivation (where 1 is the most deprived). However, the CCG has developed its equality
objectives for 2013 – 2015 to enhance emphasis and attention on the priority equality issues
across the CCG focusing on the outcomes to be achieved and improvements required in
policy making, service/function change, service delivery and employment. The cocommissioning of general practice by the CCG has the potential to do the same for
integration with Local Authority Public Health and to progress the Better Care Together
ambition to transform primary care.
The CCG already has a productive relationship with the specialist Public Health team for
Leicestershire and Rutland. For example, the CCG commissions community services
(including CCG mental health and PH substance misuse) from Leicestershire Partnership
Trust collaboratively with PH and actively involves PH in its governance structure, including
the Governing Body. Co-commissioning provides further opportunities to align approaches to
primary and secondary prevention, diagnosis, early intervention and the subsequent
treatment and management of disease across pathways of care, e.g. mental health,
dementia or cancer.
Enabling strategies of Co Commissioning
Local flexibility
A level of integration would enable practices to direct resources most clearly to, for example,
those frail elderly patients least suited to receiving health care through unplanned
admissions. Integration would ensure that there is an end to the fragmented approach when
85

204
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
responding to subtle differences in national frameworks (QOF, DES, even NICE guidance).
Locally derived and directed initiatives could be developed to reflect local health needs
where these are different to the national picture.
Premises
This model may require fewer larger GP partnerships, providing at scale specialist,
community and diagnostic ambulatory services. The CCG will explore, with local partners,
new and innovative methods of investment through public and private routes.
Timescales
In order to ensure that this process has a smooth transition of contracts, staffing and
funding, ELR CCG is planning a phased approach, as set out in the diagram below.
Governance - Conflicts of interest
As a statutory body, ELR CCG already produces clear and transparent plans on our
governance, delivery and strategic direction and this would not change with an expanded
role into primary care. The strong oversight role that lay members already play in CCGs,
working across the system with Health and Wellbeing boards and NHS England Area
Teams, as well as others, means that any perceived conflicts of interests within CCGs can
be managed and the public can be reassured that primary care decisions are being made in
the best interests of the patient
The CCG aims to continue to review current arrangements on a regular basis to ensure they
remain robust so that the integrity of the decision-making is not compromised and that they
continue to adhere to the Nolan Principles; and that processes are in line with any national
and local changes.

7.1.4 Primary Care Quality
ELR CCG has a robust, clinically focused and proactive approach to driving up quality
across all of our providers. This stems from the leadership shown by the clinical champions
on the governing body and manifests itself through unannounced provider quality visits,
formal review through the contract squares and investigation of serious incidents. ELR CCG
already takes on an enhanced role in monitoring the quality of care delivered to our patients
by General Practice. There is a dashboard in place and annual quality visits that gives an
opportunity to demonstrate the quality of care our practices deliver in the areas that have
been identified as being most relevant to our patients’ health needs.
ELR CCG will need to increasingly demonstrate that General Practice is delivering high
quality, outcome focussed care. This will form a major part of providing the level of
assurance required to understand whether practices have the capacity in their current form
to deliver this level of care in a sustainable way.
The CCG already has a process for monitoring quality through a formal committee of the
governing body and has an agreed process for sharing information, escalating and joint
monitoring of practice quality through the Concordat between LLR CCGs and NHS England
(Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Area) for the Sharing of Information and the Management of
Concerns relating to the Professional and Contractual Performance of Primary Medical
Practitioners.

86

205
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Quality monitoring of Primary Medical Services
To ensure a robust and quality assured process for ensuring continuous improvement, the
CCG will further develop the following areas:
Quality Dashboard
Based on our existing practice profile an improved dashboard of information will be produced
including local quality markers, national indices, reports from patient representative groups
and significant events. This will include all quality markers against the practice contract and
performance against enhanced services, Qof, and community based contracts
Complaints process / incident reporting
A process will be developed that brings together not only all formal complaints, but
significant events and incidence of poor quality care. This will provide a breadth of
knowledge that can lead to quality improvements. This process will involve not just formal
action and escalation, but also a constructive peer review process that leads to evaluation
and learning through shared experience.
Quality appraisal
Building on our annual practice quality visit, a pool of skilled GP assessors will be used to
undertake a quality appraisal of each practice on an annual basis. This will be focused on
patient outcomes and quality improvement and will enable sharing of good practice or formal
action plans if necessary. This combined information will form part of the internal and
external assurance process.

System Wide Primary Care Assurance
The Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Area Team,and local CCGs have agreed that
information should be shared where a risk is agreed to give a moderate level of concern.The
definition of issue/issues which give/gives a moderate level of concern is defined using the
below matrix. It is recognised that this tool provides a crude assessment of actual risk and
for this reason; secondary questions are applied to allow mitigation or escalation of risk.
INFORMATION TO BE SHARED
Both the Area Team and the CCGs will maintain a comprehensive understanding of quality
and performance in primary medical care based on a range of hard and soft intelligence. It
has been agreed that the following information can be shared when concern is believed to
be of moderate level concern.
NHS England Information

Outcome of Annual contract review (selfassessment and if applicable follow up
visits)

CCG Information

Outcome of Annual CCG visits – any actions
required and action plans put in place
(For East CCG – Practice Visit)

AT GP Dashboard (under development
Complaints investigated by or known to
87

206
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
the CCGs
Details of any Serious Incidents and
Complaints reported to the Area Team

Information from whistle-blowers
Community Based Services information

Results of Annual GP patient survey
Prescribing information
Any Fitness to Practice concerns
Information from whistle-blowers
Outcome of CQC inspections
Concerns from other partners (e.g.
Healthwatch)
National screening programme information
(Public Health Team at NHS England will
provide information for national screening
programs that the area team is responsible
for)
Other current contractual issue/s:
E.g. application to change practice
boundary, request to close list, request to
close branch surgery etc.
Outcome of any visit or action plan due to
outlier status identified by Primary Care
web tool
Current remedial notices or breach notices
issued
All enhanced service information

From April 2015 this full responsibility through co commissioning will come to ELR CCG to
manage. This kind of reporting will be strengthened to ensure quality improvement.
7.1.5 Prescribing and Medicines Quality and Optimisation
The medicines quality and optimisation operational plan is aimed at integrating the national
principles of medicines optimisation within the processes and work programmes designed to
support achievement of the CCG strategic aims as well as the goals of the Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland Health and Care Strategic Plan 2014-2019. These are all the
reflected in the prescribing and medicines optimisation strategy.

88

207
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

Medicines optimisation
Medicines optimisation is a national priority and defined as “ensuring that the right patients
get the right choice of medicine, at the right time “
It sets out four simple but key principles that is advocated nationally as having the capability
of revolutionising medicines use and patient outcomes if adopted, considering that
medicines remain the most common therapeutic intervention in healthcare . These four
principles are
• aim to understand the patient's experience
• evidence based choice of medicines
• ensure medicines use is as safe as possible
• make medicines optimisation part of routine practice
.
Principles of Medicines Optimisation
Principle 1
Aim to
understand the
patient
experience

Principles 4
Make medicnes
optimisation part
of routine
process

Patientcentred
approach

Principle 2
Evidence based
choice pof
medication

Principle 3
Ensure medicines
use is as safe as
possible

"Medicines optimisation is a vital agenda, not an agenda added on to something else we are
trying to do, this is absolutely central to it."
Sir David Nicholson, Chief Executive, NHS
Focus areas
The medicines quality and optimisation operational plan will be achieved in two phases as a
short term and long-term plan. Both phases have five main focus areas which are detailed
below and illustrated in the diagram below.
Ensuring Quality Prescribing:
Involves a wide range of work streams and programmes to improve the quality of
prescribing for all CCG patients. Examples of enabling activities are :
• Writing, agreeing and monitoring GP quality audits
89

208
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

•
•
•

•
•
•

Writing agreeing and monitoring medicines quality of provider contracts
Strategic input to improve medicines reconciliation in GP practices and by
providers
Commissioning and liaising to support work streams in GP practices and across
LLR aimed at reducing polypharmacy and oligopharmacy for patients with long
term conditions
Improving access to EOL medication and pathways
Ensuring medicines optimisation in care homes through strategic and operational
input
Ensuring antibiotic stewardship across all providers

Ensuring Prescribing financial balance:
Involves a wide range of work streams and programmes to rationalise use of
medication and improve cost effective prescribing by all CCG prescribers. Examples
of enabling activities are
• Agreeing GP prescribing budgets
• Emailing prescribing QIPP and “Quick win” reports to practices monthly to
support targeted reviews prescribing financial balance
• Managing budget for acute care drugs excluded to tariff
• Horizon scanning for impact of NICE and "left" shift
• Strategies to reduce medicines waste
• Liaising to organise funded pharma reviews
• Signing up to appropriate prescribing rebates
Ensuring robust governance and evidence-base use of medicines:
Involves a range of work streams to ensure safe and evidence based use of
medication
• Controlled drugs monitoring and destructions
• Patient group directives production and management
• Prescribing Guidance and pathway development though input and output to area
prescribing committee and other groups
• Production and maintenance of prescribing policies, principles and processes
Promoting Integration across health and social care for medication use:
Involves work streams aimed at increased integration across health and social care
settings to improve patient outcomes and care experience .Examples of enabling
activities are
• Linking with integrated care teams to provide for medicines reviews for
identified patients
• liaising and commissioning community pharmacies to deliver the services
identified as required on the Pharmaceutical needs assessment
• liaising with other prescribing teams in other CCGs and provider organisation in
work programmes to improve patient outcomes
• liaising with other health care stakeholders eg stoma nurses, dieticians
Commissioning
•
•

Involves commissioning of services to support delivery of cost effective, evidence
based, integrated and safe prescribing
Point of prescribing support eg ScriptSwitch or first data bank
90

209
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

•
•
•
•

Hub Medicines quality teams
Medicines information
Lmsg website
Interface pharmacist

•QIPP savings = n/a
•Controlled drugs
•Patient group directives
•Policies

Governance
& Evidence
base

Integration
•QIPP savings =£250K

•Linking with integrated
care for medicines
reviews
•liaisng with community
pharmacies
•liaising with other
prescribing teams in
other CCGs and provider
orhanistions
•liaising with otehr
stakeholders

Quality
Prescribing

Prescribing
Financial
balance

•QIPP savings =£300K
• GP quality audits
•medicines quality of
provider contracts
•medicines reconciliation
•polypharmacy reduction
in LTC
•EOL
•care homes
•antibiotic stewardship

•QIPP savings = £1 million
•GP prescribing budgets
•Acute care drugs
excluded to tariff
•Horizon scanning for
impact of NICE and "left"
shift
•medicnes waste
reduction
•organisng funded pharma
reviews
•rebates

Commissioning
•

Point of prescribing support eg ScriptSwitch or first data bank
•
Hub Medicines quality teams
•
Medicines information
•
Interface pharmacits

91

210
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Phase 1: April 2015- March 2016
The five focus areas above will be delivered with a major addition from past year aimed at
supporting the federation and integration work plans as described under the primary care
section above. This addition is piloting, evaluating and planning roll out of dedicated GP hub
medicines quality teams as described below.
Hub Medicines Quality team pilot
Background:
There is considerable evidence that improved integration in primary care is beneficial to
patients. The ELR CCG community “hubs” are already working at an integrated level and it is
proposed that federating will help general practices and primary care to work far more
closely with partner services, social care and each other.
Considering that prescribing is the most common intervention in primary care and vast
majority of patients with LTC would be on polypharmacy, ensuring medicines optimisation
input as part of plans for joint working would significantly improve patient and practice
outcomes
Aim:
It is proposed therefore to undertake a 12 month pilot of dedicated medicines quality team
support to one hub per locality. The aims of the pilot would be:
• Providing a proof of the concept that a hub medicines quality team will significantly
improve patient outcome, save GP time and fund itself
• Identify any barriers and inform how best to expand the service
Model:
Each hub medicines quality team would provide the medicines optimisation and
management services detailed in table one below, to a hub of 20,000-30,000 patients. The
proposed make-up of each hub medicines quality team would be:
• One full time pharmacist ( 1WTE)
• One technician ( 0.6- 1WTE) – dependent on hub size
Key areas of work

1

Area of work
Medicines reconciliation

2

Clinical medication reviews
in target groups of patients

3

Quality Audits

4

QIPP wins

5

Enhance LLR formulary

Rationale
Unintentional introduction to changes in patients' medication
regimens due to incomplete or inaccurate medication information
at transitions in care is common and can lead to patient harm
The most preventable
adverse drug events are attributable to
errors in prescription & monitoring &
pharmacist
Interventions most effective at reducing these.
Audits required to provide assurance for medication governance
eg controlled drugs Cdiff, MHRA alerts
Potential savings of over 400,000 pound by switching to more
cost effective medication as appropriate for patients
Formulary adherence would improve safe and cost effective

92

211
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
use

prescribing

6

Education and Training

Supporting training of staff, embedding a whole systems medicine
management processes and supporting prescribing updates of
clinical staff has been shown to improve outcomes
Shared Care support

7

Improve safety in use of
shared care drugs

8

Medicines Waste reduction

Most medicines waste linked to 3rd party ordering of medication
on patient’ behalf. Liaison with community Pharmacists & 3rd party
ordering companies

9
10

Care homes
Other areas identified by
the practice

Care homes medication optimisation support
Practices would have a better understanding of non – routine
areas of work that would improve patient outcomes l

QIPP savings
The estimated QIPP savings which is still in the process of being finalised is
•
•
•

Medicines savings= £469K
Admissions savings = £577K
Practice time saved= 401 hours

Phase 2: April 2016 and beyond:
The five focus areas above will be delivered alongside the roll out of the hub medicines
quality teams across all practices if the pilots are successful. The final model will be based
on the findings from the project
7.2 Community care
Commissioning Plans for 2015/2016
Reshaping Community Health Services
The CCG and partner’s plans for reshaping community health services are a central element
of overall plans and will contribute towards the LLR wide vision for health and social care
services set out in the Better Care Together five year strategic plan.
The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a key platform to support the shift towards delivery of care
closer to home along with a more integrated approach to the delivery of community health
and social care services.
The physical setting, from where health care is delivered is a critical consideration in respect
of the range, accessibility and affordability of services. East Leicestershire & Rutland Clinical
Commissioning Group (ELR CCG) has considered an approach that considers the setting of
care services alongside the other components of service planning and delivery. This is
particularly important when considering the integration of health and social care services,
much of which is deliverable in patient’s own homes.

93

212
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
For the purposes of this planning document a community service is defined as any service
delivered within the immediate proximity of patients own homes or the surrounding locality –
in contrast to services consolidated in single specialist or tertiary centres. The vision for
services in ELR CCG is to wherever feasible; deliver coordinated, integrated services on a
locality hub basis in order to move towards a community provision that reduces reliance on a
bed-based model.
This approach has considered the planning of community services through the following
elements;
•

Setting – the physical and geographical location of services is an important
consideration, particularly for the cost of services, value for money and patient
satisfaction. In planning to reshape community services ELR CCG will look to
prioritise care settings that promote optimum integration of services and provide the
best possible outcomes for patients in the least disruptive setting for them. Wherever
possible this will be services delivered in their own home, integrated between health
and social care.

•

Access – Alongside this, the accessibility of services, particularly in the evenings
and at weekends are important considerations for the planning of services. Primarily
with respect to unscheduled care needs, plans have considered the development of
services which represent timely access for patients experiencing a care or health
crisis (see later section on step up / step down). This element ensures a consistent
focus on plans being able to deliver seven day a week services.

•

Evidence Base – plans have drawn wherever possible on published evidence on
services for long term conditions / frail elderly such as the Kings Fund documents
‘Transforming our Health Care System’, Making our Health and Care Systems Fit for
an Ageing Population’ and ‘Community Services; How they Can Transform Care’.

•

Clinical Leadership – plans for this area of services have been led by the views of
local clinical leaders, across primary and community care.
Coordination – an underpinning principle of the plans is that services should be
coordinated for the good of patient experience, maximisation of use of resources and
efficiency of face to face clinical time.

During 2014/15 we developed a Community Services Strategy, setting out our vision for a
fully integrated, co-ordinated model for health and social care, delivering seven day services
that put people’s care needs at the centre and reduce the need for bed based provision.
Our vision is supported by a ‘home first’ philosophy. The Strategy aligns with the Better
Care Together five year strategic plan and Better Care Fund plans and outlines a model of
care with the following key components:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Co-ordinated services with the patient at the centre of care
Multi-disciplinary teams (Primary, community and social care) wrapped round the
patient/citizen offering 24/7 services
Focus on early intervention along with reablement and promoting independence
Specialist medical input as required
Services that offer an alternative to hospital stay
Community hospital beds where ‘home first’ is not possible
Harness the power of the wider community
Patients will receive education and support to understand and manage their
condition
94

213
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
•
•
•
•
•

Increasing use of Personal Health Budgets
Carers will receive ‘carer assessments’ and have their needs recognised
Harnessing the voluntary and independent sectors in the delivery of services that
are co-ordinated with statutory services
An innovative environment that embraces the use of new technology
A workforce delivering caring and compassionate care and with the training and
education to take on new roles that support the integration of health and social
care

The proposed structure for service delivery outlined in our Community Services Strategy
combines wrapping services around primary care, with seamless delivery of care that is
integrated across organisations. The platform for delivery of services will be the Primary
Care localities and GP hubs (GP groups within the localities, each with a registered
population of 30-35,000). Services will be delivered through co-ordinated pathways of care
with integrated working within healthcare and across health and social care where possible.
The Community Services Strategy has been developed alongside the ELRCCGs Primary
Care Operating Framework to ensure a fully integrated approach. During 2015/16 we will be
developing plans to deliver the Community Services Strategy, together with partners and key
stakeholders.
Integrated and Coordinated Community Care
Our 2014-2016 Plan identified a number of key features to progress during the two year
period;
•

Optimising the appropriate use of equipment, assistive technology and home
adaptations

•

Optimising prescribing and medicines use to maximise patient outcomes for those
living with LTCs

•

Enhance the self-care opportunities through collaboration with the voluntary sector

Findings from the pilot phase of the integrated care service demonstrated that for the group
of patients identified with risk factors from the risk stratification tool and their holistic health
and social care assessments, access to occupational therapy (OT) assessment and
associated equipment / adaptations are a key component of reducing these risk factors. To
this end, and in line with commissioning plans for 2014/15, an OT service now forms part of
the integrated care service, to ensure a coordinated holistic service offer to patients
identified with these needs. On-going evaluation of this service element will be undertaken to
during 2015/16 in order refine the service model and to inform future commissioning plans.
Similarly, for the integrated service, the element of the patient experience relating to
specialist pharmacy input has been further developed and is now included as part of a multidisciplinary approach, in line with our 2014/15 intentions.
Patient education, empowerment and self-help are vital components of the overall model of
care to optimise the management of patients with long term conditions. Through the Better
Care Fund and other opportunities, the CCG will continue to work with local authority
commissioning partners, to join up commissioning of services that will provide advice,
information and support to promote education, empowerment and self-care.

95

214
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Reshaping Community Health Services
Our vision is to commission care to patients that is planned by teams who work together,
who understand patients and their carers and put the patient in control, through coordination
and delivery of services to achieve best outcomes. The CCG will work with the community
services provider to reshape core community services to align with the integrated care
platform. The service will oversee both planned and unscheduled care elements in an
integrated overall team, ensuring seamless coordinated care.
A revised specification for Integrated Community Health Services (CHS) is now in place
bringing together a range of services previously delivered through separate service
specifications under a single specification providing both planned and unscheduled care in
the community.
During, 2015/16 we plan to conduct a review of specialist nursing provision within community
settings, to ensure targeted use of specialist skills and optimum alignment with the locality
based Integrated CHS model. The review will also align with the work on transforming
primary care in respect of plans to up skill primary care.
Key components of the unscheduled care model are the Intensive Community Support (ICS)
service and the Integrated Crisis Response Service (ICRS). Both are unscheduled care
services, for care outside of hospital and are accessible 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The
Crisis Response Service now contains a night nursing assessment service enabling the
prompt assessment of health needs in those patients experiencing a crisis at home.
Alignment with the overall model for Integrated CHS means that patients can be supported
at home overnight for up to three days whilst being brought into the in hours service,
creating an overall service rather than reinforce silo working of day and night or weekend
and weekday.
The impact of these plans will be to reduce avoidable hospital admissions, reduce hospital
length of stay and contribute to a reduction in attendances at the Emergency Department.
More broadly, the delivery of care to patients in their own homes will realise the quality
improvements and outcomes for patients associated with care delivered outside the hospital
setting. A full evaluation of these services is planned for 2015/16 and will inform further
developments.
Step Up and Step Down Programme
Step Up and Step Down is a dedicated whole system approach to developing effective
community based services that prevent avoidable hospital admission, reduce length of stay
and improve the discharge experience. It creates improvements to the integrated health and
social care crisis response for frail elderly people through a co-ordinated collaborative
approach. ELR CCG is working in partnership with West Leicestershire CCG (WLCCG),
Leicestershire County Council and Rutland County Council to implement the programme.
The Step Up and Step Down programme sits alongside the Integrated Care service and the
Community Health Services plans. Between them these programmes cover the full spectrum
of both pre-emptive preventative interventions and services to support patients in crisis,
experiencing an unscheduled care need. The Integrated Care programme identifies those at
risk of hospitalisation due to long term conditions by using risk stratification tools. Those
identified are offered early support through a care health and social care coordinator in their
locality. This work forms a key part of the overall Better Care Together five year strategic
plan and represents the first major contribution to how health and social services will look by
2018.
96

215
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Step Up and Step Down – A Multi-Strand Approach

Step Up Step Down brings together a range of initiatives under the umbrella of one
programme. These initiatives are designed to engage patients at various steps in the
escalation or de-escalation of a treatment journey. The initiatives are all designed to meet
the patients’ needs and reduce the need to escalate care to an acute level. This leads to
care being provided closer to home within local communities and contributes to a reduction
in emergency care admissions, reduction of the overall length of stay for those who are
admitted and a more streamlined pathway to exit acute settings.
Step Up Step Down has a multi-agency Board that co-ordinates the delivery of the action
plan for delivery of the range of initiatives. The multi-agency nature of the Board reflects the
integrated nature of the programmes being delivered. In particular, the partnership with
Community service providers and Adult Social Care. The work in the plan aligns with Better
Care Fund Plans.
Initiatives delivered within step up step down for 2014/15
•

Integrated crisis response service (ICRS) – The Crisis Response Service
commissioned by Leicestershire County Council provides an urgent response
(within 2 hours) to patients experiencing a care crisis (requiring step up care)
who would otherwise be conveyed to hospital. This service will then “hold”
patients in their usual place of residence for up to 72 hours and support their
activities of daily living.

•

Night nursing assessment service –An enhanced night nursing service
provides an overnight nursing ‘assessment service’, incorporating nursing
assessments and therapeutic interventions, and a roving night team to
provide home visits across Leicestershire and Rutland to ensure the service
user is safe in their own home. As part of the evaluation of this service,
consideration will be given to a more integrated service across health and
social care.

•

Development of the intensive community support (ICS) service – provided by
Leicestershire Partnership Trust (LPT). This service comprises 48 at home places
(virtual beds) across ELR for utilisation for both step up and step down. The service
is able to respond promptly to unscheduled care requests and is integrated into the
ICRS and night assessment services.

•

Discharge pathways and patient transfer minimum data set – A common
assessment tool is currently being developed for use in Secondary Care settings and
shared with all providers in health and social care. Agreement has been reached on
a common patient transfer minimum data set to support hospital discharge which will
result in a smoother transition from hospital to home or appropriate care setting for
the patient, quick and effective discharge, reduction in length of stay and reduction in
readmission rates. As part of this work patient discharge pathways have been
clarified (see below) and work will continue during 2015/16 to develop and embed
these pathways.

97

216
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

Programme Evaluation
A multi strand evaluation of admission avoidance schemes is due to take place during
2015/16. The review will look at service improvement outcomes and consider value for
money to provide the evidence base necessary at a local level, in particular the suitability of
the service model as a platform upon which to develop coordinated community services. The
report produced will inform further development of the approach and play a major part in
shaping services for the later part of the Better Care Together: five year strategic plan. .

Plans for 2015 /2016
•

Improving support to care homes – Plans with respect to improving support for
patients in a care home are covered within the transforming primary care section of
this plan. The elements from this section and the primary care section will be
coordinated to ensure alignment.

•

Older people’s mental health – Links between the Older Peoples Mental Health
Service (MSOP), the ICS and the ICRS are seen as critical in contributing to whole
system efficiency. Work is underway to redefine pathways, ensure services are
complimentary and remove any duplication and to ensure the patient experience is
as positive as possible. This work will be aligned to the plans for coordinated
community health services phase two, looking at metal health and specialist nursing
services.

•

Dementia –Progress has been made during 2014/15 in enhancing community
services and support services for those with dementia and their carers but it is
acknowledged that further work is needed to develop the model of delivery to meet
the increasing demand, improve detection, identification and assessment and to
ensure primary care is sufficiently supported to fully meet the increasing demands
upon GPs with this increasing in numbers patient group.

98

217
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

What will the impact be?
The above commissioning plans for Community Care will contribute to the delivery of the
metrics in the BCF plans:
•
•
•
•
•
•
7.3

Less people going into nursing and residential care
More people receiving help to recover at home
A reduction in hospital bed days due to discharge being delayed
A reduction in total hospital admissions
Improved patient/service user experience
Prevention of injuries due to fall
Long term Conditions

The Better Care Together Partnership Board recognises that the gap between our current
state and where we need to get to in terms of LTC’s is substantial and therefore ripe for
transformation. The key LTC focus areas for development are described further in this
section and are based on the following key changes;
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

‘Education’ - Work with patients and primary care to increase education around risk
factors associated with long term conditions
‘Prediction’ - building systems, utilising tools (e.g. risk stratification) and including
screening programmes, to predict those most at of developing or accelerating the onset
of long term conditions, including health checks; chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
(COPD) screening; atrial fibrillation (AF), heart failure (HF) and cancer
‘Care planning’ – joint development of care plans to improve health outcomes to the best
they can be supported by a community multi-disciplinary team approach
Clinical accountability – ensuring 2% of the most complex LTC patients have a named
doctor responsible for their care
‘Ambulatory pathways’ – plans to ensure efficient pathways for ambulatory conditions
based on treating people in the right care setting
‘Innovation’ – using tele health and telecare as well as techniques such as coaching to
support people with LTCs
‘Services available when required’ - ensuring that medical outreach and rehabilitation are
available when required
‘Choices and plans at the end of life’ - being clear when people move into the palliative
phase of their disease and plan for that circumstance.

7.3.1

Cardiovascular disease

Background
Cardio Vascular Disease (CVD) is the second largest cause of death in England causing
29% of all deaths in 2011 with coronary heart disease accounting for around 46% of these.
CVD is one of East Leicestershire and Rutland’s areas of greatest inequality and
therefore remains a priority going forward. Over the next two years ELR CCG will invest in a
number of different pathways to address this area directly. Cardiovascular disease (CVD) is
a complex issue to address as it does not relate to one single condition, but is a general term
99

218
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
used to collectively describe conditions that affect the heart and blood vessels, because of
this ELR CCG recognises the importance of a multifaceted approach to address this area
including primary prevention measures and that is why we continue to support the local
public health teams in the delivery of a number of programmes to support this such as
smoking cessation, obesity, lifestyle, and alcohol misuse. These collective programmes will
facilitate an improvement in the health of our local population in the longer term.
Commissioning Plans 2015/2016
Early detection remains a priority going forward in 2015/2016. A significant contributor to this
is the NHS Health Checks Programme; this will continue to facilitate local commissioning
decisions in 2015/2016 and beyond. The recorded prevalence of heart failure in ELR CCG is
0.8%. The estimated actual prevalence is said to be more in the region of 2%. In 2015/2016
we hope to increase prevalence and improve diagnosis for patients with suspected heart
failure.
Patients are diagnosed with heart failure either following an emergency admission to hospital
or because they have had appropriate diagnostic investigations in the community. They are
discharged with little follow up in an acute setting, but are subsequently managed either in
primary care or the community. Patients can end up back in hospital following a deterioration
of their condition. From initial work carried out we have identified that approximately 93% of
spend relating to Heart Failure can be attributed to emergency activity. Anecdotal evidence
shows that this condition is sub-optimally managed in primary care and this could be a
reason for this. Expansion of current services, with pathway modifications could facilitate a
reduction in this activity in year.
To enable earlier diagnosis and improved management of these patients we are
recommending a number of initiatives for 2015/16 which includes training and education in
primary care to help identify patients that may be at risk of heart failure along with increased
diagnostic access to Echo via the re-procurement of the existing service to improve the
speed of diagnosis. In conjunction with this ELR CCG will also pilot of a one stop heart
failure clinic in the community and review the role of the specialist heart failure nurse, with
the possibility of expanding their current remit to include non-left ventricle systolic
dysfunction.
Transient Ischaemic Attack (TIA) and Stroke is also another area that ELR CCG will
concentrate on in 2015/2016. A TIA is caused by a temporary blockage in the blood vessels
in the brain. If someone has a TIA they usually recover within 24 hours but it is also a
warning sign that the patient may go on to have a stroke. In 2013/2014 546 patients in ELR
CCG attended UHL’s Rapid Access TIA clinic.
Latest data shows that up to 40% of all people who have experienced a TIA will go on to
have an actual stroke. Some studies show that nearly half of all strokes occur within the first
two days after a TIA, with 5% occurring after two days and 10 -15% occurring after 3
months.
ELR CCG will be working closely with primary care to identify the sign and symptoms of a
TIA and we will be working directly with our TIA one stop clinic provider to improve the way
in which patients and general practice access clinic slots and streamline the referral process.
In 2012/13 449 people were diagnosed with having a stroke in ELR CCG. As a result, a high
proportion of these patients are discharged requiring further follow up and rehabilitation in
the community. Over the last 3 years a significant amount of work has been undertaken
looking at the front end of the patient pathway, looking at primary prevention, acute service
redesign, in particular, and the hyper acute and acute stroke pathway.
100

219
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Now ELR CCG wants to place a corresponding focus on community specialist and generalist
rehabilitation. ELR CCG patients can already access inpatient community stroke
rehabilitation and an early supported discharge service, in 2015/2016 we will conduct a full
review of current service provision and develop, if appropriate, a community stroke
rehabilitation model building on the existing ESD service for implementation in 2015/2016.
Collectively all the above mentioned initiatives aim to improve the quality of service provision
for ELR CCG patients, increase the prevalence of patients with CVD whilst addressing
service inequalities that exist, improving health outcomes and reducing mortality rates.
What will the impact be?
By the end of 2015/16 implementation of these initiatives will facilitate:
•
•
•
•
•

Increased prevalence of atrial fibrillation and heart failure from the baseline of 0.2% and
0.8% respectively.
34 practices trained and up-skilled to manage atrial fibrillation and heart failure within
primary care.
Increased number of high risk TIA patients being seen and treated within 24 hours.
Reduction in (10%) 58 emergency admissions relating to atrial fibrillation.
Reduction in (15%) 66 emergency admission relating to heart failure.

Commissioning Plans 2015/2016
Work will continue in 2015/2016 on the cardiovascular initiatives undertaken in 2014/15.
Specific attention will be focused on the outputs of the review in to community stroke
rehabilitation and the implementation of the 5 year Better Care Together strategy. A review
of progress with training and development within primary care will also be carried out along
with the formulation of plans to address as emerging priorities.
7.3.2

Respiratory disease

Respiratory disease is a major cause of morbidity and mortality being the third leading cause
of death in England after circulatory disease and cancer. It is also one of the principal
reasons for emergency admissions to hospital and, as a result, it accounts for a substantial
proportion of NHS expenditure.
In England, around 23,000 people die from chronic obstructive airways disease (COPD)
each year, equivalent to one death every 20 minutes. Acute exacerbation of COPD is itself
a high-mortality condition: 15% of those admitted to hospital with COPD die within 3 months
which is higher than the rate for acute myocardial infarction at 13%.
The NHS Atlas of Variation in Healthcare shows a four-fold variation in emergency
admission rates for COPD across Primary Care Trust Clusters in England (after
standardising for population characteristics). The variation ranges from 250 days per 1000
patients with a recorded diagnosis of COPD to 1000 days. Leicestershire County and
Rutland stands at 564 days per 1000.
Around 835,000 people in England are currently diagnosed with COPD and a further 2.2
million are undiagnosed. Failure to diagnose is not confined to people with very mild
disease: more than 50% of people with moderate COPD have not been detected and around
20% of undiagnosed people have severe or very severe disease. In a national audit in
101

220
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
2008, it was found that 10% of people who were sufficiently ill with their COPD to require
admission to hospital had not been diagnosed.

Reflection for 2012 - 2014
In 2012/2013 and 2013/2014, ELR CCG developed a programme of delivery within primary
medical care linked to secondary and community care regarding the management of COPD
and asthma.

The key components of the improvement programme are:
•
•
•
•
•

•

Case finding patients to increase accurate diagnosis
Spirometric competency assessed through specialist respiratory clinicians to confirm
the diagnosis of COPD
Inhaler technique training with primary healthcare professionals
For ELR CCG average prevalence rates have increased from 1.2% (2010/2011) to
an overall average of 1.48% (2011/2012) and 1.57% (2012/2013) for all ages of our
registered patient population
Spirometric competency assessment is a rolling programme across our 33 general
medical practices working with our practice nurses. For 2013, just over two thirds of
our practices had achieved an up-to-date spirometry competency assessment with
the remainder of the practices planning to update their competency training in line
with the rolling programme of assessment
For 2012/2013, 91% of general medical practices have attended inhaler technique
training

Commissioning Plans 2015/2016
The National COPD Clinical audit of Patients admitted to acute units in 2014 has published
its report and recommendations and we will ensure we look carefully at the
recommendations and adopt strategies that can help achieve the suggested improvements.
Key recommendations for Commissioners include;
1. Oxygen prescribing linked to CQUINS
2. Hospital smoking cessation services linked to CQUINS
3. Review of supported early discharge services including weekend cover
4. Clarification and formalisation of pathways to improve referral to early supported
discharge teams and community, pulmonary rehab. Programmes. Respiratory
physician’s should lead on this
In addition it is acknowledged that to ensure continued improvement with regard to
respiratory delivery, recurrent support should be available for primary medical care.
As a result, for 2015/2016 support will continue for our general practices to continue the
improvement programme of managing patients closer to home:
•
•
•

Case finding
Spirometric competency assessment
Inhaler technique education and training to primary healthcare professionals

This will also include close working with community respiratory nursing teams who will
support the education programmes and case management of patients.

102

221
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Through the Better Care Together Programme for Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland a
review of the current pathway of respiratory care delivery is being undertaken. This review
includes health and social care along with the voluntary sector and will continue into
2015/2016 with action plans being developed to commence agreed implementation.
Therefore, for 2015/2016 ELR CCG will be working closely with primary care, secondary and
community health services, emergency services and the voluntary sector regarding on-going
initiatives such as:
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Discharge care bundle
Direct referral into the respiratory unit at Glenfield General Hospital within University
Hospitals Leicester (UHL)
Training and education for primary medical care
Smoking cessation referral services
Home Oxygen Services – oxygen provision plays a significant part of respiratory
disease management and accordingly ELR CCG is part of the East Midlands
commissioning function regarding HOS which is led by Nottingham City CCG as lead
commissioner for the East Midlands area. The overall review of the respiratory
pathway will also include HOS.
Integrated working, particularly between health and social care and the voluntary
sector
Development of realistic self-management support
Chronic disease pathway

The focus of the review will be to identify gaps of service provision and opportunities for
closer partnership working across the health and social care sector. The planned review of
our local community health services will be encompassed into the respiratory pathway
appraisal.
For 2015/2016 ELR CCG will continue to work in partnership with our two local authorities,
Leicestershire County Council and Rutland County Council to drive forward integrated
working. The focus of integrated working will be based on the clinical service model of
respiratory care delivery.
The key focus will be:
1. Professionals working together in multidisciplinary teams or provider networks –
generalists and specialists – in health and social care. This will also include, if
required, the voluntary sector
2. Care co-ordinators working within primary medical care, linked to social care
3. Holistic care assessments, care planning and single point of entry will continue to be
taken forward
4. Continued improvement of capacity and capability within primary medical care
5. Increased working with the voluntary sector, working in partnership with social care
6. The implementation of a chronic disease pathway
What Will The Impact Be?
Over the next two years, the impact of the changes and consolidation of respiratory care will
demonstrate the following improvements from a quality, financial and patient delivery
standpoint:
•

Continuation of increased prevalence rates within primary medical care which will mean
more people being correctly diagnosed with COPD, treated earlier and receiving care
103

222
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

•
•

•

•
•

•
•
•

•

through the correct pathway. Currently the prevalence rate for COPD for ELR CCG is
1.57% against an Office of National Statistics projection of 2.6%. The aim for practices
is to increase prevalence rates for 2015/2016 between 0.10%-0.25%.
A rolling programme of spirometry competency ensuring that primary healthcare
professionals are able to perform spirometry assessment leading to improved diagnosis.
Rolling programme of inhaler technique training for all our primary healthcare
professionals. Mastery of the correct technique is fundamental to medicine optimisation,
supporting more accurate drug delivery and good patient compliance, which in turn
results in better disease management and fewer visits to healthcare professionals.
Studies show that many patients cannot use inhalers correctly and over 50% of patients
struggle to use a metered dose inhaler (MDI) properly. Of more concern, however is the
fact that many health professionals also do not know how to use inhalers correctly and
are therefore not in a position to train patients effectively. One study showed that 91% of
healthcare professionals that teach patients how to use inhalers could not demonstrate
the right technique and this has been borne out at COPD and Asthma Events held
across LLR, when GPs and practice nurses were tested using an aerosol inhalation
monitor (AIM) designed to assist medical practitioners in training patients to use their
inhaler correctly.
Commencement of integrated working between primary, community and secondary care
and health and social care. To improve the pathway for patients regarding respiratory
disease more integrated working is to be developed. This will include multidisciplinary
team working; specialist respiratory clinicians within secondary care working within the
community and supporting primary medical care; co-location, particularly regarding
health and social care commissioners.
Through the Better Care Together programme there will be the development and
agreement of a chronic disease pathway across secondary, community and primary care
with a multidisciplinary approach.
Reduction in admissions, readmissions and excess bed days. By improving capacity
and capability within primary medical care, integrated working within different health
sectors and between health and social care, plus MDT working there is the expectation
that the requirement for patients to attend hospital will reduce as patients are more able
to manage their own disease process alongside improved care within the community.
ELR CCG plan to reduce admissions and readmissions during 2014-2016 by 5%.
Patients with COPD often have multi-morbidities which leads to complex case
management and palliative care requirements. Through end of life initiatives more
people will die at their place of choice with an increase in people dying at home by 5%
Through improved diagnosis and case management across the health and social care
sector the use of oxygen will improve.
An Outcomes Strategy for COPD and Asthma, May 2012, states that pulmonary
rehabilitation is the only intervention to date that has been shown to reduce the high
readmission rate seen in COPD from 33% to 7%. With this in mind, ELR CCG will
continue to commission high quality, evidence based pulmonary rehabilitation services
for delivery across different geographical areas within the area.
Increased referrals into smoking cessation services.

7.3.3

Cancer

Cancer is one of the main contributors to early death, with our public health data telling us
that 26.2% of all deaths in all ages being attributed to some type of cancer. This increases
to 34.2% for all deaths under the age of 75. Our Commissioning for Value data set tells us
that if the CCG performed at the average of the Best 5 of similar 10 CCGs in the country we
could potentially save a further 21 lives.

104

223
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
The CCG recognises that the early diagnosis of cancer will also impact on the potential
number lives we could save. Our local intelligence tells us that this is a particular issue for
the city, with Acute Trust data showing a significant underperformance when compared to
the national mean For example, we know that for all data compared to England average, the
CCG benchmarks as:
•

significantly higher episodes following an emergency admission (new and
existing cancers); significantly lower % of urgent GP referrals for suspected
cancer seen within 2 weeks; significantly lower % of patients treated within 62
days of urgent GP referral for suspected cancer;
significantly lower % of patient’s first treatment began within 31 days of
decision to treat.

•

In 2014/15 and 2015/16, we will focus on the development and implementation of preventive
strategies and early diagnosis for cancer, working in partnership with our Public Health
colleagues.
We will:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Raise awareness of cancer symptoms.
Raise awareness and pilot new methods of cancer screening programmes.
Encourage our population to use the health services that address risk factors for
cancer (e.g. obesity, smoking and alcohol misuse).
Extend GP access to diagnostics for suspected cancer diagnosis.
Review and implement cancer risk management tools to extend 2 week wait
referral.
Track one-year cancer survival rates as an outcome measure

In order to ensure delivery of the NHS Constitutional requirements in relation to cancer care
the CCG is working with its provider to:
o
o
o
o

Use clinical problem solving groups to identify and resolve pathway issues
Improve access to diagnostics and theatres
Provide additional consultant time
Improved processes for managing patients through the pathway

During this period, we will develop pathways to ensure that our GPs have direct access to
the following diagnostics for suspected cancer to support early diagnosis:
o
o
o

chest x ray to support the diagnosis of lung cancer;
non-obstetric ultrasound to support the diagnosis of ovarian and other
abdomino-pelvic cancers;
flexible-sigmoidoscopy/colonoscopy to support the diagnosis of bowel cancer;
MRI to support the diagnosis of brain cancer.

To combat this over the next 5 years, the CCG has identified cancer as one of the top
priorities the LLR Better Care Together Five-Year Strategic Plan bringing together clinical
leads across primary, community and secondary care to identify further improvements at
scale for our population. This group will also assess and implement relevant
recommendations from the emerging National Cancer Strategy, due to be published during
2015/16.
We will also work with our partners at the East Midlands Strategic Clinical Network (EMSCN)
for Cancer, participating in the High Value Healthcare pathway for Upper GI Cancer amongst
105

224
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
other The pathway will improve access to the best treatments and outcomes for Upper GI
Cancer patients and improve the patient experience.

106

225

7.4 Mental health
Good mental health is fundamental to our well-being, yet mental health conditions are
commonplace and living with the burden of a mental illness can exact a heavy price on
individuals and those who care for them. It is well recognised that good mental health is
linked to good physical health and more work is needed to achieve parity of mental health
support when compared with the emphasis placed on physical health conditions. Mental
health has been identified as a key priority for joint action within our five-year Better Care
Together Strategic Plan.
In October 2014 NHS England and the Department of Health jointly published ‘Improving
Access to mental health services by 2020’. This document outlined the first set of mental
health access waiting time standards for introduction during 2015/16 and set out an
ambition, subject to future resourcing decisions following the Spending Review. These
commitments were reaffirmed in the NHS Mandate and reflected in the joint planning
guidance for 15/16 – Forward View into action 15/16.
Improvements towards meeting the first standards will come into effect from 1st April 2015
for achievement by 1st April 2016. These improvements will be focussed in three areas
where timely access to evidence based care is important to improve the longer term mental
health and wellbeing of individuals and their families:
• Timely access to first episode psychosis teams
• Improved Access to Psychological Therapies
• Effective models of liaison psychiatry
With this in mind we aim to deliver high quality safe mental health services, which is more
joined-up across the primary care and secondary care interface, which is based on best
practice, is easily accessible to those in need, and which reduce duplication and maximises
productivity.
We want to improve:
• resilience within the population and individuals,
• strengthen prevention and self-help,
• early intervention,
• timely crisis response and access to a greater range of interventions,
• excellent acute care,
• reduced reliance on admissions,
• a broader range of recovery options, including peer support,
• integration of a network including third sector and mainstream services.
The key areas of focus during 2015/16 will be:
•

•

Establish a 6-bed and day place ‘crisis house’ and step-down facilities to support
people effectively and safely during crisis and enable better discharge planning of
patients from hospital.
Improving access to psychological therapies for people with common mental health
problems such as depression and anxiety – implementation of self-referral and
improve wider access to services – work towards the delivery of the waiting time
standards for 6 weeks and 18 weeks of referral - Service Development Improvement
Plan (SDIP) in place

105

226

•

Improving access to emergency and acute mental health services – redesign of
acute mental health – reduce the number of patients who are transferred out of
Leicestershire

•

Development and implementation of Service Development Improvement Plan (SDIP)
for Liaison psychiatry to scope current provision and develop a model that enables
improvements in the care and management of MH patients in acute care settings.
Deliver improved access to early intervention to psychosis services for individual’s
experiences their first episode of psychosis. Meet the 2 week standard in line with
NICE Guidance.
supporting people with severe mental illness within their communities – developing
resilience and recovery in a community based setting - Offering a broad range of
recovery options through third sector contacts
Integration of 3rd sector in resilience and recovery networks

•

•

•

What will the impact be?
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Increase access to psychological therapies from 15% to 16% by 2015/16
Maintain recovery rates at 53%
Improve wait time for IAPT from 44% to 75% for 6 weeks and from 72% to 95% for 18
weeks by Quarter 4 of 2015/16
Improve crisis management within the acute environment
Improved education in primary care
Enabling earlier intervention and more timely support in the event of a crisis through
enhanced primary care services, backed-up by excellent acute services
Reduced numbers of people receiving their care outside their local community –
reduction of out of county placements to 0 by the end of 2015/16
Providing more step-down support post-discharge

All this work forms a crucial part of our local plans but also of our 5 year plan Better Care
Together. In developing the 5 year BCT workbook, additional investments were identified for
mental health that comes on stream this year. The focus of these investments is to reduce
the inequalities of opportunity that mental health patients face and to address the inequality
of life expectations that leads to.
7.5

Dementia

Dementia is a term used to describe various different brain disorders where a loss of brain
function is progressive and eventually severe. The most common form of dementia is
Alzheimer’s disease followed by vascular dementia. Symptoms include loss of memory,
mood changes and problems with communication and reasoning.
Dementia is a long term condition and people may live with dementia 7-12 years after their
diagnosis. Nationally one in four females and one in five males over the age of 85 have
dementia. The higher prevalence in females is to some degree due to longer life
expectancy. In terms of mortality, 10% of deaths in men over 65 years and 15% of deaths in
women have been found to be attributable to dementia in a UK study (this equates to 59,685
deaths annually).

106

227

In 2014 there were 130,400 people over the age of 65 years within Leicestershire County
and Rutland. This is predicted to rise to 186,900 by 2030, an increase of 43.3%. The
following information details the number of estimated people diagnosed with dementia in
2014 and the numbers predicted for the future.

Number of estimated people diagnosed with dementia in 2014 and future predictions
Area
2014
2030
Increase
% Increase
Numbers
Leicestershire
8,881
15,411
6,530
73.5%
Rutland
611
1,164
553
90.5%
Although the dementia registers and the figures show an increase in the prevalence of
dementia over time, 60% of people living with dementia in Leicestershire and Rutland
remain undiagnosed.
The 2013/14 prevalence figures for dementia within Leicestershire and Rutland indicate
similar figures to the England average:
2013/14 prevalence figures for dementia
Detail
ELR CCG
List size
321,461
Register Count
2,080
Prevalence (unadjusted)
0.647%
Similar to England average
Work continued during 2014/2015 to develop services that can meet the needs of an ageing
population. This included work to develop the care of dementia within general medical
practice as well as working closely with community and secondary care to ensure dementia
has a key focus on care delivery.
The Alzheimer’s Society began delivery of their Hospital Liaison Dementia Support Service
within Leicester Royal Infirmary during 2014/15 to support carers and people with dementia
within a hospital setting, providing information, and guidance on coping strategies, diagnosis
and support to access community services post hospital stay.
During 2014/15 we also worked with our local authority partners; supporting the
development of local authority services for people with dementia and their carers. These
services provide advice, information and support to help people with dementia and their
carers to maintain their independence and to continue to live at home.
Commissioning Plans for 2015/2016
It is acknowledged that delivery of dementia care should be embedded into health and social
care delivery across all health and social care sectors. We will continue to work across all
disciplines of care, evaluating and reviewing service delivery, ensuring that the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) is reflected in programmes of health and social care.
During 2015/16, as part of the Better Care Together programme, we will continue to work
with our local authority and other key partners to:

107

228

•
•

develop integrated pathways and co-ordinated dementia services across the full
range of care settings
support those who have dementia and those who care for someone with dementia

What Will The Impact Be?
The impact for service delivery for dementia will be:
•
•

•
•

To ensure dementia care is embedded into service delivery within primary medical
care
To reduce hospital admissions and length of stay for people with dementia – i.e.
ensuring that a person’s dementia does not lengthen their stay within hospital when
they are fit for discharge
To work more closely with the voluntary sector to support dementia care within health
and social care
Improve the diagnosis of dementia within primary medical care

7.6 End of Life Care

ELR CCGs overall emphasis on delivering end of life care between 2014-2016 is to support
patients to die in their place of choice and to work with our GP practices to improve the
quality of care for patients who are at the end of their life.
Reflection on 2014/2015
In 2014/2015, the focus for ELR CCG has centred on identifying patients within primary
medical care that are approaching the end of their life and ensuring that an effective care
plan is developed with the patient and/or their carer. There has been continued working with
Care Homes to ensure that care plans are developed appropriately within the care home
environment and communicated effectively with care home staff.
Commissioning Plans for 2015/2016
The continuation of the programme into 2015/2016 will see ELR CCG working in partnership
with LOROS and Macmillan Cancer Services. A specialist palliative care practitioner will
work alongside GPs and practice nurses with close liaison with community nursing teams
and secondary care to support practices in the development of the care plans. The role will
offer support and education to primary healthcare professionals with a key focus ‘opening
the dialogue’ and effective communication.
GPs will receive mentorship support from a GP with a special interest in palliative care who
will provide clinical leadership by promoting excellence in end of life care for all patients and
improving lines of communication between all providers.

The focus of the primary care programme will be:
•
•
•
•

Increase practice palliative care registers
The development of an advanced care plan
Information sharing with out of hours
After death audit
108

229
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

Training, education and specialist palliative care support will be sourced through Macmillan
Cancer Support services and LOROS.
Commissioning Plans for 2016/2017
The end of life pathway will continue into 2016/2017 and we will review the support given by
LOROS and Macmillan Cancer Services to determine progress and any learning areas to
cascade across our practices.
We will continue to work with our partners, regarding admissions, care at home, community
nursing teams and primary care with a view to embedding advanced care planning and end
of life support into a multi-disciplinary team delivery programme.
What Will The Impact Be?
Over the next two years the impact for end of life delivery will be:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Practices to increase their palliative care registers to the expected 1% end of life
population
Practices increasing the number of patients with an advanced care plan
Information sharing with the out of hours services
Increase in numbers of after death audits
Appointment of a GP mentor linked to the LOROS and Macmillan end of life initiative
Appointment of a palliative care specialist practitioner linked to LOROS and Macmillan
end of life initiative
Embedding of end of life service delivery within primary medical care
Increase in numbers of people dying at the place of their choice
Reduction in emergency hospital admissions

7.7 Planned care
A step change in productivity of elective care
We will achieve a step change in productivity of elective care by:
• 10% reduction in new and follow up outpatients across 18 specialities phased over 3
years
• 50% repatriation of outpatient and day case work into LLR commencing in 15/16
escalating in volume from 16/17 onwards
• 40% transfer of outpatient and day case activity into a community setting over the next 3
years. For all of the above it will be done with 6 specialities at a time
• Redefining Low Priority Treatments and reviewing guidelines for implementation from
Quarter 3 15/16
• 10% reduction in outpatient
Using PRISM work with the 18 specialities to review pathways and referral guidelines to
manage patients more successfully, to reduce referrals. For 15/16 we are concentrating on
the following specialities:
• ENT
• Ophthalmology
• Gastroenterology
• General Surgery
• Orthopaedics (including back pain)
109

230
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

•

Urology

•

Further work will be done on reducing follow ups by introducing Open Access Follow
Up, Remote Follow Up and enhancing Virtual Follow Up clinics. We will also review
patients who are in surveillance programmes and undergoing treatment which
historically has been classed as follow up activity (eg Barrett’s Oesophagus
in Gastroenterology
This plan will be implemented from April 2015 and will take 2 years to roll out across
all 18 specialities

•

•
•
•

•

Supporting the movement of activity from an acute setting to a community setting,
where appropriate – the plan has been worked up based on the first 6 specialities
mentioned above, and will begin with the movement of the following,
Approximately 250 ingual hernias from UHL into a community setting in the East from
April 2015
The provision of an ocular plastics service based at Melton Hospital commencing
December 2014
The movement of significant amount of endoscopy patients from UHL to Melton and
St Lukes – this is to include approximately 80 Barrett’s Oesophagus patients and will
provide capacity to support the national Dyspepsia campaign planned for early 2015
To commence a Pain Service outpatient and day case provision at Melton Hospital
from January 2015

We will be using the Alliance as a vehicle to deliver this change. Further shifts will be
worked up in year

The risks to the above are as follows:
•
•
•

The need for all partners to work in partnership to ensure the required change will be
key to the LLR Better Care Together Programme making progress
The ability to change organisational culture - this issue is currently part of the BCT
programme
Our ability to release the required savings in a timely manner and meet the demand
of our savings timetable - however, the LLR-wide BCT programme should provide
the means to achieve this aim.

For 2016/17, using the BCT framework, we will review a further nine specialties looking at:
•
•
•
•

Referral thresholds
Pathway redesign
Reduction of follow-up appointments
Shifts into a lower care setting.

This will ramp up the reduction of referrals, where appropriate, draw out clinical variation,
remove unnecessary steps in the patient pathway and avoid duplication.
This work programme has been scoped fully by and is being processed through the LLR
strategic outline case supporting LLR’s 5 year plan.
50% Repatriation
110

231
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
We know that there is significant flow out of LLR for routine outpatient and day case activity
across the borders. A lot of this is due to historical trends, lower waiting times, community
hospitals not providing complete pathways and double charging. Our plan is for 15/16 to
address all the above issues with both the public and the GP’s to encourage a repatriation of
LLR work back into LLR with as much of it being carried out in Community hospitals as
possible. We expect to see this commence in 16/17 increasing to a 50% repatriation over
the following 2 years
Low Priority Treatments
We are reviewing all of our current Low Priority Treatments and benchmarked Nationally
where we stand with others. We have also reviewed our Cosmetic policy and Prior
Approvals process. We plan to take this revised policy through all the relevant stakeholders
in early 2015 for implementation from Quarter 3 in 2015
What will the impact be?

Anticipated QIPP Savings
2015/16
(£’000)

2016/17
(£’000)

2,937

4,707

324

813

40% Left Shift

0

0

Threshold & Limited clinical effectiveness procedures

10

30

10% decommissioning
50% repatriation

Figures show cumulative benefit
7.8 Unscheduled and emergency care
7.8.1 Local vision
In line with the national vision LLR has identified priorities for emergency and urgent care for
the next two to five years.
There has been significant emphasis over the last year on operational delivery and the flow
of patients through A&E. While this still remains an imperative, the wider health and social
care strategy for urgent and emergency care must be in line with the local priorities, national
policies and the needs of the people in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.
Work will be undertaken early in 2014/15 to build on the initiatives undertaken in primary
care and community services, including the existing actions to improve patient flow at the
emergency care front door. To determine the scale of the urgent and emergency care
network that will be required, we will use a detailed understanding for our area of:
•
•
•
•

patient flows
the number and location of emergency and urgent care facilities
the service they provide
the most pressing needs for our population.
111

232
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

We will work with social care partners to review and model care for those leaving hospital
care and requiring support for their continuing health and social care needs. We will
recognise the contribution of independent sector providers to support step-down and support
for discharge, and how we can work with these partners to effectively and appropriately
transfer care. Appropriate and effective services available seven day a week underpin all the
initiatives in order to improve timely access, continuity of care, and continuing care close to
home. This system based approach is the critical to ensure that we are better prepared for
winter 2014/15.
7.8.2 NHS 111
The NHS 111 free helpline service is designed to transform access to urgent healthcare for
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. It is designed to make it easier for the public to
access the most appropriate services and will bring about improvements in the ways the
NHS delivers that care. The primary aims of NHS 111 are to:
•
•
•
•

Improve the public’s access to urgent healthcare.
Help people use the right service first time including self-care.
Provide commissioners with management information regarding the usage of
services.
Achieve national coverage in England by April 2013.

Locally the 111 service went live in the autumn of 2013. The current contract comes to an
end in March 2016.
NHS 111 is an important building block in the local vision for an integrated urgent and
emergency care services, and delivers a vital service in helping people with urgent care
needs to get the right advice in the right place, first time.
As we move forward NHS 111 will play a significant role in:
•
•
•
•

Improving the public’s access to urgent healthcare services by providing a single
access point;
Improving the efficiency of the urgent and emergency healthcare system by
connecting patients to the right service in the right place, first time;
Reducing the number of 999 incidents and ambulance conveyances to hospital; and,
Reducing the number of attendances to Accident and Emergency (A&E).

During 2015/16 we will be working with our planning unit to redesign and re-commission our
NHS 111 services in order to deliver a fully integrated system.
7.8.3 ELRCCG local urgent care plans (minor injury and illness)
In December 2014 Northern Doctors Urgent Care (NDUC) were confirmed by East
Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group as the preferred bidder to run the
new urgent care services across East Leicestershire and Rutland. The service will start 1
April 2015.
In response to feedback both during and after the consultation around urgent care services,
the opening hours will be extended at the Oadby centre beyond those that were originally
outlined.
112

233
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

The urgent care service will see all 33 GP practices providing minor injury and illness
services plus:
•

The Urgent Care Centre in Oadby open on weekdays from 8am-9pm and on
weekends and Bank Holidays from 8am-8pm.

•

Urgent care centres in Oakham, Market Harborough and Melton Mowbray open on
weekdays from 5pm-9pm and on weekends and Bank Holidays from 9am-7pm.

In the months leading up to the launch of the service on 1 April 2015, the CCG will be
working hard to inform the people of East Leicestershire and Rutland about the new service,
the opening hours, where they can get treated and when and what is classed as a minor
injury and illness. This is through an extensive communications, marketing and engagement
campaign.
7.8.4 Urgent & Emergency Care 2014/15 – 2015/16
Over the last year, there has been significant emphasis on operational delivery and flow
through A&E. Whilst this still remains important, the wider health and social care strategy for
urgent and emergency care needs aligning to reflect the local requirements, national
direction and the demographic and social needs of Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland,
collectively and individually.
The actions set out below are based on the recent recommendations of 5 key themes from
the urgent and emergency care review – phase one to support successful transformation of
an urgent and emergency care system to support our 5yr LLR BCT Strategy. The actions
are set out to reflect the five key elements identified in the national vision:
•
•
•
•

•

Provide better support for people to self –care.
Help people with urgent care needs to get the right advice in the right place, first
time.
Provide a highly responsive urgent care services outside of hospital so people no
longer choose to queue in A&E.
Ensure that those people with more serious or life threatening emergency care needs
receive treatment in centres with the right facilities and expertise in order to maximise
chances of survival and good recovery.
Connect all urgent and emergency care services together to that overall systems
becomes more than just the sum of its parts.

Our local recovery plans address each of these and the CCG will continue to support these
actions through delivery of its own strategy, designed to enable our population to maintain
their independence and reduce time spent avoidably in hospital.
What we will do in 2014/15 and 15/16
As outlined in the Keogh and Sturgess reviews, the LLR system will be informed by a
detailed understanding for our area of:
a.
b.
c.
d.

Patient flows
The number and location of emergency and urgent care facilities
The service they provide
The most pressing needs for our population.

113

234
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
We will work with social care partners to review and model care for those stepping down
from acute care and requiring support for continuing health and social care needs. We will
recognise the contribution of independent sector providers to support step down and support
for discharge and how we can work with these partners to effectively and appropriately
transfer care. Underpinning all the initiatives with appropriate and effective services across a
7 day week in order to provide improve timely access, continuity of care and continuing care
close to home.
The actions set out below will be further developed to support our local vision but provide the
foundation on which to build an effective future delivery model for urgent and emergency
care.
1. Provide better support for people to self–care
2014/15
•
•
•

Continued development and support for individual care planning for long-term
conditions as part of proactive case management. – ELRCCG Integrated Care Model
Review the impact of 111 rollout and agree actions for developing/further utilising
services and Directory of Services (DOS)
Monitor the impact of CCG programmes to implement tele-health and share the
learning from evaluation to support strategy decision making – Part of the BCF Plans
with Leicestershire County Council and Rutland County Council
2015/16
•
•

Review actions and refine to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose and in
line with the emergency and urgent care strategy
System navigation offers being strengthened through 111, OOH medical cover
and local Single Point of access triage

What will be different by the end of 2015/16 as a result of the interventions described
above?
By the End of 2015/16
•
•

Reducing admissions for patients with long-term conditions – please see the QIPP
Plan page x
Reducing length of stay for patients with long-term conditions

2. Help people with urgent care needs to get the right advice in the right place, first
time
2014/15
•
•
•
•

Development of individual medical care plans for all patients in Nursing and Care homes
– GP Support Framework
Evaluate current ambulatory pathways and identify further pathways for development –
UHL Campus impact to reduce LOS and admissions from ED
In line with 7 day working, review and agree actions for primary care access across a
seven day week – BCF Plan and Primary Care Transformation
Agree strategy for the management and continued development of the DOS to support
114

235
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

•
•

•

111 – LLR Plans
Align individual CCG initiatives with the LLR emergency care strategy to enable impact
assessment and learning for the wider health economy. – supporting winter resilience
Implementation of hot clinics to support diagnosis and access to diagnostics which
reduces the impact on ED in order to reduce the conversion rate from emergency
presentation to admission
Review ambulance conveyance rates and maximise the opportunities pre hospital care.
2015/16

In addition to continuing with all the above:
• Reduction in 0-1 day stays – See Admission Avoidance QIPP
• Review actions and refine to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose and in line
with the emergency and urgent care strategy
• Develop options for the deployment of the Directory of Ambulatory Care in 4 diagnostic
groups
• Implementation of rapid access to diagnostics for frail older people in community based
setting – BCF Plan for Leicestershire
• Delivery of Integrated Crisis response and overnight nursing and assessment service –
BCF Plan Leicestershire & Rutland
• Develop our future model for 111, 999 and OOHs to deliver better system resilience,
clinical triage and support to patients

What will be different by the end of 2015/16 as a result of the interventions described
above?
By the end of 2015/16
•
•
•
•

Optimising services across primary care and community services to support appropriate
care and advice close to home
Through communications strategies, ensure that public and service users have access to
information to enable appropriate access to services
Empower our patients to access services appropriately.
Empower our patients to maintain their independence for as long as possible.

3. Provide a highly responsive urgent care service outside of hospital so people no
longer choose to queue in A&E
2014/15
•

•
•

•

Through contract and service review, monitor the impact of the single front door (Urgent
Care Centre [UCC]) and the clinical pathways to support A&E deflection – reduce ED
attendances by 8227
Deliver a seven days a week strategy to enhance service availability and decision
making – linked to 5yr LLR BCT Strategy
Evaluate the impact of the intensive community support teams and share learning across
the health economy – linked to the 5yr LLR BCT Strategy – Bed utilisation and
consolidation
Evaluate the redesign to date in community and primary care to support intervention and
access to care pathways within community settings
2015/16

115

236
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
In addition to continuing with all the above:
• Review actions and refine to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose and in line
with the emergency and urgent care strategy
• Evaluate the 7-day pilots for complex patients with multiple long term conditions in
Primary Care

What will be different by the end of 2015/16 as a result of the interventions described
above?
By the End of 2015/16
•

Early access to alternative care pathways and support – admission avoidance QIPP

4. Ensure that those people with more serious or life-threatening emergency care
needs receive treatment in centres with the right facilities and expertise in order to
maximise chances of survival and good recovery
2014/15
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Support the Strategic Business Case for the re-modelling of A&E for fit with the future
vision – LLR 5yr BCT Strategy
Continue to define and deliver the operational recovery plans for A&E and the
emergency pathway as agreed through the Urgent Care Working Group
Increase direct access for GP referrals to the assessment units
Build on the medical consultant triage service to optimise appropriate alternative clinical
pathways.
Implementation of seven day working – clinical leadership and skill mix across the
Multidisciplinary Team
Reducing the ambulance handover time through process and flow
Admission avoidance for patients diagnosed through emergency presentation who would
be better managed through an alternative care model
2015/16

In addition to continuing with all the above:
• Review actions and refine to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose and in line
with the emergency and urgent care strategy
• Implement redesign of emergency floor at UHL
• Implement Urgent Care Improvement Plan
What will be different by the end of 2015/16 as a result of the interventions described
above?
By the end of 2015/16
•
•
•
•

24/7 senior clinical leadership
Compliance with national targets
Improve the health related quality of life for our patients.
Increase the numbers of patients having a positive experience of care.

116

237
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
5. Connect all urgent and emergency care services together so that overall systems
become more than just the sum of its parts

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

2014/15
Primary and secondary care clinical engagement to build on clinical pathway
development
Effective discharge planning within the trusts to support timely discharge/transfers of
care
Implementation of a single data set for discharge assessment across health and social
care – BCF Plan
Implementation of Nerve Centre software to support patient tracking and reduce blocks
in flow within the acute trust and with external providers
To review and redefine the process and support for assessment of continuing health
needs
Through the LLR 5 Year Better Care Together, agree strategic direction for increasing
integrated working between health and social care in the areas of Single Point of Access,
joint service assessment, service provision and care models
Re-review and update the escalation and capacity plan following the learning from
2013/14
Further develop the escalation tools for identification of surge pressures and multiagency response
Timely support and access to services for all patients on end-of-life and palliative care
pathways.
2015/16

In addition to continuing with all the above:
• Review actions and refine to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose and in line
with the emergency and urgent care strategy
• Improve local system navigation (SPA) to ensure that more people can receive timely
‘assured’ community interventions to support them if home is the safest place to receive
care –System Navigation

What will be different by the end of 2015/16 as a result of the interventions described
above?
By the End of 2015/16
•
•
•
•

Improved information to reduce system and communication blocks
Timely assessment and discharge processes to external providers
Common health and social care strategy and delivery framework for continuing health
and social care needs
To reduce the number of End-of-life deaths occurring in hospital due to lack of timely
provision of alternative pathways

7.8.4 Delivering the Urgent Care Agenda
Surge and Capacity Planning – planning for Winter 2014/15
The UCB leads the planning for seasonal peaks in demand, including the formation
coordination and oversight of the LLR Surge and Resilience Plan. Leicester City CCG hosts
the LLR Director of Emergency Care on behalf of the health and social care economy; this
117

238
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
post coordinates the LLR resilience plan in partnership with the System Resilience Group,
NHS England, the Local Resilience Forum and emergency planning leads across provider
organisations.
The LLR Surge and Resilience Plan is a live document which applies learning from major
peaks in demand or major incidents on a rolling basis. A formal sub-group of the UCB
meets monthly through the year to continuously develop this.
In 15/16, the System Resilience Group will oversee the delivery of these plans and provide
assurance of their robustness to the Central Midlands Directorate of NHS England. As
traditional winter funding will be included in CCG allocations in 15/16, we will deliver earlier
and more effective planning for operational resilience, mainstreaming those services which
have enabled flow in previous periods of surge. Learning logs from previous years will
inform the refreshed plan and alignment with the new models of care being formulated
across the health and social care economy will also be taken into account. Further, the
15/16 plan will involve a wider group of agencies than in previous years, such as housing
directorates of local authorities (to prevent housing related DTOC’s), GEM CSU (to minimise
delays in CHC processes) and our care home community (to prevent DTOC’s as a result of
delayed assessment).
Learning lessons to improve care
In the summer of 2014 the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland provider organisations
(University Hospital of Leicester and Leicestershire Partnership Trust) and 3 Clinical
Commissioning Groups published the Learning Lessons to Improve Care report. The report
detailed the findings of a clinical audit commissioned by health organisations in Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland to examine the quality of care of patients, and the action plan to
address the areas of improvement identified.
The Joint Action Plan outlines five themes:
•
•
•
•
•

System wide clinical leadership to ensure that patient care issues are addressed
across the health community
Patient and staff engagement, listening and action
Effective care across interfaces between providers of health services
Transforming Emergency Care in our wards, hospitals and communities
Transforming End Of Life Care

The Learning Lessons to Improve Care Clinical Taskforce developed the plan and continues
to meet monthly, chaired by Professor Lakhani and Dr Kevin Harris. This group is
developing a phased time-fame for delivery of the plan over the year ahead. The group will
also be responsible for ongoing oversight and monitoring of impact.
7.8.5 NHS services seven days a week
As a health and social care economy we recognise the impact weekends have on A&E
performance, system flow and weekend discharge. In line with the intentions of the Seven
Days a Week Forum report, actions are in place to support delivery of the standards. These
began at the start of 2014 and will develop and evolve over the next two years.

118

239
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
Emergency care
Demand for urgent and emergency care does not follow a pattern consistent with the
traditional working week of Monday to Friday, 9am to 5pm. There is evidence that suggests
that the standard of care a patient receives, their experiences and outcomes, differ
depending on the day of the week on which they receive care.
Whilst we would not suggest that current emergency and urgent services reflect the
traditional working week, there is not the same level of provision at weekends as there is on
a weekday across all services.
Recent actions
As a health and social care economy we have recognised the impact weekends have on
A&E performance, system flow and weekend discharge. In line with the intentions of the
Seven Days a Week Forum report, actions are in place to support delivery of the required
standards, starting from the beginning of 2014. This work will develop and evolve over the
next two years.
During the first two weeks of January 2014 the health economy, led by UHL, undertook two
‘super weekends’ aimed at emulating weekday service levels and resources.
While UHL enhanced their resources to support clinical decision making, MDT support and
management co-ordination, other health and social care partners actively engaged in the
‘super weekends’ to help with patient flow and particularly the discharge process, including
admission avoidance, facilitated discharge, providing rehabilitation, step-down care and coordinating packages of care, where appropriate. Key performance indicators (KPIs) had
been agreed prior to the ‘super weekends’ to measure success.
The actions set out below build on what was learned from the ‘super weekends’ and are in
line with the standards set out in the Seven Days a Week Forum report.

2014/15
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•

Identifying within each service the key actions which made the difference to weekend
performance and delivery against the KPIs
Establish immediate plans/actions to sustain improved provision and outcomes balanced against affordability and provision across a seven-day period.
Identify the resources required to achieve seven-day on a sustainable basis to feed into
strategic direction in the medium to longer term.
Review seven-day provision across wider services including:
1. primary care
2. mental health
3. community services
Agree actions for each service to comply with the 5/10 identified standards and establish
a matrix to support delivery
To review service models with social care partners to support seven-day working within
health
To work and engage with wider independent sector partners to provide services and
support service provision over weekends to facilitate timely discharge over seven-days
or in the shorter term to optimise discharge Monday to Friday
To continue to work with health and social care partners to plan and model future
provision over a seven-day week and explore appropriate service models.
119

240
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
2015/16
In addition to continuing with all the above:
• Review actions and refine to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose and in line
with the emergency and urgent care strategy
What will be different by the end of 2015/16 as a result of the interventions described
above?
By the End of 2015/16
•
•

seven-day working will be integral to service provision with a significant reduction in the
variation in urgent and emergency care provision weekends to week days
The CCG will have robust triangulation of quality data from provider trusts which reflects
the impact of service change on care delivery and outcome

The provision of an effective and efficient urgent and emergency care system will be key to
the delivery of our vision for a sustainable and high quality model of care over the next 5
years. Planned changes will result in a vastly different model in five years’ time, with the
form and function of the urgent care system configured in a community-centric manner. Our
Better Care Fund plans will enable this change and we will work with our providers to ensure
these changes are both sustainable and meet the needs of our population.
7.9 Maternity, children and young people
Children and their families will continue to be an important priority for the CCG in 2015/16 as
we continue the work that has already commenced in relation to the CCG’s Integrated Plan
for 2012 to 2015.
The Children and Maternity Service are part of the Better Care Together Programme. This
workstream will require a range of organisations to work together efficiently and effectively
to improve productivity across universal, targeted and specialist services to continue delivery
of significant key priorities including:

•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Establish integrated pathways across primary and secondary care thereby reducing
duplication and maximising productivity
Develop vertical integration model for health workforce
Commitment to developing local provision across health local authority , VCS and
communities together through joint commissioning, to ensure local services meet
needs and stop high cost out of area placements(complex care).
Reduce duplication of structures and maximise productivity
Reduce inpatient activity and hospital-based outpatient contacts
Improve emotional health and wellbeing for children
Continue to work together to fulfil our responsibilities under the Children and Families
Act 2014 including delivery of Personal Health Budgets and Education, Health and
Care Plan for those who are eligible
Enable all children and young people to maximise their capabilities and have control
over their lives
Develop networks with regional providers to ensure children and young people have
access to appropriate tertiary services
Bring all children’s services together under one umbrella with the acute sector.
120

241
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

•
•
•
•

Improved access to maternity services
Develop neonatal pathway across LLR and East Midlands
Improve perinatal outcomes
Review options for a sustainable model for maternity and neonatal services that
meets national standards.

7.9.1 Maternity
Over the last few years we have seen an increase in the number of births and an increase in
complexity and although we have better than or average rates in relations to, perinatal /
infant mortality, teenage pregnancy and breastfeeding rates it is widely accepted that we
have pockets of deprivation where these rates are significantly higher. This high level of
need results in a greater demand on maternity and neonatal services.
To provide high quality safe maternity and neonatal services based on best practice and
which are easily accessible. These services will be supported by the appropriate
infrastructure across both primary and secondary care. There will also be sufficient capacity
to care for babies requiring tertiary care, whilst consolidating and further developing neonatal
services. These ambitions link to our strategic objectives and will aid delivery as follows:
•
•

•

•
•

Mothers will continue to be offered choice over where to give birth, in particular,
promoting normality.
Maximise access to services to ensure all mothers are seen by a midwife at an early
stage in their pregnancy (objective two). Develop services to improve the
identification of babies at risk of poor perinatal outcome.
Help to increase the number of people with a positive experience of services by
offering personalised holistic care that is well integrated between primary and
secondary services (objectives three and four)
Babies needing specialist neonatal care will continue to be treated at the right level
(objective one)
Work with partners across the East Midlands neonatal network to ensure adequate
cot capacity. Expand neonatal outreach services to enhance the support to
paediatric wards and to parents at home. In the context of the wider UHL site
reconfiguration develop a robust plan to consolidate all women’s and neonatal
services on a single site supported by a flexible multi-disciplinary workforce that
responds to changes in volume and complexity

7.9.2 Children and young people
East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group are fully aware of the issues
facing their children and young people and are clear that the Government sees the delivery
of correct and appropriate services for children and young people as a key priority for
commissioners. Under the Better Care Together Programme children, young people and
family’s needs will be prioritised as set out below:
Reduce duplication of structures and maximise productivity
Through Joint Commissioning requirements as set out in the Children and Families Act and
utilising Better Care Together as a driver, the CCG is working closely with the Local
Authorities to map, plan and commission services jointly. This work has began by
121

242
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
establishing a multi-agency Joint Commissioning Group which oversees and steers this
work, and priorities for services to be considered in the first instance are currently being
identified.
Mapping work will be commenced to explore models for delivering sustainable children’s
health provision across Leicestershire and within regional networks where care is delivered
for our children and their families. The mapping will include integration of providers to
reduce duplication of posts across organisations across UHL and LPT bringing all children’s
services together under one umbrella.
Implementing Personal Health Budgets/SEND Reforms
The CCG now has a process and is in a position to allocate and deliver personal
health budgets for children who are eligible for continuing care. The CCG are
now working with the Local Authorities to ensure that these personal health
budgets can work with personal budgets from social care and/or education as
appropriate and be offered jointly where this would benefit the child. The CCG is
now considering the contractual changes necessary to be in a position to roll out
personal health budgets beyond continuing care, as is required from April 2015.
Reduce inpatient activity and hospital-based outpatient contacts by integrated
pathways across primary and secondary care thereby reducing duplication and
maximising productivity
Work will continue to deliver pathways and outcomes in relation to a seven day a week
Children’s Community Nursing Provision and to improve Children’s Emergency Care
Pathway through work with UHL and Primary Care.
Through the Better Care Together Programme further pathways will be reviewed to reduce
duplication, increase productivity and move activity from acute care to community. These
include hepatitis B, constipation, behavioural management, palliative care and respiratory
care
To enable changes to be made the CCG will work with a variety of multi professional
colleagues from primary, secondary and tertiary care, local authorities and Voluntary sector
organisation.
Improve emotional health and wellbeing for children
Child and Adolescent health and wellbeing services continue to be a high priority locally.
Mental health problems in children are associated with educational failure, family disruption,
disability, offending and anti-social behaviour, placing demands on health, social services,
schools and the youth justice system.
During 2014/15 the following developments took place
•
•
•

Primary Mental Health Professional Advice Telephone service was expanded to be
available throughout office hours,
Introductory courses in child mental health were delivered to over 600 staff across a
range of partner agencies,
Decision taken to transfer the Tier 4 unit (Oakham House) to Coalville Hospital from
April 2015 on a temporary basis.
122

243
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

•
•

An independent review of CAMHS community service was commissioned and
completed.
Expansion of family therapy service to support educational psychology and social
care practitioners.

As part of the Better Care Together Programme, an integrated emotional health and
wellbeing pathway for children and young people will be established. There will be a joint
leadership board, a stakeholder reference group and task and finish groups. Priorities will
be:
•
•
•

•

Commission a counselling service for children and young people
Establish a specialist community eating disorders service for children and young
people
Implement improvements to the CAMHS community service to address waiting
times, access and discharge processes.
Ensure that specifications are in place for all Tier 2 and Tier 3 CAMHS.
Specifications to include referral time targets, key performance indicators and
outcome measures.

7.10 Continuing Healthcare UPDATED
NHS Continuing Healthcare (NHS CHC) means a package of on-going care that is arranged
and funded solely by the NHS where the individual has been found to have a primary health
need. Such care is provided to an individual aged 18 and over to meet needs that have
arisen as a result of disability, accident or illness. Eligibility for NHS CHC places no limits on
the settings in which the package of support can be offered or on the type of service
delivery. Therefore, individuals can receive CHC in any setting, including their own home or
a care home. CHC is a complex and highly sensitive area which can affect people at a very
vulnerable stage of their lives.
ELR CCG is the lead commissioner for CHC for LLR. Our vision for the best quality NHS
CHC provision across LLR for all adults (aged 18 and over) that require care for an extended
period of time to meet physical or mental health needs that have arisen as a result of
disability, accident or illness are:
•
•
•

•
•
•

to develop continuing healthcare provision that is patient focused and able to meet
individual needs (including the needs of the carers)
to ensure services are equitable, safe and able to meet the needs of a diverse
population
to determine eligibility for continuing healthcare, we will ensure effective and clear
systems and processes, along with agreed local protocols are in place across health
and social care providers to enable service users to be assessed appropriately using
the continuing healthcare checklist, if required, and the national decision support tool
(DST)
to ensure a multi-disciplinary approach to assessments and review
to ensure an appropriate fast-track system is in place for service users that have a
rapidly deteriorating conditions and may be entering a terminal phase
to include NHS CHC and complex case management service delivery.

ELR CCG will be working closely with our local health economy partners to ensure effective,
fair, cost efficient and high quality NHS CHC delivery. We will be working in partnership with
123

244
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
secondary and community care to make sure the eligibility process to determine CHC
healthcare provision is seamless, timely and integrated. We will also be working in
partnership with our local authorities to review our processes for how we manage decisionmaking for NHS CHC, complex case management and service integration of personal health
budgets.
7.10.1 Personal health budgets
A personal health budget is an amount of money that is allocated to an individual to allow
them to meet their health and well-being needs in a way that best suits them. By April 2014,
everyone in receipt of NHS CHC will have a right to ask for a personal health budget
including a direct payment. By October 2014, this will change to a right to be informed. At
the heart of a personal health budget is a care plan which sets out the individual’s health and
social care needs, and includes the desired outcomes, the amount of money in the budget
and how this will be spent. Personal health budgets form part of the choice healthcare
pathway and will support patients and carers to have choice and control of the management
of their healthcare condition, working alongside healthcare professionals.
ELR CCG is working with our local authorities and health partners to establish effective
systems to deliver personal health budgets to individuals eligible through the NHS CHC
process. An LLR steering group has been established to plan and develop policies and
procedures for implementation for on-going management of personal health budgets.
Memberships includes health and social care representatives.
Our local health economy is taking forward the delivery of personal health budgets and this
work will continue into 2014/2015 in line with national and local directives and guidance.
What Will The Impact Be?
For 2014/2015 the impact of NHS CHC and PHB management and delivery will be:
•

•
•

•

•

•

A seamless decision making process to determine patients eligible for NHS CHC in a
timely way. This will support reduction in excess bed days and determining the correct
pathway for a patient from the outset. To include NHS CHC fast track patients.
Improved working with social care, particularly regarding the delivery of PHB from 1 April
2014.
To embed PHB delivery into the day to day running of NHS CHC. There is evidence to
suggest that enabling individuals to be part of the choice process of managing their own
condition leads to improved quality and cost effectiveness in NHS CHC management.
ELR CCG on behalf of LLR CCG’s and in partnership with local authority leads, is
expecting, by April 2016, that personal health budgets or integrated personal budgets
across health and social care will be available for people with learning disabilities, in line
with the Sir Stephen Bubb’s review.
ELR CCG on behalf of LLR CCG’s are planning to roll out and expand the availability of
Personal health budgets additionally throughout 2015/16 to people where evidence
suggests that it could be beneficial and in line with local health & social care priorities
and strategies.
Children’s services will continue to progress the integrated approach through integrated
education, health and care plans within the SEND programme.

124

245
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

8. Activity, Performance and Financial Implications (UPDATED)
8.1 Overview of financial position
We entered into a programme of transformation and quality improvement in 2014/15 and our
financial plan underpinned the strategic aims of the organisation. The planned control total of
£3,308k surplus (1% of total allocation) is on track to deliver and the non-recurrent
headroom fund of £7.985m (2.5% of programme allocation) has been utilised to aid service
transformation.
We have an ambitious QIPP plan which has been worked through with our local providers of
£8.970m and the CCG has identified a series of QIPP schemes which are currently
delivering the target saving.
The 2.5% headroom has been invested in areas to provide non-recurrent support to the
delivery of the QIPP target, RTT targets, the national continuing healthcare risk pool and the
collaborative Better Care Together programme.
In order to reduce the level of risk that we were exposed to during the year a number of key
cost pressures were identified and funded in the 2014/2015 contracts. These included
increases in activity in out-of-county contracts and independent sector contracts, as well as
urgent care pressure across the health economy.
The CCG identified a number of opportunities to drive through quality improvements within
the health economy and has worked with partners to ensure that these programmes were
progressed, for example with the local authority, to further develop integrated care models.
Work has commenced with the community services provider on developing schemes to
reduce emergency admissions. To support this within the health economy ELR CCG is a key
stakeholder in the Better Care Together Strategy.
8.2 Financial plan for 2015/16
8.2.1 Planning assumptions
Planning assumptions have been applied to the 2015/16 financial plan in line with national
guidance, and local assumptions have been used where appropriate as detailed below.

125

246
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

Description

Type

2015/16
£'000

Allocation Growth (+%)

Programme
Running Costs

Gross Provider Efficiency (-%)

Acute
Non Acute

-3.8%
-3.8%

Provider Inflation (+%)

Acute
Non Acute

2.73%
2.73%

Demographic Growth (+/-%)

Non=Demographic Growth (+/-%)

Contingency (%)

6.85%
-10.00%

1.68%

Continuing
Healthcare
Prescribing

8.32%
6%
0.50%

Non-Recurrent Headroom (%)

1%

Surplus

1%

Running Cost (spend per head (£))

21.63

8.2.2 Planning running costs
The running costs allocation for 2015/16 for ELR CCG is £7,077k after a 10% reduction was
applied to the 2014/15 allocation. The Commissioning Support Unit charge contained within
this figure is circa £2.5m. The CCG is planning to breakeven against the running cost
allocations in 2015/16.
.

126

247
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
8.3 Key bridging movements from 2014/15 forecast outturn to 2015/16 plan
Table 2

Financial plan 2015/16
Allocations
Programme Revenue Resource Limit- growth
Better Care Fund
Remove Non Recurrent allocations
Running Costs Revenue Resource Limit- growth
Previous year surplus brought forward - growth (surplus in 13/14 £3,047k vs 14/15 £3,308k)

Expenditure
Adjustments to month 7 forecast outturn
Non recurrent expenditure adjustment
Net deflator - acute
Net deflator - non acute
Demographic growth
Non demographic growth (CHC & LD pooled budget)
Prescribing cost pressure
MRET change from 30% to 50%
Full year effects
Cost pressures
Recurrent Investment - BCF
Recurrent Investment - Other
Non recurrent Headroom
Non recurrent Contingency
Winter Funding
Increase to in year surplus
Pay uplift
Income/Other Funding Source

£'000

%

21,881
5,344
(8,298)
(786)
263
18,404

6.40%

7,372
(15,967)
(1,813)
(1,634)
4,001
2,406
2,634
1,076
223
3,682
9,459
8,489
3,412
1,784
1,736
261
96
(1,246)
25,971

Shortfall in funding growth ie QIPP

-1.07%
-1.07%
1.68%
8.32%
6.00%

1.00%
0.50%

1.20%

(7,567)

8.4 Our Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) schemes
The QIPP schemes for 2014/15 predominantly focus around the Better Care Together
Strategy and relate to the following seven care pathways – these have been detailed as part
of our commissioning plans in Section 7
QIPP schemes are monitored in year by the Finance and Performance Committee and the
Strategy, Planning and Commissioning Committee. The collaborative QIPP schemes are
also monitored by the Commissioning Collaborative Board which reports to each CCG
Governing Body.

127

248
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT
8.5 Key Financial risks and opportunities for 2015/16
We have funded cost pressures within the plan in order to address risks across both the
acute and non-acute sector for 2015/16. The level of risk has been assessed as relatively
low and is focused principally around over performance of acute contracts and Continuing
Healthcare.
Potential mitigations for these risks, should they materialise, include the use of the
contingency reserve, non-recurrent headroom and slippage of investments.
8.6 Key capital schemes
The CCG is undertaking a major capital development in relation to Market Harborough
Hospital - the total investment required is £7.8m (Check with KE/TBC). The purpose of the
capital investment is to rationalise the health community estate and move from two separate
hospital sites, St. Luke’s and Market Harborough District Hospital, to a single hospital site
solution. This will provide clinical benefits insofar as the Day-Case Unit, the In-patient Unit
and Outpatients (including diagnostic services) will be available in a single location. The two
into one community hospital site has always been the key strategic driver for the CCG,
providing integration of facilities and services within modern ‘fit for purpose’ buildings,
enabling flexibility by sharing use with local providers. The development will also enable
primary care, community and mental health services to deliver more integrated services
closer to home to significantly reduce the need for referral and admission to local acute
hospitals, whilst facilitating earlier discharge into the community.
Responsibility for GP Information Technology (IT) transferred from NHS England to the CCG
in 2014/15 and the CCG should receive circa £900k for this investment each year.
The CCG has identified a capital requirement for replacement of IT and other capital
equipment relating to infrastructure obligations of £50k each year.
A budget of circa £1m has also been identified to ensure provision of clinical equipment in
community hospitals and the new build of St Lukes.
9. Enablers (UPDATED)
9.1 Quality enablers
There are a significant number of quality enablers that all play a key part in ensuring that
patients receive high quality, responsive patient care. Detailed within the table below are key
quality enablers that we are taking forward.
Quality enabler
Quality and Outcome
Framework (QOF)
GP Practice Support
Framework

How it measures quality
QOF rewards GP practices for the provision of ‘quality of care’
and helps to standardise improvements in the delivery of
clinical care
The GP Framework is designed as the Operational plan for
Primary care. This links how GPs, Social Care and
Community Services can work together to improve the quality
and outcomes for our patients. In addition this includes how
GPs can improve quality of prescribing; illustrate the use of an
evidenced based approach to care and engagement with
patients. This is all collated in a detailed practice quality
profile, which is discussed at the annual quality practice
128

249
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

Commissioning for
Quality and Innovation
(CQUIN) Payment
Framework
Quality Schedule

ELR CCG Integrated Plan
2013/14-2015/16

Quality Premiums

Primary Care Quality
Indicator
Compassion in Practice:
Nursing, Midwifery and
Care Staff – Our Vision
and Strategy

appraisal.
The CQUIN payment framework enables commissioners to
reward excellence by linking a proportion of a provider’s
income to National, Regional and Locally agreed quality
improvement goals
Quality Schedules are an integral part of the contract
management process, outlining the standards of care
expected from the services provided to our patients. Quality
Schedules are developed with senior clinical provider and
commissioner input and meetings are held regularly
throughout the year to discuss performance against the
indicators.
Sets out to establish robust arrangements to operate an
effective and efficient organisation that ensures that patient
and carer voices are at the centre of all decision making to
ensure high quality care
Empowered local clinicians delivering better outcomes;
increased information for patients to make choices; and
greater accountability to the communities the NHS serves
It is made up of a range of elements that make up a rounded
picture of primary care quality, developed in conjunction with
all GP Board members
Published by the Chief Nursing Officer for England in
December 2012, the strategy sets out the vision for nursing,
midwifery and care staff which outlines compassion, dignity
and respect as key enablers to the delivery of long-term
sustainable high quality nursing and care staff workforce.

9.2 Governance
We have developed a comprehensive governance framework which will ensure the delivery
of this strategy (see Figure XX below: the committee structure). This includes clear lines of
accountability for delivery of the various elements described within and performance
management arrangements to ensure that progress is made against plan. The governance
framework is regularly reviewed to ensure it remains fit for purpose to support the delivery of
the strategic aims. In terms of individual responsibility, key deliverables are written into
personal objectives, which are reviewed regularly by line managers and the committees to
which they report; and on which they will be formally appraised annually.
Where common areas of commissioning exist between the three LLR CCGs, collaborative
governance structures have been put in place, this includes the Commissioning
Collaborative Board and the Provider Performance Assurance Group. These groups
oversee a number of shared areas including performance management and delivery of QIPP
and transformational programmes, in addition to shared contracts with providers and other
initiatives. Reports from these groups are received by CCG Governing Body.
ELR CCG Governing Body and delegated committees

East Leicestershire and
Rutland CCG Governing Body

129

250
Brandy Miller – WORKING DRAFT

Audit
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Primary Care
Commissionin
g Committee

Quality and
Performance
Committee

Medicines
Management
Group

Key:
meetings.

Finance
and Activity
Committee

Strategy,
Planning and
Commissioning
Committee

Commissioning
Collaborative
Meetings

Out of Hospital
Development
Group

Competition
and
Procurement
Panel

indicates collaborative

130

251

9.3 Organisational development (NEW)
Critical to the successful delivery of our three year strategy and annual plan is the on-going
development and delivery of our OD plan. The term OD, can at its simplest, be used to
describe any organisational wide effort to increase an organisations effectiveness and/or
efficiency and our OD plan includes a variety of interventions designed to support the
development of the CCG and local healthcare system.
In 2014, the CCG updated and published its OD plan 2014-16 which details a number of
interventions required against a number of areas and grouped into five sections which are:
governance and assurance; leadership development; organisational effectiveness; primary
care development and system change.
Good progress has been made during 2014 in a number of areas. Following a board
development session in January, the CCG has strengthened its clinical leadership on the
governing body. The annual appraisal process has been refreshed and the majority of staff
attended appraisal training. An ongoing programme of team development activities has
been delivered at both individual team level and for the organisation as a whole. At
departmental level, almost all teams have benefited from tailored development workshops
which included group and team discussions and activities about team performance and used
MBTI to identify individual team preferences and identify how team members can maximise
how they work together. At organisational level, in April 2014 the CCG launched its Team
Challenge which culminated in a staff event in July 2014 and in December 2014 the CCG
held its second end of year review for all staff which included discussing priorities for 2015.
All team events have evaluated extremely well with staff and contribute to improving staff
engagement as measured by the annual staff survey.
During 2015, the CCG will continue to address the OD priorities in the OD plan and respond
to the new organisational challenges that are presented by the changing NHS landscape, for
example, the introduction of co-commissioning and changes at NHS England. In addition,
the CCG is working across the system with other health and social care organisations to
address the wider challenges facing the local health economy to transform services and
deliver high quality care for all closer to home with less financial resources.
9.3.1 Workforce: (NEW)
The emerging models of care described in our Better Care Together (BCT)strategy and as
discussed in the sections above, highlight a number of workforce considerations and
demonstrate clearly how getting our workforce right will act as an enabling tool to support
our goals and objectives.
For example, shifting care from secondary to community settings will require a review of both
generalist and specialist skill balance, the need to ensure a supply of nurses becoming
community focused over time and the need to ensure more social care staff are available to
support people at home. It is therefore essential that there is a clear understanding of the
impact on Workforce across the LLR Health and Social Care system.
The Better Care Together Workforce Enabling Group has been established to provide
support, leadership and delivery of the development of a workforce planning and education
commissioning strategy across the LLR system. Its core membership is based on the
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Local Education Training Committee (LETC),
supported by Health Education East Midlands (HEEM), with support from health provider
organisation Directors of Human Resources, social care (Local Authorities and Skills for
Care), CCGs and local universities.
130

252

The group has already undertaken two key pieces of work:
• A short term workforce intelligence gathering exercise, to highlight and prioritise the
immediate workforce issues in LLR (completed May –June 2014)
• A longer term piece of work to identify the strategic workforce development initiatives
arising from the emerging Service Delivery Framework and the suggested future models
of care (July-September 2014).
The emerging models of care highlight a number of workforce considerations that will need
to be addressed; and the advantage of utilising the existing LETC governance arrangements
is that this provides a ready built mechanism to incorporate the Health Education East
Midlands infrastructure and LETB governing body to ensure alignment with educational
investment priorities. It also provides a link and some synergy with similar transformational
programmes across the wider geography.
Key recent findings:
The LETC, leading the work has begun to identify priority areas for workforce development:
• Primary Care Workforce (GP and practice nurses) - (GP fill rate 66%; LLR FTE practice
nurse to 1,000 population ratio is lower than neighbouring organisations and England as
a whole)
• Wider workforce development (Bands 1 to 4 and equivalent)
• Integration (secondary, tertiary, primary and social care, medical and non-medical)
• Agency and other elements of the non-substantive workforce (current agency spend is
c. 8%)
• Community nursing capacity (15.2% of qualified nurses in LLR work in the community).
Subsequent areas for development that are in progress are:
• production of a workforce plan that outlines the impact of any proposed change in
workforce numbers and roles in acute, primary, community and social care with the
impact of external factors including:
o Achieving a reduced reliance on agency and locum usage
o Improved recruitment and retention of staff.
It is recognised that a variety of staffing and organisational models will be required to support
this service change building on wider NHS experience and best practice.
Key specific initiatives being developed to respond to the transition of our workforce include:
• Different staffing and organisational models to support this service change
• Translating and articulating the future workforce in the right numbers, in the right place
and with the right behaviours to best support patient care
• Review of both the specialist and generalist skill balance
• Ensuring that the supply of nurses and other health care professionals are more
community focussed over time
• Changing professional skills in primary care settings
• Developing skills and competencies that support more integrated working (across
professions, acute and community settings and other healthcare boundaries including
social care)
• High acuity, specialist led services in an acute setting
• Utilising Educational and Training Opportunities to support emerging workforce
development
• Ensure investment in areas like Learning Beyond Registration, Wider Workforce Funds,
Education Commissioning and other funding streams are aligned to the transformation
agenda, e.g. recent analysis on LBR spend on frail older people was 4% of total budget
when it has been identified as a high priority for the local healthcare community

131

253

•
•

Ensure practice placements and support for mentors, supervisors and educators support
multi professional and multi-agency solutions
Ensuring the LLR workforce meets the health and social care needs of our population as
expressed by the Clinical Reference Group of the BCT programme.

Integration and innovation are the ‘golden threads’ within the emerging phases of workforce
planning. Work is being undertaken to understand capacity planning requirements and
associated implications (i.e. cost). Three key factors are:
• Training and education for an integrated workforce
• Workforce planning and future modelling
• Role review and development to meet integrated system needs.
Workforce planning has key interdependencies with all of the eight BCT clinical
workstreams. Workstreams will be supported with work on improved workforce metrics;
primary care workforce requirements; and overcoming medical workforce challenges.
Nursing and Midwifery Revalidation
From the end of 2015, all nurses and midwives on the NMC register will be required to
revalidate their registration every three years at the point of renewal. Any nurse or midwife
that does not revalidate will lapse from the register. The revalidation process will involve
gathering evidence to confirm that they:

•
•
•
•

continue to remain fit to practise;
have met the requirements for practice and continuing professional development;
have sought and received third party feedback which has informed their reflection on
their practice; and
have sought and received third party confirmation that they are fit to practise.

The CCG is working with the nursing directorate at NHS England to inform its providers
nursing staff and practice nurses, in addition to patients and the public on details of the
revalidation process. Nurses will be expected to as part of their annual appraisal process be
able to demonstrate that they have referenced the NMC Code of Conduct into their working
practices. In conjunction with NHS England nursing directorate we are offering to primary
care nurses the opportunity of using an electronic system which is an online e-Portfolio
which has been specifically designed to manage appraisal. A demonstration of this system
is taking place through a Protected Learning Time event in February 2015 when Practice
nurses attended a presentation on Nurse Revalidation and the HeART, revalidation and
education for nurses, midwives and care support staff should they decide to use it.

9.4 Involving and informing
Involving and informing people is a critical part of delivering our CCG’s vision and lies at the
heart of what we do. When out organisation was established in shadow form in 2011, we
sought views on what people wanted us to focus on. As a result our vision and strategic
132

254

aims were directly influenced by what our patients, partners and stakeholders, staff and
clinicians told us. We remain committed to this approach and to continuous improvement of
the way in which we involve local people in planning, influencing and improving local
healthcare.
We have already made significant progress in developing strong links with our communities
and in developing effective communications and engagement channels. In 2013/2014 we
undertook several programmes of proactive engagement to assist us in developing our
plans. Where service changes were proposed we worked closely with local people and our
partners to ensure their views were taken into account and were able to influence our
decision making. This was evident in our wide public engagement on plans to transform local
urgent care services which led to full public consultation, concluding in 2014/15. The views
of local people helped shape and refine our plans and led to a change in the proposed new
opening hours for one of the urgent care centres.
We use methodology recommended by NHS England and the Department of Health (shown
below) to ensure local people are appropriately involved throughout our commissioning
cycle:
Fig 5.0 The commissioning cycle

133

255

We also keep up to date with latest developments and thinking in public and patient
involvement and ensure our approach reflects best practice. This includes the NHS Citizen
model.
Our Involving and Informing Strategy, which sets out in full our commitment and plans for
communications, engagement and involvement, was refreshed in 2013, setting tough but
really important challenges for the CCG to improve the way in which we involve local people.
It was well received and encouragingly, although the revision of the strategy pre-dated the
publication of national guidance for commissioners on the way we work with local people
(Transforming Participation in Healthcare: The NHS belongs to us all, NHS England,
September 2013), many of the key ideas and requirements are already underway in ELR
CCG. We continue to look at how we can further improve based on the recommendations
set out in the national guidance and new planning guidance published in December 2014
and this is informing the priorities for the remainder of the year and beyond.

Priorities in 2014/15 and beyond
•

Patient experience
Working with the CCG’s Quality Team, we are maximising plans to improve health
services by capturing and acting on patient experience and ensuring feedback is
converted to insights that influence our decision making. This work is particularly
important in light of the findings of the Francis Inquiry. Key projects in support of this
work include a joint listening project carried out in conjunction with HealthWatch
Rutland and Rutland County Council which saw us reaching out to communities
across Rutland, the systematic use of our’ listening booth’ which will be taken to
locations across East Leicestershire and Rutland to gather views on healthcare from
local people and the introduction of ‘mystery shoppers’ to get real-time feedback on
patients’ experiences which can then be used to make positive changes.

•

Equalities and seldom heard people and groups
As part of our commitments under our published equalities objectives, we will be
undertaking further development of plans to reach out to, and involve, our local
‘seldom heard’ groups and individuals. We know East Leicestershire and Rutland has
a diverse population made up of many different groups and communities. While we
have made many strong partnerships already, we have more work to do to ensure
we are listening and responding to all sections of our community. This work also
includes how we can improve links with carers and volunteers who provide such a
vital role in supporting individuals and the delivery of healthcare.

•

Partnerships and collaboration
We also recognise that local partnerships and collaboration are fundamental to
successful commissioning of high quality and efficient healthcare services that meet
the needs of local people. This year will see continued efforts to strengthen
relationships with local partners including neighbouring CCGs, Leicestershire County
Council, Rutland County Council, our district councils, patient representative groups,
the voluntary sector and our providers to create and maximise shared opportunities –
enabling a whole system approach to tackling health issues and also social and
134

256

economic issues which impact on health. We will also continue to work with
Healthwatch organisations which have a vital role to play in the scrutiny of our work
and in championing the voice of patients.
•

Our GP members
Ensuring clinical views are heard and acted upon is very important and we will
continue to provide support for locality meetings, practice visits and Protected
Learning Time events for GPs, practice nurses, healthcare assistants and practice
managers and administrative staff to promote best practice care and service and to
ensure there are effective channels for feedback.

•

Our staff
Our staff are instrumental in helping us to deliver effective health services, and in
2014/15 we will be building on work undertaken already to help each of our
employees to understand how they can ensure the CCG makes real improvements in
local healthcare, and how they each have a role in appropriately involving patients,
practices and partners in our plans and decision making.

9.5 Information Management and Technology (IM&T) Enablers to Support the Primary
Care Operational Plan 2014-16 (GP IT)
This area has had significant focus particularly for primary care, below are the current
initiatives and how these link to national expectations of primary care IM&T:
Electronic Care Management Plan
• A centralised electronic care plan will be used and a clinical portal available for S1
and EMIS Web so an electronic care plan can be completed at GP Practice level,
communicated easily with patients and also with Out of Hours and NHS 111.
WIFI In Care Homes
• A programme of installing WIFI in care homes across ELR will assist GPs accessing
and updating patient records. This will also assist community services in updating
care management plans. Practices have expressed the possibility of Skype
consultations and the use of IPads which could tie in with ‘one home one practice’
care home allocation
Multi-Disciplinary Development (MDT)
• To use a web based software to enable the MDT to be truly multi-disciplinary in that
attendance is not required. Web/Tele conferencing and viewing a central desktop is
all possible remotely. This allowing for more productive use of time of the individuals
involved.
Telehealth
• To explore the use of the ‘Flo’ text messaging service so routine results and care
monitoring can be communicated without always a face to face consultation.
Medical Interoperability Gateway (MIG)
• Exploring a preferred solution for record sharing across clinical systems. Time and
training in primary care needs to be considered alongside the Healthcare Gateway.

135

257

Other IMT Initiatives Supporting Primary Care
In addition there are a number of IM&T initiatives which the CCG are supporting the delivery
of in conjunction with the Greater East Midlands CSU and Leicestershire Health Informatics
Service (HIS). These are:
•

•

•
•
•

•

eDSM – Enhanced Data Sharing Model for system1 GP practices. This will enable
the sharing of patient records across healthcare organisations obtaining patient
consent
Summary Care Records (SCR) - a national programme and allows elements of a
patient’s health record to be shared nationally should the need arise in an urgent
care situation. A summary of patient medication and health status is included
Care.data - allows a patient’s health record to be shared and used for planning of
services
GP2GP - this allows for electronic transfer of patient records between practices
Electronic Prescribing (EPS). To allow repeat prescriptions and also to deal with
potential inaccuracies with handwritten scripts and to maintain a secure patient
record
Reporting Poor Quality Care - more concise system of reporting concerns with
patient care will be available on system1 and EMIS web.

The below table represents all the initiatives currently active and whether these are a
national/local priority. These are in line with the GP IT Operating Model as published by NHS
England which outlines the responsibilities of CCGs in commissioning GP IT services and
driving integrated care through local IM&T Strategy.

9.6 Research and Innovation
Research and Innovation
The CCG recognises that access to robust evidence is needed to guide and inform our
decisions about effective healthcare commissioning (and de-commissioning). Research and
evaluation are therefore integral to our plans for the health and wellbeing of our patients.
ELRCCG through a hosted Research and Development (R&D) team supports research and
innovation across our local health and social care economy.
2014-15 has seen further movement towards research which involves local authorities and
public health. The R&D office will therefore need to facilitate research which goes beyond
traditional subject and sector boundaries and reflects the NHS we are moving towards. We
will encourage academic partners to develop research studies and grant applications which
demonstrate awareness of these changes. Research should therefore be designed ‘with
commissioners in mind’ and remain relevant to the needs of our local population.
In 2015/16, we will continue to promote research activity that meets the challenges of this
complex NHS landscape: research which addresses our priorities for health; integrates care
pathways in its design, and recognises new models of commissioning. As general practices
become federated organisations there is also scope to harmonise research recruitment
across practice sites.

136

258

Later in 2015, single, centralised, ‘approval’ for research in the NHS will be introduced by the
Health Research Authority (HRA) to include ethical review, information governance, and
assurance about the suitability, compliance and quality of research proposals. This move
represents a sea change in research management and governance of studies. It will be
important that local checks on feasibility of studies and information governance remain in
place in the CCG. In 2015 -16 the R&D Manager will continue to liaise with information
governance colleagues to address concerns related to researcher access to GP practice
systems.
In 2015-16 the R&D Manager and CCG will continue to work closely with the local Clinical
Research Network (CRN), the Academic Health Science Network (AHSN) and CLAHRC: all
regional partners. The CCG is represented at Board and committee levels in these
organisations. In addition, in 2014-15 a new EM R&D Leads group was established for
information and activity sharing across the whole region.
The Dementia Challenge for research, a national priority, is underway across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland. The CCG’s R&D Manager is a member of both the EM
Dementia Challenge Steering Group and the Enabling Research in Care Homes ( EnRiCH)
Regional Advisory Group. In 2015-16, widening the stakeholder input into these groups from
CCG Nursing and Quality and the local authority will be an R&D priority.
A modern health care workforce NEW
Local Education and Training Committee (LETC)
We are proactive members of the LETC within Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland which
local group comprising commissioners, providers, local authority, Health Education East
Midlands (HEEM), Skills for Health and local universities. During 2014/15 the group has
been considering the implications of the workforce challenges associated with delivering
care in a different environment in the future, that is; the move from acute hospital based care
to out of hospital care. Alongside this we have been reviewing workforce needs within
primary care. In October 2014 the Governing Body approved the Primary Care Operating
Framework this clearly set out the case for change within primary care locally. We are
actively working with our membership to understand needs and support the changes
required to ensure primacy care is able to meet the challenges it faces.
We are working with De Montfort University to pilot undergraduate student nurse placements
in primary care, with one pilot in place and a further interest expressed. Alongside this we
are developing competence frameworks for .primary care nursing and health care assistant
roles linking into the national work and HEEM.
Nursing and Midwifery Revalidation
From the end of 2015, all nurses and midwives on the NMC register will be required to
revalidate their registration every three years at the point of renewal. Any nurse or midwife
137

259

that does not revalidate will lapse from the register. The revalidation process will involve
gathering evidence to confirm that they:
•

continue to remain fit to practise

•

have met the requirements for practice and continuing professional development

•

have sought and received third party feedback which has informed their reflection on
their practice; and

•

have sought and received third party confirmation that they are fit to practise.

The CCG is working with the nursing directorate at NHS England to inform its providers
nursing staff and practice nurses, in addition to patients and the public on details of the
revalidation process. Nurses will be expected to as part of their annual appraisal process be
able to demonstrate that they have referenced the NMC Code of Conduct into their working
practices. In conjunction with NHS England nursing directorate we are offering to primary
care nurses the opportunity of using an electronic system which is an online e-Portfolio
which has been specifically designed to manage appraisal. A demonstration of this system
is taking place through a Protected Learning Time event in February 2015 when Practice
nurses attended a presentation on Nurse Revalidation and the HeART, revalidation and
education for nurses, midwives and care support staff should they decide to use it.
For staff employed within ELRCCG who require as a prerequisite current nursing or
midwifery registration for their employment and job role; we have confirmed who these staff
are, have clarity about dates of appraisal and revalidation and have made clear expectations
regarding their requirement to ensure that they ensure their portfolios are complete and up to
date and that they can demonstrate their fitness to practice in line with then NMC Code of
Conduct – standards of conduct, performance and ethics for nurses and midwives.

9.7 Equality objectives 2013 – 2015
NHS East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group is fully committed to
promoting the principles as set out in the Equalities Act 2010.
The CCG is committed to providing equality and respect to the whole of our community as
well as our patients, CCG employees and potential employees. ELR CCG aims to treat
everyone who it comes into contact with fairly and will not discriminate against anyone
because of their age, disability, gender, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or belief, sexual orientation or whether they are married or in a civil
partnership.
ELR CCG is committed to meeting the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty
(PSED) and the three aims of the duty. The three aims are to have due regard to the need
to:

138

260

•

eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under act

•

advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it, and

•

foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

The Equality Act 2010 also outlines specific duties on certain public bodies, of which the
CCG is one, to meet the PSED more effectively. These specific duties are to publish
information to demonstrate their compliance with the Equality Duty at least annually, and to
set equality objectives at least every four years.
The CCG developed its equality objectives for 2013/15 and remain aligned to this strategy.
The equality objectives help to focus attention on the priority equality issues throughout the
CCG, on the results to be achieved, and the improvements required in policy making,
service and function change, service delivery and employment.
The CCG’s equality objectives for 2013/15 are as detailed below:
Addressing needs of older people and access to services
Year 1 – undertake baseline to identify what access looks like at present and identify gaps.
Aligning this to the duty to have regard to reducing health inequalities, improving access and
health outcomes.
Year 2 – review the results of the baseline and identify areas to address / change. Develop
plans for improving access for older people as identified through the baseline.
Targeting provision and access to seldom heard people and groups – travelling
families, BME, LGBT, rural deprivation
Year 1 – define what is meant by ‘seldom heard individuals, groups / communities’ in relation
to East Leicestershire and Rutland population in comparison to Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland. Review how the CCG is currently engaging with these groups and how these
mechanisms can be strengthened. Identify and map existing mechanisms of engagement
through which the CCG accesses / or can access these groups / communities to gather
intelligence. Consider how the CCG engages with the local authorities in strengthening
engagement with these groups / communities.
Year 2 – using the information / intelligence gathered in year 1, identify how the CCG is
going to target / prioritise provision.
Access to early intervention and prevention of Mental Health issues
Year 1 – evaluate and understand local mental health issues in relation to young people and
other groups. Review access to early intervention and identify what is currently available in
order to prioritise and improve health outcomes across East Leicestershire and Rutland.
Year 2 – baseline undertaken will determine actions for year 2. For example this could be
work with young people to identify mechanisms for improving access to mental health
services. Year 2 will be about using the information to improve outcomes for patient and
prioritise mental health services.
139

261

The CCG has analysed and assessed its equality performance by reviewing various sources
of information, including feedback from our patients, carers, community groups and staff
over the last 12 months in preparation for reviewing our commissioning intentions. As a
result of this work the CCG has identified a number of actions and developed the three
equality objectives listed above.
The equality objectives have been developed to make sure that they are relevant to the
CCG’s role as a commissioner; focussing on the health and wellbeing of our patients. In this
way the CCG can make sure that the organisation concentrates its work on the areas that
will have the greatest impact on improving services.
The equality objectives are aligned with the CCG’s strategic aims and our commissioning
intentions. The CCG’s Involving and Informing Strategy also sets out the CCG’s commitment
to reaching out to all members of the CCG’s community using a rang of approaches tailored
to the needs of individuals and groups. All engagement activity takes full account of people’s
nine ‘protected characteristics’ in the Equality Act, i.e., age, disability, gender, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sexual orientation or
whether they are married or in a civil partnership.
The CCG will continue to work on the detailed action plan to ensure measurable actions and
milestones are in place and regularly reviewed. The review of the first year’s activities has
taken place which builds the foundations for delivering on year 2 of the equality objectives
over the next year

140

262

Appendices (UPDATED)
Appendix 1 – Demographics
Fig 6.0 Distribution of ELR CCG Registered Patients and GP Practices

Fig 7.0 Population of East Leicestershire and Rutland by Age

90+
Age bands

75-79
60-64
45-49
30-34
15-19
0-4
5%

4%

3%

2%

1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

2011 Female England
2011 Female East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG
2011 Male England
2011 Male East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG

141

263

Appendix 2 – Key Performance Indicators
Fig 10.0 Key Performance Indicators
Nationally / Locally
set target
Potential years of life National
lost (PYLL)
reduction of at least
3.2% each year
Indicators

Local
Quality of life for
people with long-term national guidance
conditions
states a ‘significant
improvement’

Proposed target & justification
3.2% reduction each year only as EL&R baseline is
already below the England average)
2012 baseline 1678.8
15/16 target 1573.1
18/19 target 1426.8
EL&R score in 18/19 should reach the 12/13 level of
the ‘best’ CCG in Midlands & East

12/13 baseline 76.6
15/16 target 76.90
18/19 target 77.1
Local
Avoidable
Based on a 12/13 baseline, apply the following
Emergency
Area Team recommend reductions:
Admissions (5 years) to reach 15% reduction
14/15 – 3%
17/18 - 12%
by 18/19
15/16 – 6%
18/19 - 15%
16/17 - 9%
12/13 baseline 1482.50
15/16 target 1393.6
18/19 target 1191
Local
Avoidable
Reduce 12/13 baseline by 3% for 15/16 target (as
Emergency
Area Team recommend above) and equally over each quarter.
Admissions
to reach 15% reduction
(Quarterly 2014/15) by 18/19
Local
Reduction in the
Reduce score down to the ‘best’ 12/13 score across
proportion of people UHL score, national
Lincs & Leics by 18/19. Consistent across Leics
reporting poor
guidance states a
CCGs.
experience of
‘significant
inpatient care
improvement’
12/13 baseline: 163
15/16 target 157.8
18/19 target 124
GP/ GP out-of-hours Local
EL&R within ‘middle’ sector across all Midlands & East
Experience
national guidance
CCGs. Therefore suggest reduction of 0.2 each year.
states a ‘significant
improvement’
12/13 baseline: 6
15/16 target 5.6
18/19 target: 5
IAPT Access
National
HSCIC data FOT 14/15 15.9% therefore target for
Target 15%
15/16 set at 15.9%, which show 1% improvement
Local Target 16%
above national target.
National
Target 50%
Local Target 53%
IAPT 6 Week Waiting National
Time
Target 75% by March
IAPT Recovery

13/14 baseline 51.7%
14/15 Q1 57.4%
15/16 target: 53%
HSCIC data
14/15 Baseline 44%
142

264

2016

15/16 Q1 – 50%
15/16 Q2 – 55%
15/16 Q3 – 63%
15/16 Q4 – 75%

IAPT 18 Weeks
Waiting Time

National
Target 95% by March
2016

Local Priority
Measure

Local
End of Life

HSCIC data
14/15 Baseline 72%
15/16 Q1 – 75%
15/16 Q2 – 80%
15/16 Q3 – 85%
15/16 Q4 – 95%
12/13 Baseline : 52.3%
14/15 target: 48.5%
15/16 target: 50.2%

National
Awaiting national
‘objectives’
Dementia diagnosis National
rate
target of 67% by March
15
C.Difficile

A&E 4 Hour Wait

National
Target 95%

To be confirmed
November 14 baseline 48%
14/15 target: 66.7%
15/16 target: 66.7%
Trajectories have been set for 2015/16 with
achievement of 95% in Q1 onwards

143

265

Appendix 3 – NHS Outcomes Framework Performance
Fig 11.0 NHS Outcomes Framework for 2014/15
Domain 1 Preventing People from Dying Prematurely – Indicators = 18
Green = 5

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 10

Red = 3

Domain 2 Enhancing Quality of Life to People with Long-term Conditions – Indicators =
11
Green = 5

Amber = 1

Grey/Blue = 2

Red = 3

Domain 3 Helping People Recover from Episodes of Ill Health or Injury Indicators = 16
Green = 7

Amber = 1

Grey/Blue = 7

Red = 1

Domain 4 Ensuring People Have a Positive Experience of Care – Indicators = 10
Green = 1

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 8

Red = 1

Domain 5 Treating and Caring for People in a Safe Environment and Protecting from
Harm Indicators = 10
Green = 2
Key:

Amber = 0

Grey/Blue = 8

Red = 0

Green = Achieved, Amber = At Risk, Red = Not Achieved
Grey or Blue = Where no Data is Available in 2014/15

144

266

Appendix 4 – Quality Premium Measures for 2015/16
Fig 13.0 Quality Premium Measures for 2015/16 – Awaiting Guidance for 15/16 and to
ensure we add new quality premium – antibiotic prescribing)
No

Outcome Ambition

Measure to be Used

Quality Premium

1

Securing additional years of
life for the people of
England with treatable
mental and physical health
conditions

Potential year of life lost
from conditions
considered amenable to
healthcare

Improvement to
be locally set and
no less than
3.2%.

None

2

Improving the health related
quality of life of the 15
million+ people with one or
more long-term condition,
including mental health
conditions

Health related quality of
life for people with longterm conditions (GP
Survey)

IAPT roll-out:

Increase
dementia
diagnosis rate to
67% by March
2015

Reducing the amount of
time people spend
avoidably in hospital
through better & more
integrated care in the
community, outside of
hospital

A rate comprised of:

3

Unplanned
hospitalisation for
chronic ambulatory care
sensitive conditions

Achieve 15% for
CCGs below that
level or additional
locally set
improvement for
those over or
near 15%

Support
Measure(s)

Achieve IAPT
recovery rate of
50%

As per outcome
measure

None

None

Proportion of
older people
(65+) who were
still at home 91
days after
discharge from
hospital into reablement/rehab
services.
Ambition to be
set through

Unplanned
hospitalisation for
asthma, diabetes &
epilepsy in under 19s
Emergency admissions
for acute conditions that
should not usually
required hospital
admission
Emergency admissions
for children with lower
respiratory tract
infections

4

Increasing the proportion of
older people living
independently at home
following discharge from
hospital

No indicator available at
CCG. CCGs are
expected to set out how
they will improve this
outcome in their five-year
strategic plans

145

267

Health & Well
Being Board

6.

Increasing the number of
people with mental and
physical health conditions
having a positive
experience of care outside
hospital, in general practice
and in the community

Composite indicator
comprised of (i) GP
services (ii) GP Out-ofhours

None

None

7

Making significant progress
towards eliminating
avoidable deaths in our
hospitals caused by
problems in care

Hospital deaths
attributable to problems
in care. This indicator is
in development

Improving the
reporting of
medication errors

MRSA zero
tolerance
Clostridium
difficile
reduction

146

268

Appendix 5 - Priority actions to improve premature mortality from the four most
common causes
Cancer
• Screening performance in Leicestershire and Rutland is good overall and it appears
that outcomes of treatment are also good once cancers are diagnosed. The biggest
issue to address is early diagnosis of symptomatic cancer and ELR CCG is
developing an early awareness project with local authority Public Health.
•

ELR CCG will be working with partners to address the recommendations of the LLR
GP cancer audit 2013/14 and the key lifestyle factors that contribute to cancers,
specifically smoking, obesity and alcohol.

Heart disease and stroke
• The major preventative aspects of heart disease and stroke are tackling smoking,
obesity and alcohol and improving stroke care and the management of long-term
conditions (including heart disease itself and conditions that increase the risk of heart
disease and stroke, such as diabetes and high blood pressure).
•

The NHS Health Checks programme, a mandatory service for local authority Public
Health, is aimed at the early identification of cardio-vascular disease and risk of
disease. ELR CCG is working with Public Health to increase the offer and uptake of
Health Checks and to design alternative models of risk assessment that target those
not attending or not registered, who may be at greatest risk of disease.

Lung disease
• Smoking is the biggest risk factor for lung disease. ELR CCG continues to be active
in working with GP practices to improve the uptake of smoking cessation services
and the detection and management of chronic lung diseases.
•

Working with local authority Public Health, ELR CCG has incorporated Making Every
Contact Count (MECC) healthy lifestyle programmes into LPT and UHL contracts.
The next step is to build a sustainable model for identification, brief advice and
referral that can bring about changes in culture and practice across the health and
social care system.

Liver disease
• The main preventative causes of liver disease are alcohol misuse, obesity and
hepatitis (which is linked to intravenous drug misuse). Substance misuse has been
the subject of intensive, whole-system partnership work over recent years and
reducing substance-related harm remains a high priority locally.
•

ELR CCG has a key role in supporting general practice with the delivery of Public
Health community-based services, including drug shared care and alcohol risk
reduction. With the CCG, Public Health will be growing shared care provision and
potentially incorporating alcohol treatment.

Integration and co-commissioning
• The 2-year Better Care Fund plan and 5-year Better Care Together Strategy provide
a unique opportunity for ELR CCG to work with local authorities to integrate
prevention and care for people with long-term conditions. For example;
o

With Public Health, the joint commissioning of tiered pathways of prevention,
early intervention, treatment and recovery for weight management, physical
147

269

activity and sexual health.

•

o

With local authorities, the building of community capacity and Local Area Coordination to connect vulnerable people with community support and assets.

o

At UHL, the integration of acute care services and MECC commissioned by
the CCG with alcohol liaison and smoking cessation services commissioned
by local authority Public Health.

There are great opportunities to develop the PRISM GP information system to
incorporate guidance and pathways relating to Public Health and other local authority
services.

ELR CCG will be making an important contribution to the 2015 JSNA refresh, which will
provide the insight for the strategic direction and future transformation of the health and
social care system

148

270

EA1
EA2
EA3

Description

Potential years of life lost (PYLL) from causes
considered amenable to healthcare
Health-related quality of life for people with
long term conditions
IAPT - Proportion of people that enter
treatment against the level of need in the
general population

EA4

Composite
measure
on
emergency
admissions:
of:
Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic
ambulatory care sensitive conditions,
Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma,
diabetes and epilepsy in under 19s,
Emergency admissions for acute conditions
that should not usually require hospital
admission,
Emergency admissions for children with lower
respiratory tract infections (LRTI).

EA5

Patient Experience of Hospital Care

Lower
Threshold

Indicator

Standard/
Target

Appendix 6 – Overview of indicators and improvement areas

Latest
Period

1625.1

NA

2013

1701.5

76.80

NA

Apr-14

Data expected
Q3

16%

NA

Aug-14

15.9%

YTD/
FOT

1438.0

NA

Oct-14

1725.23
FOT based Oct
14

129

NA

2013

128

- Inpatient Score

TBC

NA

Nov-14

72.4

- A&E Score (Type 1 & 2)

TBC

NA

Nov-14

67.7

TBC

NA

Nov-14

65.8

NA

Apr-14

Data expected
Q3

NA

Apr-14

In development

NA

Apr-14

In development

Friends & Family Test

EA6

- Maternity Antenatal
- Maternity Birth
- Maternity Postnatal Ward
- Maternity Postnatal Community Provision

Composite indicator comprised of (i) GP
5.80
EA7 I & ii Services & (ii) GP Out of Hours. Reduce
negative responses to survey
Hospital deaths attributable to problems in Zero
EA8
care
Tolerance
Improving the reporting of medication-related
15%
EA9
safety incidents
increase

149

Lower
Threshold

Indicator

Standard/
Target

271

Latest
Period

YTD/
FOT

67%

NA

Nov-14

48.0%

NA

Oct-14

53.8%

NA

2013/14

78.6
(Leicestershire)

NA

Nov-14

0

NA

Nov-14

87

Description

EAS1

Estimated diagnosis rate for people with
dementia

EAS2

IAPT Recovery Rate

50%

EAS3

EAS4
EAS5

Proportion old people (65 and over) who were Improvem
still at home 91 days after discharge from
ent or
hospital into reablement/rehabilitation
zero %
services
change
Healthcare acquired infection (HCAI) measure
Zero
(MRSA)
Tolerance
Healthcare acquired infection (HCAI) measure
97
(Clostridium difficile infections)

150

Standard/
Target

Lower
Threshold

272

Latest
Period

EB1

RTT - Admitted Patients

90%

85%

Nov-14

85.0%

EB2

RTT - Non-Admitted Patients

95%

90%

Nov-14

95.7%

EB3

RTT - Incomplete Pathways
Diagnostic Test Waiting Time
Patients waiting for a diagnostic test should
have been waiting less than 6 weeks from
referral

92%

87%

Nov-14

94.6%

99%

94%

Nov-14

99.1%

95%

90%

28/12/14

88.76%

93%

88%

Oct-14

92.6%

93%

88%

Oct-14

95.5%

96%

91%

Oct-14

93.7%

94%

89%

Oct-14

93.8%

98%

93%

Oct-14

100%

94%

89%

Oct-14

96.5%

85%

80%

Oct-14

83.6%

90%

85%

Oct-14

78.6%

100%

100%

Oct-14

100%

Indicator

EB4

EB5

EB6

EB7

EB8

EB9

EB10

EB11

EB12

EB13

EB14

Description

A&E Waiting Time - % of people who spend 4
hours or less in A&E
Cancer 2 Week Wait - % of patients seen
within two weeks of an urgent GP referral for
suspected cancer
Cancer 2 Week Wait - % of patients seen
within two weeks of an urgent referral for
breast symptoms where cancer is not initially
suspected
Cancer 31 Day Waits - % of patients receiving
first definitive treatment within 31 days of a
cancer diagnosis
Cancer 31 Day Waits - % of patients receiving
subsequent treatment for cancer within 31
days where that treatment is surgery
Cancer 31 Day Waits - % of patients receiving
subsequent treatment for cancer within 31
days where that treatment is an anti cancer
drug regimen
Cancer 31 Day Waits - % of patients receiving
subsequent treatment for cancer within 31
days where that treatment is radiotherapy
treatment course
Cancer 62 Day Waits - % of patients receiving
first definitive treatment for cancer within 62
days of an urgent GP referral for suspected
cancer
Cancer 62 Day Waits - % of patient receiving
first definitive treatment for cancer within 62
days of referral from an NHS Cancer
Screening Service
Cancer 62 Day Waits - % of patients receiving
first definitive treatment for cancer within 62
days of a consultant decision to upgrade their
priority status

YTD/
FOT

151

Description

Lower
Threshold

Indicator

Standard/
Target

273

EB15 i
Ambulance Clinical Quality - Category A (Red
1) 8 minute response time

75%

75%

95%

Nov-14

73.08%

Nov-14

54.35%
ELR

Nov-14

73.17%

Nov-14

59.81%
ELR

Nov-14

94.26%

Nov-14

88.54%
ELR

70%

EB16
Ambulance Clinical Quality - Category A 19
minute transportation time

YTD/
FOT

70%

EB15 ii
Ambulance Clinical Quality - Category A (Red
2) 8 minute response time

Latest
Period

90%

EBS1

Mixed Sex Accommodation (MSA) Breaches

Zero
Tolerance

NA

Nov-14

5

EBS2

Cancelled Operations % of patients not re-admitted within 28 days

100%

NA

Oct-14

95.6%
(UHL only)

95%

90%

Oct-14

95.0%

Zero
Tolerance

NA

Oct 14
YTD

10

Zero
Tolerance

NA

Oct 14
YTD

1

NA

Nov-14

0

NA

Oct-14

17.5%

NA

Oct-14

3.1%

NA

Jul-14

53.1%

EBS3

EBS4
EBS5
EBS6
EBS7 i
EBS7 ii

LP1

Mental Health - Care Programme Approach
(CPA) - % of patients under adult mental
illness on CPA who were followed up within 7
days of discharge from psychiatric in-patient
care
Number of 52 week Referral to Treatment
Pathways
UHL Trolley waits in A&E - Number of
patients who have waited over 12 hours in
A&E from decision to admit to admission
UHL Urgent operations cancelled for a second
time
UHL Ambulance handover time - Number of
handover delays of over 30 minutes
UHL Ambulance handover time - Number of
handover delays of over 1 hour
End of Life - deaths at usual place of
residence measured through deaths at home,
nursing homes, residential homes and
hospice

Zero
Tolerance
Zero
Tolerance
Zero
Tolerance

48.5%

152

274

DOMAIN 2: ENHANCING QUALITY OF LIFE FOR PEOPLE WITH LONG TERM CONDITIONS
Indicator

Description

OVERARCHING INDICATORS
Health-related quality of life for people with
2
long-term conditions
IMPROVEMENT AREAS
Ensuring people feel supported to manage their condition
2.1

Proportion of people feeling supported to
manage their own condition

Target
2014/15

Latest Period

YTD

76.80

2013/14

Data expected
Q3

Higher Than
Baseline

2013/14

67.1



April 14 - June
14

11.4%
Leicestershire

Oct-14

412.30
(YTD)
706.79
(FOT)

Oct-14

71.05
(YTD)
121.79
(FOT)

2013/14

0.837



April 14 June 14

28.10%

67%

Nov-14

48.0%

Improving functional ability in people with long term conditions

2.2

Employment of people with long term
conditions (The difference in employment
rate between England population and people
with a long term condition)

Reducing time spent in hospital by people with long term conditions
531.95
Atlas
Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic
(3%
2.3 i
ambulatory care sensitive conditions
reduction)
(All Providers)
724.10
Local Data
175.18
Atlas
Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma,
(3%
reduction)
2.3 ii
diabetes and epilepsy in under 19s
(All Providers)
140.60
Local Data
Enhancing quality of life for people with carers
Higher Than
2.4
Health-related quality of life for carers
Baseline
Enhancing quality of life for people with mental illness

2.5

Employment of people with mental illness
(The difference in employment rate between
England population and people with mental
illness)

Enhancing quality of life for people with dementia
Estimated diagnosis rate for people with
2.6 i
dementia
A measure of the effectiveness of post2.6 ii
diagnosis care in sustaining independence
and improving quality of life

IN DEVELOPMENT

153

275

DOMAIN 3 HELPING PEOPLE TO RECOVER FROM EPISODES OF ILL HEALTH OR FOLLOWING INJURY
Indicator

Description

Target
2014/15

Latest Period

YTD

Oct-14

587.88
(YTD)
1007.72
(FOT)

Oct-14

860.32
(YTD)
1475.17
(FOT)

OVERARCHING INDICATORS

3a

Emergency admissions for acute conditions that
should not usually require hospital admission
(All Providers)

841.28
Atlas
(3%
reduction)
963.43
Local Data

3b

Reduction or
Rate of emergency readmissions within 30 days of
zero % change
discharge
2013/14 &
(All Providers)
2014/15

IMPROVEMENT AREAS
Improving outcomes from planned treatments
PROMS
3.1
Total health gain as assessed by patients for
elective procedures
3.1 i
Hip
3.1 ii
Knee replacement
3.1 iii
Groin hernia
3.1 iv

Above
baseline

Varicose veins

2013/14
2013/14
2013/14
2013/14

0.448
0.348
0.063
0
Insignificant

3.1 v
Psychological therapies
In Development
Preventing lower respiratory tract infections (LRTI) in children from becoming serious
276.55
Atlas
31
Emergency admissions from children with lower
(3%
(YTD)
3.2
respiratory tract infections (LRTI)
reduction)
Oct-14
53.14
(All Providers)
(FOT)
173.37
Local Data
Improving recovery from injuries and trauma
3.3
Survival from major trauma
In Development
Improving recovery from stroke
Proportion of stroke patients reporting an
In Development
3.4
improvement in activity/lifestyle on the Modified
Rankin Scale at 6 months
Improving recovery from fragility fractures
Proportion of patient with fragility fractures
To be aligned with Adult Social Care
3.5 i
recovering to their previous level of
Framework
mobility/walking ability at 30 days
Proportion of patient with fragility fractures
To be aligned with Adult Social Care
3.5 ii
recovering to their previous level of
Framework
mobility/walking ability at 120 days
Helping older people to recover their independence after illness or injury
3.6 i

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who
were still at home 91 days after discharge from
hospital into reablement/rehabilitation service

3.6 ii

Proportion offered rehabilitation following
discharge from acute or community hospital

Improvement
or zero %
change

13/14

78.6

To be aligned with Adult Social Care
Framework

154

276

DOMAIN 4. ENSURING PEOPLE HAVE A POSITIVE EXPERIENCE OF HEALTHCARE
Indicator

Target
2014/15

Latest Period

YTD

5.80

2013/14

TBC

Higher Than
Baseline

Jul 13 - Mar
14

86%

2013/14

128

Description

OVERARCHING INDICATORS
Composite indicator comprised of (i) GP Services
4a
& (ii) GP Out of Hours. Reduce negative responses
I & ii
to survey

iii

Overall experience of NHS Dental Services
Measures the weighted percentage of people who
report their overall experience of NHS dental
services as ‘very good’ or ‘fairly good’.

4b

Patient experience of hospital care

129

4c

Friends and Family test

See Everyone Counts Dashboard EA6

IMPROVEMENT AREAS
Improving people's experience of out-patient care
Higher Than
Baseline

2012/13

TBC

Higher Than
Baseline

Sept 14 - Jan
15

Data expected
May 15

Higher Than
Baseline

13/14

Data expected
Feb 15

4.4i

Access to GP Services
Measures the weighted percentage of people who
report their experience of ‘making a GP
appointment’ as ‘fairly good’ or ‘very good’.

Higher Than
Baseline

Jul 13 - Mar
14

72%

4.4ii

Access to NHS Dental services
Measures the weighted percentage of people who
report their experience of getting access to NHS
dental services as ‘fairly good’ or ‘very good’.

Higher Than
Baseline

Jul 13 - Mar
14

95%

Higher Than
Baseline

2011

TBC



13/14

Data expected
Autumn 14

4.1

Patient experience of outpatient services - UHL

Improving hospitals' responsiveness to personal needs
4.2

Responsiveness to in-patients' personal needs

Improving people's experience of accident and emergency services
4.3

Patient experience of A&E services

Improving access to primary care services

Improving women and their families' experience of maternity services

4.5

Women's experience of maternity services

Improving experience of care for people at the end of their lives
4.6

Bereaved carers' views on the quality of care in
the last 3 months of life

Improving experience of healthcare for people with mental illness
Patient experience of community mental health
Higher Than
Data expected
4.7
2014
services
Baseline
Autumn 14
Improving children and young people's experience of outpatient services
Children and young people's experience of
IN DEVELOPMENT
4.8
outpatient services
Improving people's experience of integrated care
4.9

People's experience of integrated care

IN DEVELOPMENT

155

277

Appendix 7 – Registered population per GP Practice Locality

156

278

DOMAIN 5. TREATING AND CARING FOR PEOPLE IN A SAFE ENVIRONMENT AND PROTECTING THEM FROM
AVOIDABLE HARM: KEY AREAS WHERE PROGRESS WILL BE EXPECTED
Indicator

Description

Target
2014/15

Latest Period

YTD

OVERARCHING INDICATORS

5a

Patient safety incident reporting

5b

Safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death

5c

Hospital deaths attributable to problems in care

Bi annual data
- March and
September.
15% increase
in reporting Data reported
IN
6 months in
from Q4
DEVELOPMENT
arrears (ie
2013/14 to
Q4 2014/15 March 13 data
available in
Oct 13)

Below
Baseline

Incidence of healthcare associated infection (HCAI)
Incidence of MRSA

5.2ii

Incidence of c.difficile

5.3

Proportion of patient with category 2, 3 and 4
pressure ulcers

5.4

Incidence of medication errors causing serious
harm

IN
DEVELOPMENT

IN DEVELOPMENT

IMPROVEMENT AREAS
Reducing the incidence of avoidable harm
Deaths from venous thromboembolism (VTE)
5.1
related events
5.2i

2013/14

IN DEVELOPMENT
Zero
Tolerance

Nov-14

0

97

Nov-14

87

IN DEVELOPMENT
Below
Baseline

2013/14

IN
DEVELOPMENT

2013/14

IN
DEVELOPMENT

Annual Data
based on a
financial year

IN
DEVELOPMENT

Improving the safety of maternity services

5.5

Admission of full-term babies to neonatal care

Delivery safe care to children in acute settings

5.6

Incidence of harm to children due to "failure to
monitor"

Below
Baseline

157

279

Locality and Practice

Apr 14 List Size

Blaby & Lutterworth
C82002 Countesthorpe Health Centre
C82025 Wycliffe Medical Practice
C82039 Kingsway Surgery
C82055 The Limes Medical Practice
C82056 Glenfield Surgery
C82066 Forest House Medical Centre
C82068 Northfield Medical Centre
C82098 Hazelmere Medical Centre
C82119 Narborough Health Centre
C82611 Lutterworth Health Centre
C82631 Enderby Medical Centre
Melton, Rutland & Harborough
C82001 Kibworth Health Centre
C82009 Market Harborough Medical Centre
C82010 Oakham Medical Practice
C82016 Long Clawson Medical Practice
C82022 The Billesdon Surgery
C82036 The Old School Surgery, Kibworth
C82038 Latham House Medical Practice
C82042 County Practice
C82044 Empingham Medical Centre
C82077 The Uppingham Surgery
C82078 The Jubilee Medical Practice
C82109 The Husbands Bosworth Surgery
C82649 The Market Overton Surgery
Y02725 The Practice, Oadby
Oadby & Wigston
C82013 Bushloe End Surgery
C82021 Central Surgery, Oadby
C82048 Rosemead Drive Surgery
C82067 The Croft Medical Centre
C82071 Wigston Central surgery
C82079 South Wigston Health Centre
C82108 Long Street Surgery
C82112 Severn Surgery
Grand Total

9835
10393
11173
14367
13625
14206
11200
7285
2437
5551
5577
8909
23872
16064
6198
6893
14321
35577
11453
5978
10490
11106
3662
3281
1331
9644
8539
3631
8240
10404
9079
2849
4410
321580

*Please note that this is the registered population of ELR CCG as of Apr 2014.
Practice C82641 Station Road Surgery from Sep 2014 has merged with C82071 Wigston Central
Surger
158

Appendix 8 – ELRCCG Financial Plan 2014/15

280

159

Care Programme Area

Reshaping Community Health
Services

Plan theme

FYE

Cost
pressures

QIPP
investments

Recurrent
investment

NR MRET

Total
NR Headroom Investment

Recurrent
QIPP

Total Net
Investment

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

18

2,052

615

2,685

(1,087)

1,598

315

698

(1,500)

(802)

Co-ordinated CHS – Locality hub based approach to Planned
Care and Unscheduled Care
Specialist Nursing Provision
Overnight Crisis Nursing, Assessment and Intervention 2 hrs
stay OOH’s
Intensive Community Support –Virtual Beds Scheme – 48 beds
inc therapy assessment and input 10/7 LOS max

Transforming Primary Care

Integrated Care Model
End of Life – Advanced Care Planning
Long Term Conditions Management

(317)

21

679

Care Homes
Medicines Management

Integration with Social Care

Step up and Step Down – Integration of Reablement with CCHS,
Integration of SPA and redesign to offer system command
management, integration of Crisis Response Service.
Long term conditions – focus on Dementia, Learning Disabilities
and Mental Health

Long-term Conditions

0

281

Early Intervention and Prevention – Joined commissioning of
voluntary sector.
0

CVD
Respiratory
Cancer
Diabetes

50

50

(86)

(36)

2,316

2,578

(1,544)

1,034

Neurological conditions
Dementia

Planned Care

Referral thresholds
BADs
Daycase to clean room
Left-shift

(759)

94

909

18

Demand management
LOS

160

Care Programme Area
Unscheduled and Emergency
Care (Acute)

Plan theme

FYE

Cost
pressures

QIPP
investments

Recurrent
investment

NR MRET

Total
NR Headroom Investment

Recurrent
QIPP

Total Net
Investment

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

192

68

553

1,164

228

2,205

(180)

2,025

37

(143)

(294)

254

534

388

388

50

674

724

724

Single Front Door
111
Reduce the footprint of our acute care usage
Designing an ambulatory care process to support 4 hr wait and
reduce admissions – ambulatory clinics – patients requiring
diagnosis and access to diagnostics
Patients diagnosed but awaiting transport home/alternative care
setting – use of discharge lounge/facilities to prevent
admissions
EMAS - reduce conveyance rate
Out of Hours

Mental Health & LD

Improve MH acute pathway – reduce LOS, improve community
capacity
Improve access to IAPT
Improve community based options

282

Maternity & Children

Maternal MH
Midwifery Led care
Paediatric ambulatory Care
Safeguarding
CAMHS
Personal Health Budgets

Continuing Healthcare

Personal Health Budgets
Improving the end to end pathway

Other

1,591

(331)

1,250

919

6,134

1,182

8,907

1,495

1,495

(1,848)

(353)

7,985

20,649

(9,245)

11,404

Unidentified

TOTAL

(88)

828

94

8,342

3,488

(3,000)

(2,081)

8,907

161

283

Appendix 9 – market analysis of ELR CCG’s main providers
We have undertaken a market analysis of our main providers of services outlined below.
This will enable the CCG to develop and implement robust contract and performance
management to maintain and improve the quality of healthcare services provided and
improve outcomes for patients.
Acute Market Analysis
Strengths
• Major teaching hospital within
the locality
• Strong research and
development

•

Opportunities
Utilise CQUINs and Quality
Premiums as a lever to
improve the quality of service
provision

•
•
•

•

Weaknesses
Significant financial issues
Emergency care system issues
Operates across three sites which can
cause operational issues such as reduced
productivity and fragmentation of care
pathways.
Threats
Existing financial challenges can impact on
the trust’s ability to improve quality and
performance

Mental health market analysis

•
•

Strengths
Generally strong performance
against national targets for the CCG
Strong experience of delivering care
in ELR CCG

•

•

•
•
•

•

•

•

Opportunities
Main provider is now a major
provider of community services and
therefore more availability to
integrate services where appropriate
Working collaboratively to improve
some service pathways, ie,
implementation of the dementia
strategy
Opportunity to have commissioner
input

•
•
•

Weaknesses
Clinical engagement between provider
and primary care needs further
developing
Service redesign has been difficult to
implement due to block contract
arrangements
Limited range of specialist capacity
CCG needs to improve knowledge and
understanding of market and providers
Issues relating to delayed transfers of
care and length of stay in mental
health rehabilitation
Threats
A move away from block contracts to
“payment by results”
Implementation of care cluster
pathways
Potential monopolistic pressure from
one provider becoming the main
provider of community services within
the last 12 months.

162

284

Community service market analysis
Strengths
Continued to deliver during
considerable change
• Positive and proactive engagement
in service redesign and
transformation initiatives
• Large provider of health and
wellbeing services
• Experience of delivering services in
the county
Opportunities
Collective working on integrated
pathways, including:
o Integration of more services with
primary care
o Integration of more services
with social care
o Improve interfaces with acute
providers
o Improve interface between
provider and primary care

•

•

Weaknesses
Some issues in relation to waiting
times
Communication between service
provider and primary care could be
improved
Information systems – timely and
transparent performance monitoring

•
•

•

•

•
•

Threats
Need to ensure right resources are
provided to ELR when provider works
across a number of geographical areas
May need to retender services which could
lead to disruption
Potential new entrants, eg, private sector
providers of integrated community teams

General practice market analysis

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Strengths
Long history and continuity of current
providers delivering services in ELR
Good clinical engagement locally
Responsive to changes to the NHS
landscape
Process to improve quality of services
locally
Investment in education/training and
learning locally
Positive patient experiences
Opportunities
Locality working as a driver to
improve quality and performance
Local commitment for the “left shift” of
services (ie, from acute setting to
community setting, primary care
setting and self-care)
Quality framework to capture
improvements

•
•
•
•

•

•

Weaknesses
Variability in performance exists
Some access issues
Quality of the estate is variable
Variation across practices against
national benchmarks

Threats
Responsibilities split between the
CCG, NHS Commissioning Board
and local authority for some services
AQP and the choice agenda and the
lack of patient involvement to date

163

285

Voluntary and Community Sector market analysis

•
•
•
•

•

•

Strengths
Well established VCS locally
Able to respond flexibly and
innovatively to service requirements
Able to reach people statutory
agencies often find hard to reach
Expertise and insight of specific
communities or groups
Opportunities
Local commitment for the ‘left shift’ of
services from acute to community and
primary care settings and self care
Potential for joint commissioning with
local authority partners to achieve
greater cohesiveness and value for
money

•
•
•

•
•

Weaknesses
Limited capacity in some service
areas
Variations in quality and performance
Existing VCS arrangements are
largely historic and have not been
commissioned strategically
Threats
CCG needs to improve knowledge
and understanding of VCS
Current arrangements do not always
support market stability

Appendix 10 – Potential gain in life expectancy years by district

164

286

Blaby

165

287

Market Harborough

166

288

Melton Mowbray

167

289

Oadby and Wigston

168

290

Rutland

Appendix 11 –
169

291

Appendix 11 - Detailed spending plan Better Care Fund Plan NEW
LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
BCF Plan Heading
First Contact
Carers Services
Carers Assessments (Care Bill Implications)
Specialist Support to People with Dementia & Carers
Local Area Co-ordination
Strengthening Autism Pathway
Assistive Technology
Assistive Technology (replacement equipment)
NHS - LD Short Breaks
Social Care - Residential Respite
UNIFIED PREVENTION OFFER
Long Term Conditions (East)
Improving Quality in Care Homes
Social Care - Nursing care packages
Social Care - Sustainable community services
Social Care - Increasing demographic pressures
Social Care - Protection of community care packages
LONG TERM CONDITIONS
Integrated Crisis Response Service (Health & Social Care)
Health & Social Care Older People's Frail Service
Ambulance Falls Prevention
Expanded Role of Primary Medical Care
URGENT RESPONSE
HART Reablement
Integrated Residential Reablement
Hospital to Home
HART Scheduling System
Intermediate Care
NHS - Reablement
NHS - Intensive Community Service
REABLEMENT
Strengthening Mental Health Discharge Provision
NHS - Step Down
NHS - Assertive InReach
Social Care - Maintaining the Social Care Assessment Pathway

SUPPORTING HOSPITAL DISCHARGE
Better Care Fund Programme Leads
Better Care Fund - Programme Support
n/a
ENABLERS
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

2015/16
ELR CCG
£000
69
213
118
138
89
41
129
115
256
319
1,488
460
216
1,445
807
1,971
1,656
6,555
920
860
13
323
2,115
186
239
31
56
267
1,713
870
3,362
112
229
227
705
119
99
1,491
22
92
44
158
15,170

170

292

Better Care Fund Plans
RUTLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
BCF Plan Heading

2015/16
ELR CCG £000

Community Agents

200

Adaptations (DFG)

104

Assitive Technology

98

Integrated Care Model

39

UNIFIED PREVENTION OFFER

441

Learning Disability

84

Integrated Dementia Hub

100

LONG TERM CONDITIONS

184

Integrated Crisis Response

450

Integrated Health and Social Care Pathways

405

URGENT RESPONSE

855

Reablement

536

REABLEMENT

536

Hospital Discharge

50

SUPPORTING HOSPITAL DISCHARGE

50

Care Act Enablers

110

Programme Support

50

ENABLERS

160

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

2,226

171

293

Appendix 12 (NEW)
How our plans fulfil statutory responsibilities to support research
The CCG will continue to meet its statutory responsibilities to promote research and
innovation, to use research evidence and to follow policy with respect to excess treatment
costs for non-commercial research studies. Examples of how we achieve this and our plans
are provided below.
Promote research
In 2014/15 the Northamptonshire Primary Care Service is provided the research
management and governance service ( RM&G) for non-portfolio research and evaluation for
the three LLR CCGs. In 2015-16 we anticipate that the newly established Health Research
Authority will take on responsibility for non-portfolio research governance as part of its remit.
We will continue to promote research locally and across the new East Midlands research
landscape based on partnerships and networks linked through research, innovation and an
East Midlands geography (for example, CLAHRC, AHSN, our local Clinical Research
Network(CRN)- especially Primary Care within Division 5).
The profile of primary care research has not diminished during transition into an East
Midlands CRN. In Feb 2015, 37.7% of participants recruited to portfolio studies across all
NHS organisations in the East Midlands were from primary care. Our success in promoting
research can be demonstrated through the recruitment figures for portfolio research across
LLR primary care. (up to January 2014: 4038 participants).
We will continue to raise awareness among patients and the public, so they are informed of
research studies that are relevant to their health needs, and of the opportunities available for
them to become involved. Annual national clinical research campaigns will be promoted by
cascading their messages at a local level
Excess Treatment Costs (ETCs)
The CCG R&D Manager will continue to facilitate the approval of treatment costs for patients
taking part in research funded by Government and research charities. The current process
involves preliminary consideration of ETC applications with CCG Heads of Prescribing
(where applicable), prior to taking recommendations through the Quality and Performance
Committee for formal approval. Information about primary care research, including excess
treatment costs, was presented and discussed at the EM CCG Congress early in 2015. It
was agreed to share local arrangements and develop a process for the East Midlands.
The standard ETC application form for research studies (designed by local R&D
Managers/Leads) is well established and used across our region and beyond. Four
applications for ETCs have been approved by the CCG in 2014-15 (to date). A further two
ETC applications were approved by the Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Area Team and,
Public Health England, respectively. The CCG was not responsible for these ETCs, however
without R&D facilitation, one researcher would have been unable to start a NIHR research
fellowship award; another, submit a NIHR grant application.
Using academic health science networks to promote research

172

294

The CCGs recognises the need to develop strong partnerships with academic and scientific
communities and with industry. Their collaboration with service commissioners is essential if
health care challenges are to be identified and solutions developed which can be
implemented in increasingly integrated health care settings.
We are an affiliated partner of our AHSN, and the Network supports us by identifying and
disseminating high-impact innovations from parts of our region that have potential for wider
application to service improvement across the East Midlands. We have consolidated our
relationship with the AHSN through representation on the Five Counties Engagement Board
sub-committee.
Adopting innovative approaches
The CCG endeavours to spread and adopt innovative practice through engagement with the
AHSN and other partners: scientific, academic and industrial ( e.g local Biomedical Research
Units; MedilLink, Universities)
Our plans for integrated health and social care across the whole health economy will be
aligned to a broader spectrum of research partnerships which will give greater impetus to
research and evaluation studies which involve participants from local authorities, charities,
the voluntary sector, social enterprises, industry and independent providers. New
approaches to NHS service delivery will therefore be aligned to new approaches to research.
Developing evaluation resources
New and innovative service models require evaluation to assess whether they are effective,
improve the quality of health and care, provide value for money, can be replicated
elsewhere, and can inform commissioning. They should also provide a source for additional
research enquiry.
Resources attached to our R&D team’s research and evaluation training programme (2013)
have been distributed across the East Midlands and are in use beyond LLR. In 2014,
materials for trainers on using the evaluation toolkits: one for conducting evaluation ’in
house’; and one for commissioning evaluation, were distributed through our local CLAHRC.
These toolkits were designed for wide application across CCGs’ other public services,
including local authorities. Other areas have adopted the toolkit

173

295

174

Appendix 13 (NEW) Better Care Together Plan settings of Care Level

296
175

297
176

298
177

299
178

300
179

301
Glossary (UPDATED)
AQP - Any Qualified Provider
BCF - Better Care Fund
BSI - Blood Stream Infections
BADS - British Association of Day Surgery
CVD - Cardiovascular Disease
CAMHS - Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service
Cdiff/CDI - Clostridium Difficile
CHD - Coronary Heart Disease
CCG - Clinical Commissioning Group
COPD - Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease
CQUIN - Commissioning for Quality and Innovation
CHS - Community Health Services
CCHS - Coordinating Community Health Services
CHC - Continuing Health Care
DH - Department of Health
DESMOND - Diabetes Education and Self-Management for On-going and Diagnosed
ESD - Early Supported Discharge
ELR CCG - East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group
EMAS - East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust
EMCSN - East Midlands Clinical Strategic Network
ED - Emergency Department
EoL - End-of-life
GI - Gastrointestinal
GEM CSU - Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit
GP - General Practice
IAPT - Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
ICRS - Integrated Crisis Response Service
ICS - intensive community support
ITF - Integrated Transformation Fund
JHWS - Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
JSNA - Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
KPI - Key Performance Indicator
LLR - Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
LCC - Leicestershire County Council
LPT - Leicestershire Partnership Trust
LD - Learning Disabilities
LOROS - Leicestershire Organisation for the Relief of Suffering
LAT - Local Area Team
LA - local authority
LTC’s - Long-term Conditions
MECC - Making Every Contact Count

180

302
MH - Mental Health
MRSA - Meticillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureusis
MDT - Multi-Disciplinary Teams
NHS - National Health Service
NHS PS - National Health Service Property Services
NHS CB - National Health Service Commissioning Board
NON LVSD – Non-Left Ventricular Systolic Dysfunction
OD - Organisational Development
PbR - Payment by Results
PLT - Protected Learning Time
PCHT’s - Primary Care Health Teams
PSED - Public Sector Equality Duty
QIPP - Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention
QoF - Quality and Outcomes Framework
RCC - Rutland County Council
SEND - Special Education Needs and Disability
TIA - Transient Ischaemic Attack
UHL - University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust
UTI - Urinary Tract Infection
YTD - Year to Date

181

303

Agenda Item 8

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 12 MARCH 2015
REPORT FROM DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH
PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT
Purpose of Report
1. The purpose of this report is to present the final Leicestershire Pharmaceutical
Needs Assessment (PNA) for sign-off and to set out the ongoing responsibilities
for the Health and Wellbeing Board with respect to the PNA for approval. The final
PNA is attached as Appendix A to this report.
Background
2. The HWB has a statutory responsibility to prepare a PNA for Leicestershire and
publish it by March 2015.
3. The purpose of the PNA is to:
a) Identify the pharmaceutical services currently available and assess the
need for pharmaceutical services in the future;
b) inform the planning and commissioning of pharmacy services by identifying
which services should be commissioned for local people, within available
resources, and where these services should be;
c) inform decision-making in response to applications made to NHS England
by pharmacists and dispensing doctors to provide a new pharmacy. The
organisation that will make these decisions is NHS England.
4. The Board delegated the responsibility for developing the PNA to the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)/Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies
(JHWS) Steering Board which approved the development of a PNA Project Team
across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to oversee the work.
5. The draft Leicestershire PNA was presented to the HWB on 16th September 2014
and approved for consultation.
6. The consultation closed in December 2015, since when the PNA has been
revised, through:
a) the development of an equalities statement - based on the needs
assessment, the responses from the engagement work in July and the
consultation responses; and
b) through a final PNA project team meeting to agree the proposed changes
to the final report.

304
7. The main changes to the recommendations from the consultation draft include:
a) A recommendation linked to access to services in the rural area of
Wymeswold.
b) A recommendation that NHS England need to review access for a specific
group of travellers in Bagworth.
c) A need for more materials to be made available in pharmacies in easy read
formats.
d) Access to interpretation and translation services, including for the deaf
community.
e) A need to make local residents, particularly younger people, more aware of
the services that are available within pharmacies.
8. The PNA concludes that the existing pharmacy services and dispensing GP
practices are sufficient to meet the needs of the Leicestershire population across
all of the districts up to 2020.
9. After it has published its first pharmaceutical needs assessment, each HWB must
publish a statement of its revised assessment within 3 years. The HWB is advised
to review the PNA by March 2018.
10. The HWB has an ongoing commitment with the pharmaceutical regulations to
keep a published map of pharmaceutical services up to date. It is advised that the
JSNA/ JHWS Steering Board will ensure that this happens on behalf of the HWB
and the Terms of Reference of the JSNA/ JHWS Steering Board will be amended
to reflect this.
Existing Framework / Previous Decisions
11. The Health and Wellbeing Board agreed the Terms of Reference for the PNA
Project Team in July 2014.
12. The Health and Wellbeing Board approved the draft PNA for consultation on the
16th September 2014.
Consultations
13. The PNA was subject to a 60-day statutory consultation, and the full report is
available as on request (see paragraph 18 below).
Resource Implications
14. The PNA will influence commissioning decisions by NHS England, CCGs and
Leicestershire County Council.
Equality and Human Rights Implications
15. The final PNA for Leicestershire has been through an EHRIA process and an
equalities statement is attached as Appendix B.

305
Partnership Working Implications
16. The PNA identifies issues that will be addressed by NHS England, West
Leicestershire CCG, East Leicestershire CCG and Leicestershire County Council.
Background Papers
Report to the Board, 17 July 2014 - Progress Update, Pharmaceutical Needs
Assessment
Report to the Board, 16 September 2014 - Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
Recommendations
17. It is recommended that the Board a) Approves the final PNA report for publication;
b) Notes the need to update the PNA in 2018, as set out in the
Pharmaceutical Regulations;
c) Notes and approves the ongoing responsibilities with respect to the
publication of an up-to-date map of all pharmacy provision and the
arrangements that have been proposed to ensure that this takes place.
Officer to Contact
Mike Sandys
Director of Public Health
Email: mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk
Telephone: 0116 305 7913
Appendices
Appendix A - Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, March 2015
Appendix B - Equalities Policy Statement
Background information
18. The following documents are available on request from the report author or the
Committee Officer A: PNA Project Team Terms of Reference
B: 2012/13 Quality and Outcomes data for Leicestershire County and Districts
C: 2014 Health Profiles for Leicestershire and the Districts
D: Full list of pharmacy opening hours
E: PNA Patients Public Results Leicestershire
F: Professionals Pharmacy Questionnaire Leicestershire
G: PNA Patients Public Easy Read
H: The full consultation report
I: The consultation document
J: The easy read version of the consultation

306

This page is intentionally left blank

307

308

For more information please contact:
Public Health Department
Leicestershire County Council
0116 3050705
phi@leics.gov.uk

Page 2 of 87

309

FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) is to:
•

identify the pharmaceutical services currently available and assess the need for
pharmaceutical services in the future;

•

inform the planning and commissioning of pharmacy services by identifying which
services should be commissioned for local people, within available resources, and
where these services should be;

•

inform decision making in response to applications made to NHS England by
pharmacists and dispensing doctors to provide a new pharmacy. The organisation
that will make these decisions is NHS England.

The PNA is a statutory document that is used by NHS England to agree changes to the
commissioning of local pharmaceutical services.
The current PNA for Leicestershire was produced in 2010 by the then Leicestershire
County and Rutland Primary Care Trust. The responsibility transferred to Health and
Wellbeing Boards in the general reforms embodied in the Health and Social Care Act
(2012). The NHS (Pharmaceutical Services and Local Pharmaceutical Services)
Regulations 2013 set out the legislative basis for developing and updating PNAs and can
be found at http://www.dh.gov.uk/health/2013/02/pharmaceutical-services-regulations/.1

This PNA has reviewed pharmacy and dispensing GP coverage in relation to the
population health needs of the people of Leicestershire. This has involved looking at the
existing services, their locations, the breadth of services they are providing and the views
of the people that are using them. The PNA refers to the services that were provided on
the 31st March 2014. The PNA analysis focusses on the services that are currently
provided in pharmacy, with a look forwards to how pharmacies could be more widely used
in the future.
Within the scope of this document, community based pharmacies and dispensing GPs are
meeting the current needs of the Leicestershire population for essential and advanced
services in all of the Leicestershire districts. The consistency and quality of the advanced
services should be continually reviewed and the uptake of Medicines Use Reviews and the

Page 3 of 87

310

New Medicines Service in the community should be increased wherever possible. The
Community Based Services (CBS) provision across Leicestershire is good with a number
of well-developed schemes that are constantly developed and improved. It has been
identified that more needs to be done to increase uptake of CBS and to ensure that
services across the county are consistent. Across all areas of pharmacy (essential,
advanced and community based services) there is a need for commissioners to ensure
consistency in the range of and quality of services offered by pharmacists.
Community pharmacists are the most accessible health care professionals for the general
public. Locally, they are highly valued by their customers. The role of pharmacy in the
delivery of the wider health agenda will be essential to supporting the health and care
system going forwards. Across Leicestershire, the delivery of primary care is changing.
The Better Care Fund sets out the plans for health and social care in Leicestershire to
support more patients to manage their own care more effectively in the community,
reducing unnecessary hospital admissions. To support this there will be changes in
primary care, including plans to move to seven day working. All three commissioners of
pharmacy services in Leicestershire need to consider the ways that pharmacies can be
utilised to support these changes.
There are many additional services that could be commissioned from community based
services, including pharmacies. There is interest from our community in accessing minor
ailments services in community pharmacies. However, there are other community based
services that could be provided in pharmacies, these include (this list is illustrative and not
exhaustive, any additional pharmacy based scheme would need to be subject to a full
evidence review before it could be commissioned):
•

Minor ailments services;

•

Emergency repeat medicines service;

•

Anti-coagulation services;

•

Home blood pressure monitoring and supporting patient access to telehealth;

•

Support for inhaler technique;

•

NHS Health Checks;

•

Targeted “not dispense scheme” to reduce medicines waste;

•

Integration with multi-disciplinary teams to support proactive/ integrated care; and

•

Support across the primary and secondary care interface to promote referrals from
secondary care and increase uptake of NMS and MURs for eligible patients post
discharge.

CCGs must incorporate the wider role of pharmacies in their primary care strategies to
ensure that the opportunities to provide effective local services are maximised locally.
Page 4 of 87

311

CONTENTS


BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION ............................................................................ 10
1. Introduction ................................................................................................................. 10
2. Purpose of the PNA..................................................................................................... 10
3. Pharmaceutical services and Pharmacy contracts ...................................................... 11
3.1. Essential Services ................................................................................................ 12
3.2. Advanced Services ............................................................................................... 13
3.3. Community based services ................................................................................... 15
3.4. Pharmacy Contracts ............................................................................................. 16
3.5. Distance selling pharmacies ................................................................................. 17
4. What is excluded from the scope of the PNA? ............................................................ 17
4.1. Prison Pharmacy .................................................................................................. 17
4.2. Hospital Pharmacy................................................................................................ 18
5. Process followed for developing the PNA ................................................................... 18
HEALTH NEEDS OF THE POPULATION OF LEICESTERSHIRE ................................... 20
6. Population of Leicestershire ........................................................................................ 20
6.1. Population Estimates ............................................................................................ 20
6.2. Deprivation ........................................................................................................... 21
6.3. Ethnicity ................................................................................................................ 23
7. Life Expectancy ........................................................................................................... 23
8. Lifestyles ..................................................................................................................... 24
9. Burden of disease in the population ............................................................................ 25
10.

Local Health Needs .................................................................................................. 26

11.

Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Priorities ...................................................... 28

CURRENT PHARMACEUTICAL PROVISION .................................................................. 30
12.

Location of pharmacies ............................................................................................ 30

12.1. Local Pharmaceutical Service (LPS) contract ....................................................... 31
12.2. Distance Selling Pharmacies ................................................................................ 32
13.

Services available in Leicestershire ......................................................................... 34

13.1. Essential services ................................................................................................. 34

Page 5 of 87

312

ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϭ͘ KƉĞŶŝŶŐŚŽƵƌƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϯϰ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘Ϯ͘ WƌĞƐĐƌŝďŝŶŐĂĐƚŝǀŝƚǇ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϯϱ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϯ͘ ƌŝǀĞĂŶĚǁĂůŬƚŝŵĞĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϯϲ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϰ͘ ĐĐĞƐƐĂŶĚƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶƐĂĨĨĞĐƚĞĚďǇĚĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϯϵ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϱ͘ ĐĐĞƐƐĂŶĚƉĞŽƉůĞĨƌŽŵůĂĐŬĂŶĚDŝŶŽƌŝƚǇƚŚŶŝĐ'ƌŽƵƉƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϬ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϲ͘ ĐĐĞƐƐĂŶĚŽƚŚĞƌƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶǀĂƌŝĂďůĞƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϭ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϳ͘ WƵďůŝĐdƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϮ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϴ͘ 'WŝƐƉĞŶƐŝŶŐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϮ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϵ͘ ƌŽƐƐŽƌĚĞƌ/ƐƐƵĞƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϰ
ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϭϬ͘

KƚŚĞƌ/ƐƐƵĞƐĨŽƌŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϴ

ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϭϭ͘

WĂƚŝĞŶƚsŝĞǁƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϴ

ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϭϮ͘

WEWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐWƵďůŝĐZĞƐƵůƚƐ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϴ

ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϭϯ͘

WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐWŚĂƌŵĂĐǇYƵĞƐƚŝŽŶŶĂŝƌĞ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϵ

ϭϯ͘ϭ͘ϭϰ͘

WEWĂƚŝĞŶƚƐWƵďůŝĐĂƐǇZĞĂĚ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϰϵ

13.2. Advanced Services ............................................................................................... 50
ϭϯ͘Ϯ͘ϭ͘ DĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐhƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱϭ
ϭϯ͘Ϯ͘Ϯ͘ EĞǁDĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱϯ
ϭϯ͘Ϯ͘ϯ͘ ^ƚŽŵĂƵƐƚŽŵŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱϱ
ϭϯ͘Ϯ͘ϰ͘ ƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞhƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱϲ

13.3. Quality in Essential and Advanced Services ......................................................... 58
13.4. Community Based Services .................................................................................. 58
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϭ͘ ŚůĂŵǇĚŝĂƐĐƌĞĞŶŝŶŐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϱϵ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘Ϯ͘ ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ,ŽƌŵŽŶĂůŽŶƚƌĂĐĞƉƚŝŽŶ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲϭ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϯ͘ ^ƵďƐƚĂŶĐĞŵŝƐƵƐĞƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲϮ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϰ͘ ,ĞĂůƚŚǇ>ŝǀŝŶŐWŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲϰ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϱ͘ ůĐŽŚŽůďƌŝĞĨŝŶƚĞƌǀĞŶƚŝŽŶƐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲϱ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϲ͘ ^ŵŽŬŝŶŐĐĞƐƐĂƚŝŽŶ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲϲ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϳ͘ WĂůůŝĂƚŝǀĞĂƌĞ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲϴ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϴ͘ ,͘ƉǇůŽƌŝ^ĐƌĞĞŶŝŶŐ͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘͘ϲϵ

13.5. User views ............................................................................................................ 70
14.

Projected future needs ............................................................................................. 71

14.1. Population Projections .......................................................................................... 71
14.2. Long term conditions ............................................................................................ 73
14.3. Future housing ...................................................................................................... 74

Page 6 of 87

313

15.

Response to the 60 day statutory consultation ........................................................ 74

16.

Equality Statement ................................................................................................... 76

17.

Gap analysis ............................................................................................................ 76

17.1. Essential Services ................................................................................................ 76
17.2. Advanced Services ............................................................................................... 78
17.3. Community Based Services .................................................................................. 79
18.

Conclusions ............................................................................................................. 81

GLOSSARY OF TERMS.................................................................................................... 84
REFERENCES .................................................................................................................. 85
LIST OF APPENDICES ..................................................................................................... 87

List of Tables
Table 1: Essential pharmacy services................................................................................ 12
Table 2: Advanced pharmacy services .............................................................................. 13
Table 3: Community based pharmacy services ................................................................. 15
Table 4: 2012 Population Estimates for Leicestershire ...................................................... 21
Table 5: 2014 Health Profile Summary .............................................................................. 27
Table 6: Leicestershire pharmaceutical services, 2014 ..................................................... 30
Table 7: Number and cost of items prescribed .................................................................. 35
Table 8: Population by drive-time ...................................................................................... 37
Table 9: Population by walk-time ....................................................................................... 38
Table 10: Estimated households without a car by walk-time.............................................. 39
Table 11: Estimated population by deprivation quintile and drive times ............................. 40
Table 12: Estimated population by deprivation quintile and walking times ........................ 40
Table 13: Estimated population by ethnicity and drive times ............................................. 41
Table 14: Estimated population by ethnicity and walk times .............................................. 41
Table 15: Analysis of walk time and drive time by demographic / condition/ lifestyle
behaviour for all Leicestershire residents........................................................................... 42
Table 16: Advanced Services – Number of community pharmacies providing each service
(excluding internet pharmacy)............................................................................................ 51
Table 17: Number of Medicines Use Reviews in community pharmacy by locality ............ 52
Table 18: Number of New Medicines Services in community pharmacy by locality ........... 55
Table 19: Pharmacies carrying out Stoma Appliance Customisation 2013/14 ................... 56
Table 20: Pharmacies carrying out Appliance Use Reviews 2013/14 ................................ 57
Table 21: Number of providers providing Community Based Services .............................. 59
Table 22: Community Based Services activity - Chlamydia testing in pharmacy in 2013/14
Page 7 of 87

314

........................................................................................................................................... 61
Table 23: Community Based Services activity - Emergency Hormonal Contraception in
2013/14 .............................................................................................................................. 62
Table 25: Estimated number of smokers, and pharmacy provision and pharmacy based
CBS provision .................................................................................................................... 67
Table 26: Estimated smokers by walk-time to pharmacy and GP dispenser ..................... 68
Table 27: Population aged 85 and over, and pharmacies providing palliative care services
........................................................................................................................................... 69
Table 28: Summary of patient responses to awareness and uptake of services ............... 71
Table 29: Leicestershire population projections, in 1,000s - 2012 to 2037 ........................ 72
Table 30: Estimated contractor need based on projected population growth..................... 73
Table 31: Projections of older people, age 65 years and over, with long term conditions,
2015-2030 from POPPI...................................................................................................... 74
Table 32: Housing Objective Assessment of Need Conclusions, 2011-2031 .................... 74

List of Figures
Figure 1: 2012 Population Pyramid .................................................................................... 20
Figure 2: Population by district and deprivation quintile in Leicestershire, 2010 ................ 22
Figure 3: English Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2010 by national quintile for Leicestershire
........................................................................................................................................... 23
Figure 4: Leicestershire’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy ......................................... 29
Figure 5: Leicestershire pharmaceutical services, 2014 .................................................... 33
Figure 6: Leicestershire 100 hour pharmacies, 2014 ......................................................... 35
Figure 7: Prescribing activity for Leicestershire 2013/14.................................................... 36
Figure 8: Drive time to nearest pharmacy or dispensing GP practice location ................... 37
Figure 9: Walking time to the nearest pharmacy or dispensing GP surgery ...................... 38
Figure 10: Dispensing GP practices .................................................................................. 43
Figure 11: Urban and rural areas, Leicestershire and Rutland .......................................... 44
Figure 12: Leicestershire neighbouring local authorities .................................................... 45
Figure 13: Advanced Services - Medicines Use Reviews .................................................. 53
Figure 14: Estimated prevalence of adults with bad or very bad health, and pharmacies
providing MURs ................................................................................................................. 53
Figure 15: Advanced Services - New Medicines Service ................................................... 54
Figure 16: Locally Enhanced Services - Stoma Customisation.......................................... 56
Figure 17: Advanced Services - Appliance Use Reviews .................................................. 58
Figure 18: Community Based Services - Chlamydia screening and proportion of 15-24
year olds ............................................................................................................................ 60
Figure 19: Rates of under 18 conceptions by ward, and pharmacies by EHC provision .... 62
Figure 20: Community Based Services - Needle exchange ............................................... 63
Page 8 of 87

315

Figure 21: Community Based Services - Supervised methadone consumption................. 64
Figure 22: Estimated prevalence of smokers, and pharmacies providing smoking cessation
services.............................................................................................................................. 66
Figure 23: Proportion of population aged 85 and over, and pharmacies proving palliative
care services ...................................................................................................................... 69

Page 9 of 87

316

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION
1.

Introduction

If a person (a pharmacist, a dispenser of appliances or a GP) wants to provide NHS
pharmaceutical services, they are required to apply to the NHS to be included on a
pharmaceutical list. Pharmaceutical lists are compiled and held by NHS England. This is
commonly known as the NHS “market entry” system.
In order to be included on a relevant pharmaceutical list, the applicant applies by proving
they are able to meet a pharmaceutical need as set out in the relevant Pharmaceutical
Needs Assessment (PNA). There are exceptions to this, such as applications for needs
not foreseen in the PNA or to provide pharmaceutical services on a distance-selling
(internet or mail order only) basis.
In April 2013, as part of overarching changes to health and social care in the Health and
Social Care Act 2012, Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) were established and hosted
in local authorities nationwide and became responsible for developing and updating PNAs
for their population. At this time, the responsibility for using PNAs as the basis for
determining market entry to a pharmaceutical list transferred to NHS England. This
responsibility for developing PNA’s and controlling the pharmaceutical list previously
rested with the Primary Care Trusts under the Health Act 2009 128A.
The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services)
Regulations 2013 requires all Health and Wellbeing Boards to publish their PNA by 1st
April 2015 unless a need for an earlier update is identified.
2.

Purpose of the PNA

PNA’s are key local tools for understanding the provision of pharmaceutical services in a
local area and also identifying and assessing which pharmaceutical services need to be
provided by local community pharmacies and other providers in the future.
They inform the planning and commissioning of pharmacy services by identifying which
services should be commissioned for local people, within available resources, and where
these services should be.
They are aligned to other relevant local plans for health and social care such as the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and they examine the local population demographics
and services available in the neighbouring HWB areas that may affect local service need.
PNA’s identify gaps and inform decision making in response to applications made to NHS
Page 10 of 87

317

England by pharmacists and dispensing doctors to provide a new pharmacy. The
organisation that will make these decisions is NHS England hence the PNA is of particular
importance to them.
The PNA must contain the following:
•

A statement of pharmaceutical services provided that are necessary to meet needs
in the area.

•

A statement of other services which are provided, which are not needed but which
have secured improvements or better access to pharmaceutical services in the
area.

•

A statement of the services that the HWB has identified as not being provided but
which would, if they were provided, secure improvements or better access to
pharmaceutical services in the area.

•

A statement of other NHS services provided by the local authority, NHS England,
Clinical Commissioning Groups or other NHS trusts which may affect the need for
pharmaceutical services.

•

An explanation of how the assessment has been carried out including how the
consultation was carried out.

•

A map of providers of pharmaceutical services.

3.

Pharmaceutical services and Pharmacy contracts

Pharmaceutical services are defined by reference to the regulations and directions
governing pharmaceutical services provided by community pharmacies, dispensing GP’s
and appliance contractors.
There are three tiers of community pharmaceutical services:
•

“Essential

services”

which

every

community

pharmacy

providing

NHS
1

pharmaceutical services must provide and is set out in their terms of service – the
dispensing of medicines, promotion of healthy lifestyles and support for self-care;
•

“Advanced services” - services community pharmacy contractors and dispensing
appliance contractors can provide subject to accreditation as necessary – these are
Medicines Use Reviews and the New Medicines Service for community pharmacists
and Appliance Use Reviews and the Stoma Customisation Service for dispensing
Page 11 of 87

318

appliance contractors; and
•

“Enhanced services” which are locally commissioned services commissioned by
NHS England, Clinical Commissioning Groups and Local Authorities.

3.1.

Essential Services

The essential services listed below are offered by all pharmacy contractors as part of the
NHS Community Pharmacy Contractual Framework (the ‘pharmacy contract’).
dĂďůĞϭ͗ƐƐĞŶƚŝĂůƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

Essential
Services
Dispensing

Repeat
Dispensing

Clinical
governance

Description
The supply of medicines and appliances ordered on NHS
prescriptions, together with information and advice, to
enable safe and effective use by patients and carers, and
maintenance of appropriate records.
The management and dispensing of repeatable NHS
prescriptions for medicines and appliances, in partnership
with the patient and the prescriber. This service specification
covers the requirements additional to those for dispensing,
such that the pharmacist ascertains the patient's need for a
repeat supply and communicates any clinically significant
issues to the prescriber.
Pharmacies have an identifiable clinical governance lead
and apply clinical governance principles to the delivery of
services. This will include use of standard operating
procedures; recording, reporting and learning from adverse
incidents;
participation
in
continuing
professional
development and clinical audit; and assessing patient
satisfaction.2

Promotion
of The provision of opportunistic healthy lifestyle advice and
healthy lifestyles
public health advice to patients receiving prescriptions who
(Public Health)
appear to:
• have diabetes; or
• be at risk of coronary heart disease, especially
those with high blood pressure; or
• who smoke; or
• are overweight,
and pro-active participation in national/local campaigns, to
promote public health messages to general pharmacy
visitors during specific targeted campaign periods.
Page 12 of 87

319

Essential
Services
Disposal
unwanted
medicines

Description

of Acceptance, by community pharmacies, of unwanted
medicines from households and individuals which require
safe disposal. NHS England’s Leicestershire and
Lincolnshire Area team has arrangements for the collection
and disposal of waste medicines from pharmacies.
Signposting
The provision of information to people visiting the pharmacy,
who require further support, advice or treatment which
cannot be provided by the pharmacy.
Support for self- The provision of advice and support by pharmacy staff to
care
enable people to derive maximum benefit from caring for
themselves or their families.

3.2.

Advanced Services

There are four advanced services within the NHS community pharmacy contractual
framework (the ‘pharmacy contract’). Community pharmacies can choose to provide any or
all of these listed services.
dĂďůĞϮ͗ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

Description
Advanced
Services
The
Medicines Accredited pharmacists undertaking structured adherenceUse
Review
centered reviews with patients on multiple medicines,
(MUR)
particularly those receiving medicines for long term conditions.
National target groups have been agreed in order to guide the
selection of patients to whom the service will be offered. The
MUR process attempts to establish a picture of the patient’s
use of their medicines – both prescribed and non-prescribed.
The review helps patients understand their therapy and it will
identify any problems they are experiencing along with possible
solutions. An MUR feedback form will be provided to the
patient’s GP where there is an issue for them to consider.

Page 13 of 87

320

Description
Advanced
Services
New
Medicine This Service was introduced on the 1st October 2011.The
Service (NMS)
service provides support for people with long term conditions
newly prescribed a medicine to help improve medicines
adherence; it is initially focused on particular patient groups
and conditions.
The service was initially implemented as a time-limited service
to be commissioned until March 2013. NHS England has been
considering the short term future of the service and has agreed
that the service will continue in 2014/15, subject to the
outcome of the Department of Health funded academic
evaluation of the service, which is expected to report in mid2014.
This means that pharmacy contractors can continue to provide
the service until further notice is given or the end of 2014/15 is
reached. When the final evaluation is published, NHS England
will use it to decide whether to continue commissioning the
service.
Appliance
Use This service can be carried out by a pharmacist or a specialist
Review (AUR)
nurse in the pharmacy or at the patient’s home. AURs should
improve the patient’s knowledge and use of any ‘specified
appliance’ by establishing the way the patient uses the
appliance and the patient’s experience of such use. This is
achieved by identifying, discussing and assisting in the
resolution of poor or ineffective use of the appliance by the
patient including advising the patient on the safe and
appropriate storage of the appliance and advising the patient
on the safe and proper disposal of the appliances that are used
or unwanted.

Page 14 of 87

321

Description
Advanced
Services
Stoma Appliance The service involves
Customisation
than one stoma
(SAC)
measurements or a
ensure proper use

the customisation of a quantity of more
appliance, based on the patient’s
template. The aim of the service is to
and comfortable fitting of the stoma

appliance and to improve the duration of usage, thereby
reducing waste. The stoma appliances that can be customised
are listed in Part IXC of the Drug Tariff.
If the pharmacist is unable to provide the prescribed service,
they should either refer (with the patient’s consent) the patient
to another pharmacy or provide the patient with the contact
details of at least two pharmacies or providers that are able to
supply the service.
3.3.

Community based services

In addition to the services above, pharmacies can also offer services to meet the health
needs of their local populations. These services currently include:
dĂďůĞϯ͗ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇďĂƐĞĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

Community
Based Services
Chlamydia
Screening

Emergency
Hormonal
Contraception
(EHC)
H.pylori
screening
Healthy living

Needle exchange

Description
This offers a chlamydia testing kit and treatment service to sexually
active people less than 25 years of age when, for example, young
people purchase condoms, when oral contraceptive pills are dispensed
and supplied to patients and when supplying EHC. The pharmacy will
provide advice on how to utilise the kit, how to return it for testing and
what will happen following completion of the test.
This is a free service to women up to 25 years of age following
unprotected sexual intercourse to prevent unintended pregnancies.

This service is a breath testing service for patients with dyspepsia
symptoms to detect the presence of Helicobacter bacteria which can
cause stomach ulcers.
These pharmacies aim to reduce health inequalities within the local
community by delivering high quality health and wellbeing services,
promoting health and providing proactive health advice.
A service for intravenous drug users, providing clean needles and so
reducing the risk of infection such as hepatitis.
Page 15 of 87

322

Community
Based Services
Supervised
consumption

Smoking
cessation
Palliative Care

Description
A service for registered drug addicts, commissioned in partnership with
the Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT), providing regular monitored
doses of an opiate substitute to support becoming progressively drug
free.
This service supports patients who wish to stop smoking by providing
Nicotine Replacement Therapy and on-going support.
Palliative care is aimed at offering the patient the highest possible level
of comfort during the last phase of their life. This service aims to
facilitate access to palliative care medicines by patients and their
representatives. These pharmacists are trained in the use of palliative
care medicines and can provide advice to carers and other healthcare
professionals.

Alcohol
brief A screening, advice and support service to higher risk and increasing
intervention
risk drinkers aged 18 and over.

3.4.

Pharmacy Contracts

There are four types of community pharmacy contractors. They are:
•

Those held on a pharmaceutical list (standard contract) - healthcare
professionals working for themselves or as employees who practise in pharmacy,
the field of health sciences focusing on safe and effective medicines use.

•

Dispensing appliance contractors - appliance suppliers are a specific sub-set of
NHS pharmaceutical contractors who supply, on prescription, appliances such as
stoma and incontinence aids, dressings, bandages etc. They cannot supply
medicines.

•

Dispensing doctors - medical practitioners authorised to provide drugs and
appliances in designated rural areas known as “controlled localities”.

•

Local Pharmaceutical Service (LPS) contract allows NHS England to
commission community pharmaceutical services tailored to specific local
requirements. It provides flexibility to include within a single locally negotiated
contract a broader or narrower range of services (including services not traditionally
associated with pharmacy) than is possible under national pharmacy arrangements
set out in the 2013 Regulations. All LPS contracts must, however, include an
element of dispensing.

Page 16 of 87

323

3.5.

Distance selling pharmacies

Distance selling pharmacies are able to provide the full range of essential, advanced and
enhanced services to the population.
A distance selling pharmacy must not provide essential services to a person who is
present at the pharmacy, or in the vicinity of it. The pharmacy must provide for the
essential services to be provided safely and effectively without face to face contact with
any member of staff on the premises. For example, a distance selling pharmacy will
receive a prescription via post (or via the electronic prescription service) and dispenses it
the next day, sending it via courier. The pharmacist telephones the patient to counsel the
patient on the medicine’s correct use. This arrangement satisfies the conditions as no face
to face contact has taken place on the pharmacy’s premises.
A distance selling pharmacy may provide advanced and enhanced services on the
premises, as long as any essential service which forms part of the advanced or enhanced
service is not provided to persons present at the premises. For example, a distance selling
pharmacy receives a prescription and dispenses it the next day, sending it via post with a
consent form and explanatory leaflet about the New Medicine Service, inviting the patient
to contact the pharmacy. The patient lives locally and so makes arrangements to visit the
pharmacy, to complete the NMS. The pharmacy would need to be very careful not to
provide or offer to provide any of the essential services whilst the patient is at the
pharmacy. The patient brings some unwanted medicine back to the pharmacy at the same
time as attending for the NMS consultation.
4.

What is excluded from the scope of the PNA?

The PNA is set out by regulation to cover the community based pharmacy services that
have been described in section 3 of this report. There are other providers of
pharmaceutical services in Leicestershire that have not been included in the assessment
of need.
4.1.

Prison Pharmacy

Pharmaceutical services in prisons are provided in two prisons in Leicestershire. These
are:
•

HMP Gartree

•

HMYOI Glen Parva (Young Offenders Institute)

Health services provided within prisons require a pharmaceutical service to support the
Page 17 of 87

324

delivery of healthcare and the supply of medicines. The unique nature of the environment
and the predominance of certain clinical services in some prisons such as substance
misuse services means that these services will be provided by contracted providers with a
model that is determined to support the prison population safely.
4.2.

Hospital Pharmacy

Around 20% of pharmacists work in hospitals and play an essential role in patient care.
Working as part of a multidisciplinary team, hospital pharmacists manage case loads and
provide treatment programmes for all hospital patients. In Leicestershire, patients will
access acute care from a range of hospital providers, including
•

University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust

•

Community hospitals in Melton, Ashby, Market Harborough, Loughborough,
Coalville, Hinckley and Bosworth

•

Out of county providers, such as Nottingham, Derby, Burton, Peterborough, etc.

Whilst in hospital, patients’ medicines will be dispensed and managed by hospital
pharmacists. Once the patient is discharged to the community their pharmaceutical needs
will be met by their community pharmacist.
5.

Process followed for developing the PNA

The Health and Wellbeing Board in Leicestershire tasked the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy/ Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Steering Board to carry out the PNA on their
behalf. They established a joint project team across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
to develop the PNA for each local authority.
The interagency PNA Project Team was established because many of the relationships
required for the PNA are Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) wide. The team
included representation from NHS England Area Team, the Leicestershire Pharmaceutical
Committee and the Local Professional Network for Pharmacists. The project team’s terms
of reference are attached as Appendix A.
The PNA was subject to a 60 day statutory consultation period which ran between 24
September 2014 and 28 November 2014. Regulation 8 of the Pharmaceutical Services
Regulations specifies that the Health and Wellbeing Board must consult with the
following:• the Local Pharmaceutical Committee;
• the Local Medical Committee;
Page 18 of 87

325

•
•
•

any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors list for its area;
any LPS chemist in its area with whom the NHS England has made arrangements
for the provision of any local pharmaceutical services;
Healthwatch, and any other patient, consumer or community group in its area which
in the view of the Health and Wellbeing Board has an interest in the provision of
pharmaceutical services in its area;

• any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in its area;
• the NHS England; and
• any neighbouring HWB.
The full range of statutory bodies required was consulted with. In addition, the consultation
was distributed widely to other groups likely to be interested, including members of the
public.
Appendix A – PNA Project Team Terms of Reference

Page 19 of 87

326

HEALTH NEEDS OF THE POPULATION OF LEICESTERSHIRE
6.

Population of Leicestershire

Leicestershire’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) was published in 2012.3 Since
the publication of the JSNA, additional reports have been published alongside the JSNA to
further enrich the evidence base for the health and wellbeing of the population. These
include:
•

the Director of Public Health’s Annual Reports for 2011, 2012 and 2013 which
focussed on health through the life cycle with reports on children, older people and
working age adults;

•

needs assessments on healthy weight, physical activity and substance misuse;

•

Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF) tool published for Leicestershire
County Council and the Districts.

These reports are all available from www.lsr-online.gov.uk
The JSNA is due to be refreshed in 2015, with work starting on that refresh in summer
2014. The findings from the JSNA refresh will be used to underpin a full refresh of the Joint
Health and Wellbeing Strategy,4 which will incorporate the Better Care Fund and
integration plan developed in 2014.5
6.1.
•
•

Population Estimates
In 2012, the population of Leicestershire was 656,698 people.6
106,027 people were aged 65-84 years (16.1%) and 15,903 people were aged 85
years and over (2.4%)6

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭ͗ϮϬϭϮWŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶWǇƌĂŵŝĚ

Page 20 of 87

327

dĂďůĞϰ͗ϮϬϭϮWŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐĨŽƌ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

6.2.

Deprivation

The wider determinants of health are described and measured within the English Indices
of Deprivation 2010.7 These are a group of measures which gauge different aspects of
deprivation. Deprivation is a general lack of resources and opportunities, which includes
financial poverty and a range of other aspects such as lack of access to education or good
quality housing. The measures are combined into an overall measure of the amount of
deprivation in an area called the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), which can be used to
compare different local areas.8
The indices of deprivation use several measures in each of seven “domains”:
• Income deprivation, including Income deprivation affecting children (IDACI) and
Income deprivation affecting older people (IDAOPI);
• Employment deprivation;
• Health deprivation and disability;
• Education, skills and deprivation;
Page 21 of 87

328

•
•
•

Barriers to housing and services;
Crime domain; and
Living environment deprivation domain.

Figure 3 presents the level of deprivation in different areas of Leicestershire according to
the IMD 2010. The data are presented as “quintiles” of deprivation - areas of
Leicestershire that fall into the most deprived fifth (20%) of areas in England are quintile 1,
those in the second most deprived fifth of areas are quintile 2, and so on, through to
quintile 5 which are areas that are within the least deprived fifth (20%) in England.
Figure 2 shows how much of the population of Leicestershire lives in each deprivation
quintile, and demonstrates that:
• 1% of the population of Leicestershire (7,640) people live in areas categorised
•
•

within the most deprived 20% of areas in the country.
Two districts in Leicestershire, Charnwood and North West Leicestershire, have
areas which are in the most deprived 20% in the country.
11% of the Leicestershire population live in the second quintile of deprivation (in
the most deprived 20-40% of areas in England), accounting for over 73,000
people affected by deprivation. All seven districts have people in this category of
deprivation.

&ŝŐƵƌĞϮ͗WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶďǇĚŝƐƚƌŝĐƚĂŶĚĚĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶƋƵŝŶƚŝůĞŝŶ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ͕ϮϬϭϬ
ϯϬϬϬϬϬ

ϮϱϬϬϬϬ

ϮϬϬϬϬϬ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
DĞůƚŽŶ

ϭϱϬϬϬϬ

,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ

ϭϬϬϬϬϬ

ůĂďǇ

ϱϬϬϬϬ

Ϭ
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϭͲDŽƐƚ
ĞƉƌŝǀĞĚ

YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϮ

YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϯ

YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϰ

Page 22 of 87

YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϱͲ>ĞĂƐƚ
ĞƉƌŝǀĞĚ

329

&ŝŐƵƌĞϯ͗ŶŐůŝƐŚ/ŶĚŝĐĞƐŽĨDƵůƚŝƉůĞĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶϮϬϭϬďǇŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůƋƵŝŶƚŝůĞĨŽƌ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

6.3.

Ethnicity

•

In 2011, the 2011 Census reported that 578,432 people in Leicestershire were
White British, representing 88.9% of the total population. This is higher than the
proportion in England of 79.8%.

•

The most significant black and minority ethnic group is Asian Indian, with 28,598
people, 4.4% of the total population. This is higher than the proportion in England of
2.6%.

7.

Life Expectancy
• Between 2010 and 2012, life expectancy for males in Leicestershire was 80.1 years

•

and for females was 84.0 years.9 This is significantly better than the England
average for both males and females.
Healthy life expectancy for 2010-12 for males was 64.9 years for males and 66.7
years for females.9 This is significantly better than the England average for females
but not for males.

Page 23 of 87

330

8.

Lifestyles

The role of public health in helping people to make the right choices for a healthier, longer
life was set out in “Healthy Lives, Healthy People”.10 Many of the lifestyle factors within this
report can be addressed in part through pharmacy – improving maternal health, supporting
children’s health and development and changing adults’ behaviour to reduce premature
death, and illness, particularly with respect to cancers and vascular diseases.
The lifestyle statistics presented below relate to the population of Leicestershire and they
are taken from the Public Health Outcomes Framework:9
•

In 2012, 18.8% adults smoked. This is similar to the England average.

•

In 2012/13, the alcohol related hospital admission rate was 573 per 100,000 (3718
admissions). This is significantly lower than the England average.

•

In 2012, 65.4% of adults were overweight or obese. This is similar to the England
average.

•

In 2012/13, 21% of children aged 4-5 years were overweight or obese. This is
significantly lower than the England average.

•

In 2012/13, 31.3% of children aged 10-11 years were overweight or obese. This is
significantly lower than the England average.

•

In 2013, 27.5% of adults were physically inactive. This is similar to the England
average.

•

In 2012/13, 4.7% people reported a low satisfaction score for self-reported
wellbeing. This is similar to the England average.

•

In 2012/13, 4.8% people reported a low worthwhile score for self-reported
wellbeing. This is similar to the England average.

•

In 2012/13, 8.9% people reported a low happiness score for self-reported wellbeing.
This is similar to the England average.

•

In 2012/13, 21% people reported a high anxiety score for self-reported wellbeing.
This is similar to the England average.

Page 24 of 87

331

9.

Burden of disease in the population

The 2012-13 Quality and Outcomes Framework Data collected by GPs gives a good
indication of the numbers of patients that GPs are seeing with long term conditions.11 In
Leicestershire there were:
•

93,845 people on GP hypertension registers, 14.4% of the total population. This is
significantly higher than the England prevalence of 13.7%.

•

39,817 people on GP asthma registers, 6.1% of the total population. This is
significantly higher than the England prevalence of 6.0%.

•

38,324 people on GP depression registers, 7.3% of the population aged 18 years and
over. This is significantly higher than the England prevalence of 5.8%.

•

33,140 people on GP diabetes registers, 6.3% of the population aged 17 years and
over. This is significantly higher than the England prevalence of 6.0%.

•

21,265 people on GP coronary heart disease registers, 3.26% of the total population.
This is significantly lower than the England prevalence of 3.34%.

•

20,049 people on GP hypothyroidism registers, 3.1% of the total population. This is
significantly lower than the England prevalence of 3.2%.

•

13,642 people on GP cancer registers, 2.1% of the total population. This is significantly
higher than the England prevalence of 1.9%.

•

10,843 people on GP stroke or transient ischaemic attacks registers, 1.66% of the total
population. This is significantly lower than the England prevalence of 1.7%.

•

10,476 people on GP COPD registers, 1.6% of the total population. This is significantly
lower than the England prevalence of 1.7%.

Appendix B: 2012/13 Quality and Outcomes data for Leicestershire County and the
Districts

Page 25 of 87

332

10.

Local Health Needs

Health profiles are published annually by Public Health England and provide a useful
snapshot of the health needs of the local population.12 The health profiles for
Leicestershire and the constituent districts are included in Appendix C. The key findings
are summarised in this section.
The health of people in Leicestershire is generally better than the England average.
Deprivation is lower than average, however about 12.1% (13,800) children live in poverty.
Life expectancy for both men and women is higher than the England average.12
Table 5 shows how people’s health in each local authority across Leicestershire compares
to the rest of England. It is clear that Leicestershire performs well in many indicators, with
22 indicators that are significantly better than the England average. However there is not
an even spread across all districts in Leicestershire and there is room to improve the
overall health of Leicestershire’s population.
The table identifies a number of areas where Leicestershire can focus to improve health,
both through focusing on areas where the counties are worse than the national average
and through focusing on the areas where Leicestershire performance is no different to the
national average.
There are 4 indicators where Leicestershire has poor performance: GCSE achievement,
incidence of malignant melanoma, recorded diabetes and excess winter deaths. Across
Leicestershire there are other indicators where performance could be improved.
Charnwood, Harborough, Hinckley and Bosworth and North West Leicestershire have 3
indicators each where performance is worse than the national average.
Appendix C – 2014 Health Profiles for Leicestershire and the Districts



Page 26 of 87

333

Life expectancy and
causes of death

Disease and poor
health

Adults
health and
lifestyle

Childrens and
young
peoples
health

Our
Communities
1
0
-1

1 Deprivation
2 Children in poverty (under 16s)
3 Statutory homelessness
4 GCSE achievement (5 A*-C inc Eng & Maths)
5 Violent crime (violent offences)
6 Long term unemployment
7 Smoking status at time of delivery
8 Breast feeding initiation
9 Obese children (year 6)
10 Alcohol-specific hospital stays (under 18)
11 Under 18 conceptions
12 Smoking prevalence
13 Percentage of physically active adults
14 Obese adults
15 Excess weight in adults
16 Incidence of malignant melanoma
17 Hospital stays for self harm
18 Hospital stays for alcohol related harm
19 Drug misuse
20 Recorded diabetes
21 Incidence of TB
22 Acute sexually transmitted infections
23 Hip fracture in 65s and over
24 Excess winter deaths (three year)
25 Life expectancy at birth (Male)
26 Life expectancy at birth (Female)
27 Infant mortality
28 Smoking related deaths
29 Suicide rate
30 Under 75 mortality rate: cardiovascular
31 Under 75 mortality rate: cancer
32 Killed and seriously injured on roads

Ļ

Ĺ
Ĺ

Leicestershire
CC

North West
Leicestershire

Oadby and
Wigston

Melton

Hinckley and
Bosworth

Harborough

Charnwood

Blaby

dĂďůĞϱ͗ϮϬϭϰ,ĞĂůƚŚWƌŽĨŝůĞ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ

Ĺ
Ļ

Ļ

Ĺ

Ļ

Ļ

Ļ

Ļ

Ļ

Ļ
Ļ

Ļ

Ļ

Ĺ
Ĺ

Ļ

Ĺ

Ļ

Ļ

Ĺ

Significantly better than England average
Not significantly different from England average
Significantly worse than England average
No significance can be calculated or data not available
No comparison available from 2013 (either new indicator, change in definition, or comparison not possible for technical
reasons)

Ļ
Ĺ

Rag rating has moved from green to amber or amber to red ie performance is not as good as 2013
Rag rating has moved from red to amber or amber to green ie perfomance has improved from 2013

Page 27 of 87

334

11.

Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Priorities

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy was published in January 2013.4 The strategy is
the Health and Wellbeing Board’s response to the health and wellbeing needs identified in
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.3 It sets out the key priorities that partners need to
address in order to improve the needs of the population. The 2013-16 strategy identified
the following key outcomes (see Figure 4):
•
•
•
•
•

Outcome 1: Getting it right from childhood;
Outcome 2: Managing the shift to early intervention and prevention;
Outcome 3: Supporting the ageing population;
Outcome 4: Improving mental health and wellbeing; and
Cross cutting theme: Tackling the wider determinants of health by influencing
other Boards.

The priorities have all been further developed in 2013/14, with sub-committees of the
Health and Wellbeing Board taking these work streams forwards.
To date, the overall performance against the strategy is good. The Health and Wellbeing
Board published an annual report in May 2014, describing the progress that is being made
to deliver the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.13



Page 28 of 87

335

&ŝŐƵƌĞϰ͗>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ͛Ɛ:ŽŝŶƚ,ĞĂůƚŚĂŶĚtĞůůďĞŝŶŐ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ

Page 29 of 87

336

CURRENT PHARMACEUTICAL PROVISION
The information about services presented in this report refers to the status of services on
31st March 2014. Where services have changed significantly in the past 12 months this is
referenced in the report but the baseline date for the presented data is fixed at this date.
12.

Location of pharmacies

Figure 5 shows the location and type of services in and around Leicestershire.
Leicestershire has 131 pharmacies, 2 internet pharmacies and 19 dispensing GP
practices, operating from 23 different locations (main and branch surgeries where the main
surgery is in Leicestershire). These 154 services are distributed across the 7 localities as
shown in Table 6.
dĂďůĞϲ͗>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞƉŚĂƌŵĂĐĞƵƚŝĐĂůƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕ϮϬϭϰ

Pharmacies
Pharmacies

and
dispensing

Pharma
cies

Number of GP
practice
premises with
GP dispensing
services

Populatio
n (mid2012
estimate)

Blaby

22

2

94,593

2.3

2.5

Charnwood

41

1

168,779

2.4

2.5

Harborough
Hinckley and
Bosworth

14

7

86,389

1.6

2.4

17

5

106,046

1.6

2.1

Melton

9

5

50,770

1.8

2.8

94,018

1.7

per 10,000
population

premises
per 10,000
population

2.0
North West
Leicestershire
Oadby and
Wigston
Leicestershire

16

3

12

0

56,103

2.1

2.1

131

23

656,698

2.0

2.3

Overall, Leicestershire has 2.0 pharmacies per 10,000 population. In England in 2012/13
there were 11,495 pharmacies in England.14 With a population of 53,865,800 people in
2013,15 the average community pharmacies for England is 2.0 per 10,000 population.
Leicestershire is a rural area and for the county as a whole to have the same overall
coverage of pharmacies per 10,000 population as England represents a very high level of
population coverage.
The coverage of pharmacies is not uniform, with the localities having a range of coverage,
Page 30 of 87

337

from 1.6 pharmacies per 10,000 population in Harborough and Hinckley and Bosworth to
2.4 pharmacies per 10,000 in Charnwood. The availability of pharmacies in the localities
will be driven by the rurality of large parts of Leicestershire and is mitigated by the
availability of dispensing GPs. Leicestershire has 19 GP practices that provide dispensing
services from 23 different GP surgery locations.
Combining pharmacies and dispensing GPs, as the contractors that are able to provide
local residents with dispensing services, gives a better indication of the total population
coverage for Leicestershire. On the 31st March 2014, there were 1,071 GP practices with
dispensing GPs in England,16 which gives an average for England of 2.3 contractors per
10,000 population. Leicestershire also has 2.3 contractors per 10,000 population, which is
directly comparable with the England average when combining pharmacies and
dispensing GPs, There is variability across the localities, with the lowest coverage in North
West Leicestershire at 2.0 per 10,000 population to 2.8 per 10,000 in Melton.
In addition to the pharmacies and dispensing GPs, residents are also able to access
pharmacy services from distance selling, or internet, pharmacies, both based locally in
Leicestershire and further away in other areas. Leicestershire has two distance selling, or
internet, pharmacies, one in Charnwood and one in Hinckley and Bosworth. Because the
internet pharmacies do not provide essential services for a local population, but a much
wider one, they are excluded from the analysis in this section.
The combined provision of core pharmacy services in Leicestershire is similar to the
England average and the issues linked to access are discussed further within this report.
12.1.

Local Pharmaceutical Service (LPS) contract

On the 31st March 2014, NHS England was commissioning three pharmacies in
Leicestershire under an Essential Small Pharmacies Local Pharmaceutical Contract
(ESPLPS). These pharmacies receive additional payments for providing pharmacy
services because they are located in areas where there will be lower demand in terms of
prescriptions, either because of special populations such as students or because they are
in very rural areas where uptake will be low.
There is one ESPLPS service in Loughborough to support the student populations and two
pharmacies that are based in rural areas in Wymeswold and Houghton on the Hill.
The ESPLPS scheme has been reviewed by NHS England and will stop on the 31st March
2015. NHS England have been reviewing the ongoing pharmacy provision in these areas
and the following arrangements have been made:

Page 31 of 87

338

•

Loughborough University – this pharmacy is currently negotiating a LPS contract
with NHS England

•

Houghton-on-the-Hill – this pharmacy has reverted back to the pharmaceutical list.
The pharmacy had increased the prescription activity and was therefore no longer
eligible for ESPLPS status and payment.

•

Wymeswold – this pharmacy is currently negotiating a LPS contract with NHS
England.

NHS England will work with both the Loughborough University Pharmacy and the
Wymeswold Pharmacy to agree ongoing provision through a LPS contract. These
contracts will be time limited and it is important that NHS England continues to review
pharmacy provision for the population of these areas to ensure that the arrangements that
are available meet the needs of the population. It is important to note that the ongoing
provision for these areas will be shaped through ongoing negotiations with NHS England.
Any changes to the provision for these populations should be supported with an
addendum to the PNA to review pharmacy provision within these areas.
12.2.

Distance Selling Pharmacies

On the 31st March 2014 there were two internet or distance selling pharmacies in
Leicestershire. This number is increasing nationally, and as at February 2015 there were
three internet pharmacies in Leicestershire - one in Hinckley and Bosworth and two in
Charnwood.
Distance selling pharmacies are able to provide the full range of essential, advanced and
enhanced services to the population. However, a distance selling pharmacy must not
provide essential services to a person who is present at the pharmacy, or in the vicinity of
it.
The distance selling pharmacies do add to the overall provision in Leicestershire, but will
also provide services that cover a much wider area than Leicestershire. Because they are
not able to provide face to face essential services they have been excluded from the
overall count of pharmacies per 10,000 population and have not been included in the
analysis through the report looking at access to services using drive and walk times.

Page 32 of 87

&ŝŐƵƌĞϱ͗>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞƉŚĂƌŵĂĐĞƵƚŝĐĂůƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕ϮϬϭϰ

Page 33 of 87

339

340

13.

Services available in Leicestershire

13.1. Essential services
Essential services are provided by all pharmacies in Leicestershire as part of the NHS
Community Pharmacy Contractual Framework, including internet pharmacies. These
services are managed by NHS England. They include: dispensing, repeat dispensing,
clinical governance, promotion of healthy lifestyles, disposal of unwanted medicines,
signposting and support for self-care (see Table 1).
13.1.1.

Opening hours

Pharmacy hours are agreed with NHS England. Pharmacies have core contractual hours
of 40 per week and these are agreed with NHS England.
Pharmacies across Leicestershire are open at varying times, providing a service
somewhere in the county at almost all times between 6.30am and midnight, Monday to
Saturday. In Leicestershire there are 13 pharmacies that are contracted to open for 100
hours per week as illustrated in Figure 6. Oadby and Wigston is the only district without an
100 hours pharmacy, and there is less provision here during late evening hours, however
proximity to city pharmacies reduces the impact of this. Services are more restricted on
Sundays and Bank Holidays, but across the county, one pharmacy opens at 9am and
another is open until 8pm. Charnwood has the most pharmacies available on a Sunday,
with six open across the day and North West Leicestershire the least with only one open
on Sundays.
Central Nottinghamshire Clinical Services (CNCS) run the out of hours on call pharmacy
service which ensures urgent prescriptions are dispensed during the out of hours and bank
holiday period. They have an on call pharmacist available to support the Out of hours GP
service.
Full
details
are
available
on
our
interactive
maps
at
https://public.tableausoftware.com/profile/carrie5763#!/vizhome/LeicestershireMASTER/Po
pulation and in Appendix D.





Page 34 of 87

341

&ŝŐƵƌĞϲ͗>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞϭϬϬŚŽƵƌƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ͕ϮϬϭϰ

13.1.2.

Prescribing activity

GP practices in Leicestershire prescribed over 11.5 million items in 2013/14. This is almost
18 items per head of the registered population, at a cost of around £130 per person. The
largest proportion of prescriptions were drugs for the cardiovascular system which includes
treatments for high cholesterol and hypertension. This correlates with the disease
prevalence data included in Section 8. More details are shown in Table 7 and Figure 7.
The prescriptions will be dispensed by community pharmacies, internet pharmacies and
dispensing GP practices.
dĂďůĞϳ͗EƵŵďĞƌĂŶĚĐŽƐƚŽĨŝƚĞŵƐƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ



ůĂďǇ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ZĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ
/ƚĞŵƐƉĞƌ
/ƚĞŵƐ
ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
ŚĞĂĚ
ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ
;ϮϬϭϮͬϭϯYK&Ϳ ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
ϭ͕ϲϮϴ͕ϴϰϴ
ϵϯ͕Ϯϰϰ
ϭϳ͘ϱ
Ϯ͕ϴϱϬ͕ϰϬϬ
ϭϴϭ͕Ϭϲϵ
ϭϱ͘ϳ
ϭ͕ϱϴϬ͕ϰϱϵ
ϴϰ͕ϭϱϭ
ϭϴ͘ϴ

ŽƐƚŽĨŝƚĞŵƐ
ŽƐƚŽĨŝƚĞŵƐƉĞƌ
ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ
ŚĞĂĚƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
άϭϮ͕ϴϬϮ͕ϵϱϳ͘ϱϵ
άϭϯϳ͘ϯϭ
άϮϮ͕ϭϭϵ͕ϴϵϭ͘Ϭϲ
άϭϮϮ͘ϭϲ
άϭϭ͕ϮϱϬ͕ϱϵϮ͘ϭϴ
άϭϯϯ͘ϳϬ

Ϯ͕ϬϬϭ͕ϰϵϮ
ϲϭϬ͕ϮϵϬ

ϵϵ͕ϵϵϯ
ϰϭ͕ϴϳϴ

ϮϬ͘Ϭ άϭϯ͕ϮϬϱ͕ϴϯϮ͘ϳϬ
ϭϰ͘ϲ άϱ͕Ϯϱϱ͕ϰϬϯ͘ϯϬ

άϭϯϮ͘Ϭϳ
άϭϮϱ͘ϰϵ

ϭ͕ϴϱϬ͕ϳϰϰ

ϵϰ͕ϲϱϵ

ϭϵ͘ϲ άϭϮ͕ϴϱϰ͕Ϭϵϴ͘ϴϳ

άϭϯϱ͘ϳϵ

ϭ͕Ϭϱϲ͕ϳϵϭ
ϭϭ͕ϱϳϵ͕ϬϮϰ

ϱϴ͕ϭϮϬ
ϲϱϯ͕ϭϭϰ

ϭϴ͘Ϯ άϳ͕ϴϳϯ͕ϬϭϬ͘Ϯϱ
ϭϳ͘ϳ άϴϱ͕ϯϲϭ͕ϳϴϱ͘ϵϱ

άϭϯϱ͘ϰϲ
άϭϯϬ͘ϳϬ

Page 35 of 87

342

&ŝŐƵƌĞϳ͗WƌĞƐĐƌŝďŝŶŐĂĐƚŝǀŝƚǇĨŽƌ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞϮϬϭϯͬϭϰ

13.1.3.

Drive and walk time analysis

Using Geographical Information Systems (GIS) it is possible to analyse how long it takes
to walk or drive from any postcode to the nearest pharmacy or dispensing GP practice
location. The drive-time map for Leicestershire pharmacies is shown in Figure 8.
Although some areas of the county appear to be outside of the 10 minute drive boundary,
this does not account for a high proportion of the population, as shown in Table 8.
Overall, 90.7% of the Leicestershire population live within a five minute drive time of a
pharmacy or dispensing GP practice and less than 1.2% of the population live outside of
the 10 minute drive time boundary.
Melton has the highest proportion of its population more than 10 minutes’ drive from a
pharmacy or dispensing GP practice, at over 5.9%, and almost 4% of Harborough’s
population live this far from a pharmacy or dispensing GP practice. In contrast, the whole
population of Oadby and Wigston live within a 5 minute drive of a pharmacy or dispensing
GP practice.




Page 36 of 87

343

&ŝŐƵƌĞϴ͗ƌŝǀĞƚŝŵĞƚŽŶĞĂƌĞƐƚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇŽƌĚŝƐƉĞŶƐŝŶŐ'WƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ

dĂďůĞϴ͗WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶďǇĚƌŝǀĞͲƚŝŵĞ



ƌŝǀĞƚŝŵĞ

>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϱ
DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϭϬ
ϱͲϭϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ůĂďǇ
ϭϬϮ͕ϴϰϴ ϵϰ͘ϰϰй
ϲ͕ϬϲϬ
ϱ͘ϱϲй
Ϭ
Ϭ͘ϬϬй
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
ϭϲϰ͕Ϭϰϭ ϵϳ͘Ϯϰй
ϰ͕ϰϬϯ
Ϯ͘ϲϭй
Ϯϰϵ
Ϭ͘ϭϱй
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
ϲϵ͕ϭϰϯ ϴϬ͘ϱϳй ϭϯ͕ϯϰϰ ϭϱ͘ϱϱй
ϯ͕ϯϯϭ
ϯ͘ϴϴй
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
ϵϲ͕ϲϮϵ ϵϭ͘ϲϮй
ϳ͕ϲϱϭ
ϳ͘Ϯϱй
ϭ͕ϭϴϰ
ϭ͘ϭϮй
DĞůƚŽŶ
ϯϴ͕ϭϳϲ ϳϱ͘ϲϮй
ϵ͕ϯϬϲ ϭϴ͘ϰϯй
ϯ͕ϬϬϭ
ϱ͘ϵϰй
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ ϴϬ͕Ϭϵϭ ϴϱ͘ϭϱй ϭϯ͕ϵϱϱ ϭϰ͘ϴϰй
ϭϴ
Ϭ͘ϬϮй
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
ϱϲ͕ϲϱϬ ϭϬϬ͘ϬϬй
Ϭ
Ϭ͘ϬϬй
Ϭ
Ϭ͘ϬϬй
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϲϬϳ͕ϱϳϴ ϵϬ͘ϲϳй ϱϰ͕ϳϭϵ
ϴ͘ϭϳй
ϳ͕ϳϴϯ
ϭ͘ϭϲй
>ŽĐĂůŝƚǇ

Figure 9 and Table 9 illustrate the walk time to a pharmacy or dispensing GP surgery.
Overall, over half the county’s population live more than a 20 minute walk from a
pharmacy, 33% live between 10 and 20 minutes’ walk and less than 16.1% live within a 10
minute walk time.

Page 37 of 87

344

&ŝŐƵƌĞϵ͗tĂůŬŝŶŐƚŝŵĞƚŽƚŚĞŶĞĂƌĞƐƚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇŽƌĚŝƐƉĞŶƐŝŶŐ'WƐƵƌŐĞƌǇ

dĂďůĞϵ͗WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶďǇǁĂůŬͲƚŝŵĞ


>ŽĐĂůŝƚǇ

tĂůŬƚŝŵĞ
>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϭϬ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

ϭϬͲϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϮϬ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ


EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ůĂďǇ
ϭϲ͕Ϭϴϳ ϭϰ͘ϳϳй ϯϰ͕ϲϲϴ ϯϭ͘ϴϯй ϱϴ͕ϭϱϯ ϱϯ͘ϰϬй
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
ϯϱ͕ϴϬϭ Ϯϭ͘ϮϮй ϲϵ͕Ϯϳϳ ϰϭ͘Ϭϳй ϲϯ͕ϲϭϱ ϯϳ͘ϳϭй
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
ϭϭ͕Ϭϳϰ ϭϮ͘ϵϬй ϮϮ͕ϰϱϭ Ϯϲ͘ϭϲй ϱϮ͕Ϯϵϯ ϲϬ͘ϵϯй
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
ϭϳ͕ϭϮϭ ϭϲ͘Ϯϯй ϯϳ͕ϳϲϳ ϯϱ͘ϴϭй ϱϬ͕ϱϳϲ ϰϳ͘ϵϲй
DĞůƚŽŶ
ϱ͕ϱϴϳ ϭϭ͘Ϭϳй ϭϬ͕Ϯϭϴ ϮϬ͘Ϯϰй ϯϰ͕ϲϳϴ ϲϴ͘ϲϵй
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ ϭϯ͕Ϯϰϰ ϭϰ͘Ϭϴй Ϯϲ͕ϭϬϰ Ϯϳ͘ϳϱй ϱϰ͕ϳϭϲ ϱϴ͘ϭϳй
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
ϵ͕ϭϵϮ ϭϲ͘Ϯϯй ϮϮ͕ϲϰϭ ϯϵ͘ϵϳй Ϯϰ͕ϴϭϳ ϰϯ͘ϴϭй
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϭϬϴ͕ϭϬϲ ϭϲ͘ϭϯй ϮϮϯ͕ϭϮϲ ϯϯ͘ϯϬй ϯϯϴ͕ϴϰϴ ϱϬ͘ϱϳй

The 2011 Census estimates that around 9.5% of households in Leicestershire are without
a car and although there may be a car in the household, access may be limited to
pharmacies within walking distance for younger and older household members. Further
analysis of the data looking at access to a car and walk time (Table 10) demonstrates that
38% of households with no access to a car (an estimated 9,986 households) live more
Page 38 of 87

345

than a 20 minute walk from their nearest pharmacy. This is less than 4% of all households
in Leicestershire. For households with no car, 25% live within a 10 minute walk of a
pharmacy which is considerably higher than the overall walk time access.
dĂďůĞϭϬ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐǁŝƚŚŽƵƚĂĐĂƌďǇǁĂůŬͲƚŝŵĞ



,ŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐǁŝƚŚŽƵƚĂĐĂƌ
>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϭϬ
DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϮϬ
ϭϬͲϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
>ŽĐĂůŝƚǇ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ůĂďǇ
ϲϴϱ ϭϵ͘ϭϭй
ϭ͕Ϯϭϲ ϯϯ͘ϵϮй
ϭ͕ϲϴϰ ϰϲ͘ϵϳй
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
Ϯ͕ϱϱϲ ϯϭ͘ϯϮй
ϯ͕ϱϮϵ ϰϯ͘Ϯϰй
Ϯ͕Ϭϳϲ Ϯϱ͘ϰϰй
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
ϱϯϬ ϮϮ͘ϯϭй
ϴϬϵ ϯϰ͘ϬϮй
ϭ͕Ϭϯϴ ϰϯ͘ϲϳй
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
ϴϳϯ ϮϬ͘ϰϮй
ϭ͕ϲϴϱ ϯϵ͘ϰϮй
ϭ͕ϳϭϳ ϰϬ͘ϭϱй
DĞůƚŽŶ
ϯϲϯ ϭϵ͘ϰϳй
ϱϰϵ Ϯϵ͘ϰϲй
ϵϱϯ ϱϭ͘Ϭϳй
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϴϴϵ Ϯϯ͘ϳϮй
ϭ͕Ϭϯϵ Ϯϳ͘ϳϯй
ϭ͕ϴϮϬ ϰϴ͘ϱϲй
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
ϲϱϵ Ϯϵ͘ϰϮй
ϴϴϭ ϯϵ͘ϯϰй
ϳϬϬ ϯϭ͘Ϯϯй
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϲ͕ϱϱϱ Ϯϰ͘ϵϳй
ϵ͕ϳϬϵ ϯϲ͘ϵϵй
ϵ͕ϵϴϲ ϯϴ͘Ϭϰй

Melton has the lowest level of access, with 69% of its population living more than a 20
minute walk from the nearest pharmacy or dispensing GP practice (and 51% of
households without a car). Charnwood, Hinckley and Bosworth, and Oadby and Wigston
have less than half of its residents living further than a 20 minute walk from a pharmacy or
dispensing GP practice.
In the PNA Engagement activity (described in PNA Patients and Public Results below)
47% of responders reported that they travelled to their pharmacy by walking and 43% of
responders reported that they travelled to their pharmacy by car.
13.1.4.

Access and populations affected by deprivation

Table 11 and Table 12 show drive and walk times respectively for the population living in
areas classified into local deprivation quintiles.
•

95% of those living in the most deprived areas in Leicestershire are within a 5
minute drive of a pharmacy or dispensing GP practice

•

0% of those living in the least deprived areas are more than a 10 minute drive from
a pharmacy or dispensing GP practice

•

69% of people living in Leicestershire’s most deprived areas also live more than a
20 minute walk from the nearest pharmacy or dispensing GP practice.

Page 39 of 87

346

dĂďůĞϭϭ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶďǇĚĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶƋƵŝŶƚŝůĞĂŶĚĚƌŝǀĞƚŝŵĞƐ



ƌŝǀĞƚŝŵĞ

ĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶƋƵŝŶƚŝůĞ

>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϱŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

ϱͲϭϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϭϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ


YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϭͲŵŽƐƚĚĞƉƌŝǀĞĚ
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϮ
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϯ
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϰ
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϱͲůĞĂƐƚĚĞƉƌŝǀĞĚ

EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ϭϮϭ͕ϯϵϲ ϵϱ͘ϯϭй
ϱ͕ϵϲϱ ϰ͘ϲϴй
ϭϬ
Ϭ͘Ϭϭй
ϭϮϭ͕ϭϰϳ ϴϴ͘ϳϮй ϭϯ͕ϰϮϳ ϵ͘ϴϯй
ϭ͕ϵϳϭ
ϭ͘ϰϰй
ϭϭϭ͕ϰϯϲ ϴϮ͘ϵϲй ϭϳ͕ϱϭϰ ϭϯ͘Ϭϰй
ϱ͕ϯϳϲ
ϰ͘ϬϬй
ϭϭϱ͕ϭϰϯ ϴϴ͘ϬϬй ϭϱ͕Ϯϳϰ ϭϭ͘ϲϳй
ϰϮϲ
Ϭ͘ϯϯй
ϭϯϴ͕ϰϱϲ ϵϴ͘ϮϬй
Ϯ͕ϱϯϵ ϭ͘ϴϬй
Ϭ
Ϭ͘ϬϬй

dĂďůĞϭϮ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶďǇĚĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶƋƵŝŶƚŝůĞĂŶĚǁĂůŬŝŶŐƚŝŵĞƐ



tĂůŬƚŝŵĞ

ĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶƋƵŝŶƚŝůĞ

>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϭϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

ϭϬͲϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ


EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϭͲŵŽƐƚĚĞƉƌŝǀĞĚ
Ϯϲ͕ϱϬϰ ϭϰ͘ϰϯй Ϯϵ͕ϳϲϬ ϭϲ͘Ϯϭй
ϭϮϳ͕ϯϳϭ
ϲϵ͘ϯϲй
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϮ
Ϯϲ͕ϰϰϮ ϭϯ͘ϲϵй ϯϬ͕ϭϭϴ ϭϱ͘ϲϬй
ϭϯϲ͕ϱϰϱ
ϳϬ͘ϳϭй
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϯ
ϭϳ͕ϮϰϮ
ϵ͘ϯϵй ϯϮ͕ϭϭϮ ϭϳ͘ϰϴй
ϭϯϰ͕ϯϮϲ
ϳϯ͘ϭϯй
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϰ
Ϯϭ͕ϲϯϮ ϭϭ͘ϴϬй ϯϬ͕ϴϯϴ ϭϲ͘ϴϮй
ϭϯϬ͕ϴϰϯ
ϳϭ͘ϯϴй
YƵŝŶƚŝůĞϱͲůĞĂƐƚĚĞƉƌŝǀĞĚ
ϭϲ͕Ϯϴϲ
ϴ͘ϭϭй ϰϯ͕ϲϰϲ Ϯϭ͘ϳϮй
ϭϰϬ͕ϵϵϱ
ϳϬ͘ϭϳй

13.1.5.

Access and people from Black and Minority Ethnic Groups

Table 13 and Table 14 show drive and walk times respectively for the estimated population
belonging to different ethnic groups.
•

Although most of Leicestershire’s population lives within a 5 minute drive of a
pharmacy or dispensing GP practice, 98% of the Asian population live this close to
a pharmacy or dispensing GP practice, compared with just 90% of the white
population.

•

Over half of the white population live more than a 20 minute walk from their nearest
pharmacy or dispensing GP practice, compared with only 40% of the black
population, and 39% of the Asian population.


Page 40 of 87

347

dĂďůĞϭϯ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶďǇĞƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇĂŶĚĚƌŝǀĞƚŝŵĞƐ


ƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇ

tŚŝƚĞ
EŽŶͲǁŚŝƚĞ
ƐŝĂŶ
ůĂĐŬ
DŝǆĞĚ
KƚŚĞƌ

>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϱŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ϱϰϳ͕ϰϯϲ
ϵϬ͘ϭй
ϱϯ͕ϲϱϰ
ϵϳ͘ϭй
ϯϵ͕ϰϲϭ
ϵϳ͘ϵй
ϯ͕ϱϳϴ
ϵϲ͘ϳй
ϴ͕ϭϭϯ
ϵϯ͘ϳй
Ϯ͕ϱϬϭ
ϵϳ͘Ϭй

ƌŝǀĞƚŝŵĞ
ϱͲϭϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ϱϮ͕ϱϵϰ
ϴ͘ϳй
ϭ͕ϰϮϲ
Ϯ͘ϲй
ϳϱϳ
ϭ͘ϵй
ϭϭϰ
ϯ͘ϭй
ϰϴϮ
ϱ͘ϲй
ϳϯ
Ϯ͘ϴй

DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϭϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ϳ͕ϲϯϯ
ϭ͘ϯй
ϭϱϬ
Ϭ͘ϯй
ϳϱ
Ϭ͘Ϯй
ϭϬ
Ϭ͘ϯй
ϲϬ
Ϭ͘ϳй
ϲ
Ϭ͘Ϯй

dĂďůĞϭϰ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶďǇĞƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇĂŶĚǁĂůŬƚŝŵĞƐ


ƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇ

tŚŝƚĞ
EŽŶͲǁŚŝƚĞ
ƐŝĂŶ
ůĂĐŬ
DŝǆĞĚ
KƚŚĞƌ

13.1.6.

>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϭϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ϵϳ͕ϭϴϵ
ϭϲ͘Ϭй
ϭϬ͕ϳϱϮ
ϭϵ͘ϱй
ϴ͕Ϭϯϱ
ϭϵ͘ϵй
ϳϰϵ
ϮϬ͘Ϯй
ϭ͕ϱϬϭ
ϭϳ͘ϯй
ϰϲϴ
ϭϴ͘ϭй

tĂůŬƚŝŵĞ
ϭϬͲϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ϭϵϳ͕ϰϳϳ
ϯϮ͘ϱй
ϮϮ͕Ϭϲϰ
ϯϵ͘ϵй
ϭϲ͕ϰϳϭ
ϰϬ͘ϵй
ϭ͕ϰϴϳ
ϰϬ͘Ϯй
ϯ͕Ϭϴϵ
ϯϱ͘ϳй
ϭ͕Ϭϭϳ
ϯϵ͘ϰй

DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ϯϭϮ͕ϵϵϴ
ϱϭ͘ϱй
ϮϮ͕ϰϭϯ
ϰϬ͘ϲй
ϭϱ͕ϳϴϲ
ϯϵ͘Ϯй
ϭ͕ϰϲϲ
ϯϵ͘ϲй
ϰ͕Ϭϲϲ
ϰϳ͘Ϭй
ϭ͕Ϭϵϱ
ϰϮ͘ϱй

Access and other population variables

Table 15 uses Mosaic, a geo-demographic profiling tool developed by Experian, to
estimate the numbers of people affected by demographic factors, lifestyle choices and
health conditions that live over 20 minutes’ walk or 10 minute drive time from a pharmacy
or dispensing GP practice.17 This illustrates that:
•

51% of the total population and 51% of people aged 65 years and over live outside
of a 20 minute walk from their nearest pharmacy. 1.2% of the total population live
more than a 10 minute drive time, for the over 65 year olds this is 1.6%.

•

45% of smokers and 43% of heavy smokers live over a 20 minute walk from their
nearest pharmacy. Less than 1% of smokers live over a 10 minute drive time away.

•

54% of people with bad or very bad health, 49% of people with heart problems and
54% of people with COPD live over a 20 minute walk from their nearest pharmacy.

•

54% of people who are daily consumers of alcohol and 51% of people who are
obese live over a 20 minute walk from their nearest pharmacy.
Page 41 of 87

348

dĂďůĞϭϱ͗ŶĂůǇƐŝƐŽĨǁĂůŬƚŝŵĞĂŶĚĚƌŝǀĞƚŝŵĞďǇĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐͬĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶͬůŝĨĞƐƚǇůĞďĞŚĂǀŝŽƵƌĨŽƌĂůů>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ


dŽƚĂůWŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶϲϱн
,ŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐǁŝƚŚĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ
,ĞĂǀǇƐŵŽŬĞƌƐ
^ŵŽŬĞƌƐ

tĂůŬdŝŵĞŵŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϮϬ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ
ϯϯϴ͕ϴϰϴ
ϱϬ͘ϲй
ϱϱ͕ϲϰϰ
ϱϬ͘ϴй
ϰϱ͕ϴϴϵ
ϱϮ͘ϴй
ϰ͕Ϭϲϱ
ϰϮ͘ϳй
ϯϴ͕ϲϭϯ
ϰϱ͘ϭй

ƌŝǀĞdŝŵĞŵŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϭϬ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ
EƵŵďĞƌ
ϳ͕ϳϴϯ
ϭ͕ϴϬϴ
ϳϯϬ
ϴϲ
ϳϬϱ

WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ
ϭ͘Ϯй
ϭ͘ϲй
Ϭ͘ϴй
Ϭ͘ϵй
Ϭ͘ϴй

WĞŽƉůĞǁŝƚŚ,ĞĂƌƚWƌŽďůĞŵƐ
WĞŽƉůĞǁŝƚŚKW

ϭϲ͕ϲϳϳ
ϳ͕ϯϴϯ

ϰϴ͘ϳй
ϱϯ͘ϵй

ϰϭϯ
ϯϭϵ

ϭ͘Ϯй
Ϯ͘ϯй

WĞŽƉůĞǁŝƚŚďĂĚŽƌǀĞƌǇďĂĚ
ŚĞĂůƚŚ
ĂŝůǇĐŽŶƐƵŵĞƌƐŽĨĂůĐŽŚŽů
WĞŽƉůĞǁŚŽĂƌĞŽďĞƐĞ

ϳ͕ϯϴϯ
Ϯϱ͕ϲϱϲ
ϯ͕ϭϳϬ

ϱϯ͘ϵй
ϱϰ͘ϯй
ϱϬ͘ϲй

ϯϭϵ
ϴϳϬ
ϴϭ

Ϯ͘ϯй
ϭ͘ϴй
ϭ͘ϯй

13.1.7.

Public Transport

There are many public transport services available across the county. These can be
accessed
from
the
Leicestershire
County
Council
website:
http://www.leics.gov.uk/index/highways/passenger_transport/local_bus_services/leicesters
hire_bus_map_and_guides.htm#townguides. However, from the patient engagement
exercise described below, less than 3% of clients accessed their pharmacy by public
transport.
13.1.8.

GP Dispensing

Dispensing doctors may generally only provide pharmaceutical services to patients who
live in a designated controlled locality and more than 1.6km from a pharmacy. The only
exceptions to this are where it is a distance selling pharmacy or the patient lives in a
reserved location. A controlled locality is an area that has been determined, by NHS
England, a predecessor organisation or on appeal by the NHS Litigation Authority’s Family
Health Services Appeal Unit (FHSAU), to be 'rural in character’.18
Patients may at any time request in writing that their GP practice provides them with
pharmaceutical services. The practice should then check that they meet one of the
conditions to be designated a dispensing patient. The purpose of GP dispensing is to
recognise the difficulties of providing a full range of essential pharmacy services in rural
areas and to provide the patients that live in rural areas with an alternative provider for
dispensing services. Leicestershire has 19 dispensing GP practices which dispense from
23 different locations across Leicestershire, as they are able to dispense from their branch
Page 42 of 87

349

and their main surgeries, illustrated Figure 10. The areas that are designated as rural in
Figure 11 represent the controlled localities in Leicestershire.
The dispensing GP surgeries are spread across the localities and whilst a patient may live
over a 20 minute walk or drive time to their nearest pharmacy, there is a strong correlation
between the walk time analysis and the rural area designation. Designated patients in
need of dispensing services will be able to access these as part of their GP visit. The drive
and walk time analysis within this report includes the time it will take the people of
Leicestershire to get to either a community pharmacy or a dispensing GP surgery.
In the PNA Engagement activity (described in PNA Patients and Public Results below)
64% of responders reported that they access the pharmacy that they did because it was
close to their GP surgery.

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϬ͗ŝƐƉĞŶƐŝŶŐ'WƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞƐ



Page 43 of 87

350

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϭ͗hƌďĂŶĂŶĚƌƵƌĂůĂƌĞĂƐ͕>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞĂŶĚZƵƚůĂŶĚ

13.1.9.

Cross Border Issues

The population of Leicestershire are able to access pharmacy services from any
community or distance selling pharmacy that they choose. This means that they can
choose to access services that are near their homes but in another county, services that
are near their work or, in the case of internet pharmacies, any registered provider.
For this needs assessment, the geographical analysis of access to services has
incorporated all community pharmacies that neighbouring local authorities supplied details
for. This means that the distance that patients have to travel to reach services incorporates
the cross border provision of services.
The boundaries that have been considered are illustrated in Figure 12.
The Health and Wellbeing Board is a statutory consultee for the PNAs developed in these
areas and the consultation materials, ie their draft PNAs, have been used to assess the
impact of neighbouring pharmacy provision on the population of Leicestershire.
Page 44 of 87

351

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϮ͗>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞŶĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŝŶŐůŽĐĂůĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƚŝĞƐ

•

Leicester City – Leicester City shares a boundary with the following districts in
Leicestershire – Charnwood, Oadby and Wigston, Blaby and Harborough. The
provision of community based pharmacy services in Leicester is adequate to meet
the current needs of the population. All community pharmacies in Leicester provide
essential services and some provide advanced and community based services to
varying degrees with the West of the city lacking more in some of these services.
There is a need to encourage sign up to these advanced and community based
services by pharmacies in the west of Leicester city and encourage improved
delivery across most pharmacies in the city. There is currently no indication of an
impact (positively or negatively) on pharmacy service provision in Leicestershire
resulting from Leicester city’s pharmacy service provision levels. However, with the
projected increase in people in Leicester with long term illness as well as issues of
quality and uniformity of access to advanced and community based services, it is
important that Leicestershire continues to monitor the situation to ensure that
provision of community pharmacy services remains adequate over the coming
years.

•

Rutland – Rutland shares a boundary with Melton and Market Harborough Districts.
Community pharmacy service provision across Rutland is meeting the current
needs of the population of Rutland in terms of essential and advanced services.
There is still room for improvement with regards to uptake of advanced and
community based services by the population as well as sign up to community based
Page 45 of 87

352

services by community pharmacies. There is currently no indication of an impact
(positively or negatively) on pharmacy service provision in Leicestershire resulting
from Rutland’s pharmacy service provision levels. However, with an ageing
population and issues of quality and uniformity of access in Rutland, it is important
that Leicestershire continues to monitor the situation particularly with regards to
cross border access to ensure that provision of community pharmacy services for
the population of Leicestershire remains adequate over the coming years.
•

Lincolnshire – Lincolnshire shares a border with Melton District. The Lincolnshire
PNA concludes that “the residents of Lincolnshire are adequately served by
providers of dispensing services both in urban and rural areas. In terms of the
provision of dispensing services, no case of pharmaceutical need was identified.”
However, it is very difficult from the level of analysis presented to assess the impact
of cross border flows between Leicestershire and Lincolnshire.

•

Nottinghamshire – Nottinghamshire borders the districts of Charnwood, Melton
and North West Leicestershire. Rushcliffe is the closest of Nottinghamshire’s
districts to Leicestershire. The density of pharmacies and GP practices are sparser
in southern Rushcliffe, particularly at the Rushcliffe-Leicestershire border. This can
be attributed to the less dense population of south Rushcliffe when compared to the
Nottingham city-Rushcliffe border. Rushcliffe Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment (SHLAA) has estimated that approximately 516 houses will be built by
2019/2020, all being within reach of an existing pharmacy. Although more houses
are set to be built in the near future, the population of Rushcliffe is not expected to
rise dramatically and the demand for pharmaceutical services is not expected to
see a big rise. The Nottinghamshire PNA found: “that pharmaceutical need in
Rushcliffe is adequately met by the current pharmacy providers.” There are
potentially cross border flows between Leicestershire and Nottinghamshire for both
patients and pharmacies to the north of the county, but with the PNAs of both
Leicestershire and Nottinghamshire reporting that needs are adequately covered
this means that the current pharmacy services are adequate for the needs of the
population.

•

Derbyshire – Derbyshire borders North West Leicestershire District; the area of
Derbyshire bordering Leicestershire is Southern Derbyshire. The draft PNA for
Derby City and Derbyshire concluded that “The PNA found that that pharmaceutical
need in South Derbyshire is adequately met by the current pharmacy providers.
Pharmaceutical need will be reviewed in 2018 when the PNA is revisited or in the
event of significant changes affecting need.”19
Page 46 of 87

353

•

Staffordshire – Staffordshire shares a small part of the border with North West
Leicestershire. The draft Staffordshire PNA found “overall there are sufficient
numbers and a good choice of pharmacy contractors to meet Staffordshire’s
pharmaceutical needs.” The PNA did identify a gap in out of hours service provision on
a Sunday, “whilst there appears to be a gap in service provision on Sundays the
demand for dispensing services is much lower at weekends compared to weekdays as
GP surgeries are usually closed. However NHS England and / or CCGs may want to
consider commissioning extended pharmaceutical services on Sundays as one of the
potential solutions to reducing A&E attendances.”

•

Warwickshire – Warwickshire shares a border with North West Leicestershire,
Hinckley and Bosworth and Harborough Districts. The draft Warwickshire PNA
concluded that the level of access to, range, level of choice and delivery of
pharmaceutical services currently commissioned, generally meets the needs of the
population. The service is provided by appropriately located contractors, delivering
services over a period of time to allow reasonable access for the people of
Warwickshire.
The pharmacies were considered across a range of localities and the services that
were provided met the needs of the people in all of the localities in Warwickshire.
Whilst choice of access is greater during normal working hours over the working
week, access is still considered adequate outside of normal hours and at
weekends. There is a generally good mix of independent, supermarket, small and
large multiple and extended-hour pharmacy contractors and dispensing GPs to
provide a good level of choice for dispensing pharmaceutical services. A full range
of contractual and currently commissioned services is generally available from
pharmacy contractors from well-equipped premises.

•

Northamptonshire – Northamptonshire borders Harborough District. The draft
PNA for Northamptonshire concluded that the availability of community pharmacies
appears adequate to meet the population’s current needs. However, the population
of Northamptonshire is expected to grow significantly with plans in place for several
large housing developments which will increase the need for community
pharmacies. The Northamptonshire Health and Wellbeing Board have been advised
to review the impact of the population growth as more information becomes
available. It will also be necessary for the Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing
Board to be aware of the population growth if this occurs along the shared boundary
with Leicestershire as the growth may increase the demand for services in the
South of the county.
Page 47 of 87

354

13.1.10.

Other Issues for Consideration

In October 2014, the Co-operative sold all of their pharmacies to the Bestway Group. This
means that in Leicestershire all Co-operative pharmacies are being rebranded as Well
pharmacies. It is anticipated that the rebranding of the Co-operative pharmacies will have
no negative impact on the population’s access to essential pharmacy services.
13.1.11.

Patient Views

Leicestershire County Council commissioned Greater East Midlands Commissioning
Support Unit to ask users of pharmacy services and providers of pharmacy services to tell
us their views on the services that they access. The findings are all available in the
following appendices:
•

Appendix E – PNA Patients Public Results Leicestershire

•

Appendix F – Professionals Pharmacy Questionnaire Leicestershire

•

Appendix G – PNA Patients Public Easy Read

A summary of the key messages from the three reports is included below.
13.1.12.

PNA Patients Public Results Leicestershire

In total, 250 people from Leicestershire responded to the patients/public questionnaire.
•

60% of responders were female and 40% were male. 44% were aged 60-74 years
31% were aged 35-59 and 16% were aged 75 years and over. 91% of responders
were white. 25% stated that they had a disability.

•

56% of responders stated they have high blood pressure, 23% diabetes, 18%
asthma, 13% heart disease, 10% mental illness, 6% with chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease and 28% listed another long term condition.

•

75% of responders stated they collected their long term conditions medicines from
the pharmacy and 9% from the GP dispensary.

•

Over 50% of responders used the pharmacy at least monthly.

•

91% used the same pharmacy on a regular basis, with 80% of these stating the
location was convenient, over 50% liked dealing with a familiar member of staff and
35% stated the pharmacist was familiar with their condition.

Page 48 of 87

355

•

The most important factors for choosing a pharmacy were cited as: friendly staff
(67%), close to GP surgery (64%), close to home (59%), trust in the pharmacist
(54%), quick service (51%)

•

96% of responders accessed their pharmacy for prescribed medications, 48% for
advice and 60% for over the counter medications.

•

5% of responders reported that they had experienced difficulty accessing a
pharmacy when they needed one. The difficulties occurred outside of normal
opening hours and were linked to rural access issues.

•

47% of people stated that they travelled to their pharmacy by walking and 43%
travelled by motor vehicle. Less than 3% of responders travelled by public transport.

•

62% of people were able to access their preferred pharmacy in less than 10
minutes, 33% took between 11 and 20 minutes, with 5% living over 20 minutes
away.

•

Responders were happy with the services that they access for their local pharmacy.

13.1.13.

Professionals Pharmacy Questionnaire Leicestershire

Overall the total number of professionals who responded to the questionnaire across
Leicester City, Leicestershire and Rutland was 110. The total number who responded to
the professional questionnaire within Leicestershire was 46.
•

96% of responders felt that the community pharmacy provision in the area they
work in was adequate

13.1.14.

PNA Patients Public Easy Read

Thirty four easy read responses were received and the results for the three areas have
been amalgamated to improve the robustness of the analysis.
The results from those who answered the easy read questionnaire show the following:

•

People are broadly happy with the service they get from their pharmacist.

•

They like to use a familiar, easy to access pharmacist.

•

More people than from those who answered the general questionnaire experienced
difficulty getting access to a pharmacist.

Page 49 of 87

356

•

Communication with people from ‘seldom heard’ groups needs to be improved, for
example with deaf people, people who need an interpreter.

•

People who completed the easy read questionnaire rely on their pharmacist for
advice.

13.2. Advanced Services
Advanced Services are commissioned by NHS England from pharmacies. These are
voluntary agreements and any pharmacy can choose to deliver these services as long as
they meet the requirements set out in the Secretary of State Direction around issues such
as premises and staff training. These services provide an opportunity for community
pharmacists to engage with and empower their patients to take greater control of their
health through more effective use of their prescribed medication or appliance. This in turn
should help prevent their conditions getting worse unnecessarily and thus contribute
towards savings to the NHS. Advanced services can be provided by community
pharmacies and by distance selling pharmacies.
There are 4 advanced services:
•

Medicines Use Reviews (MUR)

•

New Medicines Service (NMS)

•

Stoma Customisation

•

Appliance Use Reviews.

Table 16 shows the number of community pharmacies offering each service by locality. Of
the 131 community pharmacies in Leicestershire, 126 are offering medicines use reviews,
111 are offering the new medicines service, 15 are offering stoma customisation and 18
are offering appliance use reviews.
In addition to community pharmacy provision, the two internet pharmacies offer MURs and
one of the internet pharmacies provides NMS.


Page 50 of 87

357

dĂďůĞϭϲ͗ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐʹEƵŵďĞƌŽĨĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐĞĂĐŚƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ;ĞǆĐůƵĚŝŶŐŝŶƚĞƌŶĞƚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇͿ




ůĂďǇ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

13.2.1.



ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐŝŶŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇWŚĂƌŵĂĐǇ

ƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞ
dŽƚĂů
DĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ
EĞǁDĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ ^ƚŽŵĂ
hƐĞ
WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ hƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐ ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ
ĐƵƐƚŽŵŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ
ϮϮ
ϮϬ
ϭϵ
ϰ
ϰ
ϰϭ
ϰϭ
ϯϮ
ϰ
ϲ
ϭϰ
ϭϰ
ϭϯ
ϯ
ϰ
ϭϳ
ϵ

ϭϲ
ϴ

ϭϱ
ϲ

Ϯ
Ϭ

Ϯ
Ϭ

ϭϲ

ϭϱ

ϭϱ

Ϯ

ϭ

ϭϮ
ϭϯϭ

ϭϮ
ϭϮϲ

ϭϭ
ϭϭϭ

Ϭ
ϭϱ

ϭ
ϭϴ

Medicines Use Reviews

The Medicines Use Reviews (MUR) service is a structured review of a patient’s use of
their medicines which aims to improve the patient's knowledge, understanding and use of
their medicines. It supports patients to gain the maximum benefit from their prescribed
medication(s) by taking them safely and effectively.
The MUR consists of a single consultation, usually taking place at the community
pharmacy. Table 17 shows the number of Medicines Use Reviews conducted in 2013/14.
There are 126 out of the 131 community pharmacies in Leicestershire providing MURs. In
2013/14 a total of 33,994 reviews were carried out, a rate of 51.8 MURs per 1,000. There
is variation in the level of activity by district with 37.3 MURs per 1,000 population in
Harborough to 65.3 MURs per 1,000 in Oadby and Wigston.
Each pharmacy providing MURs is able to carry out 400 MURs per year. In 2013/14, 126
pharmacies carried out 33,994 MURs which is lower than the 50,400 that could have been
carried out. The gap between the actual number of MURs and the potential MURs is
indicated in Table 17. In total, only 67% of the potential MURs were carried out, varying
from 58% in Harborough to 78% in Hinckley and Bosworth.
In 2012/13 in England, 92% of all pharmacies were providing MURs.14 Across
Leicestershire, the overall percentage of pharmacies providing this service is higher at
96%. However, in Blaby (90.1%) and Melton (88.9%) there are a lower proportion of
pharmacies providing this service than the England average.
Page 51 of 87

358

In Leicestershire, as well as community based pharmacies providing MURs, the two
internet pharmacies are also registered to provide this service for local patients.
dĂďůĞϭϳ͗EƵŵďĞƌŽĨDĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐhƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐŝŶĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇďǇůŽĐĂůŝƚǇ



ůĂďǇ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ

WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ
DĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ
hƐĞ
ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ

DĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ
hƐĞ
ƉĞƌϭ͕ϬϬϬ
ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ
ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
ϮϬϭϯͬϭϰ

ϮϬ

ϱ͕ϯϮϴ

ϰϭ

ϭϬ͕ϮϬϵ

ϭϰ

,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ

ϭϲ

DĞůƚŽŶ

ϴ

EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϭϱ

KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ

ϭϮ

>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϭϮϲ

ϯ͕ϮϮϲ
ϱ͕ϬϬϯ
Ϯ͕ϯϰϯ
ϰ͕ϮϮϬ
ϯ͕ϲϲϱ
ϯϯ͕ϵϵϰ

ϵϰ͕ϱϵϯ
ϭϲϴ͕ϳϳϵ
ϴϲ͕ϯϴϵ
ϭϬϲ͕Ϭϰϲ
ϱϬ͕ϳϳϬ
ϵϰ͕Ϭϭϴ
ϱϲ͕ϭϬϯ
ϲϱϲ͕ϲϵϴ

ϱϲ͘ϯ
ϲϬ͘ϱ
ϯϳ͘ϯ
ϰϳ͘Ϯ
ϰϲ͘ϭ
ϰϰ͘ϵ
ϲϱ͘ϯ
ϱϭ͘ϴ

dŽƚĂů
ŶƵŵďĞƌŽĨ
DhZƐƚŚĂƚ
ĐŽƵůĚŚĂǀĞ
ďĞĞŶ
ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚŽƵƚ

ϴ͕ϬϬϬ
ϭϲ͕ϰϬϬ
ϱ͕ϲϬϬ
ϲ͕ϰϬϬ
ϯ͕ϮϬϬ
ϲ͕ϬϬϬ
ϰ͕ϴϬϬ
ϱϬ͕ϰϬϬ

'ĂƉ
ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ
ĂĐƚƵĂů
ĂŶĚ
ƉŽƚĞŶƚŝĂů
DhZƐ
ĂŶĚ;йͿ
ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ
ŽƵƚ
Ϯ͕ϲϳϮ
;ϲϳйͿ
ϲ͕ϭϵϭ
;ϲϮйͿ
Ϯ͕ϯϳϰ
;ϱϴйͿ
ϭ͕ϯϵϳ
;ϳϴйͿ
ϴϱϳ
;ϳϯйͿ
ϭ͕ϳϴϬ
;ϳϬйͿ
ϭ͕ϭϯϱ
;ϳϲйͿ
ϭϲ͕ϰϬϲ
;ϲϳйͿ

йŽĨ
ƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ
DhZƐ

ϵϬ͘ϵй
ϭϬϬ͘Ϭй
ϭϬϬ͘Ϭй
ϵϰ͘ϭй
ϴϴ͘ϵй
ϵϯ͘ϴй
ϭϬϬ͘Ϭй
ϵϲ͘Ϯй

Figure 14 shows the estimated prevalence of people in each ward in Leicestershire with
bad or very bad health compared to the England average and the location of pharmacies
offering MUR’s in Leicestershire and across the border in Rutland.
There is generally good geographical coverage of pharmacies providing MURs. However
there are some wards that are predicted to have a higher proportion of patients with bad or
very bad health where it is evident from the map that patients will need to travel further for
access to this service. This is particularly evident in parts of North West Leicestershire.



Page 52 of 87

359

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϯ͗ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͲDĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐhƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐ

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϰ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƉƌĞǀĂůĞŶĐĞŽĨĂĚƵůƚƐǁŝƚŚďĂĚŽƌǀĞƌǇďĂĚŚĞĂůƚŚ͕ĂŶĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐDhZƐ

13.2.2.

New Medicines Service

The New Medicines Service (NMS) is designed to provide early support to patients to
maximise the benefits of their newly prescribed medication. The NMS can be provided to
patients who have been newly prescribed a medicine for one of the following
conditions/therapy areas:

Page 53 of 87

360

•
•

asthma and COPD;
type 2 diabetes;

•
•

antiplatelet/anticoagulant therapy; and
hypertension.

For each condition/ therapy area, a list of medicines has been agreed. If a patient is newly
prescribed one of these medicines for the relevant condition then they will be eligible to
receive the service. The service is split into three stages - patient engagement,
intervention and follow up. Figure 15 shows the location of pharmacies offering the NMS
service in Leicestershire and across the border in Rutland. Table 18 shows the number of
New Medicines Services in community pharmacy conducted in 2013/14.
Overall, there are 111 pharmacies providing the NMS out of the 131 pharmacies in
Leicestershire. In 2013/14 a total of 12,538 NMS were carried out, a rate of 19.1 per 1,000
population. The level of activity varied by district with the lowest rate of activity in
Harborough at 12.1 NMS per 1,000 population to 27.1 NMS per 1,000 population in Blaby.
In 2013, 68% of community pharmacies in England were providing NMS.14 The percentage
providing this service is higher in Leicestershire at 84.7%. Melton is the only locality that is
lower than the national average at 67%.
In Leicestershire, as well as community based pharmacies providing NMS, the internet
pharmacy in Hinckley and Bosworth is also registered to provide this service for local
patients.
&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϱ͗ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͲEĞǁDĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ

Page 54 of 87

361

dĂďůĞϭϴ͗EƵŵďĞƌŽĨEĞǁDĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐŝŶĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇďǇůŽĐĂůŝƚǇ

й
WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
EĞǁ
WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
ED^ƉĞƌ
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ DĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ
ĐĂƌƌǇŝŶŐ
WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
ϭ͕ϬϬϬ
EĞǁ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ
ŽƵƚED^
ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
DĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ ϮϬϭϯͬϭϰ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ
Ϯ͕ϱϲϲ
ϵϰ͕ϱϵϯ
Ϯϳ͘ϭ
ϭϵ
ϴϲ͘ϰй
Ϯ͕ϲϬϳ
ϭϲϴ͕ϳϳϵ
ϭϱ͘ϰ
ϯϮ
ϳϴ͘Ϭй



ůĂďǇ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ

ϭϯ

,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ

ϭϱ

DĞůƚŽŶ

ϲ

EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϭϱ

KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϭϭ
ϭϭϭ

ϭ͕Ϭϰϱ

ϴϲ͕ϯϴϵ

ϭϮ͘ϭ

Ϯ͕ϭϱϰ

ϭϬϲ͕Ϭϰϲ

ϮϬ͘ϯ

ϴϲϯ

ϱϬ͕ϳϳϬ

ϭϳ͘Ϭ

Ϯ͕ϯϬϰ

ϵϰ͕Ϭϭϴ

Ϯϰ͘ϱ

ϵϵϵ

ϱϲ͕ϭϬϯ

ϭϳ͘ϴ

ϭϮ͕ϱϯϴ

ϲϱϲ͕ϲϵϴ

ϭϵ͘ϭ

ϵϮ͘ϵй
ϴϴ͘Ϯй
ϲϲ͘ϳй
ϵϯ͘ϴй
ϵϭ͘ϳй
ϴϰ͘ϳй

The New Medicines Service was originally commissioned by NHS England until 31st March
2015. It has been evaluated nationally by the University of Nottingham and has been found
to significantly increase patients’ adherence to their new medicines. The evaluation
concluded that NMS will save the NHS money through better patient outcomes at overall
reduced costs.20 As a result, NHS England will continue to fund this service post March
2015.
13.2.3.

Stoma Customisation

Stoma Appliance Customisation (SAC) involves the customisation of a quantity of more
than one stoma appliance, based on the patient’s measurements or a template. The aim of
the service is to ensure proper use and comfortable fitting of the stoma appliance and to
improve the duration of usage, thereby reducing waste.
Figure 16 shows the location of pharmacies offering this service in Leicestershire and
across the border in Rutland and Table 19 lists the numbers of pharmacies offering the
service by locality. Overall, 15 pharmacies provide the stoma customisation service across
Leicestershire. Blaby and Charnwood have four pharmacies providing the service,
Harborough has three, Hinckley and Bosworth has two and no pharmacies in Melton or
Oadby and Wigston provide the service.
Nationally, 15.2% of community pharmacies provided stoma customisation in 2013.14 In
Leicestershire, only 11.9% of pharmacies provide this service and only two localities
Page 55 of 87

362

exceed the national average, Blaby and Harborough.
dĂďůĞϭϵ͗WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐĐĂƌƌǇŝŶŐŽƵƚ^ƚŽŵĂƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞƵƐƚŽŵŝƐĂƚŝŽŶϮϬϭϯͬϭϰ



WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
dŽƚĂů
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ
WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ ^ƚŽŵĂ
ĐƵƐƚŽŵŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ

й
WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ
^

ůĂďǇ

ϮϮ

ϰ

ϭϴ͘Ϯй

ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ

ϰϭ

ϰ

ϵ͘ϳй

,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϭϰ

ϯ

Ϯϭ͘ϰй

ϭϳ

Ϯ

ϵ

Ϭ

ϭϲ

Ϯ

ϭϮ

Ϭ

ϭϯϭ

ϭϱ

ϭϭ͘ϴй
Ϭ͘Ϭй
ϭϮ͘ϱй
Ϭ͘Ϭй
ϭϭ͘ϵй

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϲ͗>ŽĐĂůůǇŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͲ^ƚŽŵĂƵƐƚŽŵŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ

13.2.4.

Appliance Use Reviews

Appliance Use Reviews (AUR) can be carried out by a pharmacist or a specialist nurse in
the pharmacy or at the patient’s home. AURs should improve the patient’s knowledge and
use of any specified appliance by:

Page 56 of 87

363

•

Establishing the way the patient uses the appliance and the patient’s experience of
such use;

•

Identifying, discussing and assisting in the resolution of poor or ineffective use of
the appliance by the patient;

•

Advising the patient on the safe and appropriate storage of the appliance; and

•

Advising the patient on the safe and proper disposal of the appliances that are used
or unwanted.

Nationally, 1.2% of community pharmacies provided AURs in 2013/14.14 In Leicestershire,
13.7% of pharmacies provide this service with only Melton below the national average with
no service provided (Table 20).
Overall, 18 pharmacies across Leicestershire provide AURs. The highest service level is in
Charnwood with six pharmacies providing the service, Blaby and Harborough both have
four pharmacies, Hinckley and Bosworth has two and North West Leicestershire and
Oadby and Wigston have one pharmacy each. The service is not provided in Melton.
dĂďůĞϮϬ͗WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐĐĂƌƌǇŝŶŐŽƵƚƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞhƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐϮϬϭϯͬϭϰ

WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ


й

dŽƚĂů
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ
WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ ƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞ

WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ

hƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐ

hZ

ůĂďǇ

ϮϮ

ϰ

ϭϴ͘Ϯй

ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ

ϰϭ

ϲ

ϭϰ͘ϲй

,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ

ϭϰ

ϰ

Ϯϴ͘ϲй

,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ

ϭϳ

Ϯ

ϭϭ͘ϴй

ϵ

Ϭ

Ϭ͘Ϭй

ϭϲ

ϭ

ϲ͘ϯй

ϭϮ

ϭ

ϴ͘ϯй

ϭϯϭ

ϭϴ

ϭϯ͘ϳй

DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ





Page 57 of 87

364

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϳ͗ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͲƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞhƐĞZĞǀŝĞǁƐ

13.3. Quality in Essential and Advanced Services
Quality monitoring of essential and advanced services commissioned by NHS England is
carried out by self-assessment. Targeted visits are undertaken where concerns are raised.
In addition, new pharmacies that have opened and existing pharmacies that have
relocated are visited.
In 2014, NHS England plan to review the self-assessment process to determine if action
plans need to be agreed with pharmacies to further improve the delivery of essential and
advanced services.
13.4. Community Based Services
Community based services are additional services that are commissioned by CCGs or by
Local Authorities to meet the health needs of their populations. A number of these services
are commissioned from community pharmacies.
The services that are currently commissioned by Leicestershire County Council are:
•

needle and syringe exchange for people with drug addictions;

•

supervised administration of methadone and other substitutes;

•

chlamydia screening;

Page 58 of 87

365

•

Emergency Hormonal Contraception (EHC);

•

Healthy Living Pharmacies (HLPs); and

•

alcohol brief advice/intervention and harm reduction services;

The East and West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Groups commission a palliative
care drugs service and Helicobacter pylori breath testing service from community
pharmacy. The H. pylori service was being re-commissioned at the time of writing, and no
data were available.
These community based services are voluntary agreements and pharmacies are not
compelled to offer any or all of the services. Table 21 shows the number of pharmacies
offering each service by locality.

ůĂďǇ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϭϯ͘ϰ͘ϭ͘

WĂůůŝĂƚŝǀĞĐĂƌĞ

^ƚŽƉ^ŵŽŬŝŶŐ

EĞĞĚůĞ
ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ

,

ŚůĂŵǇĚŝĂ
ƐĐƌĞĞŶŝŶŐ



^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐĞĚ
ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ

dĂďůĞϮϭ͗EƵŵďĞƌŽĨƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĂƐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

Ϯ
ϭϲ
ϱ

ϵ
Ϯϲ
ϵ

Ϯ
ϲ
ϱ

ϳ
ϮϬ
ϴ

ϭϮ
ϭϵ
ϱ

ϯ
ϱ
ϯ

ϱ
ϭ

ϭϰ
ϰ

ϰ
Ϯ

ϵ
ϱ

ϴ
ϭ

ϯ
ϭ

ϱ

ϭϮ

ϯ

ϭϮ

ϭϬ

ϱ

ϱ
ϯϵ

ϴ
ϴϮ

Ϯ
Ϯϰ

ϱ
ϲϲ

ϳ
ϲϮ

Ϯ
ϮϮ

Chlamydia screening

The National Chlamydia Screening Programme (NCSP) in England was established in
2003. It offers free opportunistic screening, treatment and partner management and
prevention to sexually active young men and women under the age of 25. Pharmacies are
able to distribute chlamydia tests to their clients.
Figure 18 shows the prevalence of 15-24 year olds (using ONS population estimates)
compared to the England average, and pharmacies offering testing for Chlamydia. Table
21 indicates the number of pharmacies that have signed up for the chlamydia service and
the number of screens that have been carried out.
Page 59 of 87

366

Whilst 39 pharmacies have signed up to offer the chlamydia screening programme, this is
unevenly distributed with 16 in Charnwood, five in each of Harborough, Hinckley and
Bosworth, North West Leicestershire and Oadby and Wigston, two in Blaby and one in
Melton. All localities provide a level of service. However, the number of screens received
through pharmacy is low, with only 50 screens in total in 2013/14 and 40 of these were
delivered in Charnwood. The increased provision and activity in Charnwood reflects the
higher proportion of 15-24 year olds living in this locality which is linked to Loughborough
University.
The low levels of activity that are currently being reached with this community based
service have been reviewed by the Public Health Team at Leicestershire County Council
and from October 2014 onwards this will be commissioned as a combined service, offering
chlamydia screening for 15-24 year olds and free Emergency Hormonal Contraception
(EHC) for under 25s. The impact of these changes will be monitored to determine whether
chlamydia screening demand is cost effective in the pharmacy setting.
&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϴ͗ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĂƐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͲŚůĂŵǇĚŝĂƐĐƌĞĞŶŝŶŐĂŶĚƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨϭϱͲϮϰǇĞĂƌŽůĚƐ



Page 60 of 87

367

dĂďůĞϮϮ͗ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĂƐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐĂĐƚŝǀŝƚǇͲŚůĂŵǇĚŝĂƚĞƐƚŝŶŐŝŶƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇŝŶϮϬϭϯͬϭϰ

ŚůĂŵǇĚŝĂ
WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐ
^ĐƌĞĞŶƐ
KĨĨĞƌŝŶŐ

ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚŽƵƚ
ŚůĂŵǇĚŝĂ
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ
ƚĞƐƚŝŶŐ
ƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇ
ůĂďǇ
Ϯ
Ύ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
ϭϲ
ϰϬ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
ϱ
Ύ
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
ϱ
ϴ
DĞůƚŽŶ
ϭ
Ύ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϱ
Ύ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
ϱ
Ύ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϯϵ
ϱϬ
ΎEƵŵďĞƌƐƐƵƉƉƌĞƐƐĞĚĚƵĞƚŽĐŽƵŶƚƐŽĨůĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϱ

13.4.2.

Emergency Hormonal Contraception

Emergency Hormonal Contraception (EHC) is also called the 'morning-after pill'. It is used
following unprotected sexual intercourse. Taking emergency hormonal contraception
within 72 hours of unprotected sex can help prevent pregnancy. Pharmacists will supply
Levonorgestrel Emergency Hormonal Contraception (EHC) when appropriate to clients in
line with the requirements of a locally agreed Patient Group Direction (PGD). The PGD will
specify the age range of clients that are eligible for the service. Provision of EHC to eligible
women is a useful tool in reducing teenage pregnancy. Pharmacies claim for 4 different
EHC activity: consultations, Levonelle, replacement doses in the case of vomiting, and
double doses.
Figure 19 shows the location of pharmacies offering this service in Leicestershire. This
clearly shows that whilst there is a good coverage of pharmacies providing EHC across
Leicestershire, with 82 pharmacies providing the service, there are some areas of the
county with higher rates of teenage pregnancy that do not have a local pharmacy providing
EHC.
In 2013/14 there were 2,464 pharmacy based consultations for EHC and Levonelle was
issued in 2,410 of these. Table 23 illustrates that the overall consultation rate in
Leicestershire pharmacies was 61.6 consultations per 1,000 females aged 15-24, this
varied from a rate of 25.3 per 1,000 females in Melton to 85.5 per 1,000 females in
Charnwood. This indicates that the provision is different in each area of the county – and
the public health team needs to ensure that access is equitable across the whole range of
EHC providers.
Page 61 of 87

368

&ŝŐƵƌĞϭϵ͗ZĂƚĞƐŽĨƵŶĚĞƌϭϴĐŽŶĐĞƉƚŝŽŶƐďǇǁĂƌĚ͕ĂŶĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐďǇ,ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ

dĂďůĞϮϯ͗ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĂƐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐĂĐƚŝǀŝƚǇͲŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ,ŽƌŵŽŶĂůŽŶƚƌĂĐĞƉƚŝŽŶŝŶϮϬϭϯͬϭϰ

Pharmacists
providing
service

Consultations

Levonelle

2012
Population
Female
Aged 1524

Consultations
per 1,000
female
population
aged 15-19

9

373

369

ϱ͕Ϭϴϴ

73.3

Charnwood

26

1,136

1,116

ϭϯ͕ϮϵϬ

85.5

Harborough

9

154

150

ϰ͕ϯϯϳ

35.5

14

281

273

ϱ͕ϱϱϬ

50.6

4

69

66

Ϯ͕ϳϮϳ

25.3

12

273

261

ϱ͕Ϭϴϳ

53.7

8

178

175

ϯ͕ϵϬϴ

45.5

82

2,464

2,410

39,987

61.6

Locality

Blaby

Hinckley and Bosworth
Melton
North West
Leicestershire
Oadby and Wigston
Leicestershire
EHC

is also provided by GP practices and by the school nursing service.

The consultation phase of the PNA identified some specific access issues with respect to
young people accessing EHC through pharmacy, linked to opening times of the
pharmacies providing these services. This has also been raised in the Equality Statement
as an issue for further investigation.
13.4.3.

Substance misuse services

There are currently two community based services for substance misuse, the needle
Page 62 of 87

369

exchange service and the supervised methadone consumption service. The Public
Health Team at Leicestershire County Council commissions these services through
Swanswell, a national charity that supports and treats people with alcohol and substance
misuse problems. Swanswell has been commissioned to manage the whole system for
people in Leicestershire with respect to substance misuse, and the pharmacy is a key part
of the pathway for community based services. Swanswell have put in place agreements
with pharmacies to deliver needle exchange and supervised methadone consumption to
support treatment and harm reduction in the community.
Needle Exchange
The overall aim of the needle exchange service is to reduce the rates of equipment
sharing amongst injecting drug users thereby preventing the risks of infection and drug
related harm (individual and community). Pharmacies provide access to sterile needles
and syringes, and sharps containers for return of used equipment. Where agreed locally,
associated materials, for example condoms, citric acid and swabs, to promote safe
injecting practice and reduce transmission of infections by substance misusers will be
provided. Pharmacies offer a user-friendly, non-judgmental, client-centred and confidential
serviceFigure 20 shows the location of pharmacies offering this service in Leicestershire
and across the border in Rutland. Overall, 24 out of Leicestershire’s 132 pharmacies
provide the needle exchange service, six in Charnwood, five in Harborough, four in
Hinckley and Bosworth, three in North West Leicestershire and two in each of Blaby,
Melton and Oadby and Wigston.
&ŝŐƵƌĞϮϬ͗ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĂƐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͲEĞĞĚůĞĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ

Page 63 of 87

370

Supervised methadone consumption
This service requires the pharmacist to supervise the consumption of methadone at the
point of dispensing in the pharmacy ensuring that the dose has been administered to the
patient. Pharmacies offer a user-friendly, non-judgmental, client-centred and confidential
service The pharmacy will provide support and advice to the patient including referral to
primary care or specialist centres where appropriate.
Figure 21 illustrates the location of pharmacies providing supervised methadone
consumption in Leicestershire. 66 pharmacies are providing this service with the highest
level of coverage in Charnwood with 20 pharmacies and the lowest coverage in Melton
and Oadby and Wigston with five each.
&ŝŐƵƌĞϮϭ͗ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇĂƐĞĚ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͲ^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐĞĚŵĞƚŚĂĚŽŶĞĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ

13.4.4.

Healthy Living Pharmacies

The Healthy Living Pharmacy (HLP) scheme was developed as a pilot, running across
North West Leicestershire and Rutland up to March 2014. The pilot included nine
pharmacies in North West Leicestershire and three pharmacies in Rutland.
Based on national pilots, pharmacies qualifying as a HLP must already be meeting all the
contractual requirements for all essential and any advanced services provided within the
pharmacy contract. In addition:
•

The pharmacy must appoint a healthy living champion;
Page 64 of 87

371

•

Leadership training must be undertaken by the manager and/or pharmacist involved
in the HLP so that they can support the development of the pharmacy team and
change from reactive to proactive health intervention;

•

There must be a suitable consultation room;

•

Healthy living advice such as smoking cessation advice, obesity/healthy weight
advice should be provided at every opportunity; and

•

The pharmacy should be actively participating in all core public health directed
health promotion campaigns listed as a specific requirement of their HLP criteria.

The HLP scheme has been evaluated locally, but not actively rolled out across
Leicestershire and Rutland as a funded Community-Based Service (CBS). Instead, the
contribution of pharmacies is being enhanced by:
•

continually improving the activity and quality of existing CBSs;

•

facilitating the public health campaigns that are specified within the core pharmacy
contract, in-line with local priorities; and

•

putting in place the training and mechanisms that make it easier for pharmacies to
identify needs and direct customers towards health and wellbeing support.

13.4.5.

Alcohol brief interventions

The Alcohol Brief Intervention (ABI) Service was developed as a pilot alongside HLP and
up to March 2014 only pharmacies that were participating in HLP were eligible to apply for
the ABI scheme.
A brief intervention is a short, evidence-based, structured and non-confrontational
conversation about alcohol consumption and seeks to motivate and support an individual
to think about and plan changes in their drinking behaviour in order to reduce their
consumption and their risk of harm.
The alcohol brief intervention service comprises of four different components:
•

Patients (16+) screened using the shortened AUDIT-C questionnaire

•

Patients (16+) screened positive using the AUDIT-C questionnaire, further
assessed using the full ten-question AUDIT questionnaire to determine increasing,
higher risk or likely dependent drinking.

Page 65 of 87

372

•

Patients (16+) identified as drinking at increasing risk or higher risk levels who have
received a brief intervention to help them reduce their alcohol-related risk.

•

Registered patients (16+) identified as likely dependent drinking who have been
referred for specialist advice for dependent drinking.

The service is cumulative and all clients will be offered the AUDIT-C screening, with clients
only being offered the next level of the service if assessed as necessary.
In 2013/14, this service was in the pilot phase and only available in North West
Leicestershire. In 2014/15, the service has been separated from the HLP scheme and is
now open to any provider based in a clinical setting, including GPs and community
pharmacies as well as other suitable providers. This should increase uptake and activity
across the county which will be monitored across all providers to ensure that the services
are meeting the needs of the population of Leicestershire.
13.4.6.

Smoking cessation

Pharmacies are able to offer their clients a smoking cessation service as an associate
provider of the Leicestershire and Rutland Stop Smoking Service. Pharmacies are able to
provide nicotine replacement therapy and ongoing support and advice to those who want
it. Regardless of whether they are an associate provider, all pharmacies can redeem
STOP-provided Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) vouchers for smoking customers
and signpost patients to the stop smoking service located within their community.
&ŝŐƵƌĞϮϮ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƉƌĞǀĂůĞŶĐĞŽĨƐŵŽŬĞƌƐ͕ĂŶĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐƐŵŽŬŝŶŐĐĞƐƐĂƚŝŽŶƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

Page 66 of 87

373

Figure 22 shows the location of pharmacies offering smoking cessation services in
Leicestershire and across the border in Rutland and the estimated prevalence of smoking
by ward. Table 24 demonstrates the number of pharmacies providing smoking cessation
services, the numbers of people that are using these services and how this compares with
the numbers of smokers in each locality.
Across Leicestershire, 62 pharmacies are providing stop smoking services. Charnwood
has the highest provision with 19 pharmacies and Melton the lowest with one. In 2013/14
1,713 people used the pharmacy based services to help them to stop smoking and 836
people were successful at stopping smoking for at least four weeks. Provision across the
county has a high amount of variability. The provision averages 0.63 smoking CBS
pharmacies per 1,000 estimated smokers, but this varies from 0.15 in Melton to 0.86 in
Blaby. With respect to successful quitters, North West Leicestershire is the most
successful with 12.21 quitters per 1,000 estimated smokers and Harborough is the least
successful with 4.48 quitters per 1,000 estimated smokers. The average for Leicestershire
is 8.43 per 1,000 estimated smokers.
dĂďůĞϮϰ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚŶƵŵďĞƌŽĨƐŵŽŬĞƌƐ͕ĂŶĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂŶĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇďĂƐĞĚ^ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ

ƉŝƐŽĚĞ
ƐŝĞ͘
^ƚŽƉ
ĂƚƚĞŵƉ ,
^ŵŽŬŝŶŐ
^ŵŽŬŝŶŐ
ƚƐƚŽ
ǀĂůŝĚĂƚĞ WƌĞǀĂůĞŶĐ
WŚĂƌŵĂ
ƋƵŝƚ
ĚƋƵŝƚƐ Ğϵ
ĐǇ
ƐŵŽŬŝŶ
Ő

ůĂďǇ
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϭϮ
ϭϵ
ϱ

Ϯϵϳ
ϰϴϰ
ϭϬϰ

ϭϱϲ
Ϯϭϴ
ϰϴ

ϭϴ͘ϲ
ϮϬ͘ϱ
ϭϱ͘ϲ

137,704
68,817

WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝ
ĞƐ
KĨĨĞƌŝŶŐ
ƐŵŽŬŝŶŐ
^ƉĞƌ
ϭ͕ϬϬϬ
ƐŵŽŬĞƌƐ
13,982
Ϭ͘ϴϲ
28,281
Ϭ͘ϲϳ
10,717
Ϭ͘ϰϳ

ϴ

ϮϵϬ

ϭϱϵ

ϮϬ͘ϯ

85,288

17,305

ϭ

ϰϵ

ϯϬ

ϭϲ͘Ϯ

40,427

6,557

ϭϬ

ϯϲϰ

ϭϲϲ

ϭϴ͘Ϯ

74,829

13,597

ϳ

ϭϮϱ

ϱϵ

ϭϵ͘Ϯ

44,786

8,594

ϲϮ

ϭ͕ϳϭϯ

ϴϯϲ

ϭϴ͘ϴ

526,919

99,121

WŽƉƵůĂƚŝ
ŽŶϭϴн
;ŵŝĚ
ϮϬϭϯ
ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞ
ƐͿ
75,068

ƐƚŝŵĂƚ
ĞĚ
ŶƵŵďĞƌ
ŽĨ
ƐŵŽŬĞƌƐ

^ŵŽŬŝŶŐ
ƋƵŝƚƚĞƌƐ
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ
ƉŚĂƌŵĂ
ĐǇƉĞƌ
ϭ͕ϬϬϬ
ƐŵŽŬĞƌƐ
ϭϭ͘ϭϲ
ϳ͘ϳϭ
ϰ͘ϰϴ

Ϭ͘ϰϲ
Ϭ͘ϭϱ

ϵ͘ϭϵ
ϰ͘ϱϴ

Ϭ͘ϳϰ

ϭϮ͘Ϯϭ

Ϭ͘ϴϭ
Ϭ͘ϲϯ

ϲ͘ϴϳ
ϴ͘ϰϯ

Table 25 shows the estimated population of smokers living within walking distance of a
pharmacy. 55% of smokers live within a 20 minute walk time of a pharmacy in
Leicestershire, making pharmacy a universally accessible base for providing these
services in the community. Access is lowest in Melton with only 39% of smokers within a
20 minute walk time and best in Charnwood where 68% of smokers live within a 20 minute

Page 67 of 87

374

walk time.
dĂďůĞϮϱ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƐŵŽŬĞƌƐďǇǁĂůŬͲƚŝŵĞƚŽƉŚĂƌŵĂĐǇĂŶĚ'WĚŝƐƉĞŶƐĞƌ



^ŵŽŬĞƌƐ
>ĞƐƐƚŚĂŶϭϬ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

>ŽĐĂůŝƚǇ

ϭϬͲϮϬŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ

DŽƌĞƚŚĂŶϮϬ
ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ


EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ EƵŵďĞƌ WĞƌĐĞŶƚ
ůĂďǇ
Ϯ͕ϭϲϬ ϭϲ͘ϲϯй
ϰ͕ϭϱϱ ϯϭ͘ϵϴй
ϲ͕ϲϳϲ ϱϭ͘ϯϵй
ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ
ϱ͕ϵϰϯ Ϯϱ͘ϴϵй
ϵ͕ϳϯϮ ϰϮ͘ϯϵй
ϳ͕ϮϴϮ ϯϭ͘ϳϮй
,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
ϭ͕ϱϮϯ ϭϲ͘ϱϭй
Ϯ͕ϳϰϬ Ϯϵ͘ϳϬй
ϰ͕ϵϲϭ ϱϯ͘ϳϴй
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ
Ϯ͕ϱϯϬ ϭϳ͘ϵϲй
ϱ͕ϯϱϳ ϯϴ͘Ϭϰй
ϲ͕ϭϵϲ ϰϯ͘ϵϵй
DĞůƚŽŶ
ϴϵϬ ϭϯ͘ϳϵй
ϭ͕ϲϮϭ Ϯϱ͘ϭϮй
ϯ͕ϵϰϭ ϲϭ͘Ϭϵй
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
Ϯ͕ϰϲϯ ϭϴ͘ϴϵй
ϯ͕ϲϰϰ Ϯϳ͘ϵϰй
ϲ͕ϵϯϱ ϱϯ͘ϭϳй
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
ϭ͕ϰϴϵ Ϯϭ͘ϵϮй
Ϯ͕ϲϴϮ ϯϵ͘ϰϴй
Ϯ͕ϲϮϮ ϯϴ͘ϲϬй
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
ϭϲ͕ϵϵϵ ϭϵ͘ϴϳй Ϯϵ͕ϵϯϭ ϯϰ͘ϵϵй ϯϴ͕ϲϭϯ ϰϱ͘ϭϰй

13.4.7.

Palliative Care

Palliative care is aimed at offering the patient the highest possible level of comfort during
the last phase of their life. This service aims to facilitate access to palliative care medicines
by patients and their representatives. These pharmacists are trained in the use of palliative
care medicines and can provide advice to carers and other healthcare professionals.
Figure 23 shows the estimated proportion of the population aged 85 and over, compared
to the England average and pharmacies providing palliative care services. Table 26 shows
the mid-2013 estimated population of people aged 85+, and pharmacies providing
palliative care services.
22 pharmacies are currently (March 2014) providing the palliative care service, during their
normal contracted hours. This is unevenly spread with five pharmacies in Charnwood
providing the service, five in North West Leicestershire, three each in Blaby, Harborough
and Hinckley and Bosworth, one in Melton and two in Oadby and Wigston.
Using the proportion of people aged 85 years and over as an indicator of potential need for
palliative care services, the overall provision for Leicestershire is 1.36 pharmacies per
1,000 people aged 85 years and over. This ranges from 0.78 per 1,000 in Melton to 2.28
per 1,000 in North West Leicestershire.


Page 68 of 87

375

&ŝŐƵƌĞϮϯ͗WƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶĂŐĞĚϴϱĂŶĚŽǀĞƌ͕ĂŶĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐƉƌŽǀŝŶŐƉĂůůŝĂƚŝǀĞĐĂƌĞƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

dĂďůĞϮϲ͗WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶĂŐĞĚϴϱĂŶĚŽǀĞƌ͕ĂŶĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐƉĂůůŝĂƚŝǀĞĐĂƌĞƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ
ƉĂůůŝĂƚŝǀĞĐĂƌĞƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

WŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶϴϱн;ŵŝĚ
ϮϬϭϯĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐͿ

WŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐƉĂůůŝĂƚŝǀĞ
ĐĂƌĞƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕ƉĞƌϭ͕ϬϬϬϴϱн
ĂĚƵůƚƐ

ůĂďǇ

ϯ

2,338

ϭ͘Ϯϴ

ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ

ϱ

3,932

ϭ͘Ϯϳ

,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ
,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚ
ŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ

ϯ

2,214

ϭ͘ϯϲ

2,563

ϭ͘ϭϳ

DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ
KĂĚďǇĂŶĚ
tŝŐƐƚŽŶ

ϭ

1,289

Ϭ͘ϳϴ

2,195

Ϯ͘Ϯϴ

1,656

ϭ͘Ϯϭ

>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϮϮ

ϭϲ͕ϭϴϳ

ϭ͘ϯϲ

>ŽĐĂůŝƚǇ

13.4.8.

ϯ

ϱ
Ϯ

H. pylori Screening

This service is a breath testing service for patients with dyspepsia symptoms to detect the
presence of Helicobacter pylori bacteria which can cause stomach ulcers. This service is
commissioned by East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG and West Leicestershire CCG. At
the time of writing this needs assessment this service was being reprocured and there
were no data available for the analysis.

Page 69 of 87

376

13.5.

User views

As part of the engagement work undertaken by GEM to assess users’ views of pharmacy
services, questions were included on people’s awareness and uptake of all of the services
that pharmacies can provide, and some services provided by the neighbouring CCG that
are not currently provided in Leicestershire. (See section 13.1)
Pharmacy users were asked to indicate if they had heard of the service, if they used them
and if they would like to use them. The results are summarised in Table 27. This
demonstrated that 93% of respondents were using their pharmacy for the dispensing of
prescriptions, 84% for buying over the counter medicines and 73% for repeat dispensing.
66% would seek advice from their pharmacists on their medicines, but only 40% were
sitting down and talking through how they use their prescribed medications (MURs) and
61% did use their pharmacy to dispose of their unwanted medicines.
There was a high awareness of CBS, but less uptake of these services. For example, 96%
of users were aware of the chlamydia testing and needle exchange services but the older
demographic in the respondents suggests that these services are not targeted at these
people.
There was less awareness of using the pharmacy for advice on minor injuries and ailments
and on lifestyle advice with only 26% of respondents requesting lifestyle advice from their
pharmacist.
Pharmacy is an essential part of the pathway for patients, for both treatment of illnesses
and prevention services. Users are very happy with the pharmacy services that they are
accessing and there is a real opportunity to increase the amount of CBS services that we
provide through pharmacy, to increase the accessibility and the uptake of these services.
The Leicester City CBS that was included in the questionnaire was the service that allows
people who are exempt from prescription charges to get minor ailment medicines over the
counter from their pharmacists free of charge – 63% of respondents reported that they
would like to use this service in local pharmacies in Leicestershire.






Page 70 of 87

377

dĂďůĞϮϳ͗^ƵŵŵĂƌǇŽĨƉĂƚŝĞŶƚƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐƚŽĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐĂŶĚƵƉƚĂŬĞŽĨƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ
ŝƐƉĞŶƐŝŶŐŽĨƉƌĞƐĐƌŝƉƚŝŽŶƐ
ZĞƉĞĂƚĚŝƐƉĞŶƐŝŶŐ
ƵǇŝŶŐŽǀĞƌƚŚĞĐŽƵŶƚĞƌŵĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ

tŽƵůĚ dŽƚĂů
,ĞĂƌĚ
>ŝŬĞƚŽ ŶƵŵďĞƌŽĨ
ŽĨ
hƐĞ
hƐĞ
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ
Ϯϴй
ϵϯй
Ϭй
ϮϯϮ
ϰϬй
ϳϯй
Ϯй
ϮϮϵ
ϯϰй
ϴϰй
ϭй
ϮϮϭ

ĚǀŝĐĞĨƌŽŵǇŽƵƌƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝƐƚŽŶŚĞĂůƚŚǇ
ůŝĨĞƐƚǇůĞƐ

ϳϮй

Ϯϳй

ϱй

ϭϵϮ

ĚǀŝĐĞĨƌŽŵǇŽƵƌƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝƐƚŽŶ
ŵĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ

ϰϲй

ϲϲй

Ϯй

ϮϮϮ

ĚǀŝĐĞĨƌŽŵǇŽƵƌƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝƐƚŽŶŵŝŶŽƌ
ĂŝůŵĞŶƚƐͬŝŶũƵƌŝĞƐ
ŝƐƉŽƐŝŶŐŽĨŽůĚŽƌƵŶǁĂŶƚĞĚŵĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ

ϰϴй
ϰϱй

ϱϴй
ϲϭй

ϯй
ϲй

ϮϬϵ
Ϯϭϱ

^ŝƚƚŝŶŐĚŽǁŶǁŝƚŚǇŽƵƌƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝƐƚĂŶĚ
ƚĂůŬŝŶŐĂďŽƵƚŚŽǁǇŽƵƵƐĞǇŽƵƌ
ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚŵĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐ

ϲϮй

ϰϬй

ϱй

ϭϳϰ

^ƚŽƉƐŵŽŬŝŶŐͬŶŝĐŽƚŝŶĞƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ
ƚŚĞƌĂƉǇ
ŚůĂŵǇĚŝĂƚĞƐƚŝŶŐ

ϵϰй
ϵϲй

ϱй
ϭй

Ϯй
ϯй

ϭϲϱ
ϭϭϭ

ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇĐŽŶƚƌĂĐĞƉƚŝŽŶ;ƚŚĞŵŽƌŶŝŶŐ
ĂĨƚĞƌƉŝůůͿ

ϵϲй

ϱй

ϭй

ϭϯϰ

WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶŽĨƉĂůůŝĂƚŝǀĞĐĂƌĞ;ĞŶĚŽĨůŝĨĞ
ĐĂƌĞͿĚƌƵŐƐ

ϵϭй

Ϯй

ϴй

ϵϭ

'ĞƚƚŝŶŐŵĞĚŝĐŝŶĞƐǁŝƚŚŽƵƚƉƌĞƐĐƌŝƉƚŝŽŶƐ
ĨŽƌŵŝŶŽƌĂŝůŵĞŶƚƐĨƌĞĞŽĨĐŚĂƌŐĞ
^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐĞĚĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶŽĨĚƌƵŐƐ
EĞĞĚůĞĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ
ĚǀŝĐĞŽŶĂůĐŽŚŽůĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ

ϯϳй
ϴϳй
ϵϲй
ϵϮй

ϴй
ϭϬй
ϭй
ϰй

ϲϯй
ϯй
Ϯй
ϳй

ϵϮ
ϳϵ
ϴϰ
ϳϮ

,͘ƉǇůŽƌŝƚĞƐƚŝŶŐ;ƐƚŽŵĂĐŚƵůĐĞƌďƌĞĂƚŚ
ƚĞƐƚͿ

ϲϵй

ϰй

ϯϭй

ϱϱ

14.
14.1.

Projected future needs
Population Projections

The population of Leicestershire is growing and by 2037 the total population is predicted to
reach 753,100 people, a total population growth of 14.7% compared with 2012.21
However, the population is not growing uniformly across the different age bands. In the
next 25 years, the population is predicted to grow as follows:21

Page 71 of 87

378

•

A 7% increase in children and young people age 0-24 years (194,800 people to
208,800)

•

A reduction in the working age population age 25-64 of 1.7% (from 339,900 people
to 333,900)

•

A 55% increase in people aged 65-84 year olds (from 106,000 people to 164,900)

•

A 187% increase in the oldest population group of people aged 85 years and over
(from 15,900 people to 45,600)

dĂďůĞϮϴ͗>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ͕ŝŶϭ͕ϬϬϬƐͲϮϬϭϮƚŽϮϬϯϳ
2012

2013

2014

2015

2020

2025

2030

2035

2037

0-24

194.8

195.1

195.4

195.7

196.9

201.3

207.1

208.6

208.8

25-64

339.9

339.2

339.3

339.9

344.0

344.7

337.7

334.2

333.9

65-84

106.0

109.9

113.4

116.3

128.3

140.0

153.8

161.4

164.9

15.9

16.4

17.0

17.7

21.2

26.2

33.1

43.3

45.6

656.6

660.6

665.1

669.6

690.4

712.2

731.7

747.5

753.2

85+
All Ages

It is estimated that the total population of Leicestershire will grow by an average of
4,000 people per year.
Table 29 presents a simple model to assess the numbers of contractors providing
essential services by locality based on population growth. In March 2014, there were 131
community pharmacies and 19 GP dispensing practices operating from 23 surgeries, all
providing essential services.
Table 6 demonstrates the current coverage for Leicestershire, which overall matches the
England average of 2 community pharmacies per 10,000 population and 2.3 community
pharmacies and GP dispensing practices per 10,000 population. Table 29 uses a simple
population model to assess how many pharmacies providing essential services will be
needed in each locality (using a mix of community pharmacies and dispensing GPs) to
maintain this level of access. It is important to note that the national average rate is an
aspiration and not a target and the pharmacy coverage available for the Leicestershire
population is excellent for a rural local authority, and further boosted by the availability of
GP dispensing services. This is not a nationally recognised standard but a benchmark for
the Health and Wellbeing Board to aspire to and not for NHS England to use when
determining a new pharmacy application under the PNA.
The pharmacy coverage across Leicestershire is sufficient for the existing and projected
populations to 2020, this is not a uniform picture in each locality. This is not an indication
that there is a need for additional pharmacies in the localities that are affected earliest
Page 72 of 87

379

(Hinckley and Bosworth and North West Leicestershire), but a need to ensure that the
pharmacy system across Leicestershire continues to meet the needs of the whole
population in the way that it is currently doing. The PNA should be reviewed in 2020 to
ensure that the needs of the population are continuing to be met.
There are an increasing number of distance selling pharmacies and this will also increase
local pharmacy capacity to ensure that the needs of local people are being met.
dĂďůĞϮϵ͗ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌŶĞĞĚďĂƐĞĚŽŶƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶŐƌŽǁƚŚ

WƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚWŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ

Blaby



2012



2015



2020



2025



2030



2035



2037

94,600

95,900

98,600

101,100

103,300

105,200

105,800

Charnwood

168,800

174,800

182,400

189,800

197,400

203,200

205,200

Harborough

86,400

88,200

91,600

94,800

97,500

99,900

100,700

106,000

107,900

111,500

114,800

117,600

119,900

120,700

Melton

50,800

51,600

53,200

54,700

56,100

57,100

57,500

North West Leicestershire

94,000

95,200

97,500

99,900

101,900

103,700

104,300

Oadby and Wigston

56,100

55,700

55,900

56,900

57,900

58,600

58,900

656,700

669,500

690,600

712,000

731,600

747,400

753,100

Hinckley and Bosworth

Leicestershire

ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐŶĞĞĚĞĚƚŽŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶϮ͘ϯƉŚĂƌŵĂĐŝĞƐĂŶĚ'WĚŝƐƉĞŶƐŝŶŐƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞƐƉĞƌϭϬ͕ϬϬϬ
ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ
2012
2015
2020
2025
2030
2035
2037  

Blaby
ϮϮ
ϮϮ
Ϯϯ
Ϯϯ
Ϯϰ
Ϯϰ
Ϯϰ
Charnwood
ϯϵ
ϰϬ
ϰϮ
ϰϰ
ϰϱ
ϰϳ
ϰϳ
Harborough
ϮϬ
ϮϬ
Ϯϭ
ϮϮ
ϮϮ
Ϯϯ
Ϯϯ
Hinckley and Bosworth
Ϯϰ
Ϯϱ
Ϯϲ
Ϯϲ
Ϯϳ
Ϯϴ
Ϯϴ
Melton
ϭϮ
ϭϮ
ϭϮ
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
North West Leicestershire
ϮϮ
ϮϮ
ϮϮ
Ϯϯ
Ϯϯ
Ϯϰ
Ϯϰ
Oadby and Wigston
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
ϭϯ
ϭϰ
Leicestershire
ϭϱϭ
ϭϱϰ
ϭϱϵ
ϭϲϰ
ϭϲϴ
ϭϳϮ
ϭϳϯ

14.2.

Long term conditions

This unprecedented increase in the older population will lead to increases in the number of
people living with long term conditions. The Projecting Older People Population
Information System (POPPI) provides estimates and projections of the number of people
that are likely to be affected by long term conditions both now and in the future in
Leicestershire.22 Table 30 shows the number of people in Leicestershire predicted to be
living with various long term conditions.
The increase that is proposed in long term conditions by POPPI is higher in most
conditions than the overall population growth. Between 2015 and 2030 there will be an
Page 73 of 87

380

additional 29,500 older people living with a limiting long term illness (48% increase). The
most significant predicted growth is older adults living with dementia where there will be an
estimated additional 6,300 people, and increase of 69%.
dĂďůĞϯϬ͗WƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶƐŽĨŽůĚĞƌƉĞŽƉůĞ͕ĂŐĞϲϱǇĞĂƌƐĂŶĚŽǀĞƌ͕ǁŝƚŚůŽŶŐƚĞƌŵĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ͕ϮϬϭϱͲϮϬϯϬĨƌŽŵWKWW/

2015

%
Change
20152030

2020

2025

2030

Older adults with a limiting long term illness

61,998

70,382

80,834

91,499

47.6%

Older adults who are obese or morbidly obese

35,122

38,562

42,072

46,739

33.1%

Older adults predicted to have Type 1 or Type 2
diabetes

16,692

18,623

20,641

23,182

Older adults predicted to have depression

11,508

12,819

14,241

16,048

39.5%

Older adults predicted to have dementia

9,125

10,767

12,927

15,411

68.9%

Older adults predicted to have a longstanding health
condition caused by a heart attack

6,541

7,347

8,253

9,272

Older adults predicted to have a longstanding health
condition caused by a stroke

3,086

3,494

3,971

4,467

Older adults predicted to have a longstanding health
condition caused by bronchitis and emphysema

2,262

2,535

2,826

3,175

38.9%

41.8%
44.8%

40.4%

14.3.

Future housing

The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) for Leicester and Leicestershire was
published in June 2014.23 It contains an Objective Assessment of Needs for new housing
2011-2031. Table 31 shows the results of the needs assessment for new housing from this
report.23
dĂďůĞϯϭ͗,ŽƵƐŝŶŐKďũĞĐƚŝǀĞƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚŽĨEĞĞĚŽŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶƐ͕ϮϬϭϭͲϮϬϯϭ

>ŽĐĂůŝƚǇ

ĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐͲ>ĞĚ
,ŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚWƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ
ƚŽϮϬϯϭʹĞǆƚƌĂ
ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐƉĞƌĂŶŶƵŵ

ůĂďǇ

ϯϱϲ

ŚĂƌŶǁŽŽĚ

ϴϭϰ

,ĂƌďŽƌŽƵŐŚ

ϰϭϱ

,ŝŶĐŬůĞǇĂŶĚŽƐǁŽƌƚŚ

ϯϳϱ

DĞůƚŽŶ
EŽƌƚŚtĞƐƚ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

ϮϬϮ

KĂĚďǇĂŶĚtŝŐƐƚŽŶ
>ĞŝĐĞƐƚĞƌƐŚŝƌĞ

Ϯϴϰ
ϳϵ
Ϯ͕ϱϮϱ

The housing increases will provide housing for the increase in the population identified by
the Office for National Statistics, but may also see additional population moving into the
Page 74 of 87

381

area through migration. Population growth linked to plans for housing development are not
included in the population projections, but the impact on services will be considered as
part of the Health Impact Assessment that is carried out for new developments.
15.

Response to the 60 day statutory consultation

Details of the statutory consultation and responses are included in the following
appendices:
•

Appendix H - The full consultation report

•

Appendix I - The consultation document

•

Appendix J - The easy read version of the consultation

The statutory consultation ran from 24 September to 28 November 2014. The consultation
asked for feedback from the statutory consultees and was also distributed more widely to
ensure that as wide a population as possible was represented, particularly those from
“seldom heard groups”.
From the consultation:
•

Most people felt that the purpose of the PNA had been adequately explained.

•

Around 90% of the respondents felt that the PNA provides an adequate
assessment of pharmaceutical services in Leicestershire and those who did not
gave a number of reasons.

•

Around 90% felt that the PNA provides a satisfactory overview of the current and
future pharmaceutical needs of the Leicestershire population and again those
who did not gave a number of reasons.

•

Four fifths of respondents agreed that the current pharmacy provision and
services in Leicestershire are adequate, although one fifth did not, and made a
variety of comments.

•

85% of respondents agreed with the PNA conclusions and recommendations.
The 15% who did not gave a number of reasons and recommendations.

The full consultation feedback has been included in Appendix H. The feedback has
informed the development of the equalities statement and has been considered in the final
PNA report.

Page 75 of 87

382

16.

Equality Statement

The Equalities Statement is included in:
•

Appendix J – Equalities Statement

The equality statement was developed by a subgroup of the PNA project team and
included a representative from Healthwatch and the equalities lead from Leicestershire
County Council’s Public Health Department as an independent representative. The group
reviewing the equalities statement did undertake the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)
screening process and agreed that as the PNA is a needs assessment and not a change
to services a full EqIA was not required. However, it is important to note that any changes
to the services provided will be subject to a full EqIA that will draw on the PNA as part of
that evidence base.
The equalities statement identified that younger people and people with young families
were not always as aware of the services that were available through pharmacies. It also
identified accessibility issues linked to language, access to translation services and
availability of materials in easy read formats. Specific access issues were identified for the
deaf and hard of hearing community.
Other issues identified included a need to advertise the availability of female pharmacists
for women who would prefer to have a consultation with a female professional, particularly
with respect to the Muslim community.
Rural access issues were identified and these have been addressed in the gap analysis.
17.
17.1.

Gap analysis
Essential Services

Leicestershire benefits from three different types of provider for essential services,
community pharmacies, distance selling pharmacies and dispensing GPs. Combining all
three providers for the delivery of essential services, all residents of Leicestershire have
similar or better levels of access (providers per 10,000 population) to the England average.
However, with the projected increases in population that are anticipated in Leicestershire,
the areas of North West Leicestershire and Hinckley and Bosworth should be reviewed
again in 2015 to ensure that the provision remains adequate to meet the future needs of
the populations in these areas.
Access to essential services by car is good with over 98% of Leicestershire residents living
within a 10 minute drive-time of a pharmacy or dispensing GP surgery. 49% of residents
Page 76 of 87

383

live within a 20 minute walk-time of a pharmacy or dispensing GP surgery. The use of GP
dispensing in rural areas helps to moderate the rural access issues, with 65% of residents
choosing their pharmacy because it is close to their GP.
There is very good coverage of pharmacy across Leicestershire between 6.30 am and
midnight Monday to Friday. There is access to pharmacy services on Sundays and bank
holidays across the county, although fewer services are open and patients may need to
travel further. Patients that need to access emergency pharmacy services outside of
opening times are able to access an emergency pharmacy service through the out of
hours service.
Issues with access to services in more rural areas have been identified through the
consultation – particularly in Wymeswold in Charnwood and in Bagworth in Hinckley and
Bosworth.
Wymeswold is currently being assessed for a LPS contract to meet the current and future
needs of the population. This contract will be time limited and if the service in this area
stops in the future the impact on the local population should be assessed as an addendum
to this PNA.
Bagworth is a small village in Hinckley and Bosworth, the parish of Bagworth and Thornton
covers a population of 2,605 people. The closest pharmacy to Bagworth is in Ibstock,
which is 6 miles away. A particular issue was identified with a travellers’ site in Bagworth
where people really struggled to get to a pharmacist. The village of Bagworth is too small
to be a viable location for a community pharmacist and NHS England needs to work with
the local community, pharmacies in nearby villages and dispensing GPs to improve local
residents’ access to primary care services.
A number of the consultation responses made reference to the accessibility of translation
and interpreter services, for the deaf community as well as in other languages, as well as
the need to make more of the pharmacy documents available in easy read formats.
Recommendation for commissioners (NHS England):
The current levels of pharmacy services across Leicestershire are appropriate for the
population and are sufficient to meet the needs of the projected population between 2012
and 2020 in all of the localities considered in the PNA. The commissioners of essential
pharmacy services need to ensure that there continues to be equitable access to
pharmacy across all of the localities in Leicestershire and this should be reviewed through
an update of the PNA in 2018.

Page 77 of 87

384

The community pharmacist is a hub where the relationship between the GP and the
pharmacist can be developed to make access easier through electronic prescribing and
other innovations. Pharmacies are also somewhere that clients can access a whole range
of commissioned services to improve their health. These services include medicines use
reviews, the health promotion campaigns and the services that are commissioned by LCC
and the CCGs. They are a significant community asset.
It is recommended that:
•

NHS England continues to monitor the quality of essential services and agree
action plans with pharmacies where this is deemed necessary.

•

NHS England review the provision for the rural populations of Wymeswold and
Bagworth and ensure that the services that are available to the people in these
areas continue to meet their needs.

•

NHS England explore ways in which it can support pharmacies to access and use
translation services and develop their promotional materials in an easy read format.

•

All of the issues identified in the equalities statement should be considered by NHS
England when reviewing current and planning for future pharmacy services.

17.2.

Advanced Services

Across Leicestershire, the two key advanced services are provided by a higher percentage
of practices than the England average with 96% of pharmacies providing Medicines Use
Reviews and 85% providing the New Medicines Service.
Stoma appliance customisation and appliance use reviews are provided using pharmacies,
but are also commissioned through an alternative provider and population needs are met
through the combination of the two types of provision.
The MUR and NMS services are two services that are key to helping to support patients to
manage their own conditions in the community. It is essential that the opportunities for
supporting patients using these services is maximised by ensuring that patient uptake of
both of these services in pharmacies increases where this is low and that the quality of the
services offered in pharmacies is consistently high.
Whilst 96% of local pharmacies are carrying out MURs it has been demonstrated that the
providers are not maximising the uptake of MURs and only 67% of the potential MURs are
carried out in the community. There is an opportunity to increase the uptake of these
services in the community.
Page 78 of 87

385

Recommendation for commissioners (NHS England):
It is recommended that the commissioners of the advanced services continue to
commission pharmacies to carry out the advanced services. The commissioners should
monitor the uptake rates and quality of the services that are provided to ensure that
access to the services is maximised in the community and the services that are available
are of a consistently high quality. It is recommended that NHS England continues to
monitor the quality of advanced services and agree action plans with pharmacies where
this is deemed necessary.
It is recommended that NHS England review the provision of MURs in the community with
an aim to increase the uptake of the service in all localities.
Commissioners should review the national changes to the NMS contract linked to the
national evaluation and ensure that this service is commissioned in line with the national
direction in the future.
17.3.

Community Based Services

Across Leicestershire a good range of community based services are offered by
pharmacies. The CBS schemes provide the CCGs and Local Authorities with an
opportunity to increase the role of pharmacies in delivering the primary care and the public
health agendas. Pharmacies are very highly valued by the people that use them and
pharmacies have considerable day to day accessibility to clients making them an ideal
setting for supporting patients and clients to either make informed lifestyle choices or to
manage their own health conditions effectively.
The analysis of CBS identified a number of schemes with good population coverage and
uptake of services but also some gaps when relating the coverage to health needs. The
key findings are summarised below:
•

Emergency hormonal contraception is a well-developed service provided in all
localities with good uptake. Public Health should review the service provision to
ensure that all teenage pregnancy hotspots are covered by this service. The
consultation identified specific access issues for young people with respect to
pharmacy opening times and the provision of EHC which should be reviewed.

•

Chlamydia screening in pharmacies is not currently generating a high number of
chlamydia screens, This has been identified by the Public Health Team that is now
commissioning pharmacies to provide EHC and chlamydia as a single CBS sexual
health scheme.
Page 79 of 87

386

•

Substance misuse services are commissioned by the specialist treatment provider,
Swanswell, and include needle exchange and supervised methadone consumption
services in Leicestershire. These services are part of a wider whole system
approach to harm reduction and treatment of people affected by substance misuse.

•

The Healthy Living Pharmacy was a pilot run in Leicestershire up to March 2014.
This scheme is not being rolled out further as a funded CBS, but the contribution of
pharmacies is being enhanced through existing CBSs, public health campaigns and
frontline training and referral mechanisms.

•

Alcohol Brief Interventions CBS was linked to the Healthy Living Pharmacy pilot in
2013/14. This scheme has evaluated well and has now been further developed to
be available as a CBS that can be provided in any appropriate setting. The uptake
and delivery of this service will be evaluated by Public Health.

•

Smoking cessation in pharmacies is a key part of Leicestershire’s Stop Smoking
Service. Uptake is not uniform across Leicestershire and Public Health will work
with the Stop Smoking Service to assess additional opportunities to provide this
service in pharmacies.

•

The H.pylori CBS is a CCG based service that was being re-commissioned at the
time of writing this PNA. This service will be implemented and evaluated by the
CCG.

•

Palliative Care is a service that has been rolled out very widely in West
Leicestershire CCG with less provision in East Leicestershire and Rutland CCGs.
With the projected increases in very old populations across Leicestershire this is a
service that is likely to become increasingly important and ELR CCG should review
the value of providing this service more widely for their patients.

•

Minor ailments is a CBS that is not currently commissioned by Leicestershire’s
CCGs but is identified by stakeholders as a service that they would value and use.
The CCGs should review the effectiveness of this service from national evidence
and its role in supporting the wider primary care agenda to inform future decisions
about commissioning these services.

Recommendation for commissioners (Leicestershire County
Leicestershire and Rutland CCG and West Leicestershire CCG):

Council,

East

Public Health – Public Health must maximise the potential role of pharmacy in promoting
healthy lifestyle behaviours and in supporting people to change their behaviours when they
Page 80 of 87

387

are ready to make a lifestyle change, through frontline identification of clients, providing
appropriate brief advice and referral to other specialist services. The role of pharmacy in
the prevention agenda is, however, wider than commissioning CBS and there is a need to
ensure that Public Health is effectively linked into the essential services component of the
pharmacy contract around the promotion of healthy lifestyles. The CBS that are
commissioned by public health must be continually reviewed for their effectiveness, the
equity of access to the services across Leicestershire, the quality of the service and the
value for money that the services offer. The CBS services that Public Health commission
have all been reviewed and have now been re-issued as new services for pharmacies to
provide. Public Health need to maximise the pharmacies offering these services and
ensure that they are provided in the areas of highest population health needs.
Clinical Commissioning Groups – CCGs have an opportunity to embed pharmacy as a
key part of their primary care strategy and their commissioning strategy whilst ensuring
that pharmacy is developed to effectively support general practice. As the population
grows and becomes older, the number of people that primary care is supporting with long
term conditions and complex co-morbidities will increase. The need to manage these
patients effectively in the community and to ensure that they are able to access the right
advice will help to keep these patients well. Increasing the role of pharmacy in helping
patients to self- manage will help to reduce the number of GP appointments these patients
will need and to reduce the number of hospitalisations. CCGs are currently commissioning
two CBS schemes. These must be continually reviewed for their effectiveness, the equity
of access to the services across Leicestershire, the quality of the service and the value for
money that the services offer. CCGs need to maximise the pharmacies offering these
services and ensure that they are provided in the areas of highest population health
needs. The CCGs should consider the provision of a minor ailment scheme as a CBS.
18.

Conclusions

This PNA has reviewed pharmacy and dispensing GP coverage in relation to the
population health needs of the people of Leicestershire. This has involved looking at the
existing services, their locations, the breadth of services they are providing and the views
of the people that are using them. The PNA refers to the services that were provided on
the 31st March 2014. The PNA analysis focusses on the services that are currently
provided in pharmacy, with a look forwards to how pharmacies could be more widely used
in the future.
Within the scope of this document, community based pharmacies and dispensing GPs are
meeting the current needs of the Leicestershire population for essential and advanced
services in all of the Leicestershire districts. The consistency and quality of the advanced
Page 81 of 87

388

services should be continually reviewed and the uptake of Medicines Use Reviews and the
New Medicines Service in the community should be increased wherever possible. The
Community Based Services (CBS) provision across Leicestershire is good with a number
of well-developed schemes that are constantly developed and improved. It has been
identified that more needs to be done to increase uptake of CBS and to ensure that
services across the county are consistent. Across all areas of pharmacy (essential,
advanced and community based services) there is a need for commissioners to ensure
consistency in the range of and quality of services offered by pharmacists.
Community pharmacists are the most accessible health care professionals for the general
public. Locally, they are highly valued by their customers. The role of pharmacy in the
delivery of the wider health agenda will be essential to supporting the health and care
system going forwards. Across Leicestershire, the delivery of primary care is changing.
The Better Care Fund sets out the plans for health and social care in Leicestershire to
support more patients to manage their own care more effectively in the community,
reducing unnecessary hospital admissions. To support this there will be changes in
primary care, including plans to move to seven day working. All three commissioners of
pharmacy services in Leicestershire need to consider the ways that pharmacies can be
utilised to support these changes.
There are many additional services that could be commissioned from community based
services, including pharmacies. There is interest from our community in accessing minor
ailments services in community pharmacies. However, there are other community based
services that could be provided in pharmacies, these include (this list is illustrative and not
exhaustive, any additional pharmacy based scheme would need to be subject to a full
evidence review before it could be commissioned):
•

Minor ailments services;

•

Emergency repeat medicines service;

•

Anti-coagulation services;

•

Home blood pressure monitoring and supporting patient access to telehealth;

•

Support for inhaler technique;

•

NHS Health Checks;

•

Targeted “not dispense scheme” to reduce medicines waste;

•

Integration with multi-disciplinary teams to support proactive/ integrated care; and
Page 82 of 87

389

•

Support across the primary and secondary care interface to promote referrals from
secondary care and increase uptake of NMS and MURs for eligible patients post
discharge.

CCGs must incorporate the wider role of pharmacies in their primary care strategies to
ensure that the opportunities to provide effective local services are maximised locally.

Page 83 of 87

390

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

ABI

Alcohol Brief Intervention

AUR

Appliance Use Review

CBS

Community Based Services

CCG

Clinical Commissioning Group

CNCS

Central Nottinghamshire Clinical Services

COPD

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease

DAAT

Drug and Alcohol Action Team

EHC

Emergency Hormonal Contraception

ELSPLPS Essential Small Pharmacies
GP

General Practitioner

H. pylori

Helicobacter pylori

HLP

Healthy Living Pharmacy

HWB

Health and Wellbeing Board

IMD

Index of Multiple Deprivation

JHWS

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

JSNA

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

LLR

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland

LPS

Local Pharmaceutical Services

MUR

Medicines Use Review

NCSP

National Chlamydia Screening Programme

NHS

National Health Service

NMS

New Medicines Service

NRT

Nicotine Replacement Therapy

ONS

Office of National Statistics

PHOF

Public Health Outcomes Framework

PNA

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment

POPPI

Projecting Older People Population Information System

SAT

Stoma Appliance Customisation

Page 84 of 87

391

REFERENCES
1.

National Health Service. The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services)
Regulations 2013. (2013). at <http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/pdfs/uksi_20130349_en.pdf>

2.

NHS Employers. Clinical governance requirements for community pharmacy - NHS Employers. (2011). at
<http://www.nhsemployers.org/case-studies-and-resources/2011/11/clinical-governance-requirements-forcommunity-pharmacy>

3.

Leicestershire County Council. Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2012. (2012). at
<http://www.lsronline.org/reports/leicestershire_joint_strategic_needs_assessment_jsna_2012_key_documents>

4.

Leicestershire County Council. Leicestershire’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-16. 38 (2013). at
<http://www.leics.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard.htm>

5.

Leicestershire County Council, West Leicestershire CCG & East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG. Final Draft of
the

Leicestershire

Better

Care

(2014).

Fund.

at

<http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00001038/M00004131/AI00037775/$BCFcoversheetApril120143.docA.ps
.pdf>

6.

Office

for

National

Statistics

(C)

Crown

Copyright.

ONS

Mid-2012

Population

Estimates.

at

<www.statistics.gov.uk>

7.

Department for Communities and Local Government. English indices of deprivation 2010. www.gov.uk (2011). at
<https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/english-indices-of-deprivation-2010>

8.

Department for Communities and Local Government. English Indices of Deprivation 2010 Guidance Document. 4
(2011). at <https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6222/1871538.pdf>

9.

Public Health England. Public Health Outcomes Framework. (2014). at <http://www.phoutcomes.info/>

10.

Secretary of State for Health. Health Lives, Healthy People: Our Strategy for Public Health in England. 100 (Her
Majestys

Stationary

Office,

2010).

at

<https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/216096/dh_127424.pdf>

11.

The

Health and

Social Care

Information

Centre. Quality and

Outcomes Framework.

<http://www.hscic.gov.uk/qof>

12.

Public Health England. Health Profile 2014. (2014). at <www.healthprofiles.info>

Page 85 of 87

(2013).

at

392

13.

Leicestershire County Council. Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report. (2014). at
<http://www.lsr-online.org/reports/787800>

14.

Health and Social Care Information Centre. General Pharmaceutical Services in England: 2003-04 to 2012-13.
(2013). at <http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12683/gen-pharm-eng-200304-201213-rep.pdf>

15.

Office of National Statistics (C) Crown Copyright. ONS Mid-2013 Population Estimates. (2014). at
<www.statistics.gov.uk>

16.

NHS

Business

Services

Authority.

Dispensing

Practices

Name

and

Address.

at

<https://www.report.ppa.org.uk/ActProd1/getfolderitems.do;jsessionid=E2D7290A9F47897FA6375822F9BB4D8
8>

17.

Experian. Mosaic Public Sector. (2014). at <http://www.experian.co.uk/public-sector/index.html>

18.

NHS

England.

Reviewing

Dispensing

Patients

List.

(2013).

at

<http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2013/07/review-dispen-pati-lists.pdf>

19.

Derby City Council & Derbyshire County Council. Derby City & Derbyshire County Pharmaceutical Needs
Assessment

2015.

(2015).

at

<http://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/images/Draft_Derby%26Derbyshire_PNA_final_v1_tcm44-259405.pdf>

20.

The New Medicines Service Study, Nottingham, T. U. of & Pharmacy, U. S. of. Department of Health Policy
Research Programme Project. Understanding and Appraising the New Medicines Service. (2014). at
<http://www.nottingham.ac.uk/~pazmjb/nms/>

21.

Population Projections Unit; Office for National Statistics. 2012-based Subnational Population Projections for
Local

Authorities

in

England.

(2014).

at

<http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/rel/snpp/sub-national-population-

projections/2012-based-projections/index.html>

22.

Institute of Public Care, Oxford Brookes University & Extra Care Charitable Truts. Projecting Older People
Population Information System. (2014). at <http://www.poppi.org.uk/>

23.

Leicester and Leicestershire Local Planning Authorities. Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) for
Leicester

and

Leicestershire.

(2014).

at

<http://majorapps.planningportal.gov.uk/wp-

content/uploads/documents/2425527/Leicestershire SHMA Report June 2014.pdf>

Page 86 of 87

393

LIST OF APPENDICES
Appendix A: PNA Project Team Terms of Reference
Appendix B: 2012/13 Quality and Outcomes data for Leicestershire County and the
Districts
Appendix C: 2014 Health Profiles for Leicestershire and the Districts
Appendix D: Full list of pharmacy opening hours
Appendix E: PNA Patients Public Results Leicestershire
Appendix F: Professionals Pharmacy Questionnaire Leicestershire
Appendix G: PNA Patients Public Easy Read
Appendix H: The full consultation report
Appendix I: The consultation document
Appendix J: The easy read version of the consultation
Appendix I: Equalities Statement

Interactive dashboards demonstrating services, opening hours and data used within this
report
are
available
at
https://public.tableausoftware.com/profile/carrie5763#!/vizhome/LeicestershireMASTER/Po
pulation

Page 87 of 87

394

This page is intentionally left blank

395

EQUALITIES POLICY STATEMENT

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment: Commitment to equality of opportunity
We aim to create a culture where people of all backgrounds and experience feel
appreciated and valued. We are committed to achieving equality of opportunity
through the commissioning of services and in service delivery. All people who
access services will be treated fairly and without discrimination. Discrimination on the
grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
maternity and pregnancy, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation (or any
other unjustifiable criterion) will not be tolerated.
We are opposed to all forms of unlawful and unfair discrimination (including
harassment of any kind). The Council will take appropriate action wherever instances
of discrimination and harassment occur, in the delivery of services and in the course
of employment. It will work effortlessly with its partners to develop effective
procedures and policies to combat all forms of unlawful discrimination and to share
good practice.
We will fulfil our legal obligations under the Equality Act 2010 and the associated
Public Sector Equality Duty by giving ‘due regard’ to the need to:


eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not; and



foster good relations between different people when carrying out their
activities

This will include removing and/ or minimising disadvantages, taking steps to meet
the needs of different people and encouraging people from protected groups to
participate in society.
Delivery of Services
We will ensure that all services are provided fairly and without discrimination.
Reasonable adjustments will be made so that services are accessible to everyone
who needs them. Peoples cultural and language needs will be recognised and
services will be provided which are appropriate to these needs.
We will monitor the take up of services from different sections of the Leicestershire
population. The information collected will be used to inform service planning and
delivery.

396

An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessments (EHRIAs) will also be carried
out on this Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment and all commissioned services to
assess how services are provided to individuals and different sections of the
community. The results of the EHRIAs will highlight areas for improvement, which
will be addressed through service plans.
We are aware that the following equalities issues will need to be fully considered:
Comments
Age The age profile of people accessing services is
weighted towards older people because these
populations have the greater proportion of long
term conditions and are in receipt of more
prescriptions.
Pre PNA Engagement responses – 60% > 60
years, 31% 35-49 years, 9% < 35 years
Consultation responses - 63% > 60 years, 32%
35-49 years, 4.5% < 35 years – targeted
consultation events included sure start centres
and specific events targeted at younger people
to ensure better representation of this group in
the feedback.
Statutory consultation – identified issues with
access to EHC at suitable times and locations
for young people referred by school nurses
Younger people (<25 years) are less aware of
the services offered by pharmacies and the
services they provide (over and above
essential services) – younger adults with young
families would like to see increased promotion
of the services that they can access through
pharmacy – both advertised through the
pharmacy itself but also using other community
outlets
Older people may find it difficult to access
pharmacy services because of their immobility,
lack of transportation and apprehensions about
the weather especially in winter.
Disability Pre PNA Engagement responses – 26% of
respondents reported a disability.
Easy read version identified issues around
communication with seldom heard groups
needs to be improved eg with deaf people who

397

need an interpreter
Statutory consultation – 15% of responses
reported a disability
87% of respondents completing the easy read
questionnaire reported they had a disability,
10% reported that they did not. Higher
proportion of people completing the easy read
version travelled to pharmacist by walking (this
could be due to this being a combined
response for LLR) and there was a higher % of
people that tried to access their pharmacy
when it was closed.
PNA Statutory consultation – some groups,
particularly those with disabilities such as
deafness would like better communication in
the form of translation/ interpretation and
availability of easy read materials.
Role of pharmacy to support independent living
– for example development of dementia
friendly schemes or domiciliary medicines
support - should be addressed in the PNA
Statutory consultation – respondents would like
pharmacies to make information available in
easy read formats
Gender Reassignment

Marriage and Civil
Partnership
Pregnancy and Maternity A number of specific engagement events were
held in sure-start centres to gather views from
people with young families. This raised
awareness of the fact that younger families
would like to make more use of pharmacies but
they are less aware than older people of the
services that are available.
Race Pre PNA Engagement responses – 91% white,
4% Asian or Asian British, 4% other or not
stated
PNA Statutory consultation – 88% white, 9%
Asian or Asian British, 3% other or not stated

398

Consultation responses - some groups,
particularly those from ethnic minorities, would
like better communication in the form of
translation/ interpretation services
The final PNA analysis will include an
additional section looking at access by drive
and walk times for people who live in deprived
areas and people from BME communities to
ensure they have the same levels of access as
the overall population.
Hindu community would like more translation
available
Religion or Belief Pre PNA Engagement responses – 63%
Christian, 25% none, 5% prefer not to say, 7%
Hindu, 2% other, 1% Buddhist, 1% Muslim
Consultation responses – 60% Christian, 26%
none, 4% prefer not to say, 8% Hindu
Muslim community would like more female
pharmacists available in the community and
more publicity about when people can see a
female pharmacist for a consultation –
feedback through targeted events
Sex Pre PNA Engagement responses – 61%
female and 39% male
Consultation – 60% female and 40% male
Sexual Orientation Pre PNA Engagement responses – 87%
heterosexual, 7% prefer not to say, 4.5%
bisexual, 1% gay, 0.5% lesbian
The consultation process included working with
the LBGT community to gather feedback.
Other groups Pre PNA Engagement responses – identified
e.g. rural isolation, rural isolation issues, particularly in the
deprivation, health professionals questionnaire
inequality, carers, asylum
seeker and refugee Rural access issues were well considered in
communities, looked after the PNA in the walk and drive time analysis
children, deprived or and the designated rural areas section and the
disadvantaged communities dispensing GPs.
Specific issues around rural access have been
highlighted in the PNA Statutory consultation,

399

particularly around the Essential Small
Pharmacy Contracts (Wymeswold and
Houghton on the Hill) that will be addressed in
more detail in the final report. Rural access
issues were also identified in Bagworth.
Students in Leicestershire have specific access
to services through the University Pharmacy
which is an essential small pharmacy and the
future needs of this population needs to be
reviewed in light of the changes to the ESPLPS
contracts.
Travellers – identified as a high risk population
that pharmacy could support better. Travellers
reported that they preferred accessing
pharmacy for advice rather than the GP and
difficulties accessing pharmacies from the fixed
travellers site Bagworth (nearest pharmacy is
in Ibstock, 6 miles away and this is not
accessible by public transport). Medicines
advice for the travelling population needs to be
written in using more accessible language, with
easy read available.
Inequalities in North West Leicestershire and
Charnwood identified as an issue by
Healthwatch - The final PNA analysis will
include an additional section looking at access
by drive and walk times for people who live in
deprived areas and people from BME
communities to ensure they have the same
levels of access as the overall population
Cross border issues,, particularly in rural areas
where services are provided and/ or
commissioned by other areas – for example in
Kegworth
Issues around out of hours services and rural
access. Transport concerns raised.
Comments about delivery services
Community Cohesion Pharmacy services have a pivotal role in
community cohesion. Community pharmacists
are the most accessible health care
professionals for the general
public. Locally, they are highly valued by their
customers. The role of pharmacy in the

400

delivery of the wider health agenda will be
essential to supporting the health and care
system going forwards.
The community pharmacist is a hub where we
can develop not just the relationship between
the GP and the pharmacist to make access
easier through electronic prescribing and other
innovations, they are also somewhere that
clients can access a whole range of holistic
services to improve their health through all of
the services that are commissioned from them,
be this through medicines use reviews, the
health promotion campaigns and the services
that are commissioned by LCC and the CCGs.
They are a significant community asset.
Before awarding contracts enquiries will be made of potential contractors about their
equalities policies and practices. Contract documents will contain terms requiring
contractors to comply with their statutory equality obligations and the Council’s
equalities policies and practices.
The County Council takes complaints seriously. Members of the public, including job
seekers, who feel they have been unfairly treated, have the right to use the County
Council’s complaints procedure.

401

Agenda Item 9

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 12th MARCH 2015
REPORT OF LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND SAFEGUARDING
CHILDREN BOARD AND SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD
BUSINESS PLANS 2015/16
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to present for comment the Business Plans for the
Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Board (LRLSCB) and the
Safeguarding Adults Board (LRSAB).

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The LRLSCB is a statutory body established as a result of Section 13 of the Children
Act 2004 and currently works under statutory guidance issued in Working Together
2013. The LRSAB will become a statutory body on 1st April 2015 as result of the
Care Act 2014. The safeguarding boards agreed a protocol with the Health and
Wellbeing Board as a result of which the Independent Chair presents for
consideration both the Business Plans and the Annual Reports of both the LRLSCB
and LRSAB. This report relates to the LRLSCB and LRSAB Business Plans for
2015/16.

Background
3.

Health and Wellbeing Board members will be aware that in 2014/15 the business
plans and annual reports of the two safeguarding boards were combined. Given the
change in the statutory status of the LRSAB created by the Care Act 2014 and a wish
to present the specific objectives of the two boards more clearly we have reverted to
the production of individual business plans with one cross-cutting element that
retains focus on those safeguarding issues that relate to both Boards.

4.

The Annual Report 2013/14 of the two safeguarding boards was presented to the
Health and Wellbeing Board at its meeting on 16th September 2014. The future
improvement priorities identified in the Annual Report have been built into the
Business Plans for 2015/16. In addition to issues arising from the Annual Report
2013/14 the new Business Plans’ priorities have been identified against a range of
national and local drivers including:
•
•
•

National safeguarding policy initiatives and drivers;
Recommendations from regulatory inspections across partner agencies;
The outcomes of serious case reviews, serious incident learning processes
and other review processes both national and local;

402
•
•
•
5.

The new Business Plan has been informed by discussions that have taken place in a
number of forums since the autumn of 2014. These include:
•
•

•

•
6.

Evaluation of the business plans for 2014/15 including analysis of impact
afforded by our quality assurance and performance management framework;
Best practice reports issued at both national and local levels;
The views expressed by both service users and front-line staff through the
Boards’ engagement and participation arrangements.

The annual Safeguarding Summit of chief officers from partner agencies held
in December 2014
Meetings of the Scrutiny Panels in both Leicestershire and Rutland at which
both the annual report 2013/14 and future priorities for action have been
debated;
Meetings of the Leicestershire and Rutland Health and Wellbeing Boards at
which both the annual report 2013/14 and future priorities for action have been
debated;
Discussions within individual agencies

The proposed strategic priorities, priority actions and key outcome indicators set out
in the new Business Plans were formulated through the annual development session
of the two safeguarding boards held on 16th January 2015.

Proposals/Options
7.

The strategic priorities for the two Boards remain the same as those agreed in
2014/15. They are as follows:
Priority 1:
Priority 2a:
Priority 2b:
Priority 3:

Priority 4:
Priority 5:

To be assured that ‘Safeguarding is Everyone’s Business’
To be assured that children and young people are safe
To be assured that adults are safe
To be assured that safeguarding services for children, families and
adults are effectively co-ordinated to ensure both children and adults
are safe;
To be assured that our learning and improvement framework is raising
service quality and outcomes for children, young people and adults;
To be assured that the workforce is ‘fit for purpose’.

8.

Against each of these strategic priorities the Boards have now identified key
outcomes for improvement and the actions that will need to be taken over the next
year to achieve these improved outcomes. These are set out in the two draft
Business Plans that are attached as Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 to this report.

9.

The Quality Assurance and Performance Management Framework for the two
Boards will be adjusted to reflect the new Business Plans when they are finalised by
the two Boards at their meetings on 17th April 2015.

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
10. As set out in paragraph 5 above there has been a range of forums from which the
proposed priorities set out in the Business Plans have emerged. Consultation with
the Health and Wellbeing Board forms part of this process of consultation.

403

11. In addition existing engagement and participation arrangements for both children and
adults have had an opportunity to identify priorities for safeguarding as arranged
through the Engagement and Participation Sub-Group of the two Boards.
Resource Implications
12. The LRSLCB and LRSAB have a budget to which constituent agencies contribute.
Agency contributions for 2015/16 are agreed at the same level as last year and the
Business Plan will be delivered within these resources.
Timetable for Decisions
13. Responsibility for final agreement to the Business Plans sits with the LRLSCB and
LRSAB. Both Boards are due to consider the Business Plans at their meeting on 17th
April 2015 at which it is anticipated the plans will be agreed. The views of the Health
and Wellbeing Board will be considered and any relevant amendments made before
the report is submitted to the Boards in April. The views and opinions of the Health
and Wellbeing Board will be formally reported to the Boards at this meeting.
Conclusions/Recommendations
14. The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to:
a) Consider the proposed Business Plans for the LRLSCB and LRSAB;
b) Comment on the proposed Business Plans and identify any issues for further
consideration or any amendments it would wish to propose.
Background papers
Care Act 2014
Annual Report 2013/14 of the two safeguarding boards
Quality Assurance and Performance Management Framework for the LRLSCB and
LRSAB
Officer to Contact
Paul Burnett, Independent Chair, Leicester and Rutland Local Safeguarding Children
Board and Safeguarding Adults Board
Telephone: 07736 374048
Email:
paul.burnett@leics.gov.uk
Appendices
Appendix 1 Leicestershire and Rutland LSCB Business Plan 2015/16
Appendix 2 Leicestershire and Rutland SAB Business Plan 2015/16

404

This page is intentionally left blank

405

Leicestershire and Rutland
Local Safeguarding Children Board
Business Plan 2015-16

Version 0.3
Effective from: April 1st 2015
Review dates: Quarterly Review: July, October, January

1

Introduction

406

I am pleased to present the LRLSCB Business Plan for 2015/16. The Plan is intended primarily to
set out the key outcomes and impact that the Board wishes to achieve across the next year, to
ensure that children, young people and adults in Leicestershire and Rutland are safe. It does not
show business as usual items unless they are addressing an issue that has been highlighted for
specific or remedial work within 2014/15.
Following three integrated LSCB and SAB Business Plans that we have presented since
agreement to better align the two Safeguarding Boards in 2012 this year we revert to a plan that
seeks to clearly show the work of the two Boards as independent business units. The plan still
maintains a number of priority issues that are common to both Boards. The requirement to
separate the business of each board is being driven by the regulatory bodies that inspect against
quality assurance frameworks. As well as Ofsted for the LSCB, the introduction of the Care Act
2015 legislation that comes into force from 1st April lays out the statutory framework for the SAB.
The formulation of this Business Plan has been undertaken with the engagement of members of
both Boards and other stakeholders. It aims to articulate the key improvement objectives that will
underpin our work in the period 2015/16 and, most importantly, to set out the actions that will be
taken to address these priorities. This increased emphasis on specific actions is also intended to
ensure that we are more explicit about the outputs, outcomes and impact that the Boards intend to
achieve. This we believe will strengthen our ability better to quality assure, performance monitor
and risk manage the work of the Boards and their impact on safeguarding service delivery and on
safeguarding outcomes for children, young people and adults.
The priorities in this Business Plan have been identified against a range of national and local
drivers including:
•

National policy drives to strengthen safeguarding arrangements and the roles of LSCBs and
SABs

•

Recommendations from regulatory inspections;

•

The outcomes of Serious Case Reviews and Serious Incident Learning Processes (SILPs)
and other learning review processes – emerging from both national and local reports;

•

Evaluations of the impact of previous Business Plans and analysis of need in Leicestershire
and Rutland;

•

Priorities for action emerging from Quality Assurance and Performance Management
arrangements operated by both Boards;

•

Responses to the views of stakeholders including the outcomes of engagement activities;

•

Best practice reports issued by Ofsted, ADCS and ADASS

Having considered these matters members of the Boards have agreed to reflect the five priorities
within our performance management framework within this plan. These priorities are:
Priority 1: To be assured that ‘Safeguarding is Everyone's Responsibility’
Priority 2a: To be assured that children and young people are safe, including assurance of the
quality of care for any child not living with a parent or someone with parental responsibility
Priority 3: To be assured that services for children, services for adults and services for families are
effectively coordinated to ensure children and adults are safe.
Priority 4: To be assured that our Learning and Improvement Framework is raising service quality
2

407

and outcomes for children, young people and adults
Priority 5: To be assured that the workforce is fit for purpose
This Business Plan sets out the key actions proposed to support work in support of these
objectives with a view to further enhancing the impact of the two Boards in supporting improved
outcomes in safeguarding the children, adults and communities of Leicestershire and Rutland.
Safeguarding is everyone’s business. Never has it been more critical for LSCBs and SABs to
show strong, robust and effective leadership in securing the safeguarding and well-being of our
communities. This Business Plan is intended to set a clear framework within which this leadership
can be delivered. The collaborative support of all agencies is essential to securing the impact this
Business Plan seeks.

I commend the Plan to all partners and look forward to your support in achieving our goals.

Paul Burnett
Independent Chair, Leicestershire and Rutland LSCB and SAB

3

Priority 1: To be assured that ‘Safeguarding is Everyone's Responsibility’
To achieve this, we will:

Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

1.1

Strategic and Board Priorities

Board member sponsor: __________________________

To evidence this, we will
measure:

Who will lead?

Seek assurance from schools through
S11 strategic and operational audit
Engage with Headteachers to provide
assurance that their schools are
engaged in safeguarding
Maintain representation on Board by
school representatives, both primary
and secondary and Leicestershire and
Rutland
Seek school representation on
Subgroups
Monitor safeguarding training
attendance by independent schools

S11 operational and strategic
audit responses
Referral rates to Children’s
Social Care
Meetings attended with
Headteachers
Attendance of school
representatives at Board
meetings and Subgroup
meetings
Training attendance and
evaluation

Board & SEG

1.1.2. Partner agencies are
complying fully with
their responsibilities
under S11

Conduct an annual strategic S11 audit
Monitor the Action plan for agencies
identified as not being “fully compliant”

Compliance against the
requirements of S11
Compliance for completion of
Action Plan

Board members /
Senior Managers
Board

1.1.3. Board effectiveness in
safeguarding children
and young people in
Leicestershire and
Rutland

Maintain a “Log of Challenge” which
will monitor partner agency responses
to challenges by the Board or Board
members
Conduct an annual self-assessment
by Board members and develop an
action plan to address any issues
identified
Gather evidence that the Board is
driving improvements and changes
which impact on positive outcomes for
children and young people

Compliance with the “Log of
Challenge”

Independent
Chair

Areas of effectiveness agreed
by Board and compliance with
resulting action plan

Independent
Chair

1.1.1. Full engagement by
schools in
safeguarding,
including independent
schools

Risk

Progress

SEG
Independent
Chair
Independent
Chair

Training
Subgroup

408

Evidence provided by
agencies and Board through
the Performance Management
Framework

Timescale

SEG, Executive
and Board
4

Priority 2a: To be assured that children and young people are safe, including assurance of the quality of care for any child not living with
a parent or someone with parental responsibility. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
To achieve this, we will:

Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

To evidence this, we will
measure:

2.1

Improving outcomes for children identified by previous learning processes

Who will lead?

2.1.1 LSCB thresholds are
understood and
consistently applied
across agencies;
Support offered to
children and young
people is
proportionate to their
needs

Roll out programme of training about
thresholds for staff across partner
agencies
Raise awareness through
Safeguarding Matters and Website
Monitor use of thresholds through
case file audits

Training attendance and
evaluation

Training
Subgroup

S11 operational and strategic
audit responses
Outcomes of Referral to
Children’s Social Care

Board and SEG

2.1.2 Improved quality of
referrals

Conduct training event about referrals
Review multi-agency referral process
and form, including multi-agency
contribution to referral

S11 operational audit
responses
Quality of referrals made by
agencies tested though case
file audit

Training sub
group and
Procedures sub
group

2.1.3 Improved quality of
assessment

Review multi-agency assessment
process and form, including multiagency contribution to assessment at
referral, assessment, conference and
LAC stage

S11 operational audit
responses
Quality of multi-agency
contribution to assessment
tested though case file audit

Executive

2.1.4 Improved quality of
professional
supervision

Conduct training event about
professional supervision
Ensure all agencies have supervision
procedure
Review quality of supervision through
audit
Review LSCB supervision procedure
to ensure fit for purpose

S11 operational audit
responses

Training sub
group

Quality of referrals made by
agencies tested though case
file audit
Updated supervision
procedure

Executive

Timescale

Risk

Progress

Board and SEG

409

Procedures
Subgroup
5

Priority 2a: To be assured that children and young people are safe, including assurance of the quality of care for any child not living with
a parent or someone with parental responsibility. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

2.2

Early Help - wellbeing

2.2.1 Early Help Services
are successful in
sustaining
improvements to the
lives of children and
young people and
their families and
reducing children
experiencing abuse or
neglect or coming into
care

To evidence this, we will
measure:

Who will lead?

Ensure all agencies are contributing to
early help services through shared
understanding and commitment
Ensure that Supporting Leicestershire
Families (SLF) and Changing Lives
Rutland (CLR) are meeting targets to
improve lives of children and families
Consider the development of multidisciplinary response at referral stage
(MASH)

Referral rates to Early Help
Service
Referral rates to Children’s
Social Care
Caseloads of Early Help
Services
Outcomes reported by SLF
and CLR
Development of MASH

Early Help
Services (inc.
SLF and CLR)
and SEG to
monitor

Raise awareness with public that early
help is available and how to access it
Ensure that the voice of the child is
captured and feedback used to
influence service development and
procedures

Self-Referral rates to Early
Help Services by young people
or families;
Voice of the child audits are
conducted
Recommendations embedded
from Voice of the child audits

SEG

Monitor the contribution of all
agencies to safeguarding and ensure
that good practice is disseminated,
risks identified and mitigated
Review multi-agency contribution to
assessment at referral, child
protection, conference and LAC
Conduct multi-agency audits and
review summary reports from single
agencies at SEG
Engage with children who have been

Compliance with S11 through
strategic and operational
audits
Agreed core data set through
the SEG (impact and
outcomes)
Effectiveness of practice
through single and multiagency audit reports
Feedback from children and
young people

SEG

SEG and
Engagement
Subgroup

Timescale

Risk

Progress

410

2.3

To achieve this, we will:

Child Protection

2.3.1 Multi-agency child
protection services
that are childfocussed and effective
in safeguarding
children and young
people

Executive

6

Priority 2a: To be assured that children and young people are safe, including assurance of the quality of care for any child not living with
a parent or someone with parental responsibility. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

To achieve this, we will:
through the “journey”

2.4

To evidence this, we will
measure:
Feedback from front line
practitioners

Who will lead?

Timescale

Risk

Progress

Looked After Children

2.4.1 Looked After children
are safe and achieve
health and education
outcomes

Agreed core data set through
the SEG (impact and
outcomes)
Effectiveness of practice
(including supervision) through
audit reports
Feedback from children and
young people
Feedback from front line
practitioners
Feedback from training /
competency framework

SEG

Engagement
Sub group

411

Monitor the contribution of all
agencies to looked after children and
ensure that good practice is
disseminated, risks identified and
mitigated
Engage with children and young
people in care
Ensure professional supervision
across partner agencies is effective by
conducting conference and raising
awareness through Safeguarding
Matters

7

Priority 2a: To be assured that children and young people are safe, including assurance of the quality of care for any child not living with
a parent or someone with parental responsibility. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
To achieve this, we will:

Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

2.5

Other Safeguarding Priorities

2.5.1 Child Sexual
Exploitation:
Increase in the
identification of
children and young
people who are at risk
of child sexual
exploitation (CSE)
and reduction in the
number who
experience CSE

Impact and outcomes for
children and young people at
risk or experience CSE Agreed core data set through
SEG
Publication of CSE Strategy,
Protocol and procedures –
measure awareness of
definitions and documents
through S11 operational audit
responses
Evaluation of CSE training
(CWDC) and events (CSE
Subgroup) reported to SEG
Referral rates to CSE Hub
Progress of CSE Hub through
reports to Executive and Board
Voice of the child and other
case file audits are conducted
Recommendations are
embedded from Voice of the
child audits

Who will lead?

Timescale

Risk

Progress

CSE Subgroup
SEG
CWDC and CSE
Subgroup
CSE Subgroup
and SEG
Police, 3 x LAs,
health,
commissioners,
other services –
strategic
oversight
(LSCB, SLAs,
KPIs)

412

Effective prevention,
investigation and
recovery for children
and young people
who are or have
experienced child
sexual exploitation

Agree definition of CSE across LSCB
and agencies, including sub-regionally
with Leicester City
Review and agree CSE Strategy and
Protocol and update CSE procedures
Raise awareness of CSE in partner
agencies through CSE training and
events
Fully operationalise CSE co-located
team (CSE hub) to ensure sufficient
commitment and resources from
partner agencies to achieve goals
Agree monitoring/measures for CSE
Ensure that the voice of the young
person is captured and feedback used
to influence service development and
procedures CSE subgroup
Raise awareness of CSE to public

To evidence this, we will
measure:

8

Priority 2a: To be assured that children and young people are safe, including assurance of the quality of care for any child not living with
a parent or someone with parental responsibility. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

To achieve this, we will:

To evidence this, we will
measure:

Who will lead?

2.5.2 Children Missing
from Education are
identified, safe and
supported:
That children and YP
who are not receiving
their statutory
education (inc. PRU,
special schools,
vocational etc.) are
monitored to ensure
they are safe. This
includes children who
are Home educated,
moving across areas;
and traveller families
(diff groups)

Develop shared understanding about
pathway of children who are missing
from education
Monitor through agreed core data set
Agreed monitoring process involving
other agencies (LA, schools, GPs,
health) → move from administrative
process to assessment
Develop LSCB multi-agency
procedures for children who are home
schooled and traveller families
Raise awareness amongst agencies
about potential vulnerability of these
children

Agreed core data set through
the SEG (impact and
outcomes)
Effectiveness of practice
through single and multiagency audit reports
Feedback from children and
young people
Feedback from front line
practitioners

SEG

2.5.3 Children who are
Privately Fostered
are safe
Children and young
people are
appropriately
identified and
supported in private
fostering
arrangements

Raise awareness with public about
private fostering – media and social
media campaign
Raise awareness amongst agencies
about potential vulnerability of these
children
Monitor through agreed core data set

Agreed core data set through
the SEG
LAs to provide quarterly
reports to SEG

SEG

Engagement
Sub group

Timescale

Risk

Progress

Serious
case
review
Children
are not
accounte
d for/safe

413
9

Priority 2a: To be assured that children and young people are safe, including assurance of the quality of care for any child not living with
a parent or someone with parental responsibility. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
To achieve this, we will:

To evidence this, we will
measure:

2.5.4 Assurance that
children and young
people access the
CAMHS service
appropriately.

Support the review of CAMHS and
ensure partner agencies contribute
Ensure the speed and quality of
response by CAMHS is securing
improved emotional health of children
and young people
Ensure there are agreed thresholds
for access to CAMHS services
understood by all partner agencies

Proportion of Referrals to CSC
of children where emotional
health is a factor and track
child’s journey through EH, CP
and LAC
Assessment by EH and CSC
where emotional needs are
assessed as a factor
Agreed core data from
CAMHS to PMF Report

Executive

2.5.5 Female Genital
Mutilation (FGM)
Reduction in number
of girls who suffer
from FGM
Increase in
identification of girls at
risk of FGM
Increased community
awareness of risks of
FGM in identified
communities

Continue to develop pathways and
procedures for services to girls at risk
or who experience FGM
Raise awareness with public about
FGM – media campaign
Raise awareness amongst agencies
about potential vulnerability of these
girls
Monitor through agreed core data set
Work with communities at identified
highest risk

Agreed core data set through
the SEG

FGM sub group

2.5.6 E-Safety: Assurance
that children and
young people in L
and R are safe.

Gain an overview, spread and depth
of e-safety, education awareness and
training for children and young people

Percentage of staff/ children
and young people trained.
Feedback from young people
through survey on website

Board

Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

Who will lead?

Timescale

Risk

Progress

414
10

Priority 3 – To be assured that services for children, services for adults and services for families are effectively coordinated to ensure
children and adults are safe. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
Ref.
no.

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:

To achieve this, we will:

To evidence this, we will
measure:

3.1

Assurance that the
Prevent /Channel
strategies result in a
reduction in number of
young people involved
in terrorism and
Increase in
identification of young
people at risk of
becoming involved in
terrorism

Seek assurance from the AntiSocial Behaviour Strategy Group
that the Prevent Strategy is being
delivered appropriately
Monitor through agreed core data
set

Agreed core data set through
the SEG

SEG

3.2

Transition to adult
services:
Careleavers and
disabled young
people are
appropriately
supported by
children’s services to
work towards
independence
Disabled young
people successfully
transition to be
supported in adult
services

Monitor the contribution of all
agencies to Careleavers and young
people transitioning to adult
services and ensure that good
practice is disseminated, risks
identified and mitigated
Engage with young people and
adults at risk
Audit cases to assure of the
effectiveness of services

Agreed core data set through
the SEG (impact and
outcomes)
Feedback from young people
and adults at risk
Feedback from front line
practitioners

SEG

3.3

Think Family:
Children and young
people and adults at
risk are safe,
especially as they
transition between or

Develop shared understanding
about pathway of children and
young people who transition
between services
Monitor through agreed core data
set

Agreed core data set through
the SEG (impact and
outcomes)
Effectiveness of practice
through single and multiagency audit reports

Procedures
Subgroup

Who will lead?

Timescale

Risk

Progress

415
11

Priority 3 – To be assured that services for children, services for adults and services for families are effectively coordinated to ensure
children and adults are safe. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
Ref.
no.

3.4

In 2015/6 we want to
achieve:
across services

To achieve this, we will:
Review LSCB multi-agency
procedures
Raise awareness amongst
agencies about potential
vulnerability of these children,
young people and agencies at risk
Monitor the impact and outcomes
of people who are supported
through Domestic Abuse services
Seek assurance from the
Leicestershire Domestic Abuse
Partnership that the Domestic
Abuse Strategy is being delivered
appropriately
Monitor through agreed core data
set provided by MARAC

Develop A seamless
referral pathway for
victims of Domestic
Violance and Abuse
including Teenage
Peer Domestic
Abuse

Develop pathways and procedures
for services to young people at risk
of or who experience domestic
abuse in their peer relationships
Raise awareness amongst
agencies about potential
vulnerability of these young people
Monitor through agreed core data
set

Agreed core data set through
the SEG (impact and
outcomes)

Who will lead?

Timescale

Risk

Progress

Executive

416

Domestic Abuse:
Multi-Agency Risk
Assessment
Conference
(MARAC):
Fully coordinated
response to people
who are at risk of
domestic abuse
Improved attendance
and participation by
agencies at MARAC

To evidence this, we will
measure:
Feedback from children and
young people
Feedback from front line
practitioners

Agreed core data set through
the SEG (impact and
outcomes)

12

Ref. no.

Priority 4: To be assured that our Learning and Improvement Framework is raising service quality and outcomes for
children and young people. Board Member Sponsor: _______________________________
Timescal
In 2015/6 we will
To achieve this we will
Who will lead?
Risk
Progress
e

Ensure that learning from audit, SCRs and other
reviews is shared and embedded. Increase
methods of delivering and sharing key messages.

SCR sub group

Include health visitor and school
nursing input into Board and
subgroups

Increase the membership of the board to include
Public Health

Executive

4.2

Seek assurance that NHS
settings such as Dentists and
opticians are receiving and
embedding appropriate
recommendations from SCRs
and other review processes

Identify existing communication channels that are
used by NHS colleagues to provide relevant
information

Executive

4.3

Review the learning and
improvement framework

Proportionate type of review is used to deal with a
case – proportionate response to the particular
case

SCR subgroup

417

Seek a reduction in serious
incidents and reviews

4.1

13

Priority 5: To be assured that the workforce is fit for purpose. Board Member Sponsor:
_______________________________
Ref. no.
5.1

In 2015/6 we will

5.2

Develop a set of standards that The standards are evidenced within contracts.
commissioners should include in
their contracts and include L & D
competency framework for
safeguarding training e.g.
incorporate the markers of good
practice
Seek assurance that supervision Caseloads are appropriate and manageable.
of workers and cases is good.
Quality of supervision is linked to capacity.
Supervision needs to be appropriately facilitated.
Funding issues are impacting on caseloads,
affecting effective workforce and are causing
resilience issues.

5.3

Outcome/Evidence Measure

Who will lead?

Timescale

Progress

Training Subgroup

Executive

418
14

419

Leicestershire and Rutland
Safeguarding Adults Board
Business Plan 2015-16

Version 0.3
Effective from: April 1st 2015
Review dates: Quarterly Review: July, October, January

1

Introduction

420

I am pleased to present the LRL SAB Business Plan for 2015/16 The Plan is intended primarily to
set out the key outcomes and impact that the Board wishes to achieve across the next year, to
ensure that adults in Leicestershire and Rutland are safe. It does not show business as usual
items unless they are addressing an issue that has been highlighted for specific or remedial work
within 2014/15.
Following three integrated LSCB and SAB Business Plans, that we have presented since
agreement to better align the two Safeguarding Boards in 2012 this year we revert to a plan that
seeks to clearly show the work of the two Boards as independent business units. The plan still
maintains a number of priority issues that are common to both Boards. The requirement to
separate the business of each board is being driven by the regulatory bodies that inspect against
quality assurance frameworks. As well as Ofsted for the LSCB, the introduction of the Care Act
2015 legislation that comes into force from 1st April lays out the statutory framework for the SAB..
The formulation of this Business Plan has been undertaken with the engagement of members of
both Boards and other stakeholders. It aims to articulate the key improvement objectives that will
underpin our work in the period 2015/16 and, most importantly, to set out the actions that will be
taken to address these priorities. This increased emphasis on specific actions is also intended to
ensure that we are more explicit about the outputs, outcomes and impact that the Boards intend to
achieve. This we believe will strengthen our ability better to quality assure, performance monitor
and risk manage the work of the Boards and their impact on safeguarding service delivery and on
safeguarding outcomes for children, young people and adults.
The priorities in this Business Plan have been identified against a range of national and local
drivers including:
•

National policy drives to strengthen safeguarding arrangements and the role of SABs

•

Recommendations from regulatory inspections;

•

The outcomes of Serious Case Reviews and Serious Incident Learning Processes (SILPs)
and other learning review processes – emerging from both national and local reports;

•

Evaluations of the impact of previous Business Plans and analysis of need in Leicestershire
and Rutland;

•

Priorities for action emerging from Quality Assurance and Performance Management
arrangements operated by both Boards;

•

Responses to the views of stakeholders including the outcomes of engagement activities;

•

Best practice reports issued by Ofsted, ADCS and ADASS

Having considered these matters members of the Boards have agreed to reflect the five priorities
within our performance management framework within this plan. These priorities are:
Priority 1: To be assured that ‘Safeguarding is Everyone's Responsibility’
Priority 2b - To be assured that adults in need of safeguarding are safe, including assurance of the
quality of care for any adult supported by registered providers

2

421

Priority 3 – To be assured that services for children, services for adults and services for families
are effectively coordinated to ensure children and adults are safe
Priority 4: To be assured that our Learning and Improvement Framework is raising service quality
and outcomes for children, young people and adults
Priority 5: To be assured that the workforce is fit for purpose
This Business Plan sets out the key actions proposed to support work in support of these
objectives with a view to further enhancing the impact of the two Boards in supporting improved
outcomes in safeguarding the children, adults and communities of Leicestershire and Rutland.
Safeguarding is everyone’s business. Never has it been more critical for LSCBs and SABs to
show strong, robust and effective leadership in securing the safeguarding and well-being of our
communities. This Business Plan is intended to set a clear framework within which this leadership
can be delivered. The collaborative support of all agencies is essential to securing the impact this
Business Plan seeks.
I commend the Plan to all partners and look forward to your support in achieving our goals.
Paul Burnett
Independent Chair, Leicestershire and Rutland LSCB and SAB

3

Priority 1: To be assured that ‘Safeguarding is Everyone's Responsibility’ Board Sponsor:________________________
Ref.
no.
1.1

In 2015/16 we will:
Be assured that Better Care
Together programme measures
and reports Safeguarding
outcomes.

Enable members of the public in
Leicestershire and Rutland to be
aware/understand what
constitutes a safeguarding
concern/alert /referral

1.3

Listen and report what members
of the public say about their
experience of safeguarding
and
Increase the engagement activity
of the board;

Clearly identify the safeguarding benefits
to the Better Care Together Programme
and Work with BCT to report appropriately
Ensure a two way flow of information from
the SAB to the BCT Board
Deliver an awareness raising media
campaign through website and other
media to enable a better understanding of
Safeguarding Adults.
To gauge the appetite to complete this
action on a LLR basis and respond
accordingly
Better joining together of work around
public ‘listening’ in agencies, this to
include commissioners and providers in
health
Run direct engagement events to
supplement the information from partner
organisations

Who will lead?

Timescale

Board

September 2015

Engagement
Group

Media campaign
delivered by
December 2015

Engagement
group

Risk

Progress

422

1.2

To achieve this we will

4

Priority 2b - To be assured that adults in need of safeguarding are safe, including assurance of the quality of care for any
adult supported by registered providers
Board Sponsor:________________________
Ref. no.

In 2015/6 we want to achieve:

To achieve this, we will:

Who will
lead?
Training
Subgroup

Ensure that thresholds are
understood and provide
proportionate assistance and
risk management to adults in
need of safeguarding.

Monitor referral rates – core data set to be
defined to ensure understanding and
assure safety
Ensure effective system in place to
provide to referrers by LA – monitor
number of feedback forms through PMF to
SEG
Ensure service providers are appropriately
trained to undertake ‘proper’ enquiries
when advised by the LA

2b 2

Implement the new care act
compliant safeguarding
procedures across
Leicestershire and Rutland

Publish the procedures online via Policy
Partners;
Produce new training resources to support
the roll out of the new procedures;
Deliver multi agency training

Procedures
and
Development
subgroup.

2b. 3

Be assured that Adults are safe
in care provisions

Monitor through CQC data and contract
compliance data - report through PMF and
SEG

SEG

Risk

Progress

423

2b.1

Timescale

5

Adults are safe in the
community

Monitor referral rates as proportion of all
referrals and monitor through PMF to SEG

SEG

2b. 5

Be assured that DoLs are
effectively managed to ensure
safety of adults without capacity

Monitor number and trends and report
through PMF to SEG

SEG

2b.6

Be assured that
recommendations from
Winterbourne are fully
embedded in safeguarding
practice

Monitor repeating of compliance audit
with recommendations through PMF to
SEG

SEG

424

2b. 4

Priority 3 – To be assured that services for children, services for adults and services for families are effectively coordinated
to ensure children and adults are safe
Board Sponsor:________________________
3.1

Assurance that the
Prevent /Channel strategies
result in a
reduction in number of young
people involved in terrorism and
Increase in identification of
young people at risk of

Seek assurance from the Anti-Social
Behaviour Strategy Group that the Prevent
Strategy is being delivered appropriately
Monitor through agreed core data set

Agreed core
data set
through the
SEG

SEG

6

becoming involved in terrorism
Transition to adult services:
Careleavers and disabled young
people are appropriately
supported by children’s services
to work towards independence
Disabled young people
successfully transition to be
supported in adult services

Monitor the contribution of all agencies to
Careleavers and young people
transitioning to adult services and ensure
that good practice is disseminated, risks
identified and mitigated
Engage with young people and adults at
risk
Audit cases to assure of the effectiveness
of services

Agreed core
data set
through the
SEG (impact
and outcomes)
Feedback from
young people
and adults at
risk
Feedback from
front line
practitioners

SEG

3.3

Think Family:
Children and young people and
adults at risk are safe, especially
as they transition between or
across services

Develop shared understanding about
pathway of children and young people who
transition between services
Monitor through agreed core data set
Review LSCB multi-agency procedures
Raise awareness amongst agencies about
potential vulnerability of these children,
young people and agencies at risk

Agreed core
data set
through the
SEG (impact
and outcomes)
Effectiveness
of practice
through single
and multiagency audit
reports
Feedback from
children and
young people
Feedback from
front line
practitioners

Procedures
Subgroup

425

3.2

7

Priority 4: To be assured that our Learning and Improvement Framework is raising service quality and outcomes for
children, young people and adults
Board Sponsor:________________________
Ref. no.
4.1

In 2015/6 we will

To achieve this we will

Seek a reduction in serious
incidents and reviews

Ensure that learning from audit, SCRs and
other reviews is shared and embedded.
Increase methods of delivering and
sharing key messages.

Include health visitor and school
nursing input into Board and
subgroups

Who will lead?
SCR sub
group

Increase the membership of the board to
include Public Health

Executive

Seek assurance that NHS
settings such as Dentists and
opticians are receiving and
embedding appropriate
recommendations from SCRs
and other review processes

Identify existing communication channels
that are used by NHS colleagues to
provide relevant information

Executive

4.3

Review the learning and
improvement framework

Proportionate type of review is used to
deal with a case – proportionate response
to the particular case

SCR subgroup

Priority 5: To be assured that the workforce is fit for purpose
Ref. no.
5.1

Risk

Progress

426

4.2

Timescale

In 2015/6 we will

To achieve this we will

Embed the new Training
strategy and develop an adult
training subgroup across LLR

The subgroup will be in place and will
jointly plan LLR adult safeguarding.

Board Sponsor:________________________
Who will lead?
Training group

Timescale

Risk

Progress

8

5.2

Be assured that the adult
safeguarding training
competency framework is
understood and accessible to all
practitioners

ensures all practitioners understand the
framework and test how easily understood
and accessible practitioners find the
competency framework
Seek and use feedback on existing
framework and how to improve
accessibility, e.g. electronic tool

Training
subgroup

5.3

Seek assurance that supervision
of workers and cases is good.

SEG

5.4

Be assured that Caseloads are
appropriate and manageable.

Develop a set of standards that
commissioners should include in their
contracts and include L & D competency
framework for safeguarding training e.g.
incorporate the markers of good practice
Collect and analyse case load data and
compare with statistical neighbours.

SEG

427
9

428

This page is intentionally left blank

429

Agenda Item 10

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 12 MARCH 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULTS AND COMMUNITIES
THE CARE ACT 2014
PROGRESS REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION
Purpose of Report
1

To update the Board on the Council’s progress to date on readiness for the
implementation of the Care Act Phase 1 on 1 April 2015.

2

To highlight areas of risk or concern for the Council and to explain the mitigating
actions planned or taken to manage the risks.

3

To give the Board an overview of the work planned to embed the changes for 2015
and to plan for Phase 2 of the Act due to be implemented in April 2016.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
4

The Care Act 2014 represents the biggest review of adult social care policy and
practice in the last 60 years.

5

The Care Act will:
• Consolidate existing legislation into one legal framework;
• Bring existing good practice on to a statutory footing, eg safeguarding, Personal
Budgets and Direct Payments;
• Introduce some new responsibilities, eg social care provision in custodial
settings.

6

The Act is built around people and the existing good practice principles of
choice and control, embedding these right through care plans and personal
budgets. It puts well-being at the heart of every decision that is made and creates
a new focus on preventing and delaying needs for care and support. Under the Act
carers will have the same rights to assessment and services as those for whom
they care.

7

The Act aims to make care and support clearer and fairer by introducing a
single national eligibility threshold and through this ensuring continuity of care
when people move between areas. The Council will be required to provide
universal access to advice and information services and to provide advocacy
services for those who have difficulty engaging in the process of assessment and
support planning. The universal Deferred Payments Scheme (from April 2015) and
the cap on care costs (from April 2016) are aimed at ensuring that people do not
need to sell their home to pay for their care in their lifetime. Further requirements

430
of the Council are aimed at ensuring that no one goes without care should their
provider fail.
Background
8

The Council established a programme to deliver the Care Act requirements and
work has progressed well. The Council will be compliant with the legislation from
1st April 2015. New processes and key products will ensure robust compliance and
deliver added value and quality for adults with care and support needs, their carers
and staff within the organisation. The Cabinet Lead Member for Adult Social Care
and Support Member have been regularly updated and actively involved. See
Appendix A for a summary of key work stream progress to date.

9

The Council has been well represented at National and Regional Care Act Events.
In February the Council took part in the third national Care Act stocktake. The
Council’s position remains confident that all the necessary arrangements will be in
place to ensure Care Act compliance from April 2015.

10

A programme of work has been established within the department to analyse the
draft regulations and guidance for the 2016 parts of the Act, assess their impact
and to co-ordinate feedback to the Department of Health.

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
11

The Department of Health has now released the draft guidance for the changes
from April 2016. A consultation on the guidance, to which the Council is
contributing, is underway. An East Midlands consultation event was held on 26th
February with the Department of Health. There was a good representation from
Leicestershire with delegates including Council officers, the Cabinet Lead Member
for Adult Social Care and Support Member as well as representatives from
provider organisations.

12

Good use has been made of the “Making it Real – Think Local Act Personal” tool
for marking the Council’s progress towards personalised support. For example,
this has been used to co-produce the carers’ assessment tools and processes.
Working jointly with carers in this way has been very successful in producing good
outcomes.

Resource Implications
12

Key to understanding the impact of the Act has been the need to model the
numbers of assessments that the Council will need to undertake in the future. This
is anticipated to increase from April 2015 as carers’ rights to assessment, support
planning and the provision of a Personal Budget become law. For 2015/16 it is
currently projected that an additional 2,758 carers will come forward for an
assessment, bringing the total number supported by the authority to 5,554 carers.
These numbers are projected to increase at a stepped rate in later years with a
total of 8,388 carers presenting in 2016/17, which plateaux to 9,883 carers
presenting from 2017/18 onwards. This more than trebles the number of carers
currently presenting for assessment.

431
13

A further increase in activity is expected from October 2015 onwards as selffunders present to the Council for a needs assessment to underpin their right to a
Care Account (Phase 2 of the Care Act from April 2016). It is currently projected
that an additional 1,858 self-funders will come forward for an assessment
increasing the total number of assessments to 14,247 from October 2015
onwards. This represents an increase of 15%. Various models for calculating the
costs have been released both through the region and nationally. These models
have been applied to the local population figures to assist in the modelling of the
resources required to support Care Act delivery in Leicestershire.

14

The Department of Health has made a commitment to fund the additional costs to
local authorities for the implementation of the Care Act. For 2015/16 the funding
allocations to cover the additional costs arising from the Care Act amount to
£5.63m for Leicestershire. This is to be made up of £1.38m Better Care Fund
(BCF) revenue; £0.71m Department of Health grant; £3.03m formula funding grant
and £0.51m BCF capital grant.

15

A summary of the overall funding requirement against the Care Act funding
allocation (budget) is provided in the table below.

Carers Assessments
Carers Support Fund
Infrastructure & Other Carers Provision
Advocacy
Safeguarding
Prisons
Self-funder Assessments
Social Care Protection
Care Act Implementation
TOTAL REQUIREMENT
TOTAL BUDGET
VARIANCE

2015/16
£000
425
770
297
480
143
146
1,234
612
1,518
5,626
5,626
0

16

Based on current projections it is expected that any additional cost of
implementation in 2015/16 can be absorbed within the overall funding allocation.

17

The modelling work has indicated that an additional 61 staff will be required from
April 2015 to address the anticipated additional demand for assessments and to
meet some of the other new responsibilities. Staff members are being recruited
incrementally on temporary contracts for one year until both levels of demand and
the Council’s funding allocation for 2016 and beyond is known. These staff will be
funded from the Care Act allocation. Although the posts created will be additional
to the existing staff establishment they will be filled, in part, by the extension to the
contracts of existing temporary staff. The staffing requirement breaks down as
follows:

432
Staff role
Carers Assessors
Self-funder Assessors
Safeguarding Officers (Health oversight)
Prisons Assessors
Advice and Information Officer
Support staff
Management
Financial Assessors

Number required
16
28
2
1
1
3
4
6

Risks
18

A risk register has been established for the programme. Key risks have been
identified and mitigating actions aligned to them. The main risks identified for 2015
onwards are:
a) The number of carers coming forward for an assessment is higher than
anticipated. The financial modelling has been based on an average of three
separate methodologies as advised by the impact assessment (national census
data approach, impact assessment data approach and carers allowance data
approach). Sensitivity analysis has been undertaken to assess the financial
implications arising from a change in the uptake assumptions.
b) Some of the changes to tools and processes will not be available on the
new Integrated Adult System (IAS). In order to be assured of compliance
manual work round positions are being put in place in some areas. Work
continues on the preparation of the documentation on the system and the fully
integrated electronic versions of tools and processes will be in place in the
summer when the next upgrade on the system is due. In the meantime existing
processes will be adopted to ensure work can continue.
c) Staffing capacity may be insufficient to undertake the additional duties.
The number of staff required has been modelled using the tools made available
by Department of Health. Concerns have been raised nationally and within the
region that these may not be accurate. Work currently taking place within the
business to understand better the capacity of the existing workforce will be
used to inform this process for the staff required in 2016 and beyond.
d) The culture change required to implement the spirit of the Act will not
happen. The training and development programme started in 2014/15 and
running through 2015/16 is addressing both factual and cultural changes. Care
Act Champion volunteers have been recruited from locality teams and have
had additional training and support to ensure that key messages are embedded
back in the work place amongst colleagues. A programme of activity
throughout 2015 is planned to embed these changes.
e) The actual cost of social care funding reform is greater than anticipated.
Using the tools released through the Department of Health, returns have been
submitted as part of the social care impact assessment 2015/16. Work
continues to source missing data and existing assumptions continue to be
refined as information becomes available. Sensitivity analysis has been

433
undertaken to assess the financial implications arising from a change in the
uptake assumptions
19 The main risks identified for 2016 onwards are:
a) The number of self-funders coming forward to register for a care account
is higher than anticipated. A survey was undertaken amongst providers in
order to determine the number of potential self-funders and sensitivity analysis
has been undertaken to assess the financial implications arising from a change
in the uptake assumptions.
b) Delays to the issuing of the draft regulations and guidance for 2016 could
impact on the Council being able to deliver the necessary changes in a
timely way. Although the issuing of these documents has been delayed by the
Department of Health, the consultation period end date of 30 March 2015 has
not been put back.
c) The final guidance (2016) may not be available in a timely way. Final
guidance is promised by October 2015. Changes in the final guidance may
require further work not currently scoped and could potentially delay
implementation in 2016. The same approach as was taken for assessing the
impact of the draft guidance for Phase 1 is being adopted in Phase 2 to ensure
that any changes made to the final guidance can be addressed. Work will be
re-prioritised where necessary across the programme to ensure compliance
with the legislation. Any requirements for additional resources to ensure
compliance will be escalated through the Programme Board.
d) Funding for 2016 and beyond may be insufficient to meet requirements.
Some initial scoping of funding requirements for 2016/17 and beyond has
taken place using the models provided however final allocations have not be
announced. Once the draft regulations and guidance have been assessed and
the implications are understood further work on the requirements for 2016
onwards can take place. The final guidance and information about funding
allocations, anticipated in the summer, will inform this process.
Timetable for Decisions
20

Implementation of the Care Act is in two phases. Phase 1 in April 2015 followed
by Phase 2 the following April.

21

A progress report was presented to the Adults and Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on the 3 March 2015 and a further update on progress will
be made to the Integration Executive on 31 March 2015.

Background Papers
Care Act Regulations and Guidance (2015)
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-statutory-guidance-for-implementation

Care Act Draft Regulations and Guidance (2016)
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/care-act-2014-cap-on-care-costs-and-appeals

434
Department of Health factsheets
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-part-1-factsheets
Officers to Contact
Mick Connell, Director of Adults and Communities
Tel: 0116 305 7454
Email: mick.connell@leics.gov.uk
Tony Dailide, Assistant Director (Promoting Independence)
Tel: 0116 305 7752
Email: tony.dailide@leics.gov.uk
Appendices
A

Summary of key work stream progress

B

Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment screening report (Please note
that Appendix 1 referred to is not attached, but is available upon request).

Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
22

An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment screening of the Care Act
Programme has been completed and is attached as Appendix B.

23

The following key areas have been identified for individual screening exercises
and will be completed as part of the programme for the work streams:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Social Care assessments in prisons, approved premises and bail
accommodation;
Market Position Statement;
Strategy for managing provider failure;
Safeguarding;
Information and Advice (to incorporate Independent Financial Advice);
Eligibility.

Partnership Working and Associated Issues
24

The Care Act requires the Council to integrate with health and to work in an
aligned way with partners. The work of the Care Act Programme has been aligned
to other projects within the department addressing these issues to ensure
coverage and to avoid duplication. There has been particular focus on ensuring
that there is synergy between the programme and the Health alignment work
taking place within Adults and Communities.

Risk Assessment
25

A risk register has been developed for the programme and is linked into the
departmental and corporate registers.

APPENDIX A
SUMMARY OF KEY WORK STREAM PROGRESS
Work stream
Social Care
Funding Reform

Eligibility

Direct Payments

Draft pathway and referral process identified and agreed with
partners for Independent Financial Advice which will be in
place for April 2015. Briefings taken place for staff within team
meetings by Learning and Development Team.
Initial planning work completed around responding to the
consultation on the draft regulations and guidance for Phase 2
– February and March.
New eligibility policy and procedural guidelines for staff
produced to ensure that practice is legally compliant. Training
sessions devised and delivered to all assessor staff through
February and March. Further sessions to be run in April to pick
up any staff who have not had the training.
Work completed to ensure compliance to the law. Further work
is planned for 2015 – 16 to develop self-assessment and online assessment / support planning options. Assessment and
support planning training being planned for delivery later in
2015 by Learning and Development Team.
Work progressing to develop pre-payment card options for
people to be able to better manage their Direct Payment and
for the council to be able to monitor their expenditure remotely
in keeping with the proportionate responses required by the
Care Act. A tender exercise for the procurement of a prepayment card system has been completed and the evaluation
is taking place. Go live with the new offer is planned for June
2015.
Further work is continuing to develop a menu of options for

April 2015
requirement

April 2016
requirement

Added value
measure
√

√

√
√

√

435

Assessment &
Support Planning

Progress

√

√

Work stream

Resource
Allocation

Communications

Learning and
Development

people who do not wish to have their Direct Payment in the
form of a pre-payment card
Work is taking place to ensure that existing arrangements for
calculating the amount of the Personal Budget for adults with
care and support needs is compliant with the law. A new
Resource Allocation System (RAS) is planned to be introduced
to the social care records system (IAS) later in the year
following further validation work. A manual version will be
available for use until then.
A new RAS for calculating the Personal Budget for carers with
eligible needs has been developed to complement the new
assessment and eligibility tools on IAS. This is being tested
through a pilot project working with existing carers in receipt of
council services, reassessing their eligibility using the new
framework ready for mainstreaming in April.
A revised charging policy is being developed and will be
operational from 1st April 2015.
Officers are finalising the arrangements for the Deferred
Payments Scheme (revised in line with the new Care Act
requirements) – specifically around calculating the charges that
will be applied.
Briefings for staff on financial changes are being delivered by
Learning and Development colleagues through team meetings.
A communications plan for the programme has been
developed and aligned to the Department of Health radio and
leaflet publicity campaign which is currently underway.
A staff training programme across social care and finance has
been developed. Key sessions have been delivered re carers
and eligibility. Full staff briefings held in January 2015 were
well attended. Care Act champions have been identified in

April 2015
requirement

April 2016
requirement

Added value
measure
√
√

√

436

Service User
Finance

Progress

√
√
√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Work stream

Work force
development

Carers

every team
The initial modelling work has been refined and resulted in the
work force requirements for the additional duties in 2015 /16
being scoped. Approximately 60 additional staff will be
required. Recruitment is underway.
Following on from early work completed in 2014, the
programme has refined the support for carers and co-produced
(with carers) a new assessment tool and Resource Allocation
System. The carers’ pilot project is currently testing the validity
of this and will report back by the end of March 2015. Carers
respite services have been re-procured and will be in place by
September 2015. In order to ensure that carers remain
supported, the existing arrangements for providing respite
services to carers who have eligible needs will continue up to
the point when the new arrangements become operational.
Training sessions devised and delivered to all assessor staff
through February and March. Further sessions to be run in
April to pick up any staff who have not had the training.
Agreement was reached with NHS partners, Prisons Service,
Leicester City Council and Rutland County Council for a
consistent approach to custodial settings across LLR.
Arrangements are in place for assessing prisoners and final
negotiations are taking place with NHS commissioners and
providers about the co-commissioning and charging of care
and support services for prisoners. Joint training sessions for
prison and social care staff being delivered by LCC Learning
and Development colleagues across the three (LLR)
authorities.

April 2015
requirement

April 2016
requirement

Added value
measure

√

√

√

437

Prisons

Progress

√

Work stream

Progress
Officers have been working with the on-line services project
(Digital by Default) and throughout the business to improve the
content of our information offer. From 1st April improved advice
and information offer will be made available via the new
website with the Adult Social Care and Health pages being the
first to appear on the new council site.

Support and
learning for
implementation

Departmental officers and members have attended regional
events
Assistant Directors and the Programme Lead attend regular
regional meetings
Officers attend monthly national County Council Network Care
Act forums in London
Opportunities for joint working and joint production with other
councils have been explored and implemented where possible
such as joint working in prisons (Leicestershire, Leicester and
Rutland)
Good use of learning and resources from beyond the Council
has been made e.g. the use of programme resources issued
by the Department of Health, Skills for Care And the Social
Care Institute for Excellence.

April 2016
requirement

Added value
measure

√

√

√

√

438

Advice and
Information

April 2015
requirement

439
APPENDIX B

Equality & Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA)
This Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) will enable you to
assess the new, proposed or significantly changed policy/ practice/ procedure/
function/ service** for equality and human rights implications.
Undertaking this assessment will help you to identify whether or not this policy/
practice/ procedure/ function/ service** may have an adverse impact on a particular
community or group of people. It will ultimately ensure that as an Authority we do not
discriminate and we are able to promote equality, diversity and human rights.
Before completing this form please refer to the EHRIA guidance, for further
information about undertaking and completing the assessment. For further advice
and guidance, please contact your Departmental Equalities Group or
equality@leics.gov.uk
**Please note: The term ‘policy’ will be used throughout this assessment as
shorthand for policy, practice, procedure, function or service.

Key Details
Name of policy being assessed: Implementation of Care Act 2014

Department and section: Adults & Communities

Name of lead officer/ job title and Chris Housden
others completing this assessment:

Contact telephone numbers: 0116 3056947

Name of officer/s responsible for Amanda Stott
implementing this policy:

Date EHRIA assessment started: 18/11/2014

Date EHRIA assessment completed: 20/01/2015

1

440

Section 1: Defining the policy
Section 1: Defining the policy
You should begin this assessment by defining and outlining the scope of this policy.
You should consider the impact or likely impact of the policy in relation to all areas of
equality, diversity and human rights, as outlined in Leicestershire County Council’s
Equality Strategy.

1

What is new or changed in this policy? What has changed and why?
The Care Act 2014 (the Act) will have a wide ranging impact on the delivery of
social care. It will cut across most of the services delivered by Adults &
Communities and change their focus. The Government published an Impact
Assessment on 25/05/2014 (n.b. this is a general assessment not specifically
addressing Equalities legislation). This report summarised the policy
objectives as follows, to:
• Modernise the legal basis to reflect the Government's ambitions for

personalised adult care and support: Refocus the law around the person, not
the service, by enshrining new statutory principles that place the wellbeing of
the individual at the heart of individual decisions about care.
• Simplify the law into one single statute for adult social care, supported by
clear regulations and a reformed bank of statutory guidance in one place:
Develop a more transparent framework, which simplifies practice for care
professionals, reduces burdens, and empowers individuals to better
understand their rights and responsibilities.
• Consolidate all existing legislation and repeal old statute dating back over 60
years: Incorporate existing powers for local authorities where they fit with the
modern service, whilst bringing the provisions up to date and creating a new
statutory framework for adult safeguarding. Rationalise and remove
unnecessary top-down controls or restrictions to allow services to innovate
and meet the changing needs of local populations.
The principal concerns from an Equalities & Human Rights perspective are:
1. Where the Act requires us to alter or rewrite policy or strategy.
2. Where the delivery of services after April 2015 will require service users
to engage with us in new or changed ways.
The Act will take effect in two phases, the first in April 2015 includes all
provisions except for changes to the Council’s responsibility towards
Self-Funders, the change to the financial thresholds and the
introduction of Care Accounts, which will be implemented in April 2016.
Overall, the Act is a combination of consolidating existing legislation,
introducing new responsibilities (e.g. Social Care in prisons), and
2

441
enshrining existing good practice into law (e.g. carers assessment and
the establishment of Adult Safeguarding Boards)
The philosophy behind the changes will also have general impact, i.e.
* the shift from the duty to provide services to meeting needs
* the focus on prevention and delaying the need for more intensive
support
* promoting closer working links with Health and other partners
* putting people at the centre of their care and support
* market facilitation
Adjustments and additions to training and workforce provision are likely
consequences of the legislation.
2

Does this relate to any other policy within your department, the Council or with
other partner organisations? If yes, please reference the relevant policy or
EHRIA. If unknown, further investigation may be required.
The Act relates to a significant number of policy areas. LCC has identified the
following work streams which will impact on policy, strategy and services.
Carers
Eligibility
Assessment
Prevention
Resource allocation
Prisons , Approved Premises and Bail Accommodation
Market Shaping & Commissioning
Managing Provider failure
Safeguarding
Independent Financial Advice
Independent Advocacy
Information & Advice
Service User Finance
Reviews
There are also areas where policy & strategy will have to be agreed between
LCC departments or with outside partners i.e:

3

442
Learning & Development
Workforce development
Systems & Technology
Oversight & Compliance
Communications
Stakeholder Engagement
Programme Finance & Risk
Integration with Health
3

Who are the people/ groups (target groups) affected and what is the intended
change or outcome for them?
As the Act instigates a change in focus from providing services to meeting
needs, there is a potential impact for all service users and carers. However,
this is already an operating principle behind Personalisation, as already
applied to the work of the Department, and will therefore not represent a
sudden or wholesale change to everyone. The Act expresses its aims in
terms of outcomes, so there is an intention that service users and carers
should benefit by achieving clearly defined improvements to their individual
wellbeing as a direct result of interventions.
Some of the implications of the Care Act are for the whole community, i.e. the
universal provision of advice and information.
There are groups of people who are specifically covered by the Act who either
had no previous statutory inclusion, or receive a higher priority for help than
previously, i.e:
Carers
LCC has undertaken a considerable amount of recent work relating to carers,
including last year’s review of carers’ services which was subject to public
consultation. Much of this work will be relevant to the development of carers’
services under the Act’s provisions.
The Care Act sets out equivalent rights for carers as those they care for. This
includes:
•
•
•

•
•

Wellbeing principle with duties and powers to ‘meet needs’ which
replaces previous entitlements to services
Preventing, reducing and delaying the need for support
Right to assessment where there are needs for support and on an
appearance of need. The assessment must be proportionate to the
carers’ needs, goals and circumstances.
Eligibility: national minimum threshold for carers
Planning: rights to personal budgets, direct payments, personal
budgets and a support plan which carers must be involved in preparing
the plan
4

443
•
•
•
•

Charging: Carers can also be charged for care and support received
Review: Carers reviews must be timely and proportionate
Market shaping must ensure appropriate services for carers
Transition: Duty to assess young people and their carers in advance of
transition from children’s to adult services where likely to need care and
support as an adult. Regulations set out process for providing services
to adult carers of children and young carers

Prisoners
Prisoners with eligible care needs will be entitled to an equivalent level of
support as those people in the community with eligible care needs, with the
exception that Prisoners are not entitled to a carer’s assessment, to choose
their accommodation or to receive direct payments. For those prisoners who
do not meet the eligibility criteria information will be provided to them along
with prevention and wellbeing activities to help to reduce functional decline.
4

Will this policy meet the Equality Act 2010 requirements to have due regard to
the need to meet any of the following aspects? (Please tick and explain how)
Yes
Eliminate unlawful
discrimination,
harassment and
victimisation

Advance equality
of opportunity
between different
groups

Foster good
relations between
different groups

x

x

x

No

How?
The underlying philosophy the Act (as
outlined in para 2) will assist the aim of
avoiding discriminatory treatment of
protected groups by promoting individual
wellbeing and positive outcomes arising
from interventions.
Services will be designed to improve
personal wellbeing and prevent early
deterioration of physical and mental
health in vulnerable groups, thereby
improving their opportunities in relation
to those who do not require social care
services.
Meeting needs by achieving positive
outcomes should enable service users to
suffer less isolation and facilitate greater
participation is social and family life,
improving contact between users and
non - users of services.

5

444

Section 2: Equality and Human Rights
Impact Assessment (EHRIA) Screening
Section 2: Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment Screening
The purpose of this section of the assessment is to help you decide if a full EHRIA is
required.
If you have already identified that a full EHRIA is needed for this policy/ practice/
procedure/ function/ service, either via service planning processes or other means, then
please go straight to Section 3 on Page 7 of this document.
Section 2
A: Research and Consultation
5. Have the target groups been consulted about the
following?

Yes

No*
X

a) their current needs and aspirations and what is
important to them;
X
b) any potential impact of this change on them
(positive and negative, intended and unintended);
X
c) potential barriers they may face
6.

If the target groups have not been consulted directly,
have representatives been consulted or research
explored (e.g. Equality Mapping)?

X

7.

Have other stakeholder groups/ secondary groups (e.g.
carers of service users) been explored in terms of
potential unintended impacts?

8.

*If you answered 'no' to the question above, please use the space below to outline
what consultation you are planning to undertake, or why you do not consider it to
be necessary.

X

As these changes arise from primary legislation, there has to date been no local
consultation on the Act’s provisions. However, between April and July 2014 LCC
consulted widely on services for carers and prevention services during extensive
review exercises, and this work will inform our approach to the relevant provisions
in the Act.
Central Government consulted widely on the Act’s guidance and regulations, and
a number of interested bodies submitted responses. The Local Government
Association (LGA) and the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services
(ADASS) responded jointly in August 2014 (Appendix 1). The emphasis of this
response was driven by a commitment to achieving a care and support system
6

445
based around the needs of individual people and focussing on maximising
wellbeing and independence. The provisions were regarded as positive in the
following respects:
•
•
•
•
•

The overarching principles of the Act, focussing on wellbeing and
preventing, reducing and delaying needs.
The new rights for carers and the mainstreaming of carers’ issues
throughout the legislation.
The importance of personal outcomes, alongside the asset-based
approach, which underpins the national eligibility criteria.
Safeguarding receiving a statutory footing and inquiries into suspected
abuse or neglect not subject to the national eligibility criteria.
The establishment of an extended deferred payment agreements scheme
The response expressed concern about funding for implementing the
reforms, quoting from a number of sources to reflect the scale of budget
reductions over the period 2014/15/16 during which the reforms will be
considered and implemented. It’s main conclusions were:

•
•

•

•

There is a threat of cuts to frontline services, and in some cases cessation
of services altogether.
Budget reductions of the scale that social care is experiencing may affect
local authorities’ ability to shift the focus of the care and support system
from crisis response to prevention and early intervention. This is
compounded by some unknown quantities, such as the number of carers
and self-funders who will qualify for help under the Act.
A national debate is required to determine the appropriate proportion of
total public expenditure that is acceptable for supporting the wellbeing and
independence of working age disabled adults and older people (for
2014/15 this will be 2.001%).
Clarity is required around Care Act related policies to be supported through
the Better Care Fund (BCF) as this is a crucial source of funding to enable
the reforms to work.
See Appendix 1 for detail of the response to particular themes in the Act
covering some of LCC’s identified work streams, i.e.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Prevention (page 10)
Assessment & Eligibility (page 10)
Carers (page 11)
Information & Advice (page 12)
Charging & deferred payments (page 12)
IT & Informatics (page 14)
Boundary with Health (page 14)
Safeguarding (page 15)
Advocacy ( page 15)
An annexe to the Appendix highlights specific concerns, most concerning
possible underestimates of costs (page 17 et seq).

7

446
It may be necessary for LCC to undertake consultation on some of the
changes. Guidance from our Legal section is available to assist in
determining whether or not this will be required.
A public consultation is not required to implement social care in prisons
because there will be no adverse effect to service users. A period of
engagement is planned with Prisoners to involve them in the planning of
services.

Section 2
B: Monitoring Impact
9. Are there systems set up to:

Yes

a) monitor impact (positive and negative, intended
and unintended) for different groups;

X

b) enable open feedback and suggestions from
different communities

X

No

Note: If no to Question 8, you will need to ensure that monitoring systems are
established to check for impact on the protected characteristics.
Section 2
C: Potential Impact
10. Use the table below to specify if any individuals or community groups who identify
with any of the ‘protected characteristics’ may potentially be affected by this policy
and describe any positive and negative impacts, including any barriers.
Yes

Age

x

No

Comments

Older people make up a
significant proportion of
service users. It is known
that the numbers in this group
and their longevity are
increasing. Their needs and
abilities must be borne in
mind in all related services
particularly regarding access
to information & advice,
financial assessments,
advocacy, independent
financial advice, and Care
Accounts.
It is also known that some
services may be in higher
demand by younger age
groups. For example,
schizophrenia is much more
likely to emerge in the 16-25
8

447

Disability

age group than any other, and
mental health services need
to factor in and respond to
such data.
Conditions like dementia are
much more likely to occur in
older people and its incidence
is well known. Data for
conditions such as this is
critical when designing and
funding services.
Social Care is engaged across
the full spectrum of
disabilities. Problems of
mobility and access for
physically disabled people
must be taken into account.
Formats for providing
information and advice,
financial advice, and details of
modern services, which may
be technical and complex,
must take account of the
needs of people with learning
disabilities and some mental
health problems. Similarly,
people suffering from sensory
impairments are likely to have
special requirements when
accessing services.
Mental Health conditions
where significant impact lasts
longer than 12 months are
classified as disabilities
rather than illnesses and
sufferers gain protection
under Disability
Discrimination law.

x

Some health conditions affect
different groups
disproportionately. Some
examples are provided under
the appropriate protected
groups in the section.
Gender Reassignment

x

No discrimination identified at
this stage.

Marriage and Civil
Partnership

x

No discrimination identified at
this stage.
9

448
Pregnancy and Maternity

x

No discrimination identified at
this stage.

Race

x

LCC is aware of its
responsibility to ensure that
access to services is
inclusive and that steps
should be taken to redress
apparent shortfalls in use of
services, when comparison is
made to demographic data for
the County. Our approach is
outlined in the Single
Equality, Diversity & Human
Rights Strategy 2013-16.

Religion or Belief

x

As above.

Sex

x

Some services are engaged
disproportionately by men
and women. For example,
more women than men
receive Adult Social Care
services in older age groups,
as a result of longer life
expectancy and being
generally less well off. This
disproportion needs to be
borne in mind in any situation
where services are being
developed or there is a risk of
service reductions. It also
requires consideration in
services where the gender of
personal care providers may
be a factor.
For Carers’ services, a
disproportionately higher
number of women are carers
(58% in the 2001 census).
Some health factors are
known to affect men and
women differently. For
example, women are more
likely to experience
depression and eating
disorders, whereas men are
more likely to abuse drugs
and alcohol or die by suicide.
10

449

11.

Sexual Orientation

x

Preceding comments relating
to the gender of care
providers may also apply
here.

Other groups
e.g. rural isolation,
deprivation, health
inequality, carers, asylum
seeker and refugee
communities, looked after
children, deprived or
disadvantaged
communities

x

The right to a carers’
assessment is new and
should protect the interests of
this group more effectively
than previously.
Closer working with the NHS
and Public Health will provide
a good starting point for
improving Health and Social
Care outcomes.
The interests of marginalised
or isolated groups need to be
borne in mind when
considering access to and
distribution of services.

Community Cohesion

x

Are the human rights of individuals potentially affected by this proposal? Could
there be an impact on human rights for any of the protected characteristics?
(Please tick)
Explain why you consider that any particular article in the Human Rights Act may
apply to your policy/ practice/ function or procedure and how the human rights of
individuals are likely to be affected below: [NB. Include positive and negative
impacts as well as barriers in benefiting from the above proposal]
Yes

No

Comments

Part 1: The Convention- Rights and Freedoms
Article 2: Right to life

x

Safeguarding is likely to engage
this article.

Article 3: Right not to be
tortured or treated in an
inhuman or degrading way

x

All service alterations and
developments will need to bear
in mind the need to promote
personal dignity and ensure
good standards of care. The Act
defines the primary
responsibility of local
authorities as the promotion of
individual wellbeing.

11

450
Article 4: Right not to be
subjected to slavery/ forced
labour
Article 5: Right to liberty and
security
Article 6: Right to a fair trial

x

x

Safeguarding will protect these
rights.

x

All services and policies will
reiterate service users’ rights to
access the complaints system
and any rights to review or
appeal decisions as appropriate.

Article 7: No punishment
without law
Article 8: Right to respect for
private and family life

x

x

Many services will have a
central focus on preserving and
promoting the ability of
individuals to remain
independent with dignity, and
remain in the home and family
setting of their choice.

Article 9: Right to freedom of
thought, conscience and
religion

x

Article 10: Right to freedom
of expression

x

Article 11: Right to freedom
of assembly and association

x

Article 12: Right to marry

x

Article 14: Right not to be
discriminated against

x

All services and policies will be
designed to ensure that no
particular groups are
intentionally or unintentionally
excluded or disadvantaged from
accessing or benefitting from
them.

x

Promoting, preserving and
protecting independence
supports this article.
Safeguarding policy also
supports it.

Part 2: The First Protocol

Article 1: Protection of
property/ peaceful
enjoyment

12

451
Article 2: Right to education

x

Article 3: Right to free
elections

x

Section 2
D: Decision
12.

Is there evidence or any other reason to
suggest that:

Yes

No

Unknown
x

a) this policy could have a different
affect or adverse impact on any
section of the community;

13.

x
b) any section of the community may
face barriers in benefiting from the
proposal
Based on the answers to the questions above, what is the likely impact of this
policy

No Impact

Positive Impact

Neutral Impact

Negative Impact or
Impact Unknown

X

Note: If the decision is ‘Negative Impact’ or ‘Impact Not Known’ an EHRIA Report
is required.
14.

Is an EHRIA report required?
Yes

No

X

Note:
This is an overarching screening
exercise designed to introduce the
changes in an Equality and Human
Rights context. It is intended to
assist with the appraisal of EHRIA
requirements in each of the work
streams identified. While
acknowledging that impact is
unknown, it does not require a full
report as the detail necessary for
this will come within the individual
work streams. Screening in those
areas will lead to decisions about
the need for full reports.
EHRIA report writers will need to
record any disadvantages for
Protected Groups that may arise
13

452
from a failure to be compliant with
the Act as of 01/04/2015, when it
comes into force.

Section 2: Completion of EHRIA Screening
Upon completion of the screening section of this assessment, you should have identified
whether an EHRIA Report is requried for further investigation of the impacts of this
policy.
Option 1: If you identified that an EHRIA Report is required, continue to Section 3 on
Page 7 of this document to complete.
Option 2: If there are no equality, diversity or human rights impacts identified and an
EHRIA report is not required, continue to Section 4 on Page 14 of this document to
complete.

14

453

Section 4: Sign off and scrutiny
Upon completion, the Lead Officer completing this assessment is required to sign the
document in the section below.
It is required that this Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) is
scrutinised by your Departmental Equalities Group and signed off by the Chair of the
Group.
Once scrutiny and sign off has taken place, a depersonalised version of this EHRIA
should be published on Leicestershire County Council’s website. Please send a copy of
this form to louisa.jordan@leics.gov.uk, Members Secretariat, in the Chief Executive’s
department for publishing.
Section 4
A: Sign Off and Scrutiny
Confirm, as appropriate, which elements of the EHRIA have been completed and are
required for sign off and scrutiny.
Equality and Human Rights Assessment Screening X
Equality and Human Rights Assessment Report
1st Authorised Signature (EHRIA Lead Officer):
C. Housden
Date: 11/02/2015

2nd Authorised Signature (DEG Chair): ……
Date: …11/02/2015…………………………

15

454

This page is intentionally left blank

455

Agenda Item 12

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 12 MARCH 2015
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND GEM COMMISSIONING
SUPPORT PERFORMANCE SERVICE
PERFORMANCE UPDATE AT END OF QUARTER 3 2014/15
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of the report is to provide the Board with an update on
performance against current performance priorities set out in the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and Commissioner Performance Frameworks, based on
data available at the end of quarter 3 2014/15.

Background
2.

The Board currently receives a joint report on performance from the County
Council’s Chief Executive’s Department and the Greater East Midlands (GEM)
Commissioning Support Performance Service. This report encompasses:
a. Performance against key metrics and priorities set out in the Better Care
Fund plan and with progressing health and social care integration.
b. An update on key provider performance issues and performance priorities
identified in Clinical Commissioning Group Plans.
c. An update on the delivery of priorities identified in the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and key areas of adult social care, public health and
children’s health services, using a variety of related performance
measures and targets.

Better Care Fund and Integration Projects - Integration Executive Dashboard –
Appendix A
3.

The dashboard attached as Appendix A summarises current performance
against the schemes within the Better Care Fund (BCF) plan. As a number of
the schemes are still at an early stage in terms of delivery and impact the
report highlights Amber and Red issues on an exception basis. There is also a
summary of the BCF Plan key indicators and progress against delivering on
the BCF targets. Where data is not yet available for the metrics and proposed
targets the published baselines are shown.

Performance Against Current BCF Metrics
4.

New data for metric 1 (admissions to care/nursing homes – aged 65 and over)
and metric 2 (older people at home 91 days after discharge to
reablement/rehabilitation) are now available and some commentary is set out
below. Metric 3 (Delayed transfers of care) is also covered below.

456
Admissions to Care and Nursing Homes
5.

Avoiding permanent placements in residential care homes is a good indication
of delaying dependency; research suggests where possible people prefer to
stay in their own home rather than move into residential care. During the
nine-month period April to December 2014 there were 654 permanent
admissions to either residential or nursing care of people aged 65 or over,
coincidently the same as the comparable period last year. This metric is
currently on track to meet the BCF target. (N.B. Figures are currently
estimated due to the comprehensive change to computer systems and
statutory reporting to the Health and Social Care Information Centre). Good
progress is also being made on developing new extra care housing provision
across the County as an alternative to residential care.

Older People At Home 91 Days After Discharge
6.

A key measure in the Better Care Fund (BCF) is the Adult Social Care
Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) metric that measures the proportion of
people discharged from hospital via reablement services that are still living at
home 91 days later. For those people discharged between July and
September 2014, the proportion was 79.9% against the BCF target of 82%
and is currently rated ‘amber.’ Services that promote independence are a key
priority for adult social care and at the forefront of this is the Home Care
Assessment and Reablement Team (HART). The proportion of outcomes
from HART that are ‘no further needs’ is 47% and remains above the target of
44%.

Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC)
Metric

Commentary

Metric 3: No of
days of delayed
transfers of care
from hospital per
100,000 population
(average per
month)

Previous reports have highlighted increases in delayed
transfers of care both nationally and locally and the BCF
reduction metric has continued to be rated red as a result.
The number of delays on the snapshot day in December
attributable to Adult Social Care (ASC) only was 11 – this is
the fourth month in a row there has been a small reduction.
Although this remains higher than last year’s monthly average
of 5.6. In addition, the number of ‘joint’ delays has dropped to
9 in December from a peak of 21 in October. NHS delays in
December were also down from a regular monthly position in
the mid-70s to mid-60s. However, this remains higher than
the monthly average last year of 47.1. The number of delays
in December for all three attributable aspects was below the
respective year-to-date averages. (Also see paragraph 7
below).

7.

UHL also report DTOC delays based on the number of patients discharged as
a percentage of occupied bed days. As at January 15, 5.51% of patients were
delayed against a national target of 3.5%. There have been some
improvements within UHL ‘fill rates’, but delays within LPT have a knock on
affect with regards to availability of non-acute beds. Key challenges identified
by UHL include availability of packages of care within the County. Social care

457
services continue to undertake a 2 week review of all packages of care with
external agencies. Actions taken as part of hospital to home initiatives are
also reducing the wait lists and packages of care availability. Daily DTOC
calls continue to enable a focus on blocks within the system. UHL internal
discharge calls have been established and all partner organisations are
supporting this. Actions to improve the DTOC position have been covered in
previous reports and include plans to improve help for individuals to live at
home and capacity in the home care market.
Emergency Admissions and Injuries Due To Falls
8.

Work continues to obtain actual data updates fully in line with the BCF metric
definitions for metric 4 (non-elective admissions) and metric 6 (injuries due to
falls). In the meantime there are a number of other proxy indicators in the
NHS Outcomes Framework that relate to emergency admissions.

Performance against Total Non-Elective Admissions
The table below shows the monthly performance to the end of December 2014 with respect
to each of the BCF schemes which aim to support delivery against the Total Emergency
Admissions metric. The figures show admissions avoided.

SCHEME
Integrated Health
& Care Crisis
Response (ICRS)
Rapid
Assessment for
Older Person's
Unit
Rapid Response
Falls Service
7 days services in
Primary Care
TOTAL
9.

Actual Performance (to Dec14)

Target (to Dec-14)

112

99

71

58

162

0

35

34

380

191

At November 2014, for both West Leicestershire CCG and East Leicestershire
and Rutland CCG emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not
usually require hospital admissions is above the local baseline. Reduction of
emergency admissions is being picked up as part of the Quality Improvement
and Productivity Process (QIPP) with providers through contractual
arrangements. There is currently an Activity Query Notice in place with UHL
with regards to emergency admissions, as the levels of activity are
significantly higher than expected, and an action plan is being developed.
Local schemes are in place within the CCGs.

Patient Experience
10.

The BCF metric covering patient/service user experience is derived from a GP
survey asking patients whether they have sufficient support from local
services/agencies to help manage their long term condition. The most recent
data, published in January 2015, shows 62% agreement, down slightly from

458
the baseline of 64.2%. Delivery of the improvement is therefore rated amber
at this stage.
Integration Project Delivery
11.

Within the current Better Care Fund scheme delivery progress updates, a
number of issues have been noted and these are set out below.

Scheme
Commentary
Local Area
The process is going well but there is a slight delay with the project
Coordination recruitment. The LAC Project Manager post has been selected with
a start date of 16th February. The action plan will be reviewed when
the Project Manager is in post. The delay in recruitment has led to
a predicted underspend on the budget.
Assistive
There are two aspects of underspend against this scheme. £100k
Technology
relates to the core AT Team where there have been vacancies
(AT)
where recruitment has either been delayed or not taken place. In
addition to this, transition costs relating to the service transfer to
the new supplier are coming in at less than originally expected and
will result in an underspend of £250k. Further work is needed to
assess whether some/all of this underspend needs to be carried
forward to 2015/16.
Rapid
Costs relating to this service for 2014/15 are currently being
Assessment finalised, however estimated usage of the service ELRCCG is
for Older
£150k compared to an allocation of £430k.
Persons Unit
Rapid
This funding is no longer required as the scheme is now funded
Response
from CCG winter planning monies.
Falls Service
Glenfield
Due to the large number of schemes being worked on both in UHL
Hospital
and in Primary Care, it has been decided to put this project on hold
Admission
until a review of the different schemes occurring across LLR has
Avoidance
been completed. This is to prevent repetition, and ensure UHL
prioritise where best to focus their time and expertise. It is
anticipated that there will be no expenditure during 2014/15. This
will not have an impact on the emergency admissions target. The
scheme was not factored into the BCF plan’s 3.5% calculations
due to the scheme being in scoping stage at the time of the
submission.
Bed Based
A review of the original residential reablement service is required to
Reablement ensure that outcomes are being delivered in line with the scheme’s
original expectations. The review will need to consider other
options that are available.
Safe
The recommendations of the Nerve Centre have been accepted
Minimum
and next steps have been drawn up. Confirmation agreed in
Transfer
principle with UHL to proceed with the supply and installation of the
Data Set
Minimum Data Set agreed solution. Project kick off meeting was
held on 14th January 2015 with stakeholders and suppliers. Due to
progress being made, this scheme has been amended to amber.
Integrated,
Due to staff turnover in the Long Term Conditions team in the East,
Proactive
there is a predicted underspend of £105k.
Care

459
Provider and CCG Dashboard - Appendix B
12.

Attached as Appendix B is a dashboard that summarises information on
provider and CCG performance, updated to reflect changes through
‘Everyone Counts’. The Everyone Counts Dashboard sets out the rights and
pledges that patients are entitled to through the NHS. The indicators within
the dashboard are reported at CCG level. Data reported at provider level
does differ, and delivery actions indicate where this is a risk.

18 Weeks Referral to Treatment (Data is at CCG level)
13.

The referral to treatment (RTT) operational standards are 90% of admitted (to
hospital) and 95% of non-admitted patients (out-patients) should start
consultant-led treatment within 18 weeks of referral. In order to sustain
delivery of these standards 92% of patients who have not yet started
treatment (incompletes) should have been waiting no longer than 18 weeks.

14.

At December 2014, the 18 week target for admitted patients was not
achieved. West Leicestershire CCG is reporting 85.6% and East
Leicestershire and Rutland CCG is at 84.5% against a target of 90%. This is
showing an improvement from the September position previously reported.
The 18 week standard for non-admitted patients and incompletes has been
achieved. Specialty level performance is being closely monitored for all
services with focus on incompletes and clearance times to sustain
performance.

15.

UHL has indicated that admitted aggregate performance will not be achieved
in January and February 2015, but can be delivered by March 2015. Nonadmitted aggregate performance has been delivered since November 2014,
but UHL have been challenged on their expectation of sustaining this due to
increased backlog activity planned for January 2015.

Accident and Emergency (A&E) - 4 Hour Waiting Time (UHL)
16.

As at 3/2/15, 88.7% of patients were seen within 4 hours in A&E against a
target of 95%. Recent performance in January has improved and achieved
the target. Though recovery of the full year 95% target has not yet been met.
The Urgent Care Board is meeting weekly and the Urgent Care Action Plan
has been updated to reflect actions to be delivered over the next 3 months
focusing on admission avoidance, UHL and LPT flow and discharge. The Plan
has been reviewed with the NHS regional team. Daily hospital episode
escalation calls are in place and all partners are engaged in response to the
actions required. The actions and pace of response are monitored daily.

Cancer Waits – 2 Week Waits, 31 Day Wait, 31 Day Waits for Surgery, 62 day waits
from GP referral, screening services and consultant upgrade (all providers at CCG
level)
17.

At November 2014, there have been breaches of a number of cancer wait
standards for West Leicestershire CCG and East Leicestershire and Rutland
CCG. Performance issues with cancer waits are due to an increase in
referrals and the knock-on impact on 2 week waits, 31 day and 62 day

460
performance. In response the Clinical Problem Solving Group main actions
include reviewing roles and responsibilities of CCG cancer leads, improving
data quality on referrals, referral templates to be added, options for advice
and guidance to be added, improved practices to use choose and book and
improved patient education/communications to reduce those that do not
attend.
18.

A contract Query Notice was issued w/c 24 November 2014 and meeting held
with UHL Director of Performance and Cancer lead on 15.1.15. The follow-up
Clinical Problem Solving Group has been arranged for February 2015 and
discussions are due to take place with UHL regarding subcontracting and
capacity planning for 2015-16.

Cancelled Operations – Non Readmitted within 28 Days
19.

At November 2014, 96% of patients were seen against a target of 100%. This
is an improvement since reported last quarter. Various actions are in place to
improve the service including:
• Escalation of all ‘at risk’ patients re 28 day cancellation to the Clinical
Management Group (CMG).
• Ongoing work with IBM to develop IT based scheduling.
• A dedicated project manager now in post, with UHL providing further quality
related details including how many patients have care cancelled for a
2nd/3rd time, complaints arising from cancellations, how Critical Care,
Theatres, Anaesthesia, Pain and Sleep (ITAPS) Clinical Management Group
monitors patient experience and total time waiting for those patients
breaching the standard.

Mixed Sex Accommodation
20.

At December 2014, there were six breaches at UHL. This equates to two
occasions during Quarter 1. These were subject to Root Cause Analysis
investigation and UHL have taken actions to educate the relevant staff. There
were no breaches in December.

Safety Thermometer
21.

The NHS Safety Thermometer is a local improvement tool for measuring,
monitoring and analysing patient harms and “harm free” care. At December
2014, UHL is reporting 94.9% against a target of 95% which remains in line
with the national position.

East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS)
Ambulance Response Times
22.

At December 2014, all ambulance response times have deteriorated from the
position reported in September 2014. Data at CCG level for December 2014
is reported as follows:
•
•
•

Cat A (8 minutes)
Cat A (8 minutes)
Cat A (19 minutes)

Red 1 – WL 62.9% and ELR 53.72% (Target 75%)
Red 2 – WL 64% and ELR 57.19% (Target 75%)
WL 91.2% and ELR 86.77%
(Target 95%)

461

There are a number of workstreams in place to support improvement of
performance. These include work to develop a new Quality Schedule and to
develop 2015/16 Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUINs), revised
specifications for inter-hospital transfers, revised critical care transfer
guidelines ensuring linkages to the various networks in the East Midlands, and
the roll out of the EMAS data portal to Commissioners. 2015/16 proposals
being considered include increasing the usage of the Urgent Care Centres, a
further increase in Hear and Treat and See and Treat, and provision of
Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officers.
Ambulance Handovers
23.

At December 2014, 19.1% of handovers between ambulance and A&E took
place in over 30 minutes against a zero tolerance. The Emergency
Department team have been auditing all handovers on specific dates in order
to assess data quality concerns. The UHL senior team have been assessing
which system to use going forward. A working group involving UHL, EMAS,
and East and City contracts team met in December and January to take stock
of data quality issues and opportunities to improve performance. An action
plan is being developed in response. Proposals to move to a new data
capture system from April 2015 have been developed by EMAS and
supported by CCGs and are being considered by UHL.

Outcomes Framework - Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Performance
24.

The NHS Outcomes Framework covers 5 domains and a set of indicators
within each one on which CCGs are nationally accountable to NHS England
to ensure improvement. Data for a number of indicators have now been
published, and the following provides an overview by exception.

Dementia Diagnosis
25.

This indicator is to improve the number of people who have a clinical
diagnosis of dementia; it measures the number of people with a diagnosis of
dementia as a proportion of the number estimated to have the condition
(prevalence). At December 2014, there were 56.2% of patients diagnosed
with dementia for West Leicestershire CCG and 49.4% diagnosed for East
Leicestershire and Rutland CCG against a national standard to achieve 67%.

Increase the quality of life for people with long term conditions
26.

Data was released in January, relating to the quality of life for those people
with a long term condition. This is for 2013/14 only and is calculated from the
GP Patient surveys. West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire and Rutland
have not achieved their target score, however the target set is required to be
met in 2014/15. Therefore these indicators have been RAG rated as amber.
West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire and Rutland have a higher score
than the England average (England - 73.0, West Leicestershire – 75.1, East
Leicestershire and Rutland – 75.5).

462
Composite indicator comprised of (i) GP Services and (ii) GP Out of Hours
27.

This indicator relates to reducing the number of ‘poor’ responses to the patient
surveys for GP and Out of Hours services. The target set for 2014/15 was to
achieve fewer ‘poor’ responses. West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire
and Rutland have fewer ‘poor’ responses than the England average (England
score of 7.0, West Leicestershire & East Leicestershire and Rutland score of
6.9). This has been rated as amber.

MRSA
28.

At December 2014, there were no reported incidences of MRSA assigned to
West Leicestershire or East Leicestershire and Rutland CCGs. There have
however been 4 cases at UHL during 14/15.

Health and Wellbeing Strategic Priorities Dashboard - Appendix C
29.

Appendix C to this report is a dashboard summarising the performance
against key strategic health and wellbeing priorities. The priorities include
Better Public Health, Better Physical Health, improving Children and Young
People’s Health and Better Mental Health.

30.

The indicators included in each section are listed in the additional information
box and any RED exceptions are highlighted with performance commentary
against them.

Drug Treatment
31.

Indicators showing the successful completion of drug treatment for opiate
users and non-opiate users have both declined slightly between quarters 1
and 2 this year.

Smoking Cessation
32.

Smoking cessation services have recently had reduced results, which are
attributed to increased use of e-cigarettes. The stop smoking service has
been re-procured and the new provider, Quit 51, commences from April 2015.

Child Obesity
33.

2014 data regarding excess weight for 4-5 year olds and 10-11 year olds has
been published. The Leicestershire figures are very similar to 2013 and the
county remains in the top performing quartile of all authorities.

Breastfeeding
34.

The % of mothers initiating breastfeeding has reduced from 74.2% at quarter
2 to 68.7% at quarter 3. However, breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8 weeks
increased slightly over the same period.

463
Child Oral Health
35.

A survey of the oral health of five year olds was conducted in 2012 and
published in Autumn 2013. This identifies the prevalence and severity of
dental decay by measuring the number of decayed, missing and filled teeth,
this report identified the oral health of 5 years olds as an issue. Data from the
more recent Oral Survey of 3 year olds shows Leicestershire children to have
a significantly higher percentage of decayed, missing or filled teeth compared
to the national average. The figure in Leicestershire is 18.6% compared to
12% nationally.

Mental Health
36.

The Health and Wellbeing Board has identified mental health as an important
priority in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The County Council has also
updated its priorities and targets including reducing unhappiness and anxiety
scores, reducing excess under 75 mortality in adults with a mental illness and
reducing wait times for assessment/treatment.

37.

In accordance with NHS England's Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies (IAPT) team, nationally published data only is now used for
calculating the Access target. East Leicestershire and Rutland are currently
now meeting the national 15% target. West Leicestershire is close to
achievement. Developments include - self-referrals implemented, GP aided
self-referrals implemented, referrals through IAPT web portals implemented,
continued roll out of ‘Silver Cloud’ a social media based IAPT tool, final
recruitment to vacancies has taken place after the phasing out of agency staff
and building works are nearing completion which will offer a greater level of
telephone triage.

38.

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) improvements was
identified as a priority area by the Health and Wellbeing Board in November.
Waiting times from referral to treatment have improved based on recent data.

39.

The following mental health related performance indicators have been
updated from LPT Board reports

% Delayed Patients
(Mental Health)

Early intervention in
Psychosis - % newly
diagnosed cases
against commissioner
contract

Patients being delayed during discharge for the month of
December is the result of the following categories; Housing
(22%), Availability of place (no suitable alternative) (18%),
Internal/ward delay (14%). Divisional representatives are
continuing to meet with Housing Leads and Social Care
representatives from both City and County Councils and are
supportive of housing options.
Small numbers involved in the denominator for calculation of
this indicator can equate to significant swings in performance
month on month. 109.1% for the month of December is the
result of 12 newly diagnosed cases against a provisional
target of 11, the YTD position is at 116.2%.The service is
dependent on the number of referrals received into the
service and the appropriateness of the referral.

464
Recommendations
40.

The Board is asked to:
a) note the performance summary, issues identified this quarter and actions
planned in response to improve performance; and
b) comment on any recommendations or other issues with regard to the report.

Appendices
Appendix A - Better Care Fund - Integration Executive Summary Dashboard
Appendix B - Provider and CCG Performance Summary Dashboard
Appendix C - Health and Wellbeing Strategic Priorities Summary Dashboard
Background papers
Leicestershire Partnership Trust Board Papers can be found at the following link:
http://www.leicspart.nhs.uk/_Aboutus-Trustboardmeetings2015.aspx

University Hospitals Leicester Trust Board meetings can be found at the following
link:
http://www.leicestershospitals.nhs.uk/aboutus/our-structure-and-people/board-of-directors/board-meeting-dates/

Officers to Contact
Kate Allardyce and Sarah Cooke - Performance Team (Leicester & Lincoln)
Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit
Tel: 0116 295 7272, Mobile: 07795126428
Email: Sarah.Cooke@gemcsu.nhs.uk
Janine Dellar – Head of Public Health Intelligence and Andy Brown, Performance
and Business Intelligence Team Leader, Leicestershire County Council. Tel: 0116
305 6096 Email: andy.brown@leics.gov.uk

APPENDIX A - Better Care Fund - Integration Executive
465Dashboard
Better Care Fund
RAG Status Guidelines
Dimension

RAG Status

GREEN
AMBER
RED

Savings

N/A
E
GREEN
AMBER
Action plan milestones

RED
N/A
GREEN
AMBER
Finance

RED
N/A
GREEN
AMBER
RED

Impact on metrics

N/A
E

Guidelines

Notes
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important
milestones met etc

Savings on track or ahead of schedule
Savings are off track by up to -10%

Exception commentary must be provided

Savings are off track by more than -10%

Exception commentary must be provided

Savings have not yet been defined for this scheme

Exception commentary must be provided
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important
milestones met etc
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important
milestones met etc

This scheme has been identified as an enabler
Action plan development and/or milestones are on target

There are minor delays in the action plan milestones of up to
Exception commentary must be provided
30 days
There are action plan milestones delayed more than 30 days
Exception commentary must be provided
/ BP delayed
Scheme not yet due to start

Please provide a start date

Costs are on target

Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important
milestones met etc

There is likely to be an overspend / underspend of up to 10%
Exception commentary must be provided
of the agreed budget
It is highly likely there will be an overspend / underspend
Exception commentary must be provided
greater than 10% of the agreed budget
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important
Budget not set for current financial year
milestones met etc
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important
Assessed impact on primary metric(s) is on track
milestones met etc
It is likely there will be a negative impact on the primary
Exception commentary must be provided
metric(s) of up to 10%
It is highly likely there will be a negative impact on the
Exception commentary must be provided
primary metric(s) greater than 10%
Contribution to metrics not yet developed

Exception commentary must be provided

This scheme has been identified as an enabler

Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important
milestones met etc

Better Care Fund
BCF Metrics
Metric

Target

Current
data

Trend

Data RAG

G

A

This ASCOF measure relates to hospital discharges between
October and December 2014 followed by accommodation
location between January and March 2015. A rolling 6-month
performance is reported with the data shown relating to
hospital discharges between July and September 2014.
Current data shows the position at December. Target is for
March 2016

R

Current data shows the monthly average for the year to date
to December 2014. Target is for March 2016.

NA

Current data shows agreed baseline. Target shown is pay for
performance target of 644.57 for December 2015. March
2016 target is 684.78

756.2
METRIC 1: Permanent admissions of older people (aged
65 and over) to residential and nursing care homes, per
100,000 population, per year

670.39

METRIC 2: Proportion of older people (65 and over) who
were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital
into reablement / rehabilitation services

82.0%

METRIC 3: Delayed transfers of care from hospital per
100,000 population (average per month)

350.48

669.1

669.1

79.9%

79.9%

Commentary

Definitions for the measures in the Adult Social Care
Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) have been revised due to
the wholesale change to source data tables from 2014/15.
These changes require substantial work to reporting which
will be undertaken through the winter. In the interim an
alternative measure of permanent admissions has been
developed and reported. Current data shows an estimate of
the final year figure for 2014/15 based on the position at the
end of December. This should be seen as a rough estimate
due to the comprehensive change to statutory reporting to
the Health and Social Care Information Centre . Target is for
March 2016.

78.6%

406.60
406.60
361.79
METRIC 4: Total non-elective admissions into hospital
(general and acute), per 100,000 population, per month

644.57

672.31

METRIC 5: Patient / service user experience. Patients
satisfied with support to manage long term health
conditions

66.8%

62%

METRIC 6: Emergency admissions for injuries due to
falls in people aged 65 and over per 100,000 population,
per month

140.47

151.42

64%

Schemes

2

5

Improving Community
Based Prevention through
Local Area Coordination
Assistive technology

Managing the
shift to early
intervention
and prevention

Improving Community
Based Prevention through
Local Area Coordination
FINANCE

2

151.42

NA

Current data shows January - September 2014 results
published in January 15. Target is for March 2016.

Current data shows agreed baseline. Target is for March
2016.

Exception information

Schemes

ACTION
PLAN

A

168.20

A Unified Prevention Offer for Communities
JHWS Priority

62%

5

Assistive technology

Theme Lead

Exception commentary

Additional information

There is a slight delay with the project, in
Nicole Rickard particular to recruitment. The LAC manager will
start in post on 16th February.

Anne Walsh

The integration of this scheme is yet to start and
has been delayed. Amber RAG status to reflect
this.

Carers Service: A framework agreement for accessing
carer respite services for carers is currently being
developed and it is intended to have this in place as soon
Underspend forecast due to slippage in
recruitment to the LAC project manager and co- as practicable. Once in place carers’ will access support
and respite using their carers’ personal budgets.
ordinator posts, and a vacancy in the Time
Nicole Rickard Banking Project.
Assistive Technology: Transitions to the new contract
remain on track. New referrals to the service, since the
introduction of charging, continues to show an increase.
There are two aspects to the underspend
against this scheme. £100k relates to the core
Integrated Housing Solutions: The DCLG
AT Team where there have been vacancies.
Anne Walsh
Transitions costs relating to the service transfer transformational challenge bid was successful and the
Lightbulb project was awarded the full £1m. Planning for
to the new supplier are coming in at less than
the project continues. Recruitment has begun. Interviews
originally expected.
scheduled for February

METRIC

7

All projects are on track.

SAVINGS

7

All projects are on track.

Exception information

Integrated Urgent Response
Schemes

JHWS Priority

ACTION
PLAN

Schemes

1

Glenfield Hospital
Admission Avoidance

4

Rapid Assessment for
Older Person's Unit
HWBS 10:
Planning for an
ageing
population

3

2

Rapid Response Falls
Service

FINANCE

Glenfield Hospital
Admission Avoidance

466

Theme Lead

Sam Leak

Caron
Williams

Gemma
Whysall

Sam Leak

Exception commentary

Due to the review of services being undertaken
by UHL, the Glenfield Hospital Admission
Avoidance Scheme is on hold.

Costs relating to this service for 2014/15 are
currently being finalised, however estimated
usage of the service ELRCCG is £150k
compared to an allocation of £430k.

This funding is no longer required as the
scheme is now funded from CCG winter
planning monies.

Due to the review of services being undertaken
by UHL, the Glenfield Hospital Admission
Avoidance Scheme is on hold and as such, no
expenditure is anticipated in 2014/15.

5
All projects are on track.

METRIC

SAVINGS

Schemes

Schemes

Theme Lead

Exception commentary

Jackie Wright
Caron
Williams
Yasmin Sidyot

A review of the original residential reablement
service is required to ensure that outcomes are
being delivered in line with the scheme’s original
expectations. The review will need to consider
other options that are available.

Bed Based Reablement

2

11
Safe Minimum Transfer
Data Set

HWBS 11.
Maximising
independence

Safe Minimum Transfer
Data Set

3

FINANCE

8

2

Tracy Yole

Scheme is progressing and next steps have
been agreed.
The level of underspend will be determined by
the delay to the project. At this stage it is
anticipated that any underspend will roll into
2015/16.

All projects are on track.

SAVINGS

13

All projects are on track.

Schemes

1

1

Theme Lead

Exception commentary

Additional information

Continuing Healthcare

4

Integrated, Proactive Care
(Risk Stratification & Care
Management)
FINANCE

Single Point of Access (SPA): Report on feedback from
the LLR-wide workshop reviewing strategic SPA and next
steps discussed at the Integration Executive.

Exception information

Schemes

1

Additional information

Bridging Packages of Care: A new service was agreed by
The piece of work looking at capacity in the SPA the Integration Executive in December. This is now up and
will start later than initially expected. The
running and generally bridging 15-23 packages at any
allocated funding will slip into 2015/16.
given time.

TBC

13

ACTION
PLAN

Rapid Response Falls Service: EMAS falls training is
underway, positive feedback has been received regarding
the initial sessions. Operational issues have been flagged
regarding resource availability for training sessions.
SPA’s dedicated line for EMAS is now operational as per
agreed 1st November deadline.

Safe Minimum Transfer Data Set: A paper was presented
at the LLR-wide e-comms IT meeting chaired by Dr Bentley
on 13th November. An option appraisal paper had also
been tabled at the Discharge Board and the
Minor slippage in recruitment to review officer
recommendation of the nerve centre solution was
posts, & decision to initially manage the team
accepted. Discussions held with IT leads from City and
from within the existing A&C structure has led to from Leicestershire County.
this underspend.

METRIC

Integrated, proactive care for those with long-term conditions

HWBS 12.
Management
of long-term
conditions

Tracy Yole

Hospital Discharge Review Heather Pick
Team for Care Packages

Single Point of Access

JHWS Priority

Rapid Assessment for Older Person's Unit: 114 patients
seen as of 23rd January. Work to promote the service
continues, including a larger piece of work for increased
use of the Loughborough site (part of the Urgent Care
Pathways Action Plan).
Issues around transporting patients in the later part of the
day have been resolved and the service is being received
well.
Referrals from Syston Medical Practice (ELRCCG) have
been received. Further targeted work with East started on
8th Jan.

Exception information

Improved Hospital Discharge and Reablement

ACTION
PLAN

Integrated Health & Care Crisis Response Service
(ICRS): The overnight nursing assessment extension to the
service launched on 1st September. Up to the 1st January,
the night service has received 107 referrals of which 54
(55%) were cancer patients. This will be monitored as the
service continues and will form part of the evaluation, e.g.
is this identifying gaps in service provision for EoL patients,
did the intervention prevent a hospital admission, etc. The
evaluation is expected around the end of March 15.

All projects are on track.

5

JHWS Priority

Additional information

2

1
Improving Quality in Care
Homes

Caron
Staff turnover in the East Long Term Conditions
Williams
project will result in an underspend of £105k.
Yasmin Sidyot

Tracy Ward

Underspend relates to temporary variations in
employee contracts.

METRIC

5

All projects are on track.

SAVINGS

5

All projects are on track.

Improving Quality in Care Homes: QIT/Safeguarding.
New safeguarding threshold tool introduced across LLR. A
slow reduction in care home safeguarding investigations
being identified.

Exception information

Further Integration schemes
Schemes

JHWS Priority
ACTION
PLAN

1

FINANCE

1

Schemes

2

3

5

Transitions

Theme Lead

Louisa Whait

Management of LD Pooled
Louisa Whait
Budget

Exception commentary
Working with CYPS in relation to implementation
of Children and Families Act.
Risk of overspend to LD pooled budget. Early
forecasts estimate this to be c£1m, split 50:50
between the County Councils and CCGs.
Further detailed analysis to be undertaken.

METRIC

6

All projects are on track.

SAVINGS

6

All projects are on track.

Additional information

Winterbourne View Concordat: NHSE are undertaking a
care and treatment review of all patients in ATU/low secure
accommodation to be completed by end December. CCGs
are leading on this.
Transitions: Issues identified around local offer and joint
commissioning arrangements. Being taken forward by LD
Programme Board.
Joint LD Self Assessment Framework: Currently
undertaking a self-assessment for 2013/14 which will be
submitted by the end of January.

Exception information

BCF Enablers
Schemes

JHWS Priority
ACTION
PLAN

FINANCE

KEY:

Schemes

467

Theme Lead

All projects are on track.

3

1

Exception commentary

2

BCF Programme Leads

N/A

Workstream lead staff turnover will result in a
£5k underspend.

METRIC

3

All projects are on track.

SAVINGS

3

All projects are on track.

Additional information

468
APPENDIX B - Provider and CCG Performance Dashboard
Providers
Supporting Indicators

Exception Indicators

UHL

Indicator

3

Patient Experience

Referral to Treatment

1

1 2

4

Performance on track

52 Week waiters

2

Diagnostic Waiting Time

Emergency Dept. Handovers between
UHL ED & Ambulance > 30 mins

4

Emergency Dept. Handovers between
UHL ED & Ambulance > 1 Hour
12 Hour Trolley Waits

1

Delayed Transfer of Care

4

7

2

At December 2014 there were 3 instances where a patient waited
over 12 hours on a trolley in A&E

At November 2014 WLCCG is reporting 87.6% of secondary or
subsequent surgeries completed within 31 days against a target of
94%

1

1

At December 2014 4.1% of handovers between ambulance and
A&E took place in over 1 hour against a zero tolerance. Working
group addressing issues over data quality and performance
improvement. Action plan being developed.

Cancer 31 day surgery (WLCCG)

Cancer 62 day - from screening service
(EL&RCCG)

3

At December 2014 19.1% of handovers between ambulance and
A&E took place in over 30 minutes against a zero tolerance

Delays are being reported as the number of patients discharged
as a percentage of occupied bed days. As at January 15, 5.51%
of patients were delayed against a national target of 3.5%.

Cancer 62 day - consultant upgrade
(WLCCG)

Hospital Quality

As at 03.02.15, 88.7% of patients were seen within 4 hours in A&E
against a target of 95%.

UHL Delayed Transfers of Care - no. of
patients as a % of occupied bed days

Cancer 62 day - from screening service
(WLCCG)
Cancer Waiting Times

At December 2014, there were 5 instances of patients waiting
over 52 weeks on a referral to treatment pathway against a zero
tolerance

Performance on track

UHL Emergency Dept. Waiting Time < 4
Hours

ED Waiting Times

Comment

At November 2014 WLCCG is reporting 83% of patients seen
within 62 days against a target of 90%.
At November 2014 EL&RCCG is reporting 79.1% of patients seen
within 62 days against a target of 90%.
At November 2014 WLCCG is reporting 83% of patients seen
within 62 days against a target of 90%.

At December 2014 96% of patients were treated within 28 days of
Cancelled Operations - non re-admitted in their cancelled operation against a target of 100%
28 days
At December 2014, there were 2 instances of never events
against a zero tolerance
Never Events
At December 2014 there were 6 breaches at UHL. This equates to
2 occasions during Q1. These were subject to Root Cause
Mixed Sex Accommodation
Analysis investigation and UHL have taken actions to educate
staff. There were no breaches in December.

EMAS
Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 1 At December 2014 WLCCG is reporting 62.9% against a target of
(8 minutes) conditions life threatening &
75%
most time critical (WLCCG)
Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 1
(8 minutes) conditions life threatening &
At December 2014 ELRCCG is reporting 53.72% against a target
most time critical (ELRCCG)
of 75%
Ambulance Response Times

4

5

Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 2
(8 minutes) conditions life threatening &
At December 2014 WLCCG is reporting 64% against a target of
most time critical, less so than Red 1
75%
(WLCCG)
Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 2
(8 minutes) conditions life threatening &
most time critical, less so than Red 1
At December 2014 ELRCCG is reporting 57.19% against a target
(ELRCCG)
of 75%

469
LPT

4

Mental Health

Community & Other

Quality - Safe Care

1

Performance on track

2

2

1 1

3

% of Admissions Gate Kept

This data/service has been transferred from Maracis to RiO and
not all the data has been recorded accurately hence the low figure
this month. Steps are being taken for this data to be corrected
through a range of measures including training but for this to be
effective will take time. We expect an improved figure on the next
report once all errors have been addressed.

Clostridium Difficile (C Diff) Cases

The Clostridium Difficile total number of cases for LPT for
December is 1 with the year to date at 8. These are isolated
incidents which have been contained. Decembers' case was on
Fielding Palmer ward.

CCG Indicators
Supporting Indicators

Exception Indicators

West Leicestershire CCG

Indicator

Domain 1 Preventing people from dying
prematurely

1

2

Comment
Performance on track

Unplanned Hospitalisation for chronic
ambulatory care sensitive conditions
Forecast outturn at December 2014 was 726, this has declined in
(adults) per 100,000 population (WLCCG) performance and exceeds the below 704.18 local target
Domain 2 Enhancing quality of life for
people with Long Term Conditions

3

3

2

Estimated diagnosis rate of people with
dementia

At December 2014 WLCCG is reporting 56.2% of patients
diagnosed with dementia against the national standard of 67%.

Unplanned Hospitalisation for asthma,
diabetes and epilepsy in under 19s per
100,000 population (WLCCG)

Forecast outturn at December 2014 was 136, this has declined in
performance and exceeds the below 122.67 local target

Emergency Admissions for acute
conditions that should not usually require
hospital admission (WLCCG)

3

Domain 3 Helping people to recover from
episodes of ill health or following injury

Rate of emergency admissions within 30
days of discharge

Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not
usually require hospital admission is currently above the local
baseline for WLCCG. Reduction of emergency admissions is
being addressed as part of the QIPP process. There is currently
an Active Query Notice in place with UHL as the levels of activity
are significantly higher than expected, an action plan is being
developed
The forecast outturn for rate of emergency admissions within 30
days of discharge is 1514 against a target of below 1420.18

Emergency Admissions for children with
The forecast outturn for emergency admissions for children with
Lower Respiratory Tract Infections (LRTI)
lower respiratory tract infections is 193.16 against a target of
per 100,000 population (WLCCG)
below 139.09

Domain 4 Ensuring that people have a
positive experience of care

1

3

3

Access to GP Services

Patients rating their experience of access to GP services as "very
good" or "fairly good" has deteriorated from Jan 2013 – Sept 2013
to Jul 2014 – Mar 2014 for WLCCG from 77% to 75.4%.

Domain 5 Treating and caring for people
in a safe environment and protecting
them from avoidable harm

2

Performance on track

Dying at home

1

Performance on track

Psychological Therapies

1

1

Performance on track

470
East Leicestershire & Rutland CCG
Domain 1 Preventing people from dying
prematurely

Domain 2 Enhancing quality of life for
people with Long Term Conditions

1

2

2

2

4

Potential years of life lost (PYLL) from
causes considered amenable to
healthcare

The PYLL from causes considered amenable to healthcare has
deteriorated from 1678.8 in 2012 to 1701.5 in 2013 against a
target of 1625.1 for 2014/15

Unplanned Hospitalisation for asthma,
diabetes and epilepsy in under 19s per
100,000 population (ELRCCG)

The forecast outturn for unplanned hospitalisation for asthma,
diabetes and epilepsy in under 19s is 148 against a target of
below 140.6

Estimated diagnosis rate of people with
dementia

At December EL&RCCG is reporting 49.4% of patients diagnosed
with dementia against the national standard of 67%.

Emergency Admissions for acute
conditions that should not usually require
hospital admission (ELRCCG)

3

Domain 3 Helping people to recover from
episodes of ill health or following injury

Rate of emergency admissions within 30
days of discharge

Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not
usually require hospital admission is currently above the local
baseline for ELRCCG. Reduction of emergency admissions is
being addressed as part of the QIPP process. There is currently
an Active Query Notice in place with UHL as the levels of activity
are significantly higher than expected, an action plan is being
developed

The forecast outturn for rate of emergency admissions within 30
days of discharge is 1458 against a target of below 1444.3
Emergency Admissions for children with
Lower Respiratory Tract Infections (LRTI)
The forecast outturn for emergency admissions for children with
per 100,000 population (ELRCCG)
lower respiratory tract infections is 209 against a target of below
173.37

Domain 4 Ensuring that people have a
positive experience of care

2

1

1

Patients rating their experience of dental services as "very good"
or "fairly good" has deteriorated from Jan 2013 – Sept 2013 to Jul
Overall experience of NHS Dental Service 2014 – Mar 2014 for EL&RCCG from 92% to 86%, actions to
improve service quality are taking place.
Access to GP Services

Patients rating their experience of access to GP services as "very
good" or "fairly good" has deteriorated from Jan 2013 – Sept 2013
to Jul 2014 – Mar 2014 for EL&RCCG from 77% to 71.98%.

Domain 5 Treating and caring for people
in a safe environment and protecting
them from avoidable harm

2

Performance on track

Dying at home

1

Performance on track

Psychological Therapies

2

Performance on track

KEY:

APPENDIX C - Health and Wellbeing Strategic Priorities Dashboard

471

Better Public Health

Exception commentary

Priority

Reduce Health Inequalities and Increase
Life Expectancy

1

Additional information
This section includes the following indicators:
Take up of health checks by the invited population 1. Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth (Males) (Leics)
continue to be below target. There is a national
(PHOF 0.2iii)
publicity campaign aimed at increasing public
2. Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth (Females) (Leics)
awareness of checks which will have local impact. (PHOF 0.2iii)
Health Check services being re-procured along with 3. Life expectancy at birth (Males) (Leics) (PHOF 0.1ii)
efforts to encourage pharmacies and GPs to improve 4. Life expectancy at birth(Females) (Leics) (PHOF 0.1ii)
Health Check take up.
5. Take up of the NHS Health Check Programme – by those eligible
(2.22iv)
This section includes the following indicators:
1. Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular diseases (Persons per
Performance on track
100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.04i)
2. Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease (Persons per
100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.07i)
This section includes the following indicators:
1. Under 75 mortality rate from cancer (Persons per 100,000) (Leics)
Performance on track
(PHOF 4.05i)
2. % of eligible women screened - breast cancer (Leics) (PHOF 2.20i)
3. % of eligible women screened - cervical cancer (Leics) (PHOF 2.20ii)

4

Reduce Premature Mortality from
Respiratory and Cardiovascular Disease

2

Reduce Cancer Mortality

3

Healthy Weight Adults

1

Various actions and plans in place to help address
obesity.

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % successful completion of drug treatment - opiate users (PHOF
2.15i)
Changes to hospital admissions definition, new target
2. % successful completion of drug treatment - non-opiate users (PHOF
and actions aiming to take us to top quartile.
2.15ii)
3. Admissions to hospital for alcohol related causes (rate per 100,000)
(Leics) (PHOF 2.18)
Pharmacy screening has been low in previous years
and this reflects the national position. The new
This section includes the following indicators:
community based contracts will combine Emergency 1. Chlamydia diagnoses (rate per 100,000 15-24 year olds) (Leics)
Hormonal Contraception & Chlamydia Screening
(PHOF 3.02ii)
elements of service. It is anticipated that this will
2. People presenting with HIV at a late stage of infection - % of
increase the screening offer to sexually active young presentations (Leics) (PHOF 3.04)
people. GP chlamydia screening has increased
3. Under 18 conceptions (rate per 1,000) (Leics) (PHOF 2.04)
considerably in Q3.

3

Reduce the Harm of Substance Misuse Drugs and Alcohol

1

2

Improved Sexual Health

Tobacco Control and Smoking Cessation

1

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of adults classified as overweight or obese (Leics) (PHOF 2.12)

1

1

A remedial action plan has been agreed between
public health commissioners and the local service
STOP, which has attributed much of the decline to
the increased use and popularity of electronic
cigarettes (e-cigs). The stop smoking service has
been re-procured and the new provider, Quit 51,
commences from April 2015

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Prevalence of smoking among persons aged 18 years and over
(Leics) (PHOF 2.14)
2. Number of self-reported 4 week smoking quitters (Leics)
3. % of women smoking at time of delivery (Leics) (PHOF 2.03)

Better Physical Health
Exception commentary

Priority

2

Active Young People

Performance on track

2

Active Adults

1

Variety of actions underway to promote physical
activity.

Additional information
This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of physically active children - participation in more than 3hrs a week
of community sport only
2. % of physically active children - participation in more than 3hrs a week
of curriculum sport only
This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of physically active adults (PHOF 2.13i)
2. % of physically inactive adults (Leics) (PHOF 2.13ii)
3. % of adults participating in one or more sports a week for 30 minutes
or more (Leics)

Improving Children and Young Peoples Health
Exception commentary

Priority

Child Healthy Weight and Good Diet

1

1

1

This section includes the following indicators:
Peer support schemes in targeted areas to increase
1. % of mothers initiating breastfeeding (PHOF 2.02i)
rates.
2. % of mothers breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks (PHOF 2.02ii)

2

Breastfeeding and Maternity Support

Additional information

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % children aged 5 years with one or more decayed, missing or filled
Oral health promotion plan being developed including
teeth (PHOF 4.02)
training for front line staff, a range of information
2. % of children with excess weight - 4-5 year olds (Leics) (PHOF 2.06i)
materials for families and supervised tooth brushing.
3. % of children with excess weight - 10-11 year olds (Leics) (PHOF
2.06ii)

Better Mental Health
Exception commentary

Priority

2

Earlier Mental Health Detection and
Treatment

2

Earlier Detection/ Treatment of mental
health problems in children

Effective Support for People with poor
mental health

KEY:

3

1

1

Focussing on positive mental health through joint
mental health strategy.

1

2

Focussing on positive mental health through joint
mental health strategy.

The % of adults in contact with secondary mental
health services living in settled accommodation
(ASCOF 1H) was 42% during 2013/14, placing
Leicestershire in the third quartile nationally.

Additional information
This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of people with a low satisfaction score - self-reported well-being
(Leics) (PHOF 2.23i)
2. % of people with a low happiness score - self-reported well-being
(Leics) (PHOF 2.23iii)
3. % of people with a high anxiety score - self-reported well-being (Leics)
(PHOF 2.23iv)
4. Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with serious mental illness
(Leics) (PHOF 4.09)
5. Suicide rate (Persons per 100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.10)
This section includes the following indicators:
1. Emotional health of looked after children - mean SDQ scores (PHOF
2.08)
2. % of patients that received treatment in Child & Adolescent Mental
Health Services (CAMHS) within 13 weeks - (routine)
3. % of patients that received treatment in Child & Adolescent Mental
Health Services (CAMHS) within 4 weeks - (urgent)
This section includes the following indicators:
1. Average length of stay in acute hospitals - mental health
2. Number of bed days commissioned from out of county hospitals
3. Delayed transfers of care (mental health service users)
4. % of adults in contact with secondary mental health services living in
settled accommodation (ASCOF 1H)

KEY:

472

473

Agenda Item 13

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 12 MARCH 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND CARE
INTEGRATION
ADJUSTMENT TO EMERGENCY ADMISSIONS BASELINE FOR THE
BETTER CARE FUND PLAN
Introduction
1. The purpose of the report is to provide the latest situation on the current baseline
for the total non-elective admissions into hospital (general and acute) per
100,000 population and seek a decision from the Health and Wellbeing Board on
whether this target should be revised within the Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan.
Current Situation
2. At the time of submitting the Better Care Fund plan in September 2014 the target
to deliver a 3.5% reduction in the total non-elective admissions was 1,911. The
trend in non-elective admissions has shown an increase during 2014 of
approximately 6.8% when compared to 2013. This means that a 3.5% reduction
is a total of 2,041.
3. The CCGs are currently awaiting the outcome of a review by Capita which will
assess the proportion of the increased activity during 2014 which is associated
with increases in demand into the acute setting and the proportion of the activity
that could be attributable to other factors, such as changes in clinical pathways,
thresholds, coding, etc. The outcome is informing CCG contract discussions with
acute providers in terms of the scale of non-elective activity to be purchased for
the forthcoming year.
4. The level of non-elective activity to be commissioned for 2015/16 is also
informed by:
• The planning assumptions we have made for the four emergency
admissions avoidance schemes within the BCF.
• The impact of other activities within CCG operating plans/ QIPP (Quality,
Innovation, Productivity and Prevention) schemes that are designed to
reduce emergency admissions.
5. At the Integration Executive meeting on 24th February, it was agreed to propose
to the Health and Wellbeing Board that the baseline figure should be revised to
2,041 to reflect the increase in non-elective admissions, and that this figure
should be reflected in the CCG operating plans. Our confidence level of
achieving the target on current performance to date is discussed in section 3.

474
6. The Integration Executive also proposed that the risk pool of £2.84m for
contingency against not achieving the pay for performance target should remain
the same, as it was felt that this should sufficiently cover the risk.
Performance to date on BCF emergency admission avoidance schemes
7. A workshop was held in January 2015 to confirm and challenge the trajectories
for the four emergency admissions avoidance schemes, to ensure each scheme
has a credible action plan to maximise the uptake, and that any operational
barriers to delivery are highlighted and addressed.
8. In order to achieve the target for non-elective admissions during 2015, actions
have been agreed with the scheme leads to maximise the schemes’ contribution
to the overall target. These actions include:
•

Optimising the level of GP referrals to schemes (Older Persons Unit, ICRS)

•

Fully utilising the Loughborough site and for EMAS to increase conveyance of
patients to the Older Persons Unit.

•

Improving the timeliness and accuracy of activity information (falls service)

•

Expansion of the seven day pilots and a move towards a single, enhanced
approach.

9. Performance up to the end of January has shown good progress with a total of
549 avoided admissions being achieved against a planned target of 340. This is
subject to the evaluation being completed and also to the agreed actions for
each scheme being delivered. This will be monitored by the Step Up/Step Down
Programme Board on a monthly basis.
Recommendations
10. It is requested that the Health and Wellbeing Board
(a)

Approves increasing the total non-elective admission target to 2,041;

(b)

Agrees that the current risk pool remains at £2.84m.

Background Papers
Better Care Fund Plan
Officer to contact
Cheryl Davenport
Director of Health and Care Integration
Tel: 0116 305 4212
Email: Cheryl.Davenport@leics.gov.uk

475

Agenda Item 14

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 12TH MARCH 2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY
SERVICES
EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND WELL BEING
OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE – PROGRESS REPORT
Purpose of the Report
1.

At its meeting on 20th November 2014, the Health and Wellbeing Board
received a report about the progress on work to produce a multiagency approach to improving the emotional health and wellbeing of
children and young people as part of the Better Care Together (BCT)
children’s work stream and adult mental health work stream.

2.

The Board expressed concerns that the activity to date lacked
cohesion across the spectrum of services and strategies and asked the
Director of Children and Family Services to:
a) provide leadership to this work and provide a report to a further
meeting of the Board; and
b) discuss with the Independent Chair of the Local Safeguarding
Children Board and Safeguarding Adults Board, the recording of
data relating to the safeguarding of children and young people who
were patients of the Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service
(CAMHS), including data regarding adolescent suicide.

Background
3.

The emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people has
been subject to much national focus over the past few years and the
findings from the most recent reports are attached to this report as the
appendix.

4.

In Leicestershire, the Better Care Together Programme has identified
mental health as one of its 8 work streams; this work is steered by the
BCT Mental Health Group. One of the other work streams, for
maternity, neonates and children, identifies the emotional health and
wellbeing of children and young people as a priority. The focus of the
work stream is to:
a) agree a shared strategic approach to support the emotional health
and wellbeing of children and young people;

476
b) develop a single pathway to services for children and young people;
c) jointly commission services across the pathway.
This work is steered by the Child Emotional Health Strategy Group – a
sub-group of the BCT children’s work stream.
Progress to Date
5.

6.

The Child Emotional Health Strategy Group and the BCT Mental Health
Group have developed a description of the 4-Tier model of services
required to support children and young people’s emotional health and
wellbeing:
Tier 1

Universal Services – supporting all children, young people
and their families (250,000 children across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR));

Tier 2

Targeted Early Intervention Services – support for
children and families at risk of poor mental health
outcomes (up to 30,000 across LLR with specific needs);

Tier 3

Specialist CAMHS – for those children and young people
with significant/complex mental health difficulties (2,500
patients across LLR);

Tier 4

Very specialist services for those children and young
people with serious diagnosed mental illness and those
requiring inpatient treatment (up to 60 patients across
LLR).

The Child Emotional Health Strategy Group and the BCT Mental Health
Group has also developed four strategic intentions in support of a clear
pathway to services:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

Promote good emotional health and wellbeing;
Provide early and targeted support;
Establish an agreed pathway to, and between, services;
Ensure clarity of leadership to implement the strategic approach
across all stakeholders.
The strategic intentions also identify the lead agencies for each
Tier of service as follows:

Tier 1 -

All services working on a single agency basis with
children, young people and families and specifically the
Local Authority Public Health commissioners.

Tier 2 -

All services working jointly with children, young people
and families and specifically the Local Authority Public
Health commissioners, Local Authority Children and
Family Services, district councils, schools, CCGs.

Tier 3 -

CCGs.

Tier 4 -

NHS England.

477
The intention is to increase the provision of early and targeted support,
reduce inappropriate referrals to CAMHS, reduce CAMHS waiting
times, and ensure access to the right services at the right time,
including inpatient services (commissioned by NHS England to a
national specification).
7.

A number of workshop activities have taken place with stakeholders to
consider the four strategic intentions. The findings to date will be
reported back to a multi-agency meeting, involving the Local Authority,
schools, the Clinical Commissioning Groups, the voluntary and
community sector, and Leicestershire Partnership Trust which is
scheduled to take place on 5th March 2015.

8.

A number of other activities have taken place to support the strategic
intentions and their ambitions. These include:

9.

a)

a mapping exercise to capture the current services provided at
Tiers 1 and 2;

b)

a review of Tier 3 services, together with an action plan (now
agreed by the CCGs);

c)

a bid to NHS England to support the remodeling of Tier 4
services (subsequently not successful but the plan can be
moved forward nonetheless);

d)

development of a plan to establish additional support for
specialist community services to support children and young
people with eating disorders;

e)

consideration of workforce issues and the training and
development required at all Tiers to support the workforce.

In parallel to the work outline above, the LLR System Urgent Care
Board has agreed to commission an external independent investigation
into the 3 recent Patient Safety Serious Incidents (SIs) relating to
vulnerable children under the care of the CAMHS. This process will
follow the methodology set out for NHS organisations and its findings
will be relevant to the BCT work stream planning with regard to child
protection and mental health.

Next Steps
10.

Much progress has been made since the report to the Health and
Wellbeing Board in November 2014, but there is still much to do to
ensure good join up across the Tiers to ensure that service
commissioning is coherent across a single pathway. It is
recommended that the Board continues to request reports from the
Director of Children and Family Services to track the continued
progress of this project within the BCT children’s work stream.

478
APPENDIX
Better Care Together – Maternity, Neonates, Children
and Young People work stream
Emotional Health and Wellbeing pathway – national aide memoire
1.

NATIONAL OVERVIEW

1.1

TIER 1 (universal/prevention/primary prevention)
A survey1 of 1500 children aged 10 to 15 which asked about time spent on
various activities and level of subjective wellbeing, and 11 focus groups of
around 90 children aged 8-15 which explored their ideas about various
activities that might promote their wellbeing suggest that there are five distinct
categories of activity relating to learning, leisure, friendships, helping and
being aware that provide connections between children’s everyday activities
and their sense of wellbeing. These are relatively similar to the five ways to
wellbeing proposed by the New Economics Foundation2, a study of adults. It
indicates that encouraging children to engage in various activities may
enhance their wellbeing. Connecting, doing things together or spending time
with friends and family was fundamental to their wellbeing. A common thread
was the importance of autonomy, independence and choice, and the sense of
achievement and development they acquired from certain activities. The
things that prevented them from being involved in activities that contributed to
their wellbeing were: health conditions, self-belief, permission from parents,
busy schedules, money, transport, and the behaviour of other children.

1.2

TIER 4 (specialist)
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services Tier 4. Since April 2013 these
specialised inpatient services have been commissioned consistently across
the country by NHS England. A review3 of CAMHS Tier 4 Services reported in
July 2014. It made 20 recommendations - in brief:
- development of a framework for inpatient services
- adequate capacity for adolescent beds
- further work to determine sub-specialities that can co-exist in CAMHS Tier
4 Adolescent Units
- adoption of national good practice
- agree standardized referral and assessment to include out of hours
emergency admissions
- agree standardized and proactive monitoring of delays in transfers of care
- establish sustainable case management arrangements
- consider a standardized system for live reporting of bed availability
- change legislation to allow commissioners to access information
- case managers to have access to robust information management
systems to support pathway management
- consult on proposed standards including how children, young people and
families can comment and provide feedback
- consider including additional standard about environment and facilities
- address capacity issues
- short-term procurement of additional capacity followed by a longer term
commissioning plan
- consistent procedure to notify case managers when a young person is
admitted on an adult ward (with age-range appropriate services)
- establish provider networks

1

Ways to well-being, Children’s Society, 2014
Five Ways to Wellbeing, New Economics Foundation, 2008
3
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) Tier 4 Report, NHS England, 2014
2

479
- collaborative commissioning across the whole pathway
- explore other commissioning models eg pooled funding
- develop models of care across the whole pathway
- develop an adequate CAMHS workforce.
£7m has been made available to introduce these improvements and a further
£54m has been invested in the Children and Young People’s Improving
Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT) programme.
1.3

CHILD PROTECTION AND MENTAL HEALTH
In June 2014 the Centre for Social Justice published a report4 on the state of
child protection and mental health services. It found a fragmented,
underfunded and complex system which, despite numerous reforms over
many years, continues to fail some children, young people and their families.
It concluded that, in brief:
- there is a lack of comprehensive data available
- there is a lack of prioritization, identification and understanding of some
young people’s mental health issues
- there is a stark contrast between the aspiration for and reality of early
intervention meaning that some children are not seen until their needs are
acute, partly as a result of raised thresholds
- there is a lack of continuity of care
- the logistical challenges of accessing services for many vulnerable
children from chaotic families means they often do not attend
appointments
- children with conduct disorders are not afforded timely and/or appropriate
care and support
- the quality of management between child and adult mental health services
is patchy with many vulnerable young people not meeting the threshold
for adult services.

1.4

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S MENTAL HEALTH AND WELL-BEING
TASKFORCE
The government has established this taskforce to consider what changes and
improvements are needed in the current system and identify innovative and
effective solutions – it is due to report in Spring 2015. NHS England and the
DoH invited proposals from CCGs to lead and accelerate co-commissioning
arrangements for children and young people’s mental health through grants of
£75k to support local design and implementation of new models.

1.5

CHILDREN’S AND ADOLESCENTS’ MENTAL HEALTH AND CAMHS –
HEALTH COMMITTEE
The Committee reported5 in November 2014 and found, in brief, that:
- the lack of information meant that those planning and running CAMHS
services have been operating in a ‘fog’
- compelling arguments exist for early intervention, but funding is being cut.
There is an opportunity to be gained from the transfer of public health
budgets into local authorities.
- Health and Wellbeing Boards represent significant opportunities for these
issues to receive higher priority
- Increased waiting times, increased thresholds, challenges in maintaining
service quality and rising demand are challenges for many providers
- Young people and families describe ‘battles’ in accessing services with
only the most severely affected getting appointments

4
5

Enough is Enough, Centre for Social Justice, 2014
Children’s and adolescents’ mental health and CAMHS, Health Committee, 2014

480
-

Insufficient priority is being given to children and young people’s mental
health (Tier 3)
- Transition to adult services is a ‘cliff edge’
- Unacceptable variation in perinatal services that needs to be addressed
urgently
- There are major problems with access to Tier 4 inpatient services with
children and young people’s safety being compromised whilst they wait
- Often, when beds are found, they are in distant parts of the country,
making contact with family and friends difficult, leading to longer stays
- No dedicated place of safety for children meaning they are often detained
to police cells – this should be eradicated
- Concerns about quality in some inpatient services
- Concerns about the quality of education children and young people
receive when being treated in inpatient units
- Benefits of national commissioning at Tier 4 have not yet been realized
- Gap between inpatient and community services
- Peers incentives in the commissioning and funding for CAMHS need to be
eliminated to ensure that commissioners invest in Tier 3.5 services to
minimize inpatient admission and reduce length of stay
- New guidance for schools on mental health issues should be prioritized by
schools – a mandatory module for initial teacher training and other school
support staff should be implemented
- Online/e-safety should be prioritized and pathways established for
children who have experienced bullying, harassment and threats of
violence
- Further support required to help children and young people coping with
the challenges of online culture
- GPs lack confidence in dealing with mental health issues in children and
young people and require access to training
National minimum services specifications are required and an audit of
spending on CAMHS.

481

Agenda Item 15

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 12TH MARCH 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES,
LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
UPDATE ON SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES
(SEND) REFORM AND THE ROLE OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING
BOARD
Purpose of the Report
1. The report provides an update about progress in implementing SEND reform and
highlights the challenges in developing strong partnership working across health,
education, and social care professionals. It also provides information about the
guidance that has been produced for Health and Wellbeing Boards to support their
duty in relation to children and young people with special educational needs or
disabilities.
2. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:
a. Note the current progress in implementing SEND reform, particularly in
relation to the contribution made by health professionals to Personal Budgets
and joint commissioning;
b. Consider any actions that need to be taken to ensure that all partners are
contributing to the reform programme so that fully integrated and joint
working arrangements are achieved.
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2. The Children and Families Act received Royal Assent on 13th March 2014. Part 3 of
the Act outlines new responsibilities across education, health and social care for
children and young people with special educational needs and disability. This
includes a new Code of Practice which was re-issued in January 2015.
3. The Children and Families Act 2014 has major implications for how the NHS
commissioners and CCGs organises and delivers services to children and young
people who have a Special Education Need and/or Disability between the ages of 0
and 25. It has reformed the system of support across education, health and social
care to ensure that services are organised with the needs and preferences of the
child and their family firmly at the centre, from birth to the transition to adulthood.
4. It is expected that all partners will work together to deliver a person-centred
approach through:
• Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans and assessment processes;
• A Local Offer;

482
•
•
•

Personal Budgets offered in EHC plans
Mediation and dispute resolution arrangements;
Joint commissioning arrangements.

5. Included is the requirement for CCGs to:
• Commission services jointly for children and young people (up to 25) with
SEND, including those with EHC plans
• Work with the local authority to contribute to the Local Offer services available;
• Have mechanisms in place to ensure practitioners and clinicians will support the
integrated EHC needs assessment processes;
• Agree Personal Budgets where they are provided for those with EHC plans.
6. At the meetings on 13th March 2014 and 22nd January 2015, the Health and
Wellbeing Board received papers which provided information about the Children
and Families Act and within it, the revised Code of Practice for Special Educational
Needs and Disability.
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/398815/SEND_Code_of_Practice_January_2015.pdf

7. On 22nd January 2015 the Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to consider the key
questions outlined in the Department of Health’s guidance and the Disabled
Children’s Charter which is linked to the same document. Appendix 1 to this report
covers the key questions and Appendix 2a/2b is the Disabled Children’s Charter
and accompanying guidance.
Background
8. Leicestershire places a high priority on improving the outcomes and raising
aspirations for all children and young people aged 0-25 with special
educational needs and disabilities. In line with national statistics, approximately
20% of school age children and young people are identified as having a special
educational need and/or disability. The vision for all children is that they live in
safe and thriving communities where they enjoy good health and wellbeing
and achieve their potential.
9. The reform has been planned in two phases. Phase One focused on meeting the
initial milestones for September 2014. These were met and this was reported to the
Board in January 2015. Phase Two is a longer period of time focusing on the
cultural shift which underpins the reform. Fundamental to the success is the joint
working and accountability of health, education and social care professionals at
strategic and operational level.
10. Across the 0-25 group of young people there is a diverse range of health needs,
which those with long term health conditions, autism, sensory impairments, and
mental health issues. It will also include children and young people with multiple
and complex needs who may be dependent on technology, those with behaviour
that challenges, and those with a life-threatening or life-limiting condition.
11. Meeting these health needs requires a range of different health services. The
emphasis on creating a system whereby integrated services for children support
them to make decisions about their own care and adequately support them during
the transition to adult services. The Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes

483
Report1 highlighted the need to improve services for children and young people in
England, and to make sure health partners work closely alongside education and
social care services to provide the right support where and when children, young
people and their families need it. The SEND Code of Practice states;‘3.64 Local authorities and CCGs should consider how best to integrate the
commissioning of services for children and young people who have SEN with the
CCG’s broad responsibility for commissioning health services for other groups,
including preventative services, and the local authority’s responsibility for health
protection and health improvement for the local population.’
Key Progress Points and Challenges
12. The key priorities for SEND reform are on track as was reported to the Board in
January, including the conversion of education, health and care plans, the
development of the local offer, access to information, advice, mediation and dispute
resolution. This paper focuses on are personal budgets and joint commissioning.
Personal Budgets
13. In Leicestershire, from 1st September 2014, access to a Personal Budget is based
on existing policies for direct payments with health, children and family services and
adults and community services. It is anticipated that an early offer for personal
budgets will be SEN transport.
14. The longer term vision is to develop a model that reflects the aspirations of the Care
Act. This needs to be aligned to the development of a whole life approach to ensure
a seamless pathway for children and young people into adulthood. The challenges
that are currently being faced are:
a. The limited availability and reliability of unit cost data;
b. The inflexibility of existing commissioning arrangements;
c. Growing the provider market appropriately and sufficiently to meet family-led
demand;
d. Releasing the school-based funding;
e. Promoting the use of personal budgets amongst the health workforce.
15. Research from the Department for Education Pathfinder evaluation indicates that
the concept of a Personal Health Budget remains relatively new. In Leicestershire
this offer has been restricted to children in receipt of NHS Continuing Care and in
most cases budgets appear to have been offered on an ad hoc basis. Limited
progress has been made in this area and the challenge of establishing a single,
holistic personal budget is significant. It is difficult to demonstrate that there are
clear steps being taken to work together across education, health and social care at
the present time. Ongoing discussions are taking place through legal services to
understand the issues relating to the operation of the National Framework for
children’s continuing care and the progress towards a more co-ordinated protocol.

1

Department of Health (2013), Better Health Outcomes for Children and Young People: Our Pledge

484
Joint Commissioning
16. Councils are required to establish joint commissioning arrangements with partners
responsible for commissioning health services in the council area. Local authorities,
CCGs and other partners must work together to assess the needs of the local
population of children and young people with SEND and plan and commission
services for them jointly.
17. In March 2014 the Health and Wellbeing Board agreed that the local authority,
CCGs and NHS England will work together with parents/carers and partners at a
strategic level to develop an integrated approach. Health commissioners are now
members of the SEND project board and a group of health, social care, and
education lead commissioners has been established. Work has begun to collate
existing service outcomes/targets for services across all three areas in order to
focus on narrowing the attainment gap. These outcomes of this analysis will for part
of the joint strategic needs assessment.
18. The Joint Commissioning Strategy is being drawn up in collaboration with health,
social care and education commissioning leads. A representative from adult health
commissioning has yet to be identified, which means that this work is making limited
progress.
19. A key challenge for joint commissioning and personal budgets is the combined
commitment and ownership of the work which is fundamental to establishing the
conditions for a cultural shift for future ways of working.
20. The Department of Health guidance provides additional information about CCG
commissioning plans. A set of questions on Page 18 of the Department of Health’s
guidance provides a useful self-evaluation tool.
Evaluating the roles and responsibilities of the Health and Wellbeing Board in
relation to children with special educational and complex needs
21. At its meeting on 22nd January 2015, the Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to
consider the questions in the document which has been published by the
Department for Health - Children with Special Educational and Complex needs:
Guidance for Health and Wellbeing Boards. These invite the Board to consider how
it supports children and young people with SEND locally. A number of the questions
reflect the statutory requirements on Health and Wellbeing Boards under section
193 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 (to involve local people in preparing
joint strategic needs assessments). Appendix 1, as stated earlier, provides these
questions and, in addition, those posed to CCGs regarding commissioning plans.
22. These questions make reference to the Disabled Children’s Charter. The Charter
requests that the Board provides evidence about its commitment to working in
partnership to improve the quality of life and outcomes for disabled children, young
people and their families. The guidance document suggests that the Board is
encouraged to sign the Charter. It is not clear whether other Boards have chosen to
do so.

485
Proposals/Options
23. It is proposed that further reports are presented to the Board in partnership with
health and social care professionals, where appropriate and that these reports
provide assurance of the progress being made towards establishing more coherent
and cohesive joint working arrangements.
Conclusions
24. The Health and Wellbeing Board provides the governance for a number of
interdependent projects/workstreams relating to improving the outcomes of children
with learning disabilities and/or complex needs. SEND reform has made a good
start and this has been confirmed by the external validation from the Department for
Education in meetings with senior officers. The Board should be assured that SEND
reform is on track and making expected progress. The challenge now is to create a
step change in developing a greater sense of shared ownership and commitment
from all three groups of professionals. Linking this work into the whole life approach
and the appropriate Better Care Together workstreams is critical to ensure that the
children and families in need of support are able to access this at the appropriate
time to improve outcomes.
Background Papers
Children with special educational and complex needs: Guidance for Health and Wellbeing
Boards (Department of Health, September 2014)
0 – 25 SEND code of practice: a guide for health professionals (Department for Education,
September 2014)
Officers to Contact
Gillian Weston, Assistant Director – Education, Learning and Skills
Telephone: 0116 305 7813
Email: gillian.weston@leics.gov.uk
Chris Bristow, Head of Strategy, SEND Reform
Telephone: 0116 305 6767
Email: chris.bristow@leics.gov.uk
Appendices
Appendix 1 – Questions to Health and Wellbeing Boards extracted from the Department of
Health’s guidance document: Children with special educational and complex needs
Appendix 2 – The Disabled Children’s Charter and accompanying guidance

486

This page is intentionally left blank

487
Appendix 1

Children with special educational and complex needs
Questions about how the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) supports children
and young people with special educational needs and disability

1. Does the HWB have a designated children’s lead, with agreed responsibilities in
relation to the health and well-being of local children and young people?
2. Has the HWB considered or adopted the Disabled Children’s Charter?
3. Does the HWB have a specific policy or position statement in relation to how it
intends to support the needs of local children and young people (other than the
JHWS), e.g. through influencing commissioning plans?
4. How does the HWB ensure that the views of young people are considered in
strategy development, including the JSNA?
5. How does the HWB engage with local children and young people with a range of
experiences and conditions, to inform its role?
6. Does the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy specifically refer to children and
young people with complex health needs or special educational needs?
7. To what extent are the needs of children and young people with complex health
needs or special educational needs already addressed in existing multiagency
strategies and plans?
8. What existing arrangements are there locally for consulting with children, young
people and their families and carers and what can the HWB learn from existing
information?
In responding to the questions, note any actions that need to be taken, including
timescale and responsible lead.

488
Appendix 1

Children with special educational and complex needs
Questions to consider in relation to CCG commissioning plans
1. Do plans refer to special educational needs, or learning disability?
2. Do plans refer to specific children’s complex conditions – either in general, or
specific conditions? If not, how is the CCG intending to meet the needs of
children with a complex condition?
3. Do plans include provision for community based services for children and
integrated pathways?
4. Is it apparent how the plans have been quality assured? Or how young people
and their families have been consulted or otherwise involved in their
development?
5. Do plans include specific reference to the JSNA, and the priorities in the JHWS?
If not, do plans attempt to quantify local demand, or the volume of services to be
commissioned?
6. Do plans indicate the rationale for commissioning decisions? Do they indicate the
outcomes to be delivered for children and young people?
7. How has the CCG engaged with children and young people with SEND and
complex conditions?
8. Does the CCG measure its performance against specific outcome measures for
children? Does it publish local metrics on outcomes for children?
9. How has the CCG planned for, and delivered, a comprehensive local offer for
children with SEN?

489

!"#$%&'()*+"&(,'-.#)*+$,/',
!"#$%&'()*$'+,$-&((.&/+0$1"'#,2
!"#$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$!"#$%&'#()'*"$$+",(-'./#0)$%&$'())%**#+$*($%),-(.%/0$
*"#$1234%*5$(6$4%6#$3/+$(2*'()#&$#7,#-%#/'#+$85$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/9$5(2/0$,#(,4#$3/+$*"#%-$
63)%4%#&9$%/'42+%/0$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$:%*"$&,#'%34$#+2'3*%(/34$/##+&$3/+$"#34*"$
'(/+%*%(/&;$<#$:%44$:(-=$*(0#*"#-$%/$,3-*/#-&"%,$:%*"$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#9$
3/+$*"#%-$63)%4%#&$*($%),-(.#$2/%.#-&34$3/+$&,#'%34%&#+$&#-.%'#&9$3/+$#/&2-#$*"#5$-#'#%.#$*"#$
&2,,(-*$*"#5$/##+9$:"#/$*"#5$/##+$%*;$>%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$:%44$8#$&2,,(-*#+$
            
   
  
&($*"3*$*"#5$'3/$4#3+$(-+%/3-5$4%.#&;
.1'2)#%"'3,%&,('4'1"#0'/5'6,-(,(-'%&"'7&#0%"08'/90'!"#$%&'#()'*"$$+",(-'./#0)'3,$$'
:0/;,)"'";,)"(<"'%&#%=
4;$$<#$"3.#$)"%#,$")'#()'#<<90#%"',(5/0>#%,/($(/$*"#$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$$
5(2/0$,#(,4#$4%.%/0$%/$(2-$3-#39$3/+$,-(.%+#$,284%'$%/6(-)3*%(/$(/$"(:$:#$,43/$$
*($)##*$*"#%-$/##+&
?;$$<#$"(-#-"'),0"<%$1'3,%&'),6#+$")'<&,$)0"('#()'1/9(-':"/:$"$3/+$*"#%-$$
,3-*%'%,3*%(/$%&$#)8#++#+$%/$*"#$:(-=$(6$(2-$?#34*"$3/+$<#448#%/0$@(3-+
@;$$<#$"(-#-"'),0"<%$1'3,%&':#0"(%'<#0"06$(6$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$
3/+$*"#%-$,3-*%'%,3*%(/$%&$#)8#++#+$%/$*"#$:(-=$(6$(2-$?#34*"$3/+$<#448#%/0$@(3-+
A;$$<#$&#*$<$"#0'6%0#%"-,<'/9%</>"6$6(-$(2-$,3-*/#-&$*($)##*$%/$-#43*%(/$*($+%&384#+$
'"%4+-#/9$5(2/0$,#(,4#$3/+$*"#%-$63)%4%#&9$)(/%*(-$,-(0-#&&$*(:3-+&$3'"%#.%/0$$
*"#)$3/+$"(4+$#3'"$(*"#-$*($3''(2/*
B;$$<#$:0/>/%"'"#0$1',(%"0;"(%,/($3/+$&2,,(-*$6(-$&)((*"$*-3/&%*%(/&$8#*:##/$$
'"%4+-#/$3/+$3+24*$&#-.%'#&$6(-$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#
C;$$<#$:(-=$:%*"$=#5$,3-*/#-&$*($6%0"(-%&"(',(%"-0#%,/($8#*:##/$"#34*"9$&('%34$'3-#$$
3/+$#+2'3*%(/$&#-.%'#&9$3/+$:%*"$&#-.%'#&$,-(.%+#+$85$:%+#-$,3-*/#-&
D;$$<#$,-(.%+#$</&"6,;"'-/;"0(#(<"$3/+$4#3+#-&"%,$3'-(&&$*"#$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$
5(2/0$,#(,4#A&$30#/+3$85$4%/=%/0$#66#'*%.#45$:%*"$=#5$,3-*/#-&
0"1-'()%2
34#"/"4-5)*+$",)46)7'$&/+)$-()8'&&%'"-1)94$,(:

!$/'

F4,)1<"($-?')4-)G''/"-1)/+'#')?4GG"/G'-/#=)H&'$#'),'$()/+')$??4GH$-2"-1)(4?<G'-/5)8+2)#"1-)/+')*+$,/',I)

AB',2)!"#$%&'()*+"&()C$//',#)DA!*CE$/2$)*&$3'A5'/0+$)"$0&)$#/0*)2$'+,$>72)/3&$!"#$&6&#4$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,:$
N)$*'2$.&&+$2&)$75$.4$!"7#$(&',/+0$"#0'+/2')/"+2$<"#L/+0$</)*$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,#&+$'+,$)*&/#$!'A/(/&2$O$
E"+)'3)$'$K'A/(4?$)*&$E"7+3/($!"#$P/2'.(&,$E*/(,#&+?$Q&+3'5$'+,$)*&$B5&3/'($D,73')/"+'($E"+2"#)/7A:$
DPEQ$/2$*"2)&,$.4$)*&$R')/"+'($E*/(,#&+M2$17#&'7?$E*'#/)4$#&0/2)#')/"+$+7A.&#F$GSHHGS:$
;+')*+"&(,'-.#);,<#/=);$(>4,/+$/2$'$+')/"+'($3*'#/)4$5#"6/,/+0$25&3/'(/2)$2&#6/3&2$
)"$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,#&+$'+,$4"7+0$5&"5(&$'3#"22$)*&$89:$;*&2&$2&#6/3&2$/+3(7,&$
#&*'./(/)')/"+$'+,$2755"#)$!"#$3*/(,#&+$</)*$'3=7/#&,$.#'/+$/+>7#4?$&@5&#)$+7#2/+0$
3'#&$!"#$3*/(,#&+$</)*$3"A5(&@$*&'()*$+&&,2?$'+,$#&2/,&+)/'($&,73')/"+$!"#$575/(2$
</)*$5#"!"7+,$'+,$A7()/5(&$(&'#+/+0$,/!!/37()/&2$')$;*&$B3*""($!"#$C#"!"7+,$
D,73')/"+:$E*'#/)4$#&0/2)#')/"+$+7A.&#F$GHHIJH:$K/+,$"7)$A"#&$'."7)$)*&$<"#L$"!$
;*&$E*/(,#&+M2$;#72)?$;',<"#)*$'))>>>:/+'?+"&(,'-#/,<#/:4,1:<@

490

This page is intentionally left blank

491

:K\VLJQWKH'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQ¶V&KDUWHUIRU+HDOWK
DQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGV"
%HQH¿WVWR+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVRIVLJQLQJWKH&KDUWHU
DQGPHHWLQJLWVFRPPLWPHQWV

3XEOLFO\DUWLFXODWHDYLVLRQIRULPSURYLQJWKHTXDOLW\RIOLIHDQGRXWFRPHVIRU
GLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

8QGHUVWDQGWKHWUXHQHHGVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLU
IDPLOLHVLQ\RXUORFDODUHDDQGKRZWRPHHWWKHP

+DYHJUHDWHUFRQ¿GHQFHLQWDUJHWLQJLQWHJUDWHGFRPPLVVLRQLQJRQWKHQHHGV
RIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

6XSSRUWDORFDOIRFXVRQFRVWHIIHFWLYHDQGFKLOGFHQWUHGLQWHUYHQWLRQVWR
GHOLYHUORQJWHUPLPSDFWV

%XLOGRQORFDOSDUWQHUVKLSVWRGHOLYHULPSURYHPHQWVWRWKHTXDOLW\RIOLIHDQG
RXWFRPHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

'HYHORSDVKDUHGORFDOIRFXVRQPHDVXULQJDQGLPSURYLQJWKHRXWFRPHV
H[SHULHQFHGE\GLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

 'HPRQVWUDWHKRZ\RXUDUHDZLOOGHOLYHUWKHVKDUHGDPELWLRQVRIWKHKHDOWK

V\VWHPVHWRXWE\WKH*RYHUQPHQWLQµ%HWWHU+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RU&KLOGUHQ

DQG<RXQJ3HRSOH2XU3OHGJH¶IRUDNH\JURXSRIFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH

:KRDUHZHWDONLQJDERXW"

7KH 'LVDEOHG &KLOGUHQ¶V &KDUWHU IRU +HDOWK DQG :HOOEHLQJ %RDUGV DQG WKLV DFFRPSDQ\LQJ
GRFXPHQW KDYH EHHQ GHYHORSHG WR VXSSRUW +HDOWK DQG :HOOEHLQJ %RDUGV +:%V  PHHW WKH
QHHGV RI DOO FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH ZKR KDYH GLVDELOLWLHV VSHFLDO HGXFDWLRQDO QHHGV

6(1  KHDOWK FRQGLWLRQV DQG WKHLU IDPLOLHV ,Q WKLV GRFXPHQW ZKHQ ZH WDON DERXW GLVDEOHG

FKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZHDUHUHIHUULQJWRDOOWKHFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQWKLVJURXS

'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK  %HWWHU+HDOWK2XWFRPHVIRU&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH2XU
3OHGJH

492

Commitment 1: We have detailed and accurate information
on the disabled children, young people and their families
living in our area, and provide public information on how we
plan to meet their needs
6WDWXWRU\GULYHUV

+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH$FW

'XW\WRSUHSDUHDVVHVVPHQWRIQHHGV -61$ LQUHODWLRQWRORFDODXWKRULW\DUHDDQG
KDYHUHJDUGWRJXLGDQFHIURP6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWH

,QIRUPDWLRQ

7KHTXDOLW\RIGDWDDQGLQIRUPDWLRQXVHGWRXQGHUSLQWKHSODQQLQJFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGGHOLYHU\

RIVHUYLFHVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWKYHU\FRPSOH[QHHGVLVRIWHQSRRU7KHGLI¿FXOW\
RI GHYHORSLQJ DFFXUDWH UREXVW GDWD LQ D VWDQGDUG IRUPDW DERXW GLVDEOHG FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ

SHRSOH LV DQ HQGXULQJ LVVXH IRU ORFDO DUHDV DQG IRU QDWLRQDO DJHQFLHV 5HOLDEOH SHUIRUPDQFH
LQIRUPDWLRQ DERXW WKH XVH DQG YDOXH RI VHUYLFHV LV FULWLFDO WR FRPPLVVLRQLQJ GHFLVLRQV 7KH

&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXPLGHQWL¿HGWKHODFNRIDFFXUDWHGDWDDVWKH
VLQJOHELJJHVWFKDOOHQJHLQUHODWLRQWRWKHGHYHORSPHQWRIRXWFRPHVIRUFKLOGUHQZLWKORQJWHUP
KHDOWKFRQGLWLRQVGLVDELOLWLHVDQGOLIHOLPLWLQJFRQGLWLRQV

,Q0DUFKWKH&4&UHOHDVHGDUHSRUWHQWLWOHGµ+HDOWKFDUHIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJ
SHRSOH¶7KLV UHSRUW JDYH GHWDLOV RI SULPDU\ FDUH WUXVW 3&7  UHSOLHV WR D VHOI DVVHVVPHQW
TXHVWLRQQDLUHRQVHUYLFHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ

3&7VGHPRQVWUDWHGDQH[WUHPHO\ZRUU\LQJODFNRIDZDUHQHVVRIWKHQHHGVRIORFDOGLVDEOHG
FKLOGUHQ

)LYH3&7VFODLPHGWKDWQRGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHOLYHGLQWKHLUDUHD

)LIW\¿YH3&7VGLGQRWPRQLWRUZKHWKHUVHUYLFHVDOORFDWHGDVDUHVXOWRI&RPPRQ
$VVHVVPHQW)UDPHZRUNZHUHGHOLYHUHG

6L[W\WKUHH3&7VGLGQ¶WNQRZKRZPDQ\FKLOGUHQZHUHUHIHUUHGIRUPDQXDO

ZKHHOFKDLUVDQGQLQHVDLGFKLOGUHQZHUHZDLWLQJRYHUZHHNVIRUZKHHOFKDLUV

)LIWHHQ3&7VVDLGWKH\GLGQ¶WSURYLGHVKRUWEUHDNVVHUYLFHV

'XHWRWKHODFNRIUHOLDEOHGDWDRQGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHWKHLUVWUDWHJLFLQYROYHPHQW
DQGWKDWRIWKHLUSDUHQWVLVHVVHQWLDOWRJDLQDJRRGXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHSUR¿OHRIWKLVJURXS

&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP  5HSRUWRIWKHORQJWHUP
FRQGLWLRQVGLVDELOLW\DQGSDOOLDWLYHFDUHVXEJURXSS

&DUH4XDOLW\&RPPLVVLRQ  +HDOWKFDUHIRU'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH

493

DQGWKHSDUWLFXODUFKDOOHQJHVDQGH[SHULHQFHVWKH\IDFH7KHLUYLHZVUHPDLQXQGHUUHSUHVHQWHG
LQVXUYH\VDQGSXEOLFDQGSDWLHQWLQYROYHPHQWLQWKHKHDOWKVHUYLFH

0HHWLQJ1HHGV

2QHRIWKHSULPDU\WRROV+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVKDYHWRGULYHVWUDWHJLFFRPPLVVLRQLQJLQ

WKHLUDUHDVLVWKH-RLQW6WUDWHJLF1HHGV$VVHVVPHQW -61$ 7KH-61$ZLOODVVHVVWKHFXUUHQWDQG
IXWXUHKHDOWKDQGFDUHQHHGVDQGDVVHWVRIDORFDOSRSXODWLRQDQGZLOOXQGHUSLQD-RLQW+HDOWK

DQG:HOOEHLQJ6WUDWHJ\ -+:6 ,WZLOOLQWHUSUHWDYDLODEOHGDWDWRGHYHORSDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRI
WKHFDXVHVRIKHDOWKLQHTXDOLWLHVDQGDQDUUDWLYHRIWKHHYLGHQFH

7KH -61$ FDQ RQO\ EH DQ HIIHFWLYH WRRO IRU HYLGHQFHEDVHG GHFLVLRQ PDNLQJ LI LW LV EDVHG RQ
DFFXUDWHDQGPHDQLQJIXOGDWD7KHERGLHV+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVGHOHJDWHFROOHFWLQJGDWD

WRDVSDUWRIWKH-61$SURFHVVPXVWIRFXVRQLPSURYLQJWKHTXDOLW\DQGVFRSHRILQIRUPDWLRQ
RQGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZKLFKWKH\XVHLQFOXGLQJDYDLODEOHQDWLRQDOGDWDVHWV
ORFDO LQIRUPDWLRQ VRXUFHV VXFK DV GDWD IURP &RPPRQ $VVHVVPHQW )UDPHZRUNV TXDOLWDWLYH
LQIRUPDWLRQIURPGLUHFWHQJDJHPHQWZLWKVHUYLFHXVHUV

7KH -61$ SURFHVV PXVW GHYHORS DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI WKH ORFDO SRSXODWLRQ ZKLFK LV

VXI¿FLHQWO\ GLIIHUHQWLDWHG WR XQGHUVWDQG WKH QHHGV RI DOO JURXSV RI FKLOGUHQ SDUWLFXODUO\

WKRVH ZKR IDFH WKH JUHDWHVW LQHTXDOLWLHV RU H[SHULHQFH PXOWLSOH GLVDGYDQWDJHV

+RZWRPHHW\RXU&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQWV

,QRUGHUWRIXO¿OWKLVFRPPLWPHQWZHZRXOGH[SHFWD+:%WREHDEOHWRSURYLGHWKH
IROORZLQJHYLGHQFH
 7KHIXOOUDQJHRIVRXUFHVRILQIRUPDWLRQFROOHFWHGRQGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJ
SHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVZKLFKZLOOEHXVHGWRLQIRUPWKH-61$SURFHVV

 7KHTXDOLW\DVVXUDQFHSURFHVVXVHGWRHQVXUHWKDWLQIRUPDWLRQDQGGDWDRQ
GLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVXVHGWRLQIRUPFRPPLVVLRQLQJLV
VXI¿FLHQWO\GHWDLOHGDQGDFFXUDWH
 7KHZD\LQZKLFKWKH-61$ZLOOEHXVHGWRDVVHVVWKHQHHGVRIORFDOGLVDEOHG
FKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

 7KHZD\LQZKLFKLQIRUPDWLRQRQDQ\KDUGWRUHDFKJURXSVLVVRXUFHGDQGDFWLRQ
WDNHQWRDGGUHVVDQ\JDSVRILQIRUPDWLRQZLWKUHJDUGWRORFDOGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ
\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV
 7KHZD\LQZKLFKGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVDUH
VWUDWHJLFDOO\LQYROYHGLQLGHQWLI\LQJQHHGDQGHYLGHQFHDQGIHHGEDFNRQWKHLU
H[SHULHQFHVLVXVHGWRLQIRUPWKH-61$SURFHVV

 3XEOLFLQIRUPDWLRQRQKRZWKH+:%ZLOOVXSSRUWSDUWQHUVWRFRPPLVVLRQ
DSSURSULDWHO\WRPHHWWKHQHHGVRIORFDOGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLU
IDPLOLHV

494
.H\UHVRXUFHVIRUPHHWLQJWKLV&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQW
6WDWXWRU\*XLGDQFHRQ-RLQW6WUDWHJLF1HHGV$VVHVVPHQWVDQG-RLQW+HDOWKDQG
:HOOEHLQJ6WUDWHJLHV

6WDWXWRU\JXLGDQFHWRVXSSRUW+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVDQGWKHLUSDUWQHUVLQ
XQGHUVWDQGLQJWKHGXWLHVDQGSRZHUVLQUHODWLRQWR-RLQW6WUDWHJLF1HHGV$VVHVVPHQWVDQG
-RLQW+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ6WUDWHJLHV

1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ2SHUDWLQJSULQFLSOHVIRU-RLQW6WUDWHJLF1HHGV$VVHVVPHQWVDQG
-RLQW+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ6WUDWHJLHV

3DSHUGHVLJQHGWRVXSSRUWDUHDVWRGHYHORSVXFFHVVIXO-RLQW6WUDWHJLF1HHGV$VVHVVPHQWV
DQG-RLQW+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ6WUDWHJLHV

&KLOGDQG0DWHUQLW\+HDOWK2EVHUYDWRU\VXSSRUWIRUFRPPLVVLRQHUV

+HOSWR¿QGWKHULJKWWRROVGDWDDQGHYLGHQFHWRUHYLHZSODQDQGLPSURYHVHUYLFHVLQ
\RXUORFDODUHD

&KLOGDQG0DWHUQLW\+HDOWK2EVHUYDWRU\WRROVDQGGDWD

&KL0DWSURYLGHVHDV\DFFHVVWRDZHDOWKRIGDWDLQIRUPDWLRQDQGLQWHOOLJHQFHWKURXJKD
UDQJHRIRQOLQHWRROVGHVLJQHGWRVXSSRUWGHFLVLRQPDNLQJ

5LJKWFDUH  1+6$WODVRI9DULDWLRQLQ+HDOWKFDUHIRU&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ$GXOWV

9DULDWLRQVDFURVVWKHEUHDGWKRIFKLOGKHDOWKVHUYLFHVSURYLGHGE\1+6(QJODQGDUH
SUHVHQWHGWRJHWKHUWRDOORZFOLQLFLDQVFRPPLVVLRQHUVDQGVHUYLFHXVHUVWRLGHQWLI\SULRULW\
DUHDVIRULPSURYLQJRXWFRPHTXDOLW\DQGSURGXFWLYLW\

/*$  -RLQW6WUDWHJLF1HHGV$VVHVVPHQW'DWD,QYHQWRU\

2IIHUVSUDFWLFDOKHOSWRFRXQFLOVFOLQLFDOFRPPLVVLRQLQJJURXSVDQGRWKHUPHPEHUVRI
KHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUGV

&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP  0DNLQJGDWDDQG
LQIRUPDWLRQZRUNIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH

)DFWVKHHWRQPDNLQJGDWDDQGLQIRUPDWLRQZRUNIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQFOXGLQJ
UHVRXUFHV

&RQWDFW$)DPLO\  +HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVPDNLQJWKHFDVHWRWDUJHW
GLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQVHUYLFHV

%ULH¿QJIRU3DUHQW&DUHU)RUXPVRQWKHUHDVRQVZK\WKH+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJERDUGLQ
WKHLUDUHDVKRXOGWDUJHWGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQLQWKHLU-RLQW6WUDWHJLF1HHGV$VVHVVPHQW -61$ 
DQG-RLQW+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJVWUDWHJ\ -+:6 

495

Commitment 2: We engage directly with disabled children and
young people and their participation is embedded in the work
of our Health and Wellbeing Board
6WDWXWRU\GULYHUV

+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH$FW

'XW\WRLQYROYHWKLUGSDUWLHVLQSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKH-61$
 /RFDO+HDOWKZDWFK

 SHRSOHOLYLQJRUZRUNLQJLQWKHDUHD

 IRU&RXQW\&RXQFLOV±HDFKUHOHYDQW'&

'XW\WRLQYROYHWKLUGSDUWLHVLQSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKH-+:6
 /RFDO+HDOWKZDWFK

 SHRSOHOLYLQJRUZRUNLQJLQWKHDUHD
$UWLFOHRIWKH8QLWHG1DWLRQV&RQYHQWLRQRQWKH5LJKWVRIWKH&KLOG
81&5&

 7KHFKLOGKDVWKHULJKWWRH[SUHVVKLVRUKHURSLQLRQIUHHO\DQGWRKDYHWKDWRSLQLRQ
WDNHQLQWRDFFRXQWLQDQ\PDWWHURUSURFHGXUHDIIHFWLQJWKHFKLOG
$UWLFOHRIWKH81&RQYHQWLRQRQWKH5LJKWVRI3HUVRQVZLWK'LVDELOLWLHV
81&53'

 &KLOGUHQZLWKGLVDELOLWLHVKDYHWKHULJKWWRH[SUHVVWKHLUYLHZVIUHHO\RQDOOPDWWHUV
DIIHFWLQJWKHPWKHLUYLHZVEHLQJJLYHQGXHZHLJKWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHLUDJHDQG
PDWXULW\RQDQHTXDOEDVLVZLWKRWKHUFKLOGUHQDQGWREHSURYLGHGZLWKGLVDELOLW\
DQGDJHDSSURSULDWHDVVLVWDQFHWRUHDOLVHWKDWULJKW
+HDOWK DQG :HOOEHLQJ %RDUGV VKRXOG HQVXUH WKDW WKH YRLFH RI GLVDEOHG FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ
SHRSOHLVDOZD\VKHDUGZKHQGHFLVLRQVDUHEHLQJPDGHWKDWDIIHFWWKHP+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ
%RDUGPHPEHUVVKRXOGXVHWKHLULQÀXHQFHWRHPEHGHQJDJHPHQWZLWKGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG

\RXQJSHRSOHWKURXJKRXWWKHKHDOWKDQGFDUHV\VWHPDQGLQWKHFRQWH[WRIDFRQWLQXRXVDQG
FXUUHQWSDUWQHUVKLS

7KH EHQH¿WV RI HPEHGGLQJ SDUWLFLSDWLRQ RI GLVDEOHG FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH DUH KXJH

EHWWHUVHUYLFHVZLOOEHGHYHORSHGGULYHQE\IHHGEDFNIURPWKHSHRSOHZKRNQRZDQGXVHWKHP
UHVRXUFHVDUHQRWZDVWHGRQVHUYLFHVWKDWDUHQRWWDNHQXSRUYDOXHGVHUYLFHVZLOOEHPRUH

FKLOGDQG\RXQJSHUVRQIULHQGO\DQGDFFHVVLEOHGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLOOKDYH
LQVLJKW LQWR WKH GLYHUVH QHHGV DQG EDUULHUV IDFHG E\ PDUJLQDOLVHG DQG YXOQHUDEOH JURXSV

LPSURYHG DFFRXQWDELOLW\ WR FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH DV VWDNHKROGHUV DQG GLUHFW EHQH¿WV
WR GLVDEOHG FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH WKHPVHOYHV VXFK DV LQFUHDVHG NQRZOHGJH RI VHUYLFHV

FRQ¿GHQFHDQGVNLOOV 


496

,W VKRXOG EH UHFRJQLVHG WKDW PDQ\ GLVDEOHG FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH PD\ IDFH VLJQL¿FDQW

EDUULHUV WR WKHLU LQYROYHPHQW SDUWLFXODUO\ LQ PDLQVWUHDP VHWWLQJV 5HFHQW UHVHDUFK IURP WKH
9,3(5 SURMHFW IRXQG WKDW \RXQJ GLVDEOHG SHRSOH¶V SDUWLFLSDWLRQ LV VWLOO QRW HPEHGGHG DW D

VWUDWHJLFVHUYLFHOHYHORULQGLYLGXDOGHFLVLRQPDNLQJ,WIRXQGEDUULHUVWRSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQFOXGLQJ

DODFNRIXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIZKDWSDUWLFLSDWLRQLVDQGKRZ\RXPDNHLWKDSSHQODFNRIIXQGLQJ
LQFOXVLYHSUDFWLFHUHVRXUFHVWLPHDQGWUDLQLQJDQGODFNRIFRQVLVWHQWV\VWHPVDQGVWUXFWXUHV

$OO GLVDEOHG FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ SHRSOH FRPPXQLFDWH DQG KDYH D ULJKW WR KDYH WKHLU YLHZV

KHDUG DQG WKLV PD\ UHTXLUH WDUJHWHG DSSURDFKHV DQG WKH LQYROYHPHQW RI 9ROXQWDU\ 6HFWRU
2UJDQLVDWLRQV 962V 

+RZWRPHHW\RXU&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQWV

,QRUGHUWRIXO¿OWKLVFRPPLWPHQWZHZRXOGH[SHFWD+:%WREHDEOHWRSURYLGHWKH
IROORZLQJHYLGHQFH

 (YLGHQFHRIWKHZD\LQZKLFKWKH+:%RULWVVXEJURXSVKDYHZRUNHGZLWK
GLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQWKH-61$SURFHVVDQGQH[WVWHSVIRU-61$
HQJDJHPHQW

 (YLGHQFHRIWKHZD\LQZKLFKWKH+:%RULWVVXEJURXSVKDYHZRUNHGZLWKGLVDEOHG
FKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGGHOLYHU\RIWKH-RLQW+HDOWKDQG
:HOOEHLQJ6WUDWHJ\ -+:6 DQGQH[WVWHSVIRU-+:6HQJDJHPHQW

 (YLGHQFHRISDUWQHUVKLSZRUNLQJZLWKDQ\ORFDOJURXSVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG
\RXQJSHRSOH

.H\UHVRXUFHVIRUPHHWLQJWKLV&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQW
7KH1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ5R\DO&ROOHJHRI3DHGLDWULFVDQG&KLOG+HDOWKDQG2I¿FHIRU
3XEOLF0DQDJHPHQW  ,QYROYLQJFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQKHDOWKVHUYLFHV
7KLVUHSRUWKLJKOLJKWVWKHNH\¿QGLQJVDQGUHFRPPHQGDWLRQVIURPDQHYHQWKHOGLQ
6HSWHPEHUWRGLVFXVVWKHNH\SULRULWLHVIRUFKLOGKHDOWK

9,3(5 9RLFH,QFOXVLRQ3DUWLFLSDWLRQ(PSRZHUPHQW5HVHDUFK 

9,3(5LVDWKUHH\HDUSURMHFWIXQGHGE\WKH%LJ/RWWHU\)XQGWRUHVHDUFK\RXQJGLVDEOHG
SHRSOH¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQGHFLVLRQVDERXWVHUYLFHV,WEHJDQLQ6XPPHU

9,3(5  7KH9LSHUSURMHFWZKDWZHIRXQG

)LQGLQJVDQGNH\PHVVDJHVDULVLQJIURPWKHUHVHDUFKDFWLYLWLHVRIWKH9,3(5SURMHFW

9,3(5  7KH9LSHUSURMHFWZKDWZHIRXQGIURPWKHVXUYH\

6XPPDU\RIWKH¿QGLQJVDQGNH\PHVVDJHVIURPWKHUHVHDUFKDFWLYLWLHV7KHUHVHDUFK
VXPPDULVHGLQWKLVUHSRUWZDVFDUULHGRXWEHWZHHQDQG




3DUWLFLSDWLRQ:RUNV  +RZWRLQYROYHFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQFRPPLVVLRQLQJS
9,3(5 9RLFH,QFOXVLRQ3DUWLFLSDWLRQ(PSRZHUPHQWDQG5HVHDUFK   +HDU8V2XWS.

497
3DUWLFLSDWLRQ:RUNV

(QDEOHVRUJDQLVDWLRQVWRHIIHFWLYHO\LQYROYHFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQWKHGHYHORSPHQW
GHOLYHU\DQGHYDOXDWLRQRIVHUYLFHVWKDWDIIHFWWKHLUOLYHV

3DUWLFLSDWLRQ:RUNV  +RZWRLQYROYHFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQ
FRPPLVVLRQLQJ

$QLQWURGXFWLRQWRFRPPLVVLRQLQJIURPDYDULHW\RISHUVSHFWLYHV,WGHVFULEHVWKHGLIIHUHQW
SDUWVRIWKHSURFHVVDQGZD\VWRVXSSRUWFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHWRSDUWLFLSDWHLQDOO
DVSHFWVRIFRPPLVVLRQLQJ

3DUWLFLSDWLRQ:RUNV  +RZWREXLOGDFXOWXUHRISDUWLFLSDWLRQ

,QIRUPDWLRQDQGSUDFWLFDOLGHDVDERXWKRZWRHPEHGSDUWLFLSDWLRQWKURXJKRXW\RXU
RUJDQLVDWLRQLQDZD\WKDWEULQJVDERXWFKDQJH

3DUWLFLSDWLRQ:RUNV  /LVWHQDQG&KDQJHDJXLGHWRFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJ
SHRSOH¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQULJKWV

$LPVWRLQFUHDVHXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQULJKWVDQG
KRZWKH\FDQEHUHDOLVHGLQORFDODXWKRULW\DQGWKLUGVHFWRUVHWWLQJV

0DNLQJ2XUVHOYHV+HDUG 02+

02+LVDQDWLRQDOSURMHFWWRHQVXUHGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ¶VULJKWWREHKHDUGEHFRPHVDUHDOLW\

&RXQFLOIRU'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQ  0DNLQJ2XUVHOYHV+HDUG

%DVHGRQDVHULHVRIHLJKWVHPLQDUVZLWKORFDODXWKRULWLHVWKLVERRNVHWVRXWWKHFXUUHQW
SROLF\FRQWH[WIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQRXWOLQHVWKHEDUULHUV
DQGFKDOOHQJHVWRHIIHFWLYHSDUWLFLSDWLRQDQGKLJKOLJKWVZKDWLVZRUNLQJZHOO

)UDQNOLQ$DQG6ORSHU3  6XSSRUWLQJWKHSDUWLFLSDWLRQRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG
\RXQJSHRSOHLQGHFLVLRQPDNLQJ

3UHVHQWVUHVHDUFKH[SORULQJIDFWRUVWRVXSSRUWJRRGSUDFWLFHLQSDUWLFLSDWLRQDQGGLVFXVVHV
SROLF\DQGSUDFWLFHLPSOLFDWLRQV

'I(V  %XLOGLQJDFXOWXUHRISDUWLFLSDWLRQUHVHDUFKUHSRUW

0DQ\RIWKHFDVHVWXGLHVLQWKLVUHVHDUFKDUHDWWHPSWLQJWRPDNHSDUWLFLSDWLRQPRUH
LQWHJUDOWRWKHLURUJDQLVDWLRQ

498

&RPPLWPHQW:HHQJDJHGLUHFWO\ZLWKSDUHQW
FDUHUVDQGWKHLUSDUWLFLSDWLRQLVHPEHGGHGLQWKH
ZRUNRIRXU+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUG
6WDWXWRU\GULYHUV

+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH$FW

'XW\WRLQYROYHWKLUGSDUWLHVLQSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKH-61$
 /RFDO+HDOWKZDWFK

 SHRSOHOLYLQJRUZRUNLQJLQWKHDUHD

 IRU&RXQW\&RXQFLOV±HDFKUHOHYDQW'&

'XW\WRLQYROYHWKLUGSDUWLHVLQSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKH-+:6
 /RFDO+HDOWKZDWFK

 SHRSOHOLYLQJRUZRUNLQJLQWKHDUHD

7KHSXUSRVHRISDUHQWSDUWLFLSDWLRQLVWRHQVXUHWKDWSDUHQWVFDQLQÀXHQFHVHUYLFHSODQQLQJDQG
GHFLVLRQPDNLQJVRWKDWVHUYLFHVPHHWWKHQHHGVRIIDPLOLHVZLWKGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ(IIHFWLYH

SDUHQW SDUWLFLSDWLRQ KDSSHQV ZKHQ SDUHQWV KDYH FRQYHUVDWLRQV ZLWK DQG ZRUN DORQJVLGH
SURIHVVLRQDOVLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQGHYHORSDQGLPSURYHVHUYLFHV

7KHEHQH¿WVRIHIIHFWLYHSDUHQWSDUWLFLSDWLRQDUHZHOOHVWDEOLVKHGUHVRXUFHVDUHQRWZDVWHGRQ
VHUYLFHVWKDWDUHQRWWDNHQXSRUYDOXHGSDUHQWFDUHUV¶LQVLJKWFDQKHOSGHYHORSFRVWHIIHFWLYH
VROXWLRQVWRORFDOSUREOHPVDVKDUHGYLHZFDQEHGHYHORSHGEHWZHHQSDUHQWVDQGSURIHVVLRQDOV

RIKRZWRVXSSRUWIDPLOLHVZLWKLQIXQGLQJOLPLWDWLRQVPRUHFRVWO\LQWHUYHQWLRQVFDQEHDYRLGHG
LQ WKH IXWXUH DQG FRPSODLQWV FDQ EH UHGXFHG E\ 3DUHQW &DUHU )RUXPV PRQLWRULQJ VHUYLFHV
DQGDOHUWLQJFRPPLVVLRQHUVDQGPDQDJHUVLISUREOHPVRFFXU7KH&RQWDFW$)DPLO\UHVRXUFHV
EHORZFRQWDLQDZHDOWKRIHYLGHQFHDQGFDVHVWXGLHVLQWRKRZHIIHFWLYHSDUHQWSDUWLFLSDWLRQKDV
EHQH¿WHGWKHORFDODUHDVZKHUHLWKDVEHHQLPSOHPHQWHG

+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVVKRXOGHQVXUHWKDWSDUHQWFDUHUVDUHLQYROYHGLQGHFLVLRQVWKDW
DIIHFWWKHPDWDVWUDWHJLFDQGVHUYLFHOHYHO+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGPHPEHUVVKRXOG

XVHWKHLULQÀXHQFHWRHPEHGHQJDJHPHQWZLWKSDUHQWFDUHUVWKURXJKRXWWKHKHDOWKDQGFDUH
V\VWHPDQGLQWKHFRQWH[WRIDFRQWLQXRXVDQGFXUUHQWSDUWQHUVKLS

,WVKRXOGEHUHFRJQLVHGWKDWSDUHQWFDUHUVPD\IDFHVLJQL¿FDQWEDUULHUVWRWKHLUSDUWLFLSDWLRQ

LQPDLQVWUHDPVHWWLQJVEXWWKDWWKLVVKRXOGQRWSUHYHQWWKHLULQYROYHPHQWLQGHFLVLRQPDNLQJ


'H¿QLWLRQIURP7RJHWKHUIRU'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQ  +RZWRJXLGHWRSDUHQWFDUHUSDUWLFLSD
WLRQ6HFWLRQ±SDUHQWSDUWLFLSDWLRQDVDSURFHVVS

499
+RZWRPHHW\RXU&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQWV

,QRUGHUWRIXO¿OWKLVFRPPLWPHQWZHZRXOGH[SHFWD+:%WREHDEOHWRSURYLGHWKH
IROORZLQJHYLGHQFH
 (YLGHQFHRIWKHZD\LQZKLFKWKH+:%RULWVVXEJURXSVKDYHZRUNHGZLWK
SDUHQWFDUHUVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQLQWKH-61$SURFHVVDQGQH[WVWHSVIRU-61$
HQJDJHPHQW

 (YLGHQFHRIWKHZD\LQZKLFKWKH+:%RULWVVXEJURXSVKDYHZRUNHGZLWKSDUHQW
FDUHUVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGGHOLYHU\RIWKH-+:6DQGQH[W
VWHSVIRU-+:6HQJDJHPHQW

 (YLGHQFHRISDUWQHUVKLSZRUNLQJZLWKORFDOSDUHQWJURXSVLQFOXGLQJWKHORFDO3DUHQW
&DUHU)RUXP V

.H\UHVRXUFHVIRUPHHWLQJWKLV&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQW

7RJHWKHUIRU'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQ Y 3DUHQWFDUHUSDUWLFLSDWLRQ+RZWRJXLGH
$JXLGHWRVXSSRUWSDUHQWFDUHUIRUXPVFRPPLVVLRQHUVDQGPDQDJHUVWRGHYHORSSDUHQW
FDUHUSDUWLFLSDWLRQ,WFDQEHGRZQORDGHGLQWKHIROORZLQJVHSDUDWHVHFWLRQV
6HFWLRQ7KH3URFHVV

6HFWLRQSURGXFLQJLQIRUPDWLRQ
6HFWLRQFRQVXOWDWLRQ

6HFWLRQDVXFFHVVIXOPHHWLQJV7RJHWKHUIRU'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQ
6HFWLRQEKRZWRUHDFKDQGHQJDJHSDUHQWV

6HFWLRQFVXSSRUWLQJSDUHQWUHSUHVHQWDWLYHV
6HFWLRQEIRUVWUDWHJLFOHDGHUV

+RZSDUHQWSDUWLFLSDWLRQDQGSDUHQWFDUHUIRUXPVOHDGVWREHWWHURXWFRPHVIRUGLVDEOHG
FKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

&RQWDFW$)DPLO\  3DUHQW&DUHU3DUWLFLSDWLRQ$QRYHUYLHZ

7KLVVKRUWJXLGHSURYLGHVH[DPSOHVRIVXFFHVVIXOSDUHQWFDUHUSDUWLFLSDWLRQ

&RQWDFW$)DPLO\,PSURYLQJ+HDOWK6HUYLFHV

5HVRXUFHVWRVXSSRUWWKHFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGPDQDJHPHQWRIKHDOWKVHUYLFHV

&RQWDFW$)DPLO\5HVRXUFHV

5HVRXUFHVFDVHVWXGLHVDQGLQIRUPDWLRQIRUSURIHVVLRQDOVWRKHOSWKHPLPSURYHKRZ
VHUYLFHVDUHGHOLYHUHGVRWKH\EHWWHUPHHWIDPLOLHV¶QHHGV

&RQWDFW$)DPLO\  3DUHQWFDUHUIRUXPLQYROYHPHQWLQVKDSLQJKHDOWKVHUYLFHV
VHFRQGUHSRUW
5HSRUWLQWR3DUHQW&DUHU)RUXPLQYROYHPHQWZLWKWKHKHDOWKVHUYLFHLQWKHOHDGXSWRWKH
QHZKHDOWKV\VWHPFRPLQJLQWRHIIHFW

500

Commitment 4: We set clear strategic outcomes for our
partners to meet in relation to disabled children, young
people and their families, monitor progress towards achieving
them and hold each other to account
6WDWXWRU\GULYHUV

+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH$FW

'XW\WRSUHSDUHD-+:6IRUPHHWLQJQHHGVLQFOXGHGLQ-61$LQUHODWLRQWR/$DUHDDQG
WRKDYHUHJDUGWRJXLGDQFHIURP6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWH
3RZHURIWKH+:%WRJLYHLWVRSLQLRQWRWKHORFDODXWKRULW\ZKLFKHVWDEOLVKHGLWRQ
ZKHWKHUWKHDXWKRULW\LVGLVFKDUJLQJLWVGXW\WRKDYHUHJDUGWRUHOHYDQW-61$DQG
-+:6

&&*LVXQGHUDGXW\WRLQYROYH+:%LQSUHSDULQJRUVLJQL¿FDQWO\UHYLVLQJWKH
FRPPLVVLRQLQJSODQ±LQFOXGLQJFRQVXOWLQJLWRQZKHWKHUWKHSODQKDVWDNHQSURSHU
DFFRXQWRIWKHUHOHYDQW-+:6

'XW\WRSURYLGHRSLQLRQRQZKHWKHUWKH&&*FRPPLVVLRQLQJSODQKDVWDNHQSURSHU
DFFRXQWRIWKH-+:63RZHUWRDOVRZULWHWR1+6(QJODQG IRUPHUO\WKH1+6
&RPPLVVLRQLQJ%RDUG ZLWKWKDWRSLQLRQRQWKHFRPPLVVLRQLQJSODQ FRS\PXVWDOVREH
VXSSOLHGWRWKHUHOHYDQW&&* 'XW\WRUHYLHZKRZIDUWKH&&*KDVFRQWULEXWHGWRWKH
GHOLYHU\RIDQ\-+:6WRZKLFKLWZDVUHTXLUHGWRKDYHUHJDUGDQGWRFRQVXOW+:%RQ
WKLV
'XW\LQFRQGXFWLQJWKHSHUIRUPDQFHDVVHVVPHQWWRDVVHVVKRZZHOO&&*KDV
GLVFKDUJHGGXW\WRKDYHUHJDUGWR-61$DQG-+:6DQGWRFRQVXOW+:%RQLWVYLHZRQ
&&*V¶FRQWULEXWLRQWRGHOLYHU\RIDQ\-+:6WRZKLFKLWZDVUHTXLUHGWRKDYHUHJDUG
ZKHQFRQGXFWLQJLWVDQQXDOSHUIRUPDQFHDVVHVVPHQWRIWKH&&* 

,Q UHVSRQVH WR WKH UHSRUW RI WKH &KLOGUHQ DQG <RXQJ 3HRSOH¶V +HDOWK 2XWFRPHV )RUXP WKH

*RYHUQPHQWVHWRXWLWVDPELWLRQVIRULPSURYLQJKHDOWKRXWFRPHVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH
E\ODXQFKLQJµ%HWWHU+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RU&KLOGUHQ$QG<RXQJ3HRSOH2XU3OHGJH¶+HDOWKDQG
:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVZLOOSOD\DNH\UROHLQGHOLYHULQJRQWKHVHDPELWLRQV

'LVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLOOSURYLGHDFUXFLDOWHVWRIWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKHQHZ
KHDOWKV\VWHPDQGLPSURYLQJWKHRXWFRPHVWKH\H[SHULHQFHLQFOXGLQJWKRVHLQWKH1+6DQG

3XEOLF +HDOWK 2XWFRPHV IUDPHZRUNV ZLOO UHTXLUH FRQFHUWHG VWUDWHJLF OHDGHUVKLS +RZHYHU LI
D +HDOWK DQG :HOOEHLQJ %RDUG FDQ LPSURYH LQWHJUDWLRQ IRU ORFDO GLVDEOHG FKLOGUHQ DQG \RXQJ

SHRSOHZKRIUHTXHQWO\WHVWWKHLQWHUIDFHEHWZHHQPXOWLSOHVHUYLFHVDQGDJHQFLHVLWFDQGHOLYHU
IRUDOOFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH

)RUWKH-61$DQG-+:6SURFHVVWRPDNHDSRVLWLYHLPSDFWRQWKHRXWFRPHVIDFHGE\GLVDEOHG

FKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVLWLVHVVHQWLDOWKDWWKHHYLGHQFHFROOHFWHGWKURXJKWKH
-61$SURFHVVUHÀHFWVWKHRXWFRPHVWKDWDUHPRVWPHDQLQJIXOWRWKHP+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ

%RDUGVVKRXOGXVHWKH-61$SURFHVVWRGHYHORSDVKDUHGXQGHUVWDQGLQJRIWKHQHHGVRIGLVDEOHG

FKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVDQGWKHFDXVHVRIWKHSRRURXWFRPHVDQGLQHTXDOLWLHV

'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK  %HWWHU+HDOWK2XWFRPHVIRU&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH2XU
3OHGJH

501

WKH\H[SHULHQFH7KH\VKRXOGVHWFOHDUVWUDWHJLFRXWFRPHVIRUSDUWQHUVWRPHHWDQGHQVXUHWKDW
PHFKDQLVPVDUHLQSODFHWRPHDVXUHDQGPRQLWRUSURJUHVVWRZDUGVDFKLHYLQJWKHP

7KH-+:6VKRXOGDGGUHVVKRZWKHQHHGVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

VKRXOGEHPHWDQGPDNHUHFRPPHQGDWLRQVRQFRVWHIIHFWLYHDSSURDFKHVWRUHGXFLQJWKHKHDOWK

LQHTXDOLWLHVWKH\H[SHULHQFH+RZHYHULIWKLVJURXSLVQRWLGHQWL¿HGDVDSULRULW\LQWKH-+:6
WKH+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVKRXOGGHPRQVWUDWHKRZLWLVSURYLGLQJVWUDWHJLFGLUHFWLRQIRU
SDUWQHUVWRPHHWWKHQHHGVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH

+RZWRPHHW\RXU&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQWV

,QRUGHUWRIXO¿OWKLVFRPPLWPHQWZHZRXOGH[SHFWD+:%WREHDEOHWRSURYLGHWKH
IROORZLQJHYLGHQFH

 3XEOLFLQIRUPDWLRQRQWKHVWDWXVRIRXWFRPHVIRUORFDOGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJ
SHRSOHEDVHGRQLQGLFDWRUVVXFKDVWKH1+62XWFRPHV)UDPHZRUNWKH3XEOLF
+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)UDPHZRUNHWF
 3XEOLFLQIRUPDWLRQRQWKHVWUDWHJLFGLUHFWLRQWKH+:%KDVVHWWRVXSSRUWNH\
SDUWQHUVWRLPSURYHRXWFRPHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH7KLVPD\
EHHQFRPSDVVHGE\WKH-+:6EXWZRXOGQHHGWREHVXI¿FLHQWO\GHOLQHDWHGWR
GHPRQVWUDWHVSHFL¿FREMHFWLYHVDQGDFWLRQIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH

.H\UHVRXUFHVIRUPHHWLQJWKLV&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQW

1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ  &KLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJLQ
FKDQJLQJWLPHV

7KHSXUSRVHRIWKLVUHSRUWLVWRVXSSRUWLPSOHPHQWDWLRQRIWKHKHDOWKUHIRUPVWRLPSURYH
FKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJ

5HSRUWRIWKH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP 

7KH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXPZDVHVWDEOLVKHGE\WKH
6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWHIRU+HDOWKDQGWDVNHGZLWKUHVSRQGLQJWRWKHFKDOOHQJHVVHWRXWLQ6LU
,DQ.HQQHG\¶VUHSRUWSXEOLVKHGLQµ*HWWLQJLWULJKWIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶

5HSRUWRIWKH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXPUHSRUWRIWKH
ORQJWHUPFRQGLWLRQVGLVDELOLW\DQGSDOOLDWLYHFDUHVXEJURXS 

5HSRUWGLVFXVVLQJWKHFKDOOHQJHVDURXQGLPSURYLQJRXWFRPHVIRUWKLVJURXSRIFKLOGUHQ

5HSRUWRIWKH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXPLQHTXDOLWLHVLQ
KHDOWKRXWFRPHVDQGKRZWKH\PLJKWEHDGGUHVVHG 
5HSRUWFRPPLVVLRQHGE\WKHFRFKDLUVRIWKH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK
2XWFRPHV)RUXPIURP0DJJLH$WNLQVRQ&KLOGUHQ¶V&RPPLVVLRQHUIRU(QJODQG

&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP  +HDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJ
ERDUGVDQGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGIDPLOLHV

3RVWHUSURGXFHGLQ-XQHE\WKHKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUGOHDUQLQJVHWIRUFKLOGUHQ
DQG\RXQJSHRSOH

502
&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP  &RPPLVVLRQLQJLQWKH
QHZ1+6IRUFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV
3RVWHUVHWWLQJRXWWKH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP¶VYLVLRQIRU
VXFFHVVIXOFRPPLVVLRQLQJIRUFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVLQWKHQHZ1+6

'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK  ,PSURYLQJ&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK
2XWFRPHVDV\VWHPZLGHUHVSRQVH

7KH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXPUHSRUWPDGHUHFRPPHQGDWLRQV
DLPHGDW'+'I(DQGDZLGHUDQJHRIKHDOWKV\VWHPRUJDQLVDWLRQVWRLPSURYHKHDOWK
RXWFRPHVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH7KLVGRFXPHQWFRQWDLQVWKHV\VWHPZLGH
UHVSRQVHVHWWLQJRXWWKHDFWLRQDOUHDG\XQGHUWDNHQLQSURJUHVVDQGSODQQHGLQUHVSRQVH
WRWKHUHFRPPHQGDWLRQV

'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK  %HWWHUKHDOWKRXWFRPHVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH
2XU3OHGJH

*RYHUQPHQWUHVSRQVHWRWKHUHSRUWRIWKH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV
)RUXPVHWWLQJRXWVKDUHGDPELWLRQVDFURVVWKH1+6WRLPSURYHRXWFRPHVDQGVHUYLFHVIRU
FKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH

&RQWDFW$IDPLO\DQG6WUDWHJLF1HWZRUNIRU&KLOG+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJLQWKH(DVWRI
(QJODQG  3ULQFLSOHVIRUFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGGHOLYHULQJEHWWHUKHDOWKRXWFRPHV
DQGH[SHULHQFHVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHVRWKDWWKH\DUHFRPSDUDEOHZLWKWKH
EHVWLQWKHZRUOG

3RVWHUVKRZLQJSULQFLSOHVIRUFRPPLVVLRQLQJDQGGHOLYHULQJEHWWHUKHDOWKRXWFRPHVDQG
H[SHULHQFHVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHGHYHORSHGE\WKH6WUDWHJLF1HWZRUNIRU&KLOG
+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJLQWKH(DVWRI(QJODQG

'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK  7KH1+62XWFRPHV)UDPHZRUN

7KHRXWFRPHVDQGLQGLFDWRUVZKLFKPDNHXSWKH¿UVW1+62XWFRPHV)UDPHZRUNIROORZLQJ
WKHFRQVXOWDWLRQ7UDQVSDUHQF\LQRXWFRPHV±DIUDPHZRUNIRUWKH1+6

503

Commitment 5: We promote early intervention and support
smooth transitions between children and adult services for
disabled children and young people
7KH UHSRUW RI WKH &KLOGUHQ DQG <RXQJ 3HRSOH¶V +HDOWK 2XWFRPHV )RUXP HPSKDVLVHG WKH

LPSRUWDQFHRIHDUO\LQWHUYHQWLRQDQGWUDQVLWLRQVZLWKLQDOLIHFRXUVHDSSURDFKWRUHGXFLQJKHDOWK
LQHTXDOLWLHV 7KLVLVSDUWLFXODUO\VLJQL¿FDQWIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLU

IDPLOLHVZKRRIWHQVWUXJJOHWRREWDLQDGLDJQRVLVDQGDFFHVVDSSURSULDWHVXSSRUWDWDQHDUO\
DJH DQG ZKHQ WUDQVLWLRQLQJ WR DGXOW VHUYLFHV ZKLFK DIIHFWV WKHLU RXWFRPHV WKURXJKRXW WKHLU
OLYHV

,WVKRXOGEHHPSKDVLVHGWKDWGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHPD\WUDQVLWLRQWRDGXOWVHUYLFHV

XSWRWKHDJHRI+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVVKRXOGFRQVLGHUWKHQHHGVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ
DQG\RXQJSHRSOHIURPDVZHOODVHQVXULQJVPRRWKWUDQVLWLRQVWRDGXOWVHUYLFHV

+RZWRPHHW\RXU&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQWV

,QRUGHUWRIXO¿OWKLVFRPPLWPHQWZHZRXOGH[SHFWD+:%WREHDEOHWRSURYLGHWKH
IROORZLQJHYLGHQFH
 7KHZD\LQZKLFKWKHDFWLYLWLHVRIWKH+:%KHOSORFDOSDUWQHUVWRXQGHUVWDQGWKH
YDOXHRIHDUO\LQWHUYHQWLRQ
 7KHZD\LQZKLFKWKHDFWLYLWLHVRIWKH+:%HQVXUHLQWHJUDWLRQEHWZHHQFKLOGUHQ
DQGDGXOWVHUYLFHVDQGSULRULWLVHHQVXULQJDSRVLWLYHH[SHULHQFHRIWUDQVLWLRQIRU
GLVDEOHG\RXQJSHRSOH

.H\UHVRXUFHVIRUPHHWLQJWKLV&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQW
*UDKDP$OOHQ03  (DUO\,QWHUYHQWLRQ7KH1H[W6WHSV

$QLQGHSHQGHQWUHSRUWWR*RYHUQPHQWZKLFKDUJXHVWKDWPDQ\RIWKHFRVWO\DQG
GDPDJLQJVRFLDOSUREOHPVIRULQGLYLGXDOVFDQEHHOLPLQDWHGRUUHGXFHGE\JLYLQJFKLOGUHQ
DQGSDUHQWVWKHULJKWW\SHRIHYLGHQFHEDVHGSURJUDPPHVEHWZHHQDQGHVSHFLDOO\LQ
WKHLUHDUOLHVW\HDUV

*UDKDP$OOHQ03  (DUO\,QWHUYHQWLRQ6PDUW,QYHVWPHQW0DVVLYH6DYLQJV

*UDKDP$OOHQ03¶VVHFRQGLQGHSHQGHQWUHSRUWWRWKH*RYHUQPHQWVHWVRXWKRZHDUO\
LQWHUYHQWLRQSURJUDPPHVFDQEHSDLGIRUZLWKLQH[LVWLQJUHVRXUFHVDQGE\DWWUDFWLQJQHZ
QRQJRYHUQPHQWPRQH\

&KLOGDQG0DWHUQLW\+HDOWK2EVHUYDWRU\.QRZOHGJH+XE7UDQVLWLRQV

7KHWUDQVLWLRQVWRDGXOWKRRGKXEEULQJVWRJHWKHUDUDQJHRIUHVRXUFHVDQGHYLGHQFH
UHODWLQJWR\RXQJSHRSOH¶VWUDQVLWLRQSURFHVVLQWRWKHDGXOWZRUOG,WLVFRQVWDQWO\XSGDWHG
ZLWKQHZUHVRXUFHV



5HSRUWRIWKH&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP  S

504
(DUO\6XSSRUW

$ZD\RIZRUNLQJXQGHUSLQQHGE\SULQFLSOHVWKDWDLPWRLPSURYHWKHGHOLYHU\
RIVHUYLFHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV,WHQDEOHVVHUYLFHVWR
FRRUGLQDWHWKHLUDFWLYLW\EHWWHUDQGSURYLGHIDPLOLHVZLWKDVLQJOHSRLQWRIFRQWDFWDQG
FRQWLQXLW\WKURXJKNH\ZRUNLQJ

(DUO\6XSSRUW  .H\ZRUNLQJLPSURYLQJRXWFRPHVIRUDOO(YLGHQFHSURYLVLRQ
V\VWHPVDQGVWUXFWXUHV

$VXPPDU\RIWKHNH\HYLGHQFHDQGFRQVLVWHQWHOHPHQWVRIDNH\ZRUNLQJDSSURDFK,W
SUHVHQWVDQDQDO\VLVRIWKHLPSOLFDWLRQVRINH\ZRUNLQJWKDWFXWVDFURVVKHDOWKVRFLDOFDUH
DQGHGXFDWLRQ

2IVWHG  *RRGSUDFWLFHUHVRXUFH(DUO\LQWHUYHQWLRQWKURXJKDPXOWLDJHQF\
DSSURDFK6KHI¿HOG&LW\&RXQFLO

6KHI¿HOG&LW\&RXQFLOKDVGHYHORSHGDFUHDWLYHDQGLQQRYDWLYHDSSURDFKDFURVVWKH
FKLOGUHQ¶VZRUNIRUFHE\LQWURGXFLQJDPXOWLDJHQF\SHUVSHFWLYHLQSURYLGLQJSUHYHQWDWLYH
VHUYLFHVWRFKLOGUHQDQGIDPLOLHV

&(,PSURYLQJWKHZHOOEHLQJRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQWKURXJKHDUO\\HDUVLQWHUYHQWLRQV
DJH±
7KLVVHFWLRQFRQWDLQVWKHIROORZLQJUHVRXUFHVLQVXSSRUWRILPSURYLQJWKHZHOOEHLQJRI
GLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQWKURXJKHDUO\\HDUVLQWHUYHQWLRQV DJH± SULRULW\OLQNVWRRQOLQH
WRROVNH\RQOLQHSXEOLFDWLRQVIURP&(2SDUWQHUVDQGRWKHURUJDQLVDWLRQV

,QVWLWXWHRI3XEOLF&DUH  (DUO\,QWHUYHQWLRQDQG3UHYHQWLRQZLWK&KLOGUHQDQG
)DPLOLHV*HWWLQJWKH0RVWIURP7HDPDURXQGWKH)DPLO\6\VWHPV

%ULH¿QJSDSHUDUJXLQJWKDWHIIHFWLYHORFDOV\VWHPVWRLGHQWLI\IDPLOLHVZKRZRXOG
EHQH¿WIURPDGGLWLRQDOVXSSRUWDQGWRFRRUGLQDWHVXSSRUWIURPDUDQJHRIDJHQFLHVLVDV
LPSRUWDQWDVGHOLYHULQJHIIHFWLYHVHUYLFHV

7UDQVLWLRQ,QIRUPDWLRQ1HWZRUN 7,1

$QDOOLDQFHRIRUJDQLVDWLRQVDQGLQGLYLGXDOVZKRFRPHWRJHWKHUWRLPSURYHWKHH[SHULHQFH
RIGLVDEOHG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VWUDQVLWLRQWRDGXOWKRRG7,1LVDVRXUFHRILQIRUPDWLRQDQGJRRG
SUDFWLFHVWDQGDUGVIRUGLVDEOHG\RXQJSHRSOHIDPLOLHVDQGSURIHVVLRQDOV

7,15HVRXUFH/LEUDU\

<RXFDQXVHWKHVHDUFKIRUPWR¿QGDUDQJHRIUHVRXUFHVWKDWFDQKHOS\RXWRLPSURYH
\RXUSURYLVLRQIRUGLVDEOHG\RXQJSHRSOHLQWUDQVLWLRQWRDGXOWKRRG

3UHSDULQJIRU$GXOWKRRG 3I$

$\HDUSURJUDPPHIXQGHGE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWIRU(GXFDWLRQDVSDUWRIWKHGHOLYHU\
VXSSRUWIRUµ6XSSRUWDQGDVSLUDWLRQ$QHZDSSURDFKWRVSHFLDOHGXFDWLRQDOQHHGVDQG
GLVDELOLW\¶JUHHQSDSHU,WSURYLGHVNQRZOHGJHDQGVXSSRUWWRDOOORFDODXWKRULWLHVDQGWKHLU
SDUWQHUVLQFOXGLQJIDPLOLHVDQG\RXQJSHRSOHVRWKH\FDQHQVXUH\RXQJSHRSOHZLWK
6(1DQGGLVDELOLWLHVDFKLHYHSDLGZRUNLQGHSHQGHQWOLYLQJJRRGKHDOWKDQGFRPPXQLW\
LQFOXVLRQDVWKH\PRYHLQWRDGXOWKRRG

505
3UHSDULQJIRU$GXOWKRRG  3I$UHVRXUFHOLVW

&UHDWHGIRUWKH3I$µ+RZDUH\RXGRLQJ"¶HYHQWVZKLFKWRRNSODFHLQ-XQHDQG-XO\
5HVRXUFHVDUHOLVWHGXQGHU3DLGHPSOR\PHQW,QGHSHQGHQWOLYLQJ*RRGKHDOWK
&RPPXQLW\LQFOXVLRQ

6ORSHU3%HHFKDP-&ODUNH6)UDQNOLQ$0RUDQ1DQG&XVZRUWK/  
7UDQVLWLRQWRDGXOWVHUYLFHVIRUGLVDEOHG\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKRVHZLWKFRPSOH[KHDOWK
QHHGV5HVHDUFK:RUNV6RFLDO3ROLF\5HVHDUFK8QLW8QLYHUVLW\RI<RUN<RUN

7KLVUHVHDUFKDLPHGWRSURYLGHHYLGHQFHRIZKDWZRUNVZHOOLQGHYHORSLQJDQG
LPSOHPHQWLQJPXOWLDJHQF\FRRUGLQDWHGWUDQVLWLRQVHUYLFHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQGWKRVH
ZLWKFRPSOH[KHDOWKQHHGVDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV,WDOVRDVVHVVHGWKHFRVWVRIWKHVHUYLFHV

&RPPLWPHQW:HZRUNZLWKNH\SDUWQHUVWR
VWUHQJWKHQLQWHJUDWLRQEHWZHHQKHDOWKVRFLDOFDUH
DQGHGXFDWLRQVHUYLFHVDQGZLWKVHUYLFHVSURYLGHG
E\ZLGHUSDUWQHUV
506

6WDWXWRU\GULYHUV

+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH$FW

'XW\WRHQFRXUDJHLQWHJUDWHGZRUNLQJ

 EHWZHHQFRPPLVVLRQHUVRIKHDOWKVHUYLFHVDQGFRPPLVVLRQHUVRIVRFLDOFDUH
VHUYLFHV

 LQSDUWLFXODUWRSURYLGHDGYLFHDVVLVWDQFHRURWKHUVXSSRUWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRI
HQFRXUDJLQJXVHRIÀH[LELOLWLHVXQGHU1+6$FW

3RZHUWRLQFOXGHLQWKH-+:6DVWDWHPHQWRIYLHZVRQKRZWKHFRPPLVVLRQLQJRI
KHDOWKDQGVRFLDOFDUHVHUYLFHVDQGZLGHUKHDOWKUHODWHGVHUYLFHVFRXOGEHPRUH
FORVHO\LQWHJUDWHG±LHWKHDELOLW\IRUWKH-+:6WRORRNPRUHEURDGO\WKDQKHDOWKDQG
VRFLDOFDUHLQUHODWLRQWRFORVHULQWHJUDWLRQRIFRPPLVVLRQLQJ
'LVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHDFFHVVVHUYLFHVDFURVVPXOWLSOHDJHQFLHVDQGWKHUHIRUHDUH
GLVSURSRUWLRQDWHO\DIIHFWHGE\SRRULQWHJUDWLRQEHWZHHQKHDOWKDQGVRFLDOFDUHVHUYLFHVDQGD

ODFNRIFRRUGLQDWHGFRPPLVVLRQLQJ+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVPXVWZRUNZLWKNH\SDUWQHUV
WRPHHWWKHQHHGVRIGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHLQFOXGLQJHGXFDWLRQSURYLGHUVDQG
VFKRROVVDIHJXDUGLQJERDUGVORFDOFKLOGUHQ¶VWUXVWDUUDQJHPHQWVOHDUQLQJGLVDELOLW\SDUWQHUVKLS

ERDUGVDQGRWKHUV+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVVKRXOGPDNHUHFRPPHQGDWLRQVWRHQVXUHWKDW
GLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHH[SHULHQFHVHDPOHVVLQWHJUDWLRQEHWZHHQWKHVHUYLFHVWKH\
DFFHVV

,Q SDUWLFXODU +HDOWK DQG :HOOEHLQJ %RDUGV VKRXOG FRQVLGHU KRZ WKH\ HQJDJH ZLWK HGXFDWLRQ
VHUYLFHV LQFOXGLQJ VFKRROV DQG FROOHJHV EHFDXVH RI WKH VLJQL¿FDQFH RI MRLQHG XSZRUNLQJ
EHWZHHQKHDOWKHGXFDWLRQDQGVRFLDOFDUHWRGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VRXWFRPHV

7RSURPRWHLQWHJUDWHGFRPPLVVLRQLQJ+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVZLOODOVRQHHGWRFRQVLGHU
KRZ VSHFLDOLVHG KHDOWK VHUYLFHV FRPPLVVLRQHG E\ 1+6 (QJODQG DUH MRLQHG XS ZLWK ORFDOO\
FRPPLVVLRQHGVHUYLFHVDQGHQVXUHWKH\DUHWDNHQLQWRDFFRXQWE\WKHLU-61$DQG-+:6

507
+RZWRPHHW\RXU&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQWV

,QRUGHUWRIXO¿OWKLVFRPPLWPHQWZHZRXOGH[SHFWD+:%WREHDEOHWRSURYLGHWKH
IROORZLQJHYLGHQFH
 'HWDLOVRIWKHZD\LQZKLFKWKH+:%LVLQIRUPHGE\WKRVHZLWKH[SHUWLVHLQ
HGXFDWLRQDQGFKLOGUHQ¶VKHDOWKDQGVRFLDOFDUH
 'HWDLOVRIWKHZD\WKH+:%HQJDJHVZLWKZLGHUSDUWQHUVVXFKDVKRXVLQJ
WUDQVSRUWVDIHJXDUGLQJDQGWKH\RXWKMXVWLFHV\VWHP

 'HWDLOVRIVWHSVWDNHQWRHQFRXUDJHLQWHJUDWHGZRUNLQJEHWZHHQKHDOWKVRFLDOFDUH
HGXFDWLRQDQGZLGHUSDUWQHUVLQRUGHUWRLPSURYHWKHVHUYLFHVDFFHVVHGE\GLVDEOHG
FKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHV

.H\UHVRXUFHVIRUPHHWLQJWKLV&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQW

7RJHWKHUIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ  )DFLOLWDWLQJLQWHJUDWHGSUDFWLFHEHWZHHQ
FKLOGUHQ¶VVHUYLFHVDQGKHDOWK

7KLVUHSRUWFRQWDLQVH[DPSOHVRILQQRYDWLYHZRUNLQJSUDFWLFHZKHUHVHUYLFHVDUHLQWHJUDWHG
ZLWKKHDOWK

&RXQFLOIRU'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQ  3DWKZD\VWRVXFFHVV*RRGSUDFWLFHJXLGHIRU
FKLOGUHQ¶VVHUYLFHVLQWKHGHYHORSPHQWRIVHUYLFHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQHYLGHQFHIURP
WKHSDWK¿QGHUFKLOGUHQ¶VWUXVWV
7KLVSURMHFWUDQIURP$SULOWR0DUFKDQGVHWRXWWRZRUNDORQJVLGHWKH
SDWK¿QGHUFKLOGUHQ¶VWUXVWVLQGHYHORSLQJQHZZD\VRIZRUNLQJDQGWRFDSWXUHWKHOHDUQLQJ
IURPWKHLUZRUN7KHZRUNFRYHUHGVWUDWJHLFSODQQLQJFRPPLVVLRQLQJVHUYLFHVSRROLQJ
EXGJHWVMRLQWZRUNLQJDQGFRORFDWLRQDVVHVVPHQWSURFHVVDQGLQIRUPDWLRQVKDULQJ

(DVW0LGODQGV(YHU\ERG\¶VOHDUQLQJ  $VVXUHGVDIHJXDUGLQJ*3DQG+HDOWK
/HDGHUHGLWLRQ

5HVRXUFHWRKHOSFRPPLVVLRQHUVDQGKHDOWKSURYLGHUVUHDVVXUHWKHPVHOYHVWKH\DUH
GRLQJHYHU\WKLQJSRVVLEOHWRHQVXUHWKDWFKLOGUHQZLWKLQWKHVHUYLFHVIRUZKLFKWKH\DUH
UHVSRQVLEOHDUHDVVDIHDVSRVVLEOH

2IVWHG  ,PSURYLQJRXWFRPHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQE\LQWHJUDWLQJHDUO\VXSSRUW
DQGSUHYHQWLRQVHUYLFHV/XWRQ%RURXJK&RXQFLO

/XWRQ¶VVHUYLFHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQGWKHLUIDPLOLHVEULQJWRJHWKHUSUDFWLFHDFURVV
KHDOWKVRFLDOFDUHDQGHGXFDWLRQVHUYLFHVDORQJVLGHLQQRYDWLYHVKRUWEUHDNDQGHDUO\
VXSSRUWSURYLVLRQ7KHGHYHORSPHQWRIDQH[WHQVLYHUDQJHRILQWHJUDWHGHDUO\VXSSRUWDQG
SUHYHQWLRQVHUYLFHVLVLPSURYLQJRXWFRPHVIRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQGSUHYHQWLQJVLWXDWLRQV
GHWHULRUDWLQJVRWKDWFKLOGSURWHFWLRQRUORRNHGDIWHUVHUYLFHVEHFRPHQHFHVVDU\

&RPPLWPHQW:HSURYLGHFRKHVLYHJRYHUQDQFH
DQGOHDGHUVKLSDFURVVWKHGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQG
\RXQJSHRSOH¶VDJHQGDE\OLQNLQJHIIHFWLYHO\ZLWK
NH\SDUWQHUV
508

6WDWXWRU\GULYHUV

+HDOWKDQG6RFLDO&DUH$FW

3RZHUWRHQFRXUDJHFORVHZRUNLQJ LQUHODWLRQWRZLGHUGHWHUPLQDQWVRIKHDOWK 
 EHWZHHQLWVHOIDQGFRPPLVVLRQHUVRIKHDOWKUHODWHGVHUYLFHV

 EHWZHHQFRPPLVVLRQHUVRIKHDOWKVHUYLFHVRUVRFLDOFDUHVHUYLFHVDQG
FRPPLVVLRQHUVRIKHDOWKUHODWHGVHUYLFHV

3RZHUWRDSSRLQWDGGLWLRQDOPHPEHUVWRWKHERDUGDVGHHPHGDSSURSULDWH

3RZHUIRU+:%WRUHTXHVWLQIRUPDWLRQIRUWKHSXUSRVHVRIHQDEOLQJRUDVVLVWLQJLWV
SHUIRUPDQFHRIIXQFWLRQVIURP
 WKHORFDODXWKRULW\

 FHUWDLQPHPEHUVRUWKRVHWKH\UHSUHVHQWZLWKDGXW\WRSURYLGH
&KLOGUHQ$FW

5HTXLUHPHQWIRUHDFKORFDODXWKRULW\WRKDYHDFKLOGUHQ¶VWUXVWERDUGZKLFKPXVW
LQFOXGHUHSUHVHQWDWLYHVRIWKHORFDODXWKRULW\DQGHDFKRIWKHFKLOGUHQ¶VWUXVWµUHOHYDQW
SDUWQHUV¶
/RFDOVDIHJXDUGLQJFKLOGUHQ¶VERDUGVSXWRQVWDWXWRU\IRRWLQJ

&KLOGUHQDQG)DPLOLHV%LOO FXUUHQWO\LQ3DUOLDPHQW

&ODXVH /RFDODXWKRULWLHVPXVWSURPRWHWKHLQWHJUDWLRQRIVSHFLDOHGXFDWLRQKHDOWK
DQGFDUHSURYLVLRQ
&ODXVH /RFDODXWKRULWLHVDQGWKHLUSDUWQHU&&*VPXVWPDNHDUUDQJHPHQWVIRUWKH
MRLQWFRPPLVVLRQLQJRIHGXFDWLRQKHDOWKDQGFDUHSURYLVLRQIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJ
SHRSOHZLWK6(1
&ODXVH /RFDODXWKRULWLHVPXVWNHHSXQGHUUHYLHZVSHFLDOHGXFDWLRQSURYLVLRQDQG
VRFLDOFDUHSURYLVLRQIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWK6(1DQGFRQVLGHUWKHH[WHQW
WKDWLWLVVXI¿FLHQWWRPHHWWKHLUQHHGV

&ODXVH /RFDODXWKRULWLHVPXVWSXEOLVKD/RFDO2IIHUFRQWDLQLQJLQIRUPDWLRQDERXW
VHUYLFHVDYDLODEOHIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWK6(1LQFOXGLQJHGXFDWLRQKHDOWK
DQGFDUHSURYLVLRQ
7KHUROHRIWKH+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGPXVWEHXQGHUVWRRGLQUHODWLRQWRQHZDQGH[LVWLQJ

SDUWQHUVKLSV LQFOXGLQJ ORFDO FKLOGUHQ¶V WUXVW DUUDQJHPHQWV ORFDO VDIHJXDUGLQJ FKLOGUHQ¶V

ERDUGV OHDUQLQJ GLVDELOLW\ SDUWQHUVKLS ERDUGV DQG RWKHUV $ FOHDU ORFDO IUDPHZRUN RQ KRZ
WKHVHSDUWQHUVKLSVLQWHUDFWQHHGVWREHHVWDEOLVKHGWRDYRLGWKHGXSOLFDWLRQRIHIIRUWRUHYHQ

FRPSHWLQJIRUUHVRXUFHV

509

7KH -61$V DQG -+:6 QHHG WR EH DOLJQHG ZLWK RWKHU DUUDQJHPHQWV VXFK DV UHYLHZLQJ DQG

FRPPLVVLRQLQJRI6(1VHUYLFHVYLDWKH+LJK1HHGV%ORFNVDIHJXDUGLQJDUUDQJHPHQWVFKLOG

SRYHUW\VWUDWHJLHVDQGFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VSODQVLIWKH\DUHVWLOOXVHG

$GGLWLRQDOO\ WKH &KLOGUHQ DQG )DPLOLHV %LOO FXUUHQWO\ LQ 3DUOLDPHQW FRQWDLQV FODXVHV IRU

SURPRWLQJLQWHJUDWLRQEHWZHHQVSHFLDOHGXFDWLRQDOSURYLVLRQKHDOWKDQGVRFLDOFDUHSURYLVLRQ
  PDNLQJ MRLQWFRPPLVVLRQLQJ DUUDQJHPHQWV   NHHSLQJ HGXFDWLRQ DQG FDUH SURYLVLRQ

XQGHUUHYLHZ  DQGSURGXFLQJDORFDORIIHU  IRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWK6(1

7KHVHQHZGXWLHVRQORFDODXWKRULWLHVDOOKDYHDFOHDUUHOHYDQFHWRWKHIXQFWLRQVRIWKH+HDOWK
DQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGWRHQFRXUDJHLQWHJUDWHGZRUNLQJSURPRWHFORVHZRUNLQJDQGXQGHUWDNH

D-61$DQG-+:67KLVLVSDUWLFXODUO\LPSRUWDQWDV&&*VZLOOEHXQGHUDQHZGXW\WRVHFXUH
VSHFL¿FVHUYLFHVLQHGXFDWLRQKHDOWKDQGFDUHSODQVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWK6(1 

,QGLFDWLYHUHJXODWLRQVDOVRPDNHFOHDUWKDWORFDODXWKRULWLHVPXVWFRQVXOW+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ
%RDUGVZKHQSUHSDULQJDQGUHYLHZLQJLWV/RFDO2IIHU 

+RZWRPHHW\RXU&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQWV

,QRUGHUWRIXO¿OWKLVFRPPLWPHQWZHZRXOGH[SHFWD+:%WREHDEOHWRSURYLGHWKH
IROORZLQJHYLGHQFH

 ,QIRUPDWLRQRQOLQNVWRRWKHUORFDOLQWHJUDWLRQIRUXPVZKLFKVHWVWUDWHJLFGLUHFWLRQ
IRUGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQ¶VVHUYLFHVHJWKHORFDOFKLOGUHQ¶VWUXVWDUUDQJHPHQWVWKH
ORFDOVDIHJXDUGLQJERDUGWKHOHDUQLQJGLVDELOLW\SDUWQHUVKLSERDUGWKHVFKRRO
IRUXPHWF
 (YLGHQFHRIKRZWKH-61$DQG-+:6LVDOLJQHGZLWKRWKHUDUUDQJHPHQWVVXFK
DVUHYLHZLQJDQGFRPPLVVLRQLQJRI6(1VHUYLFHVYLDWKH+LJK1HHGV%ORFN
VDIHJXDUGLQJDUUDQJHPHQWVFKLOGSRYHUW\VWUDWHJLHVHWF

.H\UHVRXUFHVIRUPHHWLQJWKLV&KDUWHUFRPPLWPHQW
1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ  &KLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHDQGKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJ
ERDUGVSXWWLQJSROLFLHVLQWRSUDFWLFH

'HYHORSHGE\WKHKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUGOHDUQLQJVHWIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJ
SHRSOHSDUWRIWKH1DWLRQDO/HDUQLQJ1HWZRUNIRUKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUGVWRJLYH
+:%PHPEHUVVRPHLGHDVRIKRZRWKHUERDUGVDUHRUJDQLVLQJWKHPVHOYHVWRGHOLYHU
FRRUGLQDWHGVHUYLFHVIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH



6HH'HSDUWPHQWIRU(GXFDWLRQ  6FKRROIXQGLQJUHIRUPSS


6HH'HSDUWPHQWIRU(GXFDWLRQZHEVLWH  &KLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWKVSHFLDOHGXFD
WLRQDOQHHGVWREHQH¿WIURPQHZOHJDOKHDOWKGXW\


7KH6SHFLDO(GXFDWLRQDO1HHGV /RFDO2IIHU  (QJODQG 5HJXODWLRQVKWWSPHGLDHGXFD
WLRQJRYXNDVVHWV¿OHVSGIFFODXVHGUDIWUHJXODWLRQVVHQORFDORIIHUSGI

510
&KLOGUHQDQG<RXQJ3HRSOH¶V+HDOWK2XWFRPHV)RUXP  +HDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJ
ERDUGVDQGFKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGIDPLOLHV

3RVWHUSURGXFHGLQ-XQHE\WKHKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUGOHDUQLQJVHWIRUFKLOGUHQ
DQG\RXQJSHRSOH

(DVWRQ&+HWKHULQJWRQ06PLWK5:DGH3$VWRQ+DQG*HH*  /RFDO
$XWKRULWLHV¶$SSURDFKHVWR&KLOGUHQ¶V7UXVW$UUDQJHPHQWV /*$5HVHDUFK5HSRUW
7KH/RFDO*RYHUQPHQW$VVRFLDWLRQFRPPLVVLRQHGWKH1DWLRQDO)RXQGDWLRQIRU(GXFDWLRQDO
5HVHDUFK 1)(5 WRLQYHVWLJDWHORFDODXWKRULWLHV¶DSSURDFKHVWRWKHLUFKLOGUHQ¶VWUXVW
DUUDQJHPHQWVDQGKRZWKH\DUHIXO¿OOLQJWKHLUGXW\WRSURPRWHFRRSHUDWLRQZLWKSDUWQHUV
WRLPSURYHFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJ

511
*HQHUDOUHVRXUFHV
7KH0DUPRW5HYLHZ )HEUXDU\ )DLU6RFLHW\+HDOWK\/LYHV$6WUDWHJLF5HYLHZRI
+HDOWK,QHTXDOLWLHVLQ(QJODQG3RVW
3URIHVVRU6LU0LFKDHO0DUPRWZDVDVNHGE\WKHWKHQ6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWHIRU+HDOWKWR
FKDLUDQLQGHSHQGHQWUHYLHZWRSURSRVHWKHPRVWHIIHFWLYHHYLGHQFHEDVHGVWUDWHJLHVIRU
UHGXFLQJKHDOWKLQHTXDOLWLHVLQ(QJODQG

.HQQHG\3URI6LU,DQ 6HSWHPEHU *HWWLQJLWULJKWIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH
2YHUFRPLQJFXOWXUDOEDUULHUVLQWKH1+6VRDVWRPHHWWKHLUQHHGV
$QLQGHSHQGHQWUHYLHZRIVHUYLFHVSURYLGHGE\WKH1+6WRFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH
FRQFHQWUDWLQJRQXQGHUVWDQGLQJWKHUROHRIFXOWXUHLQWKH1+6,WIRFXVHVRQDUHDVZKHUH
WKHUHDUHFXOWXUDOEDUULHUVWRFKDQJHDQGLPSURYHPHQWDQGPDNHVUHFRPPHQGDWLRQV

1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ5HVRXUFHVIRU+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGV

7KH1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQKDVEHHQZRUNLQJZLWKHDFKKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUGOHDUQLQJ
VHWLQFROODERUDWLRQZLWKWKH1+6,QVWLWXWHIRU,QQRYDWLRQDQG,PSURYHPHQW'HSDUWPHQW
RI+HDOWKDQG/RFDO*RYHUQPHQW$VVRFLDWLRQWRSURGXFHSXEOLFDWLRQVZKLFKVXPPDULVH
WKHLUNH\SRLQWVRIOHDUQLQJDQGZKLFKZLOOEHVKDUHGZLWKRWKHUVKDGRZKHDOWKDQG
ZHOOEHLQJERDUGV

1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ  &KLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJUHYLHZ
RIGRFXPHQWV

%ULH¿QJVXPPDULVLQJWKHNH\SROLF\GRFXPHQWVRQFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOH¶VKHDOWKDQG
ZHOOEHLQJWKDWKDYHEHHQSXEOLVKHGRYHUWKHODVWWZR\HDUV´

1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ  6XSSRUWDQGUHVRXUFHVIRUKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUGV

6XPPDU\RIWKHVXSSRUWDYDLODEOHWRVSUHDGQHWZRUNLQJDQGOHDUQLQJRSSRUWXQLWLHVIRU
+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGV

1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQ  1DWLRQDOOHDUQLQJQHWZRUNIRUKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJERDUG
SXEOLFDWLRQV

$OLVWRISXEOLFDWLRQVSURGXFHGE\7KH1DWLRQDO/HDUQLQJ1HWZRUNIRUKHDOWKDQGZHOOEHLQJ
ERDUGVWRVKDUHOHDUQLQJDQGVXSSRUWWKHHVWDEOLVKPHQWRIZHOOIXQFWLRQLQJERDUGV

/RFDO*RYHUQPHQW$VVRFLDWRQ5HVRXUFHVIRU+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVIRFXVLQJRQ
FKLOGUHQ\RXQJSHRSOHDQGIDPLO\LVVXHV
7KH+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGOHDUQLQJVHWIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHORRNHGDW
WKHLVVXHVLPSRUWDQWWRWKHGHYHORSPHQWRI+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGV7KHOHDUQLQJ
VHWVDUHDSDUWRIWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK¶VGHYHORSPHQWDQGVXSSRUWSURJUDPPHIRU
+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGVZKLFKLVVXSSRUWHGE\WKH/*$1+6&RQIHGHUDWLRQDQG
1+6,QVWLWXWH1LQHOHDUQLQJVHWVIRFXVHGRQDQXPEHURIWKHPHVLQFOXGLQJJRYHUQDQFH
UHVRXUFHVDQGSXEOLFHQJDJHPHQW

*HWWLQJWKH%HVW2XWRI<RXU+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUG/HDGHUVKLS'HYHORSPHQW
2IIHU+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUG,QIRUPDWLRQ5HVRXUFH

7KLVGRFXPHQWEULQJVWRJHWKHULQIRUPDWLRQDERXWSXEOLFDWLRQVDQGZHEVLWHVZKLFKVKRXOG
EHRIYDOXHWR+HDOWKDQG:HOOEHLQJ%RDUGV

512
&KLOGDQG0DWHUQLW\+HDOWK2EVHUYDWRU\

&KL0DWZDVHVWDEOLVKHGLQDVDQDWLRQDOSXEOLFKHDOWKREVHUYDWRU\WRSURYLGHZLGH
UDQJLQJDXWKRULWDWLYHGDWDHYLGHQFHDQGSUDFWLFHUHODWHGWRFKLOGUHQ¶V\RXQJSHRSOH¶V
DQGPDWHUQDOKHDOWK

1DWLRQDO9RLFHV

7KHQDWLRQDOFRDOLWLRQRIKHDOWKDQGVRFLDOFDUHFKDULWLHVLQ(QJODQG7KH\ZRUNWRJHWKHU
WRVWUHQJWKHQWKHYRLFHRISDWLHQWVVHUYLFHXVHUVFDUHUVWKHLUIDPLOLHVDQGWKHYROXQWDU\
RUJDQLVDWLRQVWKDWZRUNIRUWKHP

5HJLRQDO9RLFHV

6XSSRUWVWKHYROXQWDU\VHFWRUWRVXFFHVVIXOO\LQÀXHQFHORFDOVWUDWHJLFGHFLVLRQPDNLQJLQ
KHDOWKDQGVRFLDOFDUH7KLVJURXSRISDJHVOLQNVWRDYDULHW\RIUHVRXUFHVWRVXSSRUW\RX
GHYHORSVWUDWHJLHVWRLQÀXHQFHLQ\RXUORFDODUHD

$ERXW8V
(YHU\'LVDEOHG&KLOG0DWWHUVLVWKHQDWLRQDOFDPSDLJQWRJHW
ULJKWVDQGMXVWLFHIRUHYHU\GLVDEOHGFKLOG,WLVUXQE\IRXU
OHDGLQJRUJDQLVDWLRQVZRUNLQJZLWKGLVDEOHGFKLOGUHQDQGWKHLU
IDPLOLHV&RQWDFWD)DPLO\&RXQFLOIRU'LVDEOHG&KLOGUHQ
0HQFDSDQGWKH6SHFLDO(GXFDWLRQDO&RQVRUWLXP
7KH&KLOGUHQ¶V7UXVW7DGZRUWKLVWKHOHDGLQJ8.FKDULW\IRU
FKLOGUHQZLWKDFTXLUHGEUDLQLQMXU\PXOWLSOHGLVDELOLWLHVDQG
FRPSOH[KHDOWKQHHGV7KH7UXVW¶VVHUYLFHVLQFOXGHWKH8.¶V
ODUJHVWUHKDELOLWDWLRQFHQWUHIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWK
DFTXLUHGEUDLQLQMXU\QXUVLQJFDUHIRUWHFKQRORJ\GHSHQGHQW
FKLOGUHQDQGHGXFDWLRQIRUFKLOGUHQDQG\RXQJSHRSOHZLWK
SURIRXQGDQGPXOWLSOHOHDUQLQJGLI¿FXOWLHVDQGFRPSOH[KHDOWK
QHHGV

513

Agenda Item 16

Trust Headquarters
1 Horizon Place
Mellors Way
Nottingham Business Park
Nottingham
NG8 6PY
Telephone: 0115 884 5000
Fax: 0115 884 5001
Website: www.emas.nhs.uk
Ref: JD/MJW

Monday, 2 March 2015
OSC Scrutiny Officer
address
Dear
Re: East Midlands Ambulance Service draft Quality Account 2014/15, version 1.0
Each year we send to your committee a draft copy of our Quality Account - an annual report that
providers of NHS healthcare services must publish in June to inform the public of the quality of the
services they provide.
The Account also allows us to demonstrate our commitment to provide the best quality services for
people in the East Midlands.
As you are aware, May 2015 will see the General Election take place. As a result, we were asked in
February by a couple of Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees to provide the draft Account earlier
this year to avoid purdah which starts on 30 March 2015.
To assist, we have brought forward the production of the Account by two-months and I am happy to
enclose with this letter our first draft Quality Account for 2014/15. In doing so, I ask you to note the
following:
•

The Quality Account is for 2014/15 and this current performing/financial year will not conclude
until 31 March. Therefore the enclosed document is missing some information which will be
added early April after year end (we have included up-to-date figures where possible). We will be
sending version 2 - the updated draft version - of this report to other stakeholders in April for
review and comment. If you would like to receive a copy of version 2 we will be happy to forward
it to you. Alternatively, we will ensure you receive a copy of the final version which will be
published on the NHS Choices and EMAS websites (www.nhs.uk and www.emas.nhs.uk) before
30 June 2015 (as per national guidelines).

•

Once final comments and changes have been received by the EMAS Trust Board in May 2015,
we will have the document designed to include some photograph images and graphs where
appropriate. Given the amount of detail we have to share, this will aid the reader by breaking-up
the text heavy document. Unfortunately, in reviewing this first draft and working to the revised
production timescales you will not have the aesthetic benefit of the images or graphs.

•

Whilst we are a regional service, we will ensure county based data is included for our
performance and the compliments and complaints received, allowing people to see how we
perform in their local area.
Chief Executive: Sue Noyes

Chairman: Pauline Tagg

514

In the enclosed draft we have been able to demonstrate where we are doing well and where we need to
make improvements. The Account features our priorities for the coming year (2015/16) and details how
we have progressed against the priorities identified for 2014/15.
The past year has been a very challenging time for all UK Ambulance Services and the NHS in general,
with many of the challenges being promoted via national and regional media.
I am pleased that EMAS representatives have been able to visit your committee recently to update you
on our vision and future plans. From those recent discussions you will know that despite the increase in
demand, hospital pressures which impact on the ability of Emergency Department colleagues to accept
a clinical handover from our ambulance crews, and challenging winter weather at times, we have
continued to improve the care and services we provide to local people.
We still have a lot of work to do and we don’t always get it right. However, our Listening into Action staff
engagement programme and new substantive Trust Board is seeing a change in culture and ‘the way we
do things’ at EMAS. Our colleagues are working incredibly hard and this, together with the continued
support from the NHS Trust Development Authority and our Commissioners, will see us continue to
make significant steps to develop and improve our services.
Your organisation is invited to make comment on the enclosed version ahead of purdah on 30 March. As
in previous years, official responses submitted to EMAS via rebekah.marong@emas.nhs.uk will be
included in the final version of the document.
If you would value a representative of EMAS attending a meeting of yours during May or June 2015 to
present the final version of our Quality Account, we would be happy to arrange for an Executive Director
and / or county-based General Manager to attend. To take up this opportunity, please make your request
in writing and send it to rebekah.marong@emas.nhs.uk.
Yours sincerely

Judith Douglas
Director of Nursing and Quality
Enc

515

Our pledge to you
Our Quality Account 2014/2015

Production note: The final version of this Quality Account will include end of year figures
(1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015) and will be produced in an attractive format to aid the
reader by breaking-up the text with the use of patient experience photographs (where
consent has been obtained) and stories.

1
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

516

Our Quality Account
2014/15
Contents

Page

Introduction and declaration of accuracy

3

About us

4

Review of quality improvements for 2014/15

7

What we want to do better in 2015/16 – our priorities

12

Evidence of quality improvements for 2014/15

17

What we have done to improve patient safety

23

Evidence for improvements in clinical effectiveness

26

What we have done to improve patient experience

34

Improving the care environment

44

Appendix 1 – Workforce
Appendix 2 – IG Toolkit
Appendix 3 – Research & Development
Appendix 4 – Care Quality Commission
Appendix 5 – Third Party Statements
Appendix 6 – EMAS Trust Board

45
49
50
57
58
59

Glossary

62

Contact details

65

2
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

517

Introduction
Production note: this Quality Account relates to the 2014/15 performance year which concludes on
31 March 2015.
Due to the General Election in May 2015, it has been necessary to produce this draft two months
early (to comply with national guidance and share with OSCs before purdah starts on 30 March).
As such EMAS does not have end of year figures to include in the document at this stage, and this
introduction piece will be written once the year end position is clear.
The Chief Executive’s introduction is therefore to be inserted here in April 2015.

Declaration of accuracy
I confirm that to the best of my knowledge the information presented in our Quality Account is
accurate.
add signature here when document complete & all statistics included
Sue Noyes
Chief Executive

3
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

518

About us
East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS) provides emergency and urgent healthcare on the
move and in the community.

EMAS Vision and Values
It is our vision to play a leading role in the provision, facilitation and transformation of clinically
effective urgent and emergency care delivered by highly skilled, compassionate staff, proud to
work at the heart of their local community.
We are on a journey transforming from a mainly emergency focussed service, reliant on a single
Accident and Emergency contract (e.g. providing blue light responses to 999 calls), to an
organisation that provides the most appropriate and effective response to patients, for example
providing care directly, sign posting or referring patients to the best service to support them in their
homes and the community, and reducing admission to hospital where appropriate. We will do this
by working closely with primary, community, social care, mental health and secondary care
services.
This will allow the NHS to deliver more with less and allow EMAS to move into new business
areas. We want to be able to deliver a locally focussed service, with regional resilience.
Our Values support everything we do.
Respect: Respect for our patients and each other
Integrity: Acting with integrity by doing the right thing for the right reasons
Contribution: Respecting and valuing the contribution of every member of staff
Teamwork: Working together and supporting each other
Competence: Continually developing and improving our individual competence
Our Values help us provide our patients with access to high quality clinical care and services to
ensure the best experience and clinical outcome.

People we serve
The East Midlands is undergoing similar demographic changes to the rest of the country, with a
growing and aging population with ethnicity and health differences.
There are specific local area differences and challenges, such as student populations and areas
with specific concentrations of young families or retirees, and significant variations in population
densities.
Historically the region’s population has been growing faster than nationally and this looks set to
continue over the next decade, which will put pressure on our existing and new services. Health
inequalities are marked across the region, with generally poorer levels of health in the urban
centres as evidenced through Public Health England data.
It must be our priority together with our commissioners to ensure equality of service provision to all
patients.

4
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

519
The area we cover
We provide emergency 999 and urgent care services for a
population of approximately 4.86 million people within the East
Midlands region.
The region, which covers approximately 6,425 square miles,
includes the counties of Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Lincolnshire,
Nottinghamshire and Northamptonshire and Rutland.
There are large differences in population density across the East
Midlands, from the highly concentrated urban areas and more
dense population corridor along the M1, to the low density rural
areas to the east.
There are several airports within our region, with the largest
being East Midlands Airport, serving over 4.2 million passengers
each year.
The M1 motorway serves all of the region’s county towns with the exception of Rutland and
Lincoln.
Two of the UK’s mainline railways serve the region, providing regular high-speed services, and
there are currently plans to bring a new high-speed rail line through the East Midlands as part of
the High Speed 2 project.
The East Midlands is home to numerous entertainment venues including major sporting venues,
national parks and forests, the East Coastline, music festivals and venues, the National Space
Centre, and holiday and caravan parks.

Our services
Our annual turnover is £154million (2014/15) and we are commissioned (paid) to provide services
by 22 Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) based across the East Midlands. We deal directly
with the A&E contract lead in NHS Erewash CCG which represents the other CCG’s in the region.
We employ over 2,700 colleagues, with the majority being frontline Accident and Emergency
ambulance personnel.
Patient Transport Services (PTS) are currently provided for people who have routine (non-urgent
and scheduled) clinic appointments across North and North East Lincolnshire and parts of
Nottinghamshire. Other counties in the region are served by private PTS companies commissioned
by the CCGs.
We operate from more than 65 locations across the East Midlands, including two Emergency
Operations Centres (EOCs) in Nottingham and Lincoln, which host our call handling function and
over 60 ambulance stations across the East midlands where our colleagues report on and off duty.
Every day we receive approximately 2,155 calls from people dialling 999 and from other healthcare
professionals making urgent transport requests.
During 2014/15, we dispatched response vehicles to [enter end of year figure here] calls using our
fleet of 530 vehicles.
We also use 32 Patient Transport Service vehicles and in 2014/15 invested in Community First
Responder vehicles.
5
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

520
In addition to our core services, we provide a range of other key services including:
•

Specialist transfers: inter-hospital transfers that include adult critical care or for specialised
surgery, paediatric and neo-natal care.

•

Bariatric transfers: specialist services and equipment to transport bariatric patients (our
bariatric ambulances can transport patients up to 50 stone).

•

Emergency Preparedness and Business Continuity (Regional Resilience): a service that
ensures we are prepared to deal with a range of civil contingencies and major incidents. It
works closely with the six Local Resilience Forums across the region, each of which
includes Local Authorities, Police and Fire services. This also ensures business continuity
in the event of a civil contingency or other adverse event that affects normal operations.

•

Hazardous Area Response Team (HART): a dedicated team providing specialised cover for
civil contingencies, major incidents and Chemical, Biological, Radiological and Nuclear
(CBRN) incidents.

•

Events Support: a commercially available team that provides support to special events
which include sporting, musical and athletic showcases across the region.

•

Admission Avoidance Schemes – through a number of schemes across the East Midlands
including Falls Partnership Services and GP in a car.

•

Cycle Response Units – carry the same essential life-saving equipment as a fast response
car and can reach patients even faster in congested areas. Often patients can be treated on
the scene by the Cycle Response Units meaning our ambulance vehicles can be deployed
to other life threatening emergency calls.

•

Community Access Automated External Defibrillators (AED) – we have placed life-saving
equipment in local communities across the East Midlands. AEDs are used when someone
has gone into cardiac arrest (i.e. when the heart stops pumping blood around the body).
The defibrillator gives the heart an electric shock to allow effective cardiac rhythm to be reestablished.

6
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

521

Review of quality improvements for 2014/15
This quality account demonstrates our achievements for the year 2014/15 and what we are aiming
to achieve in the coming year.
We are required to achieve a range of performance outcomes specific to the nature of the services
we provide to the public. In addition, we are required to achieve many other organisational
responsibilities as laid down by the Department of Health.

Our 2014/15 priorities
We identified the following quality improvement priorities against the three domains of quality,
these being,
•
•
•

Clinical effectiveness
Patient safety
Patient experience

Priority 1: Consolidation and further development of EMAS’ role in the management of long
term conditions working in partnerships with the various health communities across the East
Midlands.
Priority 2: Development of an organisational succession plan aligned with the Leadership and
Talent Management Framework.
Priority 3: Implementation and evaluation of a staff engagement strategy using the Listening
into Action methodology.
Priority 4: Improving response times through more effective use of resources resulting in
reduced conveyance to hospital by:
Priority 5: Development and implementation of a programme of public engagement activities
focusing on hard to reach/vulnerable groups with a view to using feedback to improve our
services
In this Quality Account we evidence how these priorities have been met and are progressing.

7
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

522
Commissioning for quality and innovation (CQUIN)
A proportion of EMAS’s income in 2014/15 was conditional on achieving quality improvement and
innovation goals agreed between EMAS and Erewash Clinical Commissioning Group (our lead
commissioners).
The CQUIN schemes are an opportunity for us to provide services that focus on quality
improvements. The benefits of the schemes can be validated and if successful will be provided
through the commissioning process.
EMAS signed up to deliver the following 10 schemes and have provided evidence of how these
schemes have impacted on the quality of care that we provide as well as how the work will
continue to be supported going forward.
•

Paramedic Pathfinder: This electronic triage (assessment) tool has been rolled out across
our service to allow our ambulance crews on scene to access the most appropriate health
service for the patient. This has led to an increase in the number of patients that can have care
delivered in their own home or place of residence. The initiative is planned to be continued
through next year as a further CQUIN to ensure the tool is fully embedded and evaluated.

•

Risk trigger tool: Introduced in 2010 this tool recorded whether key observations had been
documented by our clinicians when assessing and treating patients. We reviewed the
performance of the trigger tool and found it was no longer giving a true representation of
triggers for harm in the patients we serve. We took action and developed a new objective tool
with clear indicators for harm. It was introduced at the end of quarter 3 and applied to all data
obtained at that time. As a result, the new indicators of potential harm are clearly based upon
current evidence or link to likelihood of harm. This has reduced subjective and varied reporting
and allows us to focus our audit processes, together with colleague feedback, on high impact
areas of patient care. Current trigger tool performance indicates approximately 95% of patient
report forms evidence no triggers for potential harm. It is important to note that this may not
indicate actual harm.

•

Mental Health Steering Group: This new group has been set up to improve the service we
provide to patients with a mental health illness. It will also allow us undertake more partnership
working, such as the successful Mental Health Car initiative which runs in Lincolnshire.

•

Dementia: A dementia assessment tool has successfully been rolled out across the service. It
has enabled the attending crews to assess whether a patient is potentially suffering from
dementia and to refer that patient to appropriate services to allow a comprehensive
assessment and diagnosis of dementia. This piece of work will be continued through our new
Mental Health Steering Group. We have held an awareness communication campaign
internally and provided face-to-face education. A leaflet was developed with a trigger question
to promote early intervention for those with dementia. We have further supported this work
with the recruitment of dignity champions that will promote both the dementia, and the EMAS
dignity and respect campaigns and work plans.

•

Clinical Assessment Team (CAT): We have improved patient care by making significant
changes to our Clinical Assessment Team. The team of registered nurses and paramedics are
based in our Emergency Operations Centre. They undertake detailed assessment of a
patient’s needs and use an electronic directory to ensure those who are not reported to be in
an emergency or urgent condition, are directed to a more appropriate, alternative health
service. We have recruited more clinicians to the team and this has led to a reduction in the
number of people we take to hospital. This means we are able to leave more patients safely in
the comfort of their own home, or in the care of a community based service, and have reduced
unnecessary admissions to busy emergency hospitals. Changes to the team have also
allowed us to concentrate on education and training and provide a robust service that will
continue to develop and improve.
8

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

523
•

General Practitioner in CAT: A general practitioner is based in our CAT during peak times
allowing our CAT paramedics and nurses to refer patients to the GP for a more detailed
medical assessment or further medical opinion. As well as substantially enhancing the quality
of care we provide, this has allowed us to share case studies for educational purposes, and
provide more clinical supervision to our colleagues. We are exploring the employment of dual
qualified nurses – particularly looking at those with midwifery and mental health expertise - to
further develop our CAT by increasing skill mix without increasing costs.

•

High volume service users: Our commissioners wanted to understand current issues in their
area in regard to the number of people calling 999 on a regular basis for help. By having the
bigger picture, commissioners aim to explore the potential to develop alternative care
pathways for this group of patients. We provided data for the top ‘high volume users’ showing
the location of the patient at time of call, number and type of calls made, number of telephone
or face-to-face responses given (e.g. ambulance travelling to scene) and number of times the
patient was taken to hospital or a treatment centre. As a result, care plans have been put in
place to provide these patients with better access and support from local health and social
care teams.

•

Serious incidents and high level concerns: The learning undertaken from serious incidents
and high level concerns has ensured that all at EMAS are sighted on the level of incidents, the
outcome of the investigations and, importantly, the lessons learnt. To strengthen the process
we will deliver a learning event for colleagues and key stakeholders in May 2015 and have
made a commitment for this to be an annual event.

•

Formal complaints: We took a ‘deep dive’ on the formal complaints and PALS (queries that
come into our Patient Advice and Liaison Service) received at EMAS. This has enabled us to
scrutinise the lessons learnt. We will further work to ensure we strengthen processes and all
opportunities to learn lessons and that patient engagement and feedback remains central to all
our services.

•

Friends and Family Test: We rolled out of the national Friends and Family Test to colleagues
and patients asking: 1) Would you recommend this service to your family and friends, and 2)
Would you recommend us as an employer to your family and friends? The feedback allows us
to monitor results internally, act on the findings and benchmark our results, including response
rates, against other NHS organisations.

9
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

524
New services and innovation
As detailed earlier in this report, EMAS’ vision is to play a leading role in the provision, facilitation
and transformation of clinically effective urgent and emergency care. This means that together with
our commissioners and other healthcare services, we need to continually explore new ways of
providing better care to our patients. Here is an example of more of the initiatives that have taken
place during 2014/15 to help improve the quality of care we provide to our patients.
Telehealth pilot: During March 2015 we will launch this new pilot scheme. Using existing
technology, the pilot will allow us to help people with long-term conditions (eg. chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease, diabetes, dementia etc) residing in care homes. Telehealth
equipment allows us to proactively monitor the health of the patient(s) by measuring their
blood pressure, blood glucose levels or weight. Providing this proactive support to patients
and colleagues in Care Homes can reduce the number of times our paramedics need to
visit. Care Home staff and / or the patient is taught how to do the tests themselves and the
measurements are automatically transmitted to a secure facility at our Emergency
Operations Centre (control). Our control paramedics and nurses can monitor the patient’s
condition on a daily basis and can proactively talk to the Care Home and / or patient over
the telephone to raise any concerns and provide reassurance and advice.
Joint Ambulance Conveyance Project (JACP): This was launched after Lincolnshire Fire
Service secured funding to extend the current co-responding scheme which has been
running for many years. Their co-responders continue to attend medical incidents, but now,
in an ambulance vehicle while our paramedic also responds in a Fast Response Vehicle
(car). Our paramedic will assess if the patient needs to go to hospital and if so, will travel
with the patient in the ambulance providing any necessary treatment en route.
Community Ambulance Stations (CAS): We are introducing CAS in each county across
the East Midlands to help us provide more locations for our ambulance crews to have
comfort breaks (including drink making facilities and toilets). Providing more locations
allows our crews to stay in the community rather than having to return to their station base.
Many CAS are shared facilities with other public sector organisations meaning we save
costs and build on our relationship with these organisations.
Mental health initiative: We are working with a team of mental health nurses and
Lincolnshire police to provide better care for people with mental health issues. The scheme
involves the healthcare teams travelling around the county responding to calls from 999
operators, A&E crews and Police services who think a person they are dealing with would
benefit from mental health support. The scheme reduces demand on A&E resources, as
well as reducing the number of people with mental health issues arrested or put into
custody.

10
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

525
Enhancing quality improvement and assurance
During 2014/15 we have continued to improve our quality and assurance processes. Through a
variety of ways we have talked with and listened to our colleagues and patients to identify areas for
improvement and to help share best practice.
We reviewed how we measure the standard and quality of care provided and have adopted a
‘quality roadmap’ tool which is aligned to the Care Quality Commission outcome standards and key
lines of enquiry, and other pertinent legislation or clinical initiatives.
Quality Everyday is our new programme to ensure we are focussed on quality at every opportunity,
and that everyone at EMAS understands their responsibility and contribution to deliver a high
quality service. The programme provides ambulance crews with a comprehensive, up-to-date
range of standards which can be measured and allow for timely and accurate feedback.
Four strands are included in Quality Everyday.
•
•
•
•

Central inspections (audits)
Monthly quality visits
Quality newsletter
Quality station / base noticeboards

The inspections will be undertaken by the station management teams to ensure compliance with
key areas, for instance infection control, medicine management, vehicle and station inspections.
Together with the monthly visits, they will provide a rag rated action plan to ensure that any
identified concerns are addressed, and areas of good practice are recognised and shared
throughout the service.
The Quality Everyday noticeboards and newsletter will help improve communication and
engagement with colleagues, via the sharing of key messages, patient feedback, lessons learned
from incidents and discussions at our local and strategic Learning Review Groups (protecting the
identity of those involved), and local clinical updates and performance standards data.

11
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

526

What we want to do better in 2015/16
We are ambitious at EMAS and we are all working hard to bring about significant improvements to
the services we provide.
By talking with and listening to our colleagues, patients and stakeholders we are able to learn and
act on things that did not go well and from those that had a good outcome (it is important to learn
from both the bad and good).
As in 2014/15, we have identified three domains of quality:
•
•
•

Clinical effectiveness
Patient safety
Patient experience

Against those we have set five quality improvement priorities for 2015/16:
Priority 1: Develop the paramedic pathfinder algorithms to support
ambulance colleague clinical decision making with patients suffering falls,
general frailty/social care situations, end of life care and Chronic
Obstructive Airways Disease.
During 2015/16 particular focus will be on the following:

Clinical
effectiveness

•

To increase the number of services that we access via the
Pathfinder Programme to support patients to stay at home rather
than go to hospital when admission is not required.

•

Work in partnership with the Clinical Commissioning Groups and
Community and Acute providers in the East Midlands to improve
the management of these conditions and presenting symptoms.

•

To reduce unplanned admissions and to provide care closer to
home through the use of innovation underpinned by clinical safety.

•

To use our ‘hear and treat’ (provided by our Clinical Assessment
Team) and ‘see and treat’ (provided by our ambulance crews)
services appropriately.

Lead: Medical Director

Priority 2: Develop a frail elderly steering group and action plans to
deliver unilateral trust wide schemes with locally agreed pathways to
ensure integrated support to individuals who are frail.
During 2015/16 particular focus will be the following:
•

To work in partnership with the Clinical Commissioning Groups,
Community and Acute providers within East Midlands to improve
the management of the frail elderly to enable these patients to be
assessed to ensure that they can access the services that
promote independence and wellbeing.

12
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

527
•

Delivery of a trust-wide falls service

•

Effective use of our ‘hear and treat’ (provided by our Clinical
Assessment Team) and ‘see and treat’ (provided by our
ambulance crews) services to reduce inappropriate admission to
hospital

•

To work collaboratively with residential and nursing homes to
ensure that the residents can access care and support and reduce
inappropriate hospital admissions

Lead: Medical Director

Priority 3: Having signed up to the National Mental Health Crisis
Concordant, we will work collaboratively with local commissioners and
relevant stakeholders to implement the agreed priorities within the mental
health action group.
During 2015/16 particular focus will be the following:
•

Concentrate on the implementation of the Mental Health Triage
Car (currently operational in Lincolnshire) across the East
Midlands.

•

To ensure that there are mental health workers in our Clinical
Assessment Team and Emergency Operations Centres.

•

To produce and agree mental health awareness and education
sessions to support our colleagues.

This will require cross boundary working and collaboration across Clinical
Commissioning Groups and other key stakeholders.
Lead: Director of Nursing and Quality

Priority 4: Following the continued improvement of our ambulance card
quality indicator ‘Return of Spontaneous Circulation (ROSC)’ outcomes,
we will continue to explore further innovative ways to build upon these
achievements.
During 2015/16 particular focus will be the following:
•

Completion of ‘Pit Crew Concept’ training for the management of
cardiac arrest

•

Increase the presence of frontline clinical supervision to all active
resuscitation attempts

•

Conclude the evaluation of Mechanical CPR (cardio pulmonary
resuscitation) devices and determine future use

•

Enable the ‘hot debrief’ of clinicians following attendance at a
cardiac arrest call to support continued improvement
13

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

528

•

Work with partner Trusts to increase access to Heart Attack
centres for patients with pre and post return of spontaneous
circulation (ROSC) and high risk Acute Coronary Syndrome.

This will require continued collaborative working across all directorates
within EMAS to ensure these improvements can be delivered whilst
maintaining our ability to provide core services.

14
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

529

Priority 5: Having enrolled on the national Sign Up To Safety Campaign,
we will work to reduce avoidable harm in mental health, maternity and
adverse events in the Emergency Operations Centre with particular focus
on delayed responses.
In 2015/16 the priority will be:

•

To collect the baseline data in each of these areas to determine
the level of reduction required.

•

Using this data, identify key actions for year one (of a three year
programme) that we will implement, monitor and report on.

•

To deliver a 50% reduction in harm over the three years of the
programme

Patient safety

Lead: Director of Nursing and Quality

Priority 6: Develop a robust patient forum group and strategy that will
ensure that we are working with all of our local communities.
During 2015/16 this will include:
•

Recruit inclusively across our local communities to ensure we
have a broad range of patients and carers join our patient forum

•

To have clear terms of reference and an agreed work plan to
strengthen patient engagement throughout EMAS.

•

Deliver a programme of patient engagement events throughout the
year

•

To have patient representation in key EMAS meetings and the
patient forum to be the internal resource to ensure that patients
are fully consulted on service improvements

Patient experience

Lead: Director of Nursing and Quality

Priority 7: Use the EMAS ‘Listening into Action’ staff engagement forums
to enhance the delivery of compassion in practice and ensure we are
promoting and rolling out schemes that will enhance the care we deliver
and ensure colleagues are patient focussed.
During 2015/16 we will:

•

Support the continued implementation of the national
#hellomynameis campaign, designed to remind healthcare staff
about the importance of introductions in the delivery of patient
care.

•

Relaunch and promote our Dignity Champions role, recruiting

15

530
more champions and sharing case studies to demonstrate the
difference the Champions can make to patient care and our
services.
Lead: Director of Nursing and Quality

16
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

531

Evidence of quality improvements for 2014/15
This section details progress made against our 2014/15 priorities.
Priority 1: Consolidation and further development of EMAS’ role in the management of long
term conditions working in partnerships with the various health communities across the
East Midlands.

Aim

To work with other
healthcare providers to
allow us to provide
better advice and
treatment when
responding to people
with a long-term
condition, and to direct
patients and carers to
the most appropriate
support networks,
helping them find
people to share their
experiences with and
to access the right
care.

What we did

During 2014/15 we
worked jointly with the
regional stroke network
to facilitate greater
alignment of the various
stroke admission
protocols across the
acute hospital service
providers to ensure
equity of access to
care.
We worked with partner
providers to introduce
pathways to broaden
the scope of access
specialist care at Heart
Attack Centres.
A reductive triage tool
(Paramedic Pathfinder)
was introduced to
assist ambulance
clinicians in determining
which patients can be
safely managed within
the community without
the need for transport
to Emergency
Departments.

What we have
achieved

We have aligned our
pathways for stroke
services to reduce
confusion and
provide a more
streamlined
process, right
across the region.
An algorithm was
developed to enable
access to primary
percutaneous
coronary
intervention (PPCI)
services for patients
in cardiac arrest.
Comparatively more
patients are being
managed within the
community and less
transported to the
Emergency
Departments.

Quality Indicators

Ambulance Care
Quality Indicators.
EMAS consistently
performs in the top 4
of ambulance
services when
accessing Hyperacute
Stroke Units and
PPCI Catheter
Laboratories in line
with the stroke 60 and
STEMI 150 standard.
A significant %
increase in ‘see and
treat’ referrals to
community based
providers.

17
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

532
Priority 2: Development of an organisational succession plan aligned with the Leadership
and Talent Management Framework.

Aim

To ensure that EMAS
has the leadership
capacity and capability
to deliver
transformation and
continual improvement.

What we did

We developed the
EMAS People
Capability Framework,
founded on the values
of the NHS
Constitution.
The framework
articulates the required
abilities, attitudes and
behaviours required
across EMAS. It
defines the capabilities
required at manager
(first line, middle &
senior), executive and
board level.

What we have
achieved
The framework
supports our values
based recruitment
programme. It has
also been integrated
into the 2015
Appraisals and
Talent Management
System.
Leadership and
management
development plans
are now being
produced for
implementation in
2015

Quality Indicators

Appraisal findings
e.g. actual achieved
versus target
achieved

18
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

533
Priority 3: Implementation and evaluation of a staff engagement strategy using the
Listening into Action methodology.

Aim

To use the staff
engagement feedback
and evaluation, and
demonstrate
improvements for both
patients and staff.

What we did

Through the 2014 staff
engagement
programme Listening
into Action (LiA) we
aimed to mobilise and
empower colleagues to
lead and drive change
both locally and at an
organisational level,
and embed LiA as ‘the
way we do things
around here’.
A number of listening
events were held
across the region
together with station
and ‘pass it on’ events
providing opportunities
to listen, engage,
involve and
communicate change
and celebrate success.

What we have
achieved

Quality Indicators

A wide-range of
‘quick wins’ were
achieved, including
(but not limited to):
• Improved access
to charitable
funds to improve
facilities for
colleagues at
stations
• Reestablishment of
the Ambulance
Technician role
• ‘No Change’
Fridays
• Appreciation
letters being
placed on
colleague
personal files
There are more
LiA improvement
examples in the
Workforce section
of this Quality
Account (appendix
1)

NHS Staff Opinion
Survey results, NHS
Friends and Family
Test results,
recruitment and
retention and
sickness rates,
through the EMAS
appraisal system,
reports to EMAS
Trust Board, and via
LiA year 2 feedback

19
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

534
Priority 4: Improving response times through more effective use of resources resulting in
reduced conveyance to hospital by:

Aim

What we did

The progression of our
robust improvement
plans continue to see
us make steps in the
right direction for our
patients, local
communities and our
colleagues.
Our plans include the:

To improve the speed
of response to
emergency and urgent
999 calls, whilst
recognising the
assessment, treatment,
experience and clinical
outcome for each
patient are vital too.

• Effective use of our
control paramedics
and nurses in the
Clinical Assessment
Team to give more
‘hear and treat’
advice, reducing
unnecessary
journeys
• Implementation of
Paramedic
Pathfinder (an
assessment tool to
support decision
making) and an
electronic Directory
of Services to give
better sign posting
of services and
allow more
treatment in the
community
• Working in
partnership with
Clinical
Commissioning
Groups to identify
and work with care
homes with high
conveyance rates to
better manage
patients in the home
• Introduction of
regular GP sessions
in the Emergency
Operations Centre

What we have
achieved

Quality Indicators

We are getting to
more patients
faster than ever
before.
EMAS is no longer
the worst
performing
Ambulance
Service to sitting
mid-table when
compared to all
other UK services
based on year to
date performance
figures (as at
26/02/15). We are
also one of the
best performing
non-Foundation
Trust Ambulance
Services based on
year to date
performance
figures (as at
26/02/15, and
continue to work
hard to bring
further
improvements.

National
Performance
Standards and
Clinical Quality
Indicators –
published by the
Department of
Health

20
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

535
• Improved care
planning for high
volume service
users.
More details on these
initiatives can be found
in this Quality Account.

21
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

536
Priority 5: Development and implementation of a programme of public engagement
activities focusing on hard to reach/vulnerable groups with a view to using feedback to
improve our services

Aim

What we did
Incorporated a patient
experience section to
the EMAS 2014
Reputation Audit
conducted across the
East Midlands during
July - September.

Revitalised the Patient
Experience Forum
To obtain feedback and which is now chaired by
use the experiences of the Director of Nursing,
the people we serve, to and is attended by
continue to improve our patients and their carer.
services.
Successfully secured
funding from the EMAS
Charitable Funds
Committee to hold a
series of focus groups
across the region to
actively engage with
our patients including
those in ‘seldom heard’
groups.

What we have
achieved

Better patient
engagement and
enhanced
feedback received
from our patients
and other
members of the
public, allowing us
to address areas of
concern and praise
colleagues where
positive
experiences and
good outcomes
have been
reported.

Quality Indicators

Improvement in
patient feedback
metrics such as
Friends and Family
Score and EMAS
2014 Reputation Audit
results.
Improved
relationships, greater
public involvement in
initiatives and
advocacy of services.

More opportunities
to promote and
share best practice
throughout the
Trust.

22
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

537

What we have done to improve patient safety
Learning from incidents, experiences and feedback
We have an open and honest approach at EMAS and encourage and support colleagues to report
good and bad practice so we can identify learning and take steps to either replicate things that
work well in other areas or reduce the risk of an adverse incident happening again.
At EMAS we identify learning from a wide range of sources such as untoward incidents or serious
incidents, compliments and complaints, patient surveys and discussions at focus groups or
community events.
We share learning across the organisation through our established Strategic Learning Review
Group (SLRG). SLRG members, which include senior representatives from all divisions and teams
within EMAS review the feedback and learning and promote the learning outcomes across the
service.

Quality Visits
Our quality visits allow us to provide Trust Board members with the opportunity to observe and
evidence patient safety, experience and clinical effectiveness.
All Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors should undertake at least two quality visits
each year and these should take place in the county for which they are the lead.
The following areas are visited as part of our quality visits:
•
•
•
•
•

Hospital emergency departments
EMAS Emergency Operations Centre
EMAS Training Centres, and Headquarters (HQ) including divisional HQs
Ambulance Stations
Other Trust sites e.g. Fleet and Logistics, Hazardous Area Response Team HQ

The purpose of quality visits is to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Show meaningful visible leadership
Engage with colleagues and if possible patients and their carers
Triangulate information
Obtain assurance
Identify issues/barriers and ideas for solutions
Communicate key messages

A total of 23 visits have been undertaken in EMAS during 2014/15 [as at 27 February]. These visits
have proved successful in engaging frontline staff in the safety agenda and providing a
constructive way for EMAS Board members to demonstrate visible leadership.
A template is completed by the Board member to record feedback which is collated into a report
and actions addressed. The information collated during 2014/15 tells us:
What’s good?
• Crews were observed to be caring and compassionate to patients and family members and
they were treated with dignity and respect.
• The crews were observed to wear their uniform smartly and were professional in their
approach to caring.
23
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

538
•
•

Staff seemed more positive about the use of Electronic Patient Report Form in some areas.
Observed good team working despite increased workload pressures and service demands.

What could be improved?
• The Team Leader/Clinical Team Mentor (CTM) role.
• The availability of vehicles and reliability of vehicles.
• Communication and sharing additional information between Emergency Operations Centre
and frontline staff regarding nature of the emergency they are travelling to.
• Career progression - especially Emergency Care Assistant to Paramedic opportunities.
What ideas do staff or patients have for improvement?
• Better understanding of the Emergency Care Assistant (ECA) role
• Robust development opportunities of ECA’s
• Better education of the public on appropriate use of ambulance and 999 calls
• Ensuring staff numbers and skill mix meet the demand of the service
• Build resilience amongst the workforce and ambulances

Serious incidents (SI)
Our transparent approach sees us proactively encourage colleagues to report patient safety
incidents in line with a mature safety culture. Reporting allows us to analyse what happened and
identify and put in place actions to reduce the risk of recurrence. [enter number at year end%] of all
patient safety incidents (including SIs) reported during 2014/15 resulted in low or no harm
which indicates a healthy reporting culture. During the year, EMAS identified [enter number at year
end%] serious incidents requiring investigation. The general themes related to:
• Care management
• Delayed response
• Incorrect coding of calls
[these may change at year end]
The EMAS Trust Board regularly receives an update on the number and type of serious incidents
reported. Again supporting our open approach, the Board meeting papers are made available to
the public approximately a week before each monthly meeting via www.emas.nhs.uk/aboutus/trust-board/
As part of the Serious Incident Investigation process a Root Cause Analysis (RCA) meeting takes
place at which the root cause, contributory factors and learning for both individuals and the
organisation are established; recommendations and Action Plans are also put in place to prevent
reoccurrence. The actions are closely monitored on a monthly basis until closure. A review of
learning and implemented actions is completed every 6 months by the SLRG to provide assurance
that the learning and actions are embedded practice and have resulted in service improvement.

Safeguarding
We continue to prioritise safeguarding as a critical part of providing high quality care. Our approach
to safeguarding is based on promoting dignity, rights and respect, helping all people to feel safe
and making sure safeguarding is ‘everyone’s business’. Over the years the safeguarding agenda
has continued to grow across EMAS from Board to frontline staff.
Safeguarding in EMAS is well embedded and encompasses:
•
•

Prevention of harm and abuse through provision of high quality care
Effective responses to allegations of harm and abuse
24

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

539
•
•

Seeking responses that are in line with local multi agency procedures
Using learning to improve service to patients

Improving patient safety with safeguarding
To aid a more joined up approach to safeguarding, streamline process and increase patient safety,
we introduced SystmOne into the safeguarding team in early 2014. NHS Connecting for Health is
delivering the National Programme for IT to bring modern computer systems into the NHS which
will improve patient care and services. SystmOne is the local service provider; it links to the
national spine and allows users to access the patient demographic service, summary care record
and reporting.
To protect patients and colleagues a VIP, Celebrity and Media Visitor Access Policy has been
produced in response to a recommendation made by the independent oversight of NHS and
Department of Health investigation into matters relating to Jimmy Savile. The policy has been
ratified by the EMAS Clinical Governance Group.
Safeguarding reporting remains an important component of patient safety management. Towards
the end of 2014 the line management responsibility of the Safeguarding Triage Team, formerly
known as the Clinical Assessment Support (CAS) desk, has been transferred to the EMAS
Safeguarding Team within the Nursing and Quality Directorate.
The small but experienced Safeguarding Triage Team provide a 24/7 telephone safeguarding
referral telephone service for frontline staff to make their safeguarding referrals/care concerns.
The Child Protection - Information Sharing (CP-IS) project is a national programme to help protect
children and young people particularly those who are subject to a child protection plan and who are
looked after. This programme allows the sharing of child protection information from Local
Authorities to the NHS with a return message indicating that a child has been seen in an
unscheduled care setting. The CP-IS stores only minimal information on a restricted set of children
and the NHS number is being used as the unique number. Our Director of Nursing for EMAS has
signed up to this project and it will be piloted in Nottingham.

25
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

540

Evidence for improvements in clinical
effectiveness
Part of ensuring clinical effectiveness is through scrutiny of our clinical care against best practice,
in other words ‘clinical audit’. This provides the means by which we ensure quality clinical care, by
making individuals accountable for setting, maintaining and monitoring standards. It is focussed
around the three domains of quality - clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience.
Each year the Clinical Audit programme is agreed and the audits completed according to the plan.
For clinical audit, topics are divided into 4 main types:
•
•
•
•

Mandatory
Discretionary
Performance driven
Staff initiation

Clinical audit topics are selected according to priorities which may include some of the
following considerations:
1. Is the area concerned of high cost, volume or risk to patients or staff and therefore forms
part of the Trust’s Board Assurance framework and risk register?
2. Is there evidence of serious quality problems e.g. patient complaints or high incident rates?
3. Is there good evidence available to inform standards i.e. national clinical guidelines?
4. Is the problem concerned amenable to change?
5. Is there potential for impact on health outcomes?
6. Is there opportunity for involvement in a national audit project?
7. Is the topic pertinent to national policy initiatives?
8. Does the topic relate to a recently introduced treatment protocol?
9. Subjects raised by Risk Management and Untoward Incident Reporting system
Recommendations from clinical audit are a) distributed to frontline staff to ensure improvement in
clinical practice and b) used to drive EMAS’ continuous quality improvement aims. We also
contribute to the development of clinical audit in ambulance services nationally by participation in
national audits and clinical performance indicators as well as being a member of the National
Ambulance Clinical Quality Steering Group and the Ambulance Service Association/JRCALC (Joint
Royal Colleges Ambulance Liaison Committee) Clinical Effectiveness Committee.
So what has been happening in Clinical Audit over the past year?
Each year our requirements for clinical information continue to increase together with a number of
national audit requirements.
As well as providing our Clinical Ambulance Quality Indicators (ACQIs) data (stroke, STEMI and
cardiac arrest) to NHS England, and participating in the full national programme of Clinical
Performance Indicators (CPIs) – these include asthma, febrile convulsion, hypoglycaemia and
lower limb fracture - we maintained and further developed our local programme of clinical audit
work, thus reviewing and ensuring clinical effectiveness wherever possible.
We now produce monthly reports on all the AQIs and national CPIs, as well as our local CPIs
(exacerbation of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and suspected fractured neck of femur),
which are shared with clinical and operational colleagues. The CPIs are also presented as a
quarterly report, which compares performance by locality.
26
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

541
The projects described on the Clinical Audit & Service Monitoring Plan 2014/15 are complete (or
are a continuous requirement and are up-to-date). As part of this, we produced audits/evaluations
on major trauma, the safety of downgrading Red 2 calls (life-threatening 999 calls), and the usage
and management of controlled drugs.
The team regularly provides clinical information and reports for a number of unplanned, ad hoc
requests. Some examples from 2014/15 are:
•

Prolonged waits evaluation

•

End-tidal carbon dioxide (ETCO2) monitoring in intubation

•

Non-conveyance (patient can be assessed and treated at the scene and does not need
taking to a hospital or treatment centre) evaluation

•

Freedom of Information requests

•

Patient report form requests

As well as producing the initial reports, on-going monitoring for two of these topics: ETCO2 and
prolonged waits, are now provided in two new monthly reports.
We also publish the quarterly Clinical Effectiveness Report, which brings together all EMAS’
clinical metrics in one summary document.

National Clinical Performance Indicators (CPI)
The National CPIs have seen changes in the preceding twelve months as new National CPIs are
developed for single limb fracture and febrile convulsions. The report gives more prominence to the
data, and in particular the care bundles for each national CPI.

Data Collection and reports
The eleven ambulance trusts in England submit data to the National CPI co-ordinator who
produces a cycle report using various analytical techniques. The reports that are produced are
distributed to the National Ambulance Service Medical Directors (NASMed), as well as to each
individual ambulance service. Each CPI has a number of indicators based on best practice and as
described below.
The four current National CPIs are as follows:

Hypoglycaemia
The aim for this CPI is ‘Improved assessment and management of hypoglycaemic patients’
“If blood glucose levels are too low (<4.0mmol/L), hypoglycaemia must be reversed through prehospital care to avoid permanent brain damage or death.”
To assist in the care this CPI has four elements which are monitored;
H1
H2
H3

Blood glucose assessed prior to treatment
Blood glucose assessed after treatment
treatment for hypoglycaemia administered
27

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

542
H4

Direct referral made to an appropriate health professional.

This CPI was one of the original CPI’s introduced with good compliance for all the elements with
H1, H2 and H3 all having a national mean of over 97%. H4 has a national mean of 70% following
the most recent cycle; this is lower due to not all pathways and referral options being available to
pre hospital care colleagues.

Asthma
“on average, 4 people per day or 1 person every 6 hours dies from asthma. It is estimated that
approximately 90% of asthma deaths could have been prevented if the patient, carer or health care
professional had acted differently.”
The CPI has five elements
A1
A2
A3
A4
A5

Respiratory rate assessed
PEFR assessed prior to treatment
SpO2 recorded
Beta 2 agonist administered
Oxygen administered

The above CPI was one of the original CPIs introduced with good compliance for all the elements
with A1, A3, A4,A5 all having a national Mean of over 97% by the end of the most recent cycle. A2
has a national mean of 78% which is improving from cycle 1 where it was 49.4%

Single limb fracture
“Extremity fracture is commonly seen in pre-hospital care. They demonstrate a wide variety of
injury patterns which depend on the patient’s age, mechanism of injury and premorbid pathology”
The CPI has the following four elements
F1
F2
F3
F4

Two Pain scores recorded (pre and post treatment)
Analgesia administered
Immobilisation of limb recorded
Assessment of circulation distal to fracture site recorded

Febrile Convulsions
“A febrile convulsion is a seizure associated with fever occurring in a young child. Most occur
between six months and five years of age. Febrile seizures arise most commonly from infection or
inflammation outside the central nervous system in a child who is otherwise neurologically normal”
This CPI has five elements
V1
V2
V3
V4

Blood glucose
SpO2 recorded (prior to O2 administration)
Administration of anti-convulsant if appropriate
Temperature management recorded
28

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

543
V5

Appropriate discharge pathway recorded

There is a set cycle in which these indicators are audited and the reports presented for inclusion in
clinical improvement plans.

29
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

Here we share the Clinical Audit and Service Monitoring Plan for 2014/15, showing the status of each of the audit subjects.

Clinical Audit & Service Monitoring Plan 2014/15
Audit
Myocardial
Ischaemia
National Audit
Project (MINAP)

National Clinical
Performance
Indicators (nCPIs)

Mandatory national audit
requirement

Mandatory national audit
requirement

Mandatory –
national
performance
monitoring

Timescale

Continuous
requirement

As per nCPI
programme

Monthly

Notes
 Provision of audit information to acute trusts
upon request.

Status at end 2014/15



Requirements met
throughout the year



EMAS is responsible
for co-ordinating the
data from all English
ambulance services
and producing the
reports according to
the cycle
requirements.



Requirements met
throughout the year
and published on a
monthly basis. They
are then collated into
the quarterly Clinical
Effectiveness
Report, which is
presented to the
Clinical Governance
Group and Quality
Governance
Committee before
dissemination to

 Hypoglycaemia, asthma, febrile convulsions,
single limb fracture.
 Data collection as required.
 Analysis of local and national data, report /
template preparation and dissemination.

 Cardiac arrest (ROSC and survival).
 Stroke (care bundle and arrival at hyperacute
stroke centre in 60 minutes).
 STEMI (care bundle, PPCI/thrombolysis
within 60 minutes).
 Analysis, report preparation and submission
to Department of Health/Unify.

30

544

Ambulance
Clinical Quality
Indicators
(ACQIs)

Type

clinicians.

Local Clinical
Performance and
Quality Indicators
(LCPIs)

Monitoring –
performance
monitoring,
required for IG
toolkit /
NHSLA

Monthly

Quarterly

 PTL-led PRF completion compliance audit.
 Data collection.
 Data analysis / report preparation.



Requirements met
according to the
cycle throughout the
year



This audit is
completed for
NHSLA and CQUIN
requirements, as well
as to ensure good
patient care
documentation. The
audit is completed at
station level to
encourage
immediate feedback
to clinicians. The
reports are
presented at Clinical
Governance Group
after which the report
is widely
disseminated to
clinicians.

545

PRF compliance
and Trigger Tool
monitoring

Discretionary –
local clinical
audit project

 Topics include asthma, hypoglycaemia,
COPD, suspected fractured neck of femur,
stroke, STEMI, stroke/HASU 60 mins,
STEMI/PPCI 150 mins.
 Based on all patients for each topic, broken
down by EMAS division.
 Data collection as required.
 Analysis, report preparation and
dissemination.

31
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

R2 assessment

Trauma Audit &
Research
Network (TARN)
Audit

Discretionary national audit



Annual

 Ongoing evaluation of the clinical safety of
downgrading Red 2 calls.
 Data collection, analysis, report preparation
and dissemination.

This audit was
requested by the
Medical Director and
has been completed.

Continuous
requirement

 Provision of audit information to acute trusts
upon request.



Completed



This is completed by
the Trust’s
Accountable Officer
for
Controlled Drugs and
the report presented
to Clinical
Governance group
before
dissemination.

Mandatory
local service
monitoring

6 monthly

 Monitoring of correct storage and
management of controlled drugs in line with
misuse of controlled drugs regulations

Controlled drugs
usage audit

Mandatory
local service
monitoring

Annual

 Monitoring the use of controlled drugs in line
with the duties of accountable officers.



Completed.

Major trauma
audit

Discretionary local audit



Annual

 Evaluation of the use of major trauma
pathways.
 Data collection, analysis, report preparation
and dissemination.

This is complicated
and difficult audit to
complete due to the
many trauma
definitions. The audit

546

Controlled drugs
storage and
management
audit

Discretionary –
monitoring/
evaluation

32
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

will be presented to
Clinical Governance
Group.

Suspected
fractured neck of
femur audit

Discretionary local audit

Annual

 Evaluation of the care of patients suffering
from suspected fractured neck of femur.
 Data collection, analysis, report preparation
and dissemination.

This is now covered as
part of local CPIs.

547
33
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

548
Learning and encouraging colleagues to become involved in Clinical Audit
Over this year results from clinical audit and the recommendations have been widely distributed to
clinicians to ensure that clinical practice is affected. There have been a number of ways this has
been done e.g. staff bulletins, the Clinical Up-date publication and face-to-face contact with staff as
well as through the divisional and strategic learning review groups.
EMAS Research and Development
Our reputation as a leader in pre-hospital research has increased over the past five years. We are
now collaborating in more high quality externally funded studies and lead a prestigious £2 million
National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) Programme for Applied Research: Pre-hospital
Outcomes for Evidence Based Evaluation (PhOEBE) in partnership with the Universities of
Sheffield, Lincoln and Swansea.
One of the drivers for increased ambulance service research in England has been the National
Ambulance Research Steering Group (NARSG), set up in 2007 with support from EMAS’ Chief
Executive, and chaired by EMAS’ Associate Clinical Director, Prof Niro Siriwardena. The role of
NARSG is to set a strategy and develop the pre-hospital research agenda for ambulance services
in England.
Our success has enabled us to source funds for research in excess of £2.5 million since 2008. We
are currently collaborating on, or leading a number of research studies, more than half are eligible
for registration on the National Institute for Health Research Clinical Research Network Portfolio
(NIHR CRN).
Engaged in 5 portfolio studies, we topped the 2012/13 NIHR CRN national league table for
ambulance services. A further four funding applications have been successful and received funding
from the NIHR programmes during 2014/15.
Research studies eligible for inclusion in the NIHR CRN portfolio are supported by an NHS
research infrastructure. The support available includes additional funding and training. To be
considered eligible for adoption on the NIHR CRN portfolio a study must be a fully funded high
quality research study. Some research is automatically eligible, for example, research funded by
the NIHR, NIHR non-commercial partners (e.g. The Health Foundation) or other areas of
Government. Other research (e.g. commercial collaborative research) may also be eligible but will
need to undergo a formal adoption process to be considered. Audits, needs assessments, quality
improvements and local service evaluations are not eligible for adoption or support.
We have established good working relationships with our East Midlands NIHR Research Design
Service, who provide extensive advice and support, through the East Midlands Ambulance
Research Alliance (EMARA). EMARA is the strategic research group for EMAS supporting both inhouse and external research that aims to develop our service as a centre of excellence for patient
focused pre-hospital research and evidenced-based practice. Through EMARA we have developed
strong links with higher education institutes.
Our research status to date for year 2014/2015 is detailed in appendix 3 of this Quality Account.

34

549

What we have done to improve patient
experience
Compliments
During 2014/15, we received more than [enter number at year end%] expressions of appreciation
from patients or members of the public. This is an increase/decrease from previous years. When
the colleague can be identified by the information provided, the individual(s) are thanked personally
by the Chief Executive in the form of a letter which accompanies a copy of the patient feedback.
We are grateful to the patients and their relatives who have been happy to share their experiences
at our public Trust Board meeting and with local and national media. We are tremendously proud
to be able to promote the achievements of our colleagues in this way and it always gives a real
boost to morale.

Formal Complaints (FC)
During 2014/15, EMAS identified [enter number at year end%] formal complaints requiring
investigation; [enter number at year end%] related to our Accident and Emergency Services
(x.xxx% in relation to journeys provided or xxx complaints from xxx,xxx journeys), and x to our
Patient Transport Services (x.xxxx% in relation to journeys provided or x complaints from xxx,xxx
PTS journeys).
Following investigation xx complaints were found to be justified and xx partially justified. The
remainder were not justified or not applicable (e.g. the complaint related to a different service).
The general themes related to:
• Delayed response and non-conveyance to green category calls
• Staff attitude
• Care management
• Call management
[these may change at year end]
This table demonstrates how many compliments and complaints were received per county during
2014/15:
County
Derbyshire
Leicestershire & Rutland
Lincolnshire
Northamptonshire
Nottinghamshire
Emergency Operations Centre
Not specific

Compliments
tbc
tbc
tbc
Tbc
Tbc
tbc
tbc

Complaints
tbc
tbc
Tbc
Tbc
Tbc
tbc
tbc

All formal complaints require investigation to establish the facts of the case and identify learning for
both individuals and the organisation. The investigation also allows us to provide recommendations
to prevent reoccurrence. Action plans are completed following each investigation and actions are
closely monitored until closure.
General approaches to learning from serious incidents and formal complaints include:
• Communication of key learning points through education, training, communication and
awareness
• Clinical case reviews and reflection of the practice by individuals

35

550
• Amendment to policies, procedures and practices
• Themes being reviewed by our Learning Review Group which consists of multi-disciplinary
membership

Ombudsmen Requests
During 2014/15, we received five requests for information from the Ombudsmen. Of these, the
Ombudsmen confirmed four were not upheld, and one remains open [figures may change at year
end 31 March 2015].

National review of NHS complaints system
In February 2013, the Francis Report into Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust was published.
It included: “A complaints system that does not respond flexibly, promptly and effectively to the
justifiable concerns of complainants not only allows unacceptable practice to persist, it aggravates
the grievance and suffering of the patient and those associated with the complaint, and
undermines the public’s trust in the service.” The Francis report prompted the Prime Minister and
the Secretary of State for Health to commission a review of NHS hospital complaints handling.
As a result, in October 2013, a review by MP Ann Clywd and Professor Tricia Hart was published,
titled A review of the NHS Hospitals Complaints System. Putting Patients Back in the Picture.
EMAS reviewed both reports and identified actions to help us bring about change to improve
quality of care; the way complaints are handled; ensure independence in complaints procedures
and whistleblowing. The actions have been monitored via the EMAS Quality and Governance
Committee as part of the Patient Experience Quarterly Reports.
[version 2 of this Quality Account to include year-end update on EMAS actions taken and
completed]

Patient Feedback
During 2014/15 we replaced the previous postal patient surveys for accident and emergency
patients, with a programme of patient focus groups and other engagement activities delivered
jointly by the EMAS Community Engagement and Patient Experience teams. A series of public
engagement events took place during the first two quarters of the year with 767 patients taking part
in the EMAS Reputation Audit for 2014.
87% of patients who took part in the audit stated they had been either satisfied or extremely
satisfied with the care received by EMAS.

36
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

551

Six monthly postal patient surveys continue to be undertaken for the North Lincolnshire and Goole
Patient Transport Service (PTS) patients. Of the 400 surveys sent out during quarters 1 and 2 of
2014/15, we received 75 responses; a 19% response rate. 90% of respondent stated they were
either likely or extremely likely to recommend our services to friends or family.
From October 2014 all PTS and see and treat patients were issued with a Friends and Family
comment card (a national NHS survey), to rate their care via the Net Promoter Score (NPS). The
NPS is obtained by asking patients the question, ‘on a scale of 0 to 10 (10 is extremely likely and 0
is not at all likely) how likely would you be to recommend East Midlands Ambulance Service to
family and friends? Based on their reply, patients are categorised into one of three groups:
promoters (who gave a 9-10 rating), passives (who gave a 7-8 rating) and detractors (who gave a
0-6 rating).
The percentage of detractors is subtracted from the percentage of promoters to obtain the Net
Promoter Score – it can be as low as -100 (all those surveyed gave a 0-6 rating) to +100 (all those
surveyed gave a 9-10 rating). An NPS that is positive (i.e. higher than zero) is felt to be good, and
an NPS of +50 is excellent.
The Net Promoter Score for EMAS came in at [enter final result at year end].

37
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

552
Patient stories
EMAS captures patients’ experience in a variety of ways. One way is by inviting patients and
carers into our Trust Board meetings to tell their story. We have included two examples below of
where we have done well or where we have identified areas for improvement.
Mrs B story, reported at the November 2014 EMAS Trust Board meeting:
Mrs B’s 90 year old mother, whilst staying with the family, suffered a fall from her bed onto a
wooden floor late at night and was not discovered until early the next morning. By this time she had
been on the floor for over six hours and was cold and uncomfortable. The family did not know how
to help her off the floor or if it was a good idea to try and so Mrs B called 999 at 6.30am.
Mrs B was told by the EMAS Emergency Medical Dispatcher (call taker) that her call was not an
emergency and asked if a neighbour could perhaps assist in trying to lift her mother from the floor.
Mrs B replied that manpower was not the problem; the family simply didn’t know how to lift her
mother safely.
An EMAS Clinical Assistant Team (CAT) clinician made the triage (assessment) call shortly
afterwards and confirmed that there did not appear to be any serious injuries and that the patient
was medically well. The CAT clinician asked if Mrs B and her son would be able to lift the patient
from the floor. Mrs again advised that although her son was strong they did not have the
knowledge or skill to safely lift her mother.
The clinician advised that we do not send blue light ambulances for calls of this nature and
ambulances were for life threatening emergencies. The clinician suggested that the EMAS falls
team could help although it would be a couple of hours before they arrived.
Mrs B replied that for her personally the fact that her mother had been on the floor for such a long
time was an emergency and insisted that her call be put on the list for assistance. As the request of
the CAT clinical, the family tried to lift the patient but was unsuccessful as the patient kept crying
out in pain. The CAT clinician advised the patient would be added to the urgent falls list and the
call was ended.
Mrs B found both the call taker and CAT clinician to be completely lacking in compassion and
empathy. On terminating the call she felt no reassurance that her mother’s condition had been
taken seriously. She was left with the opinion that any help would take hours to arrive which left her
feeling extremely anxious for her mother.
However, to her surprise an ambulance subsequently arrived approximately 30 minutes later and
provided assistance and reassurance to both her mother and her family.
“I was told we did not qualify for an emergency 999 visit and that there was another option but that
would probably be a couple of hours. At no time were we advised that this call had been escalated.
It was a complete surprise when after having ended the telephone conversation with the
assessment team; an ambulance very quickly arrived on the drive of my home.”
This story illustrates how important it is for Emergency Medical Dispatchers (EMDs) and CAT
clinicians to deliver a compassionate service to callers.
Mrs B said: “I just wanted someone to say we’ll be there as soon as we can, I just wanted some
reassurance.” When asked what message she would like us to convey to all our staff as a result of
her experience Mrs B stated that: “staff have to display compassion 100% of the time, they have
chosen to do this role, and I acknowledge the pressure they must be under but they have to be
professional.”
38
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

553
Following the experience, Mrs B was adamant that she did not want her concern handled as a
complaint but rather as an opportunity to highlight the important areas of compassionate care,
empathy and reassurance. Actions that have been completed in relation to Mrs B’s experience are
•

Attendance at the EMAS Trust Board where Mrs B shared her experience responded to
questions from the Board and received a personal apology from the Chair and Chief
Executive for the experience.

•

The importance of compassion, empathy and reassurance fed into EMAS education and
communication campaigns.

•

Feedback provided to the EMAS Emergency Medical Dispatcher and CAT clinician
regarding their customer service and call handling skills.

Mrs D’s story, reported at the June 2014 EMAS Trust Board meeting:
Mrs. D had previously been fit and well, but during the two and a half years prior to this attendance
had suffered ‘little incidents’ where she had felt unwell and had lost consciousness on a number of
occasions.
On the day in question Mrs. D was suffering from a Urinary Tract Infection (UTI) and felt unwell,
she had walked her dogs as usual in the morning and on arriving home struggled to breathe in.
Mrs. D was alone in the house and called 999 at 13.13. As soon as she had given her name,
address and postcode Mrs. D lost consciousness. Soon after, Mrs. D’s son arrived home and
continued the call with the Emergency Medical Dispatcher (EMD).
First on-scene was a Community First Responder (CFR) at 13.17 closely followed by a Fast
Response Vehicle (FRV) Paramedic at 13.19.
Resuscitation commenced with a Double Crewed Ambulance (DCA) arriving on-scene at 13.25
and leaving at 13.51 to transfer Mrs. D to Nottingham University Hospitals. Arrival time at hospital
was 14.02.
Mrs. D stayed in hospital for 3 weeks during which time she had a pacemaker fitted. At the time of
the June 2014 EMAS Trust Board Mrs. D was back at home and convalescing.
Mrs D and her children gave particular praise for:
•
•
•
•

The speed that the 999 call taker identified an emergency situation
The speed of the arrival of the CFR, FRV and DCA
The timely and effective actions of the ambulance staff
The care and teamwork displayed by the staff

Mrs. D stated: ‘I am so grateful to EMAS and particularly to the staff who came to help, they saved
my life.’
Extracts from messages of thanks during 2014/15
‘Around 6.30am I was at home when I suffered a sudden attack of being unable to breathe. My
husband immediately called 999 for an ambulance. Within I think about 5 minutes a paramedic
arrived who was absolutely first class. Subsequently he summoned an ambulance and a male and
female arrived. Again they were first class and conveyed me to hospital where I was immediately
treated in A&E and diagnosed as having had a heart attack. Could you please thank the paramedic
and ambulance crew on my behalf. I certainly owe my life to them. My treatment and the manner in
39
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

554
which I was dealt with was first class. In an age in which it seems fashionable to attack our
emergency services, I know I can’t speak too highly of the ambulance people who helped me.’
Letter from MT of Nottingham
‘We are writing to draw your attention to exemplary care, service and understanding that your
colleague showed when she responded to our 12-year-old son. Her calmness, compassion and
professionalism helped tremendously and, after talking through his symptoms with our son
patiently and at exactly the appropriate level for him, she was able to leave him calm and
reassured. Please pass on our gratitude and best wishes to her, and forward to her senior
managers so that they are aware of the tremendous asset the service has in her.’
Letter from Mr & Mrs C from Northamptonshire

‘I had an Asthma attack in Morrison’s in Swadlincote. I took myself to the local walk in centre. The
practitioner called 999 even though I didn't want to bother you. However two of your crew came out
and took me to hospital. They asked why I hadn't called them. I said I didn't want to bother them or
waste their time. I was quite upset for having to use them and they made me feel at ease and said
I did need them and wasn't wasting their time. I wondered if you could pass on my thanks to them.
You are not given enough praise.”
Letter from Ms CW from Leicestershire
Extracts from ‘could do better’ messages
‘Disappointed to see @EMASNHSTrust Logistics Team Van (FY55 JYC) driver using his mobile
phone on A46 when we know the dangers of #fatal4!
Tweeted by DO via the social media network Twitter.
‘@EMASNHSTrust any major incidents this morning? My great aunt has a suspected broken hip –
been waiting for 1 hour for ambulance/paramedic!’
Tweeted by SK via the social media network Twitter.

40
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

555
Community Engagement
The Communications and Engagement Strategy for 2014-2016 was approved by the EMAS Trust
Board in November 2014. It includes a 2014/15 work plan for Stakeholder Engagement which has
seen us deliver a range of engagement activities to improve patient experiences.
We do this by listening to patient and relatives stories and experiences, capturing their feedback
and sharing it with the organisation. This allows us to respond to concerns raised, share praise
with colleagues, and identify potential for improvement.
We have increased the public’s knowledge and understanding of EMAS by producing materials
and distributing them at events, and using social media to help explain:
•
•
•
•

how emergency and urgent calls are graded (categorised) and responded to
alternative pathways to emergency care
where professional medical advice can be gained for non-urgent problems
methods of self-care and good health and wellbeing

In addition to attending community events and other health service awareness days, we identified
a number of groups which would benefit from direct engagement with EMAS. These included:
•
•
•

the top three postcodes in the East Midlands for use of our service for serious and nonserious problems (this included deprived areas)
Carers, including young carers
Young parents – we worked jointly with SureStart groups

We continued to hold EMAS Membership engagement events across the region, giving us another
good opportunity to hear from local people, share our updates with them and get their views on our
future plans.
Everyone has a role to play in an emergency and giving first aid within the first few minutes of an
incident can make the difference between life and death. The team has trained hundreds of people
in emergency life-saving skills through free courses during 2014/15, offered in each county. People
attending learn CPR (cardio pulmonary resuscitation used when someone goes into cardiac
arrest), the recovery position and how to help someone suffering from a heart attack, choking or a
serious bleed.
During July to September 2014, we conducted EMAS’ first Reputation Audit. Over 3,000 people
responded to the audit, with 87% saying they were very satisfied or satisfied with the care received
from EMAS. 78% of respondents said they would recommend EMAS to friends and family; 73%
said EMAS had improved in some way over the past 12 months; and 80% felt that EMAS has a
positive reputation.
Stakeholder relationships have improved over the last 12 months with EMAS attending meetings
and events, and inviting individuals or groups to visit us at our premises to build an understanding
of our vision and future direction. We have been encouraged by the number of people who have
expressed a desire to work with EMAS to ensure improvements continue, and we thank those who
have taken the time to recognise the steps taken to date to bring about better care and services for
our patients.

41
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

556
Communications and Social Media
Everyone in our service plays their part in saving lives, from our Ambulance Support Teams to our
frontline clinicians, each person works hard to ensure our patients across the East Midlands
receive the best possible patient care.
We are eternally grateful to the patients and their family who share their story and positive
experience with local, regional and in some cases national media.
Here are a few examples of the stories that have been promoted this year:
You are my angels: On 25 April, paramedic Georgina Pickering and her student paramedic
Megan Owen were first on scene to help Peter Jellett who was in cardiac arrest. Due to the shape
of Peter’s house, support was needed from other colleagues to assist Georgina and Megan with
keeping Peter alive whilst trying to maneuver him from his house. Paramedics shocked Peter three
times with a defibrillator to get his heart to beat again. Once he was in a stable position they
worked hard to get him into the ambulance and took him to hospital. Peter, who now has a mini
defibrillator fitted, said: “The ambulance crews who helped me are angels. I am so grateful that
they have given me my life back. I feel very lucky that I can watch my grandchildren grow up and
enjoy life thanks to their actions. Thank you will never be enough but I hope Georgina, Megan and
the team understand what a huge impact they have had on my life.”
I help to save lives: We produced a short film about the people in our service who help save lives.
The film (available on the EMASNHSTrust social media YouTube channel) features patient John
Gilmartin from Chaddeston in Derbyshire. John praised the ‘team work’ and ‘dedication’ of our
colleagues who saved his life when his heart stopped 17 times. By working together, the team
were able to give John’s family their husband and father back.
You saved me: Not many people can re-live their accident by watching it on national television,
but eight year old Danny Pitchford was able to do just that when his story featured on BBC Three’s
Junior Paramedics after he was involved in a collision. Danny was hit by a car and needed to be
taken to hospital after paramedics feared he had sustained a severe head injury. Paramedic
mentor Johnny Holmes was being filmed with student Nick Bailey whilst responding to calls in the
area. After seeing how ‘amazing’ the paramedics were who helped him Danny asked his mum if he
could meet Johnny and student Nick to say thank you. Danny said: “It was great to meet Johnny
and Nick they are my heroes, when I saw them on the television I was very proud of what they did
for me. When I grow up I want to be a paramedic too!”
Thank you: Patient David Marks was seriously injured in a motorbike collision in 2011. He met the
ambulance crews that saved his life in 2014. He said: “I need to say thank you to the EMAS crews
who responded to me, their quick thinking and skilful response saved me and means my family are
eating dinner with me this weekend, not visiting my grave. I was in hospital for six months, suffered
two cardiac arrests, had eighteen broken bones and a severe brain injury which has taken a lot of
recovery time but I am here alive and breathing which is the most important thing.”

42
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

557
Equality & Diversity
Equality and diversity must be embedded in our business portfolio due to legal and regulatory
requirements as well as contract and commissioning requirements and specifications.
By implementing the ‘NHS Equality Delivery System Two’ we will look at objectives that generate
workforce capability and confidence around equalities through better awareness, ownership and
involvement. This will not only increase the diversity of our workforce, but also deliver services that
effectively respond to and meet the needs of the diverse communities that we serve.
Through our Equality and Wellbeing Committee, we aim to embed equalities within all our staff
engagement initiatives, especially in areas that support the development of special interest groups.
We also pledge to identify and engage with national and regional equalities initiatives that nurture
talent and support career development particularly from under-represented staff. We will also
identify innovative and creative ways to improve collection and use of equalities data to improve
our equality performance.

43
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

558

Improving the care environment
We have made numerous improvements as a result of learning from a wide-range of sources
including serious incidents, complaints and patient experience surveys. Some examples are shown
below, with more to feature in the EMAS Strategic Learning Review Group Annual Report.
 Development of education/workshop programme for dispatch staff within our Emergency
Operations Centres (EOC) to facilitate accurate and consistent applications of the updated
Dispatch Protocols.
 Introduction of Red1/Red2 call assessments (life-threatening 999 calls) where the Clinical
Assessment Team clinician provide additional support to both call-takers and callers until
arrival of ambulance personnel on scene where potential delays in response is anticipated.
 Recruitment of additional Clinical Assessment Team clinicians to provide additional clinical
support within our Emergency Operations Centre
 Provision of welfare calls to Green priority calls (serious but not life-threatening 999 calls) by
the Clinical Assessment Team clinicians where delays are being experienced.
 Recruitment of General Practitioners to act as additional clinical support for the Clinical
Assessment Team during the weekend.
 Human factors in healthcare education provided to operational staff as part of the EMAS
Essential Education programme for 2014/15. This training is aimed at addressing the recurring
themes in care management Serious Incidents e.g. ‘framing’ of incidents and the effect of
personal factors such as stress and fatigue on effective decision making.
 The implementation EMAS wide of the Paramedic Pathfinder tool, a clinical triage tool that
enables paramedics and technicians to safely identify those patients for whom an appropriate
alternative to a hospital Emergency Department is available.
 ‘Be an EMAS Ambassador’ education implemented to operational staff via Essential Education
programme for 2014/15.
 Development of calling card for colleagues to leave at patients addresses to inform carers and
relatives when patients have been taken to hospital.
 Introduction of peer review of formal complaints and serious incidents with neighbouring
ambulance trust to facilitate benchmarking and learning.
 Being part of Breaking the Cycle with the Queen’s Medical Centre Emergency Department
(Major Trauma Centre) which is a whole system approach aimed at improving care by
improving capacity and processes to tackle winter pressures.
 Launch of the JACP – Joint Ambulance Conveyance Project – with Lincolnshire Fire Service
(as highlighted previously in the Quality Account)
 ‘Change Free Fridays’ were implemented during quarter two. There will be no major changes
to policies or procedures on Fridays; also the Chief Executive’s Bulletin is now released on a
Tuesday, giving colleagues the remainder of a ‘normal working week’ to ask a question about
any of the news items rather than having to wait until after the weekend.
 On-going deep dive analysis of the formal complaints and serious incident reporting and
investigation processes has led to improvements including quality assurance of investigation
reports and identification of learning points and actions.
 Analysis of all slip, trip and fall incidents and development of a risk mitigation strategy.
 EMAS-wide Better Patient Care programme action plan to improve operational performance.
 Overarching review of medicines management completed and the recommendations arising
from the review being monitored by the Better Patient Care programme.
 Familiarization training for all third party providers (private ambulance services) to ensure that
all clinicians are aware of the geographical locations of relevant hospitals when working in
division.
 Undertaking both a maternity and a paediatric review to ensure that our policies, protocols’
practice ad equipment reflect current practice.

44
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

559

Appendix 1 – Workforce
We have developed a new People Strategy with a vision “to develop and support our people to be
highly skilled, motivated, caring and compassionate professionals proud to be part of the EMAS
family.”
Our aim is to develop EMAS as an Employer of Choice. We will achieve this by ensuring a safe
and healthy workplace, where colleagues feel valued, their views are heard, have a sense of
purpose and direction, are able to reach their full potential, and contribute to achieving our strategic
vision and objectives.
The People Strategy Framework reflects our approach to developing positive employment
relationships with our staff and is modelled on recognised motivational theory – Maslow’s
Hierarchy of Needs, ensuring a person centred approach in its development, and
acknowledgement of the range of mutually reinforcing factors that impact on motivation and
satisfaction.
Desired Outcomes of the Strategy include:
•
•

•

•

Planning and Attraction: Comprehensive and integrated workforce planning that supports the
delivery of the right care, with the right resource, in the right place and at the right time.
Retaining and Valuing: Positive employment relationships where individuals value the
contribution of each other, wish to remain working with at EMAS and recommend EMAS as a
place to work.
Development and Career Progression: An engaged, committed, motivated and skilled
workforce that has the capability to deliver effective patient care and drive organisational
development, improvement and transformation.
Exiting: To manage those who exit the EMAS sensitively and effectively, ensuring feedback
contributes to organisational learning and development.

We have strengthened our workforce plans to ensure our focus on capacity and capability to
support transformation to the new service model and achievement of the quality-improvement
programme. This will provide assurance that we have the right number of resources with the right
skill mix required to meet operational demand, ensure business continuity and meet the regional
and national standards.
More frontline staff
We have a wide variety of frontline personnel at EMAS, who as part of a team provide professional
healthcare services to the people of the East Midlands all day, every day. Examples of the different
role types can be found under the careers section of our website www.emas.nhs.uk
In line with our Workforce Plan, during 2014/15 we recruited and trained xxx emergency care
assistants, xx paramedics, xx staff for our Emergency Operations Centre (control) across both
Emergency Medical Dispatch and Clinical Assessment Team roles, and xx other staff in support
functions. This included an increase in overall frontline staff by xx new roles, as well as keeping up
with natural turnover.
We have also reintroduced the Ambulance Technician role and are actively recruiting qualified
Technicians.
Career progression opportunities have been increased for our existing workforce, and a major
recruitment and education campaign has been launched. This includes a range of options
including:
45
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

560
•
•
•
•

New Emergency Care Assistant roles
Trainee Technicians
Emergency Care Assistant to Technician
Emergency Care Assistant to Paramedic

During the year we experienced a xx% turnover rate of frontline staff and our recruitment plan
reflects the rate needed to maintain establishment and skill mix.
Supporting young people at the start of their career
We continued to support the national apprenticeship programme by recruiting apprentices into a
range of support and operational support positions. Since 1 April 2014, xxx apprentices began
work in various departments across the service. Of the xx apprentices that completed their
schemes in 2014/15, xx went on to successfully secure roles within EMAS.
Values based recruitment improves quality of care
Through our recruitment campaigns we have ensured a values-based approach focussed on
attitudes, behaviours and ability. While assessment of ability has remained an integral component
of the recruitment process, it is now widely recognised that employees’ values, attitudes and
behaviours have a significant impact on the quality of care and patient experience. This has been
highlighted in a number of high-profile publications, not least, the recommendations made by
Robert Francis QC in the Report of the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry and
the Government response.
To better support values-based recruitment, we have employed a number of strategies during the
year including education and training for recruiting managers, values-based interview techniques,
questions to explore attitude and behavioural factors, use of psychometric instruments,
assessment centres and patient and stakeholder involvement.
Education and development
In December 2013, we developed our People Capability Framework to define the competencies,
attitudes and behaviours for staff and managers at every level. The framework supports leadership
and management development; cultural development and underpins workforce planning, valuesbased recruitment, education and training, appraisals and succession planning.
Development of our Learning and Development Strategy will enable our colleagues to feel fully
supported in their education and career progression.
Last year, we set out our education and training plan. At the end of March 2015, xxx% of staff had
successfully completed the programme; we aimed to achieve our target of xxx% by the end of
March 2016.
During 2014/2015, our Education Team implemented the annual Essential Education programme
supporting essential standards of quality and safety, statutory and mandatory requirements and
clinical updates.
Continued delivery of the rolling programmes for clinical staff resulted in an additional xxx staff
completing the Pre-Hospital Assessment and Disposition Education programme and xxx staff
becoming accredited mentors to support newly-qualified paramedics in practice.

46
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

561
Staff support and well being
In 2014 we developed our Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Key objectives include:
•
•
•
•

Deliver improvement in employee health, wellbeing and attendance at work through health
promotion and prevention approaches within a comprehensive health and wellbeing service.
Improve levels of attendance and productivity in line with sickness absence targets and reduce
the annual cost of sickness absence.
Reduce incidence of musculoskeletal injury and absence through prevention and early
intervention strategies.
Reduce incidence of work-related stress and mental ill-health through prevention and early
intervention strategies including the development of individual care pathways to support staff
following traumatic incidents.

Whilst continuing to ensure appropriate management of sickness in accordance with the
Attendance Policy, we have implemented a number of supportive measures to support staff
wellbeing:
•
•

•
•
•

2014 Flu campaign – which has seen xxx staff vaccinated against flu – a xx% rise compared
to last year
A Peer to Peer (P2P) support programme has been implemented. This group of volunteers
support their colleagues by providing a listening ear and signposting to other support
mechanisms. Within the P2P group, we have over 30 volunteers who will also work as
Pastoral Care Workers to support our EMAS Chaplain in his work. The scheme launched in
February 2015, with training for P2P and PCW taking place during February and March 2015.
We have developed and communicated a staff support handbook written by a paramedic for
his colleagues who experienced trauma.
We are developing resilience training for all colleagues and team leaders. Team leader
training is being developed through Sheffield Hallam University.
A group of 16 staff (mainly team leaders) will attend Trauma Risk Management (TRiM) training
in April 2015, enabling us to provide more specialist debriefing support for our colleagues.

Staff engagement
Through the 2014 staff engagement programme Listening into Action (LiA) we aimed to mobilise
and empower colleagues to lead and drive change both locally and at an organisational level, and
embed LiA as ‘the way we do things around here’.
A number of listening events were held across the region together with station and ‘pass it on’
events providing opportunities to listen, engage, involve and communicate change and celebrate
success.
A wide-range of ‘quick wins’ were achieved, including (but not limited to):
•
•
•
•

Improved access to charitable funds to improve facilities for colleagues at stations
Re-establishment of the Ambulance Technician role
‘No Change’ Fridays
Appreciation letters being placed on colleague personal files

In addition, LiA has brought about success in organisational projects, including:
•

Emergency Care Assistant (ECA) support programme which has led to developments in the
education programme and improvement in their transition into frontline operations. This will
47

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

562

•
•

be subject to a post implementation review as the current ECA cohort experience these
improvements.
We have significantly improved staff support available through the introduction of the new
Peer to Peer Network, Pastoral Care Workers and the TRiM programme.
Staff engagement in the new vehicles programmes which sees delivery of the new vehicles
during quarter 4 of this year.

LiA has enabled matters of concern to colleagues to be raised and addressed, has enabled staff
engagement and involvement, and facilitated staff leadership to drive change and improvement.
Planning for LiA year two is in progress.
Positive impact
A number of initiatives came to fruition during 2014/15, including:
•
•
•

Continued provision of our Occupational Health (OH) and Employee Assistance programme
focussed on taking proactive and preventative measures to support staff wellbeing.
A range of education and training programmes to support management capability were
available for staff and managers.
Introduction of Listening into Action and a range of staff support mechanisms

A ‘wellbeing’ fortnight is scheduled for May 2015 to allow more proactive promotion of the
numerous support networks and services available to our colleagues.
NHS Staff Opinion Survey
The annual Staff Opinion Survey was conducted by the Picker Institute on behalf of EMAS. Picker
also administered the survey for five other ambulance services enabling us to have some
comparative data ahead of the Department of Health report which details results from other parts
of the NHS.
Our response rate for 2014 was 28.8%. The average response rate for the five other ambulance
Trusts was 36.7%.
How do we compare to other services?
In this year’s survey, a comparison could be drawn between EMAS and the average for all 'Picker'
ambulance trusts on a total of 92 questions. The survey showed that EMAS is:
•
•
•

Significantly better than average on 36 questions
Significantly worse than average on 6 questions
The scores were average on 50 questions

Have we improved since the 2013 survey?
A total of 86 questions were used in both the 2013 and 2014 surveys. Compared to the 2013
survey, EMAS is:
•
•
•

Significantly better on 15 questions
Significantly worse on 4 questions
The scores show no significant difference on 67 questions

[Draft version 2 of this quality account will include more detailed analysis of the NHS Staff Opinion
Survey results]

48
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

563

Appendix 2 – IG Toolkit
Our Information Governance Toolkit assessment overall score for 2014/15 was [figure to be
entered at year end%] and was graded satisfactory.
The EMAS Information Governance Manager is responsible for maintaining evidence to support
the Information Governance Toolkit for our service. Assurance on the process to collect the
evidence is overseen by the EMAS Information Governance Group, chaired by the Senior
Information Risk Owner (SIRO), which is accountable to the Finance and Performance Group.
Requirements within the Information Governance Toolkit were assessed by Internal Audit in
February 2015, who were able to provide significant assurance that there is a sound system in
place to support Information Governance.

Data incident 2014
We proactively reported a data loss incident in August 2014, informing the Information
Commissioner, Clinical Commissioning Groups and other key stakeholders, including the media. A
telephone helpline was set up to allow patients to contact us directly should they be concerned with
the news (update reports have also featured in EMAS Trust Board papers available on our
website).
In January 2015, we received a letter from the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) confirming
its decision having investigated the incident.
The Information Commissioner considered the information we provided about a potential breach of
the Data Protection Act and decided that no further action is necessary at this stage. This includes
their decision not to impose a fine on EMAS.
In summary, the Commissioner felt the likelihood of substantial damage or distress to data subjects
appeared to be low, particularly given the obsolete nature of the system used to access the data
cartridge and read the content.
It acknowledged that our investigation into the circumstances revealed several flaws in the
technical and organisational measures to keep this personal data secure, however that we have
taken extensive remedial measures to improve our compliance with the Data Protection Act.
In conclusion, it confirmed that the case did not appear to meet the criteria set out in the ICO’s
Data Protection Regulatory Action Policy necessitating further action by the Information
Commissioners Office.

49
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

Appendix 3 – Research and Development
EMAS research status to date for year 2014/2015
Project

Type

Epidemiology and
outcome from out
of hospital
cardiac arrest

NIHR
Portfolio

Chief
Investigator
Professor
Gavin Perkins

Funding
Organisation
British Heart
Foundation

University of
Warwick

Resuscitation
Council UK

Overarching study aim

Status

Recruitment

To develop a
standardised approach to
collecting information about out
of hospital cardiac arrest and
how outcomes are followed up
to confirm if a resuscitation
attempt was successful.

This is a national study involving all
ambulance services in England and
Wales. The OHCAO project team
are supporting the services to assist
with improvements in data capture,
quality and quantity. Discussions with
all services have been taking place to
agree the OHCAO definitions. This
will ensure there is minimal variation
across services and improve overall
data quality and consistency.

None. This
study does not
involve taking
consent from
patients and
therefore is
considered a
non-recruiting
study.

Preventing repeat
hypoglycaemic
episodes in
people with type 2
diabetes: The
hypo ambulance
study

NIHR
Portfolio

Professor
Kamlesh
Khunti
University of
Leicester

NIHR CLAHRC
(Collaborations
for Leadership
in Applied
Health
Research and
Care)

To implement and evaluate the
effectiveness of a diabetes
specialist nurse (DSN) led
intervention following a call out
of an ambulance to treat a
hypoglycaemic episode

50

Project data for October 2014 has
also been submitted to OHCAO as
part of a wider project for the
European Registry of Cardiac arrest
(EuReCA One).
This study is currently in
development. The EMAS Research
Team are working alongside the
University of Leicester to develop the
protocol.

564

Sample data from EMAS has been
submitted to OHCAO for data
verification and quality. After
completion of this process EMAS will
submit data from April 2012 to March
2013, as well as data captured
between April 2014 and November
2014.

Expected
recruitment:
100

Type

EDICES: ERC
Dispatch Centre
Survey on
dispatch assisted
CPR

Nonportfolio

Pre-hospital
Outcomes for
Evidenced Based
Evaluation
(PhOEBE):
Developing new
ways of
measuring the
impact of
ambulance
service care

NIHR
Portfolio

Work Package 2 –
Data Linkage
Understanding
variation in rates
of ambulance
service ‘nonconveyance of
patients to an
emergency
department’

Chief
Investigator
Dr Michael
Baubin

Funding
Organisation
Medical
University
Innsbruck

The Medical
University of
Innsbruck

Professor
Niroshan
Siriwardena
University of
Lincoln & East
Midlands
Ambulance
Service NHS
Trust

NIHR
Portfolio

Professor
Alicia
O’Cathain
University of
Sheffield

NIHR
Programme
Grants for
Applied
Research

NIHR Health
Services and
Delivery
Research
Programme
(HS&DR)

Overarching study aim

Status

The study aims to better
understand the effects of
different dispatch centre
strategies and to improve the
quality of dispatch strategies for
life support measures. This will
be done by gathering
information on how emergency
calls for out of hospital cardiac
arrests are being processed
within dispatch centres
throughout Europe.
To develop new ways of
measuring the impact of
ambulance service care to
support quality improvement
through monitoring, auditing and
service evaluation.

EMAS’ involvement in this study was
completed in December 2014 on
completion and submission of an
online survey. EMAS also undertook
a national coordinator role recruiting
the other ambulance services within
the UK.

This study aims to identify the
determinants of variation
between and within ambulance
services for three different types
of non-conveyance: ‘hear and
treat’, ‘see and treat’ and ‘see
and convey elsewhere’.

This is a five year programme and is
currently in year four. The systematic
review on pre-hospital care outcome
measures, the consensus study to
identify measures relevant to patients
and NHS staff, and the qualitative
review are complete and in the
process of being written up. The data
linkage element of the study, linking
pre-hospital data with other data
sources (e.g., Hospital Episode
Statistics and national mortality data)
to create a single data set, is in
progress.
This study has recently gained
organisational approval and is in the
process of site initiation.

Recruitment

1

None. This
study does not
involve taking
consent from
patients and
therefore is
considered a
non-recruiting
study.

565

Project

Expected
recruitment:
22

The study will explore the
determinants of potentially
inappropriate non conveyance
51
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

Project

Type

Chief
Investigator

Funding
Organisation

Overarching study aim

Status

Recruitment

The aim of the study is to
establish the implications of
closing, or downgrading
Emergency Departments on the
population and emergency care
providers and in doing so
provide the public, the NHS and
policy makers with the
necessary evidence to inform
decision making about future ED
closures.
The study aims to test the
reliability and validity of the
PROMPT and then to evaluate
its effectiveness in pre-hospital
pain management. The study
aims to find out how reliable and
valid the new tool is for
assessing pain in the prehospital setting.

This study is currently in the process
of obtaining NHS permission. The
planned study start date is March
2015.

None. This
study does not
involve taking
consent from
patients and
therefore is
considered a
non-recruiting
study

The overarching aim is to
investigate the feasibility,
usefulness and effectiveness of

The study has completed the first
part of the qualitative phase –
interviews, focus groups and

for the three types. The study
will also seek to understand
organisational variation in the
provision of ‘hear and treat’
within ambulance services and
specifically explore the different
types of non-conveyance rates
for respiratory problems.
NIHR
Portfolio

Improving prehospital
pain
management:
development and
validation of a
patient
and practitioner
reported outcome
measure for pain
treatment
(PROMPT)

Nonportfolio
Doctoral
Study

Using National
Early Warning
Scores to support

Nonportfolio
Doctoral

Dr Emma
Knowles

NIHR HS&DR

University of
Sheffield

Dr Mohammad
Iqbal

Nadya Essam

Internally funded
(EMAS)

University of
Lincoln
Research

Data collection for the study is
currently in progress and recruited
paramedics are using the pain
assessment tool. The next phase will
be to analyse the data collected.

566

Impact of closing
Emergency
Departments in
England (closED)

Expected
recruitment:
77
(21
paramedics &
56

Expected
recruitment:
52

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

Type

Chief
Investigator

paramedic
decision-making:
Modelling and
improving
effectiveness of
pre-hospital
ambulance
transport to
hospital
Improving Prehospital and
Ambulance Care
and Treatment
following the
Ambulance
Services
Cardiovascular
Quality Initiative
(ImPACT-ASCQI)

evaluation
study

Quality
Improvem
ent

Niro
Siriwardena

Pre-hospital Care
of Patients After a
Suspected
Seizure:
Incidence, Patient
Characteristics
and Costs

Nonportfolio
research

Dr Zahid
Asghar

Funding
Organisation
Investment
Fund

Overarching study aim

Status

NEWS to support paramedics’
decision-making to transport or
treat patients closer to home
(i.e. ‘see and treat’, ‘see and
refer’ or ‘treat and refer’).

observations. An application for the
quantitative data has been made to
the Health and Social Care
Information Centre.

The Health
Foundation

The aim of the project is to
widen the impact of the
Ambulance Services
Cardiovascular Quality Initiative
(ASCQI) by providing a
sustainable and long term
increase in quality improvement
(QI) knowledge and skills to a
wider proportion of ambulance
staff and to extend this further to
other healthcare professionals.

University of
Lincoln

The study aims to determine the
incidence, patient characteristics
and costs of suspected seizure
and which clinical factors predict
transport to hospital in the prehospital (ambulance) setting

This is a project involving nine
ambulance services. Services have
been using quality improvement
methods to increase the performance
of an aspect of clinical care (chosen
locally). This has involved the use of
PDSA cycles, workshops, process
mapping, root cause analysis, 1:1
feedback and visual prompts. In
EMAS this has resulted in significant
improvements in ETCO2 recording
(from 29.41% to 77.78%). Other
aspects of the project included
developing an ASCQI website and elearning toolkit to facilitate the
ongoing education of QI, delivering
QI webinars and holding a
conference to showcase the ongoing
QI work.
This study is using routinely collected
data to quantify the number of
emergency incidents dealt with by
EMAS in 2011/12. Analysis is
currently in progress. Further work
will include linking ambulance data to
HES data. It is hoped that further
collaborative work will inform
discussions into the development of

Internally funded
(EMAS)

Recruitment
22

Not applicable
-the project is
not research.

567

Project

None. This
study does not
involve taking
consent from
patients and
therefore is
considered a
non-recruiting
study
53

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

Project

Type

Chief
Investigator

Funding
Organisation

Status

NIHR Health
Technology
Assessment
(HTA)
Programme

AIRWAYS-2 aims to determine
the best approach to the
management of a patient’s
airway during an out of hospital
cardiac arrest.

ambulance clinical performance
indicators for epilepsy.
The study is currently in the set up
phase within EMAS. The trial is
scheduled to begin in March 2015
and will involve comprehensive
training for participating paramedics
before randomisation and use of the
interventions can begin.

The purpose of this study is to
determine whether early use of
GTN within 4 hours of suspected
ultra-acute stroke, and
continuing administration once
daily for a further three days, is
associated with improved
outcome.
The study aims to understand
the reconfiguration of major
trauma services within the East
Midlands region of the English
NHS to identify lessons for
similar service reconfigurations
based on centralisation of
specialist services into regional
centres.

Cluster
randomised trial
of the clinical and
cost effectiveness
of the i-gel
supraglottic
airway device
versus tracheal
intubation in the
initial airway
management of
out of hospital
cardiac arrest
(AIRWAYS-2)
Rapid
Intervention with
GTN in
Hypertensive
Stroke Trial
2(RIGHT 2)

NIHR
Portfolio

NIHR
Portfolio

Professor
Philip Bath

British Heart
Foundation

Understanding
the
implementation,
organisation of
centralised
specialist
services: the
reconfiguration of
major trauma
service in the
East Midlands

NIHR
Portfolio

Professor
Justin Waring

The Health
Foundation

Professor
Jonathan
Benger

Recruitment

Expected
recruitment
1550
(250
paramedics &
1350 patients)

The study is currently gaining
approvals from the regulatory bodies.
The study is scheduled to begin
recruiting in May 2015.

Expected
recruitment:
150

This project is currently in set up
within EMAS. Recruitment to the
study is expected to commence in
May 2015.

Expected
recruitment:
15

568

Overarching study aim

54
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

Successful research is measured by its effect on patient outcomes. This is achieved in a number of ways through dissemination at conferences,
publications and clinical education and training.
The table below shows some of the publications and presentation the Trust has delivered. The names in bold are EMAS staff
Date

Oral

Feasibility study of a novel pain
assessment tool for improving prehospital pain management

04/02/2015

Poster

Feasibility study of a novel pain
assessment tool for improving prehospital pain management

Poster

Poster

Journal
Publication

Location / Journal
published in
999 EMS Research
Forum, Nottingham

Authors / Presenters

Study

Iqbal M

Improving pre-hospital
pain management
development and
validation of a patient and
practitioner reported
outcome measure for pain
treatment (PROMPT)

04/02/2015

999 EMS Research
Forum, Nottingham

Iqbal M

The Impact of Quality Improvement
Interventions on the Monitoring and
Recording of End Tidal Carbon Dioxide
in Intubated Patients
Service user perspectives on patient
safety in the ambulance service

04/02/2015

999 EMS Research
Forum, Nottingham

Knowles S, Spaight R,
Siriwardena AN

Improving pre-hospital
pain management
development and
validation of a patient and
practitioner reported
outcome measure for pain
treatment (PROMPT)
ImPACT-ASCQI

06/10/2014

College of Paramedic
Conference 2014

O'Hara R, Johnson M, Turner J,
Shaw D, Newman C

Identifying barriers and facilitators to
ambulance service assessment and
treatment of acute asthma: a focus
group study

03/08/2014

BMC Emergency
Medicine 2014, 14:18
doi:10.1186/1471-227x14-18

Shaw D, Siriwardena AN

569

Presentations and Publications
Type
Title

Decision Making and
Safety in Emergency Care
Transitions
Identifying barriers and
facilitators to evidence
based assessment of
asthma in EMAS:
exploring the perception
and belief of ambulance
paramedics to the
55

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

Presentations and Publications
Type
Title

Date

Location / Journal
published in

Authors / Presenters

Oral

Modified Early Warning Scores
(MEWS) to support paramedics'
decisions to transport or treat at home:
a time series study

11/07/2014

Society for Academic
Primary Care 2014,
Edinburgh

Essam N

Journal
Publication

A qualitative study of systemic
influences on paramedic decision
making: care transitions and patient
safety

02/12/2014

Journal of Health Services
Research & Policy 2015,
20: 45
doi:10.1177/13558196145
58472

O'Hara R, Johnson M,
Siriwardena AN, Weyman A,
Turner J, Shaw D, Mortimer P,
Newman C, Hirst E, Storey M,
Mason S, Quinn T, Shewan J

Decision Making and
Safety in Emergency Care
Transitions

Journal
Publication

Views of Paramedics on Their Role in
an Out-of-Hospital Ambulance-Based
Trial in Ultra-Acute Stroke: Qualitative
Data From the Rapid Intervention With
Glyceryl Trinitrate in Hypertensive
Stroke Trial (RIGHT)

18/04/2014

Annals of Emergency
Medicine 2014, 64:640
doi:http://dx.doi.org/10.10
16/j.annemergmed.2014.0
3.016

Ankolekar S, Parry R, Sprigg N,
Siriwardena AN and Bath P

RIGHT

Poster

Systematic review: the barriers and
facilitators for minority ethnic groups in
accessing urgent and pre-hospital
care.

19/06/2014

The Health Services
Research Network
(HSRN) Symposium
2014, Nottingham

Phung VH, Windle K, Asghar Z,
Ortega M, Essam N, Barot M,
Kai J, Johnson M, Siriwardena
AN

BME

Poster

Investigating the understanding, use
and experiences of older people in
Lincolnshire accessing emergency and
urgent services via 999 and NHS 111:
A scoping study

19/06/2014

The Health Services
Research Network
(HSRN) Symposium
2014, Nottingham

Togher F, Essam N, Windle K,
Hardwick J, Siriwardena AN,
Phung VH, Vowles V

999/111

Oral

Experiences and Understanding of 999
111 services of people 65 and over

25/06/2014

Lincolnshire Community
Health Services Research
Forum

Hardwick J, Essam N, Windle K,
Togher F, Siriwardena AN,
Phung VH, Vowles V

999/111

Study
assessment of asthma
Modified Early Warning
Scores (MEWS) to
support ambulance
clinicians’ decisions to
transport of treat at home:
time series study

570
56

EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

571

Appendix 4 – CQC registration
Draft version 2 to include this section [previous updates and reports included in EMAS Trust Board
papers made available online ahead of each meeting]

57

572

Appendix 5 – Third Party Statements
This section will be completed when official responses are received from the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees, Healthwatch groups and Lead Commissioner for EMAS.
The first draft version will be sent to OSC early March to comply with purdah which begins
on 30 March.
The EMAS Trust Board will also receive a copy of the first draft to review in March.
The second draft version will be shared with Healthwatch groups in April 2014.

58
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

573

Appendix 6 – EMAS Trust Board
Critical to the continued improvements of our services is the appointment to key, substantive
leadership roles in the Exeuctive Director team. Our current board were recruited substantively
during 2014/15 with the full support of the NHS Trust Development Authority.
The main role of the EMAS Trust Board is to guide the overall strategic direction of our ambulance
service, to ensure we can meet our current challenges, establish and achieve our objectives and
plan effectively for the future.
Our Trust Board has overall corporate responsibility for how EMAS runs.
Our Trust Board is led by our Chairman and comprises of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.
Executive Directors are responsible for managing our affairs on a day-to-day basis, while NonExecutive Directors provide essential balance with their skills and expertise in the public and
private business sectors to complement those of our Executive Directors.
Chairman
Pauline Tagg
Non-Executive Directors
Stuart Dawkins, Dermot Toberty, Rachel Morrison, Karen Tomlinson and Vijay Sharma
Chief Executive
Sue Noyes
Director of Operations
Richard Henderson
Medical Director
Bob Winter
Director of Nursing & Quality
Judith Douglas
Acting Director of People
Kerry Gulliver
Director of Finance
Richard Wheeler
Director of Information and Performance
Will Legge
Director of Business Development and Strategy
Tim Loveridge

59
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

574

Director’s responsibilities in respect of the
Quality Account
The EMAS Trust Board has been involved in identifying the quality indicators, agreeing the content
and endorsing the content of this Quality Account [to be confirmed once Board has reviewed draft
QA in April 2015]. We have developed our quality priorities and indicators in conjunction with our
stakeholders and our staff. Non-Executive Directors continue to play a pivotal role in providing
challenge and scrutiny, assessing our performance and contributing to our future strategy.

Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the quality account
NHS Trusts are required under the Health Act 2009, National Health Service (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 and National Health Service (Quality Account) Amendment Regulation 2011 to
prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. The Department of Health has issued guidance
on the form and content of annual Quality Accounts (which incorporate the above legal
requirements). In preparing our Quality Account, the Trust Board has ensured that:
• the Quality Account presents a balanced picture of the Trust’s performance over the period
covered;
• the performance information reported in the Quality Account is reliable and accurate;
• there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of
performance included in the Quality Account, and these controls are subject to review to
confirm that they are working effectively in practice;
• the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Account is robust
and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed definitions, is
subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and
• the Quality Account has been prepared in accordance with Department of Health guidance.
The Directors of the Trust Board confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief that they have
complied with these requirements in preparing this Quality Account. This has been confirmed
through a resolution of the Trust Board. [to be confirmed once Board has reviewed final QA in May
2015]

60

575

The Core Quality Account Indicators
Performance standards
During 2014/15, we received [insert number at year end] emergency 999 calls from members of
the public. Our accident and emergency crews responded to [insert number at year end] of these
calls, which equates to [insert number at year end] responses every day. Of these, [insert number
at year end] were Red (serious, life threatening calls).
There are two national performance standards for Red, life-threatening calls. The first requires us
to respond to at least 75% of incidents in eight minutes or less, the second requires us to provide a
support vehicle within 19 minutes or less for 95% of calls.
During 2014/2015, we achieved a response rate of [insert number at year end]% Red1 and [insert
number at year end]% Red2 (response within eight minutes) and [insert number at year end]%
(support vehicle within 19 minutes) across the East Midlands – see the at-a-glance guide to our
response to 999 calls on page X of this report [include guide infographic in final version].
The performance standards hit for each division of EMAS during 2014/15 is as follows:
Red 1

Red 2

A19

Derbyshire

tbc%

tbc%

tbc%

Nottinghamshire

tbc%

tbc%

tbc%

Lincolnshire

tbc%

tbc%

tbc%

Leicestershire & Rutland

tbc%

tbc%

tbc%

Northamptonshire

tbc%

tbc%

tbc%

We accept that more work needs to be done in 2015/16 to achieve both the 75% and 95%
standards. However we are pleased that our performance has continued to improve since the
introduction of our Better Patient Care quality improvement programme.
To help explain the different types of call categories, we have produced a guide ‘responding to
your 999 calls’. It can be found on our website at www.emas.nhs.uk under the ‘about us’ section.

Clinical Quality Indicators
On 1 April 2011, the Department of Health introduced new national targets for ambulance services.
Eleven new Clinical Quality Indicators were introduced for non-life threatening calls.
This means we are measured on how we treat patients and the outcomes of any treatment rather
than just timeliness. By monitoring performance in this way, we are able to identify good practice
and any areas which need improvement. Examples of the quality measures are:
•
•

outcome following a heart attack or stroke
proportion of calls dealt with by telephone advice or managed without transport to A&E
(where clinically appropriate)

You can read more about Clinical Quality Indicators in the Clinical Audit section of this Account.

61
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

576

Glossary
A&E
Accident and Emergency, also referred to as A&E, is a hospital or primary care department that provides
initial treatment to patients with a broad spectrum of illnesses and injuries, some of which may be lifethreatening and require immediate attention. Also referred to as ED or Emergency Department.
AMPDS
Advanced Medical Priority Dispatch System is a medically-approved, unified system used by EMAS to
dispatch appropriate aid to medical emergencies including systematized caller interrogation and pre-arrival
instructions.
Audit
A continuous process of assessment, evaluation and adjustment.
Board
EMAS Trust Board of Directors made up of Executive and Non-Executive members responsible for all that
EMAS does.
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
Clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) are NHS organisations set up by the Health and Social Care Act
2012 to organise the delivery of NHS services in England.
Commissioners
NHS organisations who effectively purchase services from EMAS, based on the identified health needs of
their local population. NHS Erewash Clinical Commissioning Group is the ‘lead commissioner’ for EMAS.
That is, they (on behalf of all the Clinical Commissioning Groups in our area) negotiate what level of income
EMAS will receive – and, alongside this, what quality measures we are expected to achieve as set out in our
service level agreement.
CPI
Clinical Performance Indicator is a way to measure quality.
CQC
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) regulates all health and adult social care services in England, including
those provided by the NHS, local authorities, private companies or voluntary organisation. It also protects the
interests of people detained under the Mental Health Act.
CQI
Clinical Quality Indicators, a set of 11 indicators introduced to the ambulance service by the Government
from 1 April 2011 as measures of clinical quality.
CQUIN
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation, known as CQUIN, is a payment framework that makes a
proportion of NHS service providers' income conditional on quality and innovation. Its aim is to support the
vision set out in High Quality Care for all of an NHS where quality is the organising principle. The framework
was launched in April 2009 and helps ensure quality is part of the commissioner-provider discussion
everywhere.
62
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

577
DIVISION/S
Operational areas with autonomy to make decisions about the provision of local services under the umbrella
of EMAS’ corporate vision, goals and objectives. Our divisions are aligned to the counties we serve (see
below)
ECA
Emergency Care Assistant responds to emergency calls as part of an accident and emergency crew or at
times as a first responder, using skills and procedures that they have been trained and directed to do.
ECP
The role of Emergency Care Practitioners, or known as ECPs, utilises the skills of paramedics and other
professionals (such as specialist nurses with additional skills) to support the first contact needs of patients in
unscheduled care. They are employed primarily by ambulance service trusts.
ED
Emergency Department is a hospital or primary care department that provides initial treatment to patients
with a broad spectrum of illnesses and injuries, some of which may be life-threatening and require immediate
attention. Also referred to as Accident and Emergency or A&E.
EMAS
East Midlands Ambulance Service, also referred to as EMAS, is part of the NHS and provides emergency
and urgent for the six counties of Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Rutland, Lincolnshire (including North and
North East Lincolnshire), Northamptonshire and Nottinghamshire. Patient Transport Services are provided in
North and North East Lincolnshire and parts of Nottinghamshire.
EMICS
East Midlands Immediate Care Scheme is made up of a group of volunteer doctors who assist the
Ambulance Service on emergency call-outs.
EOC
Emergency Operations Centre (control) at East Midlands Ambulance Service. One based in Nottingham and
one based in Lincoln. These centres receive the emergency and urgent 999 calls and dispatch ambulance
crews to them or give ‘hear and treat’ advice via the Clinical Assessment Team (paramedics and nurses who
work in the control centre).
HCPC
Health and Care Professions Council – A UK health regulator. It was created by the Health Professions
Order 2001 to protect the public by setting and maintaining standards for the professions it regulates.
IPC
Infection Prevention and Control provides specialist infection prevention and control support and advice for
all clinical and support services.
IG
Information Governance is the way by which the NHS handles all organisational information, in particular the
personal and sensitive information of patients and employees. It allows organisations and individuals to
ensure that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively, in order to deliver
the best possible care.

63
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

578
JRCALC
Joint Royal Colleges Ambulance Liaison Committee - its role is to provide robust clinical speciality advice to
UK ambulance services and other interested groups
NHS
National Health Service. Established in 1948 to provide free state primary medical services throughout the
United Kingdom.
NICE
National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence. The health technology assessment body in the UK
providing guidance to clinicians relating to authorised treatments, devices, diagnostics and techniques.
NHS Institute for Innovation and Improvement
Supports the NHS to transform healthcare for patients and the public by rapidly developing and spreading
new ways of working, new technology and world-class leadership.
PALS
Patient Advice and Liaison Service – offers confidential help, advice, support and information and are
responsible for any compliments and complaints.
ROSC
Return of Spontaneous Circulation. Following a period when the heart stops, providing life support is aimed
at restoring the body’s circulation.
SBAR
Situation, Background, Assessment, Recommendation. A structured communication tool used to share
clinical information.
SI
Serious Incident
STEMI
ST Elevation Myocardial Infarction is a heart attack.

64
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

579

Our Quality Account
2014/2015
We welcome your comments about our Quality Account.
Please contact us using the details below:
East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust
Trust Headquarters
1 Horizon Place
Mellors Way
Nottingham Business Park
Nottingham, NG8 6PY
Call
0115 884 5000
Email
communications@emas.nhs.uk
Visit
www.emas.nhs.uk
Follow us on Twitter:
@EMASNHSTrust

To receive this information in large print, audio or in another
language, please call us on 0845 299 4112.

65
EMAS Quality Account 2014/15 – version 1.0 first draft March 2015

580

This page is intentionally left blank

581

Agenda Item 17

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 12 MARCH 2015
REPORT OF NHS ENGLAND
UPDATE ON S106 CONTRIBUTIONS FOR HEALTHCARE
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the current
situation with regard to section 106 (s106) (developer) contributions for healthcare.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

In July 2014 the Health and Wellbeing Board noted the proposed expenditure of
secured and available s106 contributions for healthcare.

Update
3.

NHS England is continuing to engage with local authorities and service providers to
respond to planning applications with a view to securing s106 contributions for
healthcare. This has now been extended to Melton Borough Council and Oadby and
Wigston Borough Council. All Leicestershire local authorities are now in
communication with NHS England regarding planning applications.

4.

NHS England also continues to work with service providers to spend the available
s106 funds within the definition of each s106 agreement.

5.

NHS England has been part of discussions with the 7 District Councils in
Leicestershire as the Local Planning authorities and with Leicester City Council to
develop a sub regional approach to negotiating s106 contributions from developers
so that there is strategic approach to the infrastructure requirements to support
housing growth with a view to each Council adopting the protocol.

Going Forward
6.

In May 2014, NHS England invited CCGs to express interest in the co-commissioning
of primary care services. There are three co-commissioning models which CCGs
could take forward:
i.

Greater involvement in decision-making;

ii.

Joint commissioning arrangements;

iii.

Delegated commissioning arrangements.

582

7.

The Leicestershire CCGs are pursuing the option of delegated commissioning
arrangements with effect from 1 April 2015. This is likely to impact on the
arrangements for managing the s106 process in terms of moving from one central
contact point, although full details are yet to be discussed.

Conclusions/Recommendations
8.

It is recommended that the update on the management of s106 contributions for
healthcare be noted and that a further updates be provided to future meetings of the
Board.

Officer to Contact
Amanda Anderson
Medical and Pharmacy Contracts Manager
Telephone: 0113 8249548
Email: amanda.anderson8@nhs.net

